
      
C ommissioners C ourt -- JU LY 30, 2024C ommissioners C ourt -- JU LY 30, 2024

N OTIC E OF A  MEETIN G OF TH EN OTIC E OF A  MEETIN G OF TH E
C OMMISSION ER S C OU R T OF H AYS C OU N TY, TEXASC OMMISSION ER S C OU R T OF H AYS C OU N TY, TEXAS

 

 
This Notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act. (VERNONS TEXAS CODES ANN. GOV. CODE CH.551).
The Hays County Commissioners Court will hold a meeting at 9:00 A .M.9:00 A .M. on JULY 30, 2024,, in the Hays County
Courthouse, Room 301, San Marcos, Texas. An Open Meeting will be held concerning the following subjects:
      

A. C ALL TO OR D ERC ALL TO OR D ER   
 

B. IN VOC ATIONIN VOC ATION   
 

C. PLED GE OF ALLEGIAN C E - P ledge of A l legiance to the American F lag &  P ledge of A l legiance toPLED GE OF ALLEGIAN C E - P ledge of A l legiance to the American F lag &  P ledge of A l legiance to
the Texas F lagthe Texas F lag

  

 

D. R OLL C ALLR OLL C ALL   
 

E. PU BLIC  C OMMEN TS PU BLIC  C OMMEN TS 
At this time 3-MINUTE comments will be taken from the audience on Non-Agenda related topics. To address the Court, please submit

a Public Participation/ Witness Form to the County Clerk. Please Complete the Public Participation/ Witness Form in its Entirety. 
NO ACTION MAY BE TAKEN BY THE COURT DURING PUBLIC COMMENTS .

  

 

F. PR ESEN TATION S &  PR OC LAMATION SPR ESEN TATION S &  PR OC LAMATION S   

 

1. Presentation of Hays County Employee Service and Retirement Awards.    BEC ER R A/MILLERBEC ER R A/MILLER
 

2. Recognition of the winners of the Pedernales Electric Cooperative's "Government in Action Youth Tour"
contest.  SMITH /C OH ENSMITH /C OH EN

 

G. C ON SEN T ITEMS C ON SEN T ITEMS 
The following may be acted upon in one motion. 

A Commissioner, the County Judge, or a Citizen may request items be pulled for separate discussion and/or action.

  

 

1. Approve payments of County invoices.  V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO   
 

2. Approve the payment of Juror checks. TEN OR IOTEN OR IO   
 

3. Approve the payment of United Healthcare claims and authorize an additional disbursement in an amount not to
exceed $500,000.00 to the healthcare claims account.  V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

  

 

4. Approve Commissioners Court Minutes of July 16, 2024.     BEC ER R A/C AR D EN ASBEC ER R A/C AR D EN AS
 

5. Authorize the renewal of the Hays County Accident Insurance Policy with La Vernia Insurance Agency related to
all authorized volunteers at a premium renewal rate of $300.00.    BEC ER R A/MILLERBEC ER R A/MILLER

 

6. Authorize Building Maintenance to replace the 2-ton HVAC unit at the Kyle WIC building in the amount of
$11,905.18 and amend the budget accordingly. C OH EN /T.C R U MLEYC OH EN /T.C R U MLEY

 

7. Authorize the execution of a Security One, Inc. work order in the amount of $533.00 for the installation of an
external antenna and cable extension at the Yarrington location. IN GALSBE/T.C R U MLEYIN GALSBE/T.C R U MLEY

 

8. Authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes and the execution of a Dunn Wright Heating



and Cooling estimate in the amount of $43,000.00 for the replacement of Computer Room Air Conditioning
(CRAC) Unit #3 located at the Government Center and amend the budget accordingly. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

 

9. Approve out-of-state travel for William Baumann GIS Specialist with the Office of Emergency Services to attend
the Tyler Technologies Fall Advisory Board Meetings on September 10-13, 2024 in Troy, Michigan and amend
the budget accordingly.   IN GALSBE/SH ELL/MIKE JON ES IN GALSBE/SH ELL/MIKE JON ES 

 

10. Authorize the Office of Emergency Services to accept a proposal from ESRI Indoor Mapping; authorize a
discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Ch. 262.024(a)(7)(D) and amend the
budget accordingly. BEC ER R A/MIKE JON ESBEC ER R A/MIKE JON ES

 

11. Authorize the Office of Emergency Services Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) to utilize
$1,279.00 in training savings to purchase 1 Ruth Lee Training Manikin from CPR Savers and amend the budget
accordingly. BEC ER R A/MIKE JON ESBEC ER R A/MIKE JON ES

 

12. Authorize the execution of a contract amendment to the Texas Water Development Board, Flood Infrastructure
Fund grant contract.    SMITH /T.C R U MLEY/PAC H EC OSMITH /T.C R U MLEY/PAC H EC O

 

13. Authorize the execution of grant documents associated with the Texas Department of Emergency
Management, State Public Assistance, Windy Duece Fire program.    BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY/JON ES BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY/JON ES

 

14. Authorize the acceptance of additional insurance funds from the Texas Association of Counties (TAC) Risk
Management Pool for vehicle repairs to a 2022 Ford Escape in the amount of $1,412.13 and amend the budget
accordingly. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEY SH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

 

15. Approve the execution of a First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between Hays County and
Broaddus & Associates regarding Project Management Services executed on or about July 2, 2024. 
 BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

 

16. Amend the Election Contract Fee Fund continuing education budget for training expenses related to the 42nd
Annual Election Law Seminar for County Election Officials to be held in Austin, Tx on August 12-14, 2024.
IN GALSBE/IN GALSBE/DD OIN OFFOIN OFF

 

17. Authorize the execution of a Second Amendment to the Hays County American Rescue Plan Recovery Social
Service Funding Agreement between Hays County and United Way for Greater Austin. IN GALSBEIN GALSBE

 

18. Authorize the Office of Emergency Services Department to purchase two light kit packages for new leased
vehicles, amend the budget accordingly, and authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three
quotes. BEC ER R A/JON ESBEC ER R A/JON ES

 

19. Approve out-of-state travel for Emergency Communications Manager Megan Jones to attend the Tyler Advisory
Group Meetings on September 11-12, 2024, in Troy, Michigan. IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

 

20. Authorize the Sheriff's Office to use existing funds to purchase vehicle cages valued at $29,546.10 from Dana
Safety Supply, Inc.   IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

 

21. Authorize the Sheriff's Office - Jail Division to purchase a replacement HVAC unit valued at $14,667.75 and
amend the budget accordingly. IN GALSBE/C U TLER IN GALSBE/C U TLER

 

22. Authorize the Sheriff's Office to use existing funds to purchase twelve (12) Stalker Radar systems valued at
$29,040.00 and amend the budget accordingly. IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

 

23. Authorize an amendment to the Sheriff's Office Rural Law Enforcement Grant Program budget of $22,300.40
related to the increased cost of an approved vehicle purchase. IN GALSBE/C U TLER IN GALSBE/C U TLER

 

24. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #2 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082. SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOSMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 

25. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #3 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082. SH ELL/IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO SH ELL/IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 

26. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #5 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082. C OH EN /IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOC OH EN /IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 



27. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #6 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082. SMITH /SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOSMITH /SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 

28. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #8 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082. SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 

29. Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #9 Audit Report per Texas Health and
Safety Code 775.082.  IN GALSBE/SH ELL/IN GALSBE/SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

 

30. Accept delivery of the Auditor's Office Quarterly Internal Examination Reports. V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO
 

31. Authorize the execution of the Consent to Assignment Letter for the company merger and name change of Urban
Design Group, PC to Dunaway Associates, LLC dba Dunaway|UDG.  SH ELL/H U N TSH ELL/H U N T

 

32. Approve specifications for IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak - Boundary Fence and authorize Purchasing to
advertise and solicit for bids.  SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

 

33. Approve specifications and identify funding for IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator and authorize
Purchasing to advertise and solicit for bids.  BEC ER R A/JON ESBEC ER R A/JON ES

 

34. Authorize the execution of a Contract Termination Notice to Waukesha-Pearce Industries, Inc. related to the
Planned Maintenance and Service Agreement for Countywide Generators maintenance and service repairs. 
BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEYBEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY

 

35. Authorize the District Court to accept a proposal from Beckwith Electronics System related to the purchase of
one Digital Document Camera; authorize a discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code
Chapter 262.024 (a)(7)(D) and amend the budget accordingly.  SH ELL/TIBBESH ELL/TIBBE

 

36. Authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes for the Constable Precinct 5 Office to
purchase a furniture package from Michelle Thomas Design for the amount $3,962.17 and amend the budget
accordingly.  SMITH /ELLENSMITH /ELLEN

 

37. Approve Utility Permits. SMITH /SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN GSMITH /SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G
 

38. Authorize the County Judge to use community outreach funds not to exceed $400.00 to purchase consumables
for a working lunch during the Texas Department of Emergency Management training seminar for Mayors and
County Staff on August 8, 2024. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

 

H. AC TION  ITEMSAC TION  ITEMS   

 

I. R OAD SR OAD S   

 

1. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of Supplemental No. 7 to the Professional Services
Agreement (PSA) with HDR Engineering, Inc. for professional design services on the Robert S. Light (Buda
Truck Bypass) project in Precinct 2, as part of the TxDOT/Hays County Partnership Program.   
 SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G

 

2. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a TIA Contribution Agreement between Hays
County and Arroyo Cap II-1, LLC, in the amount of $56,112.00, for certain off-site traffic improvements related to
the Sunset Oaks/Highmeadow Subdivision, and amend the budget
accordingly. IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

 

3. Discussion and possible action to consider the release of the maintenance bond #204919W in the amount of
$132,147.05, and acceptance of the roads into the County Road Maintenance System for Sunset Oaks
subdivision, Section 1, Phase 1.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN GIN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

 

4. Discussion and possible action to call for a public hearing on August 6, 2024, to establish No Dumping zones on
Peaceful Valley Road as shown on the map provided.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN GIN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

 

5. Discussion and possible action to consider the release of the maintenance bond #204920Y in the amount of
$189,217.91, and acceptance of the roads into the County Road Maintenance System for Trails at Windy Hill
subd., Phase 6 & Phase 7.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G



 

6. Discussion and possible action to accept the Performance Bond No. CNB-43741-00 in the amount of
$2,988,902.88 for street and drainage improvements in the Sanctuary Dripping Springs, Lots 1-56, Final
Plat.  SMITHSMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G/BOR C H ER D IN G

 

7. Discussion and possible action to approve the selection of B2Z Engineering, LLC to provide construction,
engineering & inspection (CE&I) services for the drainage and low water crossing improvements at Bear Creek
project in Precinct 4; and authorize staff and counsel to negotiate a work authorization under their on-call CE&I
contract.     SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN GSMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G

 

8. Discussion and possible action to approve the selection of Pape-Dawson Consulting Engineers to provide
construction, engineering & inspection (CE&I) services for the RM 2325 Sidewalk project in Precinct 3; and
authorize staff and counsel to negotiate a work authorization under their on-call CE&I contract.   
 SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G

 

J. SU BD IV IS ION SSU BD IVIS ION S   

 

1. PLN-2470-PC; Hold a Public Hearing; followed by discussion and possible action regarding Woodcreek,
Section 22, Reserve C, Replat.   SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

 

2. PLN-2436-NP; Discussion and possible action regarding the Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A, & 68-B, Final
Plat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

 

3. PLN-2298-PC; Ratify the approval of the River Oaks of Wimberley Unit No. 2, Lot 26, Replat. 
 SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

 

4. PLN-2460-NP; Ratify Approval of the Waterstone Logistics, Final Plat.  IN GALSBEIN GALSBE /MAC H AC EK/MAC H AC EK
 

5. PLN-2213-PC; Ratify approval for the Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of Tract 17, Replat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK
 

6. PLN-2424-NP; Ratify Approval of the Sanderson Addition, Final Plat   SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK
 

7. PLN-2543-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and possible action
regarding the Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat.   SMITH /MAC H AC EKSMITH /MAC H AC EK

 

8. PLN-2367-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and possible action
regarding the Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

 

K. MISC ELLAN EOU SMISC ELLAN EOU S   

 

1. Discussion and possible action to order a general election for November 5, 2024.  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF
 

2. Discussion and possible action to adopt the early voting locations and schedule for the November 5, 2024,
General Election. BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

 

3. Discussion and possible action to approve the appointment of Judges, Alternate Judges, and Early Voting Ballot
Board members for the November 5, 2024, General Election.  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

 

4. Discussion and possible action to establish the central count station for the November 5, 2024, election and
name the Tabulation Supervisor and the Central Count Station Manager. .  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

 

5. Discussion and possible action to approve Joint Election Agreements for the November 5, 2024  General
Election for local political subdivisions that will run jointly with the Constitutional Amendment Election Pursuant
to Texas Election Code Sec. 271.002. BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

 

6. Discussion and possible action to authorize a salary exception to step 5 for the Mental Health Court Caseworker
slot 0442-001 in the County Courts at Law, Mental Health Court Division, effective August 1, 2024.
BEC ER R A/BR OWNBEC ER R A/BR OWN

 

7. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of an Amended Professional Services Agreement
with HDR Architecture, Inc. related to the Government Center. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

 



8. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a Funding Agreement between Hays County,
Wimberley Independent School District and Wimberley Youth Sports Association regarding the costs associated
with the design and construction needed for the youth sporting fields and common areas.  SH ELLSH ELL

 

9. Discussion and possible action to approve the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between Hays County Office of Emergency Services, Central Texas Food Bank and Hays County Food Bank
regarding the process of safely distributing food following a declared disaster.  BEC ER R A/MIKE JON ESBEC ER R A/MIKE JON ES

 

10. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a contingent fee contract, and associated
resolution, between Hays County and McCreary Veselka Bragg & Allen (MVBA) for Delinquent Justice Court
Fines and Fees Collection Services, pursuant to RFP 2024-P01.  BEC ER R A/H U N TBEC ER R A/H U N T

 

11. Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a contingent fee contract, and associated
resolution, between Hays County and Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP for Delinquent District and
County Court Fines and Fees collection Services, pursuant to RFP 2024-P05.  BEC ER R A/H U N TBEC ER R A/H U N T

 

12. Discussion and possible action to execute contract amendments to the County Court at Law Mental Health
Specialty Court Program contracts with C. Nichole Mueller-McMorris, LCSW; Lisa Hinson, LCDC; Moonstone
Counseling, PLLC; Horton House 501c3; Hiatus Wellness; and Evoke Wellness.
C OH EN /IN GALSBE/BR OWNC OH EN /IN GALSBE/BR OWN

 

13. Discussion and possible action to authorize Amendment No. 1 to the Funding Agreement for Grant Management
and Program Management Services with Ardurra Group, Inc. related to the American Rescue Plan Act Program
Funding. SMITH /D OR SETTSMITH /D OR SETT

 

14. Discussion and possible action regarding the Fiscal Year 2025 budget, including a presentation of the Budget
Office FY25 Recommended Budget and selection of dates for budget workshops. BEC ER R A/D OR SETTBEC ER R A/D OR SETT

 

L. EXEC U TIVE SESSION SEXEC U TIVE SESSION S
The Commissioners Court will announce that it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code, to receive advice from Legal Counsel to discuss matters of land acquisition, litigation and personnel matters as
specifically listed on this agenda.  The Commissioners Court may also announce it will go into Executive Session, if necessary, to

receive advice from Legal Counsel regarding any other item on this agenda.

  

 

1. Executive Session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with
counsel and deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease and/or value of real property associated with
Parks and Open Space Projects being considered by Hays County. Possible discussion and/or action may
follow in open court.  BEC ER R A BEC ER R A  

 

2. Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 and Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code:
consultation with counsel and deliberation related to the purchase, exchange, or value of real property located
within the La Cima subdivision(s).  Possible action may follow in open court. SH ELLSH ELL

 

3. Executive Session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with
counsel and deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease and/or value of Right of Way located at or
near Turnersville Road in Pct. 2. Possible discussion and/or action may follow in open court.  C OH ENC OH EN

 

4. Executive Session Pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the Texas Government Code: Consultation
with counsel and deliberation regarding economic development negotiations associated with Project Infinite
Loop.  Possible discussion and/or action may follow in open court. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

 

5. Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with counsel
regarding pending and/or contemplated litigation involving Hays County. Possible action may follow in open
court.  BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

 



      
M. STAN D IN G AGEN D A ITEMS STAN D IN G AGEN D A ITEMS 

The Commissioners Court utilizes Standing Agenda Items to address issues that are frequently or periodically discussed in court. This
section allows the Court to open the item when a need for discussion arises.

  

 

1. Discussion and possible action related to the burn ban. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A   
 

2. Discussion related to the Hays County inmate population, to include current population counts and
costs. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

  

 

3. Discussion of issues related to the Hays County Jail, and the planning of projects pertaining to the public safety
facilities needs within the County.  Possible action may follow.  IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

  

 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding Hays County's use of federal or other grant funding related to COVID-
19 response including but not limited to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and the Emergency Rental
Assistance Program (ERAP).  BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

  

 

5. Discussion and possible action related to proposed bills in the 87th Regular Session of the Texas Legislature
and to consider adoption of resolution(s) regarding proposed bills. The Court may opt to withdraw to Executive
Session during this item to consult with legal counsel pursuant to Texas Government Code 551.071. SMITHSMITH

  

 

6. Updates on measurable advancement of Judicial Services to include the areas of staffing, equipment, training,
operations and policy, by Assistant Director of Judicial Services Albert Sierra.  BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

  

 

N. AD JOU R N MEN TAD JOU R N MEN T   
 

 

Posted by 5:00 o 'c lock P .M. on the 26th day of Ju ly, 2024Posted by 5:00 o 'c lock P .M. on the 26th day of Ju ly, 2024
COMMISSIONERS COURT, HAYS COUNTY, TEXASCOMMISSIONERS COURT, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
CLERK OF THE COURTCLERK OF THE COURT

 
Hays County encourages compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in the conduct of all public meetings. To that end, persons with disabilities who plan to attend this

meeting and who may need auxiliary aids such as an interpreter for a person who is hearing impaired are requested to contact the Hays County Judge's Office at (512) 393-2205 as soon
as the meeting is posted (72 hours before the meeting) or as soon as practical so that appropriate arrangements can be made. While it would be helpful to receive as much advance notice

as possible, Hays County will make every reasonable effort to accommodate any valid request regardless of when it is received. Braille is not available.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: F. 1.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Miller

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Presentation of Hays County Employee Service and Retirement Awards.    BEC ER R A/MILLERBEC ER R A/MILLER

SummarySummary
Presentation of Hays County Employee Service and Retirement Awards

AttachmentsAttachments
July 2024 Service and Retirement Awards



NAME DEPARTMENT YEARS

VERETTE, RONALD Sheriff's Office 25

HUNT, STEPHANIE Purchasing Office 10

GUZMAN, MICHAEL Tax Assessor Collector's Office 10

RABELO, GILBERT District Attorney's Office 5

BODIN, KYRA County Clerk's Office 1

CANTU, MICHAEL Sheriff's Office 1

LOPEZ SILVA, MAYRA County Clerk's Office 1

NIEMANN, SIERRA Pre-Trial Services 1

PEPLINSKI, JAMES District Attorney's Office 1

HARDING, STEVEN Transportation 1

WOODLAND, LISA Justice of the Peace Pct 4 Ofc 1

BROWN, MAX Transportation 1

JOHNSON, WESLEY Sheriff's Office 1

RANGEL, MARCO Juvenile Detention Center 1

SANDOVAL, SILVESTRE Sheriff's Office 1

GARCIA, JOSE Information Technology 1

GERMANO, WILLIAM Sheriff's Office 1

KOEHN, HUNTER District Clerk's Office 1

RAMIREZ, JUAN Information Technology 1

RUSH, JONATHAN Sheriff's Office 1

WEBER, TRINITY Sheriff's Office 1

BARRERA, RON County Clerk's Office 1

DAVIDSON, LOGAN Transportation 1

GARCIA, AMELIA A Personal Health 1

KLEMANN, ASHLEY Sheriff's Office 1

OLIVARES, RICARDO District Attorney's Office 1

SCHAPP, GREGORY Sheriff's Office 1

WHITAKER, ABIGAIL District Attorney's Office 1

SPARKS, ALEX Sheriff's Office 1

ALVAREZ, GUSTAVO Sheriff's Office 1

ROSALES, JUAN Pre-Trial Services 1

FACUNDO, JASON Pre-Trial Services 1

VIRAMONTES, ROSA Pre-Trial Services 1

LOMBARDO, DANNY Sheriff Office 24+

CISNEROS, SUSANA Juvenile Detention Center 22+

 Run by Kim Jeter on 05/22/2024 12:45:46 PM Page 1 of 1



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: F. 2.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Recognition of the winners of the Pedernales Electric Cooperative's "Government in Action Youth Tour"
contest.  SMITH /C OH ENSMITH /C OH EN

SummarySummary



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 4.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Elaine H. Cardenas

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Approve Commissioners Court Minutes of July 16, 2024.     BEC ER R A/C AR D EN ASBEC ER R A/C AR D EN AS

SummarySummary

AttachmentsAttachments
7/16/2024 Minutes





















Date Res Number Motion Ingalsbe Cohen Shell Smith Becerra

7/16/2024 40570 Adopt a Proclamation recognizing July 21-27, 2024 as Pretrial, Probation, and Parole Supervision Week. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40571 Approve payments of County invoices. Y Y Y ABSENT Y
7/16/2024 40572 Approve the payment of Juror checks. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40573 Approve the payment of United Healthcare claims and authorize an additional disbursement in an 
amount not to exceed $500,000.00 to the healthcare claims account.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40574 Approve Commissioners Court Minutes of July 2, 2024. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40575
Approve the payment of the July 31, 2024 payroll disbursements in an amount not to exceed 
$5,300,000.00 effective July 31, 2024 and post totals for wages, with-holdings, deductions, and benefits 
on the Hays County website once finalized.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40576
Approve the Building Maintenance Department to work with CT Electric ($13,350.00), Security One, Inc. 
($1,625.00), SI Mechanical, LLC. ($2,887.50), and The Fence Lady, Inc. ($47,702.82) for the renovations of 
the old Health Department building located on Broadway.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40577
Authorize Building Maintenance to replace the mini-split system at the Driftwood Recycling and Solid 
Waste facility with a new mini-split in the amount of $6,953.00 and amend the budget accordingly. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40578 Authorize the Transportation Department and Countywide Operations to have additional ground clean 
up work completed at six (6) local cemeteries and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40579 Authorize the Health Department to purchase four (4) Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) and 
supplemental AED supplies for Hays County buildings and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40580 Authorize Countywide Operations to purchase one (1) replacement Dell Latitude 5550 laptop valued at 
$1,508.00 for the Budget and Operations Manager and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40581 Approve and confirm the appointment of Cody C. Mitchell as a regular full-time Deputy Constable in the 
Hays County Constable, Precinct 2 Office.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40582 Authorize the execution of an Information Release Contract with the Texas Workforce Commission for 
the benefit of the Hays County Sheriff's Office.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40583
Approve payment to Intuit for QuickBooks Enterprise software purchased for the Hays County Tax 
Assessor's Office, where no purchase order was requested as required per the Hays County Purchasing 
Policy.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40584
Authorize payment to Card Services in the amount of $1,124.96 for the District Attorney's Office related 
to witness travel expenses in which no purchase order was issued as required per the Hays County 
Purchasing Policy and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40585 Authorize the Sheriff's Office to use existing funds to buy an unmanned aircraft system for $1,939.99 and 
amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40586 Authorize the Sheriff's Office to purchase a K9 bite suit valued at $1,780.00 from Kirby K9, and amend the 
budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40587
Authorize a discretionary exemption per Texas Local Government Code 262.024 (a)(7)(D) captive 
replacement parts or components for equipment for the Sheriff's Office, Jail Division, to purchase a 
replacement intercom system for a housing unit. 

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40588 Authorize the acceptance of a grant award from the Texas Veterans Commission, Veterans Treatment 
Court program in the amount of $350,000.00.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40589 Authorize the acceptance of a grant award from the Texas Veterans Commission, General 
Assistance/Financial Assistance Program in the amount of $250,000.00.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40590 Approve amendment of the Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment Agreement with SHI Government Solutions 
for 25 additional user licenses and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40591 Authorize the Pre-Trial Services Office to purchase one (1) Microsoft Surface Pro 10 Tablet and 
accessories valued at $2931.40 for the Supervisor Position and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40592
Authorize the execution of the Second Amendment to the Hays County American Rescue Plan Recovery 
Donation Agreement between Hays County and San Marcos Texas Radio Association (KZSM Radio). Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40593 Amend various departmental operating, special revenue and capital project budgets in preparation for 
Fiscal Year 2024 quarterly financial reporting.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40594
Authorize the Hays County Health Department to accept a $500.00 donation from State Representative 
Erin Zwiener for the purchase of backpacks in support of the Annual Back to School Fair and amend the 
budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40595 Accept donations totaling $1,600.00 on behalf of the Hays County Child Protective Board and amend the 
budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40596 Accept the delivery of the County Auditor's Monthly Report for May 2024 pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 114.023 and 114.025.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40597 Accept delivery of the Auditor's Office Quarterly Internal Examination Reports. Y Y Y ABSENT Y
7/16/2024 40598 Approve Utility Permits. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40599 Authorize the contract renewal of RFP 2022-P08 HVAC - Maintenance & Repair Service, Jail with SI 
Mechanical, LLC.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40600
Authorize the execution of a Change Order No. 5 Final in the amount of $74,523.58 to the construction 
contract with Aaron Concrete Contractors, LP for the RM 12 at RM 3237 (IFB 2023-B12) project as part of 
the Hays County Road Bond Program in Precinct 3 and amend the budget accordingly.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40601
Authorize the execution of Contract Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $18,654.00 to the Professional 
Services Agreement for engineering services with Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc. for the Old 
Stagecoach at Post Road Intersection Project in Precinct 3.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40602 Approve the addition of 2 stop signs at the intersection of Trail Driver and Trail Driver Street. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40603 Approve the establishment of yield locations on Thurman Road at both intersections with Fox Road. Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40604 Call for a Public Hearing on July 30th, 2024; followed by discussion and possible action regarding 
the Woodcreek, Section 22, Reserve C, Replat (PLN-2470-PC).

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40605 Authorize the execution of an agreement between Hays County and Milliman, Inc. for actuarial services 
related to retiree drug subsidy.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40606 Approve a Resolution amending the Authorized Representatives Agreement with TexPool for the District 
Clerk.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40607 Authorize a salary exception to step 4 for Construction Operator 3 slot 1070-002 in the Hays County 
Transportation Department effective 8/1/24.

Y Y Y ABSENT Y

7/16/2024 40608

Authorizing the County Judge to execute a Chapter 381 Economic Development Incentive Agreement 
between Hays County and BRE Group 500 Wonder World 2022 LP (otherwise known as Project 
Snapdragon). Authorizing the County Judge to execute a Chapter 381 Economic Development Incentive 
Agreement between Hays County and Futronic USA, Inc. (otherwise known as Project Forward Motion).

Y Y Y ABSENT Y



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 5.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Miller

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the renewal of the Hays County Accident Insurance Policy with La Vernia Insurance Agency related to all
authorized volunteers at a premium renewal rate of $300.00.    BEC ER R A/MILLERBEC ER R A/MILLER

Summary:Summary:
The annual volunteer accident policy is due for renewal with La Vernia Insurance Agency and written by Philadelphia
Insurance Companies effective 9/1/24.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $300.00
Line Item Number: 001-645-00.5340

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments:

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes, Insurance Expense
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
2024-2024 Volunteer Accident Policy







PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 1 of 23

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
Administrative Office

One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA  19004
Tel: 800-873-4552

POLICYHOLDER: Hays County Texas

GROUP POLICY NUMBER: PHPA139361-004

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/1/2024

POLICY ISSUE DATE: 7/4/2024
POLICY TERM 9/1/2024 to 9/1/2025

STATE OF ISSUE: Texas

This Certificate of Insurance is issued under the terms of the Blanket Accident Policy issued to the
Policyholder.  Coverage is only described in the Certificate of Insurance.  It is not the insurance contract.
The Policy is the only contract under which benefits are paid.  The Policy may be examined, upon
request, at the office of the Policyholder.

The Policy sets forth the terms and conditions of insurance.  It goes into effect, subject to its applicable
terms and conditions, at 12:01 AM on the Policy Effective Date shown above, at the Policyholder’s
address.  It will remain in effect for the duration of the Policy Term shown above if premium is paid
according to agreed terms.

The Policy terminates at 12:01 AM on the last day of the Policy Term unless the Policyholder and We
have agreed to continue this Policy for an additional Policy Term.  The laws of the State of Issue shown
above govern this Policy.

We and the Policyholder agree to all of the terms of the Policy.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company has caused this Certificate to be
executed on its Issue Date, to take effect on the Effective Date.

President & CEO
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

Secretary
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

•  BLANKET ACCIDENT CERTIFICATE •
(Activities Excluding Sports)

• NON-PARTICIPATING •

THE POLICY PAYS BENEFITS FOR SPECIFIC LOSSES FROM ACCIDENTS ONLY.
IT DOES NOT PAY BENEFITS FOR SICKNESS.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 2 of 23

HAVE A COMPLAINT OR NEED HELP?

If you have a problem with a claim or your premium, call Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company first.
If you can't work out the issue, the Texas Department of Insurance may be able to help.

Even if you file a complaint with the Texas Department of Insurance, you should also file a complaint or
appeal through Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company. If you don't, you may lose your right to
appeal. 

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
To get information or file a complaint with Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company: 

Call: Customer Service at 1-877-438-7459
Email: service@phly.com
Mail: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 

The Texas Department of Insurance
To get help with an insurance question or file a complaint with the state: 

Call with a question: 1-800-252-3439
File a complaint: www.tdi.texas.gov 
Email: ConsumerProtection@tdi.texas.gov 
Mail: MC 111-1A, P.O. Box 149091, Austin, TX 78714-9091 

To compare policies and prices 
Visit HelpInsure.com to compare prices and coverages on home and auto insurance policies. The
website is a service of the Texas Department of Insurance and the Office of Public Insurance Counsel. 

¿TIENE UNA QUEJA O NECESITA AYUDA?

Si tiene un problema con una reclamación o con su prima de seguro, llame primero a Philadelphia
Indemnity Insurance Company. Si no puede resolver el problema, es posible que el Departamento de
Seguros de Texas (Texas Department of Insurance, por su nombre en inglés) pueda ayudar. 

Aun si usted presenta una queja ante el Departamento de Seguros de Texas, también debe presentar
una queja a través del proceso de quejas o de apelaciones de Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance
Company. Si no lo hace, podría perder su derecho para apelar. 

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
Para obtener información o para presentar una queja ante Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company: 

Llame a: Customer Service al 1-877-438-7459
Correo electrónico: service@phly.com
Dirección postal: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

El Departamento de Seguros de Texas
Para obtener ayuda con una pregunta relacionada con los seguros o para presentar una queja ante el
estado: 

Llame con sus preguntas al: 1-800-252-3439 
Presente una queja en: www.tdi.texas.gov 
Correo electrónico: ConsumerProtection@tdi.texas.gov 
Dirección postal: MC 111-1A, P.O. Box 149091, Austin, TX 78714-9091 

Para comparar pólizas y precios 
Visite HelpInsure.com para comparar precios y coberturas en pólizas de seguro para el hogar y
automóvil. El sitio web es un servicio del Departamento de Seguros de Texas y de la Oficina del Asesor
Público de Seguros (Office of Public Insurance Counsel, por su nombre en inglés).

PI-Notice TX (01/20)

mailto:service@phly.com
mailto:service@phly.com


PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 3 of 23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page   

Schedule of Benefits______________________________________________________________ 4

General Definitions________________________________________________________________7

Eligibility, Effective Date and Termination Provisions_____________________________________10

General Provisions_______________________________________________________________ 11

Claim Provisions_________________________________________________________________12

Administrative Provisions__________________________________________________________ 14

Conditions of Coverage___________________________________________________________ 16

Policyholder Coverage____________________________________________________________ 16

Common Exclusions______________________________________________________________17

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Medical Expense Benefits______________________________ 18

Accidental Medical Expenses Benefits_______________________________________________ 19

Accident Indemnity Benefits________________________________________________________23



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 4 of 23

Schedule of Benefits

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

This Policy is intended to be read in its entirety.  In order to understand all the conditions,
exclusions and limitations applicable to its benefits, please read all the policy provisions
carefully.

Eligible Persons: All authorized volunteers of the policyholder

CONDITIONS OF COVERAGE

The benefits provided by this Policy will be paid, subject to applicable conditions, limitations and
exclusions, under the following coverages.

Policyholder Coverage
Personal Deviations covered no

Covered activities Participation in and attendance at the following
Policyholder Supervised and Sponsored
activities: All authorized volunteer activities

ACCIDENT INDEMNITY BENEFITS

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS
Each of the following Covered Losses may be included or deleted at the option of the Policyholder.
Benefit amounts are variable and may be expressed as a percentage of the Principal Sum or as a dollar
amount.

Principal Sum $25,000
Loss must occur within 365 days of the Covered Accident

Schedule of Covered Losses
Covered Loss Benefit
Loss of Life 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Two or More Hands or Feet 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight of Both Eyes 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or Foot and

Sight in One Eye 200% of the Principal Sum
Quadriplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Paraplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Hemiplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or Foot 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight in One Eye 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Speech 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Hearing in Both Ears 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Thumb and Index Finger
of the Same Hand 50% of the Principal Sum

Aggregate Limit of Indemnity $500,000
Applies to: All Conditions of Coverage

Not more than the Aggregate Limit of Indemnity specified above will be paid for all Covered Losses
suffered by all Covered Persons insured under this Accidental Death and Dismemberment Benefit as the
result of any one Covered Accident that occurs under one of the Conditions of Coverage, as specified



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 5 of 23

above.  If this amount does not allow all Covered Persons to be paid the amounts this Policy otherwise
provides, the amount paid will be the proportion of the Covered Person’s loss to the total of all losses,
multiplied by the Aggregate Limit of Indemnity.

ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

Any benefit limits and Benefit Percentages for Accident Medical Expense Benefits apply, unless
otherwise specified, on a per-Covered Person per-Covered Accident basis. Any applicable Deductibles
must be satisfied within the time periods specified before benefits are payable.

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Accident Medical Benefits

Full Excess Medical Expense

Other Health Plan
Reduction 50%

Medical Expense Benefits

Total Maximum for all
Accident Medical Expense Benefits $100,000

First Covered Expenses must
be Incurred within 180 days after a Covered Accident

Benefit Period 1 year from the date of the Covered Accident

Deductible $0

Covered Expenses

In-Patient Hospital Services
Daily ICU or CCU Benefit 100%

Daily In-Hospital Benefit 100% of the average Semi-private
room rate

Miscellaneous Services 100% per Hospital Stay

Ambulatory Medical Center 100%

Emergency Room Treatment 100%

Physician Services
Surgery Benefit 100%
Assistant Surgeon 100%
Physician's Surgical Facilities 100%

Second Opinion or Consultation 100%
Physician's Assistant 100%
Anesthesia Benefit 100%

Inpatient Visits 100%

Office Visits 100% per visit

Outpatient X-ray, CT Scan,
MRI and Laboratory Tests 100%



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 6 of 23

Outpatient Physiotherapy 100%

Nursing Services 100%

Ambulance Services 100%

Medical Equipment Rental 100%

Medical Services and Supplies 100%

Dental Services 100%

Prosthetic Devices 100%

Orthotic Devices 100%

Prescription Drug Benefit
Benefit per prescription 100%

Home Health Care Benefit
Calendar Year Deductible $0
Home Health Care Visit 100%
Maximum Visits 40 per calendar year
Medical Supplies, Drugs and
Medications 100%



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 7 of 23

General Definitions

GENERAL DEFINITIONS
Please note that certain words used in this Policy have specific meanings.  The words defined below and
capitalized within the text of this Policy have the meanings set forth below.  

Beneficiary means in the case of death of the Covered Person, a person named by the Covered Person
to receive benefits provided by this Policy.

Benefit Percentage means the percentage of Covered Expenses We pay that are Incurred by the
Covered Person after he satisfies any applicable Deductible.  Benefit Percentages are shown in the
Schedule of Benefits. 

Certificate means the evidence of the Covered Person’s coverage under this Policy.  Coverage is subject
to the Policy provisions. The Certificate is not the Policy.

Company or We, Us, Our, means Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, domiciled in
Pennsylvania.

Covered Accident means a sudden, unforeseeable, external event that results, directly and
independently of all other causes, in an injury or loss and meets all of the following conditions: 

1. occurs while the Covered Person is insured under this Policy; 
2. is not contributed to by: disease; sickness; or mental or bodily infirmity; and 
3. is not otherwise excluded under the terms of this Policy.

Covered Activity means any recurring activity that is shown in the Schedule of Benefits and: 
1. takes place under one of the Conditions of Coverage specified in the Schedule of Benefits;
and 
2. is: sponsored; organized; scheduled; or otherwise provided by the Policyholder.

Covered Expenses means the lesser of the reasonable and customary charge and the maximum benefit 
shown, for services or supplies listed, in the Schedule of Benefits and described in the Accident Medical 
Expense Benefits section of this Policy.  Covered Expenses must be Incurred by a Covered Person for 
treatment for injuries sustained in a Covered Accident. 

Covered Injury means any bodily harm that results directly and independently of all other causes from a
Covered Accident.

Covered Loss means: accidental death; dismemberment; or other Injury covered under the Policy.

Covered Person means an Eligible Person, as defined in the Schedule of Benefits, for whom an
enrollment form has been accepted by Us and required premium has been paid when due and for whom
coverage under this Policy remains in force.

Deductible means the amount of Covered Expenses that each Covered Person must Incur before
benefits are paid under this Policy.

He, Him or His means an individual, male or female. 

Health Benefit Plan means any arrangement, whether individually purchased or incidental to
employment or membership in an association or other group, which provides benefits or services for:
health care; dental care; disability benefits; or repatriation of remains. A Health Benefit Plan includes
group, blanket, franchise, family or individual: 

1. insurance policies;
2. subscriber contracts;
3. uninsured agreements or arrangements;
4. coverage provided through: Health Maintenance Organization; Preferred Provider

Organization; State or Federal Exchanges; Insurance Cooperatives and other prepayment;
group practice and individual practice plans;

5. medical benefits provided under automobile “fault” and “no-fault” – type contracts;
6. medical benefits provided by any governmental plan or coverage or other benefit law, except:



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 8 of 23

a. a state-sponsored Medicaid plan; or
b. a plan or law providing benefits only in excess of any private or non-governmental  plan;

7. other valid and collectible medical or health care benefits or services.

Hospital means an institution that meets all of the following: 
1. it is licensed as a Hospital pursuant to applicable law;
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and treatment to sick and

injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision of a staff of medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision of a graduate registered nurse

(R.N.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment facilities, with major surgical facilities on its premises, or

available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic facility or unit of a Hospital for: 
1. rehabilitation; convalescent; custodial; or educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics; or
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospitals unless the Covered Person

incurs an expense.

Hospital Stay means a confinement in a Hospital, ordered by a Physician, over one or more nights when
room and board and general nursing care are provided at a per diem charge made by the Hospital.  The
Hospital Stay must result directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident.
Separate Hospital Stays due to the same Covered Accident will be treated as one Hospital Stay unless
separated by at least 90 days.

Incurred or Incurs means an obligation to pay for a Covered Expense for treatment, service or purchase
of supplies, deemed to be the date it is provided to the Covered Person. 

In-Patient means a Covered Person who is confined for at least one full day’s Hospital room and board.
The requirement that a person be charged for room and board does not apply to confinement in a
Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospital. In such case, the term “Inpatient” shall
mean a Covered Person who is required to be confined for a period of at least a full day as determined by
the Hospital. 

Maximum Benefit means the most we will pay for each Benefit stated in the Schedule of Benefits.

Nurse means an individual licensed by the Texas State Board of Medical Examiners to practice medicine
within the scope of his or her license.

Orthotic Device means a brace or splint used to support, immobilize or treat injured muscles, joints or
skeletal parts.

Out-Patient means a Covered Person who receives treatment, services and supplies while not an
Inpatient in a Hospital. 

Personal Deviation means any activity which: 
1. is neither reasonably related to or incidental to the purpose of travel for which coverage is

provided by this Policy; and
2. the Covered Person performs before, during or after covered travel.

When coverage is provided during a Personal Deviation, the time period covered is shown in the
Conditions of Coverage section of the Schedule of Benefits.  

Physician means a n individual licensed to practice medicine by the Texas State Board of Medical
Examiners within the scope of his or her license. This term includes a doctor of osteopathic medicine. 

Policy means a legal contract between the Policyholder and Us which describes the terms and conditions
of insurance subject to its provisions, limitations and exclusions.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 9 of 23

Policyholder means the branch or organization that elects to provide the coverage under this Policy for
its  members or participants.

Policy Effective Date means the date this Policy takes effect as shown on the face page.

Pre-existing Condition means a disease or physical condition for which the Covered Person received
medical advice or treatment in the 12 month period before the Covered Person’s coverage became 
effective under the Policy.

Prosthetic Device means an artificial device to replace, in part or in whole, a leg, an arm, or an eye.

Schedule of Benefits means the outline of the: Coverages and Benefits provided by this Policy.

Usual and Customary Charge means the normal charge, in the absence of insurance, made by the
provider of any treatment, but not more than the prevailing charge in the area: 

1. for a like service by a provider with similar training or experience; or
2. for a supply that is identical or substantially equivalent.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 10 of 23

Eligibility, Effective Date and Termination Provisions

ELIGIBILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION PROVISIONS

Policy Effective Date 
We agree to provide Blanket Accident Insurance Benefits described in this Policy in consideration of the
Policyholder’s application and payment of the initial premium when due.  Insurance coverage begins on
the Policy Effective Date shown on this Policy’s first page as long as the Minimum Participation
requirement shown in the Schedule of Benefits has been satisfied.

Eligibility
An individual becomes eligible for insurance under this Policy on the date he meets all of the
requirements of one of the Covered Classes and completes any Eligibility Waiting Period, as shown in the
Schedule of Benefits.  An Eligible Person may be insured under only one Covered Class, even though he
may be eligible under more than one Covered Class.

Effective Date for Individuals 
Insurance becomes effective for an Eligible Person on the latest of the following dates: 
1. the effective date of this Policy;  
2. the date the individual becomes eligible.

Effective Date of Changes 
Any increase or decrease in the amount of insurance for the Covered Person resulting from a change in
benefits provided by this Policy or a change in the Covered Person’s Covered Class will take effect on the
date of such change.  Increases will take effect subject to any Active Service requirement.

Termination of Insurance 
The insurance on a Covered Person will end on the earliest date below: 
1. the date the person is no longer in an Eligible Class; 
2. the end of the last period for which premium is paid subject to the Grace Period; 
3. the date this Policy terminates.

Termination will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss resulting from a Covered Accident that occurs
before the termination date.  However, in no instance will benefits extend beyond the earlier of: 
1. the end of the Benefit Period; and 
2. the date benefits equal to any applicable Benefit Limit or Maximum, as shown in the Schedule of

Benefits, have been paid; 
3. the date benefits paid equal any applicable Policy Aggregate Maximum, as shown in the

Schedule of Benefits.

Extension of Benefits
We will extend benefits under the Policy for 3 months after a Covered Person’s coverage would otherwise
end if on that date he or she is:
1. confined in a Hospital for a Covered Injury; and
2. under a Physician’s care.
Any benefits payable under this provision will not exceed the benefit maximums shown in the Schedule of
Benefits.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 11 of 23

General Provisions

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract; Changes
This Policy, including the application, endorsements, amendments and any attached papers, constitutes
the entire contract of insurance. No change in this Policy will be valid until approved by one of Our
executive officers and endorsed on or attached to this Policy.  No agent has authority to change this
Policy or to waive any of its provisions. 

Any statements made by the Policyholder or Covered Persons will be treated as representations and not
warranties. No such statement shall: void the insurance; reduce the benefits; or be used in defense of a
claim for loss incurred; unless: it is contained in a written application; and a copy is provided to the person
who made such statement, or if the Insured has died or become incapacitated, a copy of the written
statement is given to his or her beneficiary or representative.

Misstatement of Fact
If a Covered Person has misstated any fact, all amounts payable under this Policy will be such as the
premium paid would have purchased had such fact been correctly stated. 

Misstatement of Age
If the age of the Covered Person has been misstated, We will adjust the benefits under this Policy to
those that would be applicable at the correct age.

Assignment
The rights and benefits under this Policy may not be assigned and any attempt to assign will be void
except assignments of benefits to a physician or other health care provider who provides health care
services to the Covered Person.  

Incontestability
The validity of this Policy may not be contested after the Policy has been in force for two years after its
date of issue. In the absence of fraud, a statement made by a Covered Person relating to the Covered
Person’s insurability may not be used in contesting the validity of the insurance with respect to which the
statement was made: a) after the insurance has been in force before the contest for two years during the
Covered Person’s lifetime; and b) unless the statement is contained in a written instrument signed by the
Covered Person making the statement.

Reporting Requirements 
The Policyholder or its authorized agent must report all of the following to Us by the premium due date: 
1. the number of persons insured on the Policy Effective Date; 
2. the number of persons who are insured after the Policy Effective Date; 
3. the number of persons whose insurance has terminated;  
4. any additional information required by Us.

Clerical Error 
A Covered Person's insurance will not be affected by error or delay in keeping records of insurance under
this Policy.  If such error or delay is found, We will adjust the premium fairly. 

Conformity with Statutes
Any provisions in conflict with the requirements of any state or federal law that applies to this Policy are
automatically changed to satisfy the minimum requirements of such laws. 

Compensation Insurance
This Policy is not in place of and does not affect any requirements for coverage under any Workers’
Compensation law.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 12 of 23

Claim Provisions

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim 
Written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice of claim must be given to Us within 30 days after a
Covered Loss occurs or begins or as soon as reasonably possible.  If written or authorized
electronic/telephonic notice is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that such notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given: to Us at Our
Administrative Office, One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004; to such other place as We
may designate for the purpose; or to Our authorized agent.  Notice should include the Policyholder’s
name and policy number and the Covered Person’s name and address. 

Claim Forms 
We will send claim forms for filing proof of loss when We receive notice of a claim.  If such forms are not
sent within 15 days after We receive notice, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the
time fixed in this Policy for filing proof of loss, written or authorized electronic proof of the nature and
extent of the loss for which the claim is made. 

Claimant Cooperation Provision 
Failure of a claimant to reasonably cooperate with Us in the administration of the claim may result in
termination of the claim.  Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or
documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Proof of Loss 
Written or authorized electronic proof of loss satisfactory to Us must be given to Us at Our office, within
90 days of the loss for which claim is made.  If written or authorized electronic notice is not given within
that time, no claim will be invalidated or reduced if it is shown that such notice was given as soon as
reasonably possible.  In any case, written or authorized electronic proof must be given not more than one
year after the time it is otherwise required, except if proof is not given solely due to the lack of legal
capacity. 

Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of Claim
We will notify a claimant in writing of the acceptance or rejection of a claim not later than the 15th business
day after the date We receive all items, statements, and forms required to secure final proof of loss.

Time of Payment of Claims 
We will pay benefits due under this Policy for any loss other than benefits for loss of time not later than
the 60th day after the date We receive written or authorized electronic proof of such loss. Subject to due
written or authorized electronic proof of loss, all accrued benefits payable under this Policy for loss of time
will be paid monthly during the period for which We are liable, and any balance remaining unpaid at the
end of that period will be paid as soon as possible after We receive written or authorized electronic proof
of loss.

Payment of Claims 
All benefits will be paid in United States currency.  Benefits for loss of life will be payable in accordance
with the Beneficiary provision and these Claim Provisions.  All other proceeds payable under this Policy,
unless otherwise stated, will be payable to the Insured or the Insured’s assignee. 

If We are to pay benefits to the estate or to a person who is a minor or otherwise not competent to give a
valid release, We may pay benefits to such Covered Person’s parent, guardian, or other person actually
supporting the Covered Person.

The Insured may assign all or a portion of any benefits provided by the Policy for dental care services to
the dentist providing the services.  In the case of such an assignment, We will pay benefits directly to the
dentist designated.  

We will repay the actual costs of medical expenses the Texas Department of Human Services
pays through medical assistance for a Covered Person if, under the Policy, the Covered Person is
entitled to payment for the medical expenses.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 13 of 23

Beneficiary 
The beneficiary is the person or persons the Covered Person names or changes on a form executed by
him and satisfactory to Us. This form may be in writing or by any electronic means agreed upon between
Us and the Policyholder.  Consent of the beneficiary is not required to affect any changes or to make any
assignment of rights or benefits permitted by this Policy, unless the beneficiary has been designated as
an irrevocable beneficiary. 

A beneficiary designation or change will become effective on the date the Covered Person executes it.
However, We will not be liable for any action taken or payment made before We record notice of the
change at our Home Office. 

If more than one person is named as beneficiary, the interests of each will be equal unless the Covered
Person has specified otherwise.  The share of any beneficiary who does not survive the Covered Person
will pass equally to any surviving beneficiaries unless otherwise specified.   

If there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, or if the Covered Person dies while benefits are
payable to him, We may make direct payment to the first surviving class of the following classes of
persons: 
1. Spouse; 
2. Child or Children; 
3. mother or father;  
4. sisters or brothers;  
5. estate of the Covered Person. 

Physical Examination and Autopsy 
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as
often as We may reasonably require while a claim is pending and to make an autopsy in case of death
where it is not forbidden by law. 

Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days after written or
authorized electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy.  No such action will be
brought more than three years after the time such written proof of loss must be furnished. 

Recovery of Overpayment
If benefits are overpaid, We have the right to recover the amount overpaid by either of the following
methods. 
1. A request for lump sum payment of the overpaid amount. 
2. A reduction of any amounts payable under this Policy. 

If there is an overpayment due when the Covered Person dies, We may recover the overpayment from
the Covered Person’s estate.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 14 of 23

Administrative Provisions

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Cancellation 
We or the Policyholder may cancel this Policy, after the first year, by giving Us 60 days advance written
notice.  Any premium rate guarantee will not affect Our or the Policyholder’s right to cancel this Policy. 

If a premium is not paid when due, We will cancel this Policy at the end of the last period for which
premium was paid, subject to the Grace Period provision.  Premium Due Dates are shown in the
Schedule of Benefits.   

Cancellation will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss resulting from a Covered Accident that occurred
before the cancellation date.

Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums due after the first
premium, unless: 
1. We do not intend to renew this Policy beyond the period for which premium has been accepted;

and
2. written notice of Our intention not to renew is delivered to the Policyholder at least 90 days before

the premium is due.

This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period.  If the required premiums are not paid during
the Policy Grace Period, insurance will end on the last day of the Grace Period.  The Policyholder is liable
to Us for any unpaid premium for the time this Policy was in force.

Premiums
All premium rates are expressed in, and all premiums are payable in, United States currency.  The
premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates, as set forth in the Schedule of Benefits or
subsequently changed, the plan and amounts of insurance in effect for Covered Persons and the
premium mode selected, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits.  If a Covered Person’s insurance
amounts are reduced due to age, premium will be based on the amounts of insurance in force on the day
before the reduction took place.  We will provide notifications of premiums due or premium changes, by
mail to the most current address in our files, to the Policyholder. 

Premium Payment 
The total premium paid by the Policyholder is the sum of premiums for all Covered Persons including any
amounts contributed toward the cost of this insurance by Covered Persons.  The initial premium is due on
the Policy Effective Date and each succeeding premium is due on the next succeeding Premium Due
Date, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits, unless the Policyholder and We agree to another mode of
premium payment.  Premiums are paid at our Administrative Office or to Our authorized agent. 

If any premium is not paid when due, this Policy will be cancelled as of the Premium Due Date of the
unpaid premiums, except as provided in the Grace Period provision.

Changes in Premium Rates
We may change the premium rates from time to time with at least 60 days advance written notice to the
Policyholder. No change in rates will be made until 12 months after the Policy Effective Date. An increase
in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12-month period. However, We reserve the right to
change rates at any time if any of the following events take place:
1. the terms of this Policy change;
2. the number of Covered Persons increases or decreases by more than 10% since the later of the

Policy Effective Date and the first day of the current Policy term;
3. coverage is reinstated following failure to pay premium during the Grace Period;
4. acquisition, merger, consolidation, divestiture, corporate reorganization or purchase or sale of

assets affecting, increasing or decreasing by 10% or more the number of Covered Persons;
5. a change in the number of Covered Persons which would, on a manual rate basis, require a

change of 10% or more in the premium rate;
6. a change in any federal or state law or regulation is enacted, adopted or amended to the extent

that it affects Our benefit obligations under this Policy; or



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 15 of 23

7. the Policyholder fails to provide sufficient information, as required by Us, to confirm adequacy of
premiums and rates currently being paid.

Any increase or decrease in rate will take effect on the date of the applicable change specified above.  A
pro-rata adjustment will apply from the date of the change to the end of any period for which premium has
been paid.

Premium Audit 
We will have the right to audit books and records of the Policyholder at its place of business and during
regularly-scheduled business hours, in order to determine the accuracy of premium paid. 

Reinstatement
This Policy may be reinstated if it lapsed for nonpayment of premium.  Requirements for reinstatement
are written application of the Policyholder satisfactory to Us and payment of all overdue premiums.  Any
premium accepted in connection with a reinstatement will be applied to the earliest period for which
premium was not previously paid.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 16 of 23

Conditions of Coverage

CONDITIONS OF COVERAGE

This section describes the Conditions of Coverage under which benefits provided by this Policy
become payable.  Any benefits are payable only once, even though more than one Condition of
Coverage may apply.  Please read these and the Common Exclusions sections in order to
understand all of the terms, conditions and limitations of coverage.
Policyholder Coverage

POLICYHOLDER COVERAGE

We will pay benefits provided by this Policy, subject to all applicable conditions and exclusions, when a
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting, directly and independently of all other causes, from a
Covered Accident that occurs during one of the Covered Activities  shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

The Covered Activity must take place: 
1. under one of the Conditions of Coverage shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
2 on the premises of the Policyholder during normal hours of operation or during another

scheduled time; or
3. at another site designated by the Policyholder where the Covered Activity is scheduled.

This Coverage also includes travel only within the United States, Canada and Mexico and only directly
and without interruption;
1. between the Covered Person’s home or another meeting place designated by the

Policyholder and the site of the Covered Activity; and
2. by common carrier providing transportation to the site of the Covered Activity or by  a

private passenger automobile driven by an adult with a valid drivers’ license.

Travel Coverage for Overnight Covered Activities   Covered Travel also includes travel by any
common carrier providing transportation to a Covered Activity within the United States, Canada or
Mexico when the Covered Person’s participation in or attendance at it requires him to be away
from his normal residence for a stay of one or more nights. Coverage for travel to any Covered
Activity that takes place outside the United States, Canada or Mexico will be covered only if We
have agreed to it in writing.

Exclusions This coverage will not be in effect during
1. the Covered Person’s Personal Deviation; or
2. during travel to any Covered Activity that takes place outside the United States, Canada

and Mexico unless we have agreed to provide it in advance.

Other exclusions that apply to this coverage are in the Common Exclusions section.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 17 of 23

Common Exclusions

COMMON EXCLUSIONS

In addition to any benefit-specific exclusions, benefits will not be paid for any Covered Injury or Covered
Loss which, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, is caused by or results from any of the following
unless coverage is specifically provided for by name in the Description of Benefits Section: 

1. intentionally self-inflicted Injury, suicide or any attempt thereat while sane or insane;
2. commission or attempt to commit a felony or an assault;
3. active participation in a riot or insurrection;
4. bungee jumping; parachuting; skydiving; parasailing; hang-gliding;
5. declared or undeclared war or act of war;
6. flight in, boarding or alighting from an Aircraft or any craft designed to fly above the Earth’s

surface, except as:
a. a fare-paying passenger on a regularly scheduled commercial or charter airline;

7. travel in or on any off-road motorized vehicle except a golf cart or any other vehicle We
specifically agree to cover not requiring licensing as a motor vehicle;

8. participation in any motorized race or contest of speed;
9. an accident if the Covered Person is the operator of a motor vehicle and does not possess a valid

motor vehicle operator’s license; except while participating in Driver’s Education Program;
10. sickness; disease; bodily or mental infirmity; bacterial or viral infection or medical or surgical

treatment thereof; except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or
wound or accidental ingestion of contaminated food;

11. travel or activity outside the United States, Canada or Mexico;
12. travel in any Aircraft owned, leased or controlled by the Policyholder or any of its subsidiaries or

affiliates.  An Aircraft will be deemed to be “controlled” by the Policyholder, if the Aircraft may be
used as the Policyholder wishes for more than 10 straight days, or more than 15 days in any
year;

13. the Covered Person’s intoxication as determined according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which
the Covered Accident occurred;

14. voluntary ingestion of any: narcotic; drug; poison; gas; or fumes; unless prescribed or taken under
the direction of a Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage;

15. injuries compensable under Workers’ Compensation law or any similar law;
16. occupational injuries for which benefits are not paid under the Workers’ Compensation Law or

any similar law;

We will not pay benefits for: 
17. any Hospital Stay or days of a Hospital Stay that are not appropriate for the condition and locality.
18. A Covered Person’s Covered Loss if:

a. he was driving a private passenger automobile at the time of the Covered Accident that
resulted in the Covered Loss; and

b. he was intoxicated, as that term is defined by the law of the jurisdiction in which the
Covered Accident occurred.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 18 of 23

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Medical Expense Benefits

SCOPE OF COVERAGE APPLICABLE TO MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

Covered expenses and any applicable Deductibles are shown in the Schedule of Benefits. 

Other Health Benefit Plan Benefits  
When another Health Benefit Plan provides benefits in the form of services rather than cash payments,
We will consider the reasonable cash value of such service in determining whether any Deductible has
been satisfied, or any amount by which any benefit provided by this Policy will be reduced.

Full Excess Medical Expense
We will pay Covered Expenses:
1. after the Covered Person has satisfied any applicable Deductible; and
2. only when they are in excess of amounts payable by any Other Health Benefit Plan whether or

not claim has been made for benefits it provides.

Any Covered Expenses payable under this provision will be reduced by the Other Health
Care Plan Reduction Percentage shown in the Schedule of Benefits or the amount the other
Health Care Plan would have paid had its services or facilities been utilized if:
1. the Covered Person has coverage under another Health Care Plan;
2. the Other Health Care Plan is an HMO, PPO or similar arrangement; and
3. the Covered Person does not use the facilities or services of the HMO, PPO or similar

arrangement.

Covered Expenses will not be reduced for emergency treatment within 24 hours after a Covered Accident
which occurred outside the geographic service area of the HMO, PPO or similar arrangement.
This provision only applies when the Covered Person is covered for in-network benefits only.

Definitions For purposes of the Accident Medical Benefits provided by this Policy: 

HMO or Health Maintenance Organization means any organized system of health care that
provides health maintenance and treatment services for a fixed sum of money agreed and paid in
advance to the provider or service. 

PPO or Preferred Provider Organization means an organization offering health care  services
through designated health care providers who agree to perform those services at rates lower than
non-Preferred Providers.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 19 of 23

Accidental Medical Expenses Benefits

ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

We will pay benefits shown in the Schedule of Benefits for Covered Expenses Incurred by a
Covered Person, subject to all applicable conditions and exclusions, for treatment of an injury 
that resulted directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident. 

Benefits will be paid: 
1. when Covered Expenses Incurred exceed any applicable Deductible 
2. as long as the first expense has been Incurred within the number of days specified in the 

Schedule of Benefits; and
3. until any applicable Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits has expired; and
4. until the total of Covered Expenses paid equals any applicable Benefit Limit or maximum 

Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
5. until benefits paid equal the Maximum for Accident Medical Expense Benefits shown in 

the Schedule of Benefits.

Covered Expenses 

Inpatient Hospital Services 
Room and Board Expenses – We will pay for
1. confinement in an intensive or coronary care unit, up to the maximum daily 

benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits for each day of such confinement; 
and

2. any other confinement, up to the maximum daily benefit shown in the 
Schedule of Benefits for each day of the Hospital Stay.

Miscellaneous Expenses – We will pay the Miscellaneous Expenses charged by a 
Hospital or ambulatory surgical center for outpatient surgery. Miscellaneous 
Expenses include, but are not limited to: X-ray; laboratory; in-Hospital 
physiotherapy; nurse services; orthopedic appliances; pre-admission tests; and 
all necessary charges other than room and board, for services received during a 
Hospital Stay.

Ambulatory Medical Center
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for medical or surgical treatment 
provided in a licensed facility that provides ambulatory surgical or medical 
treatment and is not a Hospital or Physician’s office.

Emergency Room Treatment
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for outpatient emergency room treatment 
performed in a Hospital, up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule of 
Benefits.  When emergency room treatment is immediately followed by 
admission to a Hospital, such treatment will be a Hospital Covered Expense.

Physician Services – We will pay Covered Expenses for Covered Expenses listed below.
Surgery
1. Covered Expenses charged for performing a surgical procedure. We will pay up to 100% of

the Maximum Benefit for a surgical procedure shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
2. Covered Expenses charged by an assistant surgeon assisting a Physician performing a

surgical procedure
3. Covered Expenses charged for treatment of fractured and dislocated bones;

operations that involve cutting, incision and/or suturing of wounds; or any other surgical
procedure, including aftercare, which is given in the outpatient department of a Hospital or
an ambulatory surgical center

4. Any braces, splints or other devices required after surgery to ensure proper healing

Use of Physician’s Surgical Facilities – Covered Expenses charged for the use of a 
Physician’s surgical facilities.



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 20 of 23

Second Opinion or Consultation – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for a 
second surgical opinion or consultation. 

Physician’s Assistant – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician’s Assistant for other 
than pre-or post-operative care, second opinion or consultation: 
1. for in-Hospital visits; and 
2. for office visits. 

Anesthesia and its administration – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for 
anesthesia and its administration.

In-Hospital or Office Visits – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for other than 
pre-or post-operative care, second opinion or consultation;
1. for in-Hospital visits; and
2. for office visits.

Outpatient X-ray, CT Scan, MRI and Laboratory tests
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred, when prescribed by a licensed Physician, 
for  X-ray except dental X-rays; CT Scans; MRI’s; and laboratory tests.

Outpatient Physiotherapy
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for outpatient physiotherapy, when prescribed 
by a licensed Physician, which includes:(a) acupuncture;(b) microthermy;(c) chiropractic
adjustment;(d) manipulation;(e) diathermy; (f) massage therapy;(g) heat treatment; and 
(h) ultrasound treatment.

Nursing Services
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for services other than routine Hospital care, 
rendered by a Nurse.

Ambulance Services
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for ground or air ambulance service to
transport a Covered Person from the place where a Covered Accident occurred to the 
nearest medically appropriate facility.  We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for 
ground or air ambulance transportation from the nearest medical facility to another 
appropriate medical facility if a Physician specifies in writing that specialized care not 
available in the first facility to which the Covered Person was transported is necessary to 
treat his injury.

Medical Equipment Rental
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for rental or, if less, for purchase of:
1. a wheelchair or hospital bed; or
2. other medical equipment that has permanent or temporary therapeutic value for the

Covered Person and that can only be used by him.  Permanent or therapeutic value is
determined solely by Us.  Examples of items that are not covered include but are not 
limited to: computers; motor vehicles and modifications thereof; and ramps and 
installation costs ; eyeglasses and hearing aids.

Medical Services and Supplies
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for:
1. blood and blood transfusions, including processing and administration; and
2. cost and administration of oxygen and other gasses.
We will not pay for storage of blood for any reason.

Dental Services
We will pay Covered Expense Incurred for dental treatment, including X-rays, for injury to 
a tooth:
1. with no fillings or cavities or only fillings or cavities that do not undermine the tooth 

cusps; and



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 21 of 23

2. for which pulpal tissues are healthy and intact; and
3. for which periodontal tissue shows little or no signs of active or chronic

inflammation.  For insurance review purposes, each tooth unit is evaluated under 
these criteria rather than a blanket rating of the whole mouth.

Covered Expenses include: examinations; X-rays; restorative treatment;
endodontics; oral surgery; initial braces required for treatment of an injury; and 
treatment of gingivitis resulting from trauma. 

Covered Expenses must be Incurred within the Benefit Period shown in the 
Schedule of Benefits. If there is more than one way to treat a dental problem, 
We will pay based on the least expensive procedure if that procedure meets 
commonly accepted standards of the American Dental Association.

We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for dental treatment by a noncontracting provider
dentist the same as We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for dental treatment by a
contracting provider dentist.

Prosthetic Devices
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for prosthetic devices, components of prosthetic
devices, and repairs of prosthetic devices.

Orthotic Devices
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for the purchase, repair or replacement of an Orthotic
Device required as a result of a Covered Accident.

Prescription Drugs
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for drugs that
1. can only be obtained through a Physician’s written prescription; and
2. are approved for such prescription use by the Federal Drug Administration

(FDA).
We will also pay Covered Expenses Incurred for drugs that meet (a) above and 
are prescribed by a Physician for therapeutic use not specifically approved by the 
FDA.  The Covered Expense for a prescription drug is limited to the cost of a 
generic drug unless substitution of a generic drug is prohibited by law, no generic 
drug is available, or the Covered Person’s Physician specifically request that a non-
generic drug be dispensed.

Home Health Care
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for care and treatment rendered to a 
Covered Person by a Home Health Care Agency, for the maximum number of 
Visits as shown in the Schedule of Benefits for:
1. part-time nursing care provided or supervised by a registered graduate nurse;
2. part-time Home Health Aide service which consists of caring for the patient;
3. physical, speech and occupational therapies when indicated in conjunction with the

Covered Person’s discharge placement through a rehabilitation facility approved by
his Physician and by Us;

4. nutritional counseling; and
5. medical social services by a qualified social worker licensed by the jurisdiction in

which services are rendered.

Home Health Care services must be preceded by a Minimum Hospital Stay and must 
begin within the specified number of consecutive days of discharge from a Hospital.  
The Minimum Hospital Stay and the number of days of confinement within which 
Home Health Care must begin are shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Excluded Expenses

None of the following will be considered Covered Expenses unless coverage is specifically provided.
1. Blood, blood plasma or blood storage except expenses by a Hospital for processing or



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 22 of 23

administration of blood.
2. cosmetic surgery or care, or treatment solely for cosmetic purposes, or complications 

therefrom.  This exclusion does not apply to: 
a cosmetic surgery resulting from an accident, if initial treatment of the Covered 

Person is begun within 12 months of the date of the Accident;
b reconstruction incidental to or following surgery resulting from a Covered 

Accident.
3. Any elective or routine: treatment; surgery; health treatment; or examinations; including

any service, treatment or supplies that are (a) deemed by Us to be experimental or
investigational; and (b) are not recognized and generally accepted medical practice in the 
United States.

4. Services or treatment provided by persons who do not normally charge for their services, 
unless there is a legal obligation to pay. 

5. Rest cures or custodial care.
6. Repair or replacement of: existing dentures; partial dentures; braces; or bridgework.
7. Personal services such as television and telephone, or transportation.
8. Expenses paid by any automobile insurance policy without regard to fault.
9. Services or treatment provided by an infirmary operated by the Policyholder or 

Subscriber.
10. Treatment of injuries that result over a period of time, such as blisters, tennis elbow, et al, 

that are a normal, foreseeable result of participation in the Covered Activity. 
11. Treatment or service provided by a private duty nurse.
12. Treatment of hernia of any kind.
13. Treatment of a Pre-existing condition as defined herein.

Other Exclusions that apply to this Benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section



PI-AH-BL-NSP002 (TX) Page 23 of 23

Accident Indemnity Benefits

ACCIDENT INDEMNITY BENEFITS

This Section describes the Accident Indemnity Benefits provided by this Policy.  Benefit 
amounts and any applicable time requirements and limitations are shown in the Schedule 
of Benefits.  Please read this and the Common Exclusions section in order to understand 
all of the terms, conditions and limitations applicable to these benefits.

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS 

Covered Loss  
We will pay the benefit for any one of the Covered Losses listed in the Schedule of Benefits, if 
the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting directly and independently of all other 
causes from a Covered Accident within the applicable time period specified in the Schedule of 
Benefits.

If the Covered Person sustains more than one Covered Loss as a result of the same Covered 
Accident, benefits will be paid for the Covered Loss for which the largest available benefit is 
payable. 

If a Covered Accident causes the Covered Person’s death, the total of all Benefits We will pay 
for Accidental Death and any other Covered Losses will not exceed the largest Benefit payable for a
Covered Loss.

Definitions
Loss of a Hand or Foot means complete Severance through or above the wrist or ankle
joint.

Loss of Sight means the total, permanent loss of all vision in one eye which is irrecoverable by
natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Speech means total and permanent loss of audible communication which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Hearing means total and permanent loss of ability to hear any sound in both ears which
is irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of a Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand or Four Fingers of the Same Hand
means complete Severance through or above the metacarpophalangeal joints of the same hand
(the joints between the fingers and the hand).

Paralysis or Paralyzed means total loss of use of a limb. A Physician must determine the loss of
use to be complete and irreversible.

Quadriplegia means total Paralysis of both upper and both lower limbs.

Paraplegia means total Paralysis of both lower limbs or both upper limbs.

Hemiplegia means total Paralysis of the upper and lower limbs on one side of the body.

Severance means the complete and permanent separation and dismemberment of the part from
the body.

Exclusions  The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.



PI-AH-GU-001 TX 1

PHILADELPHIA INDEMNITY INSURANCE COMPANY
Administrative Office: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

800-873-4552

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE
TEXAS LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2011)

Texas law establishes a system to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health insurance company fails.
The Texas Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (“the Association”) administers this protection
system. Only the policyholders of insurance companies that are members of the Association are eligible for
this protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the Association law. (The law is
found in the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not protect all or part of your policy because of statutory
limitations.

Eligibility for Protection by the Association
When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides coverage
to policyholders who are:

· Residents of Texas (regardless of where the policyholder lived when the policy was issued)
· Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1. The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2. The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3. The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s state
of residence.

Limits of Protection by the Association

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
· For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance, or
$200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
· Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on a single life; or
· Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on a single life; or
· Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.

Individual Annuities:
· Present value of benefits up to a total of $250,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.

Group Annuities:
· Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $250,000 on any one life; or
· Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:

· $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000
multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

These limits are applied for each insolvent insurance company.



PI-AH-GU-001 TX 2

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you are
selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage. For additional
questions on Association protection or general information about an insurance company, please use
the following contact information.

Texas Life and Health Insurance Texas Department of Insurance
Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
515 Congress Avenue, Suite 1875 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78701 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.texas.gov
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org



PP 20 15 (2015)
PRIVACY POLICY NOTICE

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

The Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company (“PIIC” or "We") value(s) your privacy and we are committed to protecting personal information
that we collect during the course of our business relationship with you. The collection, use and disclosure of certain nonpublic personal
information are regulated by law. This notice is for your information only and requires no action on your part. It will inform you about the types of
information that we collect and how it may be disclosed. This does not reflect a change in the way we do business or handle your information.

INFORMATION THAT WE COLLECT:

We collect personal information about you from the following sources:
l Applications or other forms such as claims forms or underwriting questionnaires completed by you;
l Information about your transactions with us, our affiliates or others; and
l Depending on the type of transaction you are conducting with us, information may be collected from consumer reporting

agencies, health care providers, employers and other third parties in order to service your policy.

INFORMATION THAT WE DISCLOSE:

We will only disclose the information described above to affiliates and non-affiliated third parties, as permitted by law, and when necessary to
conduct our normal business activities.

For example, we may make disclosures to the following types of third parties:
l Your agent or broker (producer);
l Parties who perform a business, professional or insurance functions for our company, including our reinsurance companies;
l Independent claims adjusters, investigators, attorneys, other insurers or medical care providers who need information to investigate, defend or

settle a claim involving you;
l Regulatory agencies in connection with the regulation of our business; and
l Lienholders, mortgagees, lessors or other persons shown on our records as having a legal or beneficial interest in your policy.

We do not sell your information to others for marketing purposes. We do not disclose the personal information of persons who have ceased to be our
customers.

PROTECTION OF INFORMATION:

We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with state and federal regulations to protect the confidentiality of your
personal information. We also limit employee access to personally identifiable information to those with a business reason for knowing such
information.

USE OF COOKIES:

We may place electronic "cookies" in the browser files of your computer when you access this website. Cookies are text files placed on your
computer to enable our systems to recognize your browser and to tailor the information on our website to your interests. We or our third party service
providers or business partners may place cookies on your computer's hard drive to enable us to match personal information that we maintain about
you so that we are able to pre populate on-line forms with your information. We also use cookies to help us analyze use of our website to understand
which areas of our site are most useful to you. You may refuse the use of cookies by selecting the appropriate settings on your browser. Please note
that if you do this, you may not be able to use the full functionality of the website.

YOUR RIGHTS REGARDING YOUR INFORMATION:

You have the right to submit a written request for access to your recorded Personal Information. Within 30 business days of receipt of your request, we
must inform you of the nature and substance of your recorded Personal Information, permit you to view and copy it in person, or receive a copy by mail
of your recorded Personal Information, and receive names of persons or entities to whom we have disclosed Personal Information about you in the last
two years. There are some types of information, however, to which we are not required to give you access. Information collected for the evaluation of a
claim, or when the possibility of a lawsuit exists, will not be disclosed. If your records contain medical information, we may ask you to name a licensed
medical professional to whom we can send such information so that it may be properly explained. You may be charged a fee if we copy your Personal
Information for you.

You have the right to request that we correct, amend or delete any recorded Personal Information that you believe is inaccurate. Within 30 business
days of receipt of your request, we will correct, amend or delete the inaccurate recorded Personal Information or notify you the reason(s) that we are
unable to make the change. If you disagree with our decision, you have the right to submit a concise statement for your file setting forth the reasons you
disagree with us and/or the correct, relevant or fair information. If you request, we will provide you with a summary of our procedures by which you may
request correction, amendment or deletion of your recorded Personal Information.

If we use an independent consumer reporting agency or insurance-support organization to prepare a report on you, you have the right to be personally
interviewed by them. Information you give during an interview will be included in the report sent to us. If you wish to be interviewed, please tell us how
the agency or organization may contact you, and every effort will be made to interview you. Even if you are not interviewed, you have the further right to
request that the reporting agency or insurance-support organization provide you with a copy of the report it makes. Information obtained by a report
prepared by an insurance support organization may be retained by that organization and disclosed to other persons. Write us at the address in this
notice and we will give you the name and address of any agency or support organization we have used to prepare a report on you so that you can
contact them directly to find out more about that report.

CONTACT US:  Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004  ATTN: Chief Privacy Officer



PI-AH-BL-025 (TX) Page 1 of 2

CONSUMER DISCLOSURE AND CONSENT TO RECEIVE ELECTRONIC INSURANCE DOCUMENTS
(“CONSENT FORM”)

The Philadelphia Insurance Companies (we, us or Company) has been at the forefront of “going green”.
We even have a staff person whose sole responsibility is to promote “green” initiatives in the company
including ways employees can do more to promote “green” such as encouraging employees to volunteer
at “green” projects such as building and cleaning parks, planting trees, etc. One major way to “go green”
is to cut down on the amount of paper on which insurance policies are printed. You can help our efforts in
“going green” by agreeing to receive various insurance documents electronically. An advantage to you is
faster delivery of the documents and an easier way to store and search these documents. 

But for you to begin receiving the documents electronically, we are required to disclose certain information
to you and obtain your consent to receive the documents electronically. 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

l If you sign this Consent form for electronic delivery, it will apply to insurance policies, endorsements,
notices or other related documents (“documents”).

l You have the right to withdraw your consent to the electronic delivery of any document or other
changes to them at any time by sending an e-mail to the following e-mail address: AH@phly.com.
Your withdrawal of consent will be effective 45 days after the date that notice of your withdrawal of
consent is received by your agent. 

l If you want to change the e-mail address where electronic delivery of documents or other changes to
them is to be sent, please send an e-mail containing your new e-mail address for electronic delivery
to AH@phly.com. Any such change in your e-mail address where the delivery of such documents is
to be sent will be effective 45 days after the date that notice of your new e-mail address is received
by us or your agent.

l If you consent to the electronic delivery of the documents or other changes to them, you may request
that a paper copy of any such documents also be given to you.  Any such request must be made to
AH@phly.com. No fee will be charged for this request. 

l In order for you to be able to view and retain any such documents, you must have (a) a computer,
iPad, or other electronic device that has access to the internet; (b) a valid e-mail address;  (c) an
operational program installed on your computer, iPad, or other electronic device capable of receiving
e-mail; (d) an operational program installed on your computer, iPad, or other electronic device that
will permit you to view a document in Adobe Acrobat Reader; and (e) a hard drive, thumb drive,
or other device included within or attached to your computer, iPad, or other electronic device to
which a document in the above format may be permanently downloaded. We will notify you if these
requirements change.

If you sign this Consent form, we will send you an e-mail to the address you provide in the Consent form
confirming your acceptance to having the documents described above sent to you electronically at the e-
mail address you provided. You must confirm acceptance by responding to the e-mail.

Requesting Paper Copies
We will not send you a paper copy of any communication or document, unless you request it.
However, at any time, you may request a paper copy, without charge, of any communication or
document provided or made available electronically to you by contacting us as follows:



PI-AH-BL-025 (TX) Page 2 of 2

Mail your request to: Philadelphia Insurance Companies
P O Box 950
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004-0950
Please include the policy number in your communication.

E-mail your request to: AH@phly.com

You may also obtain a paper copy of any electronic communication we send to you by downloading and
printing the document from your computer. 

Acknowledging Your Access and Consent to Receive Communications Electronically
To confirm that you are able to access and view documents electronically, please verify that you are able
to read and print this electronic disclosure or electronically save this page for future reference or that you
are able to e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print or save it for
your future reference and access.

If you consent to receive notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format in accordance with the
terms and conditions described above, please let us know by clicking the “I Accept” button. By clicking the
“I Accept” button, you confirm that:

You can access and read this Consent Form. You are able to print it or save it and send it to a place
where you can print it and until you notify the Philadelphia Insurance Companies otherwise as described
above, you consent to receive written notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements,
communications, and documents exclusively in electronic format during the course of our relationship.

We will send you an e-mail to confirm that you can receive documents electronically at the e-mail address
that you provide to us. You will need to confirm receipt of the e-mail by clicking on the link in the e-mail.
Once you do that and electronically sign this document, we will begin sending your insurance policies,
endorsements and other documents to you electronically by e-mail. And you will have the satisfaction of
knowing that you have helped our efforts in “going green”. 

My e-mail address:  _________________________________



PI-AH-BL-NSP003 (TX) Page 1 of 1

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
Administrative Office

One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA  19004
Tel: 800-873-4552

APPLICATION FOR BLANKET ACCIDENT INSURANCE
Accidental Death and Accident Medical Benefits

Part I Proposed Policyholder

Full Legal Name of Proposed Policyholder Hays County Texas 

Address 712 S. Stagecoach Trail  San Marcos, TX 78666

Proposed Policyholder is Other
please describe type of entity who will own policy

Requested Effective Date 9/1/2024 Expiration Date 9/1/2025

Who will be insured? All authorized volunteers of the policyholder
describe all members or participants of the Policyholder who will be insured

Part II Plan

a. Plan of Benefits 
Accident Medical Expense Benefits Accidental Death $25,000

Maximum Benefit $100,000 Accidental Dismemberment up to $50,000
Deductible Amount $0 Accidental Paralysis $50,000

Scope of Coverage:  Full Excess

b. Premium Calculation

Total Premium $300.00

Part III Acknowledgements and Signatures 

a. Fraud Warning It is a crime to knowingly provide false, incomplete or misleading information to an insurance
company for the purpose of defrauding the company. Penalties may include imprisonment, fines or a denial of
insurance benefits.

b. Applicant's Acknowledgement I, the applicant, declare, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that all
statements and answers in this application are true and complete. I understand and agree that (a) this application
will form part of any policy issued, (b) no information given to or acquired by any representative of Philadelphia
Indemnity Insurance Company will bind it, unless it is in writing on this application, (c) no waiver or modification will
bind the Company unless it is in writing and is signed by an executive officer of Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance
Company, and (d) only those persons eligible under the terms of an issued policy will be insured.

Dated at on the day of ,  20

Signed for the Proposed Policyholder Signed by Licensed Agent

Title Agent License Number 



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 1 of 24

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
Administrative Office

One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA  19004
Tel: 800-873-4552

POLICYHOLDER: Hays County Texas

GROUP POLICY NUMBER: PHPA139361-004

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/1/2024

POLICY ISSUE DATE: 7/4/2024
POLICY TERM 9/1/2024 to 9/1/2025

STATE OF ISSUE: Texas

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, herein called the Company or We, Us or Our, in
consideration of the Application for this Policy and the timely payment of Premiums, agrees, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Policy, to insure the Policyholder’s eligible members.

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of insurance. It goes into effect, subject to its applicable
terms and conditions, at 12:01 AM on the Policy Effective Date shown above, at the Policyholder’s
address. It will remain in effect for the duration of the Policy Term shown above if premium is paid
according to agreed terms.

This Policy terminates at 12:01 AM on the last day of the Policy Term unless the Policyholder and We
have agreed to continue this Policy for an additional Policy Term. The laws of the State of Issue shown
above govern this Policy. We and the Policyholder agree to all of the terms of this Policy.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company has caused this Policy to be
executed on its Issue Date, to take effect on the Effective Date.

President & CEO
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

Secretary
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

•  BLANKET ACCIDENT POLICY •
(Activities Excluding Sports)

• NON-PARTICIPATING •

THIS POLICY PAYS BENEFITS FOR SPECIFIC LOSSES FROM ACCIDENTS ONLY.
IT DOES NOT PAY BENEFITS FOR SICKNESS.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 2 of 24

HAVE A COMPLAINT OR NEED HELP?

If you have a problem with a claim or your premium, call Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company first.
If you can't work out the issue, the Texas Department of Insurance may be able to help.

Even if you file a complaint with the Texas Department of Insurance, you should also file a complaint or
appeal through Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company. If you don't, you may lose your right to
appeal. 

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
To get information or file a complaint with Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company: 

Call: Customer Service at 1-877-438-7459
Email: service@phly.com
Mail: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004 

The Texas Department of Insurance
To get help with an insurance question or file a complaint with the state: 

Call with a question: 1-800-252-3439
File a complaint: www.tdi.texas.gov 
Email: ConsumerProtection@tdi.texas.gov 
Mail: MC 111-1A, P.O. Box 149091, Austin, TX 78714-9091 

To compare policies and prices 
Visit HelpInsure.com to compare prices and coverages on home and auto insurance policies. The
website is a service of the Texas Department of Insurance and the Office of Public Insurance Counsel. 

¿TIENE UNA QUEJA O NECESITA AYUDA?

Si tiene un problema con una reclamación o con su prima de seguro, llame primero a Philadelphia
Indemnity Insurance Company. Si no puede resolver el problema, es posible que el Departamento de
Seguros de Texas (Texas Department of Insurance, por su nombre en inglés) pueda ayudar. 

Aun si usted presenta una queja ante el Departamento de Seguros de Texas, también debe presentar
una queja a través del proceso de quejas o de apelaciones de Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance
Company. Si no lo hace, podría perder su derecho para apelar. 

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
Para obtener información o para presentar una queja ante Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company: 

Llame a: Customer Service al 1-877-438-7459
Correo electrónico: service@phly.com
Dirección postal: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

El Departamento de Seguros de Texas
Para obtener ayuda con una pregunta relacionada con los seguros o para presentar una queja ante el
estado: 

Llame con sus preguntas al: 1-800-252-3439 
Presente una queja en: www.tdi.texas.gov 
Correo electrónico: ConsumerProtection@tdi.texas.gov 
Dirección postal: MC 111-1A, P.O. Box 149091, Austin, TX 78714-9091 

Para comparar pólizas y precios 
Visite HelpInsure.com para comparar precios y coberturas en pólizas de seguro para el hogar y
automóvil. El sitio web es un servicio del Departamento de Seguros de Texas y de la Oficina del Asesor
Público de Seguros (Office of Public Insurance Counsel, por su nombre en inglés).

PI-Notice TX (01/20)

mailto:service@phly.com
mailto:service@phly.com


PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 3 of 24

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page   

Schedule of Benefits______________________________________________________________ 4

General Definitions________________________________________________________________8

Eligibility, Effective Date and Termination Provisions_____________________________________11

General Provisions_______________________________________________________________ 12

Claim Provisions_________________________________________________________________13

Administrative Provisions__________________________________________________________ 15

Conditions of Coverage___________________________________________________________ 17

Policyholder Coverage____________________________________________________________ 17

Common Exclusions______________________________________________________________18

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Medical Expense Benefits______________________________ 19

Accidental Medical Expenses Benefits_______________________________________________ 20

Accident Indemnity Benefits________________________________________________________24



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 4 of 24

Schedule of Benefits

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

This Policy is intended to be read in its entirety.  In order to understand all the conditions,
exclusions and limitations applicable to its benefits, please read all the policy provisions
carefully.

Eligible Persons: All authorized volunteers of the policyholder

CONDITIONS OF COVERAGE

The benefits provided by this Policy will be paid, subject to applicable conditions, limitations and
exclusions, under the following coverages.

Policyholder Coverage
Personal Deviations covered no

Covered activities Participation in and attendance at the following
Policyholder Supervised and Sponsored
activities: All authorized volunteer activities

ACCIDENT INDEMNITY BENEFITS

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS
Each of the following Covered Losses may be included or deleted at the option of the Policyholder.
Benefit amounts are variable and may be expressed as a percentage of the Principal Sum or as a dollar
amount.

Principal Sum $25,000
Loss must occur within 365 days of the Covered Accident

Schedule of Covered Losses
Covered Loss Benefit
Loss of Life 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Two or More Hands or Feet 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight of Both Eyes 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or Foot and

Sight in One Eye 200% of the Principal Sum
Quadriplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Paraplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Hemiplegia 200% of the Principal Sum
Loss of One Hand or Foot 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Sight in One Eye 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Speech 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Hearing in Both Ears 100% of the Principal Sum
Loss of Thumb and Index Finger
of the Same Hand 50% of the Principal Sum

Aggregate Limit of Indemnity $500,000
Applies to: All Conditions of Coverage

Not more than the Aggregate Limit of Indemnity specified above will be paid for all Covered Losses
suffered by all Covered Persons insured under this Accidental Death and Dismemberment Benefit as the
result of any one Covered Accident that occurs under one of the Conditions of Coverage, as specified



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 5 of 24

above.  If this amount does not allow all Covered Persons to be paid the amounts this Policy otherwise
provides, the amount paid will be the proportion of the Covered Person’s loss to the total of all losses,
multiplied by the Aggregate Limit of Indemnity.

ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

Any benefit limits and Benefit Percentages for Accident Medical Expense Benefits apply, unless
otherwise specified, on a per-Covered Person per-Covered Accident basis. Any applicable Deductibles
must be satisfied within the time periods specified before benefits are payable.

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Accident Medical Benefits

Full Excess Medical Expense

Other Health Plan
Reduction 50%

Medical Expense Benefits

Total Maximum for all
Accident Medical Expense Benefits $100,000

First Covered Expenses must
be Incurred within 180 days after a Covered Accident

Benefit Period 1 year from the date of the Covered Accident

Deductible $0

Covered Expenses

In-Patient Hospital Services
Daily ICU or CCU Benefit 100%

Daily In-Hospital Benefit 100% of the average Semi-private
room rate

Miscellaneous Services 100% per Hospital Stay

Ambulatory Medical Center 100%

Emergency Room Treatment 100%

Physician Services
Surgery Benefit 100%
Assistant Surgeon 100%
Physician's Surgical Facilities 100%

Second Opinion or Consultation 100%
Physician's Assistant 100%
Anesthesia Benefit 100%

Inpatient Visits 100%

Office Visits 100% per visit

Outpatient X-ray, CT Scan,
MRI and Laboratory Tests 100%



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 6 of 24

Outpatient Physiotherapy 100%

Nursing Services 100%

Ambulance Services 100%

Medical Equipment Rental 100%

Medical Services and Supplies 100%

Dental Services 100%

Prosthetic Devices 100%

Orthotic Devices 100%

Prescription Drug Benefit
Benefit per prescription 100%

Home Health Care Benefit
Calendar Year Deductible $0
Home Health Care Visit 100%
Maximum Visits 40 per calendar year
Medical Supplies, Drugs and
Medications 100%



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 7 of 24

RATE TABLE Rates are variable by risk quoted.  Rates may be daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, semi-
annually or annually.  Rates may be paid: on the effective date, within 30 days from the effective date, 
monthly, quarterly, semi-annually or annually.

Premium Rates $300

Minimum Premium $300

Contributions The cost of this insurance is paid by the
Policyholder.  Minimum and deposit premiums
are fully earned and non-refundable.

Mode of Premium Payment Fixed Annual

Premium Due Date[s] Policy Effective Date 



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 8 of 24

General Definitions

GENERAL DEFINITIONS
Please note that certain words used in this Policy have specific meanings.  The words defined below and
capitalized within the text of this Policy have the meanings set forth below.  

Beneficiary means in the case of death of the Covered Person, a person named by the Covered Person
to receive benefits provided by this Policy.

Benefit Percentage means the percentage of Covered Expenses We pay that are Incurred by the
Covered Person after he satisfies any applicable Deductible.  Benefit Percentages are shown in the
Schedule of Benefits. 

Certificate means the evidence of the Covered Person’s coverage under this Policy.  Coverage is subject
to the Policy provisions. The Certificate is not the Policy.

Company or We, Us, Our, means Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, domiciled in
Pennsylvania.

Covered Accident means a sudden, unforeseeable, external event that results, directly and
independently of all other causes, in an injury or loss and meets all of the following conditions: 

1. occurs while the Covered Person is insured under this Policy; 
2. is not contributed to by: disease; sickness; or mental or bodily infirmity; and 
3. is not otherwise excluded under the terms of this Policy.

Covered Activity means any recurring activity that is shown in the Schedule of Benefits and: 
1. takes place under one of the Conditions of Coverage specified in the Schedule of Benefits;
and 
2. is: sponsored; organized; scheduled; or otherwise provided by the Policyholder.

Covered Expenses means the lesser of the reasonable and customary charge and the maximum benefit 
shown, for services or supplies listed, in the Schedule of Benefits and described in the Accident Medical 
Expense Benefits section of this Policy.  Covered Expenses must be Incurred by a Covered Person for 
treatment for injuries sustained in a Covered Accident. 

Covered Injury means any bodily harm that results directly and independently of all other causes from a
Covered Accident.

Covered Loss means: accidental death; dismemberment; or other Injury covered under the Policy.

Covered Person means an Eligible Person, as defined in the Schedule of Benefits, for whom an
enrollment form has been accepted by Us and required premium has been paid when due and for whom
coverage under this Policy remains in force.

Deductible means the amount of Covered Expenses that each Covered Person must Incur before
benefits are paid under this Policy.

He, Him or His means an individual, male or female. 

Health Benefit Plan means any arrangement, whether individually purchased or incidental to
employment or membership in an association or other group, which provides benefits or services for:
health care; dental care; disability benefits; or repatriation of remains. A Health Benefit Plan includes
group, blanket, franchise, family or individual: 

1. insurance policies;
2. subscriber contracts;
3. uninsured agreements or arrangements;
4. coverage provided through: Health Maintenance Organization; Preferred Provider

Organization; State or Federal Exchanges; Insurance Cooperatives and other prepayment;
group practice and individual practice plans;

5. medical benefits provided under automobile “fault” and “no-fault” – type contracts;
6. medical benefits provided by any governmental plan or coverage or other benefit law, except:



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 9 of 24

a. a state-sponsored Medicaid plan; or
b. a plan or law providing benefits only in excess of any private or non-governmental  plan;

7. other valid and collectible medical or health care benefits or services.

Hospital means an institution that meets all of the following: 
1. it is licensed as a Hospital pursuant to applicable law;
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and treatment to sick and

injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision of a staff of medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision of a graduate registered nurse

(R.N.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment facilities, with major surgical facilities on its premises, or

available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic facility or unit of a Hospital for: 
1. rehabilitation; convalescent; custodial; or educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics; or
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospitals unless the Covered Person

incurs an expense.

Hospital Stay means a confinement in a Hospital, ordered by a Physician, over one or more nights when
room and board and general nursing care are provided at a per diem charge made by the Hospital.  The
Hospital Stay must result directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident.
Separate Hospital Stays due to the same Covered Accident will be treated as one Hospital Stay unless
separated by at least 90 days.

Incurred or Incurs means an obligation to pay for a Covered Expense for treatment, service or purchase
of supplies, deemed to be the date it is provided to the Covered Person. 

In-Patient means a Covered Person who is confined for at least one full day’s Hospital room and board.
The requirement that a person be charged for room and board does not apply to confinement in a
Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospital. In such case, the term “Inpatient” shall
mean a Covered Person who is required to be confined for a period of at least a full day as determined by
the Hospital. 

Maximum Benefit means the most we will pay for each Benefit stated in the Schedule of Benefits.

Nurse means an individual licensed by the Texas State Board of Medical Examiners to practice medicine
within the scope of his or her license.

Orthotic Device means a brace or splint used to support, immobilize or treat injured muscles, joints or
skeletal parts.

Out-Patient means a Covered Person who receives treatment, services and supplies while not an
Inpatient in a Hospital. 

Personal Deviation means any activity which: 
1. is neither reasonably related to or incidental to the purpose of travel for which coverage is

provided by this Policy; and
2. the Covered Person performs before, during or after covered travel.

When coverage is provided during a Personal Deviation, the time period covered is shown in the
Conditions of Coverage section of the Schedule of Benefits.  

Physician means a n individual licensed to practice medicine by the Texas State Board of Medical
Examiners within the scope of his or her license. This term includes a doctor of osteopathic medicine. 

Policy means a legal contract between the Policyholder and Us which describes the terms and conditions
of insurance subject to its provisions, limitations and exclusions.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 10 of 24

Policyholder means the branch or organization that elects to provide the coverage under this Policy for
its  members or participants.

Policy Effective Date means the date this Policy takes effect as shown on the face page.

Pre-existing Condition means a disease or physical condition for which the Covered Person received
medical advice or treatment in the 12 month period before the Covered Person’s coverage became 
effective under the Policy.

Prosthetic Device means an artificial device to replace, in part or in whole, a leg, an arm, or an eye.

Schedule of Benefits means the outline of the: Coverages and Benefits provided by this Policy.

Usual and Customary Charge means the normal charge, in the absence of insurance, made by the
provider of any treatment, but not more than the prevailing charge in the area: 

1. for a like service by a provider with similar training or experience; or
2. for a supply that is identical or substantially equivalent.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 11 of 24

Eligibility, Effective Date and Termination Provisions

ELIGIBILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINATION PROVISIONS

Policy Effective Date 
We agree to provide Blanket Accident Insurance Benefits described in this Policy in consideration of the
Policyholder’s application and payment of the initial premium when due.  Insurance coverage begins on
the Policy Effective Date shown on this Policy’s first page as long as the Minimum Participation
requirement shown in the Schedule of Benefits has been satisfied.

Eligibility
An individual becomes eligible for insurance under this Policy on the date he meets all of the
requirements of one of the Covered Classes and completes any Eligibility Waiting Period, as shown in the
Schedule of Benefits.  An Eligible Person may be insured under only one Covered Class, even though he
may be eligible under more than one Covered Class.

Effective Date for Individuals 
Insurance becomes effective for an Eligible Person on the latest of the following dates: 
1. the effective date of this Policy;  
2. the date the individual becomes eligible.

Effective Date of Changes 
Any increase or decrease in the amount of insurance for the Covered Person resulting from a change in
benefits provided by this Policy or a change in the Covered Person’s Covered Class will take effect on the
date of such change.  Increases will take effect subject to any Active Service requirement.

Termination of Insurance 
The insurance on a Covered Person will end on the earliest date below: 
1. the date the person is no longer in an Eligible Class; 
2. the end of the last period for which premium is paid subject to the Grace Period; 
3. the date this Policy terminates.

Termination will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss resulting from a Covered Accident that occurs
before the termination date.  However, in no instance will benefits extend beyond the earlier of: 
1. the end of the Benefit Period; and 
2. the date benefits equal to any applicable Benefit Limit or Maximum, as shown in the Schedule of

Benefits, have been paid; 
3. the date benefits paid equal any applicable Policy Aggregate Maximum, as shown in the

Schedule of Benefits.

Extension of Benefits
We will extend benefits under the Policy for 3 months after a Covered Person’s coverage would otherwise
end if on that date he or she is:
1. confined in a Hospital for a Covered Injury; and
2. under a Physician’s care.
Any benefits payable under this provision will not exceed the benefit maximums shown in the Schedule of
Benefits.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 12 of 24

General Provisions

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract; Changes
This Policy, including the application, endorsements, amendments and any attached papers, constitutes
the entire contract of insurance. No change in this Policy will be valid until approved by one of Our
executive officers and endorsed on or attached to this Policy.  No agent has authority to change this
Policy or to waive any of its provisions. 

Any statements made by the Policyholder or Covered Persons will be treated as representations and not
warranties. No such statement shall: void the insurance; reduce the benefits; or be used in defense of a
claim for loss incurred; unless: it is contained in a written application; and a copy is provided to the person
who made such statement, or if the Insured has died or become incapacitated, a copy of the written
statement is given to his or her beneficiary or representative.

Misstatement of Fact
If a Covered Person has misstated any fact, all amounts payable under this Policy will be such as the
premium paid would have purchased had such fact been correctly stated. 

Misstatement of Age
If the age of the Covered Person has been misstated, We will adjust the benefits under this Policy to
those that would be applicable at the correct age.

Assignment
The rights and benefits under this Policy may not be assigned and any attempt to assign will be void
except assignments of benefits to a physician or other health care provider who provides health care
services to the Covered Person.  

Incontestability
The validity of this Policy may not be contested after the Policy has been in force for two years after its
date of issue. In the absence of fraud, a statement made by a Covered Person relating to the Covered
Person’s insurability may not be used in contesting the validity of the insurance with respect to which the
statement was made: a) after the insurance has been in force before the contest for two years during the
Covered Person’s lifetime; and b) unless the statement is contained in a written instrument signed by the
Covered Person making the statement.

Reporting Requirements 
The Policyholder or its authorized agent must report all of the following to Us by the premium due date: 
1. the number of persons insured on the Policy Effective Date; 
2. the number of persons who are insured after the Policy Effective Date; 
3. the number of persons whose insurance has terminated;  
4. any additional information required by Us.

Clerical Error 
A Covered Person's insurance will not be affected by error or delay in keeping records of insurance under
this Policy.  If such error or delay is found, We will adjust the premium fairly. 

Conformity with Statutes
Any provisions in conflict with the requirements of any state or federal law that applies to this Policy are
automatically changed to satisfy the minimum requirements of such laws. 

Compensation Insurance
This Policy is not in place of and does not affect any requirements for coverage under any Workers’
Compensation law.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 13 of 24

Claim Provisions

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim 
Written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice of claim must be given to Us within 30 days after a
Covered Loss occurs or begins or as soon as reasonably possible.  If written or authorized
electronic/telephonic notice is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that such notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given: to Us at Our
Administrative Office, One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004; to such other place as We
may designate for the purpose; or to Our authorized agent.  Notice should include the Policyholder’s
name and policy number and the Covered Person’s name and address. 

Claim Forms 
We will send claim forms for filing proof of loss when We receive notice of a claim.  If such forms are not
sent within 15 days after We receive notice, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the
time fixed in this Policy for filing proof of loss, written or authorized electronic proof of the nature and
extent of the loss for which the claim is made. 

Claimant Cooperation Provision 
Failure of a claimant to reasonably cooperate with Us in the administration of the claim may result in
termination of the claim.  Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or
documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Proof of Loss 
Written or authorized electronic proof of loss satisfactory to Us must be given to Us at Our office, within
90 days of the loss for which claim is made.  If written or authorized electronic notice is not given within
that time, no claim will be invalidated or reduced if it is shown that such notice was given as soon as
reasonably possible.  In any case, written or authorized electronic proof must be given not more than one
year after the time it is otherwise required, except if proof is not given solely due to the lack of legal
capacity. 

Notice of Acceptance/Rejection of Claim
We will notify a claimant in writing of the acceptance or rejection of a claim not later than the 15th business
day after the date We receive all items, statements, and forms required to secure final proof of loss.

Time of Payment of Claims 
We will pay benefits due under this Policy for any loss other than benefits for loss of time not later than
the 60th day after the date We receive written or authorized electronic proof of such loss. Subject to due
written or authorized electronic proof of loss, all accrued benefits payable under this Policy for loss of time
will be paid monthly during the period for which We are liable, and any balance remaining unpaid at the
end of that period will be paid as soon as possible after We receive written or authorized electronic proof
of loss.

Payment of Claims 
All benefits will be paid in United States currency.  Benefits for loss of life will be payable in accordance
with the Beneficiary provision and these Claim Provisions.  All other proceeds payable under this Policy,
unless otherwise stated, will be payable to the Insured or the Insured’s assignee. 

If We are to pay benefits to the estate or to a person who is a minor or otherwise not competent to give a
valid release, We may pay benefits to such Covered Person’s parent, guardian, or other person actually
supporting the Covered Person.

The Insured may assign all or a portion of any benefits provided by the Policy for dental care services to
the dentist providing the services.  In the case of such an assignment, We will pay benefits directly to the
dentist designated.  

We will repay the actual costs of medical expenses the Texas Department of Human Services
pays through medical assistance for a Covered Person if, under the Policy, the Covered Person is
entitled to payment for the medical expenses.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 14 of 24

Beneficiary 
The beneficiary is the person or persons the Covered Person names or changes on a form executed by
him and satisfactory to Us. This form may be in writing or by any electronic means agreed upon between
Us and the Policyholder.  Consent of the beneficiary is not required to affect any changes or to make any
assignment of rights or benefits permitted by this Policy, unless the beneficiary has been designated as
an irrevocable beneficiary. 

A beneficiary designation or change will become effective on the date the Covered Person executes it.
However, We will not be liable for any action taken or payment made before We record notice of the
change at our Home Office. 

If more than one person is named as beneficiary, the interests of each will be equal unless the Covered
Person has specified otherwise.  The share of any beneficiary who does not survive the Covered Person
will pass equally to any surviving beneficiaries unless otherwise specified.   

If there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, or if the Covered Person dies while benefits are
payable to him, We may make direct payment to the first surviving class of the following classes of
persons: 
1. Spouse; 
2. Child or Children; 
3. mother or father;  
4. sisters or brothers;  
5. estate of the Covered Person. 

Physical Examination and Autopsy 
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as
often as We may reasonably require while a claim is pending and to make an autopsy in case of death
where it is not forbidden by law. 

Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days after written or
authorized electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy.  No such action will be
brought more than three years after the time such written proof of loss must be furnished. 

Recovery of Overpayment
If benefits are overpaid, We have the right to recover the amount overpaid by either of the following
methods. 
1. A request for lump sum payment of the overpaid amount. 
2. A reduction of any amounts payable under this Policy. 

If there is an overpayment due when the Covered Person dies, We may recover the overpayment from
the Covered Person’s estate.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 15 of 24

Administrative Provisions

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Cancellation 
We or the Policyholder may cancel this Policy, after the first year, by giving Us 60 days advance written
notice.  Any premium rate guarantee will not affect Our or the Policyholder’s right to cancel this Policy. 

If a premium is not paid when due, We will cancel this Policy at the end of the last period for which
premium was paid, subject to the Grace Period provision.  Premium Due Dates are shown in the
Schedule of Benefits.   

Cancellation will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss resulting from a Covered Accident that occurred
before the cancellation date.

Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums due after the first
premium, unless: 
1. We do not intend to renew this Policy beyond the period for which premium has been accepted;

and
2. written notice of Our intention not to renew is delivered to the Policyholder at least 90 days before

the premium is due.

This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period.  If the required premiums are not paid during
the Policy Grace Period, insurance will end on the last day of the Grace Period.  The Policyholder is liable
to Us for any unpaid premium for the time this Policy was in force.

Premiums
All premium rates are expressed in, and all premiums are payable in, United States currency.  The
premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates, as set forth in the Schedule of Benefits or
subsequently changed, the plan and amounts of insurance in effect for Covered Persons and the
premium mode selected, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits.  If a Covered Person’s insurance
amounts are reduced due to age, premium will be based on the amounts of insurance in force on the day
before the reduction took place.  We will provide notifications of premiums due or premium changes, by
mail to the most current address in our files, to the Policyholder. 

Premium Payment 
The total premium paid by the Policyholder is the sum of premiums for all Covered Persons including any
amounts contributed toward the cost of this insurance by Covered Persons.  The initial premium is due on
the Policy Effective Date and each succeeding premium is due on the next succeeding Premium Due
Date, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits, unless the Policyholder and We agree to another mode of
premium payment.  Premiums are paid at our Administrative Office or to Our authorized agent. 

If any premium is not paid when due, this Policy will be cancelled as of the Premium Due Date of the
unpaid premiums, except as provided in the Grace Period provision.

Changes in Premium Rates
We may change the premium rates from time to time with at least 60 days advance written notice to the
Policyholder. No change in rates will be made until 12 months after the Policy Effective Date. An increase
in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12-month period. However, We reserve the right to
change rates at any time if any of the following events take place:
1. the terms of this Policy change;
2. the number of Covered Persons increases or decreases by more than 10% since the later of the

Policy Effective Date and the first day of the current Policy term;
3. coverage is reinstated following failure to pay premium during the Grace Period;
4. acquisition, merger, consolidation, divestiture, corporate reorganization or purchase or sale of

assets affecting, increasing or decreasing by 10% or more the number of Covered Persons;
5. a change in the number of Covered Persons which would, on a manual rate basis, require a

change of 10% or more in the premium rate;
6. a change in any federal or state law or regulation is enacted, adopted or amended to the extent

that it affects Our benefit obligations under this Policy; or



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 16 of 24

7. the Policyholder fails to provide sufficient information, as required by Us, to confirm adequacy of
premiums and rates currently being paid.

Any increase or decrease in rate will take effect on the date of the applicable change specified above.  A
pro-rata adjustment will apply from the date of the change to the end of any period for which premium has
been paid.

Premium Audit 
We will have the right to audit books and records of the Policyholder at its place of business and during
regularly-scheduled business hours, in order to determine the accuracy of premium paid. 

Reinstatement
This Policy may be reinstated if it lapsed for nonpayment of premium.  Requirements for reinstatement
are written application of the Policyholder satisfactory to Us and payment of all overdue premiums.  Any
premium accepted in connection with a reinstatement will be applied to the earliest period for which
premium was not previously paid.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 17 of 24

Conditions of Coverage

CONDITIONS OF COVERAGE

This section describes the Conditions of Coverage under which benefits provided by this Policy
become payable.  Any benefits are payable only once, even though more than one Condition of
Coverage may apply.  Please read these and the Common Exclusions sections in order to
understand all of the terms, conditions and limitations of coverage.
Policyholder Coverage

POLICYHOLDER COVERAGE

We will pay benefits provided by this Policy, subject to all applicable conditions and exclusions, when a
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting, directly and independently of all other causes, from a
Covered Accident that occurs during one of the Covered Activities  shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

The Covered Activity must take place: 
1. under one of the Conditions of Coverage shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
2 on the premises of the Policyholder during normal hours of operation or during another

scheduled time; or
3. at another site designated by the Policyholder where the Covered Activity is scheduled.

This Coverage also includes travel only within the United States, Canada and Mexico and only directly
and without interruption;
1. between the Covered Person’s home or another meeting place designated by the

Policyholder and the site of the Covered Activity; and
2. by common carrier providing transportation to the site of the Covered Activity or by  a

private passenger automobile driven by an adult with a valid drivers’ license.

Travel Coverage for Overnight Covered Activities   Covered Travel also includes travel by any
common carrier providing transportation to a Covered Activity within the United States, Canada or
Mexico when the Covered Person’s participation in or attendance at it requires him to be away
from his normal residence for a stay of one or more nights. Coverage for travel to any Covered
Activity that takes place outside the United States, Canada or Mexico will be covered only if We
have agreed to it in writing.

Exclusions This coverage will not be in effect during
1. the Covered Person’s Personal Deviation; or
2. during travel to any Covered Activity that takes place outside the United States, Canada

and Mexico unless we have agreed to provide it in advance.

Other exclusions that apply to this coverage are in the Common Exclusions section.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 18 of 24

Common Exclusions

COMMON EXCLUSIONS

In addition to any benefit-specific exclusions, benefits will not be paid for any Covered Injury or Covered
Loss which, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, is caused by or results from any of the following
unless coverage is specifically provided for by name in the Description of Benefits Section: 

1. intentionally self-inflicted Injury, suicide or any attempt thereat while sane or insane;
2. commission or attempt to commit a felony or an assault;
3. active participation in a riot or insurrection;
4. bungee jumping; parachuting; skydiving; parasailing; hang-gliding;
5. declared or undeclared war or act of war;
6. flight in, boarding or alighting from an Aircraft or any craft designed to fly above the Earth’s

surface, except as:
a. a fare-paying passenger on a regularly scheduled commercial or charter airline;

7. travel in or on any off-road motorized vehicle except a golf cart or any other vehicle We
specifically agree to cover not requiring licensing as a motor vehicle;

8. participation in any motorized race or contest of speed;
9. an accident if the Covered Person is the operator of a motor vehicle and does not possess a valid

motor vehicle operator’s license; except while participating in Driver’s Education Program;
10. sickness; disease; bodily or mental infirmity; bacterial or viral infection or medical or surgical

treatment thereof; except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or
wound or accidental ingestion of contaminated food;

11. travel or activity outside the United States, Canada or Mexico;
12. travel in any Aircraft owned, leased or controlled by the Policyholder or any of its subsidiaries or

affiliates.  An Aircraft will be deemed to be “controlled” by the Policyholder, if the Aircraft may be
used as the Policyholder wishes for more than 10 straight days, or more than 15 days in any
year;

13. the Covered Person’s intoxication as determined according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which
the Covered Accident occurred;

14. voluntary ingestion of any: narcotic; drug; poison; gas; or fumes; unless prescribed or taken under
the direction of a Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage;

15. injuries compensable under Workers’ Compensation law or any similar law;
16. occupational injuries for which benefits are not paid under the Workers’ Compensation Law or

any similar law;

We will not pay benefits for: 
17. any Hospital Stay or days of a Hospital Stay that are not appropriate for the condition and locality.
18. A Covered Person’s Covered Loss if:

a. he was driving a private passenger automobile at the time of the Covered Accident that
resulted in the Covered Loss; and

b. he was intoxicated, as that term is defined by the law of the jurisdiction in which the
Covered Accident occurred.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 19 of 24

Scope of Coverage Applicable to Medical Expense Benefits

SCOPE OF COVERAGE APPLICABLE TO MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

Covered expenses and any applicable Deductibles are shown in the Schedule of Benefits. 

Other Health Benefit Plan Benefits  
When another Health Benefit Plan provides benefits in the form of services rather than cash payments,
We will consider the reasonable cash value of such service in determining whether any Deductible has
been satisfied, or any amount by which any benefit provided by this Policy will be reduced.

Full Excess Medical Expense
We will pay Covered Expenses:
1. after the Covered Person has satisfied any applicable Deductible; and
2. only when they are in excess of amounts payable by any Other Health Benefit Plan whether or

not claim has been made for benefits it provides.

Any Covered Expenses payable under this provision will be reduced by the Other Health
Care Plan Reduction Percentage shown in the Schedule of Benefits or the amount the other
Health Care Plan would have paid had its services or facilities been utilized if:
1. the Covered Person has coverage under another Health Care Plan;
2. the Other Health Care Plan is an HMO, PPO or similar arrangement; and
3. the Covered Person does not use the facilities or services of the HMO, PPO or similar

arrangement.

Covered Expenses will not be reduced for emergency treatment within 24 hours after a Covered Accident
which occurred outside the geographic service area of the HMO, PPO or similar arrangement.
This provision only applies when the Covered Person is covered for in-network benefits only.

Definitions For purposes of the Accident Medical Benefits provided by this Policy: 

HMO or Health Maintenance Organization means any organized system of health care that
provides health maintenance and treatment services for a fixed sum of money agreed and paid in
advance to the provider or service. 

PPO or Preferred Provider Organization means an organization offering health care  services
through designated health care providers who agree to perform those services at rates lower than
non-Preferred Providers.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 20 of 24

Accidental Medical Expenses Benefits

ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXPENSE BENEFITS

We will pay benefits shown in the Schedule of Benefits for Covered Expenses Incurred by a
Covered Person, subject to all applicable conditions and exclusions, for treatment of an injury 
that resulted directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident. 

Benefits will be paid: 
1. when Covered Expenses Incurred exceed any applicable Deductible 
2. as long as the first expense has been Incurred within the number of days specified in the 

Schedule of Benefits; and
3. until any applicable Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits has expired; and
4. until the total of Covered Expenses paid equals any applicable Benefit Limit or maximum 

Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
5. until benefits paid equal the Maximum for Accident Medical Expense Benefits shown in 

the Schedule of Benefits.

Covered Expenses 

Inpatient Hospital Services 
Room and Board Expenses – We will pay for
1. confinement in an intensive or coronary care unit, up to the maximum daily 

benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits for each day of such confinement; 
and

2. any other confinement, up to the maximum daily benefit shown in the 
Schedule of Benefits for each day of the Hospital Stay.

Miscellaneous Expenses – We will pay the Miscellaneous Expenses charged by a 
Hospital or ambulatory surgical center for outpatient surgery. Miscellaneous 
Expenses include, but are not limited to: X-ray; laboratory; in-Hospital 
physiotherapy; nurse services; orthopedic appliances; pre-admission tests; and 
all necessary charges other than room and board, for services received during a 
Hospital Stay.

Ambulatory Medical Center
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for medical or surgical treatment 
provided in a licensed facility that provides ambulatory surgical or medical 
treatment and is not a Hospital or Physician’s office.

Emergency Room Treatment
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for outpatient emergency room treatment 
performed in a Hospital, up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule of 
Benefits.  When emergency room treatment is immediately followed by 
admission to a Hospital, such treatment will be a Hospital Covered Expense.

Physician Services – We will pay Covered Expenses for Covered Expenses listed below.
Surgery
1. Covered Expenses charged for performing a surgical procedure. We will pay up to 100% of

the Maximum Benefit for a surgical procedure shown in the Schedule of Benefits; and
2. Covered Expenses charged by an assistant surgeon assisting a Physician performing a

surgical procedure
3. Covered Expenses charged for treatment of fractured and dislocated bones;

operations that involve cutting, incision and/or suturing of wounds; or any other surgical
procedure, including aftercare, which is given in the outpatient department of a Hospital or
an ambulatory surgical center

4. Any braces, splints or other devices required after surgery to ensure proper healing

Use of Physician’s Surgical Facilities – Covered Expenses charged for the use of a 
Physician’s surgical facilities.



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 21 of 24

Second Opinion or Consultation – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for a 
second surgical opinion or consultation. 

Physician’s Assistant – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician’s Assistant for other 
than pre-or post-operative care, second opinion or consultation: 
1. for in-Hospital visits; and 
2. for office visits. 

Anesthesia and its administration – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for 
anesthesia and its administration.

In-Hospital or Office Visits – Covered Expenses charged by a Physician for other than 
pre-or post-operative care, second opinion or consultation;
1. for in-Hospital visits; and
2. for office visits.

Outpatient X-ray, CT Scan, MRI and Laboratory tests
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred, when prescribed by a licensed Physician, 
for  X-ray except dental X-rays; CT Scans; MRI’s; and laboratory tests.

Outpatient Physiotherapy
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for outpatient physiotherapy, when prescribed 
by a licensed Physician, which includes:(a) acupuncture;(b) microthermy;(c) chiropractic
adjustment;(d) manipulation;(e) diathermy; (f) massage therapy;(g) heat treatment; and 
(h) ultrasound treatment.

Nursing Services
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for services other than routine Hospital care, 
rendered by a Nurse.

Ambulance Services
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for ground or air ambulance service to
transport a Covered Person from the place where a Covered Accident occurred to the 
nearest medically appropriate facility.  We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for 
ground or air ambulance transportation from the nearest medical facility to another 
appropriate medical facility if a Physician specifies in writing that specialized care not 
available in the first facility to which the Covered Person was transported is necessary to 
treat his injury.

Medical Equipment Rental
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for rental or, if less, for purchase of:
1. a wheelchair or hospital bed; or
2. other medical equipment that has permanent or temporary therapeutic value for the

Covered Person and that can only be used by him.  Permanent or therapeutic value is
determined solely by Us.  Examples of items that are not covered include but are not 
limited to: computers; motor vehicles and modifications thereof; and ramps and 
installation costs ; eyeglasses and hearing aids.

Medical Services and Supplies
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for:
1. blood and blood transfusions, including processing and administration; and
2. cost and administration of oxygen and other gasses.
We will not pay for storage of blood for any reason.

Dental Services
We will pay Covered Expense Incurred for dental treatment, including X-rays, for injury to 
a tooth:
1. with no fillings or cavities or only fillings or cavities that do not undermine the tooth 

cusps; and



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 22 of 24

2. for which pulpal tissues are healthy and intact; and
3. for which periodontal tissue shows little or no signs of active or chronic

inflammation.  For insurance review purposes, each tooth unit is evaluated under 
these criteria rather than a blanket rating of the whole mouth.

Covered Expenses include: examinations; X-rays; restorative treatment;
endodontics; oral surgery; initial braces required for treatment of an injury; and 
treatment of gingivitis resulting from trauma. 

Covered Expenses must be Incurred within the Benefit Period shown in the 
Schedule of Benefits. If there is more than one way to treat a dental problem, 
We will pay based on the least expensive procedure if that procedure meets 
commonly accepted standards of the American Dental Association.

We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for dental treatment by a noncontracting provider
dentist the same as We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for dental treatment by a
contracting provider dentist.

Prosthetic Devices
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for prosthetic devices, components of prosthetic
devices, and repairs of prosthetic devices.

Orthotic Devices
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for the purchase, repair or replacement of an Orthotic
Device required as a result of a Covered Accident.

Prescription Drugs
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for drugs that
1. can only be obtained through a Physician’s written prescription; and
2. are approved for such prescription use by the Federal Drug Administration

(FDA).
We will also pay Covered Expenses Incurred for drugs that meet (a) above and 
are prescribed by a Physician for therapeutic use not specifically approved by the 
FDA.  The Covered Expense for a prescription drug is limited to the cost of a 
generic drug unless substitution of a generic drug is prohibited by law, no generic 
drug is available, or the Covered Person’s Physician specifically request that a non-
generic drug be dispensed.

Home Health Care
We will pay Covered Expenses Incurred for care and treatment rendered to a 
Covered Person by a Home Health Care Agency, for the maximum number of 
Visits as shown in the Schedule of Benefits for:
1. part-time nursing care provided or supervised by a registered graduate nurse;
2. part-time Home Health Aide service which consists of caring for the patient;
3. physical, speech and occupational therapies when indicated in conjunction with the

Covered Person’s discharge placement through a rehabilitation facility approved by
his Physician and by Us;

4. nutritional counseling; and
5. medical social services by a qualified social worker licensed by the jurisdiction in

which services are rendered.

Home Health Care services must be preceded by a Minimum Hospital Stay and must 
begin within the specified number of consecutive days of discharge from a Hospital.  
The Minimum Hospital Stay and the number of days of confinement within which 
Home Health Care must begin are shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Excluded Expenses

None of the following will be considered Covered Expenses unless coverage is specifically provided.
1. Blood, blood plasma or blood storage except expenses by a Hospital for processing or



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 23 of 24

administration of blood.
2. cosmetic surgery or care, or treatment solely for cosmetic purposes, or complications 

therefrom.  This exclusion does not apply to: 
a cosmetic surgery resulting from an accident, if initial treatment of the Covered 

Person is begun within 12 months of the date of the Accident;
b reconstruction incidental to or following surgery resulting from a Covered 

Accident.
3. Any elective or routine: treatment; surgery; health treatment; or examinations; including

any service, treatment or supplies that are (a) deemed by Us to be experimental or
investigational; and (b) are not recognized and generally accepted medical practice in the 
United States.

4. Services or treatment provided by persons who do not normally charge for their services, 
unless there is a legal obligation to pay. 

5. Rest cures or custodial care.
6. Repair or replacement of: existing dentures; partial dentures; braces; or bridgework.
7. Personal services such as television and telephone, or transportation.
8. Expenses paid by any automobile insurance policy without regard to fault.
9. Services or treatment provided by an infirmary operated by the Policyholder or 

Subscriber.
10. Treatment of injuries that result over a period of time, such as blisters, tennis elbow, et al, 

that are a normal, foreseeable result of participation in the Covered Activity. 
11. Treatment or service provided by a private duty nurse.
12. Treatment of hernia of any kind.
13. Treatment of a Pre-existing condition as defined herein.

Other Exclusions that apply to this Benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section



PI-AH-BL-NSP001 (TX) Page 24 of 24

Accident Indemnity Benefits

ACCIDENT INDEMNITY BENEFITS

This Section describes the Accident Indemnity Benefits provided by this Policy.  Benefit 
amounts and any applicable time requirements and limitations are shown in the Schedule 
of Benefits.  Please read this and the Common Exclusions section in order to understand 
all of the terms, conditions and limitations applicable to these benefits.

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS 

Covered Loss  
We will pay the benefit for any one of the Covered Losses listed in the Schedule of Benefits, if 
the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting directly and independently of all other 
causes from a Covered Accident within the applicable time period specified in the Schedule of 
Benefits.

If the Covered Person sustains more than one Covered Loss as a result of the same Covered 
Accident, benefits will be paid for the Covered Loss for which the largest available benefit is 
payable. 

If a Covered Accident causes the Covered Person’s death, the total of all Benefits We will pay 
for Accidental Death and any other Covered Losses will not exceed the largest Benefit payable for a
Covered Loss.

Definitions
Loss of a Hand or Foot means complete Severance through or above the wrist or ankle
joint.

Loss of Sight means the total, permanent loss of all vision in one eye which is irrecoverable by
natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Speech means total and permanent loss of audible communication which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Hearing means total and permanent loss of ability to hear any sound in both ears which
is irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of a Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand or Four Fingers of the Same Hand
means complete Severance through or above the metacarpophalangeal joints of the same hand
(the joints between the fingers and the hand).

Paralysis or Paralyzed means total loss of use of a limb. A Physician must determine the loss of
use to be complete and irreversible.

Quadriplegia means total Paralysis of both upper and both lower limbs.

Paraplegia means total Paralysis of both lower limbs or both upper limbs.

Hemiplegia means total Paralysis of the upper and lower limbs on one side of the body.

Severance means the complete and permanent separation and dismemberment of the part from
the body.

Exclusions  The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.



PI-AH-GU-001 TX 1

PHILADELPHIA INDEMNITY INSURANCE COMPANY
Administrative Office: One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

800-873-4552

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE
TEXAS LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2011)

Texas law establishes a system to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health insurance company fails.
The Texas Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (“the Association”) administers this protection
system. Only the policyholders of insurance companies that are members of the Association are eligible for
this protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the Association law. (The law is
found in the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not protect all or part of your policy because of statutory
limitations.

Eligibility for Protection by the Association
When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides coverage
to policyholders who are:

· Residents of Texas (regardless of where the policyholder lived when the policy was issued)
· Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1. The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2. The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3. The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s state
of residence.

Limits of Protection by the Association

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
· For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance, or
$200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
· Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on a single life; or
· Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on a single life; or
· Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.

Individual Annuities:
· Present value of benefits up to a total of $250,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.

Group Annuities:
· Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $250,000 on any one life; or
· Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:

· $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000
multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

These limits are applied for each insolvent insurance company.



PI-AH-GU-001 TX 2

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you are
selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage. For additional
questions on Association protection or general information about an insurance company, please use
the following contact information.

Texas Life and Health Insurance Texas Department of Insurance
Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
515 Congress Avenue, Suite 1875 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78701 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.texas.gov
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org



PP 20 15 (2015)
PRIVACY POLICY NOTICE

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

The Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company (“PIIC” or "We") value(s) your privacy and we are committed to protecting personal information
that we collect during the course of our business relationship with you. The collection, use and disclosure of certain nonpublic personal
information are regulated by law. This notice is for your information only and requires no action on your part. It will inform you about the types of
information that we collect and how it may be disclosed. This does not reflect a change in the way we do business or handle your information.

INFORMATION THAT WE COLLECT:

We collect personal information about you from the following sources:
l Applications or other forms such as claims forms or underwriting questionnaires completed by you;
l Information about your transactions with us, our affiliates or others; and
l Depending on the type of transaction you are conducting with us, information may be collected from consumer reporting

agencies, health care providers, employers and other third parties in order to service your policy.

INFORMATION THAT WE DISCLOSE:

We will only disclose the information described above to affiliates and non-affiliated third parties, as permitted by law, and when necessary to
conduct our normal business activities.

For example, we may make disclosures to the following types of third parties:
l Your agent or broker (producer);
l Parties who perform a business, professional or insurance functions for our company, including our reinsurance companies;
l Independent claims adjusters, investigators, attorneys, other insurers or medical care providers who need information to investigate, defend or

settle a claim involving you;
l Regulatory agencies in connection with the regulation of our business; and
l Lienholders, mortgagees, lessors or other persons shown on our records as having a legal or beneficial interest in your policy.

We do not sell your information to others for marketing purposes. We do not disclose the personal information of persons who have ceased to be our
customers.

PROTECTION OF INFORMATION:

We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards that comply with state and federal regulations to protect the confidentiality of your
personal information. We also limit employee access to personally identifiable information to those with a business reason for knowing such
information.

USE OF COOKIES:

We may place electronic "cookies" in the browser files of your computer when you access this website. Cookies are text files placed on your
computer to enable our systems to recognize your browser and to tailor the information on our website to your interests. We or our third party service
providers or business partners may place cookies on your computer's hard drive to enable us to match personal information that we maintain about
you so that we are able to pre populate on-line forms with your information. We also use cookies to help us analyze use of our website to understand
which areas of our site are most useful to you. You may refuse the use of cookies by selecting the appropriate settings on your browser. Please note
that if you do this, you may not be able to use the full functionality of the website.

YOUR RIGHTS REGARDING YOUR INFORMATION:

You have the right to submit a written request for access to your recorded Personal Information. Within 30 business days of receipt of your request, we
must inform you of the nature and substance of your recorded Personal Information, permit you to view and copy it in person, or receive a copy by mail
of your recorded Personal Information, and receive names of persons or entities to whom we have disclosed Personal Information about you in the last
two years. There are some types of information, however, to which we are not required to give you access. Information collected for the evaluation of a
claim, or when the possibility of a lawsuit exists, will not be disclosed. If your records contain medical information, we may ask you to name a licensed
medical professional to whom we can send such information so that it may be properly explained. You may be charged a fee if we copy your Personal
Information for you.

You have the right to request that we correct, amend or delete any recorded Personal Information that you believe is inaccurate. Within 30 business
days of receipt of your request, we will correct, amend or delete the inaccurate recorded Personal Information or notify you the reason(s) that we are
unable to make the change. If you disagree with our decision, you have the right to submit a concise statement for your file setting forth the reasons you
disagree with us and/or the correct, relevant or fair information. If you request, we will provide you with a summary of our procedures by which you may
request correction, amendment or deletion of your recorded Personal Information.

If we use an independent consumer reporting agency or insurance-support organization to prepare a report on you, you have the right to be personally
interviewed by them. Information you give during an interview will be included in the report sent to us. If you wish to be interviewed, please tell us how
the agency or organization may contact you, and every effort will be made to interview you. Even if you are not interviewed, you have the further right to
request that the reporting agency or insurance-support organization provide you with a copy of the report it makes. Information obtained by a report
prepared by an insurance support organization may be retained by that organization and disclosed to other persons. Write us at the address in this
notice and we will give you the name and address of any agency or support organization we have used to prepare a report on you so that you can
contact them directly to find out more about that report.

CONTACT US:  Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company, One Bala Plaza, Suite 100, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004  ATTN: Chief Privacy Officer



PI-AH-BL-025 (TX) Page 1 of 2

CONSUMER DISCLOSURE AND CONSENT TO RECEIVE ELECTRONIC INSURANCE DOCUMENTS
(“CONSENT FORM”)

The Philadelphia Insurance Companies (we, us or Company) has been at the forefront of “going green”.
We even have a staff person whose sole responsibility is to promote “green” initiatives in the company
including ways employees can do more to promote “green” such as encouraging employees to volunteer
at “green” projects such as building and cleaning parks, planting trees, etc. One major way to “go green”
is to cut down on the amount of paper on which insurance policies are printed. You can help our efforts in
“going green” by agreeing to receive various insurance documents electronically. An advantage to you is
faster delivery of the documents and an easier way to store and search these documents. 

But for you to begin receiving the documents electronically, we are required to disclose certain information
to you and obtain your consent to receive the documents electronically. 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

l If you sign this Consent form for electronic delivery, it will apply to insurance policies, endorsements,
notices or other related documents (“documents”).

l You have the right to withdraw your consent to the electronic delivery of any document or other
changes to them at any time by sending an e-mail to the following e-mail address: AH@phly.com.
Your withdrawal of consent will be effective 45 days after the date that notice of your withdrawal of
consent is received by your agent. 

l If you want to change the e-mail address where electronic delivery of documents or other changes to
them is to be sent, please send an e-mail containing your new e-mail address for electronic delivery
to AH@phly.com. Any such change in your e-mail address where the delivery of such documents is
to be sent will be effective 45 days after the date that notice of your new e-mail address is received
by us or your agent.

l If you consent to the electronic delivery of the documents or other changes to them, you may request
that a paper copy of any such documents also be given to you.  Any such request must be made to
AH@phly.com. No fee will be charged for this request. 

l In order for you to be able to view and retain any such documents, you must have (a) a computer,
iPad, or other electronic device that has access to the internet; (b) a valid e-mail address;  (c) an
operational program installed on your computer, iPad, or other electronic device capable of receiving
e-mail; (d) an operational program installed on your computer, iPad, or other electronic device that
will permit you to view a document in Adobe Acrobat Reader; and (e) a hard drive, thumb drive,
or other device included within or attached to your computer, iPad, or other electronic device to
which a document in the above format may be permanently downloaded. We will notify you if these
requirements change.

If you sign this Consent form, we will send you an e-mail to the address you provide in the Consent form
confirming your acceptance to having the documents described above sent to you electronically at the e-
mail address you provided. You must confirm acceptance by responding to the e-mail.

Requesting Paper Copies
We will not send you a paper copy of any communication or document, unless you request it.
However, at any time, you may request a paper copy, without charge, of any communication or
document provided or made available electronically to you by contacting us as follows:



PI-AH-BL-025 (TX) Page 2 of 2

Mail your request to: Philadelphia Insurance Companies
P O Box 950
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004-0950
Please include the policy number in your communication.

E-mail your request to: AH@phly.com

You may also obtain a paper copy of any electronic communication we send to you by downloading and
printing the document from your computer. 

Acknowledging Your Access and Consent to Receive Communications Electronically
To confirm that you are able to access and view documents electronically, please verify that you are able
to read and print this electronic disclosure or electronically save this page for future reference or that you
are able to e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print or save it for
your future reference and access.

If you consent to receive notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format in accordance with the
terms and conditions described above, please let us know by clicking the “I Accept” button. By clicking the
“I Accept” button, you confirm that:

You can access and read this Consent Form. You are able to print it or save it and send it to a place
where you can print it and until you notify the Philadelphia Insurance Companies otherwise as described
above, you consent to receive written notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements,
communications, and documents exclusively in electronic format during the course of our relationship.

We will send you an e-mail to confirm that you can receive documents electronically at the e-mail address
that you provide to us. You will need to confirm receipt of the e-mail by clicking on the link in the e-mail.
Once you do that and electronically sign this document, we will begin sending your insurance policies,
endorsements and other documents to you electronically by e-mail. And you will have the satisfaction of
knowing that you have helped our efforts in “going green”. 

My e-mail address:  _________________________________



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 6.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. CRUMLEY

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize Building Maintenance to replace the 2-ton HVAC unit at the Kyle WIC building in the amount of $11,905.18 and
amend the budget accordingly. C OH EN /T.C R U MLEYC OH EN /T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
The 2-ton HVAC unit at the Kyle WIC building has failed and can no longer be repaired. Under contract RFP 2024-P06, SI
Mechanical has submitted a proposal to replace the unit with a new 2-ton Trane AHU. Funding has been identified in the
Building Maintenance FY24 operating budget.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $11,905.18
Line Item Number: 001-695-00.5719_700

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$11,906 - Increase Misc. Equipment_Capital 001-695-00.5719_700
($11,906) - Decrease Contract Services 001-695-00.5448

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Request for Proposal (RFP) 2024-P06 HVAC - Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services, Countywide

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
SI Mechanical Quote
Unit Spec Sheet



TACLA00045892C

M-40867
To: BuyBoard# 733-24

Attn:

Re: Hays Co Kyle WIC AHU Changeout

Labor Hours Rate

Journeyman…..........32 $115.00 Equipment and Materials…............$5,185.18 Rental(s)….........$0.00 Hours…............. -$              

Apprentice...............................32 $95.00 Tools…............... $0.00 Subs/Crane….............$0.00 Rate…............ -$              

Total….....................................$6,720.00 Total…............... $5,185.18 Total…................$0.00 Total…................ -$              

HVAC/Plumbing Work: ………………………………………………….......................................................……............$11,905.18

Tax 8.25% $0.00

Total Price $11,905.18

2.  Run insulated refrigerant lineset to new unit location.

3.  New T-stat included.

4.  Re-use existing wall penetration for Refrigerant Lineset. Re-seal with waterproof adhesive.

5.  New supply/return main included. Replace damged flex duct and connect to new mains. 

6.  New unit to be installed in storage closet rather than attic space. 

7.  Startup unit and verify all operations.

8.  Clean up work area.

9. Owner to provide access through ceiling.

1.  Sales tax included.

6.  No coring, scanning, cutting, patching or concrete work.

7.  No removal of walls or ceiling to access "the work". No sheetrock demo or install included.

Alec Jasik
Project Manager Signed:

210-289-7584

alecj@simechanical.com

4.  No dumpsters or haul off.

8.  No structural steel framing or roofing.

Sincerely,

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on your project.  This pricing is valid for 30 days from the date on the 

proposal.   If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to give us a call.

1.  Furnish and install (1) 2-ton Trane AHU. Model no: TEM6A0B30H21S

5.  No fire alarm or smoke detectors.

10.  No other repairs are in this proposal other then listed above.

2.  All work performed during normal hours.

This proposal is conditional upon the following terms and conditions:

Acceptance of Proposal:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are 

hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified.

3.  No electrical of any kind. New disconnect and high voltage to be perfored by others. 

We propose to install the follow HVAC / PLUMBING work as outlined below.

Scope of Work:

Bid Clarifications:

9.  No temporary facilities or temporary air.

Rentals / Subcontractors

July 12, 2024

Hays County Maintenance Department

Chris Deichman

Proposal

Incured CostMaterials & Tools 

Regulated by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation,  PO Box 12157,  Austin, Texas 78711,  (800) 803-9202    

http://www.license.state.tx.us/      

mailto:alecj@simechanical.com


13.  SI Mechancal, LLC will make every effort to locate and avoid building utilities.  It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to provide reference drawings and locate all 

hidden utilities in and around the work site.  SI Mechanical relies on this information to execute the work.  Damages to unmarked and unforseen building utilities is the 

responsibility of the Customer.     

14.  SI Mechanical, LLC does not accept consequencial damages or liquidated damges unless agreed to in writing.

The entire liability of S I Mechanical, LLC and client’s exclusive remedy for damages from any cause in connection with the work, including, but not limited to, 

nonperformance or misrepresentation, and regardless of the form of action, shall be limited to the annual Agreement fee of the current year.

5. This contract constitutes the entire agreement and is not assignable by either party.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written agreement of both 

parties. S I Mechanical, LLC is inclusive of it's affiliated companies.

6. S I Mechanical, LLC and it's affiliated companies shall not be responsible to customer or anyone else for the system design or its performance in maintaining design 

conditions.

7. The Heating, Ventilation, and Air-Conditioning equipment and systems installed, repaired or serviced as a part of this agreement may, under certain conditions, become 

conducive to or incidentally support microbiological growth.  S I Mechanical, LLC makes no claim nor warrants its work to protect against, eliminate or inhibit any type of 

microbiological growth, including but not limited to, molds, fungi and other related matter, in or around duct systems, HVAC and related equipment or areas adjacent to or in 

proximity of such systems and equipment.

12. S I Mechanical, LLC shall comply with it's affirmative action, environmental and safety policies as mandated by the government.

11. If S I Mechanical, LLC encounters asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)_) on the site, S I Mechanical, LLC will stop work and report the evidence of such to the 

customer.  S I Mechanical, LLC will not resume work in the affected area until the asbestos or PCB has been removed or determined harmless by a qualified laboratory.

9. Some projects require the use of heavy commercial hoisting or rigging equipment.  While all precautions will be exercised to protect the customer’s property.  S I 

Mechanical, LLC will not accept any responsibility for damage to parking lots, driveways, or landscaping that may occur as a result of normal hoisting and rigging operations, 

excluding negligence or accidents.

10. Unless indicated otherwise, all pricing is based upon work being performed during regular working hours of 8:00am to 4:30 pm, Monday through Friday, except holidays.  

If work is required at times other than normal working hours, the customer agrees to pay the difference between the regular and overtime charge.

1. Customer agrees to pay S I Mechanical, LLC all sums due with respect to this proposal in accordance with the terms specified.  Payments are due upon receipt of invoice.  

In the event payment is not received by S I Mechanical, LLC by the tenth day of the month following billing, such payment shall be considered past due.  If default is made in 

payment of any sums due hereunder and it becomes necessary that this Agreement be placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, customer agrees to pay to S I 

Mechanical, LLC all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fee.  S I Mechanical, LLC shall have the right to cancel this Agreement at any time, upon (5) day’s 

written notice, if payments are called for herein are not made.

2. Cancellation Clause: This agreement can only be cancelled by customer upon a 30-day written notice.  If in the event the customer cancels this agreement S I Mechanical, 

LLC will be due the balance of the annual contract for the current contract year or the cost plus profit incurred year to date, which ever is lesser of the two.

8. Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, S I Mechanical, LLC, its officers, directors, agents, assigns, successors and employees from any against any 

and all claims of damages or injury, of any kind or nature whatsoever, including claims of property damage or personal injury, due to any such microbiological growth in or 

emanating from any of the customer’s HVAC equipment or HVAC systems.

3. Customer waives any and every claim which arises in its favor and against S I Mechanical, LLC during the term of this Agreement for any all loss of, or damage to, any of 

its property, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible fire and extended coverage insurance policies, general liability policies, and workmen’s compensation 

policies, to the extent that such loss or damage is recoverable under said insurance policies and such loss is not the result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of S I 

Mechanical, LLC or failure of S I Mechanical, LLC to comply with the terms of this agreement.

4. It is agreed that S I Mechanical, LLC shall have no liability to customer or to customer’s agents, servants, or employees or to any third parties for injuries to persons, or 

damage to property directly or indirectly resulting from the failure of any equipment or due to any other cause whatsoever, other than the gross negligence or willful 

misconduct of S I Mechanical, LLC, and customer agrees to indemnify S I Mechanical, LLC and hold it harmless from any loss, claim, damage, or expense, including 

attorney’s fees, arising out of any such damage or injury.   S I Mechanical, LLC shall not be liable for any lost rents, income, or profits nor any indirect, remote, special, or 

consequential damages from whatever cause and howsoever the same may arise, nor for any delay, loss damage, or injury caused by acts of God, labor disturbances, non-

delivery, or unavailability of manpower or material, or any other event beyond S I Mechanical, LLC's control.  S I Mechanical, LLC agrees to indemnify customer and hold it 

harmless from any loss, claim, damage or injury caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of S I Mechanical, LLC.

Regulated by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation,  PO Box 12157,  Austin, Texas 78711,  (800) 803-9202    

http://www.license.state.tx.us/      



March 2022 TTEEMM66AA00BB3300--SSUUBB--11FF--EENN

Variable Speed Convertible Air Handler
2–1/2 Ton
TEM6A0B30H21SC

NNoottee:: The TEM6 series air handler is designed for installation in a closet, utility
room, alcove, basement, crawlspace or attic. These versatile units are
applicable to air conditioning and heat pump applications. Several models
are available to meet the specific requirements of the outdoor equipment.
Field installed electric resistance heaters are available.

Submittal



2 TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN

Outline Drawing

DWG D806626 

NOTE: THIS UNIT IS APPROVED FOR INSTALLATION 
CLEARANCES TO COMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL AS
STATED ON THE UNIT RATING NAMEPLATE 

PRODUCT DIMENSIONS

Air Handler Model A B C D E F H Flow
Control

Gas Line
Braze

TEM6A0B30H21SC 46.77 18.50 16.50 16.75 4.68 7.33 20.09 TXV 3/4

All dimensions are in inches



TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN 3

Product Specifications

MODEL TEM6A0B30H21SC

RATED VOLTS/PH/HZ 208-230/1/60

RATINGS(a) See O.D. Specifications

INDOOR COIL — Type Plate Fin

Rows — F.P.I. 4 - 14

Face Area (sq. ft.) 3.44

Tube Size (in.) 3/8

Refrigerant Control TXV

Drain Conn. Size (in.)(b) 3/4 NPT

DUCT CONNECTIONS See Outline Drawing

INDOOR FAN— Type Centrifugal

Diameter-Width (In.) 11 X 8

No. Used 1

Drive - No. Speeds Direct - 16

CFM vs. in. w.g. See Fan Performance Table

No. Motors — H.P. 1 - 1/2

Motor Speed R.P.M. Variable

Volts/Ph/Hz 208-230/1/60

F.L. Amps 4.3

FILTER

Filter Furnished? (c) No

REFRIGERANT R-410A

Ref. Line Connections Brazed

Coupling or Conn. Size —
in. Gas 3/4

Coupling or Conn. Size —
in. Liq. 3/8

DIMENSIONS H x W x D

Crated (In.) 48–1/4 x 22–1/2 x 25–1/2

Uncrated 46-3/4 x 18-1/2 x 21-1/8

WEIGHT

Shipping (Lbs.) / Net (Lbs.) 126/117

(a) These Air Handlers are A.H.R.I certified with various Split System Air
Conditioners and Heat Pumps (AHRI STANDARD 210/240). Refer to
the Split System Outdoor Unit Product Data Guides for performance
data.

(b) 3/4” Male Plastic Pipe (Ref: ASTM 1785–76)
(c) Remote filter required.



4 TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN

Minimum Airflow CFM
TEM6A0B30H21SC

Heater MinimumHeater Airflow CFM
With Heat Pump Without Heat Pump

BAYHTR1504BRK, BAYHTR1504LUG
BAYHTR1505BRK, BAYHTR1505LUG 660 500

BAYHTR1508BRK, BAYHTR1508LUG 780 600

BAYHTR1510BRK, BAYHTR1510LUG 780 600

BAYHTR1517BRK 1050 850
BAYHTR3510LUG 780 600
BAYHTR3517LUG 900 850

TEM6A0B30H21SC Airflow Performance with Auxiliary Heat

Airflow Settings
Dip Switch Settings

Nominal Airflow
See following tables for
heater application:
- Pressure Drop for
Electrical Heaters
- Minimum Heating
Airflow Matrix (on unit

nameplates)

Switch 7 Switch 8

Low ON ON 601

Med-Lo OFF ON 661

Med-Hi ON OFF 781

High OFF OFF 973



TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN 5

Heater Pressure Drop Table

Airflow
CFM

Number of Racks Heater Racks

1 2 3 4 Heater Model No. of Racks

Air Pressure Drop — Inches W.G. BAYHTR1504 1

1800 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.14 BAYHTR1505 1

1700 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.14 BAYHTR1508 2

1600 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.13 BAYHTR1510 2

1500 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.12 BAYHTR1517 3

1400 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.12 BAYHTR3510 3

1300 0.02 0.04 0.05 0.11 BAYHTR3517 3

1200 0.01 0.04 0.05 0.10 BAYHTR1523 4

1100 0.01 0.03 0.05 0.09 BAYHTR1525 4

1000 0.01 0.03 0.04 0.09

900 0.01 0.03 0.04 0.08

800 0.01 0.03

700 0.01 0.02

600 0.01 0.02

Subcooling Adjustment
SystemMatched with: Indoor Unit Model No. Outdoor Model No. Subcooling

16 SEER HP — 2 ton TEM6A0C36H31 4TWR6024H1000A
4TWX6024H1000A
4A6H6024H1000A

13 Degrees

15 SEER HP — 2 ton TEM6A0B24H21
TEM6A0B30H21

4TWR5024G1000A
4A6H5024G1000A

14 Degrees

15 SEER HP — 3 ton TEM6A0B30H21
TEM6A0C36H31
TEM6A0C42H41

4TWR5036G1000A
4A6H5036G1000A

14 Degrees

All other matches must be charged per the nameplate charging instructions



6 TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN

Performance and Electrical Data
Table 1. Air Flow Performance

TEM6A0B30H21SC COOLING AIRFLOW PERFORMANCE,WET COIL, NO FILTER, NO HEATER
OUTDOOR
UNIT SIZE
(TONS)

SPEED
SETTING

AIRFLOW
SETTING

DIP SWITCH SETTING AIRFLOW
POWER

EXTERNAL STATIC PRESSURE

SW1 SW2 SW3 SW4 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9

1.5

LOW 353 CFM/
ton ON ON OFF ON CFM

Watts
533
52

497
78

461
104

425
130

390
157

NORMAL 401 CFM/
ton ON ON OFF OFF CFM

Watts
611
65

580
95

548
125

517
155

486
185

HIGH 451 CFM/
ton ON ON ON OFF CFM

Watts
684
81

668
115

644
148

611
182

570
215

2

LOW 343 CFM/
ton OFF ON OFF ON CFM

Watts
687
82

672
115

648
149

614
182

571
215

NORMAL 390 CFM/
ton OFF ON OFF OFF CFM

Watts
789
104

798
145

780
183

735
216

663
246

HIGH 439 CFM/
ton OFF ON ON OFF CFM

Watts
884
135

887
177

882
230

845
274

751
290

2.5

LOW 300 CFM/
ton ON OFF OFF ON CFM

Watts
752
92

749
123

729
167

691
211

636
241

NORMAL 340 CFM/
ton ON OFF OFF OFF CFM

Watts
859
128

861
172

863
211

830
242

727
268

HIGH 383 CFM/
ton ON OFF ON OFF CFM

Watts
963
172

973
223

995
263

967
291

844
308

3
LOW 310 CFM/

ton OFF OFF OFF ON CFM
Watts

913
119

947
172

962
233

938
297

883
364

NORMAL
(a)

330 CFM/
ton OFF OFF OFF OFF CFM

Watts
967
138

1004
194

1022
258

1000
326

947
397

(a) Factory Default Setting

Table 2. Air Flow Performance

TEM6A0B30H21SC HEATING AIRFLOW PERFORMANCE, NO FILTER, NO HEATER
OUTDOOR
UNIT SIZE
(TONS)

SPEED
SETTING

AIRFLOW
SETTING

DIP SWITCH SETTING AIRFLOW
POWER

EXTERNAL STATIC PRESSURE

SW1 SW2 SW3 SW4 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.9

1.5

LOW 394 CFM/
ton ON ON OFF ON CFM

Watts
599
58

571
88

539
117

502
146

462
175

NORMAL 448 CFM/
ton ON ON OFF OFF CFM

Watts
680
72

665
109

641
145

610
178

572
209

HIGH 493 CFM/
ton ON ON ON OFF CFM

Watts
748
89

746
118

682
163

545
208

326
240

2

LOW 393 CFM/
ton OFF ON OFF ON CFM

Watts
785
97

790
128

773
175

735
223

674
253

NORMAL 446 CFM/
ton OFF ON OFF OFF CFM

Watts
904
131

902
179

912
219

894
253

809
281

HIGH 491 CFM/
ton OFF ON ON OFF CFM

Watts
980
167

972
216

990
268

974
308

863
324

2.5

LOW 350 CFM/
ton ON OFF OFF ON CFM

Watts
866
125

870
162

866
215

833
263

750
286

NORMAL 398 CFM/
ton ON OFF OFF OFF CFM

Watts
995
171

988
222

1005
271

986
309

872
325

HIGH 437 CFM/
ton ON OFF ON OFF CFM

Watts
1099
220

1086
274

1098
328

1065
362

918
353

3
LOW 325 CFM/

ton OFF OFF OFF ON CFM
Watts

953
133

990
188

1007
251

985
318

931
389

NORMAL
(a)

346 CFM/
ton OFF OFF OFF OFF CFM

Watts
1010
154

1049
212

1066
279

1047
350

1000
426

(a) Factory Default Setting



TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN 7

Table 3. Electrical Data

TEM6A0B30H21SC HEATER DATA

Heater Model No.
No. of
Circuits/
Phases

240 Volt 208 Volt
Capacity Heater

Amps per
Circuit

Minimum
Circuit
Ampacity

Maximum
Overload
Protection

Capacity Heater
Amps per
Circuit

Minimum
Circuit
Ampacity

Maximum
Overload
ProtectionkW BTUH kW BTUH

No Heater 4.3 * 5 15 4.3 * 5 15
BAYHTR1504BRK
BAYHTR1504LUG 1/1 3.84 13100 16.0 25 25 2.88 9800 13.8 23 25

BAYHTR1505BRK
BAYHTR1505LUG 1/1 4.80 16400 20.0 30 30 3.60 12300 17.3 27 30

BAYHTR1508BRK
BAYHTR1508LUG 1/1 7.68 26200 32.0 45 45 5.76 19700 27.7 40 40

BAYHTR1510BRK
BAYHTR1510LUG 1/1 9.60 32800 40.0 55 60 7.20 24600 34.6 49 50

BAYHTR1517BRK
Circuit 1 (a)

2/1
9.60 32800 40.0 55 60 7.20 24600 34.6 49 50

BAYHTR1517BRK
Circuit 2 4.80 16400 20.0 25 25 3.60 12300 17.3 22 25

BAYHTR3510LUG 1/3 9.60 32800 23.1 34 35 7.20 24600 20.0 30 30

BAYHTR3517LUG 1/3 14.40 49100 34.6 48 50 10.80 36900 30.0 42 45

* = Motor Amps
(a) MCA and MOP for circuit 1 contains the motor amps

Features and Benefits
• Painted metal cabinet with captured foil face
insulation

• 2% or less air leakage

• R-4.2 Insulating Value

• Multi-Position UP/Down Flow, Horizontal Left /Right

• ALL Aluminum Coil

• Electric Heaters with polarized plug connections
(sold as accessory)

• R-410A Thermal Expansion Valve

• Variable Speed ECMMotor

• Low Voltage Pigtail Connections

• Draw Through Design

• Horizontal Drain Pan

• Single Color

• Fused 24V Power

• 33 yyeeaarr wwaarrrraannttyy

• 1100--yyeeaarr wwaarrrraannttyy rreeggiisstteerreedd

• OOppttiioonnaall eexxtteennddeedd wwaarrrraannttyy aavvaaiillaabbllee

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee aanndd EElleeccttrriiccaall DDaattaa

1. See Product Data or Air Handler nameplate for approved combinations of Air Handlers and Heaters.
2. Heater model numbers may have additional suffix digits.



About Trane and American Standard Heating and Air Conditioning
Trane and American Standard create comfortable, energy efficient indoor environments for residential applications. For
more information, please visit www.trane.com or www.americanstandardair.com.

The manufacturer has a policy of continuous data improvement and it reserves the right to change design and specifications without notice. We are committed to
using environmentally conscious print practices.

TEM6A0B30-SUB-1F-EN 09 Mar 2022

Supersedes TEM6A0B30-SUB-1E-EN (April 2020) ©2022



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 7.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. CRUMLEY

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the execution of a Security One, Inc. work order in the amount of $533.00 for the installation of an external
antenna and cable extension at the Yarrington location. IN GALSBE/T.C R U MLEYIN GALSBE/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
Security One connection to the Yarrington Building for fire and security alarms continually drop due to poor signal strength.
Security One would like to install an external antenna and cable extension to help boost the cell communicator signal
pursuant to the Master Service Agreement. Funding for this has been identified in the Building Maintenance FY24 operating
budget. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $533
Line Item Number: 001-695-00.5451
 

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Master Service Agreement, Commissioners Court approval 5.21.24

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes, Building Maintenance and Repair Expense
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Security One - Work Order





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 8.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. CRUMLEY

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes and the execution of a Dunn Wright Heating and Cooling
estimate in the amount of $43,000.00 for the replacement of Computer Room Air Conditioning (CRAC) Unit #3 located at
the Government Center and amend the budget accordingly. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
The Computer Room Air Conditioning (CRAC) Unit #3 at the Government Center has failed. A replacement is required in
order to maintain and regulate the temperature and humidity levels in the IT server room. Building Maintenance secured a
quote from SI Mechanical under RFP 2024-P06 in the amount of $56,858.00.  Per the RFP contract, we are allowed to
request quotes from other vendors for any quoted work that exceeds $10k.  Therefore, a second quote was secured from
another vendor in an effort to get the best price. The second quote is from Dunn Wright Heating and Cooling, and they
submitted a quote for the replacement in the amount of $43,000.  Countywide Operations is requesting a waiver to the
purchasing policy requiring three quotes due to the immediate need of the replacement. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $43,000
Line Item Number: 170-657-00.5719_700

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: Infrastructure Improvement Fee Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Recommend utilizing the Infrastructure Improvement Fee Fund for this unanticipated equipment replacement. 
$43,000 - Increase Misc. Equipment_Capital 170-657-00.5719_700
($43,000) - Decrease Misc. Capital Improvements 170-657-00.5741

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: No
Comments: waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Dunn Wright Quote
SI Mechanical Quote









AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 9.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Approve out-of-state travel for William Baumann GIS Specialist with the Office of Emergency Services to attend the Tyler
Technologies Fall Advisory Board Meetings on September 10-13, 2024 in Troy, Michigan and amend the budget
accordingly.   IN GALSBE/SH ELL/MIKE JON ES IN GALSBE/SH ELL/MIKE JON ES 

Summary:Summary:
Out-of-state travel is needed to send William Baumann to attend the Tyler Advisory Board Meeting on September 10-13,
2024 in Troy, Michigan. William is a member of the Tyler New World Advisory Board.. Funding for travel expenses,
including airfare, hotel, meals, and rental car will be paid for by the Office of Emergency Services existing funds. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,500 (estimate)
Line Item Number: 001-656-00.5551

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$1,500 - Increase Continuing Education 001-656-00.5551
($1,500) - Decrease Software Maintenance 001-656-00.5429

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: travel expenses must follow purchasing policy guidelines

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Tyler Advisory



8495
Highlight

8495
Highlight



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 10.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Office of Emergency Services to accept a proposal from ESRI Indoor Mapping; authorize a discretionary
exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Ch. 262.024(a)(7)(D) and amend the budget
accordingly. BEC ER R A/MIKE JON ESBEC ER R A/MIKE JON ES

Summary:Summary:
The Office of Emergency Services requests approval to process payment of $3,921.23 for ESRI Indoor Mapping with
existing funds for the prorated amount due for FY24.   

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $3,921.23
Line Item Number: 001-656-00.5429

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$3,922 - Increase Software Maintenance 001-656-00.5429
($3,922) - Decrease Software_Capital 001-656-00.5718_700

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Ch. 262.024(a)(7)(D)

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
ESRI Quote
Discretionary Exemption Certification



 Quotation # Q-525055
 
Date: June 20, 2024

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
380 New York St
Redlands, CA 92373-8100
Phone: (909) 793-2853       
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175    CAGE Code: 0AMS3

 Customer # 15381      Contract # ENTERPRISE
AGREEMENT
 
County of Hays
Development Services Dept
2171 Yarrington Rd Ste 100
Kyle, TX 78640-6657

   
To expedite your order, please attach a copy of  ATTENTION: Will Baumann
this quotation to your purchase order.  PHONE: (512) 393-2160
Quote is valid from: 6/20/2024  To: 9/18/2024  EMAIL: will.baumann@co.hays.tx.us

 

Material Qty Unit Price Total

181071 1 $11,450.00 $11,450.00

ArcGIS Indoors Maps for ArcGIS Online Annual Subscription

 Subtotal: $11,450.00  

Sales Tax: $0.00  

Estimated Shipping and Handling (2 Day Delivery): $0.00  

Contract Price Adjust: $0.00  

 Total: $11,450.00  

 
 
The licenses will be pro-rated at time of order to match your existing ArcGIS Online term end date. The estimated pro-rated value from
6/21/24 to 10/23/24 is approximately $3921.23.
 
 

 
Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program.

For questions contact:
Erin Fair

Email:
efair@esri.com

Phone:
(909) 793-2853 x1263

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document
found at  https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri’s standard terms and conditions found at https://go.esri.com/MAPS apply to your
purchase of that item. If any item is quoted with a multi-year payment schedule, then unless otherwise stated in this quotation, Customer is required
to make all payments without right of cancellation. Third-party data sets included in a quotation as separately licensed items will only be provided
and invoiced if Esri is able to provide such data and will be subject to the applicable third-party's terms and conditions. If Esri is unable to provide
any such data set, Customer will not be responsible for any further payments for the data set. US Federal government entities and US government
prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of Esri’s GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and
conditions found at https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply to some US state and local government purchases. All terms
of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement regarding Esri’s offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is
limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer,
or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation information is confidential and may not be copied or released
other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The information may not be given to outside parties or used for any
other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin for customers located in the USA.

FAIRE This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein.  

https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf
https://go.esri.com/MAPS
https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental
8495
Highlight

8495
Highlight

8495
Highlight



 Quotation # Q-525055
 
Date: June 20, 2024

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
380 New York St
Redlands, CA 92373-8100
Phone: (909) 793-2853       
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175    CAGE Code: 0AMS3

 Customer # 15381      Contract # ENTERPRISE
AGREEMENT
 
County of Hays
Development Services Dept
2171 Yarrington Rd Ste 100
Kyle, TX 78640-6657

   
To expedite your order, please attach a copy of  ATTENTION: Will Baumann
this quotation to your purchase order.  PHONE: (512) 393-2160
Quote is valid from: 6/20/2024  To: 9/18/2024  EMAIL: will.baumann@co.hays.tx.us

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
If you have made ANY alterations to the line items included in this quote and have chosen to sign the quote to indicate your acceptance, you must fax
Esri the signed quote in its entirety in order for the quote to be accepted. You will be contacted by your Customer Service Representative if additional
information is required to complete your request.
 
If your organization is a US Federal, state, or local government agency; an educational facility; or a company that will not pay an invoice without having
issued a formal purchase order, a signed quotation will not be accepted unless it is accompanied by your purchase order.
 
In order to expedite processing, please reference the quotation number and any/all applicable Esri contract number(s) (e.g. MPA, ELA, SmartBuy, GSA,
BPA) on your ordering document.
 
BY SIGNING BELOW, YOU CONFIRM THAT YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE FUNDS FOR YOUR ORGANIZATION, AND YOU ARE AUTHORIZING
ESRI TO ISSUE AN INVOICE FOR THE ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE ABOVE QUOTE IN THE AMOUNT OF $___________, PLUS SALES TAXES IF
APPLICABLE. DO NOT USE THIS FORM IF YOUR ORGANIZATION WILL NOT HONOR AND PAY ESRI'S INVOICE WITHOUT ADDITIONAL AUTHORIZING
PAPERWORK.
 
Please check one of the following:
 
___ I agree to pay any applicable sales tax.
 
___ I am tax exempt, please contact me if exempt information is not currently on file with Esri.
 
 
 
___________________________________________        ________________________
Signature of Authorized Representative                           Date
 
___________________________________________
Name (Please Print)
 
___________________________________________
Title
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
The quotation information is proprietary and may not be copied or released other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. This information may not be given to outside
parties or used for any other purpose without consent from Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (Esri).
 
Any estimated sales and/or use tax reflected on this quote has been calculated as of the date of this quotation and is merely provided as a convenience for your organization's budgetary purposes. Esri
reserves the right to adjust and collect sales and/or use tax at the actual date of invoicing. If your organization is tax exempt or pays state tax directly, then prior to invoicing, your organization must provide
Esri with a copy of a current tax exemption certificate issued by your state's taxing authority for the given jurisdiction.

 
Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program.

For questions contact:
Erin Fair

Email:
efair@esri.com

Phone:
(909) 793-2853 x1263

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document
found at  https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri’s standard terms and conditions found at https://go.esri.com/MAPS apply to your
purchase of that item. If any item is quoted with a multi-year payment schedule, then unless otherwise stated in this quotation, Customer is required
to make all payments without right of cancellation. Third-party data sets included in a quotation as separately licensed items will only be provided
and invoiced if Esri is able to provide such data and will be subject to the applicable third-party's terms and conditions. If Esri is unable to provide
any such data set, Customer will not be responsible for any further payments for the data set. US Federal government entities and US government
prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of Esri’s GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and
conditions found at https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply to some US state and local government purchases. All terms
of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement regarding Esri’s offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is
limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer,
or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation information is confidential and may not be copied or released
other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The information may not be given to outside parties or used for any
other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin for customers located in the USA.

FAIRE This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein.  

https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf
https://go.esri.com/MAPS
https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental


 
HAYS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 
Stephanie Hunt, Purchasing Agent 

712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 ● San Marcos, Texas 78666 
512-393-2267 ● purchasing@co.hays.tx.us 

 

 
 
Hays County Commissioners Court 
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (ESRI) 
July 30, 2024 
 
Attn: County Clerk 
 
As per requirements to authorize a discretionary exemption per Texas Local Government Code 
262.024(a)(7)(D), the Hays County Emergency Services and Purchasing Office recognizes 
Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (ESRI) as a sole source provider to provide 
captive replacement parts or components for use of ESRI ArcGIS products and services 
countywide.   
 
 
 

Stephanie Hunt 
Stephanie Hunt  
Purchasing Agent 
 
 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 11.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Office of Emergency Services Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) to utilize $1,279.00 in training
savings to purchase 1 Ruth Lee Training Manikin from CPR Savers and amend the budget accordingly. BEC ER R A/MIKEBEC ER R A/MIKE
JON ESJON ES

Summary:Summary:
The Community Emergency Response Team is requesting court approval to utilize these funds to purchase 1 Ruth Lee
Fire/Rescue Gen 2 standard training manikin (110 lbs) to use during CERT training and continuing education classes. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,279.00
Line Item Number: 001-656-98-313.5719_400

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$1,279 - Increase Misc. Equipment_Operating 001-656-98-313.5719_400
($1,279) - Decrease Continuing Education 001-656-98-313.5551

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Obtained three quotes

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Manikin









AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 12.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. CRUMLEY/PACHECO

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Authorize the execution of a contract amendment to the Texas Water Development Board, Flood Infrastructure Fund grant
contract.    SMITH /T.C R U MLEY/PAC H EC OSMITH /T.C R U MLEY/PAC H EC O

SummarySummary
Due to delays with the updated hydrology study being conducted by the City of Austin, the completion of the Hays County
portion of the Onion Creek watershed study will be delayed. This study is being funded by a Flood Infrastructure Fund grant
through the Texas Water Development Board. This grant amendment changes the contract expiration date from October 1,
2024 to August 30, 2026 to allow for the work to be completed. There is no change to the grant award amount or
deliverables required. The contract was originally executed on June 28, 2021.

Grant Number G1001285

AttachmentsAttachments
Amendment 2



STATE OF TEXAS TWDB Commitment No. G1001285 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
 and 
 
 HAYS COUNTY 
 
 AMENDMENT NO. 2 
 
This Contract made and entered on June 28, 2021, and subsequently amended on December 
14, 2022, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
1. Section I, Article I, DEFINITIONS, Items 12 and 13 are amended to read as follows: 

 
12. PROJECT COMPLETION DATE – December 31, 2025. 
13. CONTRACT EXPIRATION DATE – August 30, 2026. 

 
All other terms and conditions of the TWDB Contract for Commitment No. G1001285 remain in 
effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto cause this Amendment to be duly executed. 
 

TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 Bryan McMath 
 Interim Executive Administrator 
  
 
Date: ______________________ 
 

HAYS COUNTY 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
      Judge Ruben Becerra 
      Hays County Judge 
 
 
Date: ___________________________ 

  

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 4D6945F6-B83A-4B95-A0CB-38F75BC363B2



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 13.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. CRUMLEY/JONES

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Authorize the execution of grant documents associated with the Texas Department of Emergency Management, State
Public Assistance, Windy Duece Fire program.    BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY/JON ES BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY/JON ES

SummarySummary
Texas Intrastate Fire Mutual Aid System is offering reimbursement for Will Bauman (GIS Specialist - Office of Emergency
Management) who traveled to assist with the Windy Duece Fire Situation in the panhandle. Reimbursement will be
completed through the Texas Department of Emergency Management (TDEM). Grant Terms and Conditions must be
signed in order to move forward.

AttachmentsAttachments
Reimbursement Guide
Terms and Conditions



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
STATE MUTUAL AID 

REIMBURSEMENT GUIDE 



1  

Table of Contents 
Purpose .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Authority ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Submission Information ..................................................................................................................... 2 

Submission Points of Contact ........................................................................................................ 3 

Submission Timeline ...................................................................................................................... 3 

General Timeline .......................................................................................................................... 3 

Time Extension Request ............................................................................................................ 3 

Timeline of Communication from Deployment to Reimbursement Submission.................. 4 

Reimbursement Review Timelines ..................................................................................................... 4 

Reimbursement Request Eligibility .................................................................................................... 4 

and Documentation Requirements .................................................................................................... 4 

General Documentation Requirements ......................................................................................... 4 

Labor .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Eligibility Requirements ............................................................................................................. 5 

Documentation Requirements .................................................................................................... 6 

Travel ................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Meals............................................................................................................................................... 7 

Lodging .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Personal Vehicles .......................................................................................................................... 8 

Equipment ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Damaged Equipment ................................................................................................................... 9 

Other Items Eligible for Reimbursement .................................................................................. 10 

Best Practices – Pre-Deployment Activities .................................................................................... 10 

Best Practices – Deployment Activities ........................................................................................... 11 

Best Practices – Post Deployment Activities .................................................................................. 11 

Acknowledgement Statement ......................................................................................................... 12 

Samples ..................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Samples ..................................................................................................................................................................... 14 



2  

Mutual Aid Reimbursement Guide 
January 24, 2023 

 

Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to outline how the Texas Division of Emergency 
Management (TDEM) will reimburse local responding entities, state agencies and other 
entities for accepting and responding to state-assigned mutual aid missions. A state- 
assigned mutual aid mission occurs when a request for assistance is routed through the 
State Operations Center (SOC). If the SOC assigns one or more responding entities to fulfill 
the request, this document will guide them through completing and submitting a 
reimbursement claim to TDEM. These missions may be for in-state or out-of-state 
assignments. 

Authority 
This document was created in alignment with Texas Government Code Chapter 418, Section 
418.118 and Texas Government Code Chapter 778, Article IX. Section 418.118 states that if 
TDEM requests assistance from an entity, TDEM shall reimburse that entity their actual costs 
and further states “A request for reimbursement made to the division must be made in 
accordance with the procedures developed by the division.” 

Introduction 
All eligible expenses submitted in a reimbursement claim will be audited, authorized, and 
funded through TDEM. TDEM will review all items based on the responding entities’ local 
policies in place at the time of deployment. Eligible expenses include labor, travel, 
equipment usage, and other costs specifically related to the state-assigned mission. All 
expenses must include backup documentation to substantiate the amount claimed, show 
that it was mission-required, and subsequently paid for by the responding entity. Any 
documentation that has been edited or written over must include an explanation for the 
edit. 

For out-of-state deployments through the Emergency Management Assistance 
Compact (EMAC), documentation and timeline requirements may differ. TDEM will notify 
responding entities of any additional guidance for these deployments as soon as possible. 

Submission Information 
Upon notification of a state mission assignment, TDEM will contact the responding entity 
with an initial guidance email. This email will include any deadlines, mission-specific 
reimbursement guidance, and all forms required to submit a complete and accurate 
reimbursement claim to TDEM. For deployments out-of-state or that involve unusual 
circumstances, the reimbursement process might be different. TDEM will communicate this 
information to the responding entities as soon as the information becomes available. 

All requests for reimbursement shall be submitted electronically through the TDEM Grant 
Management System  (GMS)  located  at https://grants.tdem.texas.gov/  along  with the 

https://grants.tdem.texas.gov/


3  

appropriate backup documentation to support the reimbursement claim. Reimbursement 
forms and training videos are available at https://tdem.texas.gov/reimbursement on the 
TDEM website and, will be included in the initial email, or available upon request to the State 
Disaster Reimbursement Section (SDRS) of TDEM. 

Additional training for completing the reimbursement workbook and/or submitting 
reimbursement claims into the GMS system are available upon request through the SDRS 
points of contact listed below. 

Submission Points of Contact 
Main Contact 
Name: State Disaster Reimbursement Section 
Email:  SDRS@tdem.texas.gov 

 
Unit Chief 
Name: Mary Medina 
Phone: 512-348-5842 
Email: mary.medina@tdem.texas.gov 

 
Section Chief 
Name: William Doyle 
Phone: 512-647-9344 
Email: william.doyle@tdem.texas.gov 

 
Division Chief 
Name: Sherri LaCour 
Phone: 737-703-8199 
Email: sherri.lacour@tdem.texas.gov 

 
Submission Timeline 
General Timeline 
Responding entities will have ninety (90) calendar days from the date of demobilization to 
submit for reimbursement. Entities may not be eligible for reimbursement once 120 calendar 
days have passed from demobilization if no reimbursement request has been received by 
TDEM. 

Time Extension Request 
Responding entities who want an extension beyond the 120-day mark will need to request 
this in writing from TDEM’s SDRS at tdemreimbursement@tdem.texas.gov . SDRS will 
coordinate with the Program Administrator (Texas A&M Forest Service (TFS), Incident 
Support Task Force (ISTF), etc.) for consideration. For out-of-state deployments through 
the Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC), extensions may not be available 
as deadlines will be set by the state who requested assistance from Texas. 

https://tdem.texas.gov/reimbursement
mailto:SDRS@tdem.texas.gov
mailto:mary.medina@tdem.texas.gov
mailto:william.doyle@tdem.texas.gov
mailto:sherri.lacour@tdem.texas.gov
mailto:tdemreimbursement@tdem.texas.gov


4  

Timeline of Communication from Deployment to Reimbursement 
Submission 
To ensure responding entities have been made fully aware of potential deadlines, TDEM will 
communicate all deadlines with the responding entity in the initial email upon deployment, 
at the 60-day mark, and a final reminder at the 90-day mark to ensure the entity is fully aware 
and has plenty of opportunities to get their information submitted before the 120-day mark. For 
emails related to submission deadlines, TDEM will include the responding entity point of contact, 
the Program Administrator points of contact (Texas Intrastate Fire Mutual Aid System) 
[TIFMAS] Branch Coordinator, Incident Support Task Force [ISTF] Regional Coordinator, 
etc.), and the TDEM Regional Section Coordinator for Response. 

Reimbursement Review Timelines 
TDEM will conduct an initial review of the reimbursement claim within 15 business days of 
receipt. Once the initial review is complete TDEM will initiate a request for information (RFI), 
if needed, to the responding entity. This initial review will include a basic documentation 
review. The responding entity will have 15 business days to respond to this initial RFI. 

 
Once the response to the initial RFI has been received or if no RFI is needed, TDEM will 
complete a full review of the reimbursement claim. During the full review, a potential second RFI 
may be sent to the responding entity. Again, the responding entity will have 15 business days to 
respond to this full-review RFI. The reimbursement claim will be processed based on any 
information provided initially and during the two RFIs. Any changes in the 
reimbursement claim amount will require the responding entity to sign and confirm the 
new reimbursement claim amount before any payment can be processed. 

 
Note: If TDEM does not receive all requested documentation within 15 business days, the 
reimbursement claim will be processed as is and only the verified costs will be submitted 
for payment processing. Any additional items not provided may result in costs claimed 
being not eligible for reimbursement. If the supporting documentation is located at a later date, 
a new reimbursement claim for these costs will need to be submitted to TDEM. 

 
Reimbursement Request Eligibility 
and Documentation Requirements 
General Documentation Requirements 
• A completed Form W-9 (if first time submitting) 
• A completed Direct Deposit Form (if first time submitting or if banking information has 

changed) 
• A signed acknowledgement of receipt and acceptance of this guide. Acknowledgement 

statement can be found before the samples in this guide. This will be uploaded into GMS 
under the Grant Terms and Condition placeholder. 

• Current policies related to the following (if first time submitting or policies have been 
updated): 

o Travel; 



5  

o Mandatory staffing; and 
o Payroll Policy 

• Completed Memorandum Of Understanding (MOUs) for each person being claimed on 
reimbursement claim if applicable 

• Completed TDEM Reimbursement Request excel form (must be submitted as an Excel 
document—PDFs will not be accepted) 

• STAR request 
• Mobilization and demobilization documents (See section on deployment 

requirements/best practices) 
• Activity logs (ICS 214s) that are detailed and legible (See section on deployment 

requirements/best practices) 
• All backup documentation 

Labor 
Eligibility Requirements 

• Labor will be reimbursed for the responding entities’ employees to include full time 
or part time and paid volunteers. 

• Labor reimbursement will be based on responding entities’ policies and rates. 
• Labor policies MUST be submitted with reimbursement claim. 
• Hours during the deployment that coincide with employees’ home responding entity 

regular shift schedule (on-duty hours) will be reimbursed at regular pay plus benefits. 
(Responding entity policy will supersede this rule if different. If no policy is established, this 
rule will prevail.) 

• If responding entity is claiming portal-to-portal hours, calculate hours on first day of 
deployment from start of eligible prep time through 2400. 

o For example, if pre-deployment preparation time is from 1200-1400 and team 
leaves home base at 1400. Eligible hours on first day are 12 from 1200-2400. 

o Please note on the compliance workbook there is a place for prep time to be 
entered so be careful not to double count prep time when completing the 
workbook. 

• If the responding entity is claiming portal-to-portal hours, calculate hours on last day 
from start of day through end of demobilization time. For example, 

o If the team arrives at home base at 1000 and post-deployment time is from 
1000-1200, eligible hours on last day are 12 from 0000-1200. 

o Please note on the compliance workbook there is a place for post-deployment 
time to be entered so be careful not to double count prep time when 
completing the workbook. 

• All personnel mobilized must be listed on the approved deployment orders from the 
program administrator. 

• The responding entity work schedule/shift calendar and payroll policy will be used 
when calculating all hours claimed for reimbursement. Per responding entity policies, 
overtime may be credited in actual wages or compensatory time off. 

• TDEM will reimburse up to two (2) hours for pre-deployment preparation and up to 
two (2) hours after return to home base to return equipment to service. The two (2) 



6  

hours for pre/post–deployment will be reimbursed if noted on 214s, CTRs, or other 
activity logs. Travel time to the incident and travel time to return to home base will be 
reimbursed. 

• Backfill costs for personnel assigned will be paid at the responding entity’s hourly rate. 
Any claimed backfill costs must include the name of the deployed member the 
backfill costs are for. The responding entity must have a minimum staffing policy in 
place prior to the activation to be eligible for backfill costs. (Responding entity policy will 
supersede this rule if different. If no policy is established, this rule will prevail.) 

• When resources return to their home base and their regular scheduled shift day is the day 
of return or the day following their return, TDEM will reimburse the full shift. 
Additional backfill not to exceed one shift will also be reimbursed. Ensuring a 
minimum of 24 hours off prior to the next full shift will help ensure proper rest for 
returning firefighters. 

o If a team member ends deployment activities on the scheduled shift day which 
ends the following day at 0700, all shift hours are eligible for reimbursement. 
 Last day of deployment: 0000-1200 (12 eligible deployment), 1200-2400 

(12 eligible shift hours) 
 Day after deployment: 0000-0700 (7 eligible shift hours) 

o If a team member ends deployment activities the day prior to the scheduled 
0700-0700 shift and within the 24-hour rest period, the shift hours are eligible 
for reimbursement. 
 Last day of deployment: 0000-1200 (12 eligible deployment hours) 
 Day after deployment: 0700-2400 (17 eligible shift hours) 
 2nd day after deployment: 0000-0700 (7 eligible shift hours) 

 
 

Documentation Requirements 
• Labor Policies that include: 

o Employee Pay Policy; 
o Overtime/Premium Pay Policy (if not included in the pay policy); 
o Minimum Staffing Policy; and 

• Payroll report showing hours paid, rate paid, benefits paid, date paid, and pay period for 
payment; 

o If a payroll report is not available, paystubs showing the information will be 
accepted; 

o Payroll or paystubs must show if hours paid are regular hours or overtime hours; 
o If rate of pay requested does not match payroll, entity must include a basis for how 

the pay rate was calculated. 
• Leave balance documentation when submitting a claim for compensatory time (comp 

time) 

Travel 
Travel reimbursement will be based on responding entity policy. Travel policy MUST be 
submitted with reimbursement claim. If the home jurisdiction does not have a travel policy, 
the following applies: lodging and meals will be reimbursed based on General Services 



7  

Administration (GSA) rates to include all meals and any additional sustainment needs such 
as water, snacks, etc. 

Meals 
The following documentation is required with the reimbursement claim for the responding 
entity to be eligible for reimbursement of meals: 
• Meal receipts (if required by local travel policy) 
• If claiming daily per-diem rate based on local travel policy, include the proof of payment 

from responding entity to employee. 
• If claiming actual meal costs: 

o If on a responding entity corporate credit card, include the credit card statement. 
o With personal credit card or personal funds, the responding entity must provide 

proof of payment to employee or volunteer firefighter for claimed amount. Proof 
of payment can include a copy of the check to the individual payment report 
showing payment paid to the individual. Individual should claim meals per 
responding entities’ policy. 

• If no responding entity policy is in place, proof of payment is required but individual meal 
receipts are not. A responding entity paying for meals of other responding entities 
employees using one credit card; documentation will be required specifically listing the 
responding entity and the name of the employee(s) who were fed with that purchase. Per 
diem rates still apply. 

** Alcoholic beverages and personal hygiene purchases are ineligible for reimbursement. ** 

Lodging 
All resources should arrive at the incident and be prepared to be self-sufficient for the first 
72 hours. If lodging is required or necessary, resources are responsible for securing their 
lodging for the duration of the deployment. 

The following documentation is required with the reimbursement package for the agency 
to be eligible for reimbursement of lodging: 
• A copy of the lodging receipt that shows a zero balance. 
• If lodging was purchased on a responding entity travel credit card, include the credit 

card statement, which includes the lodging charges. 
• If lodging was purchased with a personal credit card or personal funds, the responding 

entity must provide proof of payment to the employee or volunteer firefighter for the 
claimed amount. Proof of payment shall include a copy of the check to the individual or 
payment report showing payment paid to the individual. 

• Responding entities paying for lodging of other responding entity employee(s) using 
one credit card; documentation will be required indicating the specific responding entity 
and the names of the employees who were housed with that purchase. An individual can 
secure multiple rooms on their responding entity credit card for all members of the team. It 
is recommended to have the room occupant’s name listed on the hotel invoice even 
though the payment is made by a third party. 



8  

Personal Vehicles 
Reimbursement for personal vehicles will be based on the responding entity’s policy or the State 
of Texas mileage rate. 

The following documentation is required with the reimbursement package for the agency 
to be eligible for reimbursement of personal vehicle mileage costs: 

• The responding entity must provide proof of payment to the employee or volunteer 
firefighter for the claimed amount. Proof of payment can include a copy of the check to 
the individual or payment report showing payment paid to the individual. 

• Mileage logs, maps, or odometer readings shall be included to substantiate mileage 
claimed. 

Equipment 
• All equipment mobilized shall be listed on the approved deployment orders from the 

Program Administrator. 
• TDEM shall reimburse for equipment using an hourly rate usually aligned with the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) rate. Equipment hours will be based 
on actual usage hours per the 214s and/or Shift Ticket. If a FEMA rate is not available, 
TDEM will work with the program administrator to determine an appropriate equipment 
reimbursement rate. 

• FOR TIFMAS GRANT ENGINES: Beginning March 22, 2023, any entity who receives a new 
or replacement TIFMAS grant engine from the Texas A&M Forest Service (TFS) will 
receive 50% of the FEMA rate for that engine. Any engines already allocated before this 
date will be grandfathered in and receive 100% of the equipment rate. 

• TDEM will reimburse up to two (2) hours for pre-deployment preparation and up to two 
(2) hours after return to home base to return equipment to service. The two (2) hours for 
pre/post–deployment will be reimbursed if noted on 214s, CTRs, Shift Ticket, or other 
activity logs. Travel time to the incident and travel time to return to home base will be 
reimbursed. 

• The FEMA rates on the Schedule of Equipment Rates are for responding entity-owned 
equipment in good mechanical condition, complete with all required attachments. Each 
rate covers all costs eligible for ownership and operation of equipment, including 
depreciation, overhead, all maintenance, field repairs, fuel, lubricants, tires, OSHA 
equipment, and other costs incidental to operation. 

• Standby equipment costs are not eligible. 

For vehicles used to transport personnel only (such as crew swaps), TDEM will reimburse 
based on the FEMA mileage rate for transporting people. Mileage logs, maps, or odometer 
readings must be included to substantiate mileage claim. 

• Detailed descriptions must be included for all pieces of equipment to include gallons per 
minute, horsepower, tank capacity, etc. This will ensure the appropriate equipment code is 
applied and the applicable rate is reimbursed. 

• If equipment is out of service either on-incident or post-deployment, it is not considered 
working, and no hours will be reimbursed. Out of service must be documented on the 



9  

activity logs. The hours worked stop once the vehicle has reached a staging destination 
or repair shop, whichever comes first. Reasonable towing costs to a staging destination 
or repair shop will be reimbursed. 

The following documentation is required with the reimbursement package for the agency 
to be eligible for reimbursement of equipment costs: 
• Activity Logs/214s or Shift Ticket 
• Proof of ownership for any piece of equipment used on the deployment. Proof of 

ownership can include title, annual registration, asset inventory list, proof of insurance or 
other document that supports the responding entity owns the vehicle. 

• Resource order or mission assignment showing equipment was approved for use on the 
mission. 

Damaged Equipment 
• The incident is responsible for any damage incurred from the point of incident check- 

in and vehicle inspection by incident management personnel, through 
demobilization from incident and return to home base, when the damage is a direct 
result of operations and not normal wear and tear. 

• Repair reimbursement requests must be documented, justifiable, and reasonable 
within the scope of the operation. 

• Any damage to the equipment must include photos and a damage equipment report 
per responding entity’s policy for reimbursement. 

• When there is damage to equipment while mobilized, the responding entity should 
inform the Team Lead, Program Administrator, or Incident Command Team (if on- 
site) and file a claim with their insurance provider per their local policy. If the damage 
incurred on the incident is less than the insurance policy deductible and the 
responding entity wants to recover the repair costs, but does not want to file with their 
insurance carrier, the responding entity must provide: 

o Proof of insurance which identifies the amount of the deductible. 
o An invoice documenting the costs incurred to repair the damage. 

• Any amount greater than the deductible will not be reimbursed. 
• Self-insured responding entities should submit all expenses incurred to repair 

incident-related damages for reimbursement. 
• The responding entity must submit check-in and demobilization photos and forms 

with reimbursement documentation. This would include any check-in/demobilization 
confirmations conducted by an Incident Management Team (IMT) or Incident Support 
Team (IST). 

• Damage due to firefighting operations which is not covered by insurance (e.g., towing 
charges, hose damage, pump damage, etc.) should be documented with receipts and 
included in the reimbursement package sent to TDEM. 

• Damage MUST be documented on the 214s at time of damage. 

Required documentation related to damaged equipment to be included in reimbursement 
claim: 

• Photos of the damage that clearly show the damage to the equipment. 



10  

• A copy of the Proof of Insurance for the vehicle, which includes the types of coverages, 
costs and the deductible amount. 

• The equipment or vehicle’s year, make, model, and mileage (at the time of the 
breakdown). 

• The equipment or vehicle inspection report at check-in and at the time it was 
demobilized from the incident. 

• A written statement that explains how this repair cost is directly related to the event 
and not to normal wear and tear events. 

• Repair invoice with a zero balance. 
• Proof of payment for repair and towing costs such as a P-Card statement. 
• A copy of the maintenance log for the equipment or vehicle. 
• An incident or police report depending on the nature of damage. 

 
Other Items Eligible for Reimbursement 
Items such as consumables, materials, and rentals will be reimbursed based on an actual costs’ 
basis. All requests for reimbursement of these types will include a written justification stating the 
necessity of these costs to complete the mission. 

All other costs must be substantiated by including: 
• Itemized receipt with proof of payment 
• Any purchase orders or quotes that may be applicable to purchase 
• Any contracts that may be applicable to the purchase 
• If materials were taken from inventory: 

o Inventory report, invoice showing items purchased, cost and proof of payment, 
or replacement invoice showing items purchased, the cost, and proof of 
payment 

Best Practices – Pre-Deployment Activities 
To make the reimbursement process go faster there are some things entities can do to help 
facilitate the gathering of documentation when it is needed. Below are some suggestions 
for entities to do once they know of a potential deployment. 

The entity contacts who will be preparing the compliance workbook and submitting the 
reimbursement request should upon notification of a potential deployment start gathering 
current policies, equipment inventory listing or titles, current salaries and shift information. 
Also, if they haven’t registered as a user with TDEM’s Grant Management System, they should 
go ahead and register for an account. 

For entities deploying members upon notification of a potential deployment, they should let 
the workbook preparer know of the potential deployment. They should ensure they have any 
blank forms they may need in their go-bag and meet with their Finance point of contact 
(POC) to understand their post deployment documentation needs. 

Review the TDEM Reimbursement website for new information and watch any videos 
related to completing a reimbursement request. 



11  

Best Practices – Deployment Activities 
Upon notification of an approved deployment, both Finance and deploying personnel 
should take steps to make the completion of the reimbursement packet easier. 

For the Finance (POC), they should go into GMS and complete the Request for Assistance for 
the incident their entity is deploying under. Starting an electronic folder to store any 
documents is a good idea to make sure everything is in one place when starting the 
reimbursement workbook. The Finance (POC) should also start the workbook by entering 
the personnel, salaries, shifts and other known information so that there is less entry required 
upon the deploying teams return to home base. Finance should be aware of the deploying 
members check-in and demobilization requirements so they can collect copies of any 
documents the deploying member turns in while on-scene. 

For the deploying members, they should gather the information needed for deploying such 
as mission location, mission at location and ensure they know where they need to check-in 
at upon arrival and what documentation they will need to provide at check-in. They should 
also check with Finance to see if there is way for them to submit documentation daily while 
on deployment to reduce the potential for lost receipts, documents, and some where to send 
pictures if required. Deploying members should also be aware of any required 
demobilization procedures and documents so upon notification of demobilization they are 
ready and have everything in place. 

Best Practices – Post Deployment Activities 
Upon return to home base, deploying members should turn in all required documents for travel 
reimbursements, timekeeping and equipment use. This will allow finance to begin 
processing items so that all documentation can be ready to submit in a timely manner. 

Finance and the deploying members should finalize the workbook on who deployed, their 
payrates and begin the travel section to start completing the full workbook. Pull any 
documents together to ensure they are housed in one location. 

Finance should also reach out to TDEM to ensure a project has been setup for them in GMS. 



12  

 
 
 

Acknowledgement Statement 

 
Our jurisdiction/agency has received and read the TDEM Mutual Aid Reimbursement 
Guide and understands the process and procedures for which our reimbursement 
submission will be reviewed. Any reimbursements submitted by our jurisdiction/agency 
will be done in accordance with the TDEM State Mutual Aid Guide. 

 
 

 

Signature Date Signed 

 

Printed Name and Title 



13  

Samples 
 

 
ACTIVITY ILOG (ICS 214) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dc1talriiii'le liotabla Aciwi.lies 
8J1212022 00:00 Al l"IOllil fot ratl ID M f • eady for irilial Altad< .(1A) l'I Elg Spling 
sJ1212022 . onm Truck .Check . prepare fot ' today's a.diYitiaiS 
at1m022 moo Elnaling and MR rmm , Elairaar F'll't! 

 

 

    
8J1212022. B:30  EN<lUlli,to Ela trop Pine Pond Fire fol' tight qpataliotls 
8J1212022. 19-..45  Atfivecl n Elgin Tx b seruia loog· gt to,P oil fuel 
sJ1212022. ID. o Affiya h Bastrop Coonfy Pine, P<iffi:I !=rn -Mfli Sink.a Team 

20:30             
I'd spois li!af:mla lnil c:onlainmellt lines ing lielcl ma,ps raM exliflt!llliSh;e;i:lf.oodla.:I lhBm ti/_ 

&11212022 23:29 

t lncidem . Name: 
2 Opetational ?erloct 

 
Dais l=rom, 8-12-2022. Dale To: 8-12-2022 
Time From: 00:00 Tima To: 23:!59 202:2 Summer IR!re Wealher 

Pine ?on:! Fire 
   4. r:s IPosiliani 5. H0me Agency {and llnit)c 
Jessie ,Fire   ENGB lDEM rll'lll 

6 Resources A.sslg:ned!: 
Name ,cs PoSiiioo 1-tlili'IEI AgerM:¥ (am Unit) 

MPm El,-13  t.lPFD 813 TDEM Ftra Dep.art:ment 
E-HS!i   

.letSSie Fite  11D.EM Fn Depai:tment 
E-1785.1   

Jeff'Wamcm Fire5gl'lter TDEM Ftra Dapart:mlint 
E-H85.2   

   

   

7. Aciimy i    

 



14  

Samples 
 

 
EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SHIFT TICKET 
NOTE: Tile responsible Gavernment Officer will update tins fonn eacll day or slnff and make imtial and final equipment mspections. 

RESOURCE ORDER# 

1 AGREEMENT NUMBER 2 CONTRACTOR (name) 

NoName County ESD #1 (V'v17o owns the equipment) 
3. INODENT OR PROJECT NAME 

Wildfire Season 2023 
4. INCIDENT NUMBER 

23-0001 
5. OPERATOR (name) 

Henry "Hank" Example/Joe Incident 
6 EQUIPMENT MAKE 

Siddons-Martin 
7 EQUIPMENT MODEL 

38704 Enforcer 7010 □8 OPERATOR FURNISHED BY 
Contractor Government 

9. SERIAL NUMBER 

XXXXX-JKXXXX 
10. LICENSE NUMBER 

TGC4180 
1□1. OPERATING SUPPLIES FURNISHED BY 

Contractor Government 
12. DATE 

MO/DA/YR 
13. EQUIPMENT USE 14. REMARKS (released, down time and cause, problems, etc) 

Equipment operated 24 hours with Hank doing day shift 
and Joe doing night shift 

START STOP 
HRS/DAYS/MlLES HRS 

WORK SPEOAL 

02/01/2023 07:00 19:00 12 Big Hope Fire 

02/01/2023 19:00 07:00 12 Lost Tree Fire 
15. EQUIPMENT STATUS 

□ a_ Inspected and under agreement 

□ b_Released by Government 

□ c. Withdrawn by Contractor 02/02/2023 07:00 19:00 12 Lost Tree Fire 

02/02/2023 19:00 07:00 12 Lost Tree Fire 
16 INVOICE POSTED BY (Recorder's lnWals) 

17. CONTRACTOR'S OR AUTHORIZED AGENT'S SIGNATURE 15. GOVERNMENT OFFICER'S SIGNATURE 119. DATE SIGNED 

NSN 7540-01-119-5628 
50297-102 

OPTIONAL FORM 297 (Rev 7-90) 
USDA/USO 

 
 
 
 

EMERGENCY EQUIPMENTSHIFTllCKET RESOURCE ORDER# 
NOTE: Tile responsible Government Officer will update tins fonn eacll day or slnff and make imtial and final equipment mspections. 
1 AGREEMENT NUMBER 2 CONTRACTOR (name) 

3 INCIDENT OR PROJECT NAME 4 INODENT NUMBER 5 OPERATOR (name) 

6. EQUIPMENT MAKE 7. EQUIPMENT MODEL 
8.DOPERATOR FURNISHED BY Contractor Government 

9 SERIAL NUMBER  1u LICENSE NUMBER 11 OPERATING SUPPLIES FURNISHED BY 

Contractor Government 
12 DATE 

MO/DA/YR 
13 EQUIPMENT USE 14 REMARKS (released, dmvn Ume and cause, problems, etc) 

 
START 

 
STOP 

HRS/DAYS/MILES MILES 

WORK SPECIAL 

     

     15 EQUIPMENT STATUS 

□ a. Inspected and under agreement 
□ b_Released by Government 

□ c_Withdrawn by Contractor 

     

     16. INVOICE POSTED BY (Recorder's lnff,a/s) 

17 CONTRACTOR'S OR AUTHORIZED AGENT'S SIGNATURE 15 GOVERNMENT OFFICER'S SGNATURE rg DATE SGNED 

NSN 7540-01-119-5628 
50297-102 

OPTIONAL FORM 297 (Rev. 7-90) 
USDA/USDI 



12 
 

 

 

 

Acknowledgement Statement 
 

Our jurisdiction/agency has received and read the TDEM Mutual Aid Reimbursement 
Guide and understands the process and procedures for which our reimbursement 
submission will be reviewed. Any reimbursements submitted by our jurisdiction/agency 
will be done in accordance with the TDEM State Mutual Aid Guide.  

 

________________________________  _______________________ 

Signature         Date Signed 

_________________________________________ 

Printed Name and Title 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 14.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T. Crumley

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the acceptance of additional insurance funds from the Texas Association of Counties (TAC) Risk Management
Pool for vehicle repairs to a 2022 Ford Escape in the amount of $1,412.13 and amend the budget
accordingly. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEY SH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
Additional insurance funds were needed to finalize the repairs to fleet vehicle #44. Once the vehicle repairs began, damage
was found to the right headlight that was not identified on the initial inspection. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,412.13
Line Item Number: 001-712-00.4680/.5413

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: Insurance Proceeds
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
($1,413) - Increase Compensation for Loss 001-712-00.4680
$1,413 - Increase Vehicle Maintenance & Repair 001-712-00.5413

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: repairs must follow purchasing policy guidelines

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: Yes, $1,412.13 in Compensation for Loss
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
JB Collision Estimate



JB Collision Center Workfile ID:
PartsShare:

Federal ID:

6abd3f06

84-2537961jbcollisioncenter01@gmail.com
104 Texas Ave, san marcos, TX 78666

Phone: (512) 621-1381

Preliminary Estimate

Customer: Pool Car Job Number: 
Written By: julio ballesteros

Insured: Pool Car Policy #: Claim #:
Type of Loss: Date of Loss: Days to Repair: 0
Point of Impact:

Owner: Inspection Location: Insurance Company:
Pool Car JB Collision Center
(512) 969-0848 Cell 104 Texas Ave

san marcos, TX 78666
Repair Facility
(512) 621-1381 Business

VEHICLE

2022 FORD Escape SE FWD 4D UTV 3-1.5L Turbocharged Gasoline Port/Direct Injection

VIN: 1FMCU0G62NUB12158 Interior Color: Mileage In: Vehicle Out:
License: Exterior Color: Mileage Out:
State: TX Production Date: Condition: Job #:

TRANSMISSION Air Conditioning FM Radio Hands Free Device
Automatic Transmission Intermittent Wipers Stereo Blind Spot Detection
POWER Tilt Wheel Search/Seek Lane Departure Warning
Power Steering Cruise Control Auxiliary Audio Connection SEATS
Power Brakes Rear Defogger Satellite Radio Cloth Seats
Power Windows Keyless Entry SAFETY Bucket Seats
Power Locks Message Center Drivers Side Air Bag Reclining/Lounge Seats
Power Mirrors Steering Wheel Touch Controls Passenger Air Bag WHEELS
DECOR Rear Window Wiper Anti-Lock Brakes (4) Aluminum/Alloy Wheels
Dual Mirrors Telescopic Wheel 4 Wheel Disc Brakes PAINT
Privacy Glass Backup Camera Traction Control Clear Coat Paint
Console/Storage Remote Starter Stability Control OTHER
Overhead Console RADIO Front Side Impact Air Bags Rear Spoiler
CONVENIENCE AM Radio Head/Curtain Air Bags California Emissions

6/28/2024 4:19:30 PM 443935 Page 1

7CzvgX7CzvgX

https://trueparts.mycccportal.com/ProcurementSSP/PartShare/7CzvgX


Preliminary Estimate

Customer: Pool Car Job Number: 
2022 FORD Escape SE FWD 4D UTV 3-1.5L Turbocharged Gasoline Port/Direct Injection

Line Oper Description Part Number Qty Extended
Price $

Labor Paint

1 FRONT BUMPER & GRILLE
2 * Rpr Bumper cover w/o auto park 3.0 3.0
3 Add for Clear Coat 1.2
4 Repl Lower cover w/o auto park LJ6Z17D957A 1 266.00 0.6
5 Repl RT Side cover w/o fog lamps LJ6Z15A245AB 1 38.27 0.2
6 Repl Upper w'strip LJ6Z16B990A 1 28.85 0.2
7 FRONT LAMPS
8 ** Repl A/M CAPA RT Headlamp assy

w/projector lamp
LJ6Z13008C 1 1,581.65 0.3

9 Aim headlamps 0.5
10 HOOD
11 * Rpr Hood 3.0 2.8
12 Add for Clear Coat 1.1
13 Repl RT Hinge LJ6Z16796A 1 42.07 0.6 0.3
14 Add for Clear Coat 0.1
15 Repl LT Hinge LJ6Z16797A 1 42.07 0.6 0.3
16 Add for Clear Coat 0.1
17 FENDER
18 * Rpr RT Fender 3.0 2.2
19 Overlap Major Adj. Panel -0.4
20 Add for Clear Coat 0.4
21 FRONT DOOR
22 Refn RT Door shell (HSS) 2.2
23 Overlap Major Adj. Panel -0.4
24 Add for Clear Coat 0.4

SUBTOTALS 1,998.91 12.0 13.3

ESTIMATE TOTALS
Category Basis Rate Cost $
Parts 1,998.91
Body Labor 12.0 hrs @ $ 55.00 /hr 660.00
Paint Labor 13.3 hrs @ $ 55.00 /hr 731.50
Paint Supplies 13.3 hrs @ $ 38.00 /hr 505.40
Subtotal 3,895.81
Grand Total 3,895.81
Deductible 0.00
CUSTOMER PAY 0.00
INSURANCE PAY 3,895.81

6/28/2024 4:19:30 PM 443935 Page 2



Preliminary Estimate

Customer: Pool Car Job Number: 
2022 FORD Escape SE FWD 4D UTV 3-1.5L Turbocharged Gasoline Port/Direct Injection

Estimate based on MOTOR CRASH ESTIMATING GUIDE and potentially other third party sources of data.  Unless
otherwise noted, (a) all items are derived from the Guide DR2MK20, CCC Data Date 06/17/2024, and potentially
other third party sources of data; and (b) the parts presented are OEM-parts.  OEM parts are manufactured by or for
the vehicle's Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) according to OEM's specifications for U.S. distribution.  OEM
parts are available at OE/Vehicle dealerships or the specified supplier.  OPT OEM (Optional OEM) or ALT OEM
(Alternative OEM) parts are OEM parts that may be provided by or through alternate sources other than the OEM
vehicle dealerships with discounted pricing.    Asterisk (*) or Double Asterisk (**) indicates that the parts and/or
labor data provided by third party sources of data may have been modified or may have come from an alternate data
source.  Tilde sign (~) items indicate MOTOR Not-Included Labor operations.  The symbol (<>) indicates the refinish
operation WILL NOT be performed as a separate procedure from the other panels in the estimate. Non-Original
Equipment Manufacturer aftermarket parts are described as Non OEM,  A/M or NAGS.  Used parts are described as
LKQ, RCY, or USED.  Reconditioned parts are described as Recond.  Recored parts are described as Recore.  NAGS
Part Numbers and Benchmark Prices are provided by National Auto Glass Specifications.  Labor operation times listed
on the line with the NAGS information are MOTOR suggested labor operation times.  NAGS labor operation times are
not included.  Pound sign (#) items indicate manual entries.

Some 2024 vehicles contain minor changes from the previous year.  For those vehicles, prior to receiving updated
data from the vehicle manufacturer, labor and parts data from the previous year may be used.  The CCC ONE
estimator has a list of applicable vehicles.  Parts numbers and prices should be confirmed with the local dealership.

The following is a list of additional abbreviations or symbols that may be used to describe work to be done or parts to
be repaired or replaced:

SYMBOLS FOLLOWING PART PRICE:
m=MOTOR Mechanical component.  s=MOTOR Structural component.  T=Miscellaneous Taxed charge category. 
X=Miscellaneous Non-Taxed charge category.

SYMBOLS FOLLOWING LABOR:
D=Diagnostic labor category.  E=Electrical labor category.  F=Frame labor category.  G=Glass labor category. 
M=Mechanical labor category.  S=Structural labor category.  (numbers) 1 through 4=User Defined Labor Categories.

OTHER SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS:
Adj.=Adjacent.  Algn.=Align.  ALU=Aluminum.  A/M=Aftermarket part.  Blnd=Blend.  BOR=Boron steel. 
CAPA=Certified Automotive Parts Association.  D&R=Disconnect and Reconnect.  HSS=High Strength Steel. 
HYD=Hydroformed Steel.  Incl.=Included.  LKQ=Like Kind and Quality.  LT=Left.  MAG=Magnesium.   Non-Adj.=Non
Adjacent.  NSF=NSF International Certified Part.  O/H=Overhaul.  Qty=Quantity.  Refn=Refinish.  Repl=Replace. 
R&I=Remove and Install.  R&R=Remove and Replace.  Rpr=Repair.  RT=Right.  SAS=Sandwiched Steel.  
Sect=Section.  Subl=Sublet.  UHS=Ultra High Strength Steel.  N=Note(s) associated with the estimate line.

CCC ONE Estimating - A product of CCC Intelligent Services Inc.

The following is a list of abbreviations that may be used in CCC ONE Estimating that are not part of the MOTOR
CRASH ESTIMATING GUIDE:
BAR=Bureau of Automotive Repair.  EPA=Environmental Protection Agency.  NHTSA= National Highway
Transportation and Safety Administration.  PDR=Paintless Dent Repair.  VIN=Vehicle Identification Number.

6/28/2024 4:19:30 PM 443935 Page 3



Preliminary Estimate

Customer: Pool Car Job Number: 
2022 FORD Escape SE FWD 4D UTV 3-1.5L Turbocharged Gasoline Port/Direct Injection

PARTS SUPPLIER LIST

Line Supplier Description Price
8 Bill Smith Auto Parts - ARO #114-11238R-CAPA $ 1,581.65

400 Ash St A/M CAPA RT Headlamp assy w/projector lamp
Danville IL 61832 Quote: 2441462541
(800) 252-3005 Expires: 07/05/24

6/28/2024 4:19:30 PM 443935 Page 4



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 15.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Approve the execution of a First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between Hays County and Broaddus
& Associates regarding Project Management Services executed on or about July 2, 2024.   BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

SummarySummary

AttachmentsAttachments
1st Letter Amendment - Broaddus & Associates
PSA - Broaddus & Associates



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF 

TEXAS AND BROADDUS & ASSOCIATES 
 
This 1st Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (“Amendment”) is made this 30th day of 
July, 2024, by and between Hays County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter 
referred to as “County"), and Broaddus & Associates (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”).  The 
above-cited parties are collectively referred to as “the parties to this Agreement” or “the parties.” 
 

The following Sections are amended and restated: 
 
1. OVERVIEW  

 
The Contractor will provide Project Management Services for modifications, improvements, and 
additions at the Hays County Government Center and site located at 712 S. Stagecoach Trail in San 
Marcos, Texas (the current “project”) and future County projects that may be incorporated into a 2024 
bond proposition, subject to Commissioner Court approval and selection as the provider. 
 

2. SERVICES 
 
Contractor agrees to perform services for the County in accordance with the County’s instructions and, in 
particular, the instructions of the Countywide Operations Director and/or legal counsel for the Hays 
County Commissioners Court; and in conformance with the descriptions, definitions, terms, and 
conditions of this Agreement. The Scope of Services shall be limited to those services and terms attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, and any subsections of Exhibit “A”, if as and when they are attached hereto and 
signed by the parties (collectively “the Work”). If the parties to this Agreement amend the work required 
under this Agreement (by adding or removing specific services and/or terms enumerated in Exhibit “A”), 
the Compensation cited in Section 5 of this Agreement may also be amended to conform with the change 
in Scope of Services, as agreed by the parties. For future County projects wherein Contractor is selected 
as the provider, Contractor will be required to submit a Scope of Services to the Hays County 
Commissioners Court for approval.     
 
EXCEPT FOR THE ABOVE MODIFICATION, ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN UNCHANGED, UNLESS PROPERLY MODIFIED BY 
SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENT UNDER THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT. 
 
This 1st Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement, effective July 30, 2024, is hereby 
executed this 30th day of July, 2024, as is evidenced by the authorized signatures of the Parties, 
below. 
 
BROADDUS & ASSOCIATES     COUNTY 
 
______________________________________              ____________________________________ 
PAUL WEBB                            HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER     RUBEN BECERRA 
            HAYS COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
          ATTEST:  ___________________________________  
         ELAINE CARDENAS MBA PhD 
         HAYS COUNTY CLERK 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 1 of 11 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 

HAYS COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter the “County”) with 
administrative offices at 111 E. San Antonio, Suite 300, San Marcos, Texas 78666, and 
BROADDUS & ASSOCIATES (hereinafter “Contractor”), whose primary place of business is 
located at 1301 S. Capital of Texas Hwy., Suite A-302, Austin, Texas, 78745, hereby enter into 
this Professional Services Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) effective the 2nd day of July 2024. 
The County and Contractor (collectively “the parties to this Agreement” or “the parties”) agree as 
follows: 

1. OVERVIEW
The Contractor will provide Project Management Services for modifications, improvements, and 
additions at the Hays County Government Center and site located at 712 S. Stagecoach Trail in 
San Marcos, Texas (the current "Project").

2. SERVICES
Contractor agrees to perform services for the County in accordance with the County’s instructions 
and, in particular, the instructions of the Countywide Operations Director and/or legal counsel for 
the Hays County Commissioners Court; and in conformance with the descriptions, definitions, 
terms, and conditions of this Agreement.  The Scope of Services shall be limited to those services 
and terms attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and any subsections of Exhibit “A”, if as and when they 
are attached hereto and signed by the parties (collectively “the Work”).  If the parties to this 
Agreement amend the Work required under this Agreement (by adding or removing specific 
services and/or terms enumerated in Exhibit “A”), the Compensation cited in Section 4 of this 
Agreement may also be amended to conform with the change in Scope of Services, as agreed by 
the parties.

3. TERM AND DURATION OF CONTRACT
The parties agree that the Work shall be completed within three (3) years after commencement 
date (hereinafter the “Completion Date”).  In the event that Contractor is unable to complete the 
Work by the Completion Date, Contractor shall request an extension of the Completion Date in 
writing no later than thirty (30) business days prior to the Completion Date.  The County may grant 
extensions of the Completion Date for all reasonable extension requests and shall do so in writing.

4. COMPENSATION
Contractor will be compensated for the Work billed hourly against a not-to-exceed budget, the 
terms of which are cited in Contractor’s fee schedule, which is attached hereto and included in 
Exhibit “B”.  Despite any reference to Contractor’s fee schedule, which shall be used to calculate 
monthly invoices amounts under this Agreement or a change in the Scope of Services (i.e. 
Amendment), the parties agree that the County shall pay Contractor a total fee not to exceed one 
million eight hundred fifty-five thousand six hundred and forty-two dollars ($1,855,642) for the 
Work under this initial Agreement.



Professional Services Agreement - Page 2 of 11 

5. PAYMENT 
Contractor shall invoice the County for the Work performed under this Agreement on a monthly 
basis, beginning at the end of the first full month following the Effective Date.  The County agrees 
to promptly pay all invoices in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2251 and by 
sending payment to Contractor’s address stated in Section 8, below.   
 
6. NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall send a Notice of Completion to the County in 
writing, and the County shall have the option to inspect the Work (or the product thereof) before 
it is considered complete under this Agreement.  If the County is satisfied that the Work under this 
Agreement is complete, the County shall send Contractor an Acceptance of Completion in writing.  
If, after inspection, the County does not agree that the Work is complete or believes that the Work 
is of deficient quality, the County shall send Contractor a Deficiency Letter, stating the specific 
aspects of the Work that are incomplete and/or deficient.  If, after ten (10) business days from the 
County’s receipt of Contractor’s Notice of Completion, the County does not send Contractor either 
an Acceptance of Completion or a Deficiency Letter, the Work under this Agreement shall be 
considered complete. 
 
7. NOTICE (GENERAL) 
All notices issued by Contractor under or regarding this Agreement shall be provided in writing 
to the County at:  

Hays County, Attn: County Judge  
111 E. San Antonio, Suite 300  
San Marcos, Texas 78666.  
judge.becerra@co.hays.tx.us 
 

With Copy to: 
Hays County Criminal District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division 
111 E. San Antonio St., Suite 202 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Jordan.powell@co.hays.tx.us 
 
Hays Countywide Operations  
101 Thermon Drive 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us 
 
Hays County Purchasing Office 
712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us 
 
 
All notices issued by the County under or regarding this Agreement shall be provided in writing 
to Contractor at its primary place of business.  



Professional Services Agreement - Page 3 of 11 

Notices from one party to another under this Section may be made by U.S. Mail, parcel post, 
Facsimile, or Electronic Mail, sent to the designated contact at any of the designated addresses 
cited above. 
 
8. INSURANCE 
Contractor agrees that, during the performance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement, from 
the Effective Date until the County’s acceptance of Contractor’s Notice of Completion or until this 
Agreement is otherwise considered completed as a matter of law, Contractor shall, at its sole 
expense, provide and maintain Commercial General Liability insurance that meets or exceeds the 
industry standard for professional services providers in Contractor’s field of employment and for 
the type of services that are being performed by Contractor under this Agreement. Such insurance 
coverage shall specifically name the COUNTY as co-insured.  This insurance coverage shall cover 
all perils arising from the activities of Contractor, its officers, directors, employees, agents or sub-
contractors, relative to this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for any deductibles stated 
in the policy. A copy of the current Certificate of Liability Insurance is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“D”. A true copy of each new Certificate of Liability Insurance shall be provided to the COUNTY 
within seven (7) days of the new policy date at the following address:   
 
Hays County Criminal District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division 
111 E. San Antonio St., Suite 202 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Jordan.powell@co.hays.tx.us 
 
With Copy to: 
Hays Countywide Operations  
101 Thermon Drive 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us 
 
Hays County Purchasing Office 
712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 
Stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us 
 
So long as this Agreement is in effect, Contractor shall not cause such insurance to be canceled 
nor permit such insurance to lapse. All insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect 
that the policy shall not be canceled, reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until thirty (30) days 
after the COUNTY has received written notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or 
certified mail. 
 
9. INDEMNITY 
Contractor agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the 
County, its officers, directors and employees against all damages, liabilities or costs, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by Contractor’s negligent 
performance of the Work under this Agreement and that of its subcontractors or anyone for whom 
the Consultant is responsible or legally liable. 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 4 of 11 

Neither the County nor Contractor shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in any manner 
whatsoever for the other party's negligence. 
 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
Each party agrees to comply with all laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances applicable to this 
Agreement and/or applicable to the parties performing the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
11. SURVIVAL 
Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, the following Sections, and the terms and 
conditions contained therein, shall remain in effect: 4, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19, 20 and 21. 
 
12. FORCE MAJEURE 
Either of the parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any delays and/or failures in the 
performance of the terms and conditions of this agreement, to the extent that such delays and/or 
failures result from causes beyond the delaying/failing party’s reasonable control, including but 
not limited to Acts of God, Forces of Nature, Civil Riot or Unrest, and Governmental Action that 
was unforeseeable by all parties at the time of the execution of this Agreement.  Any 
delaying/failing party shall, with all reasonable diligence, attempt to remedy the cause of delay 
and/or failure and shall recommence all remaining duties under this Agreement within a reasonable 
time of such remedy. 
 
13. SEVERABILITY 
If any Section or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or void, the other Sections and 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the greatest extent as is 
possible, and all remaining Sections or provisions of this Agreement shall be construed so that 
they are as consistent with the parties’ intents as possible. 
 
14. MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which taken together shall 
constitute one single Agreement between the parties. 
 
15. SECTION HEADINGS, EXHIBITS 
The Section and Subsection headings of this Agreement, as well as Section 1, Entitled “Overview,” 
shall not enter in the interpretation of the terms and conditions contained herein, as those portions 
of the Agreement are included merely for organization and ease of review.  The Exhibit(s) that 
may be referred to herein and may be attached hereto, are incorporated herein to the same extent 
as if fully set forth herein. 
 
16. WAIVER BY PARTY 
Unless otherwise provided in writing by the waiving party, a waiver by either of the parties to this 
Agreement of any covenant, term, condition, agreement, right, or duty that arises under this 
Agreement shall be considered a one-time waiver and shall not be construed to be a waiver of any 
succeeding breach thereof or any other covenant, term, condition, agreement, right, or duty that 
arises under this Agreement. 
 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 5 of 11 

17. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS.  Any lawsuit, claim, or action, whether in law 
or in equity, arising from this Agreement will be brought in Hays County, Texas. 
 
18. ASSIGNMENT 
Neither party to this Agreement may assign it duties, interests, rights, benefits and/or obligations 
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the other party’s prior written consent thereto.   
 
19. BINDING EFFECT 
Subject to any provisions hereof restricting assignment, this Agreement shall be binding upon and 
shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective successors, permitted assigns, 
heirs, executors, and/or administrators. 
 
20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENT 
This Agreement (including any and all Exhibits attached hereto) constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Any amendments to this 
Agreement must be made in writing and signed by the parties to this Agreement prior to the 
performance of any terms or conditions contained in said amendments. 
 
21.  WORK PRODUCT 
Any and all product, whether in the form of calculations, letters, findings, opinions, or the like, 
shall be the property of Hays County during and after performance of the Work.  Contractor shall 
have a right to retain a copy of all Work product for record-keeping purposes. 
 
22. TERMINATION BY COUNTY 
This Agreement may be terminated by Hays County, for any reason whatsoever, by providing 
thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor. Any approved services provided under this 
Agreement up to the date of termination may be invoiced by Contractor after the termination date, 
and payment of said invoice shall not be unreasonably withheld by the County. 
 

Signatures by the parties to this Professional Services Agreement follow on the next page. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the undersigned have duly executed and delivered this Professional 
Services Agreement. and hereby declare that THEY HAVE READ AND DO UNDERSTAND 
AND AGREE TO EACH AND EVERY TERM. CONDITION, AND COVENANT 
CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND IN ANY DOCUMENT IN CORPORA TED BY 
REFERENCE. 

Hays County. Texas 

Bv: Ruben Becerra 
Hays County Judge 

Prot'cssiL)nal Service� Agreement - Page 6 of 11 

Broaddus & Associates 

By: Paul Webb 
Chief Operating Officer 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 7 of 11 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Management Scope of Services and Fee Schedule 
 
Contractor shall provide a primary point of contact for the County.  Contractor shall coordinate 
with the Hays County Director of Countywide Operations, under direction of the Hays County 
Commissioners Court, on all activities related to the Project. Contractor shall lead and coordinate 
activities associated with the planning, design and construction of modifications, improvements, 
and additions  to  the Hays County Government Center and site located at 712 S. Stagecoach Trail 
in San Marcos, Texas as directed by the County, including, 1) work with the Director of 
Countywide Operations  or designee(s) along with other County identified parties to determine 
needed improvements, appropriate design solutions, and delivery methods, 2) lead and coordinate 
all activities associated with preconstruction services resulting in conceptual designs and cost 
estimates, 3) assist in the procurement and contracting of professional services and contractors, 
and 4) provide construction oversight services.   
 
The Contractor will act as a representative of Hays County and assist through all phases of the 
Project requested by the County. The Project Manager shall not in any respect serve as a Designer 
of Record, General Contractor, or Sub-Contractor for any phase of the Project.  The following is a 
list of services to be provided by the Project Manager and is not intended to be all inclusive. 
Services and tasks that are necessary to achieve all phases of the Project are also included and will 
be required in accordance with Project Management Best Practices. Also included, whether 
enumerated or not, are services and tasks necessary to comply with applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations. Depending on the phase of the Project, Hays County will appoint a 
point of contact person responsible for coordinating the County’s design & Construction needs. 
 
The County has identified the following phases needed for the 3-year period of performance for 
the Project and can be further defined after final meeting between the County, Contractor, and 
HDR Architecture, pre-construction, procurement, construction phase, and post-construction 
phase.  The phase-specific descriptions provided below represent general requirements expected 
from the Program Management firm and its subconsultants. 
 
All Phases – General Services Required 
The following services are general in nature and are required during all phases of the Project: 

 Serve as a representative of Hays County during all phases of the Project. 
 Consult with the Hays County Commissioners Court, upon request, for the purpose of 

reviewing the status of the Project and its various phases, and for the purpose of developing 
strategies necessary to achieve the goals of the County. 

 The Project Manager will oversee and manage all aspects of the Project and report to the 
County on a weekly basis. Reviews to be provided include all aspects of the planning, 
development, architecture, engineering, design including renderings, procurement and 
construction management. 

 The Project Manager will review and update the County on the overall master program 
schedule, overall master project schedule, and incorporate the specific construction 
schedules when appropriate. These schedules should include every aspect of each phase of 
the Project. 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 8 of 11 

 Provide general administrative management of the construction management tasks. Such 
as but not limited to architectural, engineering, scheduling, cost estimating, construction 
administration, warranty phase support and all other services necessary to complete the 
Project and / the specific phase at issue. 

 Services shall be comprehensive in nature and will include in-depth review of 
programming, conceptual design, schematic design, design development, design 
renderings, and final construction documents. 

 Specialized professional services may be required including, but not limited to: life cycle 
costing; utility infrastructure design; interior design; acoustics; lighting; interior 
wayfinding signage and graphics; and landscape design. 

 Develop and maintain (in cooperation with Hays County), a monthly reporting document 
that indicates the status of the Project and the phases at issue in terms of percentage of 
completion, cost per square foot, approved change orders, schedule, etc. 

 Provide suggested modifications to the scope of the Project and the phase at issue. 
 Work with County awarded contractors, i.e. electrical, plumbing, HVAC, when warranted. 
 Assist the County, if requested by the Hays County Commissioners Court, in locating 

property needed for future expansion projects and securing the professional services 
(realtor, inspection, etc.) related to any such purchases and/or lease agreements. 

 
Inception & Feasibility Phase 

 Assist the County in developing a consensus as to the objectives and scope of the Project  
and its various phases. 

 Examine the environment and existing facilities. 
 Provide a cost estimate with various options to assist in determining feasibility. 
 Define Risks 
 

Pre-Construction Phase 
 Establish and maintain communication protocol between Hays County, Architect, 

Engineer, and General Contractor. 
 Review design documents, drawings, specifications for constructability, scheduling, 

consistency and coordination. 
 Notify Hays County of Design and Budget concerns throughout the design process. 
 Develop detailed cost estimates at various phases of design, as desired. 
 Assist the Purchasing Department, and the Architect/Engineer (A/E) Firm with the 

development, preparation and review of bid specifications for new phases of the Project 
where Project Management services would be needed. 

 Assist the Purchasing Department to answer any questions received to ensure complete 
understanding of the County’s intent. 

 Assist in the evaluation of bids/proposals received and offer recommendations. 
 Collect, organize, and analyze the data into a format conducive to receiving responses for 

inclusion in the analysis of the bids/ proposals. 
 Evaluate eligibility, cost sharing and benefits structure and network savings. 

 Evaluate cost containment alternatives to help control current and future plan costs in 
conjunction with the rate review. 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 9 of 11 

 Prepare a spreadsheet analysis of bids/proposals received so that a comparison can be 
made. 

 Prepare a narrative, with recommendations, discussing the bids/proposals and various 
options under consideration. 

 Assist Purchasing and Legal Counsel with contract negotiations. 
 Establish progress payments schedule for the construction work and other services, etc. 

of the Project. 
 Monitor and maintain all party’s efforts for conformance to schedule and budget. 
 Monitor contractors’ progress with project start-up activities (mobilization, securing 

permits, providing submittal data, securing temporary utilities, etc.) 
 Secure construction schedules from the contractor and review for compliance with the 

established schedule of the Project and / or the specific phase of the Project as 
applicable. 

 Incorporate the contractor’s schedule within the overall schedules of the phases and the 
Project as a whole, as well as updating the same on a regular basis as determined by 
the Hays County Commissioners Court. 

 Coordinate with local Utilities, Cities, Entities, etc. on Hays County’s behalf. 
 

Construction Phase 
 Facilitate and oversee every aspect of the construction of the Project and its various 

phases to ensure their successful executions. 
 Establish and maintain communication protocol between Hays County, 

Architect/Engineer, and the General Contractor. Document all communication during 
construction phase. 

 Coordinate construction logistics between the General Contractor and Hays County. 
 Attend, arrange and conduct a variety of meetings, as requested by Hays County. 
 Review the safety programs of each contractor and make appropriate recommendations 

to ensure the safety of Hays County staff and taxpayers. 
 In conjunction with the Architect/Engineer Firm, implement procedures for submittals, 

change orders, pay requests, etc. 
 Review Request for Information (RFI) and architect/engineer’s supplemental 

instructions. Track submittals as required through completion of the process. 
 Assist in developing priorities for adjusting scope of work to match funds availability 

and assist in coordination with authorities having jurisdiction as necessary. 
 Monitor overall budget and schedule and advise Hays County of any trends that affect 

the timely procedures and cost-effective completion of the Project and its various 
phases. 

 Coordinate third-party testing and/or inspection services with Hays County approved 
vendors. 

 Review pay requests, adjust as needed, and certify for payment. 
 Review and verify General Contractor’s Project record drawings and schedule are 

updated to reflect all changes of work completed before each progress payment. 
 Based on review of the project on a daily basis, make recommendations for rejection 

and correction of sub-standard work to A/E, and Hays County. 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 10 of 11 

 Maintain force account records when work must be done prior to approval of change 
order. 

 Assist in reviewing claims submitted, prepare cost estimates, and make 
recommendations for the Hays County approval. 

 Assist with inspections and preparation of punch lists; walks with A/E to develop 
Subcontractor punch list, along with A/E punch list. 

 Maintain thorough knowledge of the plans and specifications. 
 Provide and monitor inspection of the construction as follows: 

o Frequently inspect the work for progress, workmanship, and conformance with 
the Contract Documents. 

o Review special inspection and material testing reports to verify conformance 
with the Contract Documents. 

o When work is found to be in non-conformance, document the deficiencies and 
promptly provide written notification of the deficiencies to the 
Architect/Engineer, Hays County and General Contractor. 

o Verify that deficiencies have been corrected and/or approved by applicable 
party. 

o Issue inspection deficiency list to the Architect/Engineer, Hays County and 
General Contractor. Conduct inspections and track deficiencies through 
correction. 

o Coordinate the issuance of the certificates of Substantial/Final Completion. 
 
Post-Construction Phase 
 Coordinate and expedite transmittals of as-built drawings and record documents to 

Hays County and other entities as required. 
 Secure copies of Occupancy certificates. 
 Ensure that operations and maintenance manuals and records are compiled, organized, 

and indexed properly. 
 Verify all Warranties are submitted and in accordance with Contract Documents. 
 Assist Hays County with implementing the Occupancy Plan/Schedule. 
 Prepare all closeout documents to include final phase of Project / Project accounting, 

cost per unit comparisons and close-out reports. (provide a sample during as part of the 
RFP) 

 Evaluate the performance of the construction the contractor and subcontractors, and 
provide evaluation, in writing, to Hays County. 

 Ensure staff has received all necessary training for operation of new building and 
systems. 

 Coordinate the completion of all punch list items in designated time frame. Maintain 
accurate warranty log data. Respond daily to all warranty items through the one-year 
warranty period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Professional Services Agreement - Page 11 of 11 

Exhibit B 
Broaddus & Associates Hourly Rate Sheet 

For 2024 Only 
 
 

Program Management Team 
Role Rate 

Program Executive Support    $                     235  
Sr. Project Manager  $                     225  

Sr. Planner  $                     215  
Project/Construction Manager  $                     175  

Project Controls  $                     150  
Cost Estimating Manager  $                     175  

Scheduling   $                     160  
 
Note:  3% rate escalation per year is included for hourly rates starting on 1 Jan 2025 and in each 
subsequent year. 



19
60

3.
0%

16
3.

33
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Y
ea

r
H

ou
rs

Pr
og

ra
m

 F
ee

20
24

2,
94

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
64

1,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
at

e
20

25
1,

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
4,

23
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
26

1,
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

7,
85

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

27
98

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
1,

65
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
7,

84
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
81

5,
64

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

85
5,

64
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  16
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

B
on

d 
R

ef
er

en
du

m

Ja
n-

24
Fe

b-
24

M
ar

-2
4

A
pr

-2
4

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n-

24
Ju

l-2
4

A
ug

-2
4

Se
p-

24
O

ct
-2

4
N

ov
-2

4
D

ec
-2

4
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
Pr

og
ra

m
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
pp

or
t  

23
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sr

. P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

22
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Sr

. P
la

nn
er

21
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pr

oj
ec

t/C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
os

t E
st

im
at

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sc

he
du

lin
g 

16
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

ot
al

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
94

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
64

1,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ja
n-

25
Fe

b-
25

M
ar

-2
5

A
pr

-2
5

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25
Ju

l-2
5

A
ug

-2
5

Se
p-

25
O

ct
-2

5
N

ov
-2

5
D

ec
-2

5
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
Pr

og
ra

m
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
pp

or
t  

24
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sr

. P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

23
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
4,

23
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Sr

. P
la

nn
er

22
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t/C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
18

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls
15

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
os

t E
st

im
at

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

18
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sc

he
du

lin
g 

16
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

ot
al

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
45

4,
23

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ja
n-

26
Fe

b-
26

M
ar

-2
6

A
pr

-2
6

M
ay

-2
6

Ju
n-

26
Ju

l-2
6

A
ug

-2
6

Se
p-

26
O

ct
-2

6
N

ov
-2

6
D

ec
-2

6
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
Pr

og
ra

m
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
pp

or
t  

24
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sr

. P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

23
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

46
7,

85
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Sr

. P
la

nn
er

22
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t/C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
18

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls
15

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
os

t E
st

im
at

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

18
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sc

he
du

lin
g 

17
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

ot
al

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

7,
85

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ja
n-

27
Fe

b-
27

M
ar

-2
7

A
pr

-2
7

M
ay

-2
7

Ju
n-

27
Ju

l-2
7

A
ug

-2
7

Se
p-

27
O

ct
-2

7
N

ov
-2

7
D

ec
-2

7
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
FT

E
Pr

og
ra

m
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
pp

or
t  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Sr
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
25

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

98
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

1,
65

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
88

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

39
4,

24
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

Sr
. P

la
nn

er
24

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
96

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

1,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pr
oj

ec
t/C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

23
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t C
on

tro
ls

19
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

os
t E

st
im

at
in

g 
M

an
ag

er
16

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
19

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
98

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
1,

65
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

84
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
81

5,
64

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

R
ol

e
Ja

n 
20

25
-J

un
 2

02
7:

 P
rim

ar
y 

Po
in

t o
f C

on
ta

ct
 (S

r P
M

) i
nc

lu
de

d 
ho

w
ev

er
, n

o 
pr

oj
ec

t s
pe

ci
fic

 su
pp

or
t d

et
er

m
in

ab
le

 a
t t

hi
s t

im
e.

  P
ro

gr
am

/p
ro

je
ct

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

su
pp

or
t w

ill
l b

e 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 N

ov
 2

02
4 

B
on

d 
R

ef
er

en
du

m

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls
C

os
t E

st
im

at
in

g 
M

an
ag

er
Sc

he
du

lin
g 

Ju
ly

 2
02

4 
-J

un
 2

02
7:

 R
ep

re
se

nt
s 3

 y
ea

r P
er

io
d 

of
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

PS
A

Pr
og

ra
m

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Su

pp
or

t  
Sr

. P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

Sr
. P

la
nn

er
Pr

oj
ec

t/C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er

A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

:
Ju

ly
 2

02
4-

D
ec

 2
02

4:
 In

cl
ud

es
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
ef

fo
rts

 in
 su

pp
or

t o
f d

ef
in

in
g 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

4 
B

on
d 

R
ef

er
en

du
m

 
Ju

ly
 2

02
4-

D
ec

 2
02

4:
 In

cl
ud

es
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f H

ay
s C

ou
nt

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
en

te
r S

ec
ur

ity
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 p

ro
je

ct

20
27

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ot
al

R
ol

e
R

at
e

To
ta

l H
rs

A
m

ou
nt

To
ta

l H
rs

A
m

ou
nt

20
25

R
ol

e
R

at
e

To
ta

l H
rs

A
m

ou
nt

20
26

R
ol

e
R

at
e

To
ta

l H
rs

A
m

ou
nt

H
A

Y
S 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s -
 S

ta
ff

in
g 

Pl
an

 - 
B

ro
ad

du
s &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

FE
E

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

R
at

e
To

ta
l H

rs

Pl
an

ni
ng

/P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
Ph

as
e

20
24

R
ol

e

Pr
oj

ec
t E

xp
en

se
 A

llo
w

an
ce

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

D
ire

ct
 (B

ill
ab

le
) H

ou
rs

 / 
Y

ea
r

A
nn

ua
l H

ou
rly

 R
at

e 
In

cr
ea

se
   

H
ou

rs
 p

er
 M

on
th

A
m

ou
nt



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 16.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Amend the Election Contract Fee Fund continuing education budget for training expenses related to the 42nd Annual
Election Law Seminar for County Election Officials to be held in Austin, Tx on August 12-14, 2024. IN GALSBE/IN GALSBE/DD OIN OFFOIN OFF

Summary:Summary:
The Election Administrator and three staff members will attend the annual Election Law Seminar in Austin, Tx.  This
seminar will provide legislative updates, laws governing precincts & polling places, early voting in person requirements,
election security resources and much more.  Funding for the registration is reimbursable through the Chapter 19 Funds. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,750
Line Item Number: 002-655-00.5551

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: Election Contract Fee Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Funds will be reimbursed by Chapter 19 funding.
$1,750 - Increase Continuing Education 002-655-00.5551
($1,750) - Decrease Election Expense 002-655-00.5446

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: training registration and travel must follow the purchasing policy

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: Reimbursable per Texas Election Code Chapter 19
Comments:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 17.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the execution of a Second Amendment to the Hays County American Rescue Plan Recovery Social Service
Funding Agreement between Hays County and United Way for Greater Austin. IN GALSBEIN GALSBE

Summary:Summary:
The United Way has reached out to request a de-obligation of funds to their current ARPA contract. The initial award was
based on national baseline projections and after rolling out the program, the needs within Hays County have pivoted from
screenings to more treatment related issues with lower numbers than anticipated participating in the program.  Therefore, at
the request of the United Way director, this amendment reduces the total contract award down from $1,187,219 to $696,564.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: None (-$490,655 reduction)
Line Item Number: 011-763-99-167.5448

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: De-obligated funds will be utilized to offset ongoing costs of Hays County programs that have been rolled out
utilizing ARPA funding. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
United Way ARPA Exhibit A
United Way ARPA PW
United Way ARPA Amendment No. 2



Outreach & Navigation Program Total
Outreach $5,000
Patient Navigation (40/month) $250,290
Screening & Diagnostics Program Total
# Patients Funded by ACT for Screening and Diagnostic Services 50
ACT Screening Mammogram Funding $8,000
Treatment & Insurance Program Total
# Patients Funded by ACT 13
ACT Treatment & Insurance Funding $369,950
Administration Program Total
Administration $63,324
Total Budget for Hays County $696,564

EXHIBIT A

ACT Budget For Hays County*

*Note 1: Cost categories are preliminary estimates and will be adjusted no later than annually, based on actual patient care data.

*Note 2: Based on UWATX’s experience in Hays County they have identified significant need in the community for residents up to 250% of federal poverty 
level. Recipients have broad flexibility to identify and respond to pandemic impacts and serve populations that experienced pandemic impacts. This response 
would address the barriers of residents already facing multiple obstacles to screening, such as time, and a lack of health insurance. These barriers are faced 
disproportionately by racial, ethnic and low-income groups, the same groups that have been disproportionately impacted by the pandemic. This impacted 
class is defined using the CDC’s National Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program’s criteria of women who are uninsured or underinsured and 
whose family income is at or below 250% of the federal poverty level.



 

  
2022 

HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue 
Hays Cancer Screening & 
Treatment 

HAYS COUNTY ARPA SLFRF PROJECT 

ERIC BOEHNING 



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  1 | 7 

 

HCTX101_ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer 
Screening &Treatment 
 

1 ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening/Treatment Overview ................................................................ 2 

1.1 Designating a Public Health Impact .............................................................................................. 2 

1.2 Designing a response to a pandemic harm ................................................................................... 3 

1.3 Program Summary ........................................................................................................................ 3 

1.4 Program Outline ............................................................................................................................ 4 

2 Comparative Analysis ............................................................................................................................ 5 

2.1 Reasonableness & Proportionality ................................................................................................ 5 

3 Eligibility ................................................................................................................................................ 6 

3.1 Final Rule ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.2 Impacted Class .............................................................................................................................. 6 

  



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  2 | 7 

 

1 ACT – RESCUE HAYS CANCER SCREENING/TREATMENT OVERVIEW 

1.1 DESIGNATING A PUBLIC HEALTH IMPACT 
The Journal of the National Cancer Institute published an estimate that the pandemic could lead to 

2,500 excess breast cancer deaths in the coming decade. 1 In Texas, the American Cancer Society 

estimates 21,040 new cases of breast cancer.2 

Cancer-screening outreach was one of the pandemic’s biggest casualties, particularly among racial, 

ethnic and low-income groups that have historically had lower access to screening tests and are far less 

likely to be up-to-date on cancer screening than white and high-income patients. The CDC’s National 

Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program (NBCCEDP), designed to help those with low 

incomes who do not have adequate insurance gain access to timely breast and cervical cancer screening, 

diagnostic, and treatment services, saw the total number of cancer screening tests received by women 

through the program declined by 87% for breast cancer during April 2020 as compared with the 

previous 5-year averages for that month.3 

Dr. Rachel Issaka, a gastroenterologist and assistant professor at Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research 

Center and University of Washington states “Before the pandemic, African-Americans, Hispanics and 

Native Americans were not screening at high rates. With COVID, my concern was that these same 

populations that were hard hit by the pandemic wouldn’t come for screening,” Texas Cancer Registry 

data shows that only about 40% of uninsured women in Texas were getting mammograms on the 

recommended schedule even before the pandemic.4 

Kathy Briant, assistant director for the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center’s office of community 

outreach and engagement works with the least likely to receive cancer screening and the hardest hit by -

COVID: minorities, frontline workers, and people who were losing jobs, struggling financially and dealing 

with SARS-CoV-2 infections. She learned relatively quickly that cancer screening was not a priority for 

many in these communities. There was fear of COVID, but there were other reasons, too: no time, no 

childcare, a lack of health insurance or the inability to afford copays. People had more immediate needs, 

such as finding transportation to vaccine appointments and someone to help if they had COVID. 

Issaka’s research from a safety-net hospital found that the pandemic added more barriers so patients 

already facing multiple obstacles to screening, including lack of transportation and no coordination 

among specialist to get tests scheduled, were most impacted. 5 

 
1 Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on Breast Cancer Mortality in the US: Estimates From Collaborative Simulation 
Modeling, JNCI; Journal of the National Cancer Institute, Volume 113, Issue 11, November 2021, 
2 https://cancerstatisticscenter.cancer.org/?_ga=2.242447682.1175355820.1650287128-
437624557.1650287128#!/data-analysis/module/BmVYeqHT?type=barGraph 
3 COVID-19 impact on screening test volume through the National Breast and Cervical Cancer early detection 
program, January-June 2020, in the United States 
4 Female Breast Cancer in Texas | Texas Department of State Health Services June 2019 
5 The COVID Cancer Effect; Scientific American 325, 6, (December 2021) 



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  3 | 7 

 

1.2 DESIGNING A RESPONSE TO A PANDEMIC HARM 
The report in the Journal of the National Cancer Institute that suggested an excess in breast cancer 

deaths also offered a solution:  

“Continued efforts to ensure prompt return to screening and minimize delays in evaluation of 

symptomatic women can largely mitigate the effects of the initial pandemic-associated 

disruptions,” 

Likewise, the Scientific American article the COVID Cancer Effect states: 

“Some oncologists say this “risk stratification”—prioritizing screening, diagnosis and treatment 

for those most at risk or with obvious symptoms—should stay in place after the pandemic ends 

so treatment can be provided quickly to those who need it most.” 

Hays County will provide cancer screening, diagnostics, treatment, and insurance to its residents 

through a subrecipient agreement of $696,564 with United Way for Greater Austin (UWATX). This 

response would address the barriers of residents already facing multiple obstacles to screening, such as 

time, and a lack of health insurance. These barriers are faced disproportionately by racial, ethnic and 

low-income groups, the same groups that have been disproportionately impacted by the pandemic. This 

impacted class is defined using the NBCCEDP’s criteria of women who are uninsured or underinsured 

and whose family income is at or below 250% of the federal poverty level. 

The return to screening for this impacted class will minimize delays in evaluation that lead to excess 

death and efforts to ensure prompt access to screening, diagnostic evaluation, and treatment should 

mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on breast cancer mortality and on negative economic 

impacts on the entire community. 

1.3 PROGRAM SUMMARY 
Addressing Cancer Together (ACT) - Rescue Hays will provide screening, diagnosis, navigation and 

treatment of breast cancer for people in Hays County through a subrecipient agreement of $696,564 

with UWATX. ACT is operated by UWATX (a 501 (c)(3) that normally receives a substantial part of its 

support from a governmental unit or from the general public, which provides governance, grant 

management, financial oversight and patient support for identified patients. The ACT – Rescue Hays 

program will be part of a regional collaboration with Williamson County, Bastrop County, and the City of 

San Marcos where UWATX is providing the same services.  

UWATX provides access and navigation to screening, diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer for 

women in Hays County who are uninsured and whose family income is at or below 250% of the federal 

poverty level. UWATX program staff reviews and verifies eligibility criteria and is contracted through a 

subrecipient agreement.  

This subrecipient, UWATX, will be responsible for collecting and managing all eligibility documentation. 

The subrecipient agreement ensures access to UWATX’s records pertaining to this program. Audits will 

be performed by the County to determine compliance with program requirements. Oversight of 

spending and program progress will be monitored through submission of UWATX’s general ledger.  

UWATX will earn an administrative fee that is not to exceed 10% of the grant.  



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  4 | 7 

 

 

1.4 PROGRAM OUTLINE 
A subrecipient agreement with the UWATX will support eligible Hays County residents to access 

screening, diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer.  For those who are eligible, UWATX will pay for 

services and also help qualifying individuals access financial assistance programs that offset the cost of 

their care.  

1.4.1 Eligibility  

 Ages 50 - 74 

 Ages 40 - 50 identified as high risk for breast cancer 

 Living at or below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level  

 Uninsured and not eligible for other resources 

 Resident of Hays County 

Eligibility for the program may change over time in accordance with the US Preventive Services Task 

Force guidelines for screening or other expert opinions in evidence based practice. A second source of 

referral is the Big Pink Bus, a mobile mammography unit operated by Lone Star Circle of Care. 

1.4.2 Eligibility Determination 

Patients are screened for eligibility by primary care and community providers and referred to UWATX. A 

primary referral source for Hays County is Community Action, an experienced provider of screening and 

navigation for people seeking breast health services. 

 Providers are required to review financial documentation to determine income level and 

financial eligibility. 

 Providers are required to screen individuals to determine eligibility for other state and federal 

resources, including Breast and Cervical Cancer Services (BCCS) and Medicaid for Breast and 

Cervical Cancer (MBCC) so that Hays funds dedicated to UWATX are used only where necessary 

to fill screening, diagnosis and treatment gaps 

UWATX program staff reviews and verifies eligibility criteria.  

1.4.3 Services 

The funds for ACT – Rescue Hays will be used to cover the continuum of care required to identify and 

treat breast cancers including the following: 

 Outreach 

 Screening (at fixed sites or on the Big Pink Bus) 

 Diagnostics and Biopsies 

 Medical and Social Services Navigation 

 Surgery 

 Outpatient Treatment (e.g. chemotherapy infusion, radiation) 

 Medications 

 Administrative costs (No more than 10% of grant) 



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  5 | 7 

 

1.4.4 Monitoring & Oversight 

Due to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), in order to protect sensitive 

patient health information from being disclosed without the patient's consent or knowledge UWATX as 

the subrecipient will be responsible for collecting and managing all eligibility documentation. The 

subrecipient agreement ensures access to UWATX’s records pertaining to this program. Audits may be 

performed by the County to determine compliance with program requirements at the discretion of the 

County.  

Oversight of spending and program progress will be monitored through submission of UWATX’s general 

ledger. All of the providers who are screening, diagnosing or treating patients are providers of 

professional services. UWATX will track and verify costs for treating ACT patients. 

2 COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS 

2.1 REASONABLENESS & PROPORTIONALITY 
UWATX has provided a budget with estimated costs per line item along with the number of people they 

believe that they will reach with the ACT – Rescue Hays program. For the Outreach portion of the 

budget UWATX is targeting 3,551 residents for a total $52,934 out of their total budget of $1,187,219, or 

4%. For comparison we can look at Deloitte’s chief marketing officers (CMO) survey6 where on average, 

across multiple industries, marketing was 11% of the total company budget.  

ACT Outreach Budget 4% 

CMO Survey Marketing Budget 11% 

 

The Screening Mammogram budget line estimates screening 870 people at a total cost (not covered by 

BCCS) of $120,929. This results in an average cost of $139 per screening which is based on the Medicaid 

rate. According to a study in the March 23 edition of Journal of American Medical Association Internal 

Medicine the average cost of screening mammography was $353 per beneficiary.7 

Act Screening Mammogram Budget $139 

Average Cost of Screening Mammogram $353 

 

The Diagnostic Services line item encompasses a multitude of potential services that are dependent on 

each individual’s respective case. It also accounts for a de minimus 3% of the overall budget. Diagnostic 

services are paid at 100% of Medicaid rates. As such no direct cost comparison is being made.  

The Treatment & Insurance line item is the largest cost driver in the budget at $872,228 for 16 

estimated patients yielding an average per patient cost of $54,514. The proposed budget would pay for 

treatment and help qualifying individuals secure insurance and help pay the premiums for up to 2 years 

 
6 https://deloitte.wsj.com/articles/who-has-the-biggest-marketing-budgets-1485234137 
7 JAMA Internal Medicine | Use and Costs of Breast Cancer Screening for Women in Their 40s in a US Population 
With Private Insurance 



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  6 | 7 

 

from diagnosis. The average Texas health insurance premium is $523 per month8, totaling $12,558 for 

24 months.  

Table 1: Average per-Patient Allowed Costs, by Service Type9 

ACT Treatment & Insurance Budget $54,514 

Outpatient + Insurance $61,036 

Inpatient + Insurance $36,599 

 

Table 1 shows the average costs per patient allowed by the insurance company in the year after 

diagnosis for all stages of breast cancer according to a Journal of American Health & Drug Benefit study. 

Treatment, like diagnosis, is dependent on each patient’s situation therefore its costs can be wide 

ranging. Costs for inpatient procedures averaged $12,248 over 2 years in the study while outpatient 

costs averaged $36,385 over the same 2 years. There is also a myriad of other costs that could be 

applied in either case with an additional average cost of $11,793 over 2 years.  

 

In the budget provided by UWATX their prices are either below or in line with averages when compared 

to independent sources. The budget as presented is reasonable. It is important to note that these per 

patient costs are estimated based on the best data available, and that patient conditions vary widely, so 

cost line items may change. UWATX will report at least annually on any expected changes to all budget 

line items, and will be responsible for staying within the overall project budget. 

3 ELIGIBILITY  

3.1 FINAL RULE10 
The following are enumerated projects that are deemed eligible by Treasury if they serve 

disproportionately impacted households and communities: 

 Investments in neighborhoods to promote improved health outcomes 

 Community health workers to help households access health & social services 

 Integration of health services into other settings, and  

 other investments in medical equipment & facilities designed to address health disparities 

3.2 IMPACTED CLASS 
Step 1. Identify a COVID-19 public health or negative economic impact on an individual or a class. 

Recipients should identify an individual or class that is “impacted” or “disproportionately impacted” by 

 
8 https://www.texashealthplancompare.com/app/full-benefit 
9Journal of American Health & Drug Benefit Comparison of Treatment Costs for Breast Cancer, by Tumor Stage and 
Type of Service 
10 31 CFR Part 35 - PANDEMIC RELIEF PROGRAMS Subpart A— CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY 
FUNDS 



HCTX101_ ACT – Rescue Hays Cancer Screening & Treatment 

 

P a g e  7 | 7 

 

the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts as well as the specific impact 

itself. 

 “Impacted” entities are those impacted by the disease itself or the harmful consequences of the 

economic disruptions resulting from or exacerbated by the COVID- 19 public health emergency. 

For example, an individual who lost their job or a small business that saw lower revenue during 

a period of closure would both have experienced impacts of the pandemic. 

Recipients also have broad flexibility to identify a “class” – or a group of households, small businesses, or 

nonprofits – that experienced an impact. In these cases, the recipients should first identify the class and 

the impact that it faced. Then, recipients only need to document that the individuals served fall within 

that class; recipients do not need to document a specific impact to each individual served. For example, 

a recipient could identify that restaurants in the downtown area faced substantial declines in revenue 

due to decreased foot traffic from workers; the recipient could develop a program to respond to the 

impact on that class and only needs to document that the businesses being served are restaurants in the 

downtown area. 

Step 2. Design a response that addresses or responds to the impact. Programs, services, and other 

interventions must be reasonably designed to benefit the individual or class that experienced the 

impact. They must also be related and reasonably proportional to the extent and type of impact 

experienced. For example, uses that bear no relation or are grossly disproportionate to the type or 

extent of the impact would not be eligible. 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT  
HAYS COUNTY SOCIAL SERVICE FUNDING AGREEMENT  

WITH UNITED WAY FOR GREATER AUSTIN 
 

This Second Amendment to the Hays County Funding Agreement for Social Services (the 
“Amendment”) is entered into by and between United Way for Greater Austin (the “Agency”) and 
Hays County, Texas (the “County”), parties to the Hays County Social Service Funding Agreement 
executed on or about August 17, 2022 (“Agreement”). By execution of this Amendment, the parties 
agree that the Agreement shall be amended effective July 30, 2024. 
 
The Agency and the County now desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as more particularly set 
forth below: 
 

1. Funding Agreement 
a. I. General Overview is amended as follows:  

 
“The Agency agrees to accept the not to exceed amount of $1,187,219.00 $696,564.00 that will 
be disbursed from ARPA Act Funds.” 
 

a. III. County Performance Requirements is amended as follows:  
 

“3.1  County Payment Responsibility. After receipt of the Agency's invoices, the 
County will endeavor to pay the Allowable Expenditures as soon as possible, 
but in any event no more than once monthly. The County shall have no 
obligation to pay Agency any Allowable Expenses over $1,187,219 $696,564 
from ARPA Act Funds.” 

 
2. Project Writeup  

a. 1.2 Designing A Response to A Pandemic Harm is amended as follows: 
 

“Hays County will provide cancer screening, diagnostics, treatment, and insurance to its 
residents through a subrecipient agreement of $1,187,219 $696,564 with United Way for 
Greater Austin (UWATX).” 

 
b. 1.3 Program Summary is amended as follows: 

 
“Addressing Cancer Together (ACT) - Rescue Hays will provide screening, diagnosis, 
navigation and treatment of breast cancer for people in Hays County through a subrecipient 
agreement of $1,187,219 $696,564 with UWATX. ACT is operated by UWATX (a 501 (c)(3) 
that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the 
general public), which provides governance, grant management, financial oversight and patient 
support for identified patients. The ACT – Rescue Hays program will be part of a regional 
collaboration with Williamson County, Bastrop County, and the City of San Marcos where 
UWATX is providing the same services. 
 
UWATX provides access and navigation to screening, diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer 
for women in Hays County who are uninsured and whose family income is at or below 250% 
of the federal poverty level. UWATX will help uninsured individuals secure insurance and 
help pay the premiums for up to 2 years from diagnosis. UWATX program staff reviews and 
verifies eligibility criteria and is contracted through a subrecipient agreement.” 



 

2 
 

 
c. 1.4 Program Outline is amended as follows: 

 
“A subrecipient agreement with the UWATX will support eligible Hays County residents to 
access screening, diagnosis and treatment of breast cancer. For those who are eligible, UWATX 
will pay for services and also help qualifying individuals secure insurance and help pay the 
premiums for up to 2 years from diagnosis access financial assistance programs that offset 
the cost of their care. UWATX will work with Hays County and other community and civic 
partners to establish an appropriate mechanism to pay insurance premiums on behalf of 
patients to ensure support for the approach.” 
   

d. 1.4.1 Eligibility is amended as follows 
 

“Eligibility for the program may change over time in accordance with the US Preventive 
Services Task Force guidelines for screening or other expert opinions in evidence based 
practice.” 
 

e. 1.4.2 Eligibility Determination is amended as follows: 
 
“A primary referral source for Hays County is Community Action, an experienced provider of 
screening and navigation for people seeking breast health services. A second source of referral 
is the Big Pink Bus, a mobile mammography unit operated by Lone Star Circle of Care.” 
 

f. 1.4.3 Services is amended as follows: 
 

“ • Outreach 
• Screening (at fixed sites or on the Big Pink Bus) 
• Diagnostics and Biopsies 
• Medical and Social Services  
• Navigation 
• Surgery 
• Outpatient Treatment (e.g. chemotherapy infusion, radiation) 
• Medications 
• Insurance Premiums for people who can transition to insurance 
• Administrative costs (No more than 10% of grant)” 

 
g. 1.4.3 Monitroing & Oversight is amended as follows: 

 
“Oversight of spending and program progress will be monitored through submission of 
UWATX’s general ledger. All of the providers who are screening, diagnosing or treating 
patients are providers of professional services. UWATX and will track and verify costs for 
treating ACT patients as they are submitted to UWATX.” 
 

 
3. Exhibit A is amended as follows: 

 

BUDGET ITEM 
BUDGETED  

AMOUNT 
REQUESTED  

CHANGE 
REVISED  
BUDGET 

SALARIES     



 

3 
 

FRINGE BENEFITS    

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - MEDICAL $727,000  ($348,050) $377,950  

INSURANCE PREMIUMS - ACCSS TRTMNT $297,000  ($97,000) $97,000  

OUTREACH $255,290   $255,290  

SUPPLIES     

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES     

RENT/UTILITIES     

DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC COSTS    

MISCELLANEOUS    

SUBCONTRACTS/CONSULTANTS    

INDIRECT COSTS $107,929  ($44,605) $63,324  

TOTAL $1,187,219  ($490,655)  $696,564  
 

 
The stricken language above shall be omitted, while the underlined language above shall be added. 
Except for the above modifications, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain 
unchanged, unless properly modified by subsequent amendment under the terms of the agreement. 
If there is conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the terms of this Amendment will 
prevail. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set 
forth below. 
 
 
UNITED WAY FOR GREATER AUSTIN  HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
David C. Smith, CEO     Ruben Becerra, County Judge 
 
DATE: __________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
       ATTEST: 

 
 
       _________________________________  
       Elaine H. Cardenas, County Clerk 
 
 
 
   



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 18.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Office of Emergency Services Department to purchase two light kit packages for new leased vehicles, amend
the budget accordingly, and authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes. BEC ER R A/JON ESBEC ER R A/JON ES

Summary:Summary:
The OES department was approved two new vehicles during the FY25 budget process.  The director would like to add
lighting to these vehicles in order for the Director and Fire Investigative staff to utilize these vehicles during emergencies. 
The OES department typically utilizes FarrWest for their vehicle attachments, which are typically covered under their
purchasing cooperative contract.  The OED Department reached out to another vendor to obtain a comparative quote, and it
was less than the contracted vendor.  The OES department would like to move forward with the cheaper quote and obtain a
waiver to the purchasing policy to move forward to get the vehicles outfitted in a timely manner.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $8,170
Line Item Number: 001-656-00.5713_400

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Salary and insurance savings are available for this purchase due to attrition. 
$8,170 - Increase Vehicles_Operating 001-656-00.5713_400
($3,270) - Decrease Staff Salaries 001-656-00.5021
($4,900) - Decrease Medical Insurance 001-656-00.5160_400
 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: no
Comments: waiver to the purchasing policy

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Intense Lighting Quote











AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 19.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sheriff Gary Cutler

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Approve out-of-state travel for Emergency Communications Manager Megan Jones to attend the Tyler Advisory Group
Meetings on September 11-12, 2024, in Troy, Michigan. IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

Summary:Summary:
Approve out-of-state travel for Emergency Communications Manager Megan Jones to attend the Tyler Advisory Group
Meetings on September 11-12, 2024, in Troy, Michigan. ECO Manager Jones is a member of the Tyler Advisory Board, and
this is a required meeting for Advisory Board members. Funding for travel expenses, including hotel, airfare, and rental car
fees, will be paid for out of the Sheriff's Office Continuing Education funds. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,600 (estimate)
Line Item Number: 001-618-00.5551

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: must follow the purchasing policy for all expenses.

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes 
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 20.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sheriff Gary Cutler

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Sheriff's Office to use existing funds to purchase vehicle cages valued at $29,546.10 from Dana Safety
Supply, Inc.   IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

Summary:Summary:
The Sheriff's Office requests to use existing funds to purchase vehicle equipment valued at $29,546.10 from Dana Safety
Supply, Inc. using their TIPS contract #240102.  The cages are needed for Jail transportation vehicles, and funding for this
request is available in the Sheriff's Office Vehicle Capital general ledger.  All items are covered under their TIPS contract
except for the tinting services.  Dana Safety Supply is attempting to add the tinting service under their current contract.  If the
tinting is not able to be added to the contract, then the Sheriff's Office will need to obtain three quotes per the purchasing
policy.  

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $29,546.10
Line Item Number: 001-618-00.5413_700

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Contract 240102, If tinting is not added to the contract, then they will
need to obtain three quotes per the purchasing policy.

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Dana Safety Quote #537751-A



800-845-0405Telephone: 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE LEASING LLC
1400 W 7th St
Ft Worth, TX 76102
United States

(For Pickup)
San Antonio -SANA
8154 Bracken Crk
San Antonio, TX 78266

Sales Quote

537751-B

CVLCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Contact: 
877-511-0101
JERRY HADDAD

682-888-4235
SCOTT BEAL

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via

NET30Ground QUOTED FREIGHT
Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson

MARTIN GONZALESSCOTT BEAL SAN ANTONIOScott Beal
Order 

Quantity
Extended 

Price
Unit 
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Approve 
Quantity

Quote Date

06/25/24

E-mail: E-mail: trinity.willis@dmcommercial.com ;coleen.greblick@dmcommercial.comSBEAL@DANASAFETYSUPPLY.COM

55 N 0.000.0000INFOa6YE0LB29G
TIPS USA CONTRACT #240-102

Warehouse: SANA
55 N 0.000.0000INFOa6XL0EW8B3

2023 DODGE CHARGER PURSUIT - JAIL TRANSPORT
Warehouse: SANA

55 Y 1,814.15362.8300425-6636a6YD13KGDE
JOTTO 2011+ CHARGER CONSOLE W/DUAL CUPHOLDERS

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $539.92

55 Y 272.1554.4300425-6260a6YD13N0RQ
JOTTO SIDE MOUNTED CONSOLE ARM REST

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $91.78

55 Y 515.00103.0000425-6701a6YD13OHM4
JOTTO FP Assy, 2" Blank Faceplate w/USB A/USB C & 12v

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $128.24

55 Y 64.8012.9600425-3692a6YD13Q9DW
JD MIC CLIP BRACKET

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $20.25

07/24/24
10:01:53 AM
1Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Scott Beal

Continued on Next Page

a6YD13Q9DW



800-845-0405Telephone: 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE LEASING LLC
1400 W 7th St
Ft Worth, TX 76102
United States

(For Pickup)
San Antonio -SANA
8154 Bracken Crk
San Antonio, TX 78266

Sales Quote

537751-B

CVLCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Contact: 
877-511-0101
JERRY HADDAD

682-888-4235
SCOTT BEAL

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via

NET30Ground QUOTED FREIGHT
Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson

MARTIN GONZALESSCOTT BEAL SAN ANTONIOScott Beal
Order 

Quantity
Extended 

Price
Unit 
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Approve 
Quantity

Quote Date

06/25/24

E-mail: E-mail: trinity.willis@dmcommercial.com ;coleen.greblick@dmcommercial.comSBEAL@DANASAFETYSUPPLY.COM

55 Y 215.9543.1900425-1485a6YD13VNVS
Jotto 4" Storage Box

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $71.54

55 Y 100.3520.0700425-6583a6YE0LBGRL
JOTTO Harris XL185M/XL200M (REMOTE HEAD)

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $49.94

55 Y 275.0055.0000MMSU-1a6XL0G5RN6
MAGNETIC MIC SINGLE UNIT CONVERSION KIT

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $75.00

55 Y 4,735.60947.1200475-0803a6YD13AIAV
JD SPACE CREATOR PARTITION, CENTER SLIDING WINDOW

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $1,147.32

2023 DODGE CHARGER PARTITION
55 Y 337.4567.4900475-0412a6YD13AHNV

JD LOWER SECURITY PANELS FOR CHARGER PARTITION
Warehouse: SANA

MSRP: $101.24

2023 DODGE CHARGER PARTITION LOWER KICK PANELS

07/24/24
10:01:53 AM
2Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Scott Beal

Continued on Next Page

a6YD13AHNV



800-845-0405Telephone: 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE LEASING LLC
1400 W 7th St
Ft Worth, TX 76102
United States

(For Pickup)
San Antonio -SANA
8154 Bracken Crk
San Antonio, TX 78266

Sales Quote

537751-B

CVLCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Contact: 
877-511-0101
JERRY HADDAD

682-888-4235
SCOTT BEAL

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via

NET30Ground QUOTED FREIGHT
Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson

MARTIN GONZALESSCOTT BEAL SAN ANTONIOScott Beal
Order 

Quantity
Extended 

Price
Unit 
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Approve 
Quantity

Quote Date

06/25/24

E-mail: E-mail: trinity.willis@dmcommercial.com ;coleen.greblick@dmcommercial.comSBEAL@DANASAFETYSUPPLY.COM

55 Y 940.40188.0800475-0228a6YD13D8P9
JD VERTICAL WINDOW GUARDS FOR 2011+ CHARGER

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $282.11

55 Y 2,200.25440.0500425-8103a6YD13H6I8
JOTTO TRUNK TRAY FOR 2011 DODGE CHARGER

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $630.00

55 Y 1,625.00325.0000TINTa6XL0FUM05
ALL WINDOWS AT 10% VLT - NO BROW

Warehouse: SANA
55 N 0.000.0000INFOa6XL0GGYYW

CUSTOMER SUPPLIED EQUIPMENT
Warehouse: SANA

HARRIS XL-200M RADIO  WITH POWER, DATA CABLES, ANTENNA 
AND COAX
COMPLETE AXON FLEET 3 CAMERA SYSTEM KIT

55 Y 575.00115.00007615Ba6XL0GJOUG
BLUE SEA, SOLENOID TIMER 120A 12VDC ATD

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $147.99

07/24/24
10:01:53 AM
3Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Scott Beal

Continued on Next Page

a6XL0GJOUG



800-845-0405Telephone: 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE LEASING LLC
1400 W 7th St
Ft Worth, TX 76102
United States

(For Pickup)
San Antonio -SANA
8154 Bracken Crk
San Antonio, TX 78266

Sales Quote

537751-B

CVLCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Contact: 
877-511-0101
JERRY HADDAD

682-888-4235
SCOTT BEAL

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via

NET30Ground QUOTED FREIGHT
Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson

MARTIN GONZALESSCOTT BEAL SAN ANTONIOScott Beal
Order 

Quantity
Extended 

Price
Unit 
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Approve 
Quantity

Quote Date

06/25/24

E-mail: E-mail: trinity.willis@dmcommercial.com ;coleen.greblick@dmcommercial.comSBEAL@DANASAFETYSUPPLY.COM

55 Y 275.0055.00005032Ba6XL0GJW2W
BLUE SEA SYSTEM FUSE BLOCK ST BLADE

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $82.99

55 Y 225.0045.00005025Ba6XL0GK3XG
BlueSea 6 Circuit ST Fuse Block w/ Cover & Ground Bus

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $52.49

55 Y 1,125.00225.0000INSTALL KITa6XL0GGQ65
MISC INSTALLATION SUPPLIES I.E.

Warehouse: SANA
MSRP: $350.00
LOOM, WIRE, HARDWARE, CONNECTORS,  ETC
************************************************

100100 Y 12,000.00120.0000LABORa6YE0LHAD4
LABOR

Warehouse: SANA
11 N 0.000.0000INSTALLa6XL0GJKMJ

DSS INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT
Warehouse: SANA

07/24/24
10:01:53 AM
4Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Scott Beal

Continued on Next Page

a6XL0GJKMJ



800-845-0405Telephone: 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE LEASING LLC
1400 W 7th St
Ft Worth, TX 76102
United States

(For Pickup)
San Antonio -SANA
8154 Bracken Crk
San Antonio, TX 78266

Sales Quote

537751-B

CVLCustomer No.

Sales Quote No.

Ship ToBill To

Contact: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Contact: 
877-511-0101
JERRY HADDAD

682-888-4235
SCOTT BEAL

Payment MethodCustomer PO NumberF.O.B.Ship Via

NET30Ground QUOTED FREIGHT
Entered By Resale NumberOrdered BySalesperson

MARTIN GONZALESSCOTT BEAL SAN ANTONIOScott Beal
Order 

Quantity
Extended 

Price
Unit 
Price

Item Number / DescriptionTax
Approve 
Quantity

Quote Date

06/25/24

E-mail: E-mail: trinity.willis@dmcommercial.com ;coleen.greblick@dmcommercial.comSBEAL@DANASAFETYSUPPLY.COM

Approved By:

Approve All Items & Quantities

Quote Good for 30 Days

07/24/24
10:01:53 AM
1Page No.

Print Time
Print Date

Printed By: Scott Beal

Order Total

Freight
Subtotal

 29,546.10

2,250.00
27,296.10

a6XL0GJKMJ



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 21.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sheriff Gary Cutler

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Sheriff's Office - Jail Division to purchase a replacement HVAC unit valued at $14,667.75 and amend the
budget accordingly. IN GALSBE/C U TLER IN GALSBE/C U TLER

Summary:Summary:
RTU2, located at the Jail, was serviced by SI Mechanical, and it was determined that it has a leaking coil and requires
replacement. SI Mechanical holds the county's HVAC contract and provided that replacing the unit at $14,667.75 would be
more cost-effective than repairs totaling $7,720.45. The unit is in stock and will be replaced by the end of the fiscal year.
Attached is SI Mechanical's quote, which references RFP 2022-P08 HVAC--Maintenance & Repair Services Contract. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $14,667.75
Line Item Number: 001-618-03.5719_700

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$14,668 - Increase Misc. Equipment_Capital 001-618-03.5719_700
($14,668) - Decrease Staff Salaries 001-618-03.5021

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Request for Proposal (RFP) 2022-P08 HVAC -- Maintenance & Repair Services, Jail

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
SI Mechanical Quote



TACLA00045892C

M-40867

To: BuyBoard# 638-21

Attn:

Re: RTU #2 Replacement

Labor Hours Rate

Tech(s)….......... 16 $105.00 Materials…............$7,130.20 Sub/Rental(s)….........$2,500.00 Hours…............. -$               

Hepler(s)...............................16 $75.00 Markup @ 25%…...............$1,782.55 Markup @ 15%…...............$375.00 Rate…............ -$               

Total….....................................$2,880.00 Total…............... $8,912.75 Total…................ $2,875.00 Total…................ -$               

HVAC Work: ………………………………………………….......................................................……............$14,667.75

Tax 8.25% $0.00

Total Price $14,667.75

2.  Lock-out, Tag-out & Deenergize energy source.

3.  Disconnect power, condensate lines, ductwork, and unit from curb.

4.  Remove old unit and set new via crane.

5.  Reconnect power, condensate lines, ductwork, and unit to curb.

6.  Startup unit and verify all operations.

7.  Clean up work area.

1.  Sales tax included.

6.  No coring, scanning, cutting, patching or concrete work.

7.  No removal of walls or ceiling to access "the work".

Josh Abbott
Service Department Manager Signed:

Office# 512-593-6001 ext. 103

Cell# 512-423-2970

Email# Josha@simechanical.com

We propose to install the follow HVAC work as outlined below per RFP 2022-P08 HVAC - Maintenance & Repair Services Contract.

1.  Furnish and install: (1) 5-Ton 460v/3ph Carrier RTU, (1) Carrier 21.5KW Heat Kit, (1) Economizer, (1) Hail Guard Kit, and 

Misc. Pipe Supplies

4.  No dumpsters or haul off.

8.  No structural steel framing or roofing.

Sincerely,

This proposal is based on acceptance of a mutually agreed upon subcontract agreement and may be withdrawn if 

not accepted with in 30 days.

5.  No fire alarm or smoke detectors.

9.  No other repairs are in this proposal other then listed above.

2.  All work performed during normal hours.

Note: This is an estimate only, additional parts and labor may be required. Project will be invoiced as Time & Materials.

Acceptance of Proposal:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are 

hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified.

3.  No electrical of any kind.

Scope of Work:

Bid Clarifications:

Rentals / Subcontractors Incured CostMaterials & Tools 

June 26, 2024

Hays County - Jail

Charles Dauwalder

Estimate

Regulated by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation,  PO Box 12157,  Austin, Texas 78711,  (800) 803-9202    

http://www.license.state.tx.us/      



13.  SI Mechancal, LLC will make every effort to locate and avoid building utilities.  It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to provide reference drawings 

and locate all hidden utilities in and around the work site.  SI Mechanical relies on this information to execute the work.  Damages to unmarked and unforseen 

building utilities is the responsibility of the Customer.     

14.  SI Mechanical, LLC does not accept consequencial damages or liquidated damges unless agreed to in writing.

The entire liability of S I Mechanical, LLC and client’s exclusive remedy for damages from any cause in connection with the work, including, but not limited to, 

nonperformance or misrepresentation, and regardless of the form of action, shall be limited to the annual Agreement fee of the current year.

5. This contract constitutes the entire agreement and is not assignable by either party.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written agreement 

of both parties. S I Mechanical, LLC is inclusive of it's affiliated companies.

6. S I Mechanical, LLC and it's affiliated companies shall not be responsible to customer or anyone else for the system design or its performance in maintaining 

design conditions.

7. The Heating, Ventilation, and Air-Conditioning equipment and systems installed, repaired or serviced as a part of this agreement may, under certain 

conditions, become conducive to or incidentally support microbiological growth.  S I Mechanical, LLC makes no claim nor warrants its work to protect against, 

eliminate or inhibit any type of microbiological growth, including but not limited to, molds, fungi and other related matter, in or around duct systems, HVAC and 

related equipment or areas adjacent to or in proximity of such systems and equipment.

12. S I Mechanical, LLC shall comply with it's affirmative action, environmental and safety policies as mandated by the government.

11. If S I Mechanical, LLC encounters asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)_) on the site, S I Mechanical, LLC will stop work and report the evidence of 

such to the customer.  S I Mechanical, LLC will not resume work in the affected area until the asbestos or PCB has been removed or determined harmless by a 

qualified laboratory.

9. Some projects require the use of heavy commercial hoisting or rigging equipment.  While all precautions will be exercised to protect the customer’s property.  

S I Mechanical, LLC will not accept any responsibility for damage to parking lots, driveways, or landscaping that may occur as a result of normal hoisting and 

rigging operations, excluding negligence or accidents.

10. Unless indicated otherwise, all pricing is based upon work being performed during regular working hours of 8:00am to 4:30 pm, Monday through Friday, 

except holidays.  If work is required at times other than normal working hours, the customer agrees to pay the difference between the regular and overtime 

charge.

2. Cancellation Clause: This agreement can only be cancelled by customer upon a 30-day written notice.  If in the event the customer cancels this agreement S I 

Mechanical, LLC will be due the balance of the annual contract for the current contract year or the cost plus profit incurred year to date, which ever is lesser of 

the two.

8. Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, S I Mechanical, LLC, its officers, directors, agents, assigns, successors and employees from any 

against any and all claims of damages or injury, of any kind or nature whatsoever, including claims of property damage or personal injury, due to any such 

microbiological growth in or emanating from any of the customer’s HVAC equipment or HVAC systems.

This proposal is conditional upon the following terms and conditions:

1. Customer agrees to pay S I Mechanical, LLC all sums due with respect to this proposal in accordance with the terms specified.  Payments are due upon 

receipt of invoice.  In the event payment is not received by S I Mechanical, LLC by the tenth day of the month following billing, such payment shall be considered 

past due.  If default is made in payment of any sums due hereunder and it becomes necessary that this Agreement be placed in the hands of an attorney for 

collection, customer agrees to pay to S I Mechanical, LLC all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fee.  S I Mechanical, LLC shall have the right to 

cancel this Agreement at any time, upon (5) day’s written notice, if payments are called for herein are not made.

3. Customer waives any and every claim which arises in its favor and against S I Mechanical, LLC during the term of this Agreement for any all loss of, or 

damage to, any of its property, which loss or damage is covered by valid and collectible fire and extended coverage insurance policies, general liability policies, 

and workmen’s compensation policies, to the extent that such loss or damage is recoverable under said insurance policies and such loss is not the result of the 

gross negligence or willful misconduct of S I Mechanical, LLC or failure of S I Mechanical, LLC to comply with the terms of this agreement.

4. It is agreed that S I Mechanical, LLC shall have no liability to customer or to customer’s agents, servants, or employees or to any third parties for injuries to 

persons, or damage to property directly or indirectly resulting from the failure of any equipment or due to any other cause whatsoever, other than the gross 

negligence or willful misconduct of S I Mechanical, LLC, and customer agrees to indemnify S I Mechanical, LLC and hold it harmless from any loss, claim, 

damage, or expense, including attorney’s fees, arising out of any such damage or injury.   S I Mechanical, LLC shall not be liable for any lost rents, income, or 

profits nor any indirect, remote, special, or consequential damages from whatever cause and howsoever the same may arise, nor for any delay, loss damage, or 

injury caused by acts of God, labor disturbances, non-delivery, or unavailability of manpower or material, or any other event beyond S I Mechanical, LLC's 

control.  S I Mechanical, LLC agrees to indemnify customer and hold it harmless from any loss, claim, damage or injury caused by the gross negligence or willful 

misconduct of S I Mechanical, LLC.

Regulated by the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation,  PO Box 12157,  Austin, Texas 78711,  (800) 803-9202    

http://www.license.state.tx.us/      



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 22.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sheriff Gary Cutler

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the Sheriff's Office to use existing funds to purchase twelve (12) Stalker Radar systems valued at $29,040.00 and
amend the budget accordingly. IN GALSBE/C U TLERIN GALSBE/C U TLER

Summary:Summary:
The Sheriff's Office requests to use existing funds to purchase radar systems valued at $29,040 from Applied Concepts Inc.,
using Buyboard contract number 703-23. The radars will outfit vehicles recently received in the approved FY 2024 vehicle
schedule. The current radars are no longer operable, and the software is obsolete and requires replacement.  Funding for
this purchase request is available in the Sheriff's Office Vehicle Capital general ledger. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $29,040 
Line Item Number: 001-618-00.5717_400

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$29,040 - Increase Law Enforcement Equipment_Operating 001-618-00.5717_400
($29,040) - Decrease Vehicles_Capital 001-618-00.5713_700

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Buyboard 703-23

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Applied Concepts Quote



radar

855 E. Collins Blvd
Richardson, TX 75081
Phone: 972-398-3780
Fax: 972-398-3781

applied concepts, inc.

QUOTE

National Toll Free: 1-800- STALKER
Page 1 of 1
07/24/24

Reg Sales Mgr:

#

Effective From : Lead Time:

Date:

Bill To: Ship To:
Hays Co Auditors Office
810 S Stagecoach Trl
San Marcos, TX 78666-3900

Accounts Payable
Hays Co Sheriffs Office
1307 Uhland Rd
San Marcos, TX 78666-8217

Fleet Manager Martin
Gonzales

FedEx Ground009407Customer ID:

2091056

Christopher Decker
972-398-3780Inside Sales Partner:

Valid Through: 09/29/2024 80 working days

Vanna Moore

07/01/2024

 vanna.moore@a-concepts.com chris.decker@stalkerradar.com

Qty Part Number Description Price Ext PriceLn

200-0998-5012 $0.001 Dual Enhanced Counting Unit, 1.5 PCB, ARM Processor
200-1571-0012 $0.002 Dual SL Modular OSC Display
200-1468-0024 $0.003 Dual DSR Ka Antenna
200-0920-0012 $0.004 Dual SL Remote Control w/Screw Latch
200-0769-0012 $0.005 25 MPH/40 KPH KA Tuning Fork
200-0770-0012 $0.006 40 MPH/64 KPH KA Tuning Fork
200-0243-0012 $0.007 Counting/Display Tall Mount
200-0244-0012 $0.008 Antenna Dash Mount
200-0245-0012 $0.009 Antenna Tall Deck Mount
200-0648-0012 $0.0010 Display Sun Shield
155-2591-0812 $0.0011 8 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67
155-2591-2012 $0.0012 20 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67
200-0622-0012 $0.0013 VSS Cable Kit
200-0820-0012 $0.0014 Dual Manual Kit
006-0096-0012 $0.0015 Fan Noise Suppression Addendum - Dual SL
035-0361-0012 $0.0016 Shipping Container, Dash Mounted Radar
005-1468-0012 $0.0017 Dual Certified Package
060-1000-3612 $0.0018 36 Month Warranty

Group Total $29,040.00

Grp Qty Package Description Price Ext PriceWrnty/Mo

1 12 805-0022-00 Dual  - 2 Antenna Radar System $2,420.00 $29,040.0036

Contract Name: BuyBoard 2024
Contract #: 703-23 Vehicle Information:
   2023 Dodge Charger

Sub-Total:
Sales Tax
Shipping & Handling:

Total: USD

Product
Discount

Payment Terms:

001

$29,040.00

$0.00
$29,040.00

0% $0.00

$29,040.00Net 30 days

~ Actual ~

This Quote or Purchase Order is subject in all respects to the Terms and Conditions detailed at the back of this document.  These
Terms and Conditions contain limitations of liability, waivers of liability even for our own negligence, and indemnification provisions,

all of which may affect your rights.  Please review these Terms and Conditions carefully before proceeding.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 23.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sheriff Gary Cutler

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize an amendment to the Sheriff's Office Rural Law Enforcement Grant Program budget of $22,300.40 related to the
increased cost of an approved vehicle purchase. IN GALSBE/C U TLER IN GALSBE/C U TLER

Summary:Summary:
In March this year, the court accepted a $500,000 grant award to the Sheriff's Office from the Texas Comptroller of Public
Accounts. The grant funds are approved to be used by the Sheriff's Office to increase salaries, hire additional deputies or
staff, or purchase vehicles, firearms, and safety equipment. At this time, savings within the grant award of $22,300 have
been identified to cover a price increase of the purchase of a transit van for transportation purposes.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $22,300.40
Line Item Number: 001-618-99-214.5713_700

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: Texas Comptroller Grant Funds
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: N/A
$22,301 - Increase Vehicles_Capital 001-618-99-214.5713_700
($7,500) - Decrease Law Enforcement Supplies 001-618-99-214.5206
($3,001) - Decrease Law Enforcement Supplies_Ammunition 001-618-99-214.5206_010
($7,000) - Decrease Law Enforcement Equipment_Operating 001-618-99-214.5717_400
($4,800) - Decrease Law Enforcement Equipment_Capital 001-618-99-214.5717_700

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: purchase needs to follow the purchasing polciy 

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 24.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #2 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082. SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOSMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated May 16, 2024, is
attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
ESD #2 FY2023 Audit Report



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 

Montemayor Britton Bender PC 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-5

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 6

Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances 7

Notes to Financial Statements 8-12

Required Supplementary Information: 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 13



Board of Fire Commissioners
Hays County Emergency Services District #2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of the
Hays County Emergency Services District #2 (District), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023 and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of the District, as of September 30, 2023 and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

May 16, 2024 
Austin, Texas

-2-

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Hays County Emergency
Services District #2  (“the District”) for the year ended September 30, 2023 Please read it in conjunction with the
District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights
! The District’s property tax rate was assessed at $.0674 per $100 of assessed valuation for the year ended

September 30, 2023 Property tax revenues for the year were $4,748,339 increase of $589,762 over prior
year.

! The District incurred an increase in net position of $1,890,041 for the year. 
! Cash and investments amounted to $6,420,512 at September 30, 2023 which  represented an increase of

$1,968,122 over the $4,452,390 balance at September 30, 2022. 

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts—management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements
that present different views of the District. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section
of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statement
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s
finances in a manner similar to a private sector business reporting on a full accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the District has improved or deteriorated. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (example: property taxes assessed but
uncollected as of 31 days after year-end).   Because the District’s principal source of revenue is property taxes, the
government-wide financial statements are grouped into one function that is supported by taxes (governmental
activities).

Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and account for resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal or contractual requirements. The
District has one fund, the General Fund. 

Governmental Funds: The General Fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, the governmental funds financial statements focus on current fiscal year cash inflows and
outflows, as well as balances of resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Because the focus
of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare
the information presented for the General Fund with similar information presented for governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Both the Governmental Funds balance sheet and the Governmental

-3-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between Governmental Fund and government-wide financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The District’s net position (assets
less liabilities) was $7,316,533 as of September 30, 2023. The District’s net position includes a net investment of
$990,011 in capital assets and $6,326,522, which is unrestricted, and available to meet the District’s ongoing
obligations to citizens. The tables below summarize the financial position of the District at September 30, 2023 and
2022 and the results of operations for the same years ended.

Assets 9/30/2023 9/30/2022

Current $6,526,522 $4,499,254

Capital, net 990,011 1,061,480

Total assets 7,516,533 5,560,734

Total liabilities 200,000 134,242

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 990,011 1,061,480

Unrestricted 6,326,522 4,365,012

Total net position $7,316,533 $5,426,492

Revenues 9/30/2023 9/30/2022
 Ad Valorem property taxes $4,748,339 $4,158,577

 Interest and other 370,306 105,836

     Total revenues 5,118,645 4,264,413
Expenses
ESD#8 contract 2,436,088 2,243,481

Station user fee 550,000 550,000
Tax collection fees 30,162 32,946
Facilities and equipment 23,887 0
Administrative 0 3,582

Professional services 5,609 4,589

Depreciation 182,858 181,533
     Total expenses 3,228,604 3,016,131

Change in net position 1,890,041 1,248,282

Net position, beginning 5,426,492 4,178,210

Net position, ending $7,316,533 $5,426,492

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Fund
The focus of the District’s Governmental Fund is to provide information on near-term inflows and outflows and
on resource balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance serves as a useful measure of the District’s net resources
available for spending at fiscal year-end.

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, the District’s only Governmental Fund was the General Fund,
and it reported ending fund balance of $6,262,445, an increase of $1,944,297 over the year-ended September 30,

-4-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2023. The District’s ending unassigned fund balance of $6,220,512 was unencumbered and available for spending
at the District’s discretion.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
General Fund revenues were $436,680, or 9%, over budget, due to $270,778 more than anticipated in interest
income, $94,528 more than anticipated in other income, and $71,374 more than anticipated in Ad Valorem tax
revenue.  Expenses for the General Fund were $519,818 less than budget, a variance of (14%).  The budget variance
resulted primarily from the budget for emergency/contingency equipment and new equipment of $250,000 not being
utilized, as well as facilities and equipment being $100,513 less than anticipated and capital outlay being $114,211
being less than anticipated.

Capital Asset Administration
At September 30, 2023, the District had $990,011 invested in capital assets, which consists of ambulances, vehicles
and equipment. Current year activity consists of additions of $111,389 offset by $182,858 in depreciation expense.

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Tax Rates
The tax levy for fiscal year 2023-2024 is expected to provide an approximately $430,000 increase in tax revenues
for the next fiscal year.

The District considers many factors when approving budgets for the next year’s fiscal activities. With increased
tax revenues, the District’s budget for operating expenses is expected to increase a proportional amount to support
increased services.  

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the District for all parties with
an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to:

Halley Ortiz, President
Hays County Emergency Services District #2
P.O. Box 153
Buda, TX 78610

-5-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

General
Fund

Adjustments
(Note 7)

Statement of
Net Position

ASSETS

Cash $184,195 $184,195

Short-term investments 6,236,317 6,236,317

Taxes receivable 64,077 64,077

Prepaid expenses 41,933 41,933

Capital assets, net of depreciation 0 990,011 990,011

$6,526,522 7,516,533

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

  Grant advance $200,000 200,000

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes 64,077 (64,077) 0

FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

FUND BALANCE

  Fund balance - nonspendable 41,933 (41,933)

  Fund balance - unassigned 6,220,512 (6,220,512)

6,262,445

$6,526,522

NET POSITION

  Net investment in capital assets 990,011 990,011

  Unrestricted 6,326,522 6,326,522

$7,316,533

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

-6-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES:
General

Fund
Adjustments

(Note 7)
Statement of

Activities

ESD#8 contract $2,436,088 $2,436,088

Station user fees 550,000 550,000

Tax collection fees 30,162 30,162

Facilities and equipment 23,887 23,887

Professional services 5,609 5,609

Depreciation 0 182,858 182,858

Capital outlay 111,389 (111,389) 0

3,157,135 3,228,604

GENERAL REVENUES:

Ad Valorem tax revenues 4,731,126 17,213 4,748,339

Interest 275,778 275,778

Other income 94,528 94,528

5,101,432 5,118,645

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 1,944,297 1,890,041

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 4,318,148 5,426,492

ENDING FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION $6,262,445 $7,316,533

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

-7-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

Emergency services districts may be organized in the State of Texas under the provisions of Article III,
Section 48-3 of the State Constitution. The Hays County Emergency Services District #2 (the District)
was created in 1989 by an election of the residents of Hays County. The District was established to
arrange for emergency services within its boundaries. The District operated under the Health and Safety
Code in Chapter 775, Emergency Services District. The District contracts with, and disburses funds to,
the Hays County Emergency Services District #8 located in Buda to provide for services within the
District’s boundaries. The District has no employees.

The District is not included in any other governmental reporting entity as defined in Section 2100,
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. Additionally, no other
entity meets the requirements for inclusion in the District’s financial statements.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Fire Commissioners (the Board) appointed for two-
year terms by the Hays County Commissioners. The District has no employees, office location or fixed
assets. The Board sets the budget and tax rate within limits authorized by Chapter 775 of the Health and
Safety Code.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The following is a summary of the
significant accounting policies.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District is considered a special purpose government under GASB Statement No. 34. This allows
the District to present the required fund and government-wide statements in a single schedule. The
requirement for fund financial statements to be prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting
is met with the “General Fund” column. An adjustment column includes those entries needed to
convert to the full accrual basis government-wide statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements. They report information on all of
the District’s activities. The District services are supported by ad valorem property taxes. The
Statement of Activities demonstrates how the District used revenue and demonstrates how direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earnedand expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough there after to pay
liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the District considers all revenues available if they
are collectible within 31 days after year-end. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period 

-8-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

in which the liability is incurred. Interest and tax revenues associated with the current fiscal year are
considered susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues in the current fiscal year. All
other revenue is considered measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost (or estimated historical cost) and the time of acquisition and
updated for additions and retirements during the year. The District does not possess any infrastructure. 
Improvements are capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to
the asset or materially extend its life are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line base over the estimated useful life of the asset: ten years for ambulances and vehicles and five
years for equipment.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred
inflows. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first and then
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

FUND BALANCES

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District can establish limitations
of the use of resources through either a commitment or an assignment. When both unassigned and
committed or assigned funds are available for expenditure, committed or assigned funds are used first. 

Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in a spendable
form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Committed fund balances include
amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the Board or
adoption of an ordinance. Limitations imposed by commitments remain in place until formal Board
action is taken to remove the limitation. Amounts in the assigned fund balances are intended to be
used by the District for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be committed. Assignments
are generally temporary and do not require Board action to be taken to remove the assignment.

-9-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources representing a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and is not recognized as an outflow of resources in the current period. The District’s does not
have any deferred outflows. The statement of financial position and governmental funds balance sheet
reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources representing an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and is not recognized as an inflow of resources or revenue until that
time. The District has one item which qualifies for reporting in this category- unavailable property
tax revenue. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the
amounts become available.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At September 30, 2023, the carrying amount and the bank balance of the District’s cash deposits was
$184,195 and the bank balance was $185,295. The District did not have any deposits in excess of FDIC
insurance. 

The Board of Fire Commissioners has authorized the District under a written investment policy to invest
funds in compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code. Investment vehicles authorized by Chapter 2256 include, but are not limited to,
certificates of deposit, obligations backed by the U.S. and state governments, and public fund
investment pools. All investments at year end were held in the Texas Local Government Investment
Pool (TexPool).  TexPool investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The
State Comptroller oversees TexPool, with Federated Investors managing the daily operations of the pool
under a contract with the State Comptroller.

TexPool is a 2(a)7 like fund, which means that it is structured similar to a money market mutual fund. 
It allows shareholders the ability to deposit or withdraw funds on a daily basis. Such funds seek to
maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00, although this cannot be fully guaranteed. TexPool is rated
AAAm (the highest rating a local government investment pool can achieve) and must maintain a dollar
weighted average maturity not to exceed 60 days, which is the limit. At September 30, 2023, the
TexPool portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 28 days. However, the District considers the
holdings in these funds to have a one day weighted average maturity because the share position can
usually be redeemed each day at the discretion of the shareholder, unless there has been a significant
change in value.

NOTE 4: PROPERTY TAXES

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $.10 per $100 of value.  Ad Valorem taxes
are levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in the District. The tax rate
for the October 1, 2022 levy was $.0674 per $100 of value. Taxes are due upon receipt of the bill and
are delinquent if not paid before the first day of February in the year following levy. On January 1 of
each year, a tax lien attaches to the property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest
ultimately imposed. Taxes are billed and collected by the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector.

-10-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5:  CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Ambulances and vehicles $1,398,707 $0 $0 $1,398,707

   Equipment 854,713 111,389 0 966,102

2,253,420 111,389 0 2,364,809

Accumulated depreciation

   Ambulances and vehicles (628,780) (117,643) 0 (746,423)

   Equipment (563,160) (65,215) 0 (628,375)

   Total accumulated depreciation (1,191,940) (182,858) 0 (1,374,798)

Total capital assets $1,061,480 ($71,469) $0 $990,011

NOTE 6:  RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, lawsuits and natural disasters. The District purchases insurance to provide
coverage for these risks. 

NOTE 7:   ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Fund balance - general fund $6,262,445

Increase net position for capital assets not reported in the fund financial
statements 990,011

Taxes receivables deferred in the fund financial statements and not in the
government-wide financial statements 64,077

Net position - governmental activities $7,316,533

Change in fund balance - general fund $1,944,297

Depreciation expense not recognized in the fund financial statements (182,858)

Capital outlay recognized in the fund financial statements and not in the
government-wide financial statements 111,389

Change in taxes receivables deferred in the fund financial statements and not in
the government-wide financial statements 17,213

Change in net position - governmental activities $1,890,041

-11-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8:   BUDGET

The District adopts an annual budget for each fiscal year and amends the budget as needed during the
year. There were no amendments during the year. The District does not use an encumbrance system and
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

Certain revenue and expenses were different than budgeted, resulting in a higher than budgeted fund
balance. Primarily, Ad valorem property taxes, other income and interest revenue were higher than
budgeted, and tax collection fees, professional fees, facility and equipment expense and capital outlay
were less than anticipated.  Additionally, the budget for emergency/contingency equipment was not
utilized. 

-12-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #2

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Original 
and Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

GENERAL REVENUES

Ad Valorem tax revenues $4,659,752 $4,731,126 $71,374

Interest 5,000 275,778 270,778

Other income 0 94,528 94,528

4,664,752 5,101,432 436,680

EXPENDITURES

ESD #8 contract 2,436,088 2,436,088 0

Station user fee 550,000 550,000 0

Emergency/contingency equipment 250,000 0 250,000

Tax collection fees 31,766 30,162 1,604

Facilities and equipment 124,400 23,887 100,513

Professional fees 59,100 5,609 53,491

Capital outlay 225,600 111,389 114,211

3,676,954 3,157,135 519,819

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 987,798 1,944,297 956,499

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,318,148 4,318,148 0

ENDING FUND BALANCE $5,305,946 $6,262,445 $956,499

See Independent Auditor’s Report

-13-



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 25.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #3 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082. SH ELL/IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO SH ELL/IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated June 14, 2024, is
attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
HCESD#3 FY2023 Audit Report



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023

 

Montemayor Britton Bender PC 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-6

Statement of Net Position 7

Statement of Activities 8

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 9

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position 10

Governmental Funds Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 11

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 12

Notes to Financial Statements 13-19

General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule 20

 



Board of Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of 
Hays County Emergency Services District #3 (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District, as of December 31, 2023, and
the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 3-6, and the general fund budgetary comparison schedule on page 20 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

June 14, 2024 
Austin, Texas

2

 



HAY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Hays County
Emergency Services District #3 (“the District”) for the year ended December 31, 2023. Please read it in
conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

! The District’s property tax revenues for the year totaled $1,628,640, an increase of
$242,972 over prior year.

! The District’s sales tax revenue for the year totaled $2,524,898, an increase of $312,925
over the prior year.

! The District incurred an increase in net position of $1,319,267 for the year. 

! Capital assets decreased by $418,264, due to additions of equipment, furniture and
equipment, vehicles, and work in progress of $375,859, offset by depreciation expense of
$630,269 and disposals of $163,854.

! Debt decreased by $521,683, due to principal payments on existing debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts—management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information.  The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the District. The financial statements also include notes
that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances in a manner similar to a private sector business reporting on a full accrual basis of
accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District has improved or deteriorated. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(example: property taxes assessed but uncollected as of 60 days after year-end). 

Because the District’s principal source of revenue is property and sales taxes, the government-wide
financial statements are grouped into one function that is supported by taxes (governmental activities).

Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and account for resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal or
contractual requirements.

3



HAY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Governmental Funds: The General Fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, the Governmental Funds financial statements focus on current fiscal year cash
inflows and outflows, as well as balances of resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating the District’s recent financing requirements. 

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the General Fund with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s recent financing decisions. Both the
Governmental Funds balance sheet and the Governmental Funds statement of revenue, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between Governmental
Fund and government-wide financial statements. 

The District maintains two funds, the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The District’s net position
(assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows) was $11,016,888 as of December 31,
2023. Capital assets, net of depreciation and related debt, accounted for $6,686,386 or 61% of the total
net position. Capital assets reflect the large investments in facilities and equipment that are necessary to
provide adequate fire and rescue operations and emergency services to the community. $4,018,353 of net
position of is unrestricted and available to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
Governmental activities account for all of the changes in net position at the government-wide reporting
level as the District has no business-type activities. The tables below summarize the financial position of
the District at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the results of operations for the same years ended.

Assets 12/31/2023 12/31/2022

Current and other assets $6,561,819 $5,095,174
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 7,204,616 7,622,880
  Total assets 13,766,435 12,718,054

Liabilities

Current and other liabilities 263,748 354,376

Long-term liabilities 518,230 1,039,913

  Total liabilities 781,978 1,394,289

Deferred inflows of resources-property taxes 1,967,559 1,626,134

Net position
Net investment in capital assets, net of debt 6,686,386 6,582,967
Restricted 312,159 307,208
Unrestricted 4,018,353 2,807,456
  Total net position $11,016,898 $9,697,631

4



HAY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Revenues 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Program revenues:
   Charges for services $507,022 $569,051
   Operating grants 3,738 49,535
General revenues:
   Property taxes 1,628,640 1,385,668
   Sales taxes 2,524,898 2,211,973
   Other 81,930 68,687
   Total revenues 4,746,228 4,284,914

Expenses
Fire and emergency services 2,772,492 2,266,041
Depreciation 630,269 598,143
Interest expense 24,200 38,909
   Total expenses 3,426,961 2,903,093

Change in net position 1,319,267 1,381,821
Net position, beginning 9,697,631 8,315,810
Net position, ending $11,016,898 $9,697,631

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds
The focus of the District’s Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-term inflows and
outflows and on resource balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance serves as a useful measure of the
District’s net resources available for spending at fiscal year-end.

During the year-ended December 31, 2023, the General Fund reported ending fund balance of $4,003,295,
an increase of $1,220,279 from the prior year. The District’s ending unassigned fund balance was
$3,898,028, which was unencumbered and available for spending at the District’s discretion. 

During the year-ended December 31, 2023, the Debt Service Fund reported ending fund balance of
$312,159, an increase of $4,951 from the prior year. The District’s ending fund balance was restricted for
debt service. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
General Fund revenues were $548,826 over budget, due to sales tax and property tax revenues of $695,887
and interest income of $46,861 more than budget, offset by $78,944 less than anticipated grants and other
revenues and $114,978 less than Texas Fire Academy revenue. Expenses for the General Fund were
$522,326 more than budget. The budget variance resulted primarily from more than anticipated capital
outlay ($320,859), personnel expense ($141,991), general and administrative expense ($144,123), station
repairs, maintenance and supplies ($29,895), communications ($14,606) and $35,037 in unbudgeted bad
debt expense, offset by lower than anticipated Texas Fire Academy expenses ($103,020) and training
expense ($64,001). The variances in all other expenses compared to budget was not significant. The
budget was not amended during the year. 

5



HAY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Capital Assets
The District’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, were $7,204,616 at year-end.  Capital assets
decreased by $418,264, due to additions of equipment, furniture and equipment, vehicles, and work in
progress of $375,859, offset by depreciation expense of $630,269 and loss on disposal of $163,854.

Debt
The District’s long-term debt at December 31, 2023, net of the current portion, amounted to $287,473. 
The current portion of long-term debt was $230,757. The debt is collateralized by an interest in property
tax revenues.

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Tax Rates
The October 2023 tax rate of $.10 per $100 of assessed valuation for 2024 year remained the same as
2023. The tax levy for the 2024 year is expected to provide an approximately $334,000 increase in
property tax revenues for the next year. Additionally, the District collects sales tax revenues. The budget
for fiscal 2024 sales taxes is $2,519,783 and collections for the three months of 2024 were approximately
$848,076.

The District considers many factors when approving budgets for the next year’s activities. With increased
tax revenues, the District’s budget for operating expenses is expected to increase a proportional amount
to support increased services.  

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the District for all parties
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to:

Hays County Emergency Services District #3
3528 Hunter Road
San Marcos, TX 78666

6



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

ASSETS
Governmental

Activities

Cash and cash equivalents $3,974,574

Due from other governments 30,066

Property taxes receivable 1,990,348

Sales tax receivable 440,169

Other receivables 21,395

Prepaid expenses and inventory 105,267

6,561,819

Capital assets:

Land 126,078

Work in progress 144,089

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 6,934,449

7,204,616

13,766,435

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 41,470

Accrued liabilities 129,801

Texas Fire Academy deposits 92,477

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 230,757

Due in more than one year 287,473

781,978

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES- property taxes levied for subsequent period 1,967,559

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 6,686,386

Restricted-debt service 312,159

Unrestricted 4,018,353

$11,016,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
7



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) 
Revenue and

Change in Net
Position

Functions/Programs
Primary government: Expenses

Charges
for Services

Operating
grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Government activities:

General government $3,402,761 $507,022 $3,738 ($2,892,001)

Interest expense 24,200 0 0 (24,200)

$3,426,961 $507,022 $3,738 (2,916,201)

General Revenues:

Property taxes 1,628,640

Sales tax 2,524,898

Interest and other 81,930

4,235,468

Change in net position 1,319,267

Net position-beginning 9,697,631

Net position-ending $11,016,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
8



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

General
Debt

Service
Total

Governmental

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $3,662,415 $312,159 $3,974,574

Due from other governments 30,066 0 30,066

Property taxes receivable 1,990,348 0 1,990,348

Sales tax receivable 440,169 0 440,169

Other receivables 21,395 0 21,395

Prepaid expenses and inventory 105,267 0 105,267

$6,249,660 $312,159 $6,561,819

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $41,470 $0 $41,470

Accrued expenses 85,793 0 85,793

Texas Fire Academy deposits 92,477 0 92,477

219,740 0 219,740

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property taxes levied for subsequent period 1,967,559 0 1,967,559

Unavailable revenue – delinquent property taxes 59,066 0 59,066

2,026,625 0 2,026,625

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 105,267 0 105,267

Restricted- debt service 0 312,159 312,159

Unassigned 3,898,028 0 3,898,028

4,003,295 312,159 4,315,454

$6,249,660 $312,159 $6,561,819

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

9



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $4,315,454

Increase net position for capital assets not reported in the fund financial statements 7,204,616

Property taxes to be received more than 60 days after year end are unavailable to be 
spent and thus are deferred inflows in the fund financial statements. 59,066

Accrued leave not reported in the fund statements as it is not paid with current      
      resources (44,008)

Long-term debt not reported in the fund statements as it is not paid with current    
      resources (518,230)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $11,016,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

10



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

General
 Fund

Debt 
Service 

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUE

Property taxes $1,627,908 $0 $1,627,908

Sales tax 2,524,898 0 2,524,898

Texas Fire Academy charges for service 507,022 0 507,022

Interest 57,461 4,951 62,412

Grants and other 23,256 0 23,256

4,740,545 4,951 4,745,496

EXPENDITURES

Current service operations:

Personnel 1,493,216 0 1,493,216

General and administrative 321,723 0 321,723

Apparatus 196,622 0 196,622

Texas Fire Academy 173,880 0 173,880

Station repairs, maintenance and supplies 171,395 0 171,395

Personal equipment 91,902 0 91,902

Communications 89,106 0 89,106

Bad debt 35,037 0 35,037

Training 25,699 0 25,699

Debt service-principal 521,683 0 521,683

Debt service-interest 24,144 0 24,144

Capital outlay 375,859 0 375,859

3,520,266 0 3,520,266

Net change in fund balance 1,220,279 4,951 1,225,230

Beginning fund balance 2,783,016 307,208 3,090,224

Ending fund balance $4,003,295 $312,159 $4,315,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

11



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $1,225,230

Change in delinquent tax revenues deferred in the fund statements 732

Depreciation expense is not reflected in the governmental funds (630,269)

Loss on disposal of capital assets is not reflected in the governmental funds (163,854)

Capital outlays recognized as expenditures in the fund statements 375,859

Long-term debt payments recognized as expenditures in the fund statements 521,683

Change in accrued leave not reported in the fund statements (10,058)

Change in accrued interest on long-term debt not reported in the fund statements (56)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $1,319,267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.

12



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY

The Hays County Emergency Services District #3 (the District) is a political subdivision of
the State of Texas formed in July 1998 pursuant to Section 775 of the Texas Health and
Safety Code.  The District was formed to provide fire and rescue operations and emergency
services to the citizens of its District. The District also provides a fire training academy.  The
District is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners appointed by the Hays
County Commissioners Court.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to state and local governments promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA) and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when
applicable). The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide
financial statements. They report information on all of the District’s activities with the
interfund activities removed. Governmental activities include programs supported
primarily by taxes and fees charged to purveyors.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the District’s government activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses in the
Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are
presented as general revenues. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District segregates transactions related to certain functions or transactions in separate
funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate
statements are presented for governmental activities. Major funds are determined by
criteria specified by GASB. Governmental funds are those funds through which most
governmental functions typically are financed. The measurement focus of governmental
funds is on the sources, uses, and balance of current financial resources. 

 The District reports the following major governmental funds:

13



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Fund- the General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District. This
fund is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All
general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund.

Debt Service Fund- the Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources
accumulated for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt, as required
by the loan agreement associated with the construction of the Hunter Road Station.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied.

Governmental fund financial statements use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the period in which they become
susceptible to accrual, i.e. both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible, within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period (defined by the District as collected within 60 days
of year end). Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. The reported fund balance of
governmental funds is considered a measure of available spendable resources.

RESTRICTED RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE SPENDING

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, sales tax, charges for services,
grants and interest income. All other governmental revenues are recognized when
received, as they are deemed immaterial.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in demand accounts, certificates of deposit,
savings accounts, and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3
months or less. 

14



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROPERTY TAXES

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $0.10 per $100 of value. Ad
valorem taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable property
in the District. The tax rate for the October 1, 2023 levy was $0.10 per $100 of value. 
Taxes are due upon receipt of the bill and are delinquent if not paid before the first day
of February in the year following levy. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to
the property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest ultimately imposed. 
Taxes are billed and collected by the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector.

BUDGET

The District adopts annual budgets for the General Fund. The District amends the budgets
as needed during the year. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

INVENTORY

Inventories of consumable supplies are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value
determined by the first in/first out method. The costs of government fund inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed.

TEXAS FIRE ACADEMY DEPOSITS

Texas Fire Academy deposits consist of payments made by participants in advance of the
applicable training program.

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of the donation. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenditures
or expenses; renewals and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation has been calculated
on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method, over 5-30 years. 

15



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of financial position and governmental funds balance sheet report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources representing an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and is not recognized as an inflow of resources or
revenue until that time. 

The District has one type of item which qualifies for reporting in this category- property
taxes. The collection of taxes from the October 1, 2023 levy are considered deferred
inflows of resources until the subsequent calendar year in the statement of financial
position and in the governmental funds balance sheet.  Unavailable revenue for delinquent
taxes is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow in the period that they become available. 

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows. Net position invested in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first and
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

FUND BALANCES

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature
of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District can
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment or an assignment.
When both unassigned and committed or assigned funds are available for expenditure,
committed or assigned funds are used first. 

Committed fund balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the Board or adoption of an ordinance. Limitations
imposed by commitments remain in place until formal Board action is taken to remove the
limitation. Amounts in the assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the District
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be committed. Assignments are
generally temporary and do not require Board action to be taken to remove the assignment.

16



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund
receivable and payable accounts. Transactions between funds that would be treated as
revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations external to the
government unit are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses in the funds
involved. Transactions which constitute reimbursement for expenditures or expenses
initially made from a fund which are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund, and as reductions of the expenditures or
expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The District does not have a formal investment policy. At year-end, the carrying amount of
the District’s deposits was $3,974,574 and the bank balance was $3,997,760. All of the
District’s deposits in excess of FDIC coverage were fully collateralized by securities held by
the pledging financial institution.  

NOTE 4:   BUDGET VARIANCES     

Total General Fund revenues were $548,826 more than budget due to higher than anticipated
property and sales taxes and interest income, offset by lower than anticipated Texas Fire
Academy charges for service and grants and other revenue.  General Fund expenditures were
over budget by $522,326, due to more than anticipated capital outlay, general and
administrative expenditures, personnel expenses, station repairs, maintenance and supplies,
communications, and unbudgeted bad debt expense, offset by lower than anticipated Texas
Fire Academy expenses and training expenses. The variances in all other expense line items
combined were not significant. 

NOTE 5: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The District utilized a contract financial consultant to perform some of its accounting and
related bookkeeping functions for part of the year. This individual also served on the Board
of Commissioners during the year and was paid approximately $23,000 for services during
2023. 

NOTE 6: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property damage,
and worker’s compensation. The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for these
types of risks.

17



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7:   CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $126,078 $0 $0 $126,078

Work in progress 521,131 112,857 (489,898) 144,090

647,209 112,857 (489,898) 270,168

Capital assets being depreciated:

Stations 6,950,035 40,325 0 6,990,360

Equipment 1,893,286 185,251 0 2,078,537

Trucks, vehicles and boats 3,941,731 460,453 (153,320) 4,248,864

Furniture and equipment 191,367 4,028 0 195,395

Computers and software 345,885 16,534 0 362,419

13,322,304 706,591 (153,320) 13,875,575

13,969,513 819,448 (643,218) 14,145,743

Accumulated depreciation:

Stations (1,997,017) (233,346) 0 (2,230,363)

Equipment (1,188,264) (152,839) 0 (1,341,103)

Trucks, vehicles and boats (2,759,456) (215,108) 35,775 (2,938,789)

Furniture and equipment (162,435) (8,709) 0 (171,144)

Computers and software (239,461) (20,267) 0 (259,728)

(6,346,633) (630,269) 35,775 (6,941,127)

$7,622,880 $189,179 ($607,443) $7,204,616

Depreciation was charged to functions within the primary government as follows:

General administration $595,231

Texas Fire Academy 35,038

$630,269

18



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Asset 
Acquired

Original
 Issue Maturity

Interest
Rate

Beginning
Balance Additions Payments

Ending
Balance

Hunter Rd.
Station $4,400,000 2026 3% $1,039,913 $0 $521,683 $518,230

Less: Current Portion (230,757)

Long-term Portion $287,473

Maturities at December 31: Principal Interest Total

2024 $230,757 $12,457 $243,214

2025 257,914 5,569 263,483

2026 29,559 108 29,667

$518,230 $18,134 $536,364

The District’s long-term debt is secured by the assignment of Ad Valorem property taxes and
the required establishment of a debt service fund equivalent to the payments due during the
next fiscal year.  Accordingly, $312,159 is reported as restricted fund balance in the statement
of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet. The District was in compliance with
all requirements of the loan agreement at year-end.

19



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #3
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Original 
& Final 
Budget Actual

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

REVENUE

Property taxes $1,621,069 $1,627,908 $6,839

Sales tax 1,835,850 2,524,898 689,048

Texas Fire Academy charges for service 622,000 507,022 (114,978)

Interest 10,600 57,461 46,861

Grants and other 102,200 23,256 (78,944)

4,191,719 4,740,545 548,826

EXPENDITURES

Current service operations:

 Personnel 1,351,225 1,493,216 (141,991)

 General and administrative 177,600 321,723 (144,123)

Apparatus 198,800 196,622 2,178

Texas Fire Academy 276,900 173,880 103,020

 Station repairs, maintenance and supplies 141,500 171,395 (29,895)

 Personal equipment 89,500 91,902 (2,402)

 Communications 74,500 89,106 (14,606)

 Bad debt 0 35,037 (35,037)

 Training 89,700 25,699 64,001

Debt service-principal 519,127 521,683 (2,556)

Debt service-interest 24,088 24,144 (56)

Capital outlay 55,000 375,859 (320,859)

2,997,940 3,520,266 (522,326)

Net change in fund balance 1,193,779 1,220,279 26,500

Beginning fund balance 2,783,016 2,783,016 0

Ending fund balance $3,976,795 $4,003,295 $26,500

See independent auditor’s report.
20



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 26.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #5 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082. C OH EN /IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOC OH EN /IN GALSBE/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated April 24, 2024, is
attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
HCESD#5 FY 2023 Audit Report



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY 
SERVICES DISTRICT #5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 

Montemayor Britton Bender PC 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-6

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 7

Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
  Changes in Fund Balances 8

Notes to Financial Statements 9-21

Required Supplementary Information: 

     Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 22

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - TCDRS 23

Schedule of Contributions - TCDRS 24



Board of Commissioners
Hays County Emergency Services District #5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of the
Hays County Emergency Services District #5 (District), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of the District, as of September 30, 2023 and
the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, the schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of contributions,
and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information
is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

April 24, 2024
Austin, Texas

2

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

3 
 

Our discussion and analysis of the Hays County Emergency Services District #5’s (the District’s) financial 
performance provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2023.  
Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section. 
 
The financial report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section), the financial 
statements, the notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary information. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 During the year, the District had expenditures of $8,436,309 compared to total revenues of $8,507,670 
resulting in an increase in net position of $71,361 for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

 
 The District’s total assets increased by $1,102,901 for the fiscal year.   

 
 The District’s ad valorem tax rate remained at .10 per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended 

September 30, 2023 which is the statutory limit, as established by the State of Texas constitution. 
 

 The District received $1,167,188 more in ad valorem tax revenues compared to prior year. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements:  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view 
of the District’s finances. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in 
the short term as well as what remains for future spending.   

Reporting the District as a Whole 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
provide information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.  
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken 
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
These two statements report the District’s net position and changes therein.  You can think of the District’s net 
position-the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows-as one way to measure 
the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net 
position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  You will need to consider 
other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the District’s property tax to assess the overall health 
of the District. 

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

The District’s total net position increased by $71,361 in the year ended September 30, 2023. Our analysis of the 
District’s activities below focuses on net position and the changes in net position.  
 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

4 
 

Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 
constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements was $806,617 at 
September 30, 2023. The District has sufficient revenues to pay expenses of the District.        
 

Assets  9/30/2023 9/30/2022 

Current and other assets $4,271,135 $3,709,051 
Capital assets, net  8,207,929 7,667,112 
     Total assets 12,479,064 11,376,163 
   
Deferred outflows related to pension 1,393,836 1,088,985 
   
Liabilities   

Current and other liabilities 1,804,762 366,603 
Long-term liabilities 6,250,498 6,033,843 
   Total liabilities 8,055,260 6,400,446 
   
Deferred inflows related to pension 26,012 344,435 
 
Net position   
Net investment in capital assets 3,485,011 2,524,371 
Restricted for station construction 1,500,000 0 
Unrestricted 806,617 3,195,896 
     Total net position $5,791,628 $5,720,267 

 
Revenues 9/30/2023 9/30/2022 
Program revenues:   
  Inspection and training $441,722 $277,488 
General revenues:   
  Ad Valorem property taxes 6,290,147 5,122,959 
  Sales taxes 1,221,254 1,136,827 
  Grants 354,852 1,130,874 
  Interest 128,797 3,961 
  Other 70,898 91,927 
     Total revenues 8,507,670 7,764,036 
   
Expenses   
Firefighting operations 7,122,530 5,463,653 
Administrative 511,744 256,324 
Depreciation and amortization 667,731 601,525 
Interest expense 134,304 117,002 
     Total expenses 8,436,309 6,438,504 
Change in net position 71,361 1,325,532 
Beginning net position  5,720,267 4,394,735 
Ending net position $5,791,628 $5,720,267 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

5 
 

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Fund 

The focus of the District’s Governmental Fund is to provide information on near-term inflows and outflows and 
on resource balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance serves as a useful measure of the District’s net resources 
available for spending at fiscal year-end. 

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, the District’s only Governmental Fund was the General Fund, 
and it reported ending fund balance of $2,392,048, a decrease of $699,989 from $3,092,037 as of September 30, 
2022. The District’s ending unassigned fund balance of $892,048 was unencumbered and available for spending 
at the District’s discretion.  Additionally, the District had $1,500,000 in fund balance restricted for new station 
construction.  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
The General Fund had a negative variance from the budget of $93,838 due to: 
 

 Total revenues were less than budget by $1,356,875, primarily due to a grant advance of $1,500,000 
received in fiscal year 2023 for a cost reimbursement grant was not yet earned at year end.  This also 
resulted in capital outlay being $1,221,063 less than budget.   
 

 Operating expenses, excluding capital outlay, right of use asset-lease and debt service were $400,052, 
more than budget, primarily due to $272,918 in higher than anticipated personnel and related expenses 
and unbudgeted bad debt expense of $116,812. 

 
 Other financing sources of $575,638 related to lease financing and proceeds from debt were unbudgeted.  

The related right of use asset-lease expense was also unbudgeted. 
 

The budget was amended during the year to increase all budgeted revenues, and to increase personnel and related 
expenses, firefighting and related expenses, professional services, right of use asset-lease, capital outlay, and 
debt service.   

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The District’s capital assets at September 30, 2023, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $8,029,222. The 
current year net increase reflected additions of $426,966, offset by depreciation expense of $656,300.  
Additionally, the District’s right of use asset-lease at September 30, 2023, net of accumulated amortization, was 
$178,707. This included additions of $190,138, offset by amortization expense of $11,431. 
 
Debt Administration 
The District’s long-term debt at September 30, 2023, net of the current portion, totaled $3,858,604 for loans and 
leases payable. The current portion of the long-term debt was $864,314. Fire stations and fire apparatus are 
pledged as collateral.   
 
Debt Service Ratio:  The District maintains control over its debt load by maintaining its debt service to total 
revenues ratio (the “Debt Service Ratio”) at 35% or less with the ad valorem tax rate at 10.00 cents per $100 of 
assessed valuation.  The District feels that the Debt Service Ratio is more meaningful than the debt to equity 
ratio because the Debt Service Ratio is a better indicator of the District’s ability to service the debt and still be 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

6 
 

able to pay annual operating expenses.  The District’s Debt Service Ratio as of September 30, 2023 is total debt 
service of $1,129,765/$8,507,670 total revenues for a ratio of 13.27%. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
The District’s appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2024 budget and tax 
rates.  Some of those factors include the economy and the anticipated needs of the District for operations and 
capital outlay in the next year as well as expected tax revenues.  
 
Contacting the District’s Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide the taxpayers with a general overview of the District’s finances and 
to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the District’s office at: 
 
  Beth Smith, President 
  Hays County Emergency Services District #5 

P.O.  Box 1385 
Kyle, TX  78640 

    



General Adjustments Statement of
Fund (Note 10) Net Position

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,808,444$     1,808,444$     
Short-term investments 1,774,218       1,774,218       
Grants receivable 242,080          242,080          
Sales taxes receivable 208,138          208,138          
Ad Valorem property taxes receivable 136,112          136,112          
Accounts receivable 102,143          102,143          
Capital assets:

Land -                      170,695          170,695          
Other capital assets, net of depreciation -                      8,037,234       8,037,234       

-                      8,207,929       
4,271,135       12,479,064     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Difference actual and expected experience -                      565,517          565,517          
Changes in actuarial assumptions -                      241,827          241,827          
Net difference projected and actual earnings -                      202,939          202,939          
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date -                      383,553          383,553          

-                      1,393,836       
4,271,135$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 50,860$          50,860            
Accrued interest payable -                      61,787            61,787            
Accrued payroll and benefits 192,115          192,115          
Grant advance 1,500,000       1,500,000       
Long-term liabilities:

Due within 1 year: loans and lease payable -                      864,314          864,314          
Due in more than 1 year:

Loans and lease payable -                      3,858,604       3,858,604       
Accrued leave -                      283,885          283,885          
Net pension liability -                      1,243,695       1,243,695       

1,742,975       8,055,260       
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Differences between expected and actual experience -                      20,121            20,121            
Changes in actuarial assumptions -                      5,891              5,891              
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 136,112          (136,112)         -                     

136,112          26,012            
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

FUND BALANCES
Fund balance - restricted for station construction 1,500,000       (1,500,000)      
Fund balance - unassigned 892,048          (892,048)         

2,392,048       
4,271,135$     

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,485,011       3,485,011       
Restricted for station construction 1,500,000       1,500,000       
Unrestricted 806,617          806,617          

5,791,628$     

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
7



General Adjustments Statement of
Fund (Note 10) Activities

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES:
Personnel and related expenses 6,152,136$  13,204$       6,165,340$    
Firefighting and related expenses 957,190       957,190         
Professional services 212,652       212,652         
Bad debt expense 116,812       116,812         
Administrative 85,912         85,912           
Insurance 56,625         56,625           
Tax collection expenses 39,743         39,743           
Depreciation and amortization -                   667,731       667,731         
Right of use asset- lease 190,138       (190,138)      -                    
Capital outlay 1,018,410    (1,018,410)   -                    
Debt service:
  Interest expense 134,304       134,304         
  Principal payments 995,461       (995,461)      -                    

9,959,383    8,436,309      
PROGRAM REVENUES:

Inspection and training 441,722       441,722         
Program revenue over/ (under) expenditures/expenses (9,517,661)   (7,994,587)     

GENERAL REVENUES:
Ad Valorem property taxes 6,255,312    34,835         6,290,147      
Sales taxes 1,221,254    1,221,254      
Grants 565,773       (210,921)      354,852         
Interest 128,797       128,797         
Other 70,898         70,898           

8,242,034    8,065,948      
Total revenue over/(under) expenditures (1,275,627)   71,361           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Lease financing 190,138       (190,138)      -                    
Proceeds from debt 385,500       (385,500)      -                    

575,638       -                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE/ NET POSITION (699,989)      71,361           

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE/ NET POSITION 3,092,037    5,720,267      

ENDING FUND BALANCE/ NET POSITION 2,392,048$  5,791,628$    

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
8



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

The Hays County Emergency Services District #5 (District) was created by an election of the
Hays County residents from within what would be the geographical boundaries for the
District.  The District was established to arrange for fire and rescue protection services within
its boundaries. The District handles all financial matters for the fire department.

The District is under full control and management of a five-commissioner Board of
Commissioners.  The commissioners are appointed by the Hays County Commissioners.  For
financial reporting purposes, the District includes all funds that are controlled by, or dependent
upon, actions of the Board of Commissioners.  Control by, or dependence upon, the Board
was determined on the basis of the Board’s full control of budget adoption and taxing
authority.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present
the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to
be financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are,
in substance, part of the government’s operation; thus data from these units would be
combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units, on the
other hand, would be reported in separate organizations that meet the aforementioned criteria;
therefore, none are included in the accompanying general-purpose financial statements.  The
District is not included in any other governmental reporting entity.

Effective October 1, 2012 the District assumed all operations from the Kyle Volunteer Fire
Department.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).  The
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District is considered a special purpose government under GASB Statement No. 34. 
This allows the District to present the required fund and government-wide statements in a
single schedule. The requirement for fund financial statements to be prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting is met with the “General Fund” column. An adjustment
column includes those entries needed to convert to the full accrual basis government-wide
statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are
government-wide financial statements. They report information on all of the District’s
activities.  The District services are supported primarily by ad valorem taxes.  The Statement
of Activities demonstrates how the District used revenue. 

9



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the District’s government activities.  Direct expenses are those
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to
a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses in the Statement of
Activities. Program revenues include fees for inspections and training, and any grants that
are restricted for program operations or capital requirements. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the District considers all revenues
available if they are collectible within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recognized
in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. Interest and tax revenues
associated with the current fiscal year are considered susceptible to accrual and have been
recognized as revenues in the current fiscal year. All other revenue is considered measurable
and available only when cash is received by the District.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows. Net position invested in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for
the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.  When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first and
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

FUND BALANCES

The fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the
nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District
can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment or an
assignment. 

10



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

When both unassigned and committed or assigned funds are available for expenditure,
committed or assigned funds are used first. 

Restricted fund balances include amounts that can only be spent for specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers. Committed fund balances include amounts that
can only be used for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the Board or
adoption of an ordinance. Limitations imposed by commitments remain in place until formal
Board action is taken to remove the limitation.  Amounts in the assigned fund balances are
intended to be used by the District for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be
committed. Assignments are generally temporary and do not require Board action to be
taken to remove the assignment.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near maturity that there is no significant risk
of changes in value due to changes in interest rates. 

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are recorded at historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated 
 for additions and retirements during the year. The District maintains a capitalization

threshold of $5,000 for assets with a useful life of two years or more. The District does not
possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized. The cost of normal repairs and
maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are
recorded as expenses.  Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis.  Estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Equipment 5-15 years

Vehicles 5-10 years

Building and building improvements 40 years

11



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Full-time regular employees work either a 40 or 45 hour per week schedule.  Firefighters are
scheduled based on either a day shift or 24/48 hour shift schedule and typically work 56
hours per week. Accruals for leave are based on length of service and the schedule worked. 
Employees may accrue up to 288 hours of paid leave but are only allowed to carry forward
a maximum of 72 hours to the next calendar year. Firefighters that have been with the
department for more than 21 years can receive 432 hours of leave. Accrued leave will be
paid to employees upon separation of employment based on when notice of termination is
given.  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources representing a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period and is not recognized as an outflow of resources in the current period.  The
District’s pension related items qualify for reporting in this category in the government-wide
financial statements. See Note 11 for more information.

The statement of financial position and governmental funds balance sheet  report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources representing an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period and is not recognized as an inflow of resources or revenue until
that time. The District has two types of items which qualify for reporting in this category. 
The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from property taxes and grants. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow in the period that they become available. 
The other type is pension related items reported in the government-wide financial
statements. See Note 11 for more information.

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pensions, and the pension expense, information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position of the Texas County & District Retirement System (TCDRS) and
additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by TCDRS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments of TCDRS are reported at fair value.

LEASES

The District determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. Upon inception,
the present value of the minimum lease payments is included in right of use (ROU) assets
and lease liabilities in the government- wide statement of financial position and recorded
as lease expenditures and other financing sources in the fund financial statements. 

12



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Amortization of the ROU asset is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term in
the government wide financial statements. Lease payments are recognized as principal and
interest payments in the fund financial statements. For short term leases of 12 months or
less, the lease payments are recognized as rent expense is incurred in both the government
wide and fund financial statements.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS

At September 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the District’s cash deposits was $1,808,444
and the bank balance was $1,953,156. All of the District’s deposits were fully collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution. The District has adopted an
investment strategy to pursue limited investment risk, the objectives of which are safety of
principal, maintenance of liquidity, and maximization of yield. The District is authorized to
invest in money market mutual funds, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, public
investment pools and governmental obligations or repurchase agreements.

The District’s short-term investments consisted of deposits in TexPool, a local government
investment pool in the State of Texas. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts oversees
TexPool. The pool seeks to maintain a $1.00 value per share as required and must maintain
a dollar weighted average maturity not to exceed 60 days. At September 30, 2023, the
TexPool portfolio had weighted average maturities of 28 days. TexPool investments consist
exclusively of U.S. Government securities, repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S.
Government securities, and AAA-rated no-load money market mutual funds. Tex Pool is rated
AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. TexPool investments are carried at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. 

NOTE 4: PROPERTY TAXES

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $0.10 per $100 of value. Ad
Valorem taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in
the District. The tax rate for the October 1, 2022 levy was $0.0895 per $100 of value. Taxes
are due upon receipt of the bill and are delinquent if not paid before the first day of February
in the year following levy. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to the property to
secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest ultimately imposed. Taxes are billed and
collected by the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector.

NOTE 5:  CAPITAL ASSETS

During the fiscal year, the District executed a lease agreement for space to store vehicles. The
District will make monthly payments beginning July 2023 through July 2027. The District
paid the first year of lease payments in full in 2023. 

13



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5:  CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land $170,695 $0 $0 $170,695

   Construction in progress 149,055 291,062 0 440,117

319,750 291,062 0 610,812

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Buildings 4,818,626 0 0 4,818,626

   Buildings improvements 47,837 0 0 47,837

   Vehicles 6,457,708 509,875 (591,444) 6,376,139

   Equipment 1,324,346 217,473 0 1,541,819

   ROU asset-lease 0 190,138 0 190,138

12,648,517 917,486 (591,444) 12,974,559

Accumulated depreciation/amortization:

   Buildings (1,507,825) (116,957) 0 (1,624,782)

   Buildings improvements (29,318) (9,567) 0 (38,885)

   Vehicles (2,467,342) (519,628) 591,444 (2,395,526)

   Equipment (1,296,670) (10,148) 0 (1,306,818)

   ROU asset-lease 0 (11,431) 0 (11,431)

  (5,301,155) (667,731) 591,444 (5,377,442)

Total capital assets $7,667,112 $540,817 $0 $8,207,929

NOTE 6: BUDGET VARIANCES

The District adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. The District amends the budget
as needed during the year. Certain revenue and expenses were different from budgeted,
resulting in a lower than budgeted fund balance. Grant revenues and capital outlay were less
than budgeted, due to expenditures for cost-reimbursement grants not being incurred both in
the current year.  Inspection and training revenues, interest and other income were more than
anticipated. Personnel and related expenditures and ROU lease-asset expense were more than
anticipated. Bad debt expense was not budgeted. The District received unbudgeted proceeds
from debt and lease financing. 

14



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7:    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Loans
Original

 Issue Maturity
Interest

Rate
Beginning
Balance Additions Payments

Ending
Balance

Station 1 $2,612,596 2028 3.32% $1,646,719 $0 $212,834 $1,433,885

Quint 21 607,000 2025 2.65% 240,785 0 78,859 161,926

Station 23 340,000 2023 2.60% 71,627 0 71,627 0

Engine 23 350,000 2023 2.71% 72,676 0 72,676 0

Engine 24 557,348 2025 2.25% 335,845 0 114,359 221,486

Spartan 22 861,857 2029 2.18% 861,857 0 122,027 739,830

Spartan 23/24 1,913,232 2029 2.25% 1,913,232 0 273,319 1,639,913

Tender 21 385,500 2030 5.10% 0 385,500 0 385,500

7,627,533 5,142,741 385,500 945,701 4,582,540

ROU asset-
lease 190,138 2027 4.38% 0 190,138 49,760 140,378

$7,817,671 $5,142,741 $575,638 $995,461 $4,722,918

All loans are secured by the underlying asset (property or equipment) acquired. The loan
agreements have provisions that change the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts to
become immediately due if the District defaults on its required payments.  Maturities of loans
as of September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2024 $864,314 $136,758 $1,001,072

2025 907,097 112,281 1,019,378

2026 736,005 86,720 822,725

2027 730,275 65,130 795,405

2028 704,626 43,851 748,477

2029-2030 780,601 27,007 807,608

$4,722,918 $471,747 $5,194,665

15



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7:    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Total

Accrued leave $92,137 $646,860 ($455,112) $283,885

NOTE 8: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property damage, and
worker’s compensation. The District insures against risk through participation in the Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, a public entity risk pool, consisting of
approximately 2,800 member cities/political subdivisions located throughout Texas. The
District pays premiums for its general liability, property, auto and workers’ compensation
coverage. The District’s risk is limited to the amount of premiums paid unless the pool should
fail, in which case, the District would be liable for its ratable share of the pool deficit.

NOTE 9:  SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In December 2023, the District executed a construction loan agreement for $6,111,000.

NOTE 10: ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Fund balance - general fund $2,392,048

Increase net position for capital assets not reported in the fund financial
statements 8,207,929

Taxes receivables deferred in the fund financial statements and not in the
government-wide financial statements 136,112

Long-term liabilities not reported in the fund financial statements (6,250,498)

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt not reported in the fund financial 
statements (61,787)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, net, are
applicable to future reporting periods and are not reported in the fund financial
statements 1,367,824

Net position - governmental activities $5,791,628

16



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10: ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund ($699,989)

Proceeds from debt and lease financing not recognized as other financing
source income not reported in the government-wide financial statements (575,638)

Change in taxes receivable deferred in the fund financial statements 34,835

Change in grants receivable deferred in the fund financial statements (210,921)

Depreciation and amortization expense not recognized in the fund financial
statements (667,731)

Long-term debt principal payments recognized as expenditures in the fund
financial statements 995,461

Change in accrued leave not reported in the fund financial statements (191,748)

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental fund
when made. Adjustments to the net pension liability and pension expense
resulting from changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not
recognized in the fund financial statements. 178,544

ROU asset-lease expense recognized as expenditures in the fund financial
statements 190,138

Capital outlays recognized as expenditures in the fund financial statements 1,018,410

Change in net position - governmental activities $71,361

NOTE 11: PENSION PLAN

Plan Description 
The District provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional,
joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide TCDRS, an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. TCDRS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI) for TCDRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of
the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by TCDRS.  This report
may be obtained by calling TCDRS at 800-823-7782; in addition, the report is available on
TCDRS’ website at www.tcdrs.org.  Plan provisions for the District were as follows:

Benefits Provided
The plan provisions that have been adopted by the Board of the District are within the options
available in the governing state statutes of TCDRS. TCDRS provides retirement benefits that
are calculated based on age, average compensation and service credit as follows:

17

http://www.tcdrs.org.


 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLAN

Employee deposit rate 7%

District contribution rate 13.13%

Years required for vesting 10

Service retirement eligibility (expressed as age/years of service) 60/10, any/20, rule of
80

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued TCDRS financial report.

Employees Covered
As of the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 0

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 23

Active employees 47

Contributions
Under the state law governing TCDRS, the contribution rate for each District is determined
annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
Employees of the District were required to contribute 7% of their annual salary during the year,
and the District was required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 13.54% for
calendar 2022 and 13.13% for calendar 2023. The District’s contributions to TCDRS for the
year ended September 30, 2023 were $581,063 which equaled the required contribution.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total TCDRS pension liability was 7.60%.  The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at the
rates specified in the funding policy.  Based on that assumption, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members.  The discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on the TCDRS pension plan investments was determined
to be 7.60% using a building-block method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 

18



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLAN

developed for each major asset class. These real rates of return are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:

Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
The District’s net pension liability of $1,243,695 for TCDRS at September 30, 2023 was
measured as of December 31, 2022.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Pension Actuarial Assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: 12/31/2022

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal

Investment rate of return (7.50% rate of return plus
0.10% adjustment gross of administrative expenses): 7.60%

Inflation: 2.50%

Projected Salary Increases: 4.70% average

Mortality rates: 135% and 120% of Pub-2010
General Retirees Tables for males
and females, respectively, both
projected with 100% of MP-2021
Scale after 2010

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study  over the years 2017-2020. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the District, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.60%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher
than the current rate:   

1% Decrease
(6.60%)

Discount Rate
(7.60%)

1% Increase
(8.60%)

District’s net pension liability (asset) $2,387,691 $1,243,695 $329,833

19



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLAN

Asset Class  
Target

Allocation
Geometric Real
Rate of Return

U.S. Equities 11.50% 4.95%

Private Equity 25.00% 7.95%

Global Equities 2.50% 4.95%

International Equities-Developed 5.00% 4.95%

International Equities-Emerging 6.00% 4.95%

Investment-Grade Bonds 3.00% 2.40%

Strategic Credit 9.00% 3.39%

Direct Lending 16.00% 6.95%

Distressed Debt 4.00% 7.60%

REIT Equities 2.00% 4.15%

Master Limited Partnerships 2.00% 5.30%

Private Real Estate Partnerships 6.00% 5.70%

Hedge Funds 6.00% 2.90%

Cash Equivalents 2.00% 0.20%

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $396,086.
At September 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $20,121 $565,517

Changes in actuarial assumptions $5,891 $241,827

Net difference between projected and actual earnings $0 $202,939

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date N/A $383,553

The $383,553 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the District’s 2024 fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

20



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLAN

For the year ended September 30:

2024 $132,958

2025 146,459

2026 149,347

2027 222,606

2028 107,801

Thereafter 225,100

$984,271

Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Total
Pension

Liability (a)

Plan
Fiduciary Net
Position (b)

Net Pension 
Liability/

(Asset) (a)-(b)

Balance at December 31, 2021 $4,212,091 $3,413,126 $798,965

Changes for the year:

Service cost 528,508 0 528,508

Interest on total pension liability 359,406 0 359,406

Effect of plan changes 0 0 0

Effect of economic/demographic gains or             
losses 148,597 0 148,597

Effect of assumption changes or inputs 0 0 0

Refunds of contributions (23,564) (23,564) 0

Benefit payments 0 0 0

Administrative expenses 0 (2,333) 2,333

Member contributions 0 256,262 (256,262)

Net investment income 0 (262,114) 262,114

Employer contributions 0 494,703 (494,703)

Other 0 105,263 (105,263)

Balance at December 31, 2022 $5,225,038 $3,981,343 $1,243,695

21



Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

PROGRAM REVENUES:
Inspection and training 204,500$       421,500$     441,722$       20,222$        

GENERAL REVENUES:
Ad Valorem property taxes 6,254,000      6,262,000    6,255,312      (6,688)           
Sales taxes 1,100,000      1,221,000    1,221,254      254               
Grants -                    1,977,131    565,773         (1,411,358)    
Interest 5,000             115,000       128,797         13,797          
Other 40,000           44,000         70,898           26,898          

7,399,000      9,619,131    8,242,034      (1,377,097)    
Total revenues 7,603,500      10,040,631  8,683,756      (1,356,875)    

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel and related expenses 5,117,801      5,879,218 6,152,136      (272,918)       
Firefighting and related expenses 649,000         914,800       957,190         (42,390)         
Professional services 38,500           208,500       212,652         (4,152)           
Bad debt expense -                    -                  116,812         (116,812)       
Administrative 100,500         100,500       85,912           14,588          
Insurance 70,000           70,000         56,625           13,375          
Tax collection expenses 48,000           48,000         39,743           8,257            
Right of use asset- lease -                    51,840         190,138         (138,298)       
Capital outlay 512,000         2,239,473    1,018,410      1,221,063     
Debt service 1,067,451      1,134,451    1,129,765      4,686            

7,603,252      10,646,782  9,959,383      687,399        
Revenues over/(under) expenditures 248                (606,151)     (1,275,627)    (669,476)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Lease financing -                    -                  190,138         190,138        
Proceeds from debt -                    -                  385,500         385,500        

-                    -                  575,638         575,638        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 248                (606,151) (699,989) (93,838)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,092,037      3,092,037    3,092,037      -                    

ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,092,285$    2,485,886$  2,392,048$    (93,838)$       

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

See Independent Auditor's Report.
22



Total pension liability 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Service cost 528,508$       445,035$        346,900$       309,258$       249,907$       193,206$       111,333$       72,093$         50,452$     

Interest on total liability 359,406         271,828          204,215         129,899         94,274          59,517          28,417          19,317          7,927         

Effect of plan changes -                     -                     -                     447,631         -                    64,202          90,408          7,665            22,352       

Effect of assumption changes or inputs -                     49,162            290,285         -                    -                    (11,777)         -                    1,015            -                

Effect of economic/demographic (gains) or losses 148,597         314,423          115,964         (3,180)           44,626          74,753          62,314          (47,049)         55,977       

Benefit payments/refunds of employee contributions (23,564)          -                     -                     (7,371)           (9,296)           (5,757)           -                    -                    -                

Net change in total pension liability 1,012,947      1,080,448       957,364         876,237         379,511         374,143         292,472         53,041          136,708     

Total pension liability - beginning 4,212,091      3,131,643       2,174,279      1,298,043      918,532         544,388         251,917         198,876         62,167       

Total pension liability - ending (a) 5,225,038$     4,212,091$     3,131,643$    2,174,280$    1,298,043$    918,532$       544,389$       251,917$       198,875$   

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 494,703$       384,814$        319,196$       197,739$       186,567$       132,054$       75,236$         46,980$         28,781$     

Contributions - employee 256,262         233,287          192,331         174,790         155,473         126,984         76,615          46,751          38,948       

Net investment income (262,114)        558,684          159,645         163,098         (8,619)           55,255          13,554          (723)              1,371         

Benefit payments/refunds of employee contributions (23,564)          -                     -                     (7,371)           (9,296)           (5,757)           -                    -                    -                

Administrative expenses (2,333)            (1,847)            (1,625)            (1,170)           (800)              (440)              (147)              (98)                (40)            

Other 105,263         18,123            15,289           12,716          9,980            3,390            7,991            (12)                (3)              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 568,217         1,193,061       684,836         539,802         333,305         311,485         173,249         92,898          69,057       

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 3,413,126      2,220,065       1,535,229      995,427         662,123         350,637         177,389         84,490          15,433       

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 3,981,343      3,413,126       2,220,065      1,535,229      995,427         662,123         350,638         177,389         84,489       

Net pension liability (a) - (b) 1,243,695$     798,965$        911,578$       639,051$       302,616$       256,409$       193,751$       74,528$         114,385$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total

  pension liability   76.20% 81.03% 70.89% 70.61% 76.69% 72.08% 64.41% 70.42% 42.48%

Covered employee payroll 3,653,475$     3,332,665$     2,747,592$    2,497,006$    2,221,036$    1,814,059$    1,532,299$    1,168,774$    973,712$   

Net pension liability as % of covered-employee payroll 34.04% 23.97% 33.18% 25.59% 13.62% 14.13% 12.64% 6.38% 11.75%

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  Information prior to 2015 is not available.  

The beginning Net Pension Liability for 2015 was determined using rollback procedures

allowed for initial year of implementation.  Fiscal Year 2023 - Valuation Date 12/31/22.

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*
TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Actuarial Year Ended December 31, 

See Independent Auditor's Report.
23



2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution** 581,063$   471,717$  381,710$   275,522$   216,044$   172,100$   107,471$   65,677$     42,699$     

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 581,063     471,717    381,710     275,522     216,044     172,100     107,471     65,677       42,699       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -                 -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Covered-employee payroll 4,419,224  3,598,824 3,270,124  2,650,241  2,521,668  2,091,272  1,688,839  1,407,357  1,093,570  

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13.15% 13.11% 11.67% 10.40% 8.57% 8.23% 6.36% 4.67% 3.90%

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  Information prior to 2015 is not available.

**TCDRS calculates actuarially determined contributions on a calendar year basis.  GASB 68 indicates the employer should report employer contributions on a fiscal year basis.

Valuation Date:  December 31, 2022

Valuation Date:  Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period 13.7 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/22 valuation)

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by age and service.  4.7% average over career including inflation

Investment rate of Return 7.5% net of investment expenses, including inflation

Retirement Age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence receiving benefit payments based on age.  The average age at service retirement
for recent retirees is 61.

Mortality 135% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for males and 120% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees  Table for females, both projected with 100% of the

MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010.

Changes in Assumptions and Methods 2015:  New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.
2017:  New mortality assumptions were reflected.

Changes in Plan Provisions 2015:  Employer contributions reflect that the current service matching rate was increased to 150% for future benefits.
2016:  Employer contributions reflect that the member contribution rate was increased to 5%.
2017:  Employer contributions reflect that the member contribution rate was increased to 7% and the current service matching rate was
increased to 175% for future benefits.  Also, new Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned after 2017.
2018:  Employer contributions reflect that the current service matching rate was increased to 200% for future benefits.
2019:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2020:  Employer contributions reflect that the current service matching rate was increased to 250% for future benefits and the prior service
matching rate was increased to 100%.
2021:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2022:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #5
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*
TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

See Independent Auditor's Report.
24



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 27.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #6 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082. SMITH /SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOSMITH /SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated May 10, 2024 is
attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
HCESD#6 FY2023 Audit Report



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

We have audited the financial statements of Hays County Emergency Services District #6 (District) for the year
ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated May 10, 2024. Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit in our letter to you dated November 21, 2023. Professional standards also require that we provide you with
the following information related to our audit.

Accounting Policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by the District are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal year 2023. We noted no transactions
entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial statements were:

1. Management’s estimates of the useful lives of capital assets, and the related estimate of depreciation
expense are based on general knowledge of the assets involved and customary lives used by other
organizations for similar assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimated useful lives of capital assets (and related accumulated depreciation), in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

2. For purposes of measuring the net pension asset/liability, deferred inflows and outflows of resources related
to pensions and pension expense, management’s estimates have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and the Texas Emergency
Services Retirement System (TESRS). The District’s net pension asset/liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2022 for TCDRS and an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2022
for TESRS. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the valuation and the accrual
in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 2

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The attached
schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their
effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. The
uncorrected misstatements or the matters underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements
to be materially misstated, even though, in our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the
financial statements under audit.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of
our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated May 10, 2024.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis,  the general fund budgetary
comparison schedule, the schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios-TCDRS, the schedule
of contributions-TCDRS, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability-TESRS, and the schedule of
contributions-TESRS, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (supplementary information), accompanying the
financial statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

 



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 3

This information is intended solely for the use of the Fire Commissioners and management and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

May 10, 2024 
Austin, Texas

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6 

UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Account Debit Credit

Accrued employee benefits $24,712

Salaries and wages $24,712



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY 
SERVICES DISTRICT #6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 

Montemayor Britton Bender PC 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-3

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4-9

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 10

Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances 11

Notes to Financial Statements 12-25

Required Supplementary Information: 

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - TCDRS 26

Schedule of Contributions - TCDRS 27

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability - TESRS 28

Schedule of Contributions - TESRS 28

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 29

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on               
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 30-31

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance 32-34

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 35

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 36



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of the
Hays County Emergency Services District #6 (District), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and the aggregate general fund of the District, as of September 30,
2023 and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, the schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios-TCDRS, the schedule of
contributions-TCDRS, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability-TESRS, the schedule of
contributions-TESRS, and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

-2-

 



Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 10, 2024 on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

May 10, 2024
Austin, Texas

-3-

 



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

4 
 

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Hays County 
Emergency Services District # 6 (“the District”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 This 
discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 
statements, which have the following components: (1) management’s discussion and analysis 
(MD&A), (2) government-wide and fund financial statements, (3) notes to the financial statements, 
and (4) supplemental schedules. 
 
Financial Highlights  

 The District’s ad valorem tax rate decreased to 7.020¢ per $100 of assessed valuation for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. The statutory limit, as established by the State of 
Texas constitution, is 10¢ per $100 of assessed valuation. 

 Overall the district incurred a net increase to net position of $5,281,064. The increase was 
due to increased ad valorem and sales tax revenue, as well as increased operating grants, 
interest and other income. Total expenses increased by $870,379 from prior year mainly 
due to increased salaries, depreciation, and interest expense.  

 Total assets increased by $4,722,864, primarily as a result of an increase to capital assets. 
 The District decreased its lease and loan debt by $967,341.  

 
Explanation of the Financial Statements  
The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements of the District. 
The basic financial statements are comprised of two components: 1) government-wide and fund 
financial statements, and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.  
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the District’s finances in a manner similar to a private sector business reporting on a full accrual 
basis of accounting.  
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows, with the difference between them reported as net position. 
Increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the District has improved or deteriorated.  
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows 
in future fiscal periods (example: uncollected property taxes).  
 
Because the District’s principal source of revenue is ad valorem and sales taxes, the government-
wide financial statements are grouped into one function that is supported by taxes (governmental 
activities).  
 
 



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

5 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and account for resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal or contractual requirements. The District has one fund, the Governmental Fund.  

Governmental Fund: The Governmental Fund is used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the Governmental Fund financial 
statements focus on current fiscal year cash inflows and outflows, as well as balances of resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating 
the District’s recent financing requirements.  

Because the focus of the Governmental Fund is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the Governmental Fund with 
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s recent 
financing decisions. Both the Governmental Fund balance sheet and the Governmental Fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between Governmental Fund and government-wide financial statements.  

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The District’s net 
position (assets and deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows) was $25,867,258 as of 
the year ended September 30, 2023. Capital assets, net of depreciation and related debt, accounted 
for $12,248,169. Capital assets reflect the large investments in facilities and equipment that are 
necessary to provide adequate fire suppression services to the community. The remaining balance 
of net position of $13,619,089 is unrestricted and available to meet the District’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. Governmental activities account for all of the changes in net 
position at the government-wide reporting level because the District engages in no business-type 
activities. The tables below summarize the financials of the District at September 30, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

6 
 

2023 2022
 $ 14,722,452  $  12,975,531 
     21,436,587      18,460,644 

Total Assets      36,159,039      31,436,175 
       1,190,341           876,019 

       1,060,137           360,044 
     10,372,835      10,969,014 
     11,432,972      11,329,058 

Deferred Inflows related to pensions             49,150           396,942 

Net Investments in Cap Assets      12,248,169        8,304,885 
Unrestricted      13,619,089      12,281,309 

 $ 25,867,258  $  20,586,194 

Ad valorem tax revenue  $    7,849,376  $    7,037,676 
Grants and other income        1,211,710           849,609 
Interest Income           677,366              92,460 
Sales Tax Revenue        3,748,831        3,480,558 
Total Revenues      13,487,283      11,460,303 

      
Public Safety        7,930,544        7,048,046 
Interest on Long-term Debt           275,675           287,794 
Total Expenses        8,206,219        7,335,840 

       5,281,064        4,124,463 
     20,586,194      16,461,731 

 $ 25,867,258  $  20,586,194 Net Position, end of year

Deferred Outflows related to pensions

Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities 

Net Position:

Total Net Position

Revenues:

Expenses:

Increase in Net Position 
Net Position, beginning of year

September 30,
Assets:
Current and Other Assets
Non Current and Capital Assets

 



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

7 
 

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Fund 
The focus of the District’s Governmental Fund is to provide information on near-term inflows and 
outflows and on resource balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing 
the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance serves as a useful 
measure of the District’s net resources available for spending at fiscal year-end. 

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, the District’s only Governmental Fund was the 
General Fund, and it reported an ending cash and short-term investments balance of $13,223,664, 
an increase of $1,343,150 from September 30, 2022. The total ending unassigned fund balance was 
$7,955,380, and it was available for spending at the District’s discretion. The ending committed 
fund balances were $4,974,952, committed for reserves and capital projects. 

 
Purpose of Organization 
The District operates under the provisions of Chapter 775 of the Health and Safety Code. The 
District was established to arrange for fire and rescue protection services within its boundaries. The 
district handles all financial matters for the fire departments. The District governs seven fire stations 
located in the county:  North Hays, Henly, Henly South, East, Central and Driftwood. The District 
has both paid and volunteer staff and is funded primarily by the collection of taxes. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
The General Fund had a favorable variance to budget of $2,440,760. Total revenues were 
$1,369,643 more that budget and total expenditures were $1,017,117 less that budget.  The primary 
reasons for the budget difference included the following: 

 Sales taxes, interest and other income were greater than expected. 

 Operating grants were greater than expected. 

 Operations expenses were more than anticipated, while capital outlay and debt service 
were less than budgeted. 

 

Capital Assets 
The District’s investment in capital assets at September 30, 2023, net of accumulated depreciation, 
totaled $21,436,587, an increase of $2,975,943. Capital assets are classified as trucks and 
equipment, furniture and equipment, buildings, land, and construction in progress as shown below:  



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

8 
 

2023 2022

Trucks and Equipment 11,380,904$ 4,333,939$    
Furniture 1,889,169     877,538         
Buildings 12,026,928   9,251,820      
Land 5,060,682     3,871,239      
Construction in Progress 739,755        126,108         

31,097,438$ 18,460,644$  

September 30,

 

Equipment:  Equipment is primarily comprised of fire suppression apparatus and the equipment 
associated with those apparatus. The construction work in progress relates to the down payment 
made prior to year end on a new truck to be completed in approximately six to eight months. 

Buildings:  Buildings are comprised principally of seven fire stations, and one logistics facility that 
previously serviced as Fire Station 74.  

Land:  The District’s investment in land at September 30, 2023 of $5,060,682 was for five tracts 
of land. One three acre tract was purchased for $57,000 on which the North Station was constructed.  
The other tract was purchased for $9,696, on which the Henly South Fire Station was constructed. 
In prior years the district received $262,670 in contributed property from the North Hays County 
VFD for land for the expansion and building of new admin offices. The land for the Henly Station 
and the Driftwood Station was donated to the Henly Volunteer Fire Department and the Driftwood 
Volunteer Fire Department, respectively. The District has ground leases with each department for 
use of the land for the respective fire stations. The East Station was built in a condominium 
association development, and the land for the building was included in the cost of the building. In 
fiscal year 2018 land was purchased for the new East Station 74 for $303,646. Land for Station 77 
was purchased for $1,399,453 and is the future site of a training facility. The District has two 
additional properties that are for future stations. Land for Fire Station 69 was purchased in 2022 
for $1,800,000. Land for South Ranch Road 12 Fire Station was purchased in 2023 for $1,200,000. 

Long-Term Debt 
The District’s long-term debt at September 30, 2023, net of the current portion, totaled $8,204,416 
for loans and mortgages.  The current portion of the long-term debt was $984,002. Ad Valorem tax 
revenues are pledged as collateral for all debt. 

Debt Service Ratio: The District maintains control over its debt load by maintaining its debt 
service to total revenues ratio (the “Debt Service Ratio”) at 35% or less with the ad valorem tax 
rate at 7.020¢ per $100 of assessed valuation. The District feels that the Debt Service Ratio is more 
meaningful than the debt to equity ratio because the Debt Service Ratio is a better indicator of the 
District’s ability to service the debt and still be able to pay annual operating expenses. The District’s 
Debt Service Ratio is shown below: 



 
HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT # 6 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 

9 
 

2023 2022 2021

Total Debt Service 1,263,339$      2,234,525$    1,215,190$  
Total Revenues 13,487,283      11,460,303    10,089,060  
Debt Service Ratio 9.37% 19.50% 12.04%

          September 30,

 

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Tax Rates 
North Hays County continues to grow, which provides some property tax revenue growth to offset 
inflationary trends in operating costs. As with many local government entities, the growth provides 
funding to help offset inflationary trends with existing programs, but it often leaves little funds 
available for new or enhanced programs or services.  
 
The tax rate of 7.020¢ per $100 of assessed valuation can be maintained at the current level of paid 
vs. volunteer firefighters. However, as the growth of the population overtakes the ability of 
volunteers to provide the level of service required by the community, the District will need to assess 
a higher tax rate to pay for the cost of a larger paid staff.  The maximum tax rate available to the 
District is 10¢ per $100 of assessed valuation. 
 
Therefore, the District is paying close attention to the balance between debt service, operating cost 
and labor costs to continue the operations needed in the community. 
 
Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all 
those with an interest in them. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 

Hays County Emergency Services District #6 
PO Box 1237 
Dripping Springs, TX 78620 



General Adjustments Statement of
Fund (Note 9) Net Position

ASSETS
Cash 730,851$         730,851$        
Short-term investments 12,492,813     12,492,813     
Sales taxes receivable 634,038           634,038          
Ad Valorem property taxes receivable 127,903           127,903          
Grants receivable 736,847           736,847          
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress -                       6,270,407       6,270,407       
Other capital assets, net of depreciation -                       15,166,180     15,166,180     

-                       21,436,587     
14,722,452     36,159,039     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences between actual and expected experience -                       468,743          468,743          
Difference actual and projected plan earnings -                       220,728          220,728          
Changes in assumptions -                       215,291          215,291          
Contributions subsequent to measurement date -                       285,579          285,579          

-                       1,190,341       
14,722,452$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 823,316$         823,316          
Accrued interest payable -                       132,767          132,767          
Accrued payroll and benefits 104,054           104,054          
Long-term liabilities:

Due within 1 year: loans payable -                       984,002          984,002          
Due in more than 1 year:

Loans payable -                       8,204,416       8,204,416       
Accrued leave -                       337,965          337,965          
Net pension liability-TCDRS -                       655,556          655,556          
Net pension liability-TESRS -                       190,896          190,896          

927,370           11,432,972     
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Differences between expected and actual experience -                       45,422            45,422            
Changes of assumptions -                       3,728              3,728              
Unavailable revenue - Ad Valorem taxes 127,903           (127,903)         -                      
Unavailable revenue - operating grants 736,847           (736,847)         -                      

864,750           49,150            
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

FUND BALANCES
Fund balance - committed for reserve funds 3,905,932        (3,905,932)      
Fund balance - committed for capital projects 1,069,020        (1,069,020)      
Fund balance - unassigned 7,955,380        (7,955,380)      

12,930,332     (12,930,332)    
14,722,452$   (14,722,452)    

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,248,169     12,248,169     
Unrestricted 13,619,089     13,619,089     

25,867,258$   

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation
- 10 -



General Adjustments Statement of
Fund (Note 9) Activities

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES:
Labor and benefits

Salaries & wages 3,734,605$      79,199$      3,813,804$      
Employee benefits 641,187           (217,061)     424,126           
Medical 356,598           356,598           
Payroll processing 20,712             20,712             
Payroll taxes 305,764           305,764           

5,058,866        4,921,004        
Fire department operations

Administrative 4,128               4,128               
Buildings 124,982           124,982           
Fire/Rescue operations 497,113           497,113           
Depreciation -                       1,213,050   1,213,050        
Training 102,372           102,372           
Vehicle operations 392,926           392,926           
Utilities 98,428             98,428             

1,219,949        2,432,999        
District expenses

Communications 42,795             42,795             
Computer and internet 89,228             89,228             
Dues 129,290           129,290           
Insurance 183,855           183,855           
Office expenses 13,898             13,898             
Professional services 44,110             44,110             
Tax services 73,365             73,365             

576,541           576,541           

Capital outlay 4,188,993        (4,188,993)  -                       
Debt service

Interest expense 295,998           (20,323)       275,675           
Principal payments 967,341           (967,341)     -                       

1,263,339        275,675           
12,307,688      8,206,219        

GENERAL REVENUES:
Ad Valorem taxes 7,822,460        26,916        7,849,376        
Sales taxes 3,748,831        3,748,831        
Operating grants-federal 517,973           369,348      887,321           
Operating grants-state and local 172,986           172,986           
Interest 677,366           677,366           
Other 151,403           151,403           

13,091,019      13,487,283      
Net change in fund balance/net position 783,331           5,281,064        
Beginning fund balance/net position 12,147,001      20,586,194      
Ending fund balance/net position 12,930,332$    25,867,258$    

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT

OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation
- 11 -



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

The Northwest Hays County Rural Fire Prevention District #4 was confirmed by election in July 1984
and effectively began operations on July 1, 1985. On July 28, 2001 the District converted the
Northwest Hays County Rural Fire Prevention District #4 to the Northwest Hays County Emergency
Services District #5 and then on October 1, 2006, the District was renamed as the Hays County
Emergency Services District #6 (the District) and is operating under the provisions of Chapter 775
of the Health and Safety Code. The District was established to arrange for fire and rescue protection
services within its boundaries. The District handles all financial matters for the fire departments. The
District is not included in any other governmental reporting entity.

On October 13, 2004, Hays County Fire & Rescue (HCFR) was incorporated under section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue code. As of October 1, 2007 the HCFR was dissolved and all assets and
liabilities of became the responsibility of the District.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The following is a summary of
the significant accounting policies.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District is considered a special purpose government under GASB Statement No. 34. This
allows the District to present the required fund and government-wide statements in a single
schedule. The requirement for fund financial statements to be prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting is met with the “General Fund” column. An adjustment column includes those
entries needed to convert to the full accrual basis government-wide statements. The Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements. They report
information on all of the District’s activities. The District services are supported primarily by ad
valorem taxes. The Statement of Activities demonstrates how the District used revenue.  Expenses
are grouped into four categories: labor and benefits, fire department operations, district expenses
and debt service.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers all revenues available if they
are collectible within 31 days after year- end. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period
in which the liability is incurred. Interest and tax revenues associated with the current fiscal year
are considered susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues in the current fiscal
year. All other revenue is considered measurable and available only when cash is received.

-12-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Full-time regular employees work a 40 hour per week schedule. Firefighters are scheduled based
on either a day shift or 48/96 hour shift schedule. Accruals for leave are based on length of service
and the schedule worked. Employees may accrue up to 288 hours of paid leave.  If unused, the leave
will be paid to the employee. 

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred
inflows. Net position invested in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction or improvements of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District’s policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

FUND BALANCES

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District can establish
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment or an assignment. When both
unassigned and committed or assigned funds are available for expenditure, committed or assigned
funds are used first. 

Committed fund balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the Board or adoption of an ordinance. Limitations imposed by commitments
remain in place until formal Board action is taken to remove the limitation. Amounts in the assigned
fund balances are intended to be used by the District for specific purposes but do not meet the
criteria to be committed. Assignments are generally temporary and do not require Board action to
be taken to remove the assignment.

CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are recorded at historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of
$2,500 for assets with a useful life of two years or more. The District does not possess any
infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized. The cost of normal repairs and maintenance that do

-13-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset’s life are recorded as expenses. 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trucks and equipment 10 years

Furniture and equipment 10 years

Building 25-40 years

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources representing a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and is not recognized as an outflow of resources in the current period.  The District’s pension
related items qualify for reporting in this category in the government-wide financial statements. See
Note 10 for more information.

The statement of financial position and governmental funds balance sheet  report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources representing an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and is not recognized as an inflow of resources or revenue until that time. The District has
two types of items which qualify for reporting in this category. Unavailable revenue is reported only
in the governmental funds balance sheet.

The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from property taxes. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow in the period that they become available. The other item is
pension related items reported in the government-wide financial statements. See Note 11 for more
information.

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and the pension expense, information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position of the Texas County & District Retirement System (TCDRS) and the Texas Emergency
Services Retirement System (TESRS) and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TCDRS and TESRS.  For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments of TCDRS and TESRS are
reported at fair value.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS

At September 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the District’s cash deposits was $730,851 and the bank
balance was $743,505. $568,520 of the District’s deposits were fully collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution and FDIC, and $174,985 were uninsured at year-end.

-14-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The Board of Fire Commissioners has authorized the District under a written investment policy to
invest funds in compliance with V.A.T.C.S Government Code, Title 10, Chapter 2256 (the Public
Funds Investment Act of 1993).  Investment vehicles authorized by Chapter 2256 include, but are not
limited to, certificates of deposit, obligations backed by the U.S. and state governments, and public
fund investment pools. All investments at year end were held in the Texas Local Government
Investment Pool (TexPool). TexPool investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value. The State Comptroller oversees TexPool, with Federated Investors managing the daily
operations of the pool under a contract with the State Comptroller. TexPool is a 2(a)7 like fund, which
means that it is structured similar to a money market mutual fund.  It allows shareholders the ability
to deposit or withdraw funds on a daily basis. Such funds seek to maintain a constant net asset value
of $1.00, although this cannot be fully guaranteed.  TexPool is rated AAAm (the highest rating a local
government investment pool can achieve) and must maintain a dollar weighted average maturity not
to exceed 60 days, which is the limit. At September 30, 2023, the TexPool portfolio and the TexPool
Prime portfolio had weighted average maturities of 28 and 46 days, respectively. However, the
District considers the holdings in these funds to have a one day weighted average maturity because
the share position can usually be redeemed each day at the discretion of the shareholder, unless there
has been a significant change in value.

NOTE 5:  CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land $3,871,239 $1,189,443 $0 $5,060,682

   Construction work in progress 126,108 1,209,725 (126,108) 1,209,725

  3,997,347 2,399,168 (126,108) 6,270,407

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Trucks and equipment 10,503,190 407,744 0 10,910,934

   Furniture and equipment 1,665,278 223,891 0 1,889,169

   Buildings 10,742,630 1,284,298 0 12,026,928

22,911,098 1,915,933 0 24,827,031

Accumulated depreciation:

   Trucks and equipment (6,169,251) (752,286) 0 (6,921,537)

   Furniture and equipment (787,740) (158,166) 0 (945,906)

   Buildings (1,490,810) (302,598) 0 (1,793,408)

   Total accumulated depreciation (8,447,801) (1,213,050) 0 (9,660,851)

Total capital assets $18,460,644 $3,102,051 ($126,108) $21,436,587

-15-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6: BUDGET VARIANCES

The District adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. The District amends the budget as needed
during the year. There were no current year amendments. Certain revenue and expenses were different
than budgeted, resulting in a higher than budgeted fund balance. Sales tax revenues, interest and other
income were higher than budgeted, which was offset by some by lower than anticipated operating
grant revenues. Operations expenditures were more than anticipated, and capital outlay and debt
service were less than anticipated. Anticipated proceeds from debt were not received. 

NOTE 7: PROPERTY TAXES

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $0.10 per $100 of value.  Ad valorem
taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in the District. The
tax rate for the October 1, 2022 levy was $0.07020 per $100 of value. Taxes are due upon receipt of
the bill and are delinquent if not paid before the first day of February in the year following levy. On
January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to the property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties
and interest ultimately imposed. Taxes are billed and collected by the Hays County Tax Assessor-
Collector.

NOTE 8:    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Total

Accrued leave $258,766 $350,917 ($271,718) $337,965

Loans
Original

 Issue Maturity
Interest

Rate
Beginning
Balance Additions Payments

Ending
Balance

8385 $650,000 2025 3.80% $391,950 $0 $92,650 $299,300

2928 870,000 2028 2.79% 665,715 0 103,837 561,878

8862 580,662 2024 2.85% 358,094 0 116,096 241,998

362912 6,500,000 2040 2.85% 5,850,000 0 325,000 5,525,000

369668 1,800,000 2032 3.12% 1,800,000 0 66,990 1,733,010

369666 1,090,000 2026 2.50% 1,090,000 0 262,768 827,232

$11,490,662 $10,155,759 $0 $967,341 $9,188,418

All loans are secured by Ad Valorem tax revenues. The loan agreements have provisions that change
the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts to become immediately due if the District defaults on
its required payments. Maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2023 are as follows:

-16-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8:    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Principal Interest Total

2024 $984,002 $270,430 $1,254,432

2025 1,003,191 241,313 1,244,504

2026 895,288 212,315 1,107,603

2027 515,740 186,338 702,078

2028 510,018 171,771 681,789

2029-2033 3,005,179 628,120 3,633,299

2034-2039 1,625,000 234,907 1,859,907

2040 650,000 28,199 678,199

$9,188,418 $1,973,393 $11,161,811

NOTE 9: ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund $783,331

Change in taxes receivable deferred in the fund financial statements 26,916

Change in long-term grants receivable deferred in the fund financial statements 369,348

Depreciation expense not recognized in the fund financial statements (1,213,050)

Long-term debt principal payments recognized as expenditures in the fund financial
statements 967,341

Change in accrued interest expense on long-term debt not reported in the fund
financial statements 20,323

Change in accrued leave not reported in the fund financial statements (79,199)

Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental fund when
made.  Adjustments to the net pension liability and pension expense resulting from
changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not recognized in the fund
financial statements. 217,061

Capital outlays recognized as expenditures in the fund financial statements 4,188,993

Change in net position - governmental activities $5,281,064

-17-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9: ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Fund balance - general fund $12,930,332

Increase net position for capital assets not reported in the fund financial
statements 21,436,587

Taxes receivable deferred in the fund financial statements and not in the government-
wide financial statements 127,903

Grants receivable deferred in the fund financial statements and not in the
government-wide financial statements 736,847

Long-term liabilities not reported in the fund financial statements (10,372,835)

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt not reported in the fund financial 
statements (132,767)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, net, are applicable
to future reporting periods and are not reported in the fund financial statements 1,141,191

Net position - governmental activities $25,867,258

NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property damage, and
worker’s compensation. The District purchases insurance to provide coverage for these risks.

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT  RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TCDRS)

Plan Description 
The District provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide TCDRS, an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. TCDRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TCDRS;
the report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and
assumptions used by TCDRS. This report may be obtained by calling TCDRS at 800-823-7782; in
addition, the report is available on TCDRS’website at www.tcdrs.org.  Plan provisions are as follows:

Benefits Provided
The plan provisions that have been adopted by the Board of the District are within the options
available in the governing state statutes of TCDRS. TCDRS provides retirement benefits that are
calculated based on age, average compensation and service credit as follows:

Employee deposit rate 7%

District contribution rate 10.27%

Years required for vesting 10

Service retirement eligibility (expressed as age/years of service) 60/10, any/20, rule of 80

-18-

http://www.tcdrs.org.


 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Employees Covered
As of the December 31, 2022 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 0

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 25

Active employees 46

Contributions
Under the state law governing TCDRS, the contribution rate for each District is determined annually
by the actuary, using the Entry Age actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Employees of the District were
required to contribute 7% of their annual salary during the year, and the District was required to
contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 10.27%. The District’s contributions to TCDRS for
the year ended September 30, 2023 were $375,092, which equaled the required contribution.

Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
The District’s net pension liability (asset) of $655,556 for TCDRS at September 30, 2023 was
measured as of December 31, 2022. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Pension Actuarial Assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: 12/31/2022

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal

Investment rate of return (7.50% rate of return plus
0.10% adjustment gross of administrative expenses): 7.60%

Inflation: 2.50%

Projected Salary Increases: 4.70% average

Mortality rates 135% and 120% of Pub-2010 General
Retirees Table for males and females,
respectively, both projected with
100% of MP-2021 Ultimate Scale
after 2010

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022  valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the years 2017 through 2020. 

-19-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total TCDRS pension liability was 7.60%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at the rates 
specified in the funding policy. Based on that assumption, the plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. The
discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on the TCDRS pension plan investments was determined to be
7.60% using a building-block method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates
of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These real rates of return are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates
of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class  
Target

Allocation
Geometric Real
Rate of Return

U.S. Equities 11.50% 4.95%

Private Equity 25.00% 7.95%

Global Equities 2.50% 4.95%

International Equities-Developed 5.00% 4.95%

International Equities-Emerging 6.00% 4.95%

Investment-Grade Bonds 3.00% 2.40%

Strategic Credit 9.00% 3.89%

Direct Lending 16.00% 6.95%

Distressed Debt 4.00% 7.60%

REIT Equities 2.00% 4.15%

Master Limited Partnerships 2.00% 5.30%

Private Real Estate Partnerships 6.00% 5.70%

Hedge Funds 6.00% 2.90%

Cash Equivalents 2.00% 0.20%

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued TCDRS financial report.

-20-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the District, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.60%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:   

1% Decrease
(6.60%)

Discount Rate
(7.60%)

1% Increase
(8.60%)

District’s net pension liability (asset) $1,667,638 $655,556 ($143,793)

Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Total
Pension

Liability (a)

Plan
Fiduciary Net
Position (b)

Net Pension 
Liability/

(Asset) (a)-(b)

Balance at December 31, 2021 $3,473,598 $3,274,067 $199,531

Changes for the year:

Service cost 344,004 0 344,004

Interest on total pension liability 290,138 0 290,138

Effect of plan changes 0 0 0

Effect of economic/demographic gains or          
   losses 251,930 0 251,930

Effect of assumption changes or inputs 0 0 0

Refunds of contributions 0 0 0

Benefit payments 0 0 0

Administrative expenses 0 (2,171) 2,171

Member contributions 0 238,628 (238,628)

Net investment income 0 (242,137) 242,137

Employer contributions 0 350,102 (350,102)

Other 0 85,625 (85,625)

Balance at December 31, 2022 $4,359,670 $3,704,114 $655,556

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $145,971. At
September 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

-21-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $45,422 $465,955

Changes in actuarial assumptions $3,360 $215,291

Net difference between projected and actual earnings $0 $163,615

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date N/A $275,379

$275,379 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for
the District year ending September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense as follows:

For the plan year ended December 31:

2023 $106,063

2024 125,700

2025 146,096

2026 218,967

2027 109,446

Thereafter 89,807

$796,079

TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TESRS)

Plan Description 
The District provides pension benefits for eligible volunteer emergency services personnel who are
members in good standing with the District. The Fire Fighters’ Pension Commissioner is the
administrator of the TESRS, a cost-sharing multiple employer pension system established and
administered by the State of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel who
serve without significant monetary remuneration. TESRS was created by Senate Bill 411, 65th

Legislature, Regular Session (1977), and established the applicable benefit provisions. The 79th

Legislature, Regular Session (2005), recodified the provisions and gave TESRS Board of Trustees
authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas and eligibility
requirements by board rule.  TESRS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes
financial statements and RSI for TESRS, as well as detailed explanations of the contributions,
benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the plan. This report may be obtained by
calling 800-919-3372. The report is also available on TESRS’ website at www.tesrs.texas.gov. 

-22-

http://www.tcdrs.org.


 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Benefits Provided
The benefit provisions include retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Members
are 50% vested after the tenth year of service, with the vesting percent increased 10% for each of the
next five years of service so that a member becomes 100% vested within 15 years of service. Upon
reaching age 55, a vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his vested
percentage multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the
member’s years of qualified service.  

For each year of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly benefit is increased at the rate of 6.2%
compounded annually. In addition, member districts may purchase prior service credit for service with
the participating department before the department began participating in the plan that is not buyback
service and that does not count as qualified service. There is a separate benefit formula for this prior
service.

On and off duty death and on duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the member
was engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits include a
lump-sum amount and continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and dependent
children.

Contributions
Contributions are not required by individual members of participating departments. The governing
bodies of participating departments are required to contribute at least the minimum prescribed amount
per month for each active member and may contribute more. The contribution requirement per active
emergency services personnel member per month is not actuarially determined.  Rather, the minimum
contribution provisions were set by the Board.

Additional contributions may be made by a governing body to pay for granting credit for service
before the department began participating in TESRS (prior service). The State may also be required
to make annual contributions up to a limited amount to make the TESRS actuarially sound. The
expected contributions from the state are appropriations equal to (1) the maximum annual
contribution (one-third of all contributions to the System by governing bodies of participating
departments in a year) as needed in accordance with state law governing the System, and (2)
approximately $675,000 each year to pay for part of the System’s administrative expenses. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the District’s contributions to TESRS were $22,450.

Pension Liability
At September 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of $190,896 for its proportionate share of the
TESRS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2023, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of August 31, 2022. The District’s  proportionate share of the net pension liability for
the plan as of August 31, 2023 was .441%. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $33,060. At
September 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

-23-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $0 $2,788

Changes in actuarial assumptions $368 $0

Net difference between projected and actual earnings $0 $57,113

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date N/A $10,200

$10,200 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for
the District year ending September 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

For the plan year ended August 31:

2024 $14,975

2025 15,549

2026 27,058

2027 1,951

$59,533

Actuarial Assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as follows:

Valuation Date: 8/31/2022

Measurement Date: 8/31/2023

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% 

Inflation 3.00%

Projected Salary Increases: N/A

Mortality Rates: PubS-2010 mortality tables using projection scale MP-
2019

The long-term expected rate of return on the TESRS pension plan investments was determined to be
7.5% using a building-block method in which the expected future net real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These components are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 

-24-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS

expected inflation. The target asset allocation and expected arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table:   

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-term 
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Equities

   Large cap domestic 20% 5.83%

   Small cap domestic 10% 5.94%

   Developed international 15% 6.17%

   Emerging markets 5% 7.36%

Global infrastructure 5% 6.61%

Real estate 10% 4.48%

Multi asset income 5% 3.86%

Fixed income  30% 1.95%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total TESRS pension liability was 7.5%.  No projection of cash
flows was used to determine the discount rate because the August 31, 2022 actuarial valuation showed
that expected contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability in 30 years using the level dollar amortization method. Because of those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate noted above, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher than the current rate:   

1% Decrease
(6.5%)

Discount Rate 
(7.5%)

1% Increase
(8.5%)

Proportionate share of net pension liability $295,588 $190,896 $105,980

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
TESRS financial report.

-25-



Total pension liability 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Service cost 344,004$       333,138$        253,071$       233,634$       174,124$       152,595$      151,459$       143,696$       107,101$      

Interest on total liability 290,138         233,077          178,655         142,533         98,003           72,962          52,496          55,563          38,428          

Effect of plan changes -                     -                     -                     -                    157,946         -                   -                    (28,447)         -                   

Effect of assumption changes or inputs -                     85,202            246,639         -                    -                     (8,394)          -                    1,412            -                   

Effect of economic/demographic (gains) or losses 251,930         88,526            110,279         58,280          61,963           71,555          (23,097)         (201,441)       84,087          

Benefit payments/refunds -                     -                     (14,769)          (1,350)           (2,253)            -                   (12,806)         (38,094)         (8,021)          

Net change in total pension liability 886,072         739,943          773,875         433,097         489,783         288,718        168,052         (67,311)         221,595        

Total pension liability - beginning 3,473,598      2,733,655       1,959,780      1,526,683      1,036,900      748,181        580,129         647,440         425,845        

Total pension liability - ending (a) 4,359,670$     3,473,598$     2,733,655$    1,959,780$    1,526,683$    1,036,900$   748,181$       580,129$       647,440$      

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 350,102$       196,373$        185,378$       139,673$       103,867$       92,954$        88,212$         80,886$         81,461$        

Contributions - employee 238,628         172,041          165,095         130,885         103,009         89,235          76,741          71,793          65,890          

Net investment income (242,137)        556,331          187,506         215,736         (18,659)          122,335        45,760          (13,683)         23,351          

Benefit payments/refunds -                     -                     (14,769)          (1,350)           (2,253)            -                   (12,806)         (38,094)         (8,021)          

Administrative expenses (2,171)            (1,771)            (1,712)            (1,378)           (1,057)            (748)             (498)              (408)              (332)             

Other 85,625           11,083            10,113           9,469            6,209             2,435            13,592          (49)                (24)               

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 430,047         934,057          531,611         493,035         191,116         306,211        211,001         100,445         162,325        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 3,274,067      2,340,010       1,808,399      1,315,364      1,124,249      818,037        607,036         506,590         344,266        

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 3,704,114      3,274,067       2,340,010      1,808,399      1,315,364      1,124,249     818,037         607,036         506,590        

Net pension liability (a) - (b) 655,556$       199,531$        393,645$       151,381$       211,319$       (87,349)$      (69,856)$       (26,907)$       140,849$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total

  pension liability   84.96% 94.26% 85.60% 92.28% 86.16% 108.42% 109.34% 104.64% 78.25%

Covered employee payroll 3,408,977$     2,457,734$     2,358,504$    1,869,789$    1,716,808$    1,487,258$   1,250,292$    1,196,552$    1,098,156$   

Net pension liability as % of covered-employee payroll 19.23% 8.12% 16.69% 8.10% 12.31% -5.87% -5.59% -2.25% 12.83%

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in 2014.  Information prior to 2014 is not available.  
The beginning Net Pension Liability for 2015 was determined using rollback procedures allowed for initial year of implementation.  
Fiscal Year 2023 - Valuation Date 12/31/22.

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*
TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Actuarial Year Ended December 31, 

See Independent Auditor's Report.
-26-



2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution** 375,092$     282,970$     196,019$     150,611$     126,230$     102,187$     89,302$       87,974$       81,094$       

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 375,092       282,970       196,019       150,611       126,230       102,187       89,302         87,974         81,094         

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

Covered-employee payroll 3,885,630$  3,223,191$  2,505,970$  2,170,585$  1,780,436$  1,634,992$  1,264,901$  1,301,391$  1,092,911$  

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.65% 8.78% 7.82% 6.94% 7.09% 6.25% 7.06% 6.76% 7.42%

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  Information prior to fiscal 2015 is not available.

**TCDRS calculates actuarially determined contributions on a calendar year basis.  GASB 68 indicates the employer should report employer contributions on a fiscal year basis.

Valuation Date:  Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 31, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period 18.5 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/22 valuation)

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by age and service. 4.7% average over career including inflation

Investment rate of Return 7.50% net of investment expenses, including inflation

Retirement Age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence receiving benefit payments based on age.  The average age at service retirement
for recent retirees is 61.

Mortality 135% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for males and 120% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees. Table for females, both projected with 100% of the

MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010.
Changes in Assumptions and Methods 2015:  New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.

2017:  New mortality assumptions were reflected.
2019:  New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.
2021:  New invesetment return and inflation assumptions were reflected.

Changes in Plan Provisions 2016:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned after 2017.
2018:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2019:  Employer contributions reflect that the member contribution rate was increased to 7%.
2020:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2021:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.
2022:  No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule.

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*
TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

See Independent Auditor's Report.
-27-



2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.441% 0.492% 0.444% 0.524% 0.307% 0.545% 0.364% 0.394% 0.405%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 190,896$      201,868$      47,571$        132,105$      154,483$     66,467$       87,366$       114,765$     73,595$     

Number of active members** 37                  40                  34                  44                  43                34                36                41                39              

Net pension liability per active member 5,159$          5,047$          1,399$          3,002$          3,593$         1,955$         2,427$         2,799$         1,887$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total pension 

   liability 74.6% 75.2% 93.1% 83.2% 80.2% 84.3% 81.4% 76.3% 83.5%

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  Information prior to fiscal 2015 is not available. Current year Actuarial Valution Date: August 31, 2022

**There is no compensation for active members.  Number of active members is used instead.

Changes in benefit terms : There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement period.

Changes in assumptions : There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement period.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution** 22,450$        34,450$        17,716$        24,450$        24,440$       14,684$       17,604$       18,468$       18,360$     

Contributions in relation to the contractually required

   contribution 22,450$        34,450$        17,716$        24,450$        24,440$       14,684$       17,604$       18,468$       18,360$     

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               

Number of active members*** 37                  40                  34                  44                  43                34                36                41                39              

Contributions per active member 607$              861$              521$              556$              568$            432$            489$            450$            471$          

NOTE:

*The District implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015.  Information prior to fiscal 2015 is not available. Current year Actuarial Valution Date: August 31, 2022
**The contribution rate per member is not actuarially determined. Rather, minimum contribution provisions are determined by Board rule and there is no maximum contribution rate.  
***There is no compensation for active members. Number of active members is used instead.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*

TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023*

TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

See Independent Auditor's Report
-28-



Variance
Original and Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
General revenues

Ad valorem taxes 7,862,860$         7,822,460$     (40,400)$        
Sales taxes 2,900,000           3,748,831       848,831         
Operating grants-federal 790,000              517,973          (272,027)        
Operating grants-state and local 25,000                172,986          147,986         
Interest 25,000                677,366          652,366         
Other 118,516              151,403          32,887           

11,721,376         13,091,019     1,369,643      

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety 6,164,470           6,855,356       (690,886)        
Capital outlay 5,928,000           4,188,993       1,739,007      
Debt service 1,286,335           1,263,339       22,996           

13,378,805         12,307,688     1,071,117      
Revenues (under)/over expenditures (1,657,429) 783,331 2,440,760

Other financing sources
Proceeds from debt 1,800,000           -                      (1,800,000)     

142,571 783,331 640,760

Beginning fund balance 12,147,001         12,147,001     -                     

Ending fund balance 12,289,572$       12,930,332$   640,760$       

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

See Independent Auditor's Report
-29-



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of Hays
County Emergency Services District #6 (District) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 10, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

May 10, 2024 
Austin, Texas

-31-

 



Board of Fire Commissioners and Management
Hays County Emergency Services District #6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

A. Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to
audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2023. The District’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year ended September
30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.

Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Arturo Montemayor III CPA, President & CEO | Stacy Britton CPA, Shareholder | Sean Bender CPA, Shareholder 
Danielle Guerrero, Shareholder | Sara Carey CPA, Shareholder

2110 Boca Raton Drive
Building B, Suite 102

Austin TX 78747
512.442.0380

www.montemayor.team



Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s federal
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the District’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

B. Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or

detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance

-33-

 



requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of the testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

May 10, 2024 
Austin, Texas

-34-

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Federal Agency/Pass-Through/Program Title

Assistance
Listing
Number Contract Expenditures

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through Federal Emergency Management Agency

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency             
   Response (SAFER) 97.083 EMW-2020-FF-00853 $887,321

NOTE: This schedule is prepared using the same accounting policies as the financial statements. See the notes to the
financial statements on pages 12-26. The District did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

See Independent Auditor’s Report

-35-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #6

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements 
 audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? None noted

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
material weakness(es)? None noted

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? None noted

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal controls over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? None noted

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
material weakness(es)? None noted

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance with major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in  
   accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? None noted

Major program: Assistance Listing Number 97.083 SAFER

Threshold used to distinguish between Type A and B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No

B. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Current year: None noted

C. SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS N/A

See Independent Auditor’s Report

-36-



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 28.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #8 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082. SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO SMITH /C OH EN /VILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated May 24, 2024, is
attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
HCESD #8 FY 2023 Final Audit Report



 

Hays County  

Emergency Services District #8 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

September 30, 2023 

 



 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report  1 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  4 

 

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet  8 

 

Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures  10 

  and Changes in Fund Balance 

 

Notes to Financial Statements  11 

 

Required Supplemental Information 

 

  Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund  26 

 

  Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios  27  

 

  Schedule of District Contributions   28 

 

  Notes to Required Supplementary Information  29 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

 

To the Board of Fire Commissioners 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

Buda, Texas 

 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and 

General Fund of Hays County Emergency Services District #8 (the District), as of and for the 

year ended September 30, 2023, and the related statements of operations, changes in 

stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 

financial statements. 

  

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the 

District as of September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position for the 

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. 

 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America. My responsibility under those standards is further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of the report. I 

am required to be independent of the Company and to meet my other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe the audit 

evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 

financial statements are available to be issued. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of control. Misstatements are 

considered material if there is substantial likelihood that, individually or in aggregate, they 

would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, I:  

 

-Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. 

-Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

-Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

-Conclude whether, in my judgement, there are conditions or events considered in the 

aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern for a reasonable period of time. 

-2- 



 

 

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amount other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain 

internal control related matters that I identified during the audit, if any. 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of American require that the 

management discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule – general fund, the 

schedule of changes in net pension asset and related ratios, the schedule of district 

contributions, and the notes to required supplementary information be presented to 

supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 

management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operations, 

economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained 

during our audit of the basic financial statements.  I do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   

 

 
 

May 24, 2024 

Round Rock, Texas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

-3- 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
The discussion and analysis of Hays County Emergency Services District #8’s (the “District’s) 

financial performance provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the year 

ended September 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, 

which follow this section.  

 

Financial Highlights 

 

• During the year, the District had expenses of $10,766,718 compared to total revenues of 

$16,416,837 resulting in net increase to net position of $5,650,119 for the year ended 

September 30, 2023. For the year ended September 30, 2022, the District had net income 

of $4,304,182. 

• There were 843 new residential homes and nine new commercial properties during fiscal 

2023. This increase is consistent with the previous year’s growth adding to the sales and 

property tax revenues of the District. 

• The District’s new 45,000 square foot Administrative/Training/Fire Station is currently 

under construction. It is 80% complete with completion date slated for Fall 2024. 

• The District received Hays County American Rescue Plan Grant for $3,000,000 and has 

allocated an additional $2,000,000 in District Funds to construct Station #4 in Shadow 

Creek. The District is working with the Shadow Creek MUD to allocate land for the new 

station. 

• Sales and Property tax revenues continue to increase annually, based growth which also 

results in growth of the District workforce.  

 

Using This Annual Report 

 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements:  The Statement of Net Assets and 

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds, 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide information about the activities 

of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District’s finances. For 

governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term 

as well as what remains for future pending. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

-4- 

Reporting the District as a Whole 

 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District as a 

whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position 

and the Statement of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its 

activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and 

liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to accounting used by most 

private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are considered 

regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

 

These two statements report on the District’s net position and changes in them.  You can think of 

the District’s net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure 

the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 

District’s net position is one indicator of whether its’ financial health is improving or 

deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in 

the District’s property tax to assess the overall health of the District.  

 

The District as a Whole 

 

Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day 

operations without constraints established by debt convenants. 

 

The District has sufficient revenues to pay expenses of the District.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

-5- 



 

 

Summarized Statement of Net Position: 

 9/30/2023 9/30/2022

Current assets 24,342,398       30,292,725       

Capital assets 24,135,682       10,604,246       

Total assets 48,478,080       40,896,971       

Deferred outflows of resources 39,682              614,428            

Current liabilities 3,683,393         1,673,671         

Long-term debt 17,521,736       18,753,755       

Total liabilities 21,205,129       20,427,426       

Deferred inflows of resources 1,352,519         773,978            

Invested in capital assets, net of long-term debt 5,647,098         9,121,834         

Unrestricted 20,313,016       11,188,161       

Total net position 25,960,114       20,309,995       

 
Summarized Statement of Activities: 

 

 9/30/2023 9/30/2022

Revenues:

Property taxes 6,164,905         5,534,051         

Sales and use tax 3,656,813         3,418,007         

EMS revenue 3,750,975         3,573,009         

Other income 2,844,144         851,631            

Total revenues 16,416,837       13,376,698       

Expenses:

Personnel and related costs 8,408,042         6,659,207         

Depreciation 513,034            493,457            

Debt service 526,703            455,890            

Other expenses 1,318,939         1,463,962         

Total expenses 10,766,718       9,072,516         

Change in net position 5,650,119         4,304,182         

 

-6- 



 

 

 

Capital Assets  

 

As of September 30, 2023, the District had $24,135,682 invested in capital assets (net of 

depreciation). At year end $4,523,726 is invested in buildings, $5,943,811 in trucks and 

equipment, $18,050,757 in construction in progress and $725,730 is invested in land. Total 

accumulated depreciation as of September 30, 2023, was $5,108,342.  

 

Long-Term Debt 

 

The District’s long-term debt on September 30, 2023, totaled $18,765,947 for all notes payable. 

The current portion of the long-term debt is $1,244,211.  

 

 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

 

The District’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the budget 

and tax rates. One of those factors is the economy and estimated needs to operate the District in 

the coming year.  

 

 

Contacting the District’s Financial Management 

 

This financial report is designed to provide the taxpayers with a general overview of the 

District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have 

questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District’s office 

at: 

 

Hays County ESD #8 

P.O. Box 782 

Buda, Texas 78610 

Telephone (512) 295-2232 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-7- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Statement of Net Position and 

Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 
 

September 30, 2023 

 

 

 

Assets 
 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

 

 General Fund  Adjustments  Total 

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,971,011    $ -               $ 23,971,011   

Accounts receivable  8,113             -               8,113            

Taxes receivable 363,274         -               363,274        

Prepaid expenses  -                 -               -               

Total current assets 24,342,398    -               24,342,398   

Capital Assets: 

Land -                 725,730        725,730        

Construction in Progress -                 18,050,757   18,050,757   

Buildings -                 4,523,726     4,523,726     

Equipment -                 5,943,811     5,943,811     

Less accumulated depreciation -                 (5,108,342)   (5,108,342)   

Net capital assets -                 24,135,682   24,135,682   

Total assets  24,342,398     24,135,682    48,478,080   

Deferred Outflows of Recources

Pension contributions after measurement date -                 39,682          39,682          

Deferred outflows related to pension asset -                 -               -               

Total Deferred Outflows of Resoures $ -                 $ 39,682          $ 39,682          

 
 

-8- 



 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

 

 General Fund  Adjustments  Total 

 

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 2,045,556      $ -                 $ 2,045,556     

Accrued payroll liabilities 106,867         -                 106,867        

Accrued interest payable -                 286,759         286,759        

Current portion - loans 15,554           1,228,657      1,244,211     

Total current liabilities 2,167,977      1,515,416      3,683,393     
 

Long-term liabilities:    

Loans payable -                 18,765,947    18,765,947   

Less: current portion of note payable -                 (1,244,211)     (1,244,211)   

Total long-term liabilities -                 17,521,736    17,521,736   

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred revenue - property taxes 24,506            (24,506)           -               

Deferred inflows related to pension asset -                  1,352,519       1,352,519     

Total Deferred inflows of resources 24,506           1,328,013      1,352,519     

Fund Balances/Net Position:

Unassigned 22,106,228    

`

Total fund balance 22,106,228    

Total liabilities and net assets $ 24,298,711    

Investment of capital assets, net of long-term debt ` 5,647,098     

Unrestricted 20,313,016   

Total net position $ 25,960,114   

-9- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, 

 Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 General Fund  Adjustments  Total 

Revenues:

Property tax revenue  6,140,399$      24,506$         6,164,905$         

EMS revenue 3,750,975       -                3,750,975           

Sales tax revenue 3,656,813       -                3,656,813           

Interest income 1,284,014       -                1,284,014           

Permit fees 57,767            -                57,767                

Grant revenue 1,502,363       -                1,502,363           

 16,392,331     24,506          16,416,837         

Expenditures/expenses:  

Payroll and related costs 7,421,896       986,146        8,408,042           

Depreciation -                  513,034        513,034              

Debt service 1,743,169       (1,216,466)    526,703              

Capital outlay/maintenance 14,029,935     (13,858,082)  171,853              

EMS expenses 184,205          -                184,205              

Insurance 71,770            -                71,770                

Firefighting supplies and programs 196,416          -                196,416              

Professional fees 129,950          -                129,950              

Utilities and telephone 330,118          -                330,118              

Training expense 40,602            -                40,602                

Office supplies 116,333          -                116,333              

Fuel 77,692            -                77,692                

 24,342,086     (13,575,368)  10,766,718         

Revenues in excess of expenditures (7,949,755)        

Change in net position   5,650,119           

Net position at beginning of year 30,055,983     20,309,995         

Net position at end of year  22,106,228$     25,960,114$       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-10- 

 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Summary of Significant Account Policies 

 

The Reporting Entity 

Rural Fire Prevention Districts may be organized in the State of Texas under the provisions of Article 

III, Section 48-d of the State Constitution. The Northeast Hays County Rural Fire Prevention District 

was confirmed by election in July 1984 and effectively began operations on July 1, 1985. In July 2003, 

the organization was converted to Hays County Emergency Services District #8 (the “District”). The 

District was established to arrange for fire protection services within its boundaries.  

The accounting policies of the Hays County Emergency Services District #8 conform to generally 

accepted accounting principles in the United States of America applicable to state and local 

governments. The District is included in the basic financial statements of Hays County as a component 

unit as set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 14, The Financial Reporting 

Entity”.  

Additionally, no other entity meets these requirements for inclusion in Hays County ESD #8 financial 

statements. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.   

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The District is considered a special purpose government. This allows the District to present the required 

fund and government-wide statements in a single schedule. The requirement for fund financial 

statements to be prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting is met with the “General Fund” 

column. An adjustment column includes those entries needed to convert to the full accrual basis 

government-wide statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are 

government-wide financial statements. They report information on all of the District’s activities. The 

District services are supported primarily by property tax and sales tax revenues. The Statement of 

Activities demonstrates how the District used its revenues.  

 

 

 

-11- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Summary of Significant Account Policies (continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 

focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 

recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Grants and 

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 

have been met.  

Government fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to be available when they 

are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 

For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within thirty-

one days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenses generally are recorded when a liability is 

incurred.  

The District has only one governmental fund, the general fund. The general fund is the operating fund of 

the District. 

Interest and taxes associated with the current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and 

so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered 

measureable and available only when the District receives cash.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash and so near maturity that there is no significant risk of changes in value due to changes 

in interest rates.  Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Cash equivalents are states at cost which approximates market value. 

Receivables 

The District provides for uncollectible accounts receivable using the allowance method of accounting 

for bad debts. Under this method of accounting, a provision for uncollectible accounts is charged to 

earnings. The allowance account is increased or decreased based on past collection history and 

management’s evaluation of accounts receivable. All amounts considered uncollectible are charged 

against the allowance account, the recoveries of previously charged off accounts are added to the 

allowance. At September 30, 2023, the District had no allowance.  

 

 

 

 

-12- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Summary of Significant Account Policies (continued) 

Fund Balance 

 

Fund balance for governmental funds is classified as non-spendable, restricted, committed, and assigned 

or unassigned in the fund financial statements.  

• Non-spendable fund balance includes amounts not available to be spent because they are either 

not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted fund balances include those resources that have constraints placed on their use through 

external parties or by law through constitutional provisions. 

• Committed fund balances are established and modified by approval of the District Commissioners 

and can be used only for the specific purposes determined by the District’s Commissioners. 

• Assigned fund balance is intended to be used by the District for specific purposes but does not 

meet criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  

• Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s general fund and includes 

all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 

 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, equipment, 

fire trucks and vehicles and furniture and fixtures are reported in the governmental activities columns in 

the governmental-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an 

initial, individual cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets 

are recorded at historical cost if purchased or estimated acquisition value at the date of donation if 

donated. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or 

materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  

Pension 

The fiduciary net asset positions of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) has 

been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of 

accounting. This includes the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information about 

assets, liabilities, and additions to/from TCDRS’s fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including 

refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

 

 

-13- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

1. Summary of Significant Account Policies (continued) 

Deferred Revenue 

The District reported unearned deferred revenue in the Statement of Net Assets. Deferred revenues arise 

when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the 

current period. In general, monies received within thirty-one days after year-end are considerable to 

have been for prior year services.  

District’s net position that is applicable to a future reporting period, and deferred inflows of resources, 

which represent the District’s acquisition of net position applicable to a future reporting period.  

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The District complies with GASB Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 

Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which provides guidance for reporting the 

financial statement elements of deferred outflows of resources, which represent the consumption of the 

District also complies with GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 

which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 

resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 

liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 

previously reported as assets and liabilities. 

2. Deposits and Investments 

On September 30, 2023, the District had $23,971,011 invested in cash and cash equivalents.  

Custodial Credit Risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 

District’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of September 30, 2023, $354,149 of the District’s total 

deposit balance was covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining balance of the deposits was 

invested in TexPool.  

Interest Rate Risk - The District does have a formal investment policy in place. The District’s cash and 

cash equivalents are currently invested in short-term instruments such as an interest-bearing checking 

account.  

Investments 

The Board of Directors has authorized the District under a written investment policy to invest funds in 

compliance with the V.A.T.C.S. Government Code, Title 10, Chapter 2256 (the Public Funds 

Investment Act of 1993). Investment vehicles authorized by Chapter 2256 include, but are not limited to, 

certificates of deposit, obligations backed by the U.S. and state governments, and public fund investment 

pools. Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.  

-14- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

2. Deposits and Investments 

All investments at year end were held in the Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool). The 

State Comptroller oversees TexPool, with Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company managing the 

daily operations of the pool under a contract with the State Comptroller. TexPool is a 2(a)7 like fund, 

which means that it is constructed similar to a money market mutual fund. It allows shareholders the 

ability to deposit or withdraw funds on a daily basis. Such funds seek to maintain a constant net asset 

value of $1.00 although this cannot be fully guaranteed. TexPool is rated AAAm (the highest rating a 

local government investment pool can achieve) and must maintain a dollar weighted average maturity 

not to exceed 60 days which is the limit. As of September 30, 2023, TexPool portfolio had weighted 

average maturity of 30 days. However, the District considers the holdings in these funds to have a one 

day weighted average maturity because the share position can usually be redeemed each day at the 

discretion of the shareholder, unless there has been a significant change in value. As of September 30, 

2023, the District had $23,616,862 invested in TexPool. 

Credit Risk – Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfil 

its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized agencies are designed to give an 

additional indication of credit risk. At September 30, 2023, investments were included in an external 

local government investment pool with a rating incompliance with the District’s investment policy,  

Concentration of Credit Risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude 

of the District’s investment in a single issuer. At September 30, 2023, investments were included in an 

external local government investment pool.  

Interest Rate Risk – The District considers the holdings in the external local government investment pool 

to have a one day weighted average maturity due to the fact that the share position can usually be 

redeemed each day at the discretion of the shareholders unless there has been a significant change in 

value. At September 30, 2023, investments were included in the external government investment pool. 

3. Property Taxes 

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $.10 per $100 of value. Property taxes are 

levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in the District. The tax rate for 

the October 1, 2022, levy was $.10 per $100 of value. Taxes are due on receipt of the bill and are 

delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the levy. On January 1 of each year, a tax 

lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. 

Taxes are billed and collected by the Hays County Tax Assessors-Collector.  

 

 

 

-15- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

4. Capital Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year:  

Beginning 

Balance Additions

Retirements and 

Reclassifications

Ending 

Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:      

Land $ 725,730        $ -               $ -                     $ 725,730        

Construction in Progress 4,181,731     13,869,026   -                     18,050,757   

4,907,461     13,869,026   -                     18,776,487   

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 4,523,726     -               -                     4,523,726     

Trucks and equipment 5,768,367     175,444        -                     5,943,811     

Less accumulated depreciation (4,595,308)   (513,034)      -                     (5,108,342)   

Total capital assets being  

depreciated, net  5,696,785      (337,590)       -                      5,359,195     

Capital assets, net $ 10,604,246   $ 13,531,436   $ -                     $ 24,135,682   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-16- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Maturity Interest Beginning Ending

Bank Description Date Rate Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Government Capital Station 2 3/1/2029 5.683% $ 959,030           $ -                    $ 114,911            $ 844,119           

Marquette Station 3 1/10/2027 3.696% 579,359           -                    107,860            471,499           

Extraco Banks NA New Station 51,591          2.450% 17,689,448      -                    740,037            16,949,411      

Government Capital New Engines 10/13/2024 2.250%  754,575            -                     253,657             500,918           

$ 19,982,412      $ -                    $ 1,216,465         18,765,947      

Less current maturities (1,244,211)      

 

$ 17,521,736      

 

 

Annual debt service required for the notes payable are as follows: 

Future Payments Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 1,244,211           $ 498,957            $ 1,743,168     

2025 1,280,919           462,250            1,743,169     

2026 1,052,440           425,527            1,477,967     

2027 1,084,380            . 393,588            1,477,968     

2028 987,153              369,640            1,356,793     

2029-2033 4,664,532           1,410,546         6,075,078     

2034-2038 5,092,604           804,636            5,897,240     

2039-2042 3,359,708           168,915            3,528,623     

$ 18,765,947         $ 4,534,059         $ 23,300,006   

 

 

 

-17- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

6. Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property damage, and 

worker’s compensation. The District insurers against risk through participation in the VFIS, an insurer 

of emergency organizations. 

The District pays premiums to the risk pool for its general liability, property, auto, and workers’ 

compensation coverage. The District’s risk is limited to the amount of premiums paid unless the pool 

should fall, in which case, the District would be liable for its ratable share of the pool deficit.  

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan 

Plan Description – The District provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its non-

temporary full-time employees through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan administered by 

the TCDRS. The Board of Trustees of TCDRS are responsible for the administration of the statewide 

agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system consisting of over 850 active participating 

counties and districts throughout Texas. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a comprehensive annual 

financial report (CAFR) on a calendar basis. The CAFR is available at http://www.tcdrs.org. 

Benefits Provided – Effective the date of employment, the District provides retirement, disability, and 

death benefits. A percentage of each employee’s paycheck is deposited into his or her TCDRS account. 

That percentage has been set by the District at 7 percent and has elected a matching rate of $2 to $1. The 

employee’s savings grow at a rate of 7 percent, compounded annually. At retirement, the employee’s 

account balance is combined with the District’s matching and converted into a lifetime monthly benefit. 

Employees receive a month of service time for each month that they make a deposit into their account. 

District employees also receive service time for the years worked prior to the District’s participation in 

TCDRS. The amount of service an employee needs to earn a future benefit is called the vesting 

requirement. When an employee is vested, he or she has the right to a monthly benefit, which includes 

the employer matching contribution, at age 60 or older. 

The District’s employees must work five years to be vested. Once vested, an employee has earned the 

right to receive a lifetime monthly retirement benefit and is eligible to retire at age 60. The District has 

also adopted the Rule of 75, which gives all vested employees the right to retire and receive a lifetime 

monthly benefit when the employee’s age plus years of service equals 75 or more. Any employee with 

30 years of service, regardless of age, will also have the right to retire and receive a lifetime monthly 

benefit. 

 

 

 

-18- 

http://www.tcdrs.org/


Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

Employee membership data related to the Plan, as of the valuation date of December 31, 2022, was as 

follows: 

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 2                        

Terminated employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits  18                      

Active plan members 56                      

Total 76                      

 

Any TCDRS member who is a vested member may terminate employment prior to attaining age 60 and 

remain eligible to retire and receive a monthly benefit after attaining age 60 provided his or her 

membership is not terminated other than by retirement. 

Any TCDRS member who is a vested member who is totally and permanently disabled is eligible for a 

disability retirement benefit. A member who is not vested is eligible for disability retirement benefits if 

total and permanent disability was a result of an on-the-job injury. 

Any TCDRS member who has four or more years of service credit with the District is eligible for 

purposes of the survivor annuity death benefit. 

Retirees elect to receive their lifetime benefit by choosing one of seven actuarially equivalent payment 

options. Prior service gives employees credit for time worked for an eligible organization before it 

joined the system. Partial lump sum payments at retirement allow employees to withdraw part of their 

TCDRS account balance as a lump sum at retirement with a reduced monthly benefit. District employees 

all have the option to receive a lump sum payment at retirement up to the amount of their final account 

balance. 

Any amendments to the plan would be approved by the District. 

Contributions – The District has elected the annually determined contribution rate plan provision of the 

TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employees and the employer based 

on the covered payroll of the employee. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is 

actuarially determined annually. The District contributed using an elected rate of 10% for the year ended 

September 30, 2022, as adopted by the governing body of the District. The actuarially determined rate 

for the year ended December 31, 2022, was 7%. The employee contribution rate was 7%. The employee 

contribution rate and the employer contribution rate may be changed by the governing body of the 

District within the options available in the TCDRS Act.  

 

-19- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

Net Pension Asset – The District’s net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the 

total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as 

of that date. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined 

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement. 

 

Valuation testing Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two years 

prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported. 

Actuarial Cost Method Individual entry age normal 

Amortization Method Straight-line amortization over expected working life 

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market 

Inflation 3% 

Salary Increases Varies with age and service. 3% average over career including inflation 

Investment Rate of Return 7.60% 

Cost of Living Adjustment Cost of Living Adjustments for the District are not considered to be automatic under 

GASB 68. Therefore, no assumptions for future cost of living adjustments are included 

in the GASB 68 calculations. No assumptions for future cost of living adjustments are 

included in the funding valuation. 

Retirement Age Between ages 40 and 74 with various rates of service retirement by gender: low of 4.5% 

for age 40-44 to high of 25% for age 65-66 for males and females. 

Turnover New employees are assumed to replace any terminated members and have similar entry 

ages. 

Mortality:  

Depositing Members 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for males and 90% of the RP-

2014 Active Employee Mortality Tables for females, projected with 110% of the MP-

2014 Ultimate scale after 2014. 

Service retirees, beneficiaries, and 

non-depositing members 

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 110% of the 

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of 

the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014. 

Disabled retirees 130% of theRP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 115% of the 

RP-2014 Mortality Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 

Ultimate Scale after 2014. 

-20- 

 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of December 31, 2022, were 

based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2015, through 

December 31, 2022, except where required to be different by GASB 68. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return – The long-term rate of return on TCDRS assets is determined by 

adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and 

correlation. The capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS’ 

investment consultant, Cliffwater LLC. The numbers shown are based on January 2022 information for 

a 10-year time horizon. 

 

Asset Class 

 

Benchmark 

 

Target Allocation (a) 

Geometric Real Rate of Return 

(Expected minus Inflation) (b) 

US Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock 

Market Index 

11.50% 4.95% 

Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 2.50% 4.95% 

International Equites – 

Developed 

MSCI World Ex USA (net) 

Index 

5.00% 4.95% 

International Equities – 

Emerging 

MSCI Emerging Markets (net) 

Index 

6.00% 4.95% 

Investment-Grade Bonds Bloomberg Barclays U.S. 

Aggregate Bond Index 

3.00% 2.40% 

Strategic Credit FTSE High-Yield Cash-Pay 

Capped Index 

9.00% 3.39% 

Direct Lending Morningstar LSTA US 

Leveraged Loan TR USD Index 

16.00% 6.95% 

Distressed Debt Cambridge Associates 

Distressed Securities Index (d) 

4.00% 7.60% 

REIT Equities 67% FTSE NAREIT Equity 

REIT Index + 33% S&P Global 

REIT (net) Index 

2.00% 4.15% 

Master Limited Partnerships Aerian MLP Index 2.00% 5.30% 

Private Real Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real 

Estate Index (c) 

6.00% 5.70% 

Private Equity Hedge Fund Research, Inc. 6.00% 2.90% 

Hedge Funds Hedge Funds Research Inc., 

(HFRI) Fund of Composite 

6.00% 2.90% 

Cash Equivalents 90-Day US Treasury 2.00% 0.20% 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

a) Target allocation adopted at the April 2019 TCDRS Board Meeting. 

b) Geometric real rates of return equity the expected return minus the assumed inflation rate of 1.7%, per Cliffwater 

LLC’s 2019 capital market assumptions. 

c) Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon internal rates of return. 

d) Includes vintage years 2005-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon internal rates of return.  

e) Includes vintages years 2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon internal rates of return. 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.10%. This rate reflects the long-term 

rate of return funding valuation assumption of 8.00%, plus 0.10% adjustment to be gross administrative 

expenses as required by GASB 68. The Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 

make all projected future benefit payments of current active, inactive, and retired members. Therefore, 

the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of 

return, and the municipal bond rate does not apply. 

Changes in Net Pension Asset – Changes in the District’s net pension asset for the valuation year ended 

December 31, 2022, are as follows: 

Total Pension 

Liability

Increase 

(Decrease) 

Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net Pension 

(Asset) Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance as of December 31, 2021  6,925,513$     6,177,163$       748,350$           

Changes for the year:

Service Cost 697,552          697,552             

Interest on total pension liability (1) 578,170          578,170             

Effect of plan changes (2) -                     

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 135,375          135,375             

Effect of assumption changes or inputs -                     

Refund of contributions (9,570)            (9,570)              -                     

Benefit payments (22,140)          (22,140)            -                     

Administrative expenses (4,089)              4,089                 

Member contributions 330,310            (330,310)            

Net investment income (455,987)          455,987             

Employer contributions 802,181            (802,181)            

Other (3) 160,143            (160,143)            

Balance as of December 31, 2022 8,304,900$     6,978,011$       1,326,889$        

-22- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

(1) reflects the change in the liability due to time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or interest. 

(2) no plan changes valued. 

(3) relates to allocation of system-wide items. 

Sensitivity Analysis – The following presents the net pension asset of the District, calculated using the 

discounted rate of 7.6%, as well as what the District’s net pension asset would be if it were calculated 

using a discount rate that is1 percentage point lower (6.6%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.6%) than the 

current rate. 

1% Decrease 

(6.60%)

Current 

Discount Rate

1% Increase 

(8.60%)

Total pension liability 9,986,472$     8,304,899$       6,953,903$        

Fiduciary net position 6,978,008       6,978,008         6,978,008          

Net pension liability/(asset) 3,008,464$     1,326,891$       (24,105)$            

 

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – For the year 

ended September 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $446,957. 

As of September 30, 2023, the deferred outflows and inflows of resources are as follows: 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 19,578$            407,094$           

Changes of assumptions 20,104              380,611             

Net difference between projected and actual earnings -                   345,291             

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date -                   -                     

Total 39,682$            1,132,996$        

 

 

 

 

-23- 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Employee Retirement Plan (continued) 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 

liability in the year ended September 30, 2023. The remaining amounts currently reported as deferred 

outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in the pension expense as follows: 

Service cost 697,552$           

Interest on total pension liability 578,170             

Effect on plan changes -                     

Administrative expenses 4,089                 

Member contributions (330,310)            

Expected investment return net of investment expenses (516,350)            

Recognition of economic/demographic gains or losses 56,307               

Recognition of assumption changes or inputs 58,788               

Recognitionl of investment gains or losses 58,853               

Other - relates to allocation of system-wide items (160,143)            

Pension expense 446,956$           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

-24- 

8. Reconciliation of Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Governmental funds total fund balance $ 22,106,228    

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 

  resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 24,135,682    

Other reconciling items (1,515,849)     

Long-term debt (18,765,947)    

Total net position $ 25,960,114    

 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Revenues in excess of expenditures $ (7,949,755)     

Current year capital outlays 13,858,082    

Repayment of long-term debt 1,216,466      

Other reconciling items 24,506           

Pension plan expense (986,146)        

Depreciation expense (513,034)        

Change in net position $ 5,650,119      

 

9. Commitment 

 

The District is in the process of building a new 42,068 square foot Administrative/Training/Fire Station 

and 3,600 square foot Support/Maintenance Shop. The total commitment to the contractor is 

$22,406,737 with $17,552,813 paid towards this commitment to date.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Hays County Emergency Services District #8 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

-25-



 
 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

  

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund 

 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

 
 

 Original 

Budget   Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues:

Property tax revenue $ 5,444,980     $ 6,080,083     $ 6,140,399     $ 60,316          

Sales tax revenue 2,500,000     3,150,000     3,656,813     506,813        

EMS revenue 3,411,426     3,266,088     3,750,975     484,887        

Grant revenue 4,000            3,000            1,502,363     1,499,363     

Other income 32,600          51,200          1,284,014     1,232,814     

Permit fees 40,000          40,000          57,767          17,767          

Training revenue 500               2,500            -                (2,500)           

 11,433,506   12,592,871   16,392,331   3,799,460     

Expenditures:   

Payroll and related costs 6,532,359     6,431,074     7,421,896     (990,822)       

Debt service 1,743,169     1,827,669     1,743,169     84,500          

Maintenance 1,909,903     1,213,844     14,029,935   (12,816,091)  

Insurance 175,500        181,000        71,770          109,230        

Firefighting supplies and programs 438,000        453,000        196,416        256,584        

EMS expenses 234,950        235,000        184,205        50,795          

Utilities and telephone 100,750        100,750        330,118        (229,368)       

Office supplies 91,000          77,000          116,333        (39,333)         

Fuel 72,550          81,000          77,692          3,308            

Professional fees 171,520        143,000        138,831        4,169            

Training expense 55,000          55,000          40,602          14,398          

Total expenditures/expenses 11,524,701   10,798,337   24,350,967   (13,552,630)  

Expenditures in excess of revenues (91,195)         1,794,534     (7,958,636)     (9,753,170)    

Fund balance at beginning of year 30,055,983   30,055,983   30,055,983   -                

Fund balance at end of year $ 29,964,788   $ 31,850,517   $ 22,097,347   $ (9,753,170)    

 

 

 

 

 

 

-26- 

 



 
 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

  

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios 

 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

 
 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 697,552$      682,012$      462,536$      422,058$      378,488$      348,864$      368,793$      133,167$      

Interest on total pension liability 578,170        486,499        373,291        294,702        235,727        70,072          25,870          5,126            

Effect of plan changes -                -                -                225,316        -                1,579,798     -                (4,420)           
Effect of assumption changes or 

inputs -                69,960          489,081        -                -                (40,210)         -                334               

Effect of economic/demographic 

(gains) or losses 135,375        (16,059)         281,629        21,829          89,273          59,325          (17,012)         4,368            

Benefit payment/refunds or 

contributions (31,711)         (31,789)         (34,624)         (33,686)         (4,808)           -                -                -                

Net change in total pension liability 1,379,386     1,190,623     1,571,913     930,219        698,680        2,017,849     377,651        138,575        

Total pension liability, beginning 6,925,513     5,734,890     4,162,976     3,232,756     2,534,076     516,226        138,575        -                
Total pension liability, ending 8,304,899$   6,925,513$   5,734,889$   4,162,975$   3,232,756$   2,534,075$   516,226$      138,575$      

Fiduciary Net Position   

Employer contributions 802,181$      776,233$      738,090$      496,218$      473,859$      280,476$      228,427$      91,378$        

Member contributions 330,310        319,625        303,919        198,487        189,544        171,394        159,271        65,192          
Investment income net of 

investment expenses (455,987)       1,016,082     286,006        290,936        (13,364)         89,771          11,841          (1,330)           

Benefit payment/refunds of 

contributions (31,711)         (31,789)         (34,624)         (33,686)         (4,808)           -                -                -                

Administrative expenses (4,089)           (3,342)           (2,977)           (2,095)           (1,426)           (740)              (129)              (58)                

Other 160,143        31,267          30,082          23,014          19,733          6,049            10,641          (7)                  

Net change in fiduciary net position 800,847        2,108,076     1,320,496     972,874        663,538        546,950        410,051        155,175        

Fiduciary net position, beginning 6,177,162     4,069,086     2,748,590     1,775,714     1,112,176     565,226        155,175        -                
Fiduciary net position, ending 6,978,009     6,177,162     4,069,086     2,748,588     1,775,714     1,112,176     565,226        155,175        
Net pension liability/ (asset), ending 1,326,890$   748,351$      1,665,803$   1,414,387$   1,457,042$   1,421,899$   (49,000)$       (16,600)$       

Fiduciary net position as a % of total 

pension liability 84.02% 89.19% 70.95% 66.02% 54.93% 43.89% 109.49% 111.98%

Pensionable covered payroll 4,718,712$   4,566,077$   4,341,708$   3,308,121$   3,159,060$   2,856,570$   2,654,519$   2,607,684$   
  

Net pension liability/(asset) as a % of 28.12% 16.39% 38.37% 42.75% 46.12% 49.78% -1.85% -0.64%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

 

-27- 



 
 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

  

Schedule of District Contributions 

 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

 

Year ending 

December 31, 

Actuarially 

Determined 

Contribution 

(1)

Actual 

Employer 

Contribution 

(1)

Contribution 

Deficiency 

(Excess)

Pensionable 

Covered 

Payroll (2)

Actual 

Contribution 

as a % of 

Covered 

Payroll

2013

2014

2015 91,378        91,378        -             1,086,535  8.4%

2016 223,245      228,427      (5,182)        2,654,519  8.6%

2017 219,099      280,476      (61,377)      2,856,570  9.8%

2018 440,373      473,859      (33,486)      3,159,060  15.0%

2019 430,056      496,218      (66,162)      3,308,121  15.0%

2020 587,433      738,090      (150,657)    4,341,706  17.0%

2021 601,809      776,233      (174,424)    4,566,077  17.0%

2022 593,142      802,181      (209,039)    4,718,712  17.0%

(1) TCDRS calculates actuarially determined contributions on a calendar year basis.  GASB 

Statement NO. 68 indicates the employer should report  employer contribution amounts on a fiscal 

year basis.  If additional assistance is needed, please contact TCDRS.

(2) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-28- 



 
 

Notes to the financial statements are integral to this statement. 

Hays County Emergency Services District #8 

 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019 

 
Valuation date: actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 31, two years 

prior (if available) to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

 

Actuarial Cost Method Individual entry age normal 

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed 

Remaining Amortization Period 5.0 years based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2022 valuation 

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market 

Inflation 2.50% 

Salary Increases Varies with age and service. 4.70% average over career including inflation 

Investment Rate of Return 7.50% net of administrative and investment expenses, including inflation 

Retirement Age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence receiving 

benefit payments based on age. The average age at service retirement for recent retirees 

is 61. 

Mortality 135% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for males and 120% of the Pub - 2010for 

females, both projected with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010. 

Changes in Assumptions and 

Methods Reflected in the 

Schedule of Employee 

Contributions* 

2015 – new inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected. 

2017 – new mortality assumptions were reflected. 

2019 – new inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected. 

2022 – new investment return and inflation assumptions were reflected. 

Changes in Plan Provisions 

Reflected in the Schedule of 

Employer Contributions* 

2015 – no changes in plan provision were reflected in the Schedule. 

2016 – no changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

2017 – new annuity purchase rates were reflected for benefits earned after 2017. 

2018 – employer contributions reflect that the prior service matching rate was increased 

to 100% 

2019 – no changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

2020 – employer contributions reflect the member contribution rate was increased to 

7%. 

2022 – no changes in plan provisions were reflected in the schedule 

*- Only changes that affect the benefit amount and that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the 

Notes to the Schedule. 

-29- 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 29.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #9 Audit Report per Texas Health and Safety Code
775.082.  IN GALSBE/SH ELL/IN GALSBE/SH ELL/V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Texas Health and Safety Code 775.082 requires that the District prepare and file with the Commissioners Court by June 1
of each year an audit report of the district's fiscal accounts and records.  The District's Audit Report dated February 15,
2024, is attached.

AttachmentsAttachments
HCESD#9 FY2023 Audit Report



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY 
SERVICES DISTRICT #9

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 

Montemayor Britton Bender PC 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-5

Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 6

Statement of Activities and Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
     Changes in Fund Balances 7

Notes to Financial Statements 8-11

Required Supplementary Information: 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 12



Board of Fire Commissioners
Hays County Emergency Services District #9

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general fund of the
Hays County Emergency Services District #9 (District), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of the District, as of September 30, 2023 and
the respective changes in financial position and, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.

 

2110 BOCA RATON DRIVE 
BUILDING B, SUITE 102 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78747 
PHONE: 512.442.0380 

FAX: 512.442.0817 
www.montemayor.team 

 
 

 
Montemayor Britton Bender PC 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

February 15, 2024
Austin, Texas

-2-

 



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Hays County
Emergency Services District #9  (“the District”) for the year ended September 30, 2023. Please read it in
conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

! The District’s property tax rate was assessed at $.0505 per $100 of assessed valuation for
the year ended September 30, 2023. Property tax revenues for the year were $4,551,758,
an increase of $714,298 over prior year.

! The District incurred an increase in net position of $324,458 for the year. 

! Cash and cash equivalents amounted to $2,805,144 at September 30, 2023, which 
represented an increase of $327,351 over the $2,477,793 balance at September 30, 2022. 

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts—management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information.  The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the District. The financial statements also include notes
that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The
statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances in a manner similar to a private sector business reporting on a full accrual basis of
accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District has improved or deteriorated. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (example:
property taxes assessed but uncollected as of 31 days after year-end). 

Because the District’s principal source of revenue is property taxes, the government-wide financial
statements are grouped into one function that is supported by taxes (governmental activities).

Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and account for resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal or
contractual requirements. The District has one fund, the General Fund. 

Governmental Funds: The General Fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, the governmental funds financial statements focus on current fiscal year cash

-3-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

inflows and outflows, as well as balances of resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the General Fund with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the Governmental
Funds balance sheet and the Governmental Funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between Governmental Fund and
government-wide financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position. The District’s net position
(assets less liabilities) was $2,869,143 at September 30, 2023. The District’s net position is unrestricted
and available to meet the District’s ongoing obligations. Governmental activities account for all of the
changes in net position at the government-wide reporting level as the District has no business-type
activities. The tables below summarizes the financial position of the District at September 30, 2023 and
2022 and the results of operations for the same years ended.

9/30/2023 9/30/2022

Current assets $2,873,027 $2,545,676

Current liabilities 3,884 991

Net position
Unrestricted $2,869,143 $2,544,685

Revenues 9/30/2023 9/30/2022
Ad Valorem property taxes $4,551,758 $3,837,460
Interest 78,279 1,958
     Total revenues 4,630,037 3,839,418

Expenses
District EMS contract 4,208,898 2,884,686
Station improvements 0 43,800
ESD #5 cost sharing 44,000 40,000
Appraisal District fees 28,918 25,259
Professional services 18,244 15,316
Tax Assessor fees 0 9,293
Insurance 2,796 2,432
Training and professional organizations 1,430 4,082
Other 1,293 1,615
     Total expenses 4,305,579 3,026,483
Change in net position 324,458 812,935
Net position, beginning 2,544,685 1,731,750
Net position, ending $2,869,143 $2,544,685

-4-



HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Fund
The focus of the District’s Governmental Fund is to provide information on near-term inflows and
outflows and on resource balances available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance serves as a useful measure of the
District’s net resources available for spending at fiscal year-end.

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, the District’s only Governmental Fund was the General
Fund, and it reported ending fund balance of $2,801,260, an increase of $324,458 over the year-ended
September 30, 2022. The District’s ending unassigned fund balance was unencumbered and available for
spending at the District’s discretion.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
General Fund revenues were $234,503, or 5%, over budget, due to $156,224 more than anticipated
property tax revenues and $78.279 in unbudgeted interest income. Expenses for the General Fund were
$123,621, or 3%, less than budget, primarily due to the budget for election costs and tax assessor fees not
being expended in the current fiscal year.  

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Tax Rates
The tax levy for fiscal year 2023-2024 is expected to provide an approximately $712,000 increase in tax
revenues for the next fiscal year.  The tax rate was set at $.4913 per $100 of assessed valuation for fiscal
year 2023-2024.  

The District considers many factors when approving budgets for the next year’s fiscal activities.  With
increased tax revenues, the District’s budget for operating expenses is expected to increase a proportional
amount to support increased services.  

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the District for all parties
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to:

Carla Sisk, Treasurer
Hays County Emergency Services District #9
210 W. Moore St.
Kyle, TX 78640

-5-



General Adjustments Statement of 
Fund (Note 7) Net Position

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $2,805,144 $2,805,144
Taxes receivable 67,883          67,883            

Total assets $2,873,027 2,873,027       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $3,884 3,884              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 67,883          (67,883)       -                      

FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION
  FUND BALANCES

Fund balance - unassigned 2,801,260     (2,801,260)  
$2,873,027

  NET POSITION
Unrestricted (2,869,143)  $2,869,143

HAYS  COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
-6-



General Adjustments Statement
Fund (Note 7) of Activities

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES:
District EMS contract $4,208,898 $4,208,898
ESD #5 cost sharing 44,000         44,000          
Appraisal District fees 28,918         28,918          
Professional services 18,244         18,244          
Insurance 2,796           2,796            
Training and professional organizations 1,430           1,430            
Other 1,293           1,293            

4,305,579    4,305,579     

GENERAL REVENUES:
Ad Valorem tax revenues 4,551,758    4,551,758     
Interest 78,279         78,279          

4,630,037    4,630,037     

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 324,458       324,458        

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 2,476,802    67,883       2,544,685     

ENDING FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION $2,801,260 $2,869,143

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation
-7-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

The Hays County Emergency Services District #9 (the District) is the local governmental
agency responsible for providing emergency medical services to a large portion of eastern and
southern Hays County, including the cities of Kyle, Uhland an Neiderwald. The District was
approved by voters in the November 2016 general election and began contracting for services
with the San Marcos Hays County EMS in February 2018.

The District is not included in any other governmental reporting entity as defined in Section
2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. 
Additionally, no other entity meets the requirements for inclusion in the District’s financial
statements.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Fire Commissioners (the Board) appointed
for two-year terms by the Hays County Commissioners. The District has no employees, office
location or fixed assets. The Board sets the budget and tax rate within limits authorized by
Chapter 775 of the Health and Safety Code.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the District conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles applicable to governments promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The 
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District is considered a special purpose government under GASB Statement No. 34. 
This allows the District to present the required fund and government-wide statements in a
single schedule. The requirement for fund financial statements to be prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting is met with the “General Fund” column.  An adjustment
column includes those entries needed to convert to the full accrual basis government-wide
statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are
government-wide financial statements. They report information on all of the District’s
activities.  The District services are supported by Ad Valorem property taxes.  The Statement
of Activities demonstrates how the District used revenue and demonstrates how direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows.

-8-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough there after 
to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the District considers all revenues
available if they are collectible within 31 days after year-end. Expenditures are recognized
in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. Interest and tax revenues
associated with the current fiscal year are considered susceptible to accrual and have been
recognized as revenues in the current fiscal year. All other revenue is considered measurable
and available only when cash is received by the District.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid deposits, such as sweep accounts
and money market accounts, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so
near maturity that there is no significant risk of changes in value due to changes in interest
rates.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows.  Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed
on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

FUND BALANCES

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District can establish
limitations of the use of resources through either a commitment or an assignment. When both
unassigned and committed or assigned funds are available for expenditure, committed or
assigned funds are used first. 

-9-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in a
spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  Committed fund
balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the Board or adoption of an ordinance. Limitations imposed by commitments
remain in place until formal Board action is taken to remove the limitation.  Amounts in the
assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the District for specific purposes but do
not meet the criteria to be committed. Assignments are generally temporary and do not
require Board action to be taken to remove the assignment.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The statement of net position and governmental funds balance sheet reports a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources representing a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period and is not recognized as an outflow of resources in the current
period. The District’s does not have any deferred outflows. The statement of financial
position and governmental funds balance sheet reports a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources representing an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and is
not recognized as an inflow of resources or revenue until that time.  The District has one item
which qualifies for reporting in this category- unavailable property tax revenue. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the amounts
become available.

NOTE 3:  DEPOSITS

At September 30, 2023, the carrying amount and the bank balance of the District’s cash
deposits was $200,000. Additionally, the District held $2,605,144 of cash equivalents in a
sweep account at year-end. The District has pledged securities for any amounts in excess of
FDIC coverage. The District was in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 2256 and
with its investment policy during the year.  

NOTE 4: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, errors and omissions, and
lawsuits. The District purchases insurance to provide coverage for these risks. 

NOTE 5: PROPERTY TAXES

The District has the authority to levy a tax to a maximum of $0.10 per $100 of value.  Ad
Valorem property taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed valuation of all taxable
property in the District. The tax rate for the October 1, 2022 levy was $0.505 per $100 of
value.  Taxes are due upon receipt of the bill and are delinquent if not paid before the first day
of February in the year following levy. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to the
property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties and interest ultimately imposed.  Taxes
are billed and collected by the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector.

-10-



 HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6:  BUDGET

The District adopts an annual budget for each fiscal year and amends the budget as needed
during the year. The budget was amended during the fiscal year. The District does not use an
encumbrance system and appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

Certain revenue and expenses were different than budgeted, resulting in a higher than budgeted
fund balance. Primarily, property tax revenue and interest income were higher than budgeted,
and expenses for professional fees and the District EMS contract were lower than anticipated. 
Additionally, the budget for election costs and tax assessor fees were not utilized during the
fiscal year. 

NOTE 7: ADJUSTMENTS TO CONVERT FUND STATEMENTS TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE

Fund balance - general fund $2,801,260

Taxes receivable deferred in the fund financial statements and not in the
government-wide financial statements 67,883

Net position - governmental activities $2,869,143

Change in fund balance - general fund $324,458

Change in taxes receivable deferred in the fund financial statements and not
in the government-wide financial statements 0

Change in net position - governmental activities $324,458

-11-



Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

GENERAL REVENUES
Ad Valorem tax revenues $4,395,534 $4,395,534 $4,551,758 $156,224
Interest -                  -                  78,279        78,279          

4,395,534   4,395,534   4,630,037   234,503        

EXPENDITURES
District EMS contract 4,193,000 4,243,000 4,208,898 34,102          
Election costs 60,000 60,000 -                 60,000          
ESD #5 cost sharing 44,000        44,000        44,000 -                    
Appraisal District fees 32,500        32,500        28,918 3,582            
Professional services 26,000        26,000        18,244 7,756            
Tax Assessor fees 7,800          12,000        -                 12,000          
Insurance 3,600          3,600          2,796 804               
Training and professional organizations 5,000          5,000          1,430 3,570            
Other 3,100          3,100          1,293 1,807            

4,375,000   4,429,200   4,305,579   123,621        

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 20,534 (33,666) 324,458      358,124

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,476,802   2,476,802   2,476,802   -                    

ENDING FUND BALANCE $2,497,336 $2,443,136 $2,801,260 $358,124

BUDGETARY COMPARSION SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

HAYS COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES DISTRICT #9

See independent auditor's report
-12-



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 30.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Villarreal-Alonzo

Sponsor:Sponsor:
Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Accept delivery of the Auditor's Office Quarterly Internal Examination Reports. V ILLAR R EAL-ALON ZOVILLAR R EAL-ALON ZO

SummarySummary
Quarterly Internal Examination Reports include the following Offices:

Constable Pct. 1 - April to June 2024
Constable Pct. 3 - April to June 2024
Constable Pct. 5 - Jan to March 2024

AttachmentsAttachments
Quarterly Internal Examination Reports









AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 31.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Stephanie Hunt

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Authorize the execution of the Consent to Assignment Letter for the company merger and name change of Urban Design
Group, PC to Dunaway Associates, LLC dba Dunaway|UDG.  SH ELL/H U N TSH ELL/H U N T

SummarySummary
Urban Design Group, PC was acquired by Dunaway Associates, LLC dba Dunaway|UDG including all contracts. Urban
Design Group, PC was awarded into the Professional Engineering Services pool under pursuant to RFQ 2018-P08, and is
currently a pre-qualified firm in RFQ 2021-Q01 Professional Engineering Services.  Dunaway Associates, LLC has
submitted an updated organizational chart and resumes, and several of the pre-qualified employees have remained with
the company; therefore, it is the recommendation that they will remain in the current pool. 

AttachmentsAttachments
Assignment Letter



 

  

June 17, 2024 

 

Re: Consent to Assignment of RFQ Solicitation No. 2018-P08 

 

Dear Stephanie Hunt, 

 

Reference is hereby made to that certain Assignment of Contracts, by and between Urban Design Group, 

PC (“Seller”) and Hays County (“you”), dated as of 2018 (the “Contract”). 

 

Effective as of 2018, Seller entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Dunaway Associates, LLC 

d/b/a Dunaway | UDG (“Buyer”), pursuant to which Buyer has acquired certain assets of Seller, including 

the Contract (the “Transaction”). 

 

The purpose of this letter is to request your consent to the transfer of the Contract to Buyer, and the 

assumption by Buyer of all of Seller’s duties, obligations and liabilities under the Contract arising on or 

after, but not before, the effective date of the Transaction (the “Assignment”). By executing this letter in 

the space provided below, you (i) consent to and approve of the Assignment and (ii) agree that this consent 

represents your complete consent to the Assignment and no other consent, notice or action is required 

under the Agreement. Please indicate your consent to the Assignment by signing below. 

 

Please return an executed copy of this letter to the attention of Dunaway | UDG, 550 Bailey Ave., #400, 

Fort Worth, Texas 76107 or email at your earliest convenience. If you have any questions regarding the 

foregoing, please contact Victoria Velasquez at 817-632-4788 or vvelasquez@dunawayassociates.com. 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

DUNAWAY ASSOCIATES, LLC 

 

 
By:__________________________________ 

Name: Chris Wilde   

Title:  Chief Executive Officer | Principal  

 

 

 

URBAN DESIGN GROUP, PC 

 

 

By:__________________________________ 

Name: Laura L. Toups   

Title:  Senior Engagement Manager  

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:vvelasquez@dunawayassociates.com


Agreed and consented to as of the date first set forth above: 

 

Hays County Purchasing Office 

712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1071 

San Marcos, Texas  78666 

 
 

By:   

Name:    

Title:    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 32.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Tammy Crumley

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Approve specifications for IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak - Boundary Fence and authorize Purchasing to advertise and solicit
for bids.  SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
Hays County (County) is seeking bids from qualified and experienced General Contractors to provide all labor, materials,
and equipment necessary for the removal of an old, existing boundary fence and replace it with a combination of 5-strand
barbed wire and game fencing located at Sentinel Peak.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: TBD
Line Item Number: 154-813-97-386.5741

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: 2020 Voter Approved Park Bond Fund (issued in 2021)
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: Budget will be amended once a contract is awarded. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Texas Local Government Code Chapter 262.021

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes, Misc Capital Improvements
New Revenue Y/N?:
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak - Boundary Fence



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 1 of 37 

 

SOLICITATION, OFFER 
AND AWARD 

Hays County  
Purchasing Office 

712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 

Solicitation No.:  
IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence Date Issued: July 30, 2024 

SOLICITATION 

Vendors must submit proposals as listed: One (1) original and one (1) digital copy on a thumb drive 
at the Hays County Purchasing Office at the address shown above or Electronically through BidNet Direct and one (1) 

hard copy at the Hays County Purchasing Office at the address shown above until: 
11:00 a.m. local time August 22, 2024. 

Proposals received after the time and date set for submission will be returned unopened. 

For information please email: 
purchasing@co.hays.tx.us 

Questions concerning this IFB must be 
received in writing no later than 5:00 

on August 13, 2024. 
Phone No.: (512) 393-2267 

OFFER (Must be fully completed by Respondent) 

In compliance with the above, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish all items or services awarded at the prices 
stipulated for each item delivered at the designated point(s) and within the time specified herein. Award shall include 

all solicitation documents and attachments. 
MANUALLY SIGN ALL COPIES SUBMITTED.  SIGNATURE IS MANDATORY. 

Respondent Respondent’s Authorized Representative 
Entity Name:  

Mailing Address: 
 Name: 

Title: 
Email Address: 

Phone No.: 

 

Signature: Date: 

Name, Email Address and Phone No. of 
person authorized to conduct 

negotiations on behalf of Respondent: 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD (To be completed by County) 
Funding Source: Awarded as to item(s): Contract Amount: 

Vendor:  Term of Contract: 

This contract issued pursuant to award 
made by Commissioners Court on: 

Date: Agenda Item: 

Important: Award 
notice may be made 

on this form or by 
other Authorized 

official written notice. 

_________________________________ _________________ 
Hays County Judge 
 
_________________________________ 

Date 
 
_________________ 

Hays County Clerk Date 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 2 of 37 

     
Table of Contents 

 
Solicitation, Offer and Award ........................................................................................................................ 1 

I. IFB Submittal Checklist ..................................................................................................................... 3 

II. Summary .......................................................................................................................................... 4 

III. Specifications ................................................................................................................................... 6 

A. Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 6 

B. Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................... 6 

C. Attachment A: 2024-B013 Bid Form and Fee Schedule ............................................................ 6 

D. Qualifications ............................................................................................................................. 6 

E. Submittal Requirements ............................................................................................................ 7 

F. Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................... 8 

G. Warranty of Performance ......................................................................................................... 8 

IV. General Terms and Conditions for Solicitations ............................................................................ 10 

V. Vendor Reference Form ................................................................................................................. 19 

VI. Certificate of Interested Parties ..................................................................................................... 20 

VII. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire ................................................................................................. 21 

VIII. Code of Ethics ................................................................................................................................ 23 

IX. HUB Practices ................................................................................................................................. 24 

X. House Bill 89 Verification ............................................................................................................... 26 

XI. Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization (TGC 2252) ......................................................... 27 

XII. Israel Boycott Certification (TGC 2271.002) .................................................................................. 28 

XIII. Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification (TGC 2274) ................................................ 29 

XIV. Debarment & Licensing Certification ............................................................................................. 30 

XV. Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation ......................................................................................................... 31 

XVI. Related Party Disclosure Form ....................................................................................................... 32 

XVII. Federal Affirmations and Solicitation Acceptance ......................................................................... 34 

Attachment A: 2024-B13 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 
Attachment B: Sentinel Peak Proposed Fence Locations & Lengths 
Attachment C: Barbed Wire and Woven Wire Fence Details 
Attachment D: TxDOT Wire Fence Specification (Barbed and Woven Wire) 
Attachment E: Existing Fence Assessment 
Attachment F: Title Survey 

  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 3 of 37 

I. IFB Submittal Checklist 
 

This checklist is provided for the Vendor’s convenience and identifies the documents that MUST be submitted for the 
bid/proposal to be considered responsive, as well as the required forms requested by Hays County. 

A COMPLETE SOLICITATION RESPONSE PACKAGE INCLUDES: 

The following forms MUST be returned for the bid/proposal to be considered responsive: 

____  1.  Solicitation, Offer and Award Form completed and signed 

____  2.  Attachment A: IFB 2024-B13 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 

____  3.  Vendor Reference Form 

____  4. Bid Bond 5% 

 
Required Forms by Hays County: 

____  1. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire  

____  2.  Code of Ethics 

____  3.  HUB Practices  

____  4.  House Bill 89 Verification  

____  5.  Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization Certification (TGC 2252) 

____  6. Israel Boycott Certification (TGC 2271.002) 

____  7.  Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification (TGC 2274) 

____  8.  Debarment & Licensing Certification  

____  9.  Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation  

____ 10. Federal Affirmations and Solicitation Acceptance 

____ 11. Related Party Disclosure Form 

____ 12. System for Award Management (www.SAM.gov) Entity Registration Page 

____ 13.  Any addenda applicable to this solicitation 

 
Hays County will accept bids, by the stated due date by one of the following methods: 

____  1. Electronic Submission of Bid Packet through BidNet Direct and one (1) hard copy delivered, within 24 hours of 
proposal due date, in a sealed envelope with the Solicitation Number and Vendor’s name on the outermost 
envelope addressed to: Hays County Purchasing, 712 S Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012, San Marcos, TX 78666 

OR 
____  2.  One original of the proposal and a digital copy on a thumb drive in a sealed envelope with the Solicitation 

Number and Vendor’s Name on the outermost envelope, addressed to: Hays County Purchasing, 712 S 
Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012, San Marcos, TX 78666 

 

http://www.sam.gov/


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 4 of 37 

II. Summary 
 

1. Type of Solicitation: Invitation for Bid 
 
2. Solicitation Number: IFB 2024-B13 

 Sentinel Park – Boundary Fence 
 

3. Issuing Office: Hays County Purchasing Office 
 712 S. Stagecoach Trial, Suite 1012 
 San Marcos, TX  78666 
 

4. Responses to Solicitation: Sealed proposals marked with Solicitation Number and Vendor  
 Name on the outermost envelope 
 Manual: One (1) Original and one (1) digital copy on a thumb drive, or 

Electronic: Proposals can be submitted through BidNet Direct and one (1) 
hard copy is required to be received within 24 hours of due date. 

 
5. Pre-Bid Meeting (Site Visit) Meeting Entrance on CR 32: Sentinel Peak, 5800 CR 32, Fischer, TX 

 Monday, August 12 @ 9:00 AM (CST) 
 

6. Deadline for Responses: In issuing office no later than: 
 August 22, 2024; 11:00 a.m. Central Time (CT) 

7. Initial Contract Term: One (1) month 
 

8. Designated Contact: Hays County Purchasing 
 Email: purchasing@co.hays.tx.us  
 

9. Bonding Requirements Bid Bond: 5% of total bid amount due at bid submittal. 
Performance and Payment Bonds: 100% of Contract Price within 10 
days of award 
 

10. Retainage The owner will withhold 5% retainage of the Contractor.  The Contractor 
 may withhold retainage on subcontractors in accordance with state and 
 federal regulations. 
 

11. Questions & Answers: Questions regarding this solicitation must be made in writing and  
submitted to the designated contact above no later than August 13, 
2024; 5:00 p.m. CT. Telephone inquiries will not be accepted. 
Questions may be submitted by email to the address above.  Answers to 
questions will be provided in the form of an addendum posted after the 
question deadline on the CivicPlus, BidNet Direct, and ESBD websites for 
the benefit of all potential respondents. The County reserves the right 
to contact the person submitting a question to clarify the question 
received, if necessary. Each clarification, supplement, or addenda to this 
IFB, if any, will be posted on the CivicPlus, BidNet Direct and ESBD 
websites. All potential or actual respondents are responsible for 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 5 of 37 

monitoring the websites for such materials. Respondents are deemed to 
have notice of, and are required to comply with, any such material 
posted in accordance with this paragraph. Respondents should not rely 
upon any other sources of written or oral responses to inquiries. 

12. Addenda Any interpretations, corrections or changes to this IFB and  
specifications will be made by addenda. Sole issuing authority of 
addenda shall be vested in the Hays County Purchasing Office. It is the 
Respondent’s responsibility to acknowledge receipt of all addenda with 
proposal submission. 

 
13. Contact with County Staff: Upon issuance of this solicitation, employees and representatives of  

Hays County, other than the Purchasing Office staff identified as the 
Designated Contact above, will not discuss the contents of this 
solicitation with any Respondent or its representatives.  Failure of a 
Respondent or any of its representatives to observe this restriction may 
result in disqualification of any related offer. This restriction does not 
preclude discussions between affected parties for the purpose of 
conducting business unrelated to this procurement.   

 

14. Websites:     Plans, Specifications, and Bidding documents for pre-qualified 
bidders and interested non-bidders may be secured from the 
following websites: 
www.bidnetdirect.com/hayscounty, 
http://www.txsmartbuy.com/sp, 
https://www.sanmarcostx.gov/Bids.aspx 
 

 
 

Anticipated Schedule of Events 
July 30, 2024 Court Approval 
August 1, 2024 Issuance of IFB 
August 12, 2024 Pre-Bid/Site Visit 
August 13, 2024 Deadline for Submission of Questions (5:00 PM CT) 
August 22, 2024 Deadline for Submission of Proposals (11:00 AM CT) 

Late bids will not be accepted. 
September/October 2024 Anticipated contract award date 

 
 

https://www.sanmarcostx.gov/Bids.aspx


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 6 of 37 

III.  Specifications 
A. Introduction 

Hays County (County) is seeking bids from qualified and experienced General Contractors to provide all 
labor, materials, and equipment necessary for the removal of an old, existing boundary fence and 
replace it with a combination of 5-strand barbed wire and game fencing located at Sentinel Peak. 
 

B. Scope of Work 
The scope includes the site located at 5800 Farm to Market Road 32, Fischer, TX 78623, approx. 20,982 
LF (4 miles) of existing boundary fence to be removed and disposed of.  A new boundary fence will be 
installed consisting of an estimated 15,456 LF of 5-Strand Barbed Wire Fence, an estimated 4,837 LF of 
6’ Tall Woven Wire Fence, and one (1) Type 1 Gate.  
 
Contractor Responsibility: 

• The contractor shall review Attachments B, C, D, E & F to ensure they understand the full scope 
of work required. 

• The contractor shall provide all labor, materials, mobilization, tools, supplies, permits, 
equipment, and transportation necessary to provide fence installation in strict accordance with 
any applicable local, state, and federal codes and guidelines.  

• Contractor is responsible for the legal disposal and cost of debris removal. 
• The Contractor shall ensure that all work performed by the Contractor is performed in a safe 

and professional manner, compliant with all codes, laws, regulations, statutes, and commonly 
accepted industry standards. 
 

C. Attachment A: IFB 2024-B13 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 
• The respondent must provide the cost of service by completing the mandatory bid form and fee 

schedule included as Attachment A: IFB 2024-B13 Bid Form and Fee Schedule.  The bid should 
be a lump sum bid and shall be inclusive of all charges and services requested in the 
Attachments B, C, and D of this solicitation. 

• Taxes: Do not include Federal Taxes or State of Texas Limited Sales Excise Tax.  Hays County is 
exempt from payment of such taxes and will issue exemption certificates upon request.  
 

D. Qualifications 
A prospective respondent must meet the following requirements:  

• Contractor shall be regularly engaged in the performance of the specified work and make 
available, for this purpose, a regular force of skilled workers and equipment.  

• Must possess the required licenses to operate a business in the State of Texas. 
• All employees must possess the certifications, and licenses required by the State of Texas. 
• Contractors’ vehicles must be permitted in compliance with all Federal, State, County and City 

requirements.  
 
REFERENCES: Hays County requires respondent to supply with the proposal, a list of at least three (3) 
references where like services have been supplied by their company for a county or company of similar 
size within the last five (5) years. Include name of company, address, telephone number and name of 
representative. 
 
RESPONSIBILTY: A prospective respondent must affirmatively demonstrate respondent’s responsibility. 
A prospective respondent must meet the following requirements:                  

• Have adequate financial resources, or the above ability to obtain such resources as required. 
• Be able to comply with required or proposed delivery schedule. 
• Have a satisfactory record of performance. 
• Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award. 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 7 of 37 

 
TIME OF PERFORMANCE: It is imperative that the prospective respondent respond to County requests in 
a timely manner and comply with required or proposed delivery schedules.  Please describe how you 
intend to respond to and track County requests. 
 
SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT: Respondent and its Principals may not be debarred or suspended 
nor otherwise have an exclusion record created in the System for Award Management (SAM) website. 
Include verification that the company as well as the company's principals are not listed (are not 
debarred) through the System for Award Management (www.SAM.gov). Enclose a printout of the Entity 
Registration page that shows your firm is in active status and is not expired. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The successful bidder shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of the profession and the execution of the duties under 
the bid. 
 
INSURANCE: The successful bidder will be required to furnish proof of insurance for Workers’ 
Compensation, Auto Liability and General Liability before any work may begin. 
 
It is the practice of Hays County to encourage local participation and to promote and encourage 
contracting and subcontracting opportunities for locally owned businesses and labor in all contracts.  
The County of Hays does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age 
and disability in employment or the provision of services. 
 

E. Submittal Requirements 
Respondent must deliver the following to the Issuing Office by the specified deadline or upload the bid 
packet electronically to BidNet Direct: 

• Mailed or Dropped off Bid Packets: All items must be in a sealed envelope marked with the 
Solicitation Number and Respondent Name on the outermost envelope.  
 One (1) original bid with required forms manually signed by Respondent with original 

signatures 
 One (1) digital copy of the full bid packet with all required forms on a thumb drive 

• Electronic Bids:  
 Upload proposal with required forms manually signed by the respondent. (through BidNet 

Direct)  
 One (1) original proposal with required forms manually signed by the respondent, delivered 

to the Hays County Purchasing Office. Either the original or Electronic Proposal (through 
BidNet Direct) MUST be received by the due date and time to be considered responsive. 
Physical copy must be received in the Hays County Purchasing Office within 24 hours of 
proposal due date.  

 
LATE SUBMITTALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

Submittals will be publicly opened at the Office of the Hays County Auditor upon the deadline for 
submittal. Respondents, their representatives and interested persons may be present.  All unofficial bid 
results will be posted on the following two sites, until an award has been made in Commissioners Court: 

Hays County: https://hayscountytx.com/departments/auditor/purchasing/bidding-opportunities/ 
BidNet Direct: https://www.bidnetdirect.com/texas/hayscounty 

It is understood that Hays County reserves the right to accept or reject any and all submittals as it shall 
deem to be in the best interest of Hays County.    

https://hayscountytx.com/departments/auditor/purchasing/bidding-opportunities/
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/texas/hayscounty


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 8 of 37 

ALTERING BIDS: Any interlineations, alteration, or erasure made before receiving time must be initialed 
by the signer of the bid, guaranteeing authenticity. 

WITHDRAWING OF BID: A bid may be withdrawn at any time prior to the official opening. After the 
official opening, bids may not be amended, altered or withdrawn without the recommendation of the 
County Purchasing Manager and the approval of Commissioners Court. 

FORMS: All Bids must be submitted on the forms provided in this solicitation document. Changes to 
solicitation forms made by bidders shall disqualify the bid.  

F. Award of Contract  
BASIS OF AWARD: The County shall have the right to take such steps as it deems necessary to determine 
the ability of the Bidder to perform the work and reserves the right to request additional information. 
The right is reserved to reject any bid where an investigation of the evidence or information submitted 
by such Bidder does not satisfy the County that the Bidder is qualified to properly carry out the terms of 
the Bid Document 

The bid award shall be based on but not necessarily limited to, the following factors: 
• Total price 
• Special needs and requirements of Hays County 
• Vendors past performance record with Hays County, if applicable 
• Hays County’s evaluation of vendor’s ability to perform 
• Vendor’s references 

 
CONTRACT: This bid, when properly accepted by Hays County shall constitute a contract equally binding 
between the successful bidder and Hays County. No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated 
or executed by any vendor as a result of any discussions with any County employee. Only those 
communications that are in writing from the Purchasing Manager shall be considered as a duly 
authorized expression on behalf of the County. No oral agreements either expressed or implied will be 
considered in fulfilling this contract. No additional terms will become part of this contract with the 
exception of Commissioners Court approved change orders. 
 
BIDDER AGREES, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all services upon which prices are offered, at 
the price(s) and upon the terms and conditions contained in the specifications. The period for 
acceptance of the bid will be ninety (90) calendar days. 

The successful bidder expressly warrants that all services specified in the IFB will be performed with care 
and diligence and in accordance with all specifications of the IFB. The successful bidder agrees to correct 
any deficiencies in its performance of services upon notification by the County and without additional 
expense to the County. 

The County reserves the right to accept in part or in whole any bids submitted and waive any 
technicalities for the best interest of the County.  
 
If the bid is accepted and approved by Commissioners Court, this document shall be made part of the 
contract. No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by any vendor as a result of 
any discussions with any County employee. No oral agreements either expressed or implied will be 
considered in fulfilling this contract.  
 

G. Warranty of Performance 
The successful respondent expressly warrants that all services specified in the IFB will be performed with 
care and diligence and in accordance with all specifications of the IFB. The successful bidder agrees to 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 9 of 37 

correct any deficiencies in performance of services upon notification by the County and without 
additional expense to the County. 

CONTINUING NON-PERFORMANCE of the bidder, in terms of specifications, shall be basis for the 
termination of the contract by the County. The County shall not pay for merchandise/services that are 
unsatisfactory. Failure to perform any provision will constitute a default of contract, in which case, 
corrective action shall take place within ten (10) days from the date of written notice citing the nature of 
breach. Failure to take corrective action or to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing such failure 
within the prescribed ten (10) days will authorize the County to terminate this agreement by written 
notice. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The successful Respondents shall comply with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of the profession and the execution of the 
duties under the solicitation. Any contract executed as a result of this IFB shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Texas. 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 10 of 37 

IV. General Terms and Conditions for Solicitations 
Applicable To: Invitations for Bid (IFB) 

1. GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 
a. "Auditor" means the Hays County Auditor or his/her designee. 
b. "Commissioners Court" means Hays County Commissioners Court. 
c. “Contract” means the contract awarded pursuant to the IFB. 
d. “Contractor” means a person or firm receiving an award of contract from Commissioners Court. 
e. "County" means Hays County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 
f. "County Building" means any County owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by County. 
g. "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 

i. Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or other valuable thing which is worth more 
than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or 
property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

ii. Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence any 
legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

iii. But does not include any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person 
at a posted, published, or marked price available to the general public. 

h. "Purchasing Manager" means the Hays County Purchasing Manager. 
i. “Sub-contractor” means a person or firm doing business with a Contractor. 

 
2. FUNDING:  Funds for payment on this Contract have been provided through the County budget approved by 

Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only.  State of Texas statutes prohibit the obligations and expenditure of 
public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been approved.  However, the cost of items or 
services covered by this Contract is considered a recurring requirement and is included as a standard and 
routine expense of Hays County to be included in each proposed budget within the foreseeable future.  County 
Commissioners expect this to be an integral part of future budgets to be approved during the period of this 
Contract except for unanticipated needs or events which may prevent such payments against this Contract.  
However, County cannot guarantee the availability of funds, and enters into this Contract only to the extent 
such funds are made available.  The Fiscal Year for County extends from October 1st of each calendar year to 
September 30th of the next calendar year. 
 

3. FUNDING OUT:  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if, during budget planning and adoption, 
Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of County, County 
may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor thirty (30) calendar days written notice that this Contract is 
terminated due to the failure to fund it. 
 

4. INVOICING/PAYMENTS: 
a. Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification 

Number and Certification, that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules 
and regulations before any Contract funds are payable.  

b. As a minimum, invoices shall include: (i) name, address, and telephone number of Contractor and similar 
information in the event payment is to be made to a different address; (ii) County Contract or Purchase 
Order number; (iii) identification of products or services as outlined in this Contract; (iv) quantity or 
quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount; and (v) any additional payment 
information called for by this Contract. County will not pay invoices that are in excess of the amount 
authorized by the purchase order. 

c. Payment shall be made by check or warrant by County upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance of 
products and services and submission of an invoice to the address below: 
County Auditor 
712 S Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1071 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 11 of 37 

d. Payment shall be deemed to have been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. For 
purposes of payment discounts, time will begin upon satisfactory delivery of products and services 
and/or submission of acceptable invoice, whichever is last.  Partial payments will not be made unless 
specifically requested and approved by County prior to Contract award. 

e. Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Tex. Gov't Code Ann., ch. 
2251. 
 

5. COUNTY TAXES: If the Contractor subsequently becomes delinquent in the payment of County taxes, it will be 
grounds for cancellation of the contract.   Despite anything to the contrary, if the contractor is delinquent in 
payment of County property taxes at the time of invoicing, Contractor assigns any payments to be made for 
performance under this contract to the County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of delinquent taxes. 
 

6. PROMPT PAYMENT ACT: TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., ch 2251 (Vernon Supp. 1995) requires that payments be made 
within 30 calendar days.  If County fails to pay within 30 days, interest on overdue amounts is subject to Chapter 
2251, Texas Government Code.  The law does not apply if the terms of a federal grant, contract, regulation, or 
statute prevent local governments from making timely payments with federal funds.  Contractors and 
subcontractors must pay their suppliers interest if the supplier is not paid within 10 calendar days after the 
contractor or subcontractor receives payment.  Contractors must apply for interest payments within 6 months 
of submitting a proper invoice if they believe such interest was due but not paid.  Interest begins accruing 30 
days after either of the following, whichever is later; (i) satisfactory delivery or performance has been 
completed, or, (ii) a correct invoice is received at the designated place. 
 

7. FOB POINT: Delivery of all products under this contract, if any, shall be made Free on Board to final destination, 
at the address shown in this contract or as indicated on each Purchase Order placed against this contract.  The 
title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to County until acceptance takes place at the F.O.B. point. 
 

8. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: The County office or department receiving items pursuant to this contract shall 
inspect and accept only those items that are satisfactory to them, and reject those items which are damaged or 
which do not conform to specifications.  Contractor shall be responsible for the proper labeling, packing, and 
delivery to final destination, including replacement of rejected deliveries. 
 

9. VARIATION IN QUANTITY: No variation in the quantity of any item called for by this contract will be accepted 
unless such variation has been caused by conditions of loading, shipping, or packing, or allowances in 
manufacturing processes, and then only to the extent, if any, specified elsewhere in this contract. 
 

10. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT: If a member of Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative association, the 
County may purchase equipment or supplies from the association only if no member of the Commissioners 
Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends 
distributed generally to members of the association. 
 

11. NONDISCRIMINATION; CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE:  
a. Contractor shall not engage in employment practices that have the effect of discriminating against 

employees or prospective employees because of age, race, color, sex, creed, national origin or 
handicapped condition.  

b. Contractor shall provide all services and activities required in a manner that would comply with the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and 
with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] if 
Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 
 

12. CHANGES: 
a. This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both County and Contractor. It is 

acknowledged by Contractor that NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 12 of 37 

HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO CHANGE THE SCOPE OF THIS CONTRACT OR 
OTHERWISE AMEND THIS CONTRACT, OR ANY ATTACHMENTS HERETO, UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED 
THAT AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

b. Contractor shall submit all requests for changes to this Contract or any attachment(s) to it to the 
Purchasing Manager. The Purchasing Manager shall present Contractor's requests to Commissioners 
Court for consideration. 

13. REPRESENTATIONS: 
a.  Contractor represents that he has thoroughly examined the drawings, specifications, schedule, 

instructions and all other contract documents. Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be 
thoroughly informed regarding plant and facilities for delivery of material, equipment and/or services as 
required by the proposal conditions. 

b. The Contractor's delivery time includes weekends and holidays. 
c. Contractor certifies that he is a qualified, bondable business entity that he is not in receivership or 

contemplates it, and has not filed for bankruptcy.  He further certifies that the Company, Corporation, 
Partnership, or Sole Proprietorship is not delinquent with respect to payment of County property taxes. 

d. Contractor warrants that all applicable patents and copyrights which may exist on items that will be 
supplied under the contract have been adhered to and further warrants that County shall not be liable 
for any infringement of those rights.   Warranties granted County shall apply for the duration of this 
contract or for the life of equipment or supplies purchased, whichever is longer.  County must not 
extend use of the granted exclusive rights to any other than County employees or those with whom 
County has established a relationship aimed at furthering the public interest, and then only for official 
public uses.  County will not knowingly or intentionally violate any applicable patent, license, or 
copyright.  Contractor must indemnify County, its officers, agents, and employees against all claims, 
suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees 
arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses or copyrights 
applicable to items sold. 

e. The Contractor warrants that upon execution of a contract with the County, he will not engage in 
employment practices which have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective 
employees because of age, religion, race, color, sex, creed, handicap, or national origin and will submit 
reports as the County may require to assure compliance. 

f. Contractor warrants to County that all items delivered and all services rendered will conform to the 
specifications, drawings, or other descriptions furnished or incorporated by reference, and will be of 
merchantable quality, good workmanship, and free from defects.  Contractor further agrees to provide 
copies of applicable warranties or guarantees to the Purchasing Manager.  Copies will be provided 
within 10 days after the Notice of Award is issued.  Return of merchandise under warranty shall be at 
Contractor's expense. 
 

14. SUBCONTRACTS: 
a. Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any service or activity relating to the performance of 

this Contract without the prior written approval or the prior written waiver of this right of approval from 
County.  IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS THE AUTHORITY TO GRANT SUCH APPROVAL OR WAIVER UNLESS 
EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

b. If a subcontract is approved, Contractor must make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and 
reasonable steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be subcontractors under this Contract.  
Contractor must obtain County approval of all proposed HUB subcontractors through the Purchasing 
Manager.  Failure by Contractor to make a good faith effort to employ HUBs as subcontractors 
constitutes a breach of this Contract and may result in termination of this Contract. 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT: 

a. The parties to this Contract shall not assign any of the rights or obligation hereunder without the prior 
written consent of the other party.  No official, employee, representative or agent of County has the 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 13 of 37 

authority to approve any assignment under this Contract unless that specific authority is expressly 
granted by Commissioners Court. 

b. The terms, provisions, covenants, obligations and conditions of this Contract are binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the successors in interest and the assigns of the parties to this Contract if the 
assignment or transfer is made in compliance with the provisions of this Contract. 

c. Contractor remains responsible for the performance of this Contract when there is a change of name or 
change of ownership. If a change of name is required, the Purchasing Manager shall be notified 
immediately.  No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by 
Commissioners Court. 
 

16. DISPUTES AND APPEALS: The Purchasing Manager acts as the County representative in the issuance and 
administration of this contract in relation to disputes.  Any document, notice, or correspondence not issued by 
or to the Purchasing Manager or other authorized County person, in relation to disputes is void unless otherwise 
stated in this contract.  If the Contractor does not agree with any document, notice, or correspondence issued 
by the Purchasing Manager, or other authorized County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to 
the Purchasing Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence, 
outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is not resolved to the Contractor’s satisfaction, 
Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing 
Manager, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply.  
Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court. 
 

17. MEDIATION: When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Agreement, 
the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or a person appointed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, for mediation as described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code.  Unless 
both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding 
resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as 
described in §154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, to 
waive the confidentiality. 
 

18. FORCE MAJEURE:  If the performance by either party of any of its obligations under this Contract is interrupted 
or delayed due to an act of God or the common enemy or as the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign 
conduct, or the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to this Contract, then it shall be excused 
from performance for such period of time as is reasonably necessary to remedy the effects thereof. 
 

19. NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT: 
a. No payment, act or omission by County may constitute or be construed as a waiver of any breach or 

default of Contractor which then exists or may subsequently exist. No official, agent, employee or 
representative of County may waive any breach of any term or condition of this Contract unless 
expressly granted that specific authority by the Commissioners Court. 

b. All rights of County under this Contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall 
not impair or prejudice any remedy or fight to County under it. Any right or remedy in this Contract shall 
not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law, nor shall 
any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies. 

 
20. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:  Failure by either County or Contractor to perform any provisions of this Contract 

shall constitute a breach of contract. Either party may require corrective action within ten (10) calendar days 
after date of receipt of written notice citing the exact nature of the other's breach. Failure to take corrective 
action or failure to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing such failure within the ten (10) calendar days 
shall constitute a default. The defaulting party shall be given a twenty (20) calendar day period within which to 
show cause why this Contract shall not be terminated for default. All notices for corrective action, breach, 
default or show cause on behalf of County shall be issued by the Purchasing Manager or County legal 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 14 of 37 

representative only, and all replies to the same shall be made in writing to the County Purchasing Manager or 
County legal representative at the address provided herein.  Notices issued by or to anyone other than the 
Purchasing Manager or County legal representative shall be null and void, and shall be considered as not having 
been issued or received. County reserves the right to enforce the performance of this Contract in any manner 
prescribed by law in case of default and may contract with another party with or without competition or further 
notification to the contractor. At a minimum, Contractor shall be required to pay any difference in the cost of 
securing the services covered by this Contract, or compensate for any loss or damage to the County derived 
hereunder if it becomes necessary to contract with another source because of a default, plus reasonable 
administrative costs and attorney's fees. In the event of termination for default, County, its agents or 
representatives, shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated under this Contract. 
 

21. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  County reserves the right to terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) days 
written notice for any reason deemed by the Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from 
any governmental law, ordinance, regulation, or court order. Termination for convenience shall not be exercised 
with the sole intention of awarding the same or similar contract requirements to another source. In the event of 
such termination, County shall pay Contractor those costs directly attributable to work done in preparation for 
compliance with this Contract prior to termination; provided, however, that no costs shall be paid which are 
recoverable in the normal course of the business in which Contractor is engaged, nor shall County pay any costs 
which can be mitigated through the sale of supplies or inventories. If County pays for the cost of supplies or 
materials obtained for use under this Contract those supplies or materials shall become the property of County 
and shall be delivered to the FOB point shown in this Contract, or as designated by the Purchasing Manager. 
County shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated under this Contract. 
 

22. GRATUITIES:  Contractor shall not provide any gratuity in any form, including entertainment, gifts, or otherwise, 
to any employee, buyer, agent, or representative of County with a view to securing a contract, or securing 
favorable treatment with respect to the award or amendment, or the making of any determination with respect 
to the performance of this Contract. County may terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities of any kind 
including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the 
Contractor, to any County Official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect of 
this contract. If this Contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall be entitled, in 
addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from the Contractor at least three times the cost incurred 
by Contractor in providing the gratuities. 
 

23. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:  Contractor represents and warrants that no persons or selling agency 
has been retained to solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained 
by the Contractor to secure business. For breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to 
terminate this Contract without liability, or in its discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract 
price for consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee. 
 

24.  COUNTY ACCESS:  Contractor shall maintain and make available for inspection, audit or reproduction by any 
authorized representative of County all books, documents, and other evidence pertinent to the costs and 
expenses of this Contract, including but not limited to both direct and indirect costs, cost of labor, material, 
equipment, supplies, and services, and all other costs and expenses of whatever nature for which 
reimbursement is claimed under this Contract. All required records shall be maintained until an audit is 
completed and all required questions arising therefrom are resolved, or three (3) years after completion of the 
contract term, whichever occurs first; provided, however, the records will be retained beyond the third year if 
an audit is in progress or the finding of a completed audit have not been resolved satisfactorily. 
 

25. FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT: 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 15 of 37 

a. The selected Offeror must forfeit all benefits of the contract and County must retain all performance by 
the selected Offeror Contractor and recover all consideration or the value of all consideration paid to 
the selected Offeror pursuant to the contract if: 

b. The selected Offeror was doing business at the time of submitting its proposal offer or had done 
business during the 365- day period immediately prior to the date on which its proposal offer was due 
with one or more Key Contracting Persons if the selected Offeror failed to disclose the name of any such 
Key Contracting Person in its offer; or  

c. The selected Offeror does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which the offer that 
resulted in the contract is submitted and prior to full performance of the contract. 

 
26. CONTRACTOR CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: 

a. If any claim, or other action, that relates to Contractor’s performance under this Contract, including 
proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or 
other entity against Contractor, Contractor shall give written notice to County of the following 
information within ten (10) working days after being notified of it: 

i. The existence of the claim, or other action; 
ii. The name and address of the person, firm, corporation or their entity that made a claim or that 

instituted any type of action or proceeding; 
iii. The alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding; 
iv. The court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding was 

instituted; and 
v. The name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made. 

b. Except as otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers received 
by Contractor with respect to making these claims or actions and all court pleadings related to the 
defense of these claims or actions. 

 
27. CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY: This provision applies if the anticipated Contract exceeds $100,000.  By 

submitting a bid or proposal in response to this solicitation, the bidder/respondent certifies that at the time of 
submission, he/she is not on the Federal Government’s Excluded Parties List System (www.epls.gov), which 
details a listing of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors.  In the event of placement on the list between 
the time of bid/proposal submission and time of award, the bidder/respondent will notify the Hays County 
Purchasing Manager.  Failure to do so may result in terminating this Contract for default. 
 

28. CONTRACTOR LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify County, its 
officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all third party claims, losses, damages, causes of 
action, suits, and liability of every kind whether meritorious or not and, including all expenses of litigation, court 
costs, and reasonable attorney's fees, arising in connection with the services provided by Contractor under this 
Contract.  It is the expressed intention of the Parties to this Contract, both Contractor and County, that the 
indemnity provided for in this paragraph is indemnity by Contractor to indemnify and protect County from the 
consequences of Contractor's actions. 
 

29. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT: 
a. This Contract is governed by the laws of the United States of America and the State of Texas and all 

obligations under this Contract are performable in Hays County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out 
of this Contract will lie in the appropriate court of Hays County, Texas. 

b. If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it shall remain valid and binding. 

c. Headings and titles at the beginning of the various provisions of this Contract have been included only to 
make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that part, section or subsection and are not to be 
used in construing this Contract. 

d. When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be computed to exclude the first day 
and include the last day of period. If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a day that 

http://www.epls.gov/


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 16 of 37 

Hays County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the 
computation. All hours in this Contract are stated in Central Standard Time from 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the 
first Sunday of November until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March and in Central Daylight 
Saving Time from 2:00 o' clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the first 
Sunday of November or such other dates as may be adopted for the activation of Daylight Savings Time 
in the United States in future years.  

e. Words of any gender in this Contract shall be construed to include any other gender and words in either 
number shall be construed to include the other unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

f. Provisions, Words, Phrases, and Statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or by reference, shall be 
applied to this Contract in accordance with Texas Government Code, §§ 312.002 and 312.003.  

 
30. ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

a. Contractor must comply with all Federal and State laws and regulations, City and County ordinances, 
orders, and regulations, relating in any way to this Contract. 

b. Contractor must secure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary 
for lawful operations. 

c. Contractor must pay all taxes and license fees imposed by the Federal and the State Governments and 
their agencies and political subdivisions upon the property and business of Contractor. 

d. Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Contractor is delinquent in payment of property 
taxes at the time of providing services, Contractor assigns the amount of any payment to be made for 
services provided under this Contract equal to the amount Contractor is delinquent in property tax 
payments to the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent taxes. 

e. In this subsection, "County Building" means any County-owned buildings and does not include buildings 
leased by County.  Contractor must not execute any mortgage, or issue any bonds, shares of stock, or 
other evidence of interest in County Buildings.  

 
31. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT: 

a. This document contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the rights granted and the 
obligations assumed.  Any prior agreements or representations not expressly set forth in this agreement 
are of no force.  Any oral representations or modifications concerning this agreement shall be of no 
force except a subsequent modification in writing signed by the Purchasing Manager.  No official, 
representative, employee, or agent of the County has any authority to modify or amend this contract 
except pursuant to specific authority to do so granted by the Commissioners Court. 

b. If inconsistency exists between provisions of this solicitation, the inconsistency shall be resolved by 
giving precedence in the following ascending order of precedence: 

i. The Schedule of Items/Services 
ii. Terms and Conditions of Request for Proposals; 

iii. General Provisions; 
iv. Other provisions, whether incorporated by reference or otherwise; and 
v. The specifications. 

c. If any contract provision shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision, and this contract shall be 
construed as if invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained. 

d. This contract shall be governed by the laws of Texas and all obligations are performable in Hays County, 
Texas. 

e. If a word is used with reference to a particular trade or subject matter or is used as a word of art, the 
word shall have the meaning given by experts in that particular field. 

f. Words in the present or past tense include the future tense.  The singular includes the plural and the 
plural includes the singular.  The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter genders. 

g. The headings in this contract have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject covered by 
each provision and are not to be used in construing this contract. 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 17 of 37 

h. Provisions, words, phrases, and statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or by reference, shall be 
applied to this contract in accordance with TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., SEC 312.002, 312.003 (Vernon 1991). 

 
32. MODIFICATIONS: 

a. The County Purchasing Manager may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if 
any, make changes within the general scope of this contract in any one of the following: 

i. Drawings, designs or specifications when the supplies to be furnished are to be specifically 
manufactured for the County in accordance with the drawings, designs, or specifications. 

ii. Method of shipment or packing. 
iii. Place of deliveries. 
iv. Correction of errors of a general administrative nature or other mistakes, the correction of 

which does not affect the scope of the contract, or does not result in expense to the Contractor. 
v. Description of items to be provided. 

vi. Time of performance (i.e. hours of day, days of week, etc) 
b. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or time required for, performance of 

any part of the work under this contract whether, or not changed by the order, the Commissioners 
Court shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both, and shall 
modify the contract.  The Contractor must submit any "proposal for adjustment" under this clause 
within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the written order.  However, if the County 
Purchasing Manager decides that the facts justify it, the County Purchasing Manager may receive and 
act upon a proposal submitted before final payment of the contract.  If the Contractor's proposal 
includes the cost of property made obsolete or excess by the change, the County shall have the right to 
prescribe the manner of disposition of the property.  Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a 
dispute under the Disputes and Appeals clause.  However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the 
Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.  

 
33. PRICE CHANGES: The prices offered shall remain firm for the period of the contract.  The prices offered shall also 

remain firm for the option years should the County choose to exercise the option to renew, except for changes 
that are industry wide and beyond the control of the contractor.  Any price increase proposed must be 
submitted forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the anniversary date of the annual term contract and shall be 
supported with proper documentation.  Hays County will have fifteen (15) days, from the receipt of proposed 
price increases, to review any proposed price increases and reserves the right to approve or disapprove any 
request for increased prices.  If Hays County disapproves the proposed price increases, the County will issue an 
intent to terminate, and the contract will not be renewed. 
 

34. INSURANCE AND LIABILITY: During the period of this contract, contractor shall maintain at his expense, 
insurance with limits not less than those prescribed below.  With respect to required insurance, Contractor shall; 

a. Name County as additional insured as its interests may appear. 
b. Provide County a waiver of subrogation. 
c. Provide County with a thirty (30) calendar day advance written notice of cancellation or material change 

to said insurance. 
d. Provide the County Purchasing Manager at the address shown on Page 1 of this contract, a Certificate of 

Insurance evidencing required coverage within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of Notice of Award. 
Also, please assure your certificate contains the contract number as indicated on the Contract Award 
form when issued by Hays County. 

e. Submit an original certificate of insurance reflecting coverage as follows: 
 

Automobile Liability: 
Bodily Injury (Each person) $1,000,000.00 

Bodily Injury (Each accident) $1,000,000.00 
Property Damage $1,000,000.00 

 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 18 of 37 

Commercial General Liability (Including Contractual Liability): 
General Aggregate $2,000,000.00 

Product completed operations aggregate $2,000,000.00 
Bodily Injury (Each accident) $2,000,000.00 

Property Damage $2,000,000.00 
 
Employers Liability: 

Each accident $1,000,000.00 
Each employee for disease $1,000,000.00 

Policy limit for disease $1,000,000.00 
 
Excess Liability: 

Umbrella Form  $1,000,000.00 
 
Labor Liability: 

Worker's Compensation Meeting Statutory 
Requirements 

 
  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 19 of 37 

V.      Vendor Reference Form 

Please list three (3) references of current customers who can verify the quality of service your company provides.  The 
County prefers customers of similar size and scope of work to this proposal/bid.  This form must be returned with your 
bid/proposal. 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REFERENCE ONE 

REFERENCE TWO 

REFERENCE THREE 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 20 of 37 

VI. Certificate of Interested Parties 
 

In 2015, the Texas Legislature adopted House Bill 1295, which added 2252.908 to the Texas Government Code and 
applies to all contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2016. Section 2252.908 (b)(1)(2) applies only to a contract of a 
governmental entity or state agency that requires an action or vote by the governing body of the entity or agency before 
the contract may be signed or that has a value of at least $1 million. In addition, pursuant to Section 2252.908 (d), a 
governmental entity or state agency may not enter into a contract described by Subsection (b) with a business entity 
unless the business entity, in accordance with this section and rules adopted under this section, submits a disclosure of 
interested parties to the governmental entity or state agency at the time the business entity submits the signed contract 
to the governmental entity or state agency. 

With regard to Hays County purchases, a vendor or other person who is awarded a contract or purchase approved by 
Hays County Commissioners Court is required to electronically complete a Form 1295 through the Texas Ethics 
Commission website at https://ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm and submit a signed copy of the 
form to the Hays County Purchasing office. A contract, including County issued purchase order (if applicable), will not be 
enforceable or legally binding until the County received and acknowledges receipt of the properly completed Form 1295 
from the awarded vendor. 

If you do not have access to the link provided above please or have any questions please contact Purchasing at 512-393-
2267. 

https://ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm


IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 21 of 37 

VII. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 22 of 37   



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 23 of 37 

VIII. CODE OF ETHICS FOR HAYS COUNTY 
Public employment is a public trust. It is the policy of Hays County to promote and balance the objective of protecting 
government integrity and the objective of facilitating the recruitment and retention of personnel needed by Hays 
County. Such a policy implemented by prescribing essential standards of ethical conduct without creating unnecessary 
obstacles to entering public services. 

Public servants must discharge their duties impartially so as to assure fair competitive access to governmental 
procurement by responsible contractors. Moreover, they should conduct themselves in such a manner as to foster 
public confidence in the integrity of the Hays County procurement organization. 

To achieve the purpose of this article, it is essential that those doing business with Hays County also observe the ethical 
standards prescribed here. 

It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to influence any public employee, elected official or department head to breach 
the standards of ethical conduct set forth in this code. 

It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee of Hays County or a vendor doing business with the county to participate 
directly or indirectly in a procurement when the employee or vendor knows that: 

The employee or any member of the employee’s immediate family, or household has a substantial financial interest 
pertaining to the procurement. This means ownership of 10% or more of the company involved and/or ownership of 
stock or other interest or such valued at $2500.00 or more. 

A business or organization in which the employee, or any member of the employee’s immediate family, has a financial 
interest pertaining to the procurement. 

Gratuities: It shall be a breach of ethics to offer, give or agree to give any employee of Hays County or for any employee 
to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from a vendor, a gratuity of consequence or any offer of employment in 
connection with any decision approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation or any part of a program 
requirement or purchase request influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of 
advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or controversy, any particular matter 
pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefore pending 
before this government. 

Kickbacks: It shall be a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of 
a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for Hays County 
as an inducement for the award of a contract or order. 

Contract Clause: The prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks prescribed above shall be conspicuously set forth in 
every contract and solicitation therefore. 

Any effort to influence any employee, elected official, or department head to violate the standards of the code is 
grounds to void the contract. Please certify, by your signature below, that you understand the ethics policy of Hays 
County and in no way will attempt to violate the code. 

 

SIGNATURE: __________________________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME & TITLE: _________________________________________________ 

COMPANY NAME: _____________________________________________________  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 24 of 37 

IX. Hays County Practices Related to Historically Underutilized Businesses 

1. STATEMENT OF PRACTICES 

Hays County will strive to ensure that all businesses, regardless of size, economic, social or ethnic status have 
an equal opportunity to participate in the County’s procurement processes. The County is committed to 
promote full and equal business opportunity for all businesses to supply the goods and services needed to 
support the mission and operations of county government, and seeks to encourage the use of certified 
historically underutilized businesses (HUB’s) through the use of race, ethnic and gender neutral means. It is 
the practice of Hays County to involve certified HUBs to the greatest extent feasible in the County’s 
procurement of goods, equipment, services and construction projects while maintaining competition and 
quality of work standards. The County affirms the good faith efforts who recognize and practice similar 
business standards. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

Historically underutilized businesses (HUBs), also known as a disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE), are 
generally business enterprises at least 51% of which is owned and the management and daily business 
operations are controlled by one or more persons who is/are socially and economically disadvantaged 
because of his/her identification as a member of certain groups, including women, Black Americans, Mexican 
Americans, and other Americans if Hispanic origin, Asian Americans and American Indians. 

Businesses include firms, corporations, sole proprietorships, vendors, suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, 
professionals and other similar references when referring to a business that provides goods and/or services 
regardless of the commodity category. 

Certified HUB’s include business enterprises that meet the definition of a HUB and who meet the certification 
requirements of certification agencies recognized by Hays County, as expressed below. 

Statutory bid limit refers to the Texas Local Government Code provision that requires competitive bidding 
for many items valued at greater than $50,000. 

3. GUIDELINES 

a. Hays County, its contractors, their subcontractors and suppliers, as well as all vendors of goods, 
equipment and services, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, gender, age, 
religion, national origin, citizenship, mental or physical disability, veteran’s status or political 
affiliation in the award and/or performance of contracts. All entities doing business or 
anticipating doing business with the County shall support, encourage and implement affirmative 
steps toward a common goal of establishing equal opportunity for all citizens and businesses of 
the County. 

b. Vendors and/or contractors desiring to participate in the HUB program must successfully 
complete the certification process with the State of Texas or Texas Unified Certification 
Program. The vendor or contractor is also required to hold a current valid certification (title) 
from either of these entities. 

c. Vendors and/or contractors must be registered with the State Comptroller’s web-based HUB 
directory and with the Comptroller’s Centralized Master Bidder’s List (CMBL). Hays County 
will solicit bids from certified HUB’s for state purchasing and public works contracts. 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 25 of 37 

4. Hays County will actively seek and encourage HUBs to participate in all facets of the procurement 
process by: 

a. Continuing to increase and monitor a database of certified HUB vendors, professionals and 
contractors. The database will be expanded to include products, areas of expertise and 
capabilities of each HUB firm. 

b. Continuing to seek new communication links with HUB vendors, professionals and contractors to 
involve them in the procurement process. 

c. Continuing to advertise bids on the County’s website and in the newspapers including 
newspapers that target socially and economically disadvantaged communities. 

5. As prescribed by law, the purchase of one or more items costing in excess of the statutory bid limit 
must comply with the competitive bid process. Where possible, those bids will be structured to include 
and encourage the participation of HUB firms in the procurement process by: 

a. Division of proposed requisitions into reasonable lots in keeping with industry standards and 
competitive bid requirements. 

b. Where feasible, assessment of bond and insurance requirements and the designing of such 
requirements to reasonably permit more than one business to perform the work. 

c. Specifications of reasonable, realistic delivery schedules consistent with the County’s actual 
requirements. 

d. Specifications, terms and conditions reflecting the County’s actual requirements are clearly 
stated, and do not impose unreasonable or unnecessary contract requirements. 

6. A HUB practice statement shall be included in all specifications. The County will consider the bidder’s 
responsiveness to the HUB Practices in the evaluation of bids and proposals. Failure to demonstrate a 
good faith effort to comply with the County’s HUB practices may result in a bid or proposal being 
considered non-responsive to specifications. 

7. Nothing in this practice statement shall be construed to require the County to award a contract other 
than to the lowest responsive bidder as required by law. This practice is narrowly tailored in accordance 
with applicable law. 

 

Please sign for acknowledgement of the Hays County HUB Practices: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Signature Date 

  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 26 of 37 

X. Hays County House Bill 89 Verification 
 
 
I, _____________________________________ (Person name), the undersigned representative of 

________________________________(Company or Business name, hereafter referred to as Company) being an adult 

over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, after being duly sworn by the undersigned notary, do hereby depose and 

verify under oath that the company named above, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, Government Code Chapter 

2270: 

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and 
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code: 

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 
that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or 
with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action 
made for ordinary business purposes; and 

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or any limited liability company, including a wholly 
owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those entities or business 
associations that exist to make a profit. 

 

______________________________________ ____________________ 
Signature of Company Representative Date 

 
On this _____ day of ____________________, 20____, personally appeared ________________________________, the 

above-named person, who after by me being duly sworn, did swear and confirm that the above is true and correct. 

 
NOTARY SEAL ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 ____________________________________ 
 Date 
 

  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 27 of 37 

XI. Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization Certification (TGC 2252) 
 

I certify that the company named below (“Company”) do hereby declare, represent, and verify that the Company, under 
the provisions of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• will not do business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization; and 
• will not do business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization during the term of the contract. 

 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152 and Section 2252.153, certify that the company 
named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies 
that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further certify that should the above-
named company enter into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State 
of Texas which do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the Hays 
County Purchasing Department. 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 

 

Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 
 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152 and Section 2252.153, certify that the company 
named above is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies 
that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153, and I have ascertained that the above-
named company is not contained on said listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number 

 

 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 28 of 37 

XII. Israel Boycott Certification (TGC 2271.002) 
 

I certify that the company named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning 
the listing of companies that are identified as boycotting Israel, and verify that the Company, under the provisions of 
Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• does not boycott Israel currently; and 
• will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.  

 

Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code:  
1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 

that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or 
with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action 
made for ordinary business purposes; and  

2. “Company” means a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exist to 
make a profit.  
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Exclusion from Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code 

I certify that the company named below declare, represents, and verifies that the Company is excluded from Chapter 
2271 because the contract in question: 

□ will be between a governmental entity and a company with fewer than 10 full-time employees 
□ will have a value of less than $100,000 that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 
entity; or 
□ will be between a governmental entity and a sole proprietor. 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 

On this day, the Purchasing Representative for Hays County in San Marcos, Texas, pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
Chapter 2271, certify that I did review the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of 
companies that are identified under Section 808 and I have ascertained that the above-named company is not contained 
on said listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number   



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 29 of 37 

XIII. Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification (TGC 2274) 
 

I certify that the company named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning 
the listing of companies that are identified as boycotting energy companies, and verify that the Company, under the 
provisions of Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• Does not boycott energy companies currently; and 
• Will not boycott energy companies during the term of the contract. 

Pursuant to Chapter 2274 and Section 809.001 of the Texas Government Code:  
1. “Boycott energy company” means, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating 

business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or 
limit commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration, production, 
utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to 
meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business with a company 
described by Paragraph (A).  

2. “Company” means a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exist to 
make a profit.  
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Company Name         Date 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Exclusion from Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code 

I certify that the company named below declare, represents, and verifies that the Company is excluded from Chapter 
2274 because the contract in question: 

□ will be between a governmental entity and a company with fewer than 10 full-time employees 
□ will have a value of less than $100,000 that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 
entity; or 
□ will be between a governmental entity and a sole proprietor. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Company Name         Date 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2274, I certify that the company named above is not listed on the website 
of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.051, 
Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153, and I have ascertained that the above-named company is not contained on said 
listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 30 of 37 

XIV. Debarment and Licensing Certification 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HAYS § 

I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States and the State of 
Texas, certifies that Firm named herein below and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;  

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, 
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of 
federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a federal, state or local governmental 
entity with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public (federal, state 
or local) transactions terminated for cause or default;  

e. Are registered and licensed in the State of Texas to perform the professional services which are necessary for 
the project; and 

f. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for professional accreditation within 
the past three years. 

 

_________________________________ 
Name of Firm 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of Certifying Official Title of Certifying Official 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Printed Name of Certifying Official Date 

Where the Firm is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such Firm shall attach an explanation to 
this certification. 

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me the undersigned authority by _____________________________________on this 
the day of _______, 20___, on behalf of said Firm. 

 ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 My commission expires: ________________  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 31 of 37 

XV. Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation 
 

1. Vendor/Bidder affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this Contract, that this company, corporation, 
firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder, and that the contents 
of this bid as to price, terms or conditions of said bid have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by 
any employee or agent to any other person engages in this type of business prior to the official opening of this 
bid. 

2. Vendor/Bidder hereby assigns to Purchaser any and all claims for overcharges associated with this Contract 
which arise under the antitrust laws of the United States, 15 USCA Section 1 et seq., and which arise under the 
antitrust laws of the State of Texas, Tex. Bus. & Com. Code, Section 15.01, et seq. 

3. Pursuant to 262.0276 (a) of the Texas Local Government Code, Vendor/Bidder, hereby affirms that 
Vendor/Bidder: 

 _______ Does not own taxable property in Hays County, or; 

 _______ Does not owe any ad valorem taxes to Hays County or is not otherwise indebted to Hays County 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Name of Contracting Company 

If taxable property is owned in Hays County, list property ID numbers: 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________ 
Signature of Company Official Authorizing Bid/Offer 

____________________________________________ _________________________________ 
Printed Name Title 

____________________________________________ _________________________________ 
Email Address Phone  

  



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 32 of 37 

XVI. Related Party Disclosure Form 
 

Hays County strives to provide financial transparency to its taxpayers.  Completion of this form will allow for added 
transparency into the procurement process by disclosing Vendor relationships with current or former Hays County 
employees. The existence of a relationship may not present a legal or ethical conflict for a Vendor. However, disclosure 
will allow for consideration of potential conflicts and/or ways to eliminate conflicts.  

A Vendor who Employs any of the following is required to disclose the relationship on this form: 

• Current Hays County employee (including elected or appointed official) (Complete Section A) 
• Former Hays County employee who has been separated from Hays County for no less than four (4) years 

(including elected or appointed official) (Complete Section B) 
• Person related within the 2nd degree of consanguinity or affinity to either of the above(1) (Complete Section C) 

If no known relationships exist, complete Section D.  

This form is required to be completed in full and submitted with the proposal package. A submitted proposal package 
that does not include this completed form will be considered non-responsive and will not be eligible for an award.  

Attach additional pages if necessary. 

 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. 

Section A: Current Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee Name            Title 

 Section B: Former Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee Name            Title     Date of Separation from County 

 Section C: Person Related to Current or Former Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee or Former Employee Name           Title    

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Related Person            Title                                                 Relationship 

 Section D: No Known Relationships 

If no relationships in accordance with the above exist or are known to exist, provide a written explanation below: 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 33 of 37 

_________________________________ 
Name of Vendor 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of Certifying Official Title of Certifying Official 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Printed Name of Certifying Official Date 

 

  (1)A degree of relationship is determined under Texas Government Code Chapter 573. (as outlined below) 

 

Relationship of Consanguinity 

 
Person 

1st Degree 2nd Degree 3rd Degree* 4th Degree* 

child or parent 
grandchild, sister, 
brother or grand-

parent 

great-grandchild, 
niece, nephew, 
aunt,* uncle* or 

great-grandparent 

great-great-
grandchild, 
grandniece, 

grandnephew, first 
cousin, great aunt,* 

great uncle* or great-
great-grandparent 

* An aunt, uncle, great aunt or great uncle is related to a person by consanguinity only if he or she is the 
sibling of the person's parent or grandparent. 

  

Relationship of Affinity 

 
Person 

1st Degree 2nd Degree 

spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-
law, daughter-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, 

stepmother or stepfather 

brother-in-law, sister-in-law, spouse's 
grandparent, spouse's grandchild, grandchild's 

spouse or spouse of grandparent 

 

“Vendor” shall mean any individuals or entity that seeks to enter into a contract with Hays County. 

“Employs” shall mean any relationship wherein Vendor has made arrangements to compensate an individual, 
directly or by way of a business organization in which the individual has a sharehold or ownership interest, even if 
that arrangement is contractual and/or on an hourly-charge basis. 

 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 34 of 37 

XVII. FEDERAL AFFIRMATIONS AND SOLICITATION ACCEPTANCE 
 

In the event federal funds are used for payment of part or all of the consideration due under any contract resulting 
from this Solicitation Response, Respondent must execute this Federal Affirmation and Solicitation Acceptance, 
which shall constitute an agreement, without exception, to the following affirmations: 

 

1. Debarment and Suspension (2 CFR 180.220) 
Respondent certifies, by signing this Attachment, that neither it nor any of its principals or subcontractors are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to 
the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Order 12549 (3 C.F.R. Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) 
and 12689 (3 C.F.R. Part 1989 Comp., p. 235), Debarment and Suspension, 28 C.F.R. pt. 67, § 67.510, as 
published as pt. VII of the May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp. 19160-19211), and any relevant program-
specific regulations. This provision shall be required of every subcontractor receiving any payment in whole or 
in part from federal funds. 

2. Americans with Disabilities Act 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all terms, conditions, and requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and regulations adopted 
thereunder contained in 28 C.F.R. 26.101-36.999, inclusive, and any relevant program- specific regulations. 

3. Discrimination 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination.  These include, but are not limited to: 
a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 

color, or national origin; 
b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as    amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; 
c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of handicaps; 
d. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101- 6107), which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age; 
e. The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 

nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; 
f. The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 

1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; 

g. Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as 
amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; 

h. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; 

i. Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal 
assistance is being made; and 

j. The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to the application. 
 

4. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted 
construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 
60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 
CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” 
 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 35 of 37 

5. Wages 
Under the Davis Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. 276a – 276a-5 (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148), as amended, and the regulations 
adopted thereunder contained in 29 C.F.R. pt. 1 and 5. When required by Federal program legislation, all 
prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor 
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors have a duty to and shall pay the prevailing wage rate specified 
in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage 
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or 
subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity 
must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.  

6. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708)  
Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, 
as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each 
contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard 
work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is 
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and 
provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies 
or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission 
of intelligence. 
 

7. Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000, which is the inflation 
adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition 
Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or 
legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions 
and penalties as appropriate. 
 

8. All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal 
entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. 

 
9. Lobbying 

If Respondent, in connection with any resulting contract from this Solicitation, is a recipient of a Federal 
contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000 or a Federal loan or loan guarantee exceeding 
$150,000, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the new restrictions on lobbying contained in 
Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, which are implemented in 15 CFR Part 28. Respondent shall require 
that the certification language of Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code be included in the award documents 
for all subcontracts and require that all subcontractors submit certification and disclosure forms accordingly. 
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection 
with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

10. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
 If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 36 of 37 

that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 
401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government 
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding 
agency. 
 

11. Minority and Women’s Businesses 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall take affirmative steps to assure that minority and women's 
businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction, and services, as 
detailed in the federal requirements relating to minority and women’s business enterprises: Executive Order 
11625 of October 13, 1971, 36 Fed. Reg. 19967, as amended by Executive Order No. 12007 of August 22, 
1977, 42 Fed. Reg. 42839; Executive Order No. 12432 of July 14, 1983, 48 Fed. Reg., 32551; and Executive 
Order No. 12138 of May 18, 1979, 44 Fed. Reg. 29637. 

12. Environmental Standards 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with environmental standards that may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: 
a. Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 

1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; 
b. Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
c. Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; 
d. Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; 
e. Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the 

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); 
f. Conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the 

Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C.§§7401 et seq.); 
g. Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the 

non- Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations 
must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). 

h. Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as 
amended (P.L. 93-523); and 

i. Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205). 

j. Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6201). 

k. A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its 
contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only 
items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that 
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of 
the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded 

• $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy 
and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for 
procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 

13. Historic Properties 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 



IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak – Boundary Fence   Page 37 of 37 

14. All Other Federal Laws 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing the Solicitation. 

I have read, understand, and agree to comply with the Federal Affirmations specified above. Checking “YES” indicates 
acceptance, while checking “NO” denotes non-acceptance. 
 

YES__________ NO__________ 

Authorized Signature: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name & Title: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Respondent’s Tax ID: ___________________________________Telephone: ________________________________ 

If Respondent is a Corporation or other legal entity, please attach a corporate resolution or other 
appropriate official documentation that states that the person signing this Solicitation Response is an 
authorized person to sign for and legally bind the corporation or entity. 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 33.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Approve specifications and identify funding for IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator and authorize Purchasing
to advertise and solicit for bids.  BEC ER R A/JON ESBEC ER R A/JON ES

Summary:Summary:
Hays County issues this Invitation for Bid (IFB) to solicit bids for an energy efficient mobile generator that has the capability
of dual-fuel and powered by ammonia, propane, butane, hydrogen or any other environmentally friendly energy source,
along with a five-year maintenance and service agreement.   

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: TBD
Line Item Number: TBD

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: TBD
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: N/A
Comments: Funding will need to be identified if solicitation results in an award. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Texas Local Government Code 262.021

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: TBD
New Revenue Y/N?:
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
IFB 2024-B11 Solicitation



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 1 of 39 

 

SOLICITATION, OFFER 
AND AWARD 

Hays County  
Purchasing Office 

712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 

Solicitation No.:  
IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator Date Issued: July 30, 2024 

SOLICITATION 

Vendors must submit proposals as listed: One (1) original and one (1) digital copy on a thumb drive 
at the Hays County Purchasing Office at the address shown above or Electronically through BidNet Direct and one (1) 

hard copy at the Hays County Purchasing Office at the address shown above until: 
10:00 a.m. local time August 22, 2024. 

Proposals received after the time and date set for submission will be returned unopened. 

For information please email: 
purchasing@co.hays.tx.us 

Questions concerning this IFB must be 
received in writing no later than 5:00 

on August 12, 2024. 
Phone No.: (512) 393-2267 

OFFER (Must be fully completed by Respondent) 

In compliance with the above, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish all items or services awarded at the prices 
stipulated for each item delivered at the designated point(s) and within the time specified herein. Award shall include 

all solicitation documents and attachments. 
MANUALLY SIGN ALL COPIES SUBMITTED.  SIGNATURE IS MANDATORY. 

Respondent Respondent’s Authorized Representative 
Entity Name:  

Mailing Address: 
 Name: 

Title: 
Email Address: 

Phone No.: 

 

Signature: Date: 

Name, Email Address and Phone No. of 
person authorized to conduct 

negotiations on behalf of Respondent: 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD (To be completed by County) 
Funding Source: Awarded as to item(s): Contract Amount: 

Vendor:  Term of Contract: 

This contract issued pursuant to award 
made by Commissioners Court on: 

Date: Agenda Item: 

Important: Award 
notice may be made 

on this form or by 
other Authorized 

official written notice. 

_________________________________ _________________ 
Hays County Judge 
 
_________________________________ 

Date 
 
_________________ 

Hays County Clerk Date 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 2 of 39 

     
Table of Contents 

 
Solicitation, Offer and Award ........................................................................................................................ 1 

I. IFB Submittal Checklist ..................................................................................................................... 3 

II. Summary .......................................................................................................................................... 4 

III. Specifications ................................................................................................................................... 6 

A. Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 6 

B. Specifications ............................................................................................................................. 6 

C. Preventative Maintenance Services .......................................................................................... 6 

D. Repair Services .......................................................................................................................... 6 

E. Attachment A: 2024-B011 Bid Form and Fee Schedule ............................................................ 8 

F. Qualifications ............................................................................................................................. 9 

G. Submittal Requirements ............................................................................................................ 9 

H. Award of Contract ................................................................................................................... 10 

I. Warranty of Performance ....................................................................................................... 11 

IV. General Terms and Conditions for Solicitations ............................................................................ 12 

V. Vendor Reference Form ................................................................................................................. 21 

VI. Certificate of Interested Parties ..................................................................................................... 22 

VII. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire ................................................................................................. 23 

VIII. Code of Ethics ................................................................................................................................ 25 

IX. HUB Practices ................................................................................................................................. 26 

X. House Bill 89 Verification ............................................................................................................... 28 

XI. Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization (TGC 2252) ......................................................... 29 

XII. Israel Boycott Certification (TGC 2271.002) .................................................................................. 30 

XIII. Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification (TGC 2274) ................................................ 31 

XIV. Debarment & Licensing Certification ............................................................................................. 32 

XV. Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation ......................................................................................................... 33 

XVI. Related Party Disclosure Form ....................................................................................................... 34 

XVII. Federal Affirmations and Solicitation Acceptance ......................................................................... 36 

Attachment A: 2024-B11 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 

  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 3 of 39 

I. IFB Submittal Checklist 
 

This checklist is provided for the Vendor’s convenience and identifies the documents that MUST be submitted for the 
bid/proposal to be considered responsive, as well as the required forms requested by Hays County. 

A COMPLETE SOLICITATION RESPONSE PACKAGE INCLUDES: 

The following forms MUST be returned for the bid/proposal to be considered responsive: 

____  1.  Solicitation, Offer and Award Form completed and signed 

____  2.  Attachment A: IFB 2024-B11 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 

____  3.  Vendor Reference Form 

 

Required Forms by Hays County: 

____  1. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire  

____  2.  Code of Ethics 

____  3.  HUB Practices  

____  4.  House Bill 89 Verification  

____  5.  Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization 

____  6. Israel Boycott Certification 

____ 7.  Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification 

____  8.  Debarment & Licensing Certification  

____  9.  Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation  

____ 10. Federal Affirmations and Solicitation Acceptance 

____ 11. Related Party Disclosure Form 

____ 12. System for Award Management (www.SAM.gov) Entity Registration Page 

____ 13.  Any addenda applicable to this solicitation  
 

Hays County will accept bids, by the stated due date by one of the following methods: 

____  1. Electronic Submission of Bid Packet through BidNet Direct and one (1) hard copy delivered, within 24 hours of 
proposal due date, in a sealed envelope with the Solicitation Number and Vendor’s name on the outermost 
envelope addressed to: Hays County Purchasing, 712 S Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012, San Marcos, TX 78666 

OR 
____  2.  One original of the proposal and a digital copy on a thumb drive in a sealed envelope with the Solicitation 

Number and Vendor’s Name on the outermost envelope, addressed to: 
 Hays County Purchasing, 712 S Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1012, San Marcos, TX 78666 
 

http://www.sam.gov/


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 4 of 39 

II. Summary 
 

1. Type of Solicitation: Invitation for Bid 
 
2. Solicitation Number: IFB 2024-B11 

 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator 
 

3. Issuing Office: Hays County Purchasing Office 
 712 S. Stagecoach Trial, Suite 1012 
 San Marcos, TX  78666 
 

4. Responses to Solicitation: Sealed proposals marked with Solicitation Number and Vendor  
 Name on the outermost envelope 
 Manual: One (1) Original and one (1) digital copy on a thumb drive, or 

Electronic: Proposals can be submitted through BidNet Direct and one (1) 
hard copy is required to be received within 24 hours of due date. 

 
5. Deadline for Responses: In issuing office no later than: 

 August 22, 2024; 10:00 a.m. Central Time (CT) 

6. Initial Contract Term: Purchase of Generator 
 

7. Optional Contract Terms: Five (5) year Preventative Maintenance and Repair Service Agreement 
 

8. Designated Contact: Hays County Purchasing 
 Email: purchasing@co.hays.tx.us  
 

9. Questions & Answers: Questions regarding this solicitation must be made in writing and  
submitted to the designated contact above no later than August 12, 
2024; 5:00 p.m. CT. Telephone inquiries will not be accepted. 
Questions may be submitted by email to the address above.  Answers to 
questions will be provided in the form of an addendum posted after the 
question deadline on the CivicPlus, BidNet Direct, and ESBD websites for 
the benefit of all potential respondents. The County reserves the right 
to contact the person submitting a question to clarify the question 
received, if necessary. Each clarification, supplement, or addenda to this 
IFB, if any, will be posted on the CivicPlus, BidNet Direct and ESBD 
websites. All potential or actual respondents are responsible for 
monitoring the websites for such materials. Respondents are deemed to 
have notice of, and are required to comply with, any such material 
posted in accordance with this paragraph. Respondents should not rely 
upon any other sources of written or oral responses to inquiries. 

10. Addenda Any interpretations, corrections or changes to this IFB and  
specifications will be made by addenda. Sole issuing authority of 
addenda shall be vested in the Hays County Purchasing Office. It is the 
Respondent’s responsibility to acknowledge receipt of all addenda with 
proposal submission. 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 5 of 39 

 
11. Contact with County Staff: Upon issuance of this solicitation, employees and representatives of  

Hays County, other than the Purchasing Office staff identified as the 
Designated Contact above, will not discuss the contents of this 
solicitation with any Respondent or its representatives.  Failure of a 
Respondent or any of its representatives to observe this restriction may 
result in disqualification of any related offer. This restriction does not 
preclude discussions between affected parties for the purpose of 
conducting business unrelated to this procurement.   
 
 

Anticipated Schedule of Events 
July 30, 2024 Court Approval 
August 1, 2024 Issuance of IFB 
August 12, 2024 Deadline for Submission of Questions (5:00 PM CT) 
August 22, 2024 Deadline for Submission of Proposals (10:00 AM CT) 

Late bids will not be accepted. 
September/October 2024 Anticipated contract award date 

 
 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 6 of 39 

III.  Specifications 
A. Introduction 

Hays County issues this Invitation for Bid (IFB) to solicit bids for an energy efficient mobile generator 
that has the capability of dual-fuel and powered by ammonia, propane, butane, hydrogen or any other 
environmentally friendly energy source, along with a five-year maintenance and service agreement.    
 

B. Specifications 
The proposed mobile generator must meet the following minimum specifications. 

• Size and Power Needs:  
 minimum 25kW continuous for 30 days without refill 
 1 megawatt (MW) of power within 24-hour timeframe 

• Voltage: System power output capable of 480V 3PH and standard 120v 
• Fuel Type: ammonia, propane, butane, hydrogen or any other environmentally friendly energy 

source.  Dual-fuel capability to ensure continuous operations during fuel shortages or supply 
interruptions.  No diesel or gas.  

• Redundancy: System to have the capability to have a minimum of 3 sources of power 
inputs to ensure a single point of power failure does not impede power output.  

• Noise Level: 65 decibels or less 
• Movability: Ability to tow the system in the event of need.  The generator must be installed on a 

trailer that can be pulled by a ¾ ton truck with a trailer hitch, not a goose neck type trailer.   
• Emergency Management: System ability to manage, control, and report on operational 

readiness.  The system should have the capability to provide corrective maintenance 
remotely to ensure high uptime.  

 
C. Quarterly Preventative Maintenance (QPM) Services: 

Quarterly preventative maintenance (QPM) service shall include complete service checks and cleaning.  
The respondent shall include a proposed preventative maintenance checklist for the proposed 
generator. 

• Preventative Maintenance shall include the general cleanliness of the generator and its 
surroundings.   

• Perform work during regular business hours 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday. 
• Send customer a copy of each maintenance inspection report with all applicable areas filled out 

by the service technician. 
• Report any noted problems with equipment and recommended courses of corrective action to 

the Hays County Supervisor or designee. 
• Contractor must get permission from Hays County in writing to perform any repairs deemed 

necessary for proper operation of the standby power system at time of inspection.  Cost for 
additional repairs will be reimbursed for parts and materials at cost only. 

 
D. Repair Services 

Contractor shall provide on-call and non-emergency repairs on a time and material basis.  Hourly rates 
paid under the agreement shall be only for actual productive hours on the job site.  The County shall not 
be directly invoiced for the following: 

 Travel and/or transportation of workers; 
 Parts and materials acquisition including freight, handling, and delivery; and 
 Movement of Contractor owned or rented equipment, 
 For purposes of the agreement, these are considered overhead, and the costs shall be 

included in the fixed hourly rates in Attachment A.   
• Prior to beginning any repair or replacement, the contractor will troubleshoot the system to 

diagnose the system’s problems.  The County shall not incur any extra charge for this service.    



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 7 of 39 

• Repair services shall only occur when a proposal has been submitted and authorization to 
commence work has been given to Contractor by the County Supervisor or his designee.   

• Repair proposals shall include an itemized list of materials, costs of materials, mark-up percent, 
labor rates and hours, equipment rental, miscellaneous service, reference Generator 
model/serial number and/or description, location of equipment, and Job number (if available). 
Contractors shall also include the appropriate hours and number of Journeymen and/or 
Apprentice/Installers required to complete service. 

• Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, tools, equipment, and materials as may be required 
to complete the repair service. The County will reserve the right to provide materials and/or 
equipment to the Contractor at the County’s sole discretion. 

• At the completion of each repair service, the Contractor shall provide a report of the Generator 
Repair service to the County Supervisor or his designee. Any findings shall be described, along with 
a list of materials replaced, and total hours of labor. 

• At the sole discretion of the County, material may be provided to complete scope of repair 
work. In addition, the County shall reserve the right to bid outside of the contract when any repair 
service is over $10,000. 

• Whenever services are provided, the contractor shall ensure that the Generator equipment and 
systems are left in an operable condition. The contractor shall document all services performed 
and submit said documentation with their invoice for services. 

 
Stoppage of Work: 

The County reserves the right to stop work on any project if, in the opinion of the County Supervisor 
or his designee: 
• Materials or work are not in conformance with the OEM specifications, applicable codes, 

standards, County specifications and/or accepted practices. 
• The contractor’s activities result in damage to County property. 
• The contractor’s activity adversely interferes with the normal operation of the facility. 
• Contractor’s personnel are not properly licensed to perform the work or as it pertains to county 

facilities the contractor’s personnel have not received their security background clearances. 
• Any other condition, situation, or circumstance which, in the opinion of the County’s Authorized 

Representatives or Inspector, would be a detriment to the best interests of the County if 
allowed to persist. 

 
Inspection of Work: 

• The County reserves the right to inspect the contractor’s work at any time to assure compliance 
with all terms and conditions of this Agreement. All work will be inspected pursuant to 
applicable codes. All deficiencies noted by the County will be submitted to the contractor for 
correction. Within thirty (30) calendar days after submission of deficiencies to the contractor, an 
inspection of the air conditioning system may be conducted to ensure corrective action was 
taken. Should the deficiencies not be corrected, the contractor shall be liable for any cost 
incurred by the County to ensure the correction to include, but not limited to, additional 
inspections, repairs and meetings. 

 
Parts: 

• The contractor(s) shall have access to most of the common parts necessary to service the units.  
• All furnished materials shall be new and genuine manufacturer’s authorized replacement parts. 

Equivalent or rebuilt parts shall be pre-approved for use by the County Supervisor or his designee 
prior to use. The utilization of used materials is strictly prohibited without the pre-approval and 
consent of the County Supervisor or his designee. 

 
Warranty:  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 8 of 39 

• Warranty on all parts and labor shall be provided at a minimum of 12 months.  Parts provided by 
the County shall not be included under the 12-month warranty. 
 

On Call/Emergency Services: 
• Contractor shall be accessible by a toll-free local telephone call during regular business hours. 

Local off-hours answering service for emergencies shall be available for contractor notification 
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days per week, all year, including holidays. The expected 
two (2) hour response time from initial call notification is required during business days from 
7:00 AM to 5:00 PM. If the contractor is notified after business hours, or notification would 
result in an arrival after 7:00 PM, response time shall be expected the next business day at 7:00 
AM provided a two (2) hour time window was provided from notification to expected response 
time. 

• The Contractor shall provide on call services within 24 hours after County’s notification of 
non- critical/ non-emergency repair service requests. 

• In an event of a system failure deemed by the County as an emergency, the Contractor shall 
physically arrive to the County site within two (2) hours of County notification. See the table below 
for Service Call Classifications and approved response and completion times. 

• In the event of an emergency, a formal written proposal may be waived, however Contractor 
shall not commence work until explicitly given approval from the County Supervisor or his 
designee. 

• At the discretion of the County, a separate Contractor can be contacted to respond in critical 
emergency events should the Contractor not respond in initial contact. 
 

Service Call 
Classification Response/Completion 

Emergency  Vendor shall respond within 30 minutes of notification and work to 
completion or contain the emergency. (Work to be completed within 

2 calendar days) 
Hot/Cold Vendor shall respond within 30 minutes and alleviate the 

discomfort. (Work to be completed within 2 business days) 
Urgent Vendor shall respond within 2 hours of notification during normal 

work hours. (Work to be completed within 3 business days) 
Routine Vendor shall respond within one business day of notification. (Work 

to be completed within 5 business days) 
Utility Services Vendor shall respond within one business day of notification. (Work 

to be completed within 5 business days) 
 

E. Attachment A: IFB 2024-B11 Bid Form and Fee Schedule 
The Vendor shall fill out Attachment A and provide pricing for the purchase of the various generator 
types with a trailer, and a 5-year Preventative Maintenance and labor rates for all labor categories of 
employees envisioned to provide repair and emergency services that align with the work.   
 

• Preventative Maintenance Services: Prices shall be all-inclusive.  
• Repair Services: Hourly rates paid under the agreement shall be only for actual productive hours 

on the job site.  The County shall not be directly invoiced for the following: 
 Travel and/or transportation of workers; 
 Parts and materials acquisition including freight, handling, and delivery; and 
 Movement of Contractor owned or rented equipment, 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 9 of 39 

 For purposes of the agreement, these are considered overhead, and the costs shall be 
included in the fixed hourly rates.   

• Materials Markup: the County will not consider any proposal with a parts and materials markup 
more than 20%.  Mark up on parts and materials shall include the contractors time, labor and 
travel to obtain the necessary parts for repairs and replacements.   
 

F. Qualifications 
RESPONSIBILTY: A prospective respondent must affirmatively demonstrate respondent’s responsibility. 
A prospective respondent must meet the following requirements:  

• Contractor shall be regularly engaged in the performance of the specified work and make 
available, for this purpose, a regular force of skilled workers and equipment.  

• Contractor shall have at least five (5) years of similar experience. 
• Must possess the required licenses to operate a business in the State of Texas. 
• All employees must possess the certifications, and licenses required by the State of Texas. 
• Contractors’ vehicles must be permitted in compliance with all Federal, State, County and City 

requirements.  
 
REFERENCES: Hays County requires respondent to supply with the proposal, a list of at least three (3) 
references where like services have been supplied by their company for a county or company of similar 
size within the last five (5) years. Include name of company, address, telephone number and name of 
representative. 
 
RESPONSIBILTY: A prospective respondent must affirmatively demonstrate respondent’s responsibility. 
A prospective respondent must meet the following requirements:                  

• Have adequate financial resources, or the above ability to obtain such resources as required. 
• Be able to comply with required or proposed delivery schedule. 
• Have a satisfactory record of performance. 
• Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award. 

 
TIME OF PERFORMANCE: It is imperative that the prospective respondent respond to County requests in 
a timely manner and comply with required or proposed delivery schedules.  Please describe how you 
intend to respond to and track County requests. 
 
SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT: Respondent and its Principals may not be debarred or suspended 
nor otherwise have an exclusion record created in the System for Award Management (SAM) website. 
Include verification that the company as well as the company's principals are not listed (are not 
debarred) through the System for Award Management (www.SAM.gov). Enclose a printout of the Entity 
Registration page that shows your firm is in active status and is not expired. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The successful bidder shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of the profession and the execution of the duties under 
the bid. 
 
INSURANCE: The successful bidder will be required to furnish proof of insurance for Workers’ 
Compensation, Auto Liability and General Liability before any work may begin. 
 
It is the practice of Hays County to encourage local participation and to promote and encourage 
contracting and subcontracting opportunities for locally owned businesses and labor in all contracts.  
The County of Hays does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age 
and disability in employment or the provision of services. 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 10 of 39 

 
G. Submittal Requirements 

Respondent must deliver the following to the Issuing Office by the specified deadline or upload the bid 
packet electronically to BidNet Direct: 

• Mailed or Dropped off Bid Packets: All items must be in a sealed envelope marked with the 
Solicitation Number and Respondent Name on the outermost envelope.  
 One (1) original bid with required forms manually signed by Respondent with original 

signatures 
 One (1) digital copy of the full bid packet with all required forms on a thumb drive 

• Electronic Bids:  
 Upload proposal with required forms manually signed by the respondent. (through BidNet 

Direct)  
 One (1) original proposal with required forms manually signed by the respondent, delivered 

to the Hays County Purchasing Office. Either the original or Electronic Proposal (through 
BidNet Direct) MUST be received by the due date and time to be considered responsive. 
Physical copy must be received in the Hays County Purchasing Office within 24 hours of 
proposal due date.  

 
LATE SUBMITTALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

Submittals will be publicly opened at the Office of the Hays County Auditor upon the deadline for 
submittal. Respondents, their representatives and interested persons may be present.  All unofficial bid 
results will be posted on the following two sites, until an award has been made in Commissioners Court: 

Hays County: https://hayscountytx.com/departments/auditor/purchasing/bidding-opportunities/ 
BidNet Direct: https://www.bidnetdirect.com/texas/hayscounty 

It is understood that Hays County reserves the right to accept or reject any and all submittals as it shall 
deem to be in the best interest of Hays County.    

ALTERING BIDS: Any interlineations, alteration, or erasure made before receiving time must be initialed 
by the signer of the bid, guaranteeing authenticity. 

WITHDRAWING OF BID: A bid may be withdrawn at any time prior to the official opening. After the 
official opening, bids may not be amended, altered or withdrawn without the recommendation of the 
County Purchasing Manager and the approval of Commissioners Court. 

FORMS: All Bids must be submitted on the forms provided in this solicitation document. Changes to 
solicitation forms made by bidders shall disqualify the bid.  

H. Award of Contract  
BASIS OF AWARD: The County shall have the right to take such steps as it deems necessary to determine 
the ability of the Bidder to perform the work and reserves the right to request additional information. 
The right is reserved to reject any bid where an investigation of the evidence or information submitted 
by such Bidder does not satisfy the County that the Bidder is qualified to properly carry out the terms of 
the Bid Document 

The bid award shall be based on but not necessarily limited to, the following factors: 
• Total price 
• Special needs and requirements of Hays County 
• Vendors past performance record with Hays County, if applicable 
• Hays County’s evaluation of vendor’s ability to perform 

https://hayscountytx.com/departments/auditor/purchasing/bidding-opportunities/
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/texas/hayscounty


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 11 of 39 

• Vendor’s references 
 
CONTRACT: This bid, when properly accepted by Hays County shall constitute a contract equally binding 
between the successful bidder and Hays County. No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated 
or executed by any vendor as a result of any discussions with any County employee. Only those 
communications that are in writing from the Purchasing Manager shall be considered as a duly 
authorized expression on behalf of the County. No oral agreements either expressed or implied will be 
considered in fulfilling this contract. No additional terms will become part of this contract with the 
exception of Commissioners Court approved change orders. 
 
BIDDER AGREES, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all services upon which prices are offered, at 
the price(s) and upon the terms and conditions contained in the specifications. The period for 
acceptance of the bid will be ninety (90) calendar days. 

The successful bidder expressly warrants that all services specified in the IFB will be performed with care 
and diligence and in accordance with all specifications of the IFB. The successful bidder agrees to correct 
any deficiencies in its performance of services upon notification by the County and without additional 
expense to the County. 

The County reserves the right to accept in part or in whole any bids submitted and waive any 
technicalities for the best interest of the County.  
 
If the bid is accepted and approved by Commissioners Court, this document shall be made part of the 
contract. No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by any vendor as a result of 
any discussions with any County employee. No oral agreements either expressed or implied will be 
considered in fulfilling this contract.  
 

I. Warranty of Performance 
The successful respondent expressly warrants that all services specified in the IFB will be performed with 
care and diligence and in accordance with all specifications of the IFB. The successful bidder agrees to 
correct any deficiencies in performance of services upon notification by the County and without 
additional expense to the County. 

CONTINUING NON-PERFORMANCE of the bidder, in terms of specifications, shall be basis for the 
termination of the contract by the County. The County shall not pay for merchandise/services that are 
unsatisfactory. Failure to perform any provision will constitute a default of contract, in which case, 
corrective action shall take place within ten (10) days from the date of written notice citing the nature of 
breach. Failure to take corrective action or to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing such failure 
within the prescribed ten (10) days will authorize the County to terminate this agreement by written 
notice. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The successful Respondents shall comply with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of the profession and the execution of the 
duties under the solicitation. Any contract executed as a result of this IFB shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Texas. 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 12 of 39 

IV. General Terms and Conditions for Solicitations 
Applicable To: Invitations for Bid (IFB) 

1. GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 
a. "Auditor" means the Hays County Auditor or his/her designee. 
b. "Commissioners Court" means Hays County Commissioners Court. 
c. “Contract” means the contract awarded pursuant to the IFB. 
d. “Contractor” means a person or firm receiving an award of contract from Commissioners Court. 
e. "County" means Hays County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 
f. "County Building" means any County owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by County. 
g. "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 

i. Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or other valuable thing which is worth more 
than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase of any property or 
property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 

ii. Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence any 
legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

iii. But does not include any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person 
at a posted, published, or marked price available to the general public. 

h. "Purchasing Manager" means the Hays County Purchasing Manager. 
i. “Sub-contractor” means a person or firm doing business with a Contractor. 

 
2. FUNDING:  Funds for payment on this Contract have been provided through the County budget approved by 

Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only.  State of Texas statutes prohibit the obligations and expenditure of 
public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been approved.  However, the cost of items or 
services covered by this Contract is considered a recurring requirement and is included as a standard and 
routine expense of Hays County to be included in each proposed budget within the foreseeable future.  County 
Commissioners expect this to be an integral part of future budgets to be approved during the period of this 
Contract except for unanticipated needs or events which may prevent such payments against this Contract.  
However, County cannot guarantee the availability of funds, and enters into this Contract only to the extent 
such funds are made available.  The Fiscal Year for County extends from October 1st of each calendar year to 
September 30th of the next calendar year. 
 

3. FUNDING OUT:  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if, during budget planning and adoption, 
Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of County, County 
may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor thirty (30) calendar days written notice that this Contract is 
terminated due to the failure to fund it. 
 

4. INVOICING/PAYMENTS: 
a. Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification 

Number and Certification, that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules 
and regulations before any Contract funds are payable.  

b. As a minimum, invoices shall include: (i) name, address, and telephone number of Contractor and similar 
information in the event payment is to be made to a different address; (ii) County Contract or Purchase 
Order number; (iii) identification of products or services as outlined in this Contract; (iv) quantity or 
quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount; and (v) any additional payment 
information called for by this Contract. County will not pay invoices that are in excess of the amount 
authorized by the purchase order. 

c. Payment shall be made by check or warrant by County upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance of 
products and services and submission of an invoice to the address below: 
County Auditor 
712 S Stagecoach Trail, Suite 1071 
San Marcos, Texas 78666 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 13 of 39 

d. Payment shall be deemed to have been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. For 
purposes of payment discounts, time will begin upon satisfactory delivery of products and services 
and/or submission of acceptable invoice, whichever is last.  Partial payments will not be made unless 
specifically requested and approved by County prior to Contract award. 

e. Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Tex. Gov't Code Ann., ch. 
2251. 
 

5. COUNTY TAXES: If the Contractor subsequently becomes delinquent in the payment of County taxes, it will be 
grounds for cancellation of the contract.   Despite anything to the contrary, if the contractor is delinquent in 
payment of County property taxes at the time of invoicing, Contractor assigns any payments to be made for 
performance under this contract to the County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of delinquent taxes. 
 

6. PROMPT PAYMENT ACT: TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., ch 2251 (Vernon Supp. 1995) requires that payments be made 
within 30 calendar days.  If County fails to pay within 30 days, interest on overdue amounts is subject to Chapter 
2251, Texas Government Code.  The law does not apply if the terms of a federal grant, contract, regulation, or 
statute prevent local governments from making timely payments with federal funds.  Contractors and 
subcontractors must pay their suppliers interest if the supplier is not paid within 10 calendar days after the 
contractor or subcontractor receives payment.  Contractors must apply for interest payments within 6 months 
of submitting a proper invoice if they believe such interest was due but not paid.  Interest begins accruing 30 
days after either of the following, whichever is later; (i) satisfactory delivery or performance has been 
completed, or, (ii) a correct invoice is received at the designated place. 
 

7. FOB POINT: Delivery of all products under this contract, if any, shall be made Free on Board to final destination, 
at the address shown in this contract or as indicated on each Purchase Order placed against this contract.  The 
title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to County until acceptance takes place at the F.O.B. point. 
 

8. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: The County office or department receiving items pursuant to this contract shall 
inspect and accept only those items that are satisfactory to them, and reject those items which are damaged or 
which do not conform to specifications.  Contractor shall be responsible for the proper labeling, packing, and 
delivery to final destination, including replacement of rejected deliveries. 
 

9. VARIATION IN QUANTITY: No variation in the quantity of any item called for by this contract will be accepted 
unless such variation has been caused by conditions of loading, shipping, or packing, or allowances in 
manufacturing processes, and then only to the extent, if any, specified elsewhere in this contract. 
 

10. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT: If a member of Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative association, the 
County may purchase equipment or supplies from the association only if no member of the Commissioners 
Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected in an increase in dividends 
distributed generally to members of the association. 
 

11. NONDISCRIMINATION; CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE:  
a. Contractor shall not engage in employment practices that have the effect of discriminating against 

employees or prospective employees because of age, race, color, sex, creed, national origin or 
handicapped condition.  

b. Contractor shall provide all services and activities required in a manner that would comply with the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and 
with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] if 
Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws. 
 

12. CHANGES: 
a. This Contract may be amended only by written instrument signed by both County and Contractor. It is 

acknowledged by Contractor that NO OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 14 of 39 

HAS ANY AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO CHANGE THE SCOPE OF THIS CONTRACT OR 
OTHERWISE AMEND THIS CONTRACT, OR ANY ATTACHMENTS HERETO, UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED 
THAT AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

b. Contractor shall submit all requests for changes to this Contract or any attachment(s) to it to the 
Purchasing Manager. The Purchasing Manager shall present Contractor's requests to Commissioners 
Court for consideration. 

13. REPRESENTATIONS: 
a.  Contractor represents that he has thoroughly examined the drawings, specifications, schedule, 

instructions and all other contract documents. Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be 
thoroughly informed regarding plant and facilities for delivery of material, equipment and/or services as 
required by the proposal conditions. 

b. The Contractor's delivery time includes weekends and holidays. 
c. Contractor certifies that he is a qualified, bondable business entity that he is not in receivership or 

contemplates it, and has not filed for bankruptcy.  He further certifies that the Company, Corporation, 
Partnership, or Sole Proprietorship is not delinquent with respect to payment of County property taxes. 

d. Contractor warrants that all applicable patents and copyrights which may exist on items that will be 
supplied under the contract have been adhered to and further warrants that County shall not be liable 
for any infringement of those rights.   Warranties granted County shall apply for the duration of this 
contract or for the life of equipment or supplies purchased, whichever is longer.  County must not 
extend use of the granted exclusive rights to any other than County employees or those with whom 
County has established a relationship aimed at furthering the public interest, and then only for official 
public uses.  County will not knowingly or intentionally violate any applicable patent, license, or 
copyright.  Contractor must indemnify County, its officers, agents, and employees against all claims, 
suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees 
arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses or copyrights 
applicable to items sold. 

e. The Contractor warrants that upon execution of a contract with the County, he will not engage in 
employment practices which have the effect of discriminating against employees or prospective 
employees because of age, religion, race, color, sex, creed, handicap, or national origin and will submit 
reports as the County may require to assure compliance. 

f. Contractor warrants to County that all items delivered and all services rendered will conform to the 
specifications, drawings, or other descriptions furnished or incorporated by reference, and will be of 
merchantable quality, good workmanship, and free from defects.  Contractor further agrees to provide 
copies of applicable warranties or guarantees to the Purchasing Manager.  Copies will be provided 
within 10 days after the Notice of Award is issued.  Return of merchandise under warranty shall be at 
Contractor's expense. 
 

14. SUBCONTRACTS: 
a. Contractor shall not enter into any subcontracts for any service or activity relating to the performance of 

this Contract without the prior written approval or the prior written waiver of this right of approval from 
County.  IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR 
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS THE AUTHORITY TO GRANT SUCH APPROVAL OR WAIVER UNLESS 
EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT SPECIFIC AUTHORITY BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT. 

b. If a subcontract is approved, Contractor must make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and 
reasonable steps to insure HUBs maximum opportunity to be subcontractors under this Contract.  
Contractor must obtain County approval of all proposed HUB subcontractors through the Purchasing 
Manager.  Failure by Contractor to make a good faith effort to employ HUBs as subcontractors 
constitutes a breach of this Contract and may result in termination of this Contract. 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT: 

a. The parties to this Contract shall not assign any of the rights or obligation hereunder without the prior 
written consent of the other party.  No official, employee, representative or agent of County has the 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 15 of 39 

authority to approve any assignment under this Contract unless that specific authority is expressly 
granted by Commissioners Court. 

b. The terms, provisions, covenants, obligations and conditions of this Contract are binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the successors in interest and the assigns of the parties to this Contract if the 
assignment or transfer is made in compliance with the provisions of this Contract. 

c. Contractor remains responsible for the performance of this Contract when there is a change of name or 
change of ownership. If a change of name is required, the Purchasing Manager shall be notified 
immediately.  No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by 
Commissioners Court. 
 

16. DISPUTES AND APPEALS: The Purchasing Manager acts as the County representative in the issuance and 
administration of this contract in relation to disputes.  Any document, notice, or correspondence not issued by 
or to the Purchasing Manager or other authorized County person, in relation to disputes is void unless otherwise 
stated in this contract.  If the Contractor does not agree with any document, notice, or correspondence issued 
by the Purchasing Manager, or other authorized County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to 
the Purchasing Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence, 
outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is not resolved to the Contractor’s satisfaction, 
Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing 
Manager, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply.  
Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court. 
 

17. MEDIATION: When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Agreement, 
the parties agree to use a mutually agreed upon mediator, or a person appointed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, for mediation as described in Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code.  Unless 
both parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding 
resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as 
described in §154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless both parties agree, in writing, to 
waive the confidentiality. 
 

18. FORCE MAJEURE:  If the performance by either party of any of its obligations under this Contract is interrupted 
or delayed due to an act of God or the common enemy or as the result of war, riot, civil commotion, sovereign 
conduct, or the act or conduct of any person or persons not a party to this Contract, then it shall be excused 
from performance for such period of time as is reasonably necessary to remedy the effects thereof. 
 

19. NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT: 
a. No payment, act or omission by County may constitute or be construed as a waiver of any breach or 

default of Contractor which then exists or may subsequently exist. No official, agent, employee or 
representative of County may waive any breach of any term or condition of this Contract unless 
expressly granted that specific authority by the Commissioners Court. 

b. All rights of County under this Contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall 
not impair or prejudice any remedy or fight to County under it. Any right or remedy in this Contract shall 
not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or under any law, nor shall 
any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies. 

 
20. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:  Failure by either County or Contractor to perform any provisions of this Contract 

shall constitute a breach of contract. Either party may require corrective action within ten (10) calendar days 
after date of receipt of written notice citing the exact nature of the other's breach. Failure to take corrective 
action or failure to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing such failure within the ten (10) calendar days 
shall constitute a default. The defaulting party shall be given a twenty (20) calendar day period within which to 
show cause why this Contract shall not be terminated for default. All notices for corrective action, breach, 
default or show cause on behalf of County shall be issued by the Purchasing Manager or County legal 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 16 of 39 

representative only, and all replies to the same shall be made in writing to the County Purchasing Manager or 
County legal representative at the address provided herein.  Notices issued by or to anyone other than the 
Purchasing Manager or County legal representative shall be null and void, and shall be considered as not having 
been issued or received. County reserves the right to enforce the performance of this Contract in any manner 
prescribed by law in case of default and may contract with another party with or without competition or further 
notification to the contractor. At a minimum, Contractor shall be required to pay any difference in the cost of 
securing the services covered by this Contract, or compensate for any loss or damage to the County derived 
hereunder if it becomes necessary to contract with another source because of a default, plus reasonable 
administrative costs and attorney's fees. In the event of termination for default, County, its agents or 
representatives, shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated under this Contract. 
 

21. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  County reserves the right to terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) days 
written notice for any reason deemed by the Commissioners Court to serve the public interest, or resulting from 
any governmental law, ordinance, regulation, or court order. Termination for convenience shall not be exercised 
with the sole intention of awarding the same or similar contract requirements to another source. In the event of 
such termination, County shall pay Contractor those costs directly attributable to work done in preparation for 
compliance with this Contract prior to termination; provided, however, that no costs shall be paid which are 
recoverable in the normal course of the business in which Contractor is engaged, nor shall County pay any costs 
which can be mitigated through the sale of supplies or inventories. If County pays for the cost of supplies or 
materials obtained for use under this Contract those supplies or materials shall become the property of County 
and shall be delivered to the FOB point shown in this Contract, or as designated by the Purchasing Manager. 
County shall not be liable for loss of any profits anticipated under this Contract. 
 

22. GRATUITIES:  Contractor shall not provide any gratuity in any form, including entertainment, gifts, or otherwise, 
to any employee, buyer, agent, or representative of County with a view to securing a contract, or securing 
favorable treatment with respect to the award or amendment, or the making of any determination with respect 
to the performance of this Contract. County may terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities of any kind 
including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the 
Contractor, to any County Official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect of 
this contract. If this Contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall be entitled, in 
addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from the Contractor at least three times the cost incurred 
by Contractor in providing the gratuities. 
 

23. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:  Contractor represents and warrants that no persons or selling agency 
has been retained to solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained 
by the Contractor to secure business. For breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to 
terminate this Contract without liability, or in its discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract 
price for consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee. 
 

24.  COUNTY ACCESS:  Contractor shall maintain and make available for inspection, audit or reproduction by any 
authorized representative of County all books, documents, and other evidence pertinent to the costs and 
expenses of this Contract, including but not limited to both direct and indirect costs, cost of labor, material, 
equipment, supplies, and services, and all other costs and expenses of whatever nature for which 
reimbursement is claimed under this Contract. All required records shall be maintained until an audit is 
completed and all required questions arising therefrom are resolved, or three (3) years after completion of the 
contract term, whichever occurs first; provided, however, the records will be retained beyond the third year if 
an audit is in progress or the finding of a completed audit have not been resolved satisfactorily. 
 

25. FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT: 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 17 of 39 

a. The selected Offeror must forfeit all benefits of the contract and County must retain all performance by 
the selected Offeror Contractor and recover all consideration or the value of all consideration paid to 
the selected Offeror pursuant to the contract if: 

b. The selected Offeror was doing business at the time of submitting its proposal offer or had done 
business during the 365- day period immediately prior to the date on which its proposal offer was due 
with one or more Key Contracting Persons if the selected Offeror failed to disclose the name of any such 
Key Contracting Person in its offer; or  

c. The selected Offeror does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which the offer that 
resulted in the contract is submitted and prior to full performance of the contract. 

 
26. CONTRACTOR CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: 

a. If any claim, or other action, that relates to Contractor’s performance under this Contract, including 
proceedings before an administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or 
other entity against Contractor, Contractor shall give written notice to County of the following 
information within ten (10) working days after being notified of it: 

i. The existence of the claim, or other action; 
ii. The name and address of the person, firm, corporation or their entity that made a claim or that 

instituted any type of action or proceeding; 
iii. The alleged basis of the claim, action or proceeding; 
iv. The court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding was 

instituted; and 
v. The name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made. 

b. Except as otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers received 
by Contractor with respect to making these claims or actions and all court pleadings related to the 
defense of these claims or actions. 

 
27. CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY: This provision applies if the anticipated Contract exceeds $100,000.  By 

submitting a bid or proposal in response to this solicitation, the bidder/respondent certifies that at the time of 
submission, he/she is not on the Federal Government’s Excluded Parties List System (www.epls.gov), which 
details a listing of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors.  In the event of placement on the list between 
the time of bid/proposal submission and time of award, the bidder/respondent will notify the Hays County 
Purchasing Manager.  Failure to do so may result in terminating this Contract for default. 
 

28. CONTRACTOR LIABILITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND CLAIMS NOTIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify County, its 
officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all third party claims, losses, damages, causes of 
action, suits, and liability of every kind whether meritorious or not and, including all expenses of litigation, court 
costs, and reasonable attorney's fees, arising in connection with the services provided by Contractor under this 
Contract.  It is the expressed intention of the Parties to this Contract, both Contractor and County, that the 
indemnity provided for in this paragraph is indemnity by Contractor to indemnify and protect County from the 
consequences of Contractor's actions. 
 

29. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT: 
a. This Contract is governed by the laws of the United States of America and the State of Texas and all 

obligations under this Contract are performable in Hays County, Texas. Venue for any dispute arising out 
of this Contract will lie in the appropriate court of Hays County, Texas. 

b. If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it shall remain valid and binding. 

c. Headings and titles at the beginning of the various provisions of this Contract have been included only to 
make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that part, section or subsection and are not to be 
used in construing this Contract. 

d. When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be computed to exclude the first day 
and include the last day of period. If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a day that 

http://www.epls.gov/


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 18 of 39 

Hays County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days shall be omitted from the 
computation. All hours in this Contract are stated in Central Standard Time from 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the 
first Sunday of November until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March and in Central Daylight 
Saving Time from 2:00 o' clock a.m. on the second Sunday of March until 2:00 o'clock a.m. on the first 
Sunday of November or such other dates as may be adopted for the activation of Daylight Savings Time 
in the United States in future years.  

e. Words of any gender in this Contract shall be construed to include any other gender and words in either 
number shall be construed to include the other unless the context clearly requires otherwise. 

f. Provisions, Words, Phrases, and Statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or by reference, shall be 
applied to this Contract in accordance with Texas Government Code, §§ 312.002 and 312.003.  

 
30. ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

a. Contractor must comply with all Federal and State laws and regulations, City and County ordinances, 
orders, and regulations, relating in any way to this Contract. 

b. Contractor must secure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary 
for lawful operations. 

c. Contractor must pay all taxes and license fees imposed by the Federal and the State Governments and 
their agencies and political subdivisions upon the property and business of Contractor. 

d. Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Contractor is delinquent in payment of property 
taxes at the time of providing services, Contractor assigns the amount of any payment to be made for 
services provided under this Contract equal to the amount Contractor is delinquent in property tax 
payments to the Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the delinquent taxes. 

e. In this subsection, "County Building" means any County-owned buildings and does not include buildings 
leased by County.  Contractor must not execute any mortgage, or issue any bonds, shares of stock, or 
other evidence of interest in County Buildings.  

 
31. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT: 

a. This document contains the entire agreement between the parties relating to the rights granted and the 
obligations assumed.  Any prior agreements or representations not expressly set forth in this agreement 
are of no force.  Any oral representations or modifications concerning this agreement shall be of no 
force except a subsequent modification in writing signed by the Purchasing Manager.  No official, 
representative, employee, or agent of the County has any authority to modify or amend this contract 
except pursuant to specific authority to do so granted by the Commissioners Court. 

b. If inconsistency exists between provisions of this solicitation, the inconsistency shall be resolved by 
giving precedence in the following ascending order of precedence: 

i. The Schedule of Items/Services 
ii. Terms and Conditions of Request for Proposals; 

iii. General Provisions; 
iv. Other provisions, whether incorporated by reference or otherwise; and 
v. The specifications. 

c. If any contract provision shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision, and this contract shall be 
construed as if invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained. 

d. This contract shall be governed by the laws of Texas and all obligations are performable in Hays County, 
Texas. 

e. If a word is used with reference to a particular trade or subject matter or is used as a word of art, the 
word shall have the meaning given by experts in that particular field. 

f. Words in the present or past tense include the future tense.  The singular includes the plural and the 
plural includes the singular.  The masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter genders. 

g. The headings in this contract have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject covered by 
each provision and are not to be used in construing this contract. 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 19 of 39 

h. Provisions, words, phrases, and statutes, whether incorporated by actual use or by reference, shall be 
applied to this contract in accordance with TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN., SEC 312.002, 312.003 (Vernon 1991). 

 
32. MODIFICATIONS: 

a. The County Purchasing Manager may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if 
any, make changes within the general scope of this contract in any one of the following: 

i. Drawings, designs or specifications when the supplies to be furnished are to be specifically 
manufactured for the County in accordance with the drawings, designs, or specifications. 

ii. Method of shipment or packing. 
iii. Place of deliveries. 
iv. Correction of errors of a general administrative nature or other mistakes, the correction of 

which does not affect the scope of the contract, or does not result in expense to the Contractor. 
v. Description of items to be provided. 

vi. Time of performance (i.e. hours of day, days of week, etc) 
b. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or time required for, performance of 

any part of the work under this contract whether, or not changed by the order, the Commissioners 
Court shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both, and shall 
modify the contract.  The Contractor must submit any "proposal for adjustment" under this clause 
within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the written order.  However, if the County 
Purchasing Manager decides that the facts justify it, the County Purchasing Manager may receive and 
act upon a proposal submitted before final payment of the contract.  If the Contractor's proposal 
includes the cost of property made obsolete or excess by the change, the County shall have the right to 
prescribe the manner of disposition of the property.  Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a 
dispute under the Disputes and Appeals clause.  However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the 
Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.  

 
33. PRICE CHANGES: The prices offered shall remain firm for the period of the contract.  The prices offered shall also 

remain firm for the option years should the County choose to exercise the option to renew, except for changes 
that are industry wide and beyond the control of the contractor.  Any price increase proposed must be 
submitted forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the anniversary date of the annual term contract and shall be 
supported with proper documentation.  Hays County will have fifteen (15) days, from the receipt of proposed 
price increases, to review any proposed price increases and reserves the right to approve or disapprove any 
request for increased prices.  If Hays County disapproves the proposed price increases, the County will issue an 
intent to terminate, and the contract will not be renewed. 
 

34. INSURANCE AND LIABILITY: During the period of this contract, contractor shall maintain at his expense, 
insurance with limits not less than those prescribed below.  With respect to required insurance, Contractor shall; 

a. Name County as additional insured as its interests may appear. 
b. Provide County a waiver of subrogation. 
c. Provide County with a thirty (30) calendar day advance written notice of cancellation or material change 

to said insurance. 
d. Provide the County Purchasing Manager at the address shown on Page 1 of this contract, a Certificate of 

Insurance evidencing required coverage within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of Notice of Award. 
Also, please assure your certificate contains the contract number as indicated on the Contract Award 
form when issued by Hays County. 

e. Submit an original certificate of insurance reflecting coverage as follows: 
 

Automobile Liability: 
Bodily Injury (Each person) $1,000,000.00 

Bodily Injury (Each accident) $1,000,000.00 
Property Damage $1,000,000.00 

 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 20 of 39 

Commercial General Liability (Including Contractual Liability): 
General Aggregate $2,000,000.00 

Product completed operations aggregate $2,000,000.00 
Bodily Injury (Each accident) $2,000,000.00 

Property Damage $2,000,000.00 
 
Employers Liability: 

Each accident $1,000,000.00 
Each employee for disease $1,000,000.00 

Policy limit for disease $1,000,000.00 
 
Excess Liability: 

Umbrella Form  $1,000,000.00 
 
Labor Liability: 

Worker's Compensation Meeting Statutory 
Requirements 

 
  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 21 of 39 

V.      Vendor Reference Form 

Please list three (3) references of current customers who can verify the quality of service your company provides.  The 
County prefers customers of similar size and scope of work to this proposal/bid.  This form must be returned with your 
bid/proposal. 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Contact Person and Title:  __________________________________________________________________________  
 
Phone Number:  __________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Scope & Duration of Contract:  ______________________________________________________________________  
 
Email: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REFERENCE ONE 

REFERENCE TWO 

REFERENCE THREE 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 22 of 39 

VI. Certificate of Interested Parties 
 

In 2015, the Texas Legislature adopted House Bill 1295, which added 2252.908 to the Texas Government Code and 
applies to all contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2016. Section 2252.908 (b)(1)(2) applies only to a contract of a 
governmental entity or state agency that requires an action or vote by the governing body of the entity or agency before 
the contract may be signed or that has a value of at least $1 million. In addition, pursuant to Section 2252.908 (d), a 
governmental entity or state agency may not enter into a contract described by Subsection (b) with a business entity 
unless the business entity, in accordance with this section and rules adopted under this section, submits a disclosure of 
interested parties to the governmental entity or state agency at the time the business entity submits the signed contract 
to the governmental entity or state agency. 

With regard to Hays County purchases, a vendor or other person who is awarded a contract or purchase approved by 
Hays County Commissioners Court is required to electronically complete a Form 1295 through the Texas Ethics 
Commission website at https://ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm and submit a signed copy of the 
form to the Hays County Purchasing office. A contract, including County issued purchase order (if applicable), will not be 
enforceable or legally binding until the County received and acknowledges receipt of the properly completed Form 1295 
from the awarded vendor. 

If you do not have access to the link provided above please or have any questions please contact Purchasing at 512-393-
2267. 

https://ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm


IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 23 of 39 

VII. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 24 of 39   



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 25 of 39 

VIII. CODE OF ETHICS FOR HAYS COUNTY 
Public employment is a public trust. It is the policy of Hays County to promote and balance the objective of protecting 
government integrity and the objective of facilitating the recruitment and retention of personnel needed by Hays 
County. Such a policy implemented by prescribing essential standards of ethical conduct without creating unnecessary 
obstacles to entering public services. 

Public servants must discharge their duties impartially so as to assure fair competitive access to governmental 
procurement by responsible contractors. Moreover, they should conduct themselves in such a manner as to foster 
public confidence in the integrity of the Hays County procurement organization. 

To achieve the purpose of this article, it is essential that those doing business with Hays County also observe the ethical 
standards prescribed here. 

It shall be a breach of ethics to attempt to influence any public employee, elected official or department head to breach 
the standards of ethical conduct set forth in this code. 

It shall be a breach of ethics for any employee of Hays County or a vendor doing business with the county to participate 
directly or indirectly in a procurement when the employee or vendor knows that: 

The employee or any member of the employee’s immediate family, or household has a substantial financial interest 
pertaining to the procurement. This means ownership of 10% or more of the company involved and/or ownership of 
stock or other interest or such valued at $2500.00 or more. 

A business or organization in which the employee, or any member of the employee’s immediate family, has a financial 
interest pertaining to the procurement. 

Gratuities: It shall be a breach of ethics to offer, give or agree to give any employee of Hays County or for any employee 
to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from a vendor, a gratuity of consequence or any offer of employment in 
connection with any decision approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation or any part of a program 
requirement or purchase request influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of 
advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or controversy, any particular matter 
pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal therefore pending 
before this government. 

Kickbacks: It shall be a breach of ethics for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of 
a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor for any contract for Hays County 
as an inducement for the award of a contract or order. 

Contract Clause: The prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks prescribed above shall be conspicuously set forth in 
every contract and solicitation therefore. 

Any effort to influence any employee, elected official, or department head to violate the standards of the code is 
grounds to void the contract. Please certify, by your signature below, that you understand the ethics policy of Hays 
County and in no way will attempt to violate the code. 

 

SIGNATURE: __________________________________________________________ 

PRINT NAME & TITLE: _________________________________________________ 

COMPANY NAME: _____________________________________________________  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 26 of 39 

IX. Hays County Practices Related to Historically Underutilized Businesses 

1. STATEMENT OF PRACTICES 

Hays County will strive to ensure that all businesses, regardless of size, economic, social or ethnic status have 
an equal opportunity to participate in the County’s procurement processes. The County is committed to 
promote full and equal business opportunity for all businesses to supply the goods and services needed to 
support the mission and operations of county government, and seeks to encourage the use of certified 
historically underutilized businesses (HUB’s) through the use of race, ethnic and gender neutral means. It is 
the practice of Hays County to involve certified HUBs to the greatest extent feasible in the County’s 
procurement of goods, equipment, services and construction projects while maintaining competition and 
quality of work standards. The County affirms the good faith efforts who recognize and practice similar 
business standards. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

Historically underutilized businesses (HUBs), also known as a disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE), are 
generally business enterprises at least 51% of which is owned and the management and daily business 
operations are controlled by one or more persons who is/are socially and economically disadvantaged 
because of his/her identification as a member of certain groups, including women, Black Americans, Mexican 
Americans, and other Americans if Hispanic origin, Asian Americans and American Indians. 

Businesses include firms, corporations, sole proprietorships, vendors, suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, 
professionals and other similar references when referring to a business that provides goods and/or services 
regardless of the commodity category. 

Certified HUB’s include business enterprises that meet the definition of a HUB and who meet the certification 
requirements of certification agencies recognized by Hays County, as expressed below. 

Statutory bid limit refers to the Texas Local Government Code provision that requires competitive bidding 
for many items valued at greater than $50,000. 

3. GUIDELINES 

a. Hays County, its contractors, their subcontractors and suppliers, as well as all vendors of goods, 
equipment and services, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, gender, age, 
religion, national origin, citizenship, mental or physical disability, veteran’s status or political 
affiliation in the award and/or performance of contracts. All entities doing business or 
anticipating doing business with the County shall support, encourage and implement affirmative 
steps toward a common goal of establishing equal opportunity for all citizens and businesses of 
the County. 

b. Vendors and/or contractors desiring to participate in the HUB program must successfully 
complete the certification process with the State of Texas or Texas Unified Certification 
Program. The vendor or contractor is also required to hold a current valid certification (title) 
from either of these entities. 

c. Vendors and/or contractors must be registered with the State Comptroller’s web-based HUB 
directory and with the Comptroller’s Centralized Master Bidder’s List (CMBL). Hays County 
will solicit bids from certified HUB’s for state purchasing and public works contracts. 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 27 of 39 

4. Hays County will actively seek and encourage HUBs to participate in all facets of the procurement 
process by: 

a. Continuing to increase and monitor a database of certified HUB vendors, professionals and 
contractors. The database will be expanded to include products, areas of expertise and 
capabilities of each HUB firm. 

b. Continuing to seek new communication links with HUB vendors, professionals and contractors to 
involve them in the procurement process. 

c. Continuing to advertise bids on the County’s website and in the newspapers including 
newspapers that target socially and economically disadvantaged communities. 

5. As prescribed by law, the purchase of one or more items costing in excess of the statutory bid limit 
must comply with the competitive bid process. Where possible, those bids will be structured to include 
and encourage the participation of HUB firms in the procurement process by: 

a. Division of proposed requisitions into reasonable lots in keeping with industry standards and 
competitive bid requirements. 

b. Where feasible, assessment of bond and insurance requirements and the designing of such 
requirements to reasonably permit more than one business to perform the work. 

c. Specifications of reasonable, realistic delivery schedules consistent with the County’s actual 
requirements. 

d. Specifications, terms and conditions reflecting the County’s actual requirements are clearly 
stated, and do not impose unreasonable or unnecessary contract requirements. 

6. A HUB practice statement shall be included in all specifications. The County will consider the bidder’s 
responsiveness to the HUB Practices in the evaluation of bids and proposals. Failure to demonstrate a 
good faith effort to comply with the County’s HUB practices may result in a bid or proposal being 
considered non-responsive to specifications. 

7. Nothing in this practice statement shall be construed to require the County to award a contract other 
than to the lowest responsive bidder as required by law. This practice is narrowly tailored in accordance 
with applicable law. 

 

Please sign for acknowledgement of the Hays County HUB Practices: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ ___________________________ 
Signature Date 

  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 28 of 39 

X. Hays County House Bill 89 Verification 
 
 
I, _____________________________________ (Person name), the undersigned representative of 

________________________________(Company or Business name, hereafter referred to as Company) being an adult 

over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, after being duly sworn by the undersigned notary, do hereby depose and 

verify under oath that the company named above, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, Government Code Chapter 

2270: 

1. Does not boycott Israel currently; and 
2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code: 

1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 
that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or 
with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action 
made for ordinary business purposes; and 

2. “Company” means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or any limited liability company, including a wholly 
owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those entities or business 
associations that exist to make a profit. 

 

______________________________________ ____________________ 
Signature of Company Representative Date 

 
On this _____ day of ____________________, 20____, personally appeared ________________________________, the 

above-named person, who after by me being duly sworn, did swear and confirm that the above is true and correct. 

 
NOTARY SEAL ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 ____________________________________ 
 Date 
 

  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 29 of 39 

XI. Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organization Certification (TGC 2252) 
 

I certify that the company named below (“Company”) do hereby declare, represent, and verify that the Company, under 
the provisions of Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• will not do business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization; and 
• will not do business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization during the term of the contract. 

 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152 and Section 2252.153, certify that the company 
named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies 
that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further certify that should the above-
named company enter into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State 
of Texas which do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the Hays 
County Purchasing Department. 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 

 

Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 
 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152 and Section 2252.153, certify that the company 
named above is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies 
that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153, and I have ascertained that the above-
named company is not contained on said listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number 

 

 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 30 of 39 

XII. Israel Boycott Certification (TGC 2271.002) 
 

I certify that the company named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning 
the listing of companies that are identified as boycotting Israel, and verify that the Company, under the provisions of 
Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• does not boycott Israel currently; and 
• will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.  

 

Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code:  
1. “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 

that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or 
with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action 
made for ordinary business purposes; and  

2. “Company” means a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exist to 
make a profit.  
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Exclusion from Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code 

I certify that the company named below declare, represents, and verifies that the Company is excluded from Chapter 
2271 because the contract in question: 

□ will be between a governmental entity and a company with fewer than 10 full-time employees 
□ will have a value of less than $100,000 that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 
entity; or 
□ will be between a governmental entity and a sole proprietor. 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name         Date 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 

On this day, the Purchasing Representative for Hays County in San Marcos, Texas, pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
Chapter 2271, certify that I did review the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of 
companies that are identified under Section 808 and I have ascertained that the above-named company is not contained 
on said listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number   



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 31 of 39 

XIII. Prohibition of Energy Company Boycott Certification (TGC 2274) 
 

I certify that the company named below is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning 
the listing of companies that are identified as boycotting energy companies, and verify that the Company, under the 
provisions of Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code, as amended: 

• Does not boycott energy companies currently; and 
• Will not boycott energy companies during the term of the contract. 

Pursuant to Chapter 2274 and Section 809.001 of the Texas Government Code:  
1. “Boycott energy company” means, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating 

business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or 
limit commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration, production, 
utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to 
meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business with a company 
described by Paragraph (A).  

2. “Company” means a for-profit organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exist to 
make a profit.  
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Company Name         Date 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Exclusion from Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code 

I certify that the company named below declare, represents, and verifies that the Company is excluded from Chapter 
2274 because the contract in question: 

□ will be between a governmental entity and a company with fewer than 10 full-time employees 
□ will have a value of less than $100,000 that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 
entity; or 
□ will be between a governmental entity and a sole proprietor. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Company Name         Date 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Print Name of Company Representative      Signature of Company Representative 

 
Certification Check Performed by Hays County Purchasing 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2274, I certify that the company named above is not listed on the website 
of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.051, 
Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153, and I have ascertained that the above-named company is not contained on said 
listing of companies that boycott Israel. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Print Name of Hays County Purchasing Representative  Signature of Hays County Purchasing Representative 

_________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
Date        IFB/RFP/RFQ Number  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 32 of 39 

XIV. Debarment and Licensing Certification 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HAYS § 

I, the undersigned, being duly sworn or under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States and the State of 
Texas, certifies that Firm named herein below and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;  

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, 
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of 
federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a federal, state or local governmental 
entity with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; 

d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public (federal, state 
or local) transactions terminated for cause or default;  

e. Are registered and licensed in the State of Texas to perform the professional services which are necessary for 
the project; and 

f. Have not been disciplined or issued a formal reprimand by any State agency for professional accreditation within 
the past three years. 

 

_________________________________ 
Name of Firm 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of Certifying Official Title of Certifying Official 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Printed Name of Certifying Official Date 

Where the Firm is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such Firm shall attach an explanation to 
this certification. 

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me the undersigned authority by _____________________________________on this 
the day of _______, 20___, on behalf of said Firm. 

 ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 My commission expires: ________________  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 33 of 39 

XV. Vendor/Bidder’s Affirmation 
 

1. Vendor/Bidder affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this Contract, that this company, corporation, 
firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder, and that the contents 
of this bid as to price, terms or conditions of said bid have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by 
any employee or agent to any other person engages in this type of business prior to the official opening of this 
bid. 

2. Vendor/Bidder hereby assigns to Purchaser any and all claims for overcharges associated with this Contract 
which arise under the antitrust laws of the United States, 15 USCA Section 1 et seq., and which arise under the 
antitrust laws of the State of Texas, Tex. Bus. & Com. Code, Section 15.01, et seq. 

3. Pursuant to 262.0276 (a) of the Texas Local Government Code, Vendor/Bidder, hereby affirms that 
Vendor/Bidder: 

 _______ Does not own taxable property in Hays County, or; 

 _______ Does not owe any ad valorem taxes to Hays County or is not otherwise indebted to Hays County 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Name of Contracting Company 

If taxable property is owned in Hays County, list property ID numbers: 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________ 
Signature of Company Official Authorizing Bid/Offer 

____________________________________________ _________________________________ 
Printed Name Title 

____________________________________________ _________________________________ 
Email Address Phone  

  



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 34 of 39 

XVI. Related Party Disclosure Form 
 

Hays County strives to provide financial transparency to its taxpayers.  Completion of this form will allow for added 
transparency into the procurement process by disclosing Vendor relationships with current or former Hays County 
employees. The existence of a relationship may not present a legal or ethical conflict for a Vendor. However, disclosure 
will allow for consideration of potential conflicts and/or ways to eliminate conflicts.  

A Vendor who Employs any of the following is required to disclose the relationship on this form: 

• Current Hays County employee (including elected or appointed official) (Complete Section A) 
• Former Hays County employee who has been separated from Hays County for no less than four (4) years 

(including elected or appointed official) (Complete Section B) 
• Person related within the 2nd degree of consanguinity or affinity to either of the above(1) (Complete Section C) 

If no known relationships exist, complete Section D.  

This form is required to be completed in full and submitted with the proposal package. A submitted proposal package 
that does not include this completed form will be considered non-responsive and will not be eligible for an award.  

Attach additional pages if necessary. 

 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the information provided is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. 

Section A: Current Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee Name            Title 

 Section B: Former Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee Name            Title     Date of Separation from County 

 Section C: Person Related to Current or Former Hays County Employee 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Employee or Former Employee Name           Title    

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Related Person            Title                                                 Relationship 

 Section D: No Known Relationships 

If no relationships in accordance with the above exist or are known to exist, provide a written explanation below: 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 35 of 39 

_________________________________ 
Name of Vendor 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of Certifying Official Title of Certifying Official 

_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Printed Name of Certifying Official Date 

 

  (1)A degree of relationship is determined under Texas Government Code Chapter 573. (as outlined below) 

 

Relationship of Consanguinity 

 
Person 

1st Degree 2nd Degree 3rd Degree* 4th Degree* 

child or parent 
grandchild, sister, 
brother or grand-

parent 

great-grandchild, 
niece, nephew, 
aunt,* uncle* or 

great-grandparent 

great-great-
grandchild, 
grandniece, 

grandnephew, first 
cousin, great aunt,* 

great uncle* or great-
great-grandparent 

* An aunt, uncle, great aunt or great uncle is related to a person by consanguinity only if he or she is the 
sibling of the person's parent or grandparent. 

  

Relationship of Affinity 

 
Person 

1st Degree 2nd Degree 

spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-
law, daughter-in-law, stepson, stepdaughter, 

stepmother or stepfather 

brother-in-law, sister-in-law, spouse's 
grandparent, spouse's grandchild, grandchild's 

spouse or spouse of grandparent 

 

“Vendor” shall mean any individuals or entity that seeks to enter into a contract with Hays County. 

“Employs” shall mean any relationship wherein Vendor has made arrangements to compensate an individual, 
directly or by way of a business organization in which the individual has a sharehold or ownership interest, even if 
that arrangement is contractual and/or on an hourly-charge basis. 

 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 36 of 39 

XVII. FEDERAL AFFIRMATIONS AND SOLICITATION ACCEPTANCE 
 

In the event federal funds are used for payment of part or all of the consideration due under any contract resulting 
from this Solicitation Response, Respondent must execute this Federal Affirmation and Solicitation Acceptance, 
which shall constitute an agreement, without exception, to the following affirmations: 

 

1. Debarment and Suspension (2 CFR 180.220) 
Respondent certifies, by signing this Attachment, that neither it nor any of its principals or subcontractors are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to 
the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Order 12549 (3 C.F.R. Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) 
and 12689 (3 C.F.R. Part 1989 Comp., p. 235), Debarment and Suspension, 28 C.F.R. pt. 67, § 67.510, as 
published as pt. VII of the May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp. 19160-19211), and any relevant program-
specific regulations. This provision shall be required of every subcontractor receiving any payment in whole or 
in part from federal funds. 

2. Americans with Disabilities Act 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all terms, conditions, and requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and regulations adopted 
thereunder contained in 28 C.F.R. 26.101-36.999, inclusive, and any relevant program- specific regulations. 

3. Discrimination 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination.  These include, but are not limited to: 
a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 

color, or national origin; 
b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as    amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; 
c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of handicaps; 
d. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101- 6107), which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age; 
e. The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 

nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; 
f. The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 

1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; 

g. Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as 
amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; 

h. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; 

i. Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal 
assistance is being made; and 

j. The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to the application. 
 

4. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted 
construction contract” in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 
60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 
CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 
Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” 
 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 37 of 39 

5. Wages 
Under the Davis Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. 276a – 276a-5 (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148), as amended, and the regulations 
adopted thereunder contained in 29 C.F.R. pt. 1 and 5. When required by Federal program legislation, all 
prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor 
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors have a duty to and shall pay the prevailing wage rate specified 
in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage 
determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or 
subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity 
must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.  

6. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708)  
Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, 
as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each 
contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard 
work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is 
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and 
provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies 
or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission 
of intelligence. 
 

7. Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000, which is the inflation 
adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition 
Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or 
legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions 
and penalties as appropriate. 
 

8. All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal 
entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. 

 
9. Lobbying 

If Respondent, in connection with any resulting contract from this Solicitation, is a recipient of a Federal 
contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000 or a Federal loan or loan guarantee exceeding 
$150,000, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the new restrictions on lobbying contained in 
Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, which are implemented in 15 CFR Part 28. Respondent shall require 
that the certification language of Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code be included in the award documents 
for all subcontracts and require that all subcontractors submit certification and disclosure forms accordingly. 
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection 
with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are 
forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

10. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
 If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 38 of 39 

that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 
401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government 
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding 
agency. 
 

11. Minority and Women’s Businesses 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall take affirmative steps to assure that minority and women's 
businesses are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment, construction, and services, as 
detailed in the federal requirements relating to minority and women’s business enterprises: Executive Order 
11625 of October 13, 1971, 36 Fed. Reg. 19967, as amended by Executive Order No. 12007 of August 22, 
1977, 42 Fed. Reg. 42839; Executive Order No. 12432 of July 14, 1983, 48 Fed. Reg., 32551; and Executive 
Order No. 12138 of May 18, 1979, 44 Fed. Reg. 29637. 

12. Environmental Standards 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with environmental standards that may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: 
a. Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 

1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; 
b. Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
c. Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; 
d. Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; 
e. Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the 

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); 
f. Conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the 

Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C.§§7401 et seq.); 
g. Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the 

non- Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations 
must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). 

h. Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as 
amended (P.L. 93-523); and 

i. Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205). 

j. Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6201). 

k. A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its 
contractors must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only 
items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that 
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of 
the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded 

• $10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy 
and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for 
procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 

13. Historic Properties 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 



IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator   Page 39 of 39 

14. All Other Federal Laws 
Respondent and any potential subcontractors shall comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing the Solicitation. 

I have read, understand, and agree to comply with the Federal Affirmations specified above. Checking “YES” indicates 
acceptance, while checking “NO” denotes non-acceptance. 
 

YES__________ NO__________ 

Authorized Signature: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name & Title: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Respondent’s Tax ID: ___________________________________Telephone: ________________________________ 

If Respondent is a Corporation or other legal entity, please attach a corporate resolution or other 
appropriate official documentation that states that the person signing this Solicitation Response is an 
authorized person to sign for and legally bind the corporation or entity. 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 34.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Tammy Crumley

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the execution of a Contract Termination Notice to Waukesha-Pearce Industries, Inc. related to the Planned
Maintenance and Service Agreement for Countywide Generators maintenance and service repairs. 
BEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEYBEC ER R A/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
Countywide Operations is requesting to cancel the Planned Maintenance and Service Agreement for Countywide
Generator maintenance and repair services between Hays County and Waukesha-Pearce Industries, Inc. The
Commissioners Court approved Purchasing to obtain proposals for Countywide Generator Maintenance and Repair
Services and a new contract was executed, and the County needs to terminate this contract. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: None
Line Item Number: N/A

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: N/A
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: N/A
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: 30 day notice

Auditor's Office:Auditor's Office:
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: N/A
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Termination Letter - Waukesha-Pearce



July 30, 2024 

Waukesha-Pearce Industries, Inc. 
6450 North Loop 1604 East 
San Antonio, Texas 78247 

Re: Termination of Planned Maintenance and Service Agreement 

Dear Mr. Syzdek, 

Please accept this letter from me, on behalf of the Hays County Commissioners Court (the 
“County”), as the County’s notice to terminate our Planned Maintenance and Service Agreement 
(“the Agreement”) with you, executed on or about January 4, 2022, in relation to countywide 
generator maintenance and repair services. This notice is given in accordance with Section 5—
Term of the Agreement and is given at least thirty (30) days prior to our intended termination 
date of August 30, 2024. As such, please consider this Agreement terminated as of August 30, 
2024. 

Thank you for the service your team has provided to Hays County throughout previous years. 

Sincerely, 

Jordan Powell 
Civil First Assistant 
Hays County Criminal District Attorney’s Office 

Signature Company 

Printed Name Date 

Approved by the Hays 
County Commissioners 

Court on: 
Ruben Becerra 
Hays County Judge 

KELLY HIGGINS 
Criminal District Attorney 

Downtown Office 
Hays County Historical Courthouse 
111 E. San Antonio St., Suite 202 

San Marcos, Texas  78666 
(512) 393-2219

(512) 392-6500 FAX



EXHIBIT A













AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 35.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Sherri Tibbe

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the District Court to accept a proposal from Beckwith Electronics System related to the purchase of one Digital
Document Camera; authorize a discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 262.024 (a)(7)
(D) and amend the budget accordingly.  SH ELL/TIBBESH ELL/TIBBE

Summary:Summary:
The District Court is requesting to purchase an additional Digital Document Camera from Beckwith Electronics
System.  Beckwith Electronic Systems does not currently have a contract covering this item which is compatible with the
current system installed in the District Courtrooms, and the purchase requires a discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas
Local Government Code 262.024 (a)(7)(D) captive replacement parts or components for equipment.    

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $4,908
Line Item Number: 001-608-00.5712_400

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Item was approved in the budget, amendment is needed in order to properly capitalize the equipment.
$4,908 - Increase Computer Equipment_Operating 001-608-00.5712_400
($4,908) - Decrease Computer Equipment_Capital 001-608-00.5712_700

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: discretionary exemption pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 262.024 (a)(7)(D) captive replacement
parts or components for equipment

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Beckwith - District Court Digital Camera
Discretionary Exemption Certification



 

SOLD TO PROJECT LOCATION

Hays County Government Center Hays Co Govt Center

610 Stagecoach Trail  712 South Stagecoach Trail

San Marcos, TX 78666 San Marcos,TX 78666

ATTN Tim Shaffer

Tel # 5129262000

TRADE TERMS

Net 30 days F.O.B. Jobsite 

Qty Model # Manufactuer Description

1 PX-30E Elmo Document Camera, 4K video/12MP stills

Total Cost - Digital Document Camera (per unit)  4,908.00$     

Equipment Price  4,826.00$             

Labor Price  82.00$                  

Exclusions:

1

2

Proposal

DATE: 30-Apr-24

Customer Reference Name          Hays Co Govt Center - Document Cameras

Proposal Number          FA-BESLLC-2023-1420

PAYMENT TERMS

Scope Of Work:

Price includes Elmo PX-30E digital document camera (per unit) as a recommended replacement for the discontinued P100HD models we have provided previously.  

Check-out/connectivity with the existing AV systems will be verified on site.  As operation of this unit is slightly different from the P100HD, owner training is included.

All the rough-in equipment , J-boxes, painted j-boxes, conduit, inner duct, stub ups, bushings, access panels, all penetrations (including fire, roof, and 

non-roof penetrations, etc), all caulking/stopping (including fire, smoke, sound, etc), any required lifts, hoisting, or scaffolding and 120vac will be 

provided and installed by others.

All Beckwith work will be done during normal working hours, Monday thru Friday, 7:30am to 4:00pm.  If overtime is required due to a contractor failing 

to complete their work in a timely fashion, or for whatever reason, Beckwith's additional labor costs shall be considered an "additional charge" and 

charged to the  customer.



 

SOLD TO PROJECT LOCATION

Hays County Government Center Hays Co Govt Center

610 Stagecoach Trail  712 South Stagecoach Trail

San Marcos, TX 78666 San Marcos,TX 78666

ATTN Tim Shaffer

Tel # 5129262000

TRADE TERMS

Net 30 days F.O.B. Jobsite 

Proposal

DATE: 30-Apr-24

Customer Reference Name          Hays Co Govt Center - Document Cameras

Proposal Number          FA-BESLLC-2023-1420

PAYMENT TERMS

Terms:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Warranty:

DISCLAIMER AND EXCLUSION OF WARRANTIES:

Insurance:

For the work contracted with Beckwith, Beckwith agrees to provide Contractor with a Certificate of Insurance with following limits:

A.M. Best Rating A (Excellent) XV ($2 Billion or Greater)

General Liability 

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence

$2,000,000 Aggregate/Per Project

$2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations

$1,000,000 Personal Advertising Liability

$300,000 Fire Legal Liability/Damage to premises rented to you

Unpaid invoices greater than sixty (60) days past due may result in lien on property. If an affidavit claiming a lien is filed, a $500 filing/release of lien 

fee will be due prior to any lien being released.

Upon credit approval; terms are net upon receipt.

1.5% per month (18%annualy) will be charged on all past due invoices, 30 days from invoice date.

Return goods are subject to 25% restocking charges and no credit will be allowed on goods returned without written authorization from Beckwith.

F.O.B.: Jobsite

This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date herein.  

Beckwith provides a one (1) year non-transferable warranty from the date of substantial completion or the owner getting beneficial use of the system or 

from the date of the final fire inspection.

There are no warranties extending beyond the description or face hereof. Any implied warranty of merchantability and/or of fitness for a particular 

purpose are hereby excluded and disclaimed. In case of defects or alleged defects, the damages claimed shall be limited solely to the replacement or 

repair of the allegedly defective product or workmanship. Damages claimed shall not include any incidental or consequential damages or expenses. 

Beckwith shall not be liable for and the parties agree that no attorney's fees will be sought against Beckwith arising out of the materials installed or labor 

performed by Beckwith. 

A project completion schedule or project completion date will be required before Beckwith can proceed; deviation from this completion date which 

requires additional labor or overtime to complete the accelerated completion will result in additional costs paid for by the customer.

If additional fire alarm inspections are required due to partial building inspection, these additional cost will be paid for by the customer.

Installation of detectors during construction shall be protected from debris, dust, dirt, and damage in accordance with manufacturer’s 

recommendations and the current adoption of NFPA 72. Cleaning and/or replacement of smoke detectors installed prior to final building cleanup will 

be cleaned and/or replaced by Beckwith and paid for by the customer.

Beckwith is not responsible for performing additional testing or service unless requested in writing from customer. Customer agrees to pay for these 

additional services. Beckwith is not responsible for false alarms or false alarm fines. 

CUSTOMER AGREES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT BECKWITH IS NOT AN INSURER AND IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ACTS OR OMMISSIONS 

OF OTHERS, OR FOR EVENTS BEYOND THE CONTROL OF BECKWITH INCLUDING FALSE ALARMS. 

This bid is conditioned upon the parties entering into a mutually acceptable written agreement; signed Beckwith 

Proposal meets this criteria. 

This bid does not include Bid, Payment or Performance Bond.

This bid does not include any fees assessed by Special Insurance Programs or Special Endorsements



 

SOLD TO PROJECT LOCATION

Hays County Government Center Hays Co Govt Center

610 Stagecoach Trail  712 South Stagecoach Trail

San Marcos, TX 78666 San Marcos,TX 78666

ATTN Tim Shaffer

Tel # 5129262000

TRADE TERMS

Net 30 days F.O.B. Jobsite 

Proposal

DATE: 30-Apr-24

Customer Reference Name          Hays Co Govt Center - Document Cameras

Proposal Number          FA-BESLLC-2023-1420

PAYMENT TERMS

$10,000 Medical Exp (Any one person)

Business Auto Liability

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

$1,000,000 Non-Owned and Hired Car Coverage

Worker's Compensation Employees Liability Insurance

$1,000,000 E.L. Each Accident 

$1,000,000 E.L. Disease - Each Employee

$1,000,000 E.L. Disease - Policy Limit 

Umbrella

$5,000,000 Per Occurrence & Aggregate

All Insurance Coverages Shall Provide:

1

2

3

4

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY:

FIRM NAME: P.O.#:

BY: DATE: 

written contract. On the CGL Policy, (Your Company Name) must be named as additional insured for ongoing and completed work.

Primary and Non-Contributory wording on Additional Insured Endorsements as per written contract.

30 Day Written Notice of Cancellation.

Waiver of Rights of Subrogation in Favor of (Your Company Name) as per written contract.

"Additional Insured" Endorsement on Business Auto Policy, Commercial General Liability Policy, & Commercial Umbrella Policy as per

Before any commencement of activity to this contract, a Certificate of Insurance will be delivered to the Contractor's office as shown above. 

Chad Tanner

Chad Tanner

Electronic Systems Sales

ACCEPTED: YOU MAY INSTALL/FURNISH THE EQUIPMENT AS OUTLINED IN THE ABOVE PROPOSAL.



 

HAYS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 
Stephanie Hunt, Purchasing Agent 

712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 ● San Marcos, Texas 78666 
512-393-2267 ● purchasing@co.hays.tx.us 

 

 
 
Hays County Commissioners Court 
July 24, 2024 
RE: Beckwith Electronic Systems – Digital Document Camera 
 
 
Attn: County Clerk 
 
As per requirements to authorize a discretionary exemption per Texas Local Government Code 
262.024(a)(7)(D), the District Court recognizes Beckwith Electronic Systems, LLC. as a sole source 
provider to provide replacement parts and services for the system that was customized for our 
District Courtrooms.   
 
 

Stephanie Hunt 
Stephanie Hunt 
Purchasing Agent 
 
 
 

mailto:purchasing@co.hays.tx.us


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 36.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: John Ellen

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize a waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes for the Constable Precinct 5 Office to purchase a furniture
package from Michelle Thomas Design for the amount $3,962.17 and amend the budget accordingly.  SMITH /ELLENSMITH /ELLEN

Summary:Summary:
The Constable Precinct 5 Office is requesting to purchase additional furniture for the additional office space created for
approved staff.  A waiver to the purchasing policy to obtain three quotes is being requested.  The Constable Precinct 5
office did reach out to additional vendors with no response and would like to move forward with the purchase.  

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $3,962.17
Line Item Number: 001-639-00.5711_400

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Insurance savings is available to fund this request.
$3,963 - Increase Office Equipment_Operating 001-639-00.5711_400
($3,963) - Decrease Medical Insurance 001-639-00.5160_400

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: No 
Comments: a waiver to obtain three quotes is needed

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Furniture Quote



Estimate

Constable John Ellen- Hays County Constable Office Estimate #: 101720
500 Jack C. Hays Trail Estimate Date: 7/1/2024
Buda, TX 78610
United States
 

Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Total Price

2.00 Each 60" W- Shelf 
F2FSH.1360
B style Shelf Full height
15.5"H x 60"W x 12.5"D

82.83 165.67

6.00 Each TackBoard 
F2TAKBS.1630 
B Style Tackboard
Square Corners
Curved Top and Bottom
15.5"H x 30"W

52.89 317.33

8.00 Each Finished End 
F2FE.85 
Finished End
85"H

21.49 171.95

16.00 Each Draw Rod
FDR.80 
Draw Rod
80"H

7.49 119.78

8.00 Each Fabric Covered Panel
F2FAPA.8530N 
Fabric Covered Panel Non-Electrical
85"H x 30"W

179.68 1,437.41

14.00 Each Wall Strip 
FWSST.84 
Wall Strip
84"H

26.08 365.15

8.00 Each Wall Start
FWSTA.80 
Wall Start, 80"H (Order draw rod of same height separately)

24.15 193.20

1.00 Each Receive for Pick Up 287.50 287.50
12.00 Each 48"W- Shelf 

F2FSH.1348
B style Shelf Full height
15.5"H x 48"W x 12.5"D

75.35 904.18

--------------
Sub Total: 3,962.17

5309 Musket Ridge, Austin, TX 78759
Phone: (512) 934-8107 Fax: (512) 584-8047 Email: michelle@michellethomasdesign.com Website: www.michellethomasdesign.com



Sales Tax: 0.00
--------------

Total: 3,962.17
Deposit Requested: 3,962.17

Payment Applied: 0.00
--------------

Deposit Balance: 3,962.17

Accepted and Approved

Constable John Ellen- Hays County
Constable Office

Date

Indicate your approval by returning a signed copy of this estimate along with requested deposit.
Estimate pricing is valid for 30 days only.

5309 Musket Ridge, Austin, TX 78759
Phone: (512) 934-8107 Fax: (512) 584-8047 Email: michelle@michellethomasdesign.com Website: www.michellethomasdesign.com



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 37.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Approve Utility Permits. SMITH /SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN GSMITH /SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
Precinct 3Precinct 3

TRN-2024-8141-UTL - Spectrum & Serna Communications (contractor) propose to install 23 utility poles, spanning
4,551 LF on Lime Kiln Rd. (1) 10'x20' work vehicle to be stationed on the shoulder and ROW. /
TRN-2024-8185-UTL - Spectrum & Serna Communications (contractor) propose to install 492 LF of directional bore
and 340 LF of open trench on Oak Meadows bore of 1-3" HDPE conduit and handholes in the ROW of Oak Meadows.
(1) 10'x20' work vehicle to be stationed on the shoulder and ROW. / 
TRN-2024-8319-UTL - Oak Wilt Pros to trench within the right-of-way to control oak wilt in several locations along
Mustang Lane in Country Estates subdivision (off Old Ranch 12 in San Marcos.) Trenching will be about 4 feet deep
to prevent root to root transmission of oak wilt. The trenching machine will automatically back-fill the trench as it
moves forward. Oak Wilt Pros will also manually smooth areas that need extra attention. / 

P recinct 4Precinct 4

TRN-2024-8017-UTL - Spectrum & Serna (contractor) propose to overlash 433 LF of aerial fiber cable on existing
poles in the ROW of Heritage Oaks Dr. (1) 8x12 bucket truck to be alternately stationed adjacent to each pole for 15 to
30 minutes to perform the work. /
TRN-2024-8018-UTL - Texas Gas Service to repair a gas leak on Old Stone Road within a new section of Parten
Ranch. A necessary road cut will need to be made. /
TRN-2024-8105-UTL - WTCPUA to bore in ROW of Trails End for a water line service tap. /
TRN-2024-8177-UTL - Spectrum & Serna Communications LLC propose to install 10 LF of 1-3" HDPE conduit by
way of open trench & 1 Spectrum electric cabinet in ROW of Elliott Ranch Rd. (1) 12x8 work truck to be stationed
adjacent to work area. / 
TRN-2024-8179-UTL - WTCPUA water line bore under Paisano Trail to install water service line. / 

AttachmentsAttachments
Site Plan
Permit
Site Plan
Permit
Location Map
Site Plan
Permit
Site Plan
Permit
Site Plan
Permit
Site Plan
Permit
Site Plan
Location Map
Permit
Site Plan
Site Plan
Permit



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS 

JESSE RANGEL
OWNER:

SPECTRUM
810 W HOWARD LN
AUSTIN, TX 78753
JESUS.RANGEL@CHARTER.COM

STREET ADDRESS:

512-202-6334

LJA Engineering, Inc.
FRN - F-1386

CONTACT:
BRENT GURLEY. VICE PRESIDENT
LJA ENGINEERING, INC
2700 LA FRONTERA, SUITE 200
ROUND ROCK, TX 78681
UTILITIES@LJA.COM
512-439-4700

433 LF OF OVERLASH FIBER OPTIC CABLE ON EXISTING UTILITY POLES

13062 US-290
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78737



F

C

S

S

LJA Engineering, Inc.
FRN - F-1386



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after  .

Utility Company Information:
Name: Spectrum
Address: 810 W Howard Ln Austin TX
Phone: 
Contact Name: Jesse Rangel

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: Serna Communications, LLC
Address: 5500 Navarro Creek Del Valle TX 78617
Phone: 5129148199
Contact Name: Francisco Serna

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8017-UTL
Type of Utility Service: fiber
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Heritage Oaks Dr
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Engineering Technician 07/23/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring Trenching X Overhead N/A

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


DATE Time Classified

ADDRESS / LOCATION CGI-#

PERM MEASURE 1 X NEW LEAK

PERM MEASURE 2 RC/RV - WO:

POST REPAIR

1 97 11 0 21 0 31 0 41 51 61

2 2.7 12 0 22 0 32 0 42 52 62

3 0 13 4.2 23 0 33 0 43 53 63

4 0 14 0 24 0 34 0 44 54 64

5 0 15 0 25 0 35 0 45 55 65

6 47 16 0 26 0 36 0 46 56 66

7 0 17 0 27 0 37 47 57 67

8 0 18 0 28 0 38 48 58 68

9 0 19 0 29 0 39 49 59 69

10 0 20 0 30 0 40 50 60 70

1349-402961

Additional Notes:

361 OLD STONE RD

OGSops2.1802R Sketch
R

EA
D

IN
G

S

28 FT TO C/L TO OLD STONE RD

1056 FT TO C/L TO TWO CREEK LN

Tech ID OKE226999:04PM4/29/2024

PROBE DISTANCE 2 TO 15 FT

 Page 1 of 3



71 101 131 161 191 221 251

72 102 132 162 192 222 252

73 103 133 163 193 223 253

74 104 134 164 194 224 254

75 105 135 165 195 225 255

76 106 136 166 196 226 256

77 107 137 167 197 227 257

78 108 138 168 198 228 258

79 109 139 169 199 229 259

80 110 140 170 200 230 260

81 111 141 171 201 231 261

82 112 142 172 202 232 262

83 113 143 173 203 233 263

84 114 144 174 204 234 264

85 115 145 175 205 235 265

86 116 146 176 206 236 266

87 117 147 177 207 237 267

88 118 148 178 208 238 268

89 119 149 179 209 239 269

90 120 150 180 210 240 270

91 121 151 181 211 241 271

92 122 152 182 212 242 272

93 123 153 183 213 243 273

94 124 154 184 214 244 274

95 125 155 185 215 245 275

96 126 156 186 216 246 276

97 127 157 187 217 247 277

98 128 158 188 218 248 278

99 129 159 189 219 249 279

100 130 160 190 220 250 280

R
EA

D
IN

G
S 

B
Y

 B
A

R
H

O
LE

LEAK RECHECK/ DRAWINGS (Additional Barholes)

ADDRESS / LOCATION

 Page 2 of 3



 Page 3 of 3



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 5/6/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: Texas Gas Service
Address: 9228 Tuscany Way Austin TX
Phone: 5124211531
Contact Name: Texas Gas Service TGS

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: 
Address: TX
Phone: 
Contact Name: 

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8018-UTL
Type of Utility Service: 
Project Description: 
Road Name(s): 
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/23/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring X Trenching Overhead N/A

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


jcamarillo
Text Box
12975 Trails End

jcamarillo
Callout
WL tap with  bore. exact location to be determined

jcamarillo
Line



approx. location of
property



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 06/17/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: WTCPUA
Address: 13215 Bee Cave Parkway Bee Cave  TX
Phone: 
Contact Name: John Camarillo

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Contact Name: 

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8105-UTL
Type of Utility Service: water
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Trails End
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Engineering Technician 07/23/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring Trenching Overhead N/AX

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS 

JULIAN DIAZ
OWNER:

SPECTRUM
810 W HOWARD LN
AUSTIN, TX 78753
JULIAN.DIAZ1@CHARTER.COM

STREET ADDRESS:
100 SIX PINES RD
SAN MARCOS, TX  78666

512-202-7166

4,551 LF OF NEW BUILD FIBER OPTIC CABLE

CONTACT:
BRENT GURLEY, VICE PRESIDENT
LJA ENGINEERING, INC
2700 LA FRONTERA, SUITE 200
ROUND ROCK, TX 78681
BGURLEY@LJA.COM
512-439-4758

23 PROPOSED UTILITY POLES

FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC



F

C

S

S

FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC



F

C

S

S

FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 6/14/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: Spectrum
Address: 810 W Howard Ln Austin TX
Phone: 5122027166
Contact Name: Julian Diaz

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: Serna Communications. LLC
Address: 5500 Navarro Creek Del Valle TX 78617
Phone: 5129148199
Contact Name: Francisco Serna

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8141-UTL
Type of Utility Service: fiber optic cable
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Lime Kiln Rd, Six Pines Rd
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/23/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring Trenching X Overhead N/A

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS 

CONTACT:
BRENT GURLEY, VICE PRESIDENT
LJA ENGINEERING, INC
2700 LA FRONTERA, SUITE 200
ROUND ROCK, TX 78681

STREET ADDRESS:
340 ELLIOTT RANCH ROAD
BUDA, TEXAS 78610

UTILITIES@LJA.COM
512-439-4700

10 LF OF OPEN TRENCH

ROBERT DAVILA
OWNER:

SPECTRUM
810 W HOWARD LN
AUSTIN, TX 78753
ROBERT.DAVILA@CHARTER.COM
512-348-3969

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R

FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R

NOTES:

1. RESTORE ALL DISTURBED SURFACES ABOVE AND SURROUNDING THE TRENCH TO
EXISTING CONDITION AND ELEVATION.  NATURAL GROUND WILL HAVE 6" OF TOP SOIL,
SEEDED AND A RETENTION BLANKET INSTALLED ON TOP.  ALL OTHER SURFACE
STRUCTURES SHALL BE REPLACED TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS.

18" MIN.
24" MAX.

PER PLAN PROFILE
FROM NATURAL

GROUND OR SUBGRADE
IF NO PROFILE

SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM

EMBEDMENT SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM FOR

MATERIAL AND DIMENSION
UNDISTURBED EARTH

PROPOSED MAIN

RESTORATION (SEE NOTE 1)

EXISTING ELEVATION

TRENCH PAY LIMIT
SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM

FILTER FABRIC AT TOP OF
EMBEDMENT FOR PIPES

12" WIDTH INDUCTIVELY AND
CONDUCTIVELY DETECTABLE

MARKING TAPE
PER SPL WW-597

COMPACTED BACKFILL
SEE ITEM 510.3.25 OF

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

CURRENT AS OF
1/1/2024



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 6/24/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: 
Address: TX
Phone: 
Contact Name: 

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: Serna Communications, LLC.
Address: 5500 Navarro Creek Del Valle TX 78617
Phone: 5129148199
Contact Name: Francisco Serna Garcia

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8177-UTL
Type of Utility Service: Fiber
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Elliott Ranch Rd
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/23/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring X Trenching Overhead N/A

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS 

CONTACT:
BRENT GURLEY, VICE PRESIDENT
LJA ENGINEERING, INC
2700 LA FRONTERA, SUITE 200
ROUND ROCK, TX 78681

STREET ADDRESS:

UTILITIES@LJA.COM
512-439-4700

340 LF OF OPEN TRENCH
492 LF OF DIRECTIONAL BORE

JULIAN DIAZ
OWNER:

SPECTRUM
810 W HOWARD LN
AUSTIN, TX 78753
JULIAN.DIAZ1@CHARTER.COM
512-539-1815

100 OAK MEADOWS
SAN MARCOS, TX 78666

FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R

NOTES:

1. RESTORE ALL DISTURBED SURFACES ABOVE AND SURROUNDING THE TRENCH TO
EXISTING CONDITION AND ELEVATION.  NATURAL GROUND WILL HAVE 6" OF TOP SOIL,
SEEDED AND A RETENTION BLANKET INSTALLED ON TOP.  ALL OTHER SURFACE
STRUCTURES SHALL BE REPLACED TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS.

18" MIN.
24" MAX.

PER PLAN PROFILE
FROM NATURAL

GROUND OR SUBGRADE
IF NO PROFILE

SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM

EMBEDMENT SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM FOR

MATERIAL AND DIMENSION
UNDISTURBED EARTH

PROPOSED MAIN

RESTORATION (SEE NOTE 1)

EXISTING ELEVATION

TRENCH PAY LIMIT
SEE DETAIL
510S-TD-SM

FILTER FABRIC AT TOP OF
EMBEDMENT FOR PIPES

12" WIDTH INDUCTIVELY AND
CONDUCTIVELY DETECTABLE

MARKING TAPE
PER SPL WW-597

COMPACTED BACKFILL
SEE ITEM 510.3.25 OF

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

CURRENT AS OF
1/1/2024



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



FRN - F-1386
ENGINEERING, INC

Know what's

LOCATION OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD
UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE
LOCATIONS ONLY. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO
BEGINNING WORK AND SHALL BE
FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT OCCUR.

R



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 5/28/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: Spectrum
Address: 810 W Howard Ln Austin TX
Phone: 5125391815
Contact Name: Julian Diaz

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: Serna Communications, LLC
Address: 5500 Navarro Creek Del Valle TX 78617
Phone: 5129148199
Contact Name: Francisco Serna

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8185-UTL
Type of Utility Service: fiber optic cable in 1-3" HDPE conduit
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Oak Meadows, HIlliard Rd
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/24/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring X Trenching Overhead N/AX

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/




jcamarillo
Rectangle

jcamarillo
Callout
Approx. 60 foot bore under Paisano for water service

jcamarillo
Text Box
13351 Paisano Trail



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after  .

Utility Company Information:
Name: WTCPUA
Address: 13215 Bee Cave Parkway Bee Cave TX
Phone: 
Contact Name: John Camarillo

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Contact Name: 

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8179-UTL
Type of Utility Service: water
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  Paisano Trail
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/24/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring Trenching Overhead N/AX

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


Oak Wilt
Treatment Map 2.1

200 0 200100 Feet
Map Scale

Location:
Case:

County:
Quadrangle:

UTM Northing:
UTM Easting:

Mortality Numbers:
Map Date:

Forester:

Country Estates
93-AU-20
Hays
San Marcos North
33102011
599456
4169
February 2, 2023
Karl Flocke, TFS Austin

±

LEGEND
TrenchType

CSBreakout
NCSTrench
OakWiltMC

OAK WILT MANAGEMENT OPTIONS
Trench to control spread @ 100' from symptoms & 4' deep

-- OR --
- Inject fungicides prior to symptom development, up to 150' away

- Plant a diversity of native or non-invasive trees
- No action -- anticipate need & expense of removals

630 Feet



500 Feet
420 Feet

Oak Wilt
Treatment Map 3.1

200 0 200100 Feet
Map Scale

Location:
Case:

County:
Quadrangle:

UTM Northing:
UTM Easting:

Mortality Numbers:
Map Date:

Forester:

Country Estates
93-AU-20
Hays
San Marcos North
33102011
599456
4169
February 2, 2023
Karl Flocke, TFS Austin

±

LEGEND
TrenchType

CSBreakout
NCSTrench
OakWiltMC

OAK WILT MANAGEMENT OPTIONS
Trench to control spread @ 100' from symptoms & 4' deep

-- OR --
- Inject fungicides prior to symptom development, up to 150' away

- Plant a diversity of native or non-invasive trees
- No action -- anticipate need & expense of removals

1100 Feet



UTILITY PERMIT APPROVAL LETTER

**  Notification must be given IN WRITING at least 24 hours before work begins and proper traffic control 
must be implemented throughout the work zone. **

The utility company or any of its representatives, engineers, contractors, or authorized agents agree to 
use Best Management Practices to minimize erosion and sedimentation resulting from the proposed 
installation AND will insure that traffic control measures complying with applicable portions of the Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices will be installed and maintained during installation.

General Special Provisions:
1.    Construction of this line will begin on or after 7/22/2024 .

Utility Company Information:
Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Contact Name: 

Engineer / Contractor Information:
Name: Oak Wilt Pros
Address: 801 Carney Lane  Unit 6B Wimberly TX 78676
Phone: 5122538080
Contact Name: 

Hays County Information:
Utility Permit Number: TRN-2024-8319-UTL
Type of Utility Service: Ther is no line.
Project Description: 
Road Name(s):  1513 Mustang Lane, 1600 Mustang Lane, 1805 Mustang Lane, 2114 Mustang Lane
Subdivision: 
Commissioner Precinct: 

Signature DateTitle

Permit Coordinator 07/24/2024

What type of cut(s) will 
you be using ?

Boring X Trenching Overhead N/A

Authorization by Hays County Transportation Department
The above-mentioned permit was approved in Hays County Commissioners Court on .

Hays County Transportation Department
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 200, Kyle Texas 78640
(P)  512-393-7385 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

http://www.hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: G. 38.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Authorize the County Judge to use community outreach funds not to exceed $400.00 to purchase consumables for a
working lunch during the Texas Department of Emergency Management training seminar for Mayors and County Staff on
August 8, 2024. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

Summary:Summary:
Leadership from the Texas Department of Emergency Management will lead training that will provide ICS-G-402
certification for elected officials. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $400.00
Line Item Number: 001-600-00.5353

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: follow the purchasing policy for purchase of food

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 1.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding, P.E., Transportation Director

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of Supplemental No. 7 to the Professional Services Agreement
(PSA) with HDR Engineering, Inc. for professional design services on the Robert S. Light (Buda Truck Bypass) project in
Precinct 2, as part of the TxDOT/Hays County Partnership Program.     SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
The Supplemental No. 7 to the Professional Service Agreement (PSA) amends the hourly rates in the original Exhibit II.
The rates for this contract were last updated July 7, 2020. Pedernales Electric Cooperative (PEC) has submitted a
reimbursement packet dated May 30, 2024 which requires review. This rate adjustment will allow HDR to review the
reimbursement request and coordinate any adjustments necessary to issue a recommendation for payment. Contract
executed pursuant to RFQ 2021-Q01 Professional Engineering Services.

AttachmentsAttachments
RSL(BudaTruckBypass)-HDR-PSASuppl07



 1

CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 7 

TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    §  
COUNTY OF HAYS    § 
 
 
THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT to contract for engineering services is by and between 
Hays County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and HDR 
Engineering, Inc.(the "Engineer") and becomes effective when fully executed by both parties.  
 
WHEREAS, the County and the Engineer executed a contract on June 4th, 2013;  
 
WHEREAS, the not-to-exceed fee in Exhibit 1, Section 1, Item 1.1 of the agreement as modified 
by Supplemental Agreement No. 6 was limited to $3,122,186.00; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the “Compensation Cap” in Exhibit 1, Section 4, Item 4.3, as modified by 
Supplemental Agreement No. 6, limits the maximum amount payable under the agreement to 
$3,175,000.00; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Hourly Rates in Exhibit II are limited to the rates noted; and,  
 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend the agreement.  

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Engineer agree that said contract 
is amended as follows:  
 
I.   The hourly Rates in the original Exhibit II are hereby amended as shown in the attached 
revised Exhibit II.  
 
All other provisions are unchanged and remain in full force and effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this supplemental 
agreement in duplicate,  

ENGINEER:   COUNTY: 
HDR Engineering, Inc. Hays County, Texas 

By:___________________________  By:_________________________ 
Signature Signature 

__Mark D. Borenstein. P.E._______ __Ruben Becerra______________ 
Printed Name Printed Name 

_  Senior Vice President__________ _Hays County Judge____________ 
Title Title 

___________________ ___________________ 
Date Date 

07/23/24

7/24/2024

mawalters
Carlos Lopez Signature



EXHIBIT II 

HOURLY RATES 
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

Employee Classification  2024 Rates

Project Manager $325.00 

QC Manager $290.00 

Environmental Manager $283.00 

Senior Engineer          $224.00 

Sr. Environmental Scientist $187.00 

Jr. Environmental Scientist $158.00 

GIS Technician $168.00 

Design Engineer $164.00 

Engineer-in-Training $126.00 

Senior Utility Coordinator $195.00 

Utility Design Coordinator $165.00 

Sr.CAD Technician $123.00 

Bridge CAD Technician $135.00 

CAD Operator $100.00 

Accounting $130.00 

Clerical / Steno $95.00 



 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
Consultant or Specialty Contractor (Outside Firm) ............................................................ @ Cost  
Courier .............................................................................................................................. @ Cost 
Mileage (Standard Car or Truck) .................................................................... IRS Approved Rate 
Other Misc. Expenses Related to the Project .................................................................... @ Cost  
In-House Reproduction: 
 Copies (8.5” X 11”)…………………………………………………………………..$0.09/Each 
 Copies (11” x 17”) ............................................................................................ $0.18/Each 
 Color Prints (8.5” x 11”) ................................................................................... $0.18/Each 
 Color Prints (11” x 17”) .................................................................................... $0.30/Each 
 Color Prints (Larger than 11” x 17”) .............................................................. $0.50/Sq. Ft. 
 Bond Prints (All Sizes) ..................................................................................... $2.00/Each 
 Mylar Prints ..................................................................................................... $2.00/Each 

 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 2.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Brandon Elliott

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a TIA Contribution Agreement between Hays County
and Arroyo Cap II-1, LLC, in the amount of $56,112.00, for certain off-site traffic improvements related to the Sunset
Oaks/Highmeadow Subdivision, and amend the budget accordingly. IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

Summary:Summary:
The traffic impact analysis for this section of the Hymeadow/Sunset Oaks subdivision identified $56,112 as the pro-rata
share of off-site traffic improvements attributed to this 168 lot section in Precinct 1. The developer has delivered a check to
Hays County. The agreement is attached.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: None
Line Item Number: 020.2010_192

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: N/A
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?:
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Hymeadow Sec.3 Ph. 1 and 2 TIA Contribution Agreement











AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 3.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to consider the release of the maintenance bond #204919W in the amount of $132,147.05,
and acceptance of the roads into the County Road Maintenance System for Sunset Oaks subdivision, Section 1, Phase
1.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN GIN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
Staff recommends acceptance of these roads into the county road maintenance system. Roads include: Cobb Branch Drive
(1,395 ft.), Ellwood Road (1,296 ft.), Rosetta Road (1,039 ft.), Silent Meadow Run (551 ft.), Jessenia Way(270 ft.), and
Hibiscus Street (179 ft.). 

AttachmentsAttachments
Plat
Bond



















AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 4.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to call for a public hearing on August 6, 2024, to establish No Dumping zones on Peaceful
Valley Road as shown on the map provided.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN GIN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
In response to a request by the property-owners, there is a need to establish No Dumping zones on Peaceful Valley Road.
(Please see map)

AttachmentsAttachments
Peaceful Valley Backup



Peaceful Valley Road

Goforth Road Goforth Road

Peaceful Valley Road  
No Dumping zones



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 5.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to consider the release of the maintenance bond #204920Y in the amount of $189,217.91,
and acceptance of the roads into the County Road Maintenance System for Trails at Windy Hill subd., Phase 6 & Phase
7.  IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G IN GALSBE/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
Staff recommends acceptance of these roads into the county road maintenance system. Roads include: Alamo Vine Court
(307 ft.), Elbow Bush Cove (468 ft.), Evergreen Sumac Loop (2,783 ft.), Globe Mallow Circle (1,159 ft.), Mount Pea Road
(143 ft.), Windmill Palm Drive (148 ft.), Arroyo Sweetwood Circle (931 ft.), and Texas Palmetto Circle (1,040 ft.)

AttachmentsAttachments
Trails Phase 6 Plat
Trails Phase 7 Plat
Bond



ZX

Y

W

Y

Y

X

Z

W W
W

W

W

W

ZX

Z

BB

O

X

101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 



101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 



101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 



O

CC

BB

Z

O

O

O

Z

CC

Z

101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 



101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 

O

O



101 West Louis Henna Blvd., Suite 400
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. F-1046
Tel: 512-879-0400 ● www.bgeinc.com

TBPELS Licensed Surveying Firm No. 10106502 











AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 6.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, County Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to accept the Performance Bond No. CNB-43741-00 in the amount of $2,988,902.88 for
street and drainage improvements in the Sanctuary Dripping Springs, Lots 1-56, Final Plat.  SMITHSMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
The final plat for the Sanctuary Dripping Springs, Lots 1-56 has been reviewed under the interlocal cooperation agreement
with the City of Dripping Springs and has been approved by County staff. While the plat has been approved
administratively, formal acceptance of fiscal surety is required by Commissioners Court action.

AttachmentsAttachments
Plat
Performance Bond



��������	
���

��������	
��� �������
����
����

����	
������
����

����
����	����
����	��
�����
����

��������� ����
���	�������������	�����	���

��
������
������ �!�"��#"
�$�
%&

��������	
���

��������	
���

�������
����
����

�������
����
����

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()
'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

'()
�*�*�*+()+()

,()
����-����������
�������	

.+)
������-��������	

/()
������-��������	

/()
������-��������	
/()
������-��������	 ���0��0�����-�
��
1�����	
2��13�
4
56*(()

���0��0�����-�
��
1�����	
2��13�
4
56*(()

���0��0�����-�
��
1�����	
2��13�
4
56*(()

���0��0�����-�
��
1�����	
2��13�
4
56*(()/()
������-��������	

5/)
������-��������	

.+)
������-��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	
/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	
/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	/()
1�7����	���	��������	 /()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	
/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	

/()
1�7����	���	��������	/()
1�7����	���	��������	

����7��
���	�������-��������	

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3
��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

��������
�������	27�
��1���	����	�����	3

���	�������������	�����	���
7�����8���
.(()
��	��
9����	�7�����
8���

������8�������1����

�:;<=>?@A
B
/(/5�>CDE<0�:=F
GFH
�II:J>GAEIK
�FJ*�DD
=>?@AI
=EIE=LEH

MNOPQ
RQPSTPOUSVPWX
YWNRRNOZ
TRWNOZT[$�\��]�
̂�$_�
��
�����̀"�
�̀]]���	�
.0,'��	���
	���*
��-��
�����K
�7�	���	
��*
.'��	�
��
���11��-
�1���-�
����
����	�K
	�a��

��-
����b
�bc���d�
����c('e5/5.((0��

��	����
0
���11��-

�1���-�K
	ac��-c(

'e5/5.((
0
����	��
��
���11��-
�1���-

�
0
�����
1��	*��-


1��		��
7�����

��K
�������
fg./g/(
/5
./b./
1�
���	
��

��fg./g/(/5
6b,,
�
�

�JGDE �=GhF
i<�1�g�j�.k
4
+(() �@EJlEH
i< �GAE 1=:mEJA
�:* �@EEA
�:*�ED>FGK
	EnGI

f,((e5((
�:=A@
�lDG@:CG
�=*K
�o>AE
.(, 	ED*
�:*
25'e3
,(.0//((����
p
.(.e5,(+ hhh*l>CDE<0@:=F*J:C�j� ('e5/5.(( .
��
f

-��1���
�����
��
���	(+(( .,( +(( '((.k
4
+(()q
.6a/5���	�
.k
4
,((()rNUNONSX
sPR

��	�
���	�

����	
/

����	
+ ����	
5

����	
,
�������b�>CDE<0�:=F
GFH
�II:J>GAEIK
�FJ*5((
�*
�lDG@:CG
�=*K
�o>AE
.(,�ED>FGK
	EnGI
f,((e1@:FEb
5'e0,(.0//((�:FAGJA
b
�GF>ED
�=A@o=
�*1*�*�*��-�����g�11�����	b�>CDE<0�:=F
GFH
�II:J>GAEIK
�FJ*,+(.
�:oA@hEIA
1G=lhG<K
7��-
/�o>AE
.((�oIA>FK
	EnGI
f6f+,1@:FEb
,./0,.60',/e�:FAGJA
b
�GAGD>G
-G=GoK
1*�*�:FAGJA
b
�En>E
�F?DGFHK
1*�*�����g�����1��b�GFJAoG=<
�=>;;>F?
�;=>F?IK
���',.
�*
7=:GH
�A*K
�o>AE
/(.�>HHDEA:FK
�EDEhG=E
.ef(e1@:FEb�:FAGJAb
joIA>F
�GA@GFQNOt
SXRt
QtZtOY7�������
�����������	
������	
������j�����
����7������-
��	7����������
���	������ fgeg/(/5

�	j�	j���11��-
�1���-�
��	�
����	�
2	�1����3



�������
���	
�

������	����
�������
���
��������
���
�

������������� �������������������
��������� ����

��	�
�

���� ��	����


���� ���	�� �����
�

������� ������� ���	�� ������ �
���� �
����

�	���	�����	������	�������������� �����	� ������ ������ 
	����

������ �������

�	���� � !�"#$%&&�'()*+,&-.#/�+0%�1!%

� !�#2&%32�'()*+3,-"/,�+0%�1!%

������� �
��	� ������ ����	
������

�����������	�4������	��� �����������	�
������������������
���������������� ���	��4��	��	���������������
�	��� �	���	������	����������


	��	
�
�
��	��������	�	��

�������
�5�������5������ �5������6��7�4��	���

�5������6��7�4��	���
�5������6 �5������6

�5������6��7�4��	���
�5������6����4��	
��5������6����4��	
�

7�� �5������6���4� �5������6���4�
�5������6���4� �5������6���4� �5������6���4� �5������6���4�

�������������

� !�#"2%##�'()*+&,-$/"�+0%�1!%8'!*)�09'�:!;<=*!*>!: >? >=�'>=�=)':>'@*�*'+*A*>!

� !�#32%3#�'()*+$.-B/&�+0%�1!% ?*>�+?'(*

� !�/&&%32�'()*+3,-3,&�+0%�1!%� !�/$&%#3�'()*+3/-..,�+0%�1!%8'!*)�09'�:!;<=*!*>!: >? >=�'>=�=)':>'@*�*'+*A*>!

� !�/.&%32�'()*+3,-""2�+0%�1!%
� !�/#&%3&�'()*+.2-2/&�+0%�1!%

� !�/B&%3&�'()*+.2-/#/�+0%�1!%

� !�#/&%32�'()*+3,-.,B�+0%�1!% � !�#&&%32�'()*+3,-B&B�+0%�1!%� !�#$&%32�'()*+3,-."2�+0%�1!%

� !�"/&%32�'()*+3,-.B#�+0%�1!%

��	������� ��	������������ ����
���
��������� 
	���
�
�������		�� �
����

����
��
�� �	�������������������������		� ���������� �
���	��	�	�����	�����
�� ������
���
�		��������������
��� ���������	�
	�

��	���
�� ���������
	�
��� ��������
��	����� 
�����

���		��	�� 
������ ������	�� ������� ���������� 
������

��	������� �����	� ���
��	�����
��
�

����	��	��	������������

������C������D���E�����������4��6������	��	��6��4��4���������	���	����6���
������C������D���E������������4��6���������	��6��4��4���������	�	�������6���������C������D���E�����������4����4��������		��
�����6�������4�����������4���������	��	��7�����6���

���������C��������6�F�������G���H4���4���������	

�������6�������4�����������4���������	��	��7�����6�������6�������������C�4IE����6�������4���������	����
����6�������4��������
��4���������	��	��7�����6���������C�E�4��6����H����4��������	��	������6�������4�����������4���������	��	��7�����6��� ��4������F�66��E��������������4��������		��	
����6�������4�����4�6��������������4���������	����7�����6��� G���G��E����C����D�4��7�����4��������		�	������6�������4�����4�6�����������
��4���������	����7�����6��� ����4�����4�6��������������4���������	����7�����6��� 6�������J�6�����C�����G������E�D�C�4��4��������		��	
�����6�������4�����4�6��������������4���������	����7�����6���

������C�����D����4����4���������	���	����6���
� !�/,&%33�'()*+.$-"2/�+0%�1!%����������� ������

� !�##&%B2�'()*+.B-$3$�+0%�1!% ��4������	��������
7���F��5������6��7�4��	����K�
����
����K��������	

����������

��	�

4������	
�� ��������	��������
���
�
�����������	����

4���������� ����	�4���	���
���
�

�4��
	�����������
4
��������� 
�	����

4���	���
�� 
������

4
����
��������
�

�������
������	
�
6�

6�

6�

6�� 6��

�L	�		��L
��������� ������
����
�

����
�������
����
�


���� ��������

�������6�4��4���������	
�
������6�������4�����4�6��������������4���������	����7�����6���

�	��������
	�
	�

�	��������
	�
	�

�	��������
	�
	�

�����
�

�	
����




�
��������G���4�C���
� !�/3&%32�'()*+3,-3,2�+0%�1!%� !�/"&%32�'()*+3,-.$,�+0%�1!%

� !�//&%32�'()*+3,-",&�+0%�1!%

�	��F�4�F���
����F�4�F���

����F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F���6H�M��M4�6��G�����7���C����N��7O��L����		�

� !�""&%."�'()*+.3-&,/�+0%�1!%� !�"$&%32�'()*+3,-3#3�+0%�1!%

�	��������G���4�C���
�
��������G���4�C���

�	��7HF��6H��������4�C����	��7HF��6H��������4�C��� �	��7HF��6H��������4�C���

�	��7HF��6H��������4�C���
�	��7HF��6H��������4�C��� �	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F���
�	��F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F���
�	��F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F���
�	��F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F���

�	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F��� �	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F��� �	��F�4�F����	��F�4�F���
���F�4�F������F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F������F�4�F��� ���F�4�F������F�4�F���

���F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F���

���F�4�F������F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F������F�4�F���
���F�4�F������F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F��� ���F�4�F������F�4�F���

4����������4�C���NF��4�7�������4��HC���O

4����������4�C���NF��4�7�������4��HC���O

4����������4�C���NF��4�7�������4��HC���O

6PQRSTUVW�X��	���TYZ[RM�PS\�]\̂��__P̀T]W[_J��\̀��ZZ�STUVW_�S[_[Sa[̂ ��G���C�K��Kb6��c4
H����b	������		M4�

�6�H����M����77��G
�47���G4J��db��Gb	

������		�M�4��6�H�
������77��G�47���G

4�M�������7������G�
�7�������F�4���

��J�C�6�����5��5�	
�����K���7C���4��4�

���5��5�	����K����
C

4̀]Z[ �S]e\�fR47�5CD4���L��		� 6V[̀g[̂�fR �]W[ 7SPh[̀W��P� 4V[[W��P�6[ZT\]J��[i]_���		��		��PSWV��gZ]VPY]��S�J�4jTW[��	� �[Z���P��N���O��	�M��		���C�k��	����	
 eee�gTYZ[RMVPS\�̀PYCD4 	������		 �����

���L��			�l:(:>:!;�A'? �����

C��6�������N4���4�
�����O

C��6�������N4���4�����
O

�:>*�!;?*��*@*>=F�H������������4�C������������������D����������FH�����G�4��F�6���������6��������� 4H������K�TYZ[RM�PS\�]\̂��__P̀T]W[_J��\̀��		�����gZ]VPY]��S�J�4jTW[��	�6[ZT\]J��[i]_��		�7VP\[K����M�	�M��		6P\W]̀W�K��]\T[Z��SWVjS���7���4������5������7��K4]\̀Wj]SR��STQQT\U�4QST\U_J���6�������FSP]̂�4W�J�4jTW[��	�CT̂̂ Z[WP\J��[Z[e]S[���	�7VP\[K6P\W]̀WK�Dj_WT\��]WV]\ ��G�����5�77��6���K�TYZ[RM�PS\�]\̂��__P̀T]W[_J��\̀��
	��4PjWVe[_W�7]Sge]RJ�F��G��4jTW[��		�j_WT\J��[i]_��
�7VP\[K����M���M����6P\W]̀W�K��]W]ZT]�G]S]jJ�7���6P\W]̀W�K��[iT[��\UZ]\̂J�7��� 5�5�	��

4��� ��D��D���77��G�47���G4�6������C��4�N��7�6��O

1:>'��?�'!+'>(!9');�=):??:>@�+?):>@+mnopqors�tunvu�wx�xqoquyzs�{yrrx���4��M�����������������HG���4H����J��F4���6��������6����������77��G�47���G4����4�6�H���J���d�4

G��7��6�46�����������	�		 �	 �		 �		���L��		�|���d�������
���L��			�}*;�A'? �����

4������

4�����
 4������

4������



���������	
 ������

�����
��

������������


��������
�������
�����
����


������������������������������ ������������ ���������

����������������� ���������� ������� ������� ������ ������ ���� � � ����
������

�� �� ������
�����

���� ������������ �������������
������ �����������

�������

�������� 	
 ������ ���������	
������

�������	
�� � ��� ����
��� ��������

��������
�!	�����!	�����!	����

�!	����
�����
������"#$%�&'()*+�,-./0*12*3*�04)�5%)

#$%�36()*+�,-./0*1273+�04)�5%)

#$%�&(*)+&�,-./0'*82&'8�04)�5%)9,.:#,;<2�=,%/.4>,#?%@A</%/;%?$;9$;<�,;<�<.,?;,B//,0/C/;%

#$%�37()*+�,-./0*12&3(�04)�5%)
#$%�&&()7&�,-./07*2(18�04)�5%)�� ���� ��������	
 ������

��������	������� �����
���������	� �������

�������	
 ���� �� ������	
 � ����
��������	
  ����

��������	
  �� ��������	
�����
�������� 	��� ��� � ���	����������������	
�������

���������	�������
� ���	
 ���� ���� �� � ��� ���

�������	
 ������� ��������	� ����
�� ����	
 ������

����DD�������E�����
��� �������
�����������������������

�
�
���
����F�G�H����������������
���������
��������������������������

���������	
 ����������������	
������ ��� �
��������	�������� �������	� ������� ���������������	� ������� ���������	� ������

�

���

�� �� ��
� 

���

���� �������� �I�������I����� �

�������E��"���G�J��
���F����
�����������
�������������������������

����������������

����������������

�JJ��
����
�����
�E����
�
�

K�
���L������ K�JE���� M����������N

����
�
�E
��"���
���
��
�
��

#$%�'()76�,-./0772878�04)�5%)#$%�31()*+�,-./0*12*6&�04)�5%)

#$%�(()73�,-./07&263+�04)�5%)#$%�&+()*+�,-./0*12&+1�04)�5%)

����D���D�������D���D���

����D���D���

����D���D���
����D���D�������D���D��� ����D���D���

�����
���������E

��
�
��

���������E

��
�
�� ���O�
O���
�E
����J��
�
���M
�JN��I�������

#$%�&3')((�,-./01(2738�04)�5%)#$%�&8()*+�,-./0*12763�04)�5%)

���J�D���������"
��
�
��
���J�D���������"
��
�
��

���J�D���������"
��
�
��

� ����

����D���D�������D���D��� ����D���D������D���D������D���D�������D���D���

����D���D���

����D���D��� ����D���D���

����D���D���
����D���D���

����D���D���
���D���D������D���D������D���D��� ���D���D���

���D���D��� ����D���D���

����D���D���
����D���D������D���D���

���D���D���
���D���D������D���D��� ����D���D���

���D���D������D���D��� ���D���D������D���D��� ���D���D������D���D��� ���D���D��� ���D���D���

�����D�
������������E

��
�
�� �������	
 ����������� ���	
 ���������������	
 ������������ 	
 �������
���������	
 �� ������������	
� ��� ���������	
 ����������������	
� ������������	
������
���������	
� � ��� ����

������� ������  ����� �� ����

#$%�8+)&(�,-./0''2+3*�04)�5%)=,%/.�4>,#?%@A</%/;%?$;9$;<�,;<<.,?;,B//,0/C/;%
���
���F�
��
�
��MD"��
J����
�������
��N

���
���F�
��
�
��MD"��
J����
�������
��N
������

��������
�������
�����
����
�D���
�P��

��������
��Q�����"D���
��P��


������P
������J����

�������� ��	� ��� ����� �� ���� � ����������� ������

�RSTUVWXY�Z���FV[\]TO�RÛ�_̂ �̀�aaRbV_Y]aK��̂b��\\�UVWXYa�U]a]Uc]̀ ��E����
d�Fde�
�f�
���
"e�� �����O��

������"�O����JJ��E
��J���E�K��Le��Ee�

� ������O��������
�"����JJ��E��J���E

��O�������J������E�
�J����
��D"���"

�
K������
���!�!�
���d��J���������

�
��!�!����d����
�

�b_\] �U_ĝ �hT�J�!�H��	�I����� �X]bi]̀�hT �_Y] JURj]bY��R� �X]]Y��R��]\V̂_K��]k_a������ �����RUYX��i\_XR[_��U�K��lVY]���� �]\���R��M�� N����O�������m���� ���� ggg�iV[\]TOXRÛ�bR[�H� �� ����� ������

E��J��������
�����

����� �� ��� ���	�I�����n���L������
�	�I������o?-?;?%@�C,9 �����

���������
�M�

���

��N
���������
�M�

���



���N
#?;/�%@9/�#/B/;<D������"����

��
�
������
�������
��H���
�����
D������E��
�D��F������"��
��
����
 ����
"��dFV[\]TO�RÛ�_̂ �̀�aaRbV_Y]aK��̂b���������i\_XR[_��U�K��lVY]�����]\V̂_K��]k_a����� JXR̂]d��� O���O���R̂Y_bY�d��_̂V]\��UYXlU���J��������
�!�
�
��J
�d�_̂bYl_UT��UVSSV̂W��SUV̂WaK�����������DUR_̀��Y�K��lVY]����V̀̀ \]YR̂K��]\]g_U]�� �� JXR̂]d�R̂Y_bYd�HlaYV̂�F_YX_̂ 
�E��

�!�JJ������dFV[\]TO�RÛ�_̂ �̀�aaRbV_Y]aK��̂b�������RlYXg]aY�J_Uig_TK�D��E��lVY]�����laYV̂K��]k_a������JXR̂]d���O���O�� �R̂Y_bY�d��_Y_\V_�E_U_lK�J�
��R̂Y_bY�d��]kV]�
̂W\_̂ K̀�J�
� �! !��

���
 
�H
�H���JJ��E��J���E�����"��������M�"J����N

5?;,#�9#,%0,;-%>,.@�<.?99?;B�09.?;B0pqrstruv�wxqyx�z{�{trtx|}v�~|uu{������O�����������
������E�������
"K��D����������������"�������JJ��E��J���E����"�������"K��
L��

�	�I������:/@�C,9 �����

��

��

��

��� ��

���

��

���



��������	�
�������
������	�����

������� ������

�������

�

������� ������ ������� �������
�������

������������ �������
������ �������

������� �������
�������������

�������
�����������

��
������

������ �������

� �!�"#$
� �!�"#$

%&'�()*+,�-./01223)45�16*�7'*8-'0/�69-%:';<=0'0>':&>?&>=�->=�=/-:>-@0�0-10A0>'
%&'�4,*5)�-./015B3+++�16*�7'* %&'�+,*5)�-./015B35,+�16*�7'*

%&'�C,*5)�-./015B35B5�16*�7'*

%&'�,),*5)�-./015B35)2�16*�7'*

%&'�,2)*B+�-./014,34+C�16*�7'*8-'0/�69-%:';<=0'0>':&>?&>=�->=�=/-:>-@0�0-10A0>'
%&'�,(,*5)�-./015B354C�16*�7'*

%&'�+5,*55�-./01D23(+2�16*�7'*

E��F�����!G �������
�������

�������

E��F�����!H �������
E��F�����!G �������

E��F�����!H �������I��F�����!G ������� E��F�����!G �������

E��F�����!G �������
E��F�����!G �������

������

IJKJLJ�M#JN�K�O�PJQGKJ�RSJKKGL��������JS#GI"EIT��EU����������#�V�S�T�

KGIK"G�RJ#GE�SUVGEWUK������X�PM�����#�V�S�T�T#JST��YJKKGE�T#JST�IZYL"W"I"UEWUK���X�PM�����P�#�V�S�T�
E��F�����!G ������� I��F�����!G �������

I��F�����!G �������
I�F�����!G�������S� ��� ���� S��

E��F�����!G ������� ������ �������#[������K[�������

�������

������� ����������#�U�H�������

����#�U�H�������

����#�U�H�������

%&'�,,,*5)�-./015B34B5�16*�7'*
%&'�5,*5)�-./015B34BD�16*�7'*

%&'�D,*5)�-./015B34BB�16*�7'*
����Y�I�Y�K�

����Y�I�Y�K�����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K� ����L#J"EJMGGJIGQGET

SZK\LG\IJSGLMG�U$�PJWGQGET�]GUP̂#�[�������

� �!�"#$E_�����������G_����������

����L#J"EJMGGJIGQGET����PZYK"SZT"K"TNGJIGQGET

����PZYK"SZT"K"TNGJIGQGET
����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K�

����Y�I�Y�K� ����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K�

���Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K�

���Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K�

���Y�I�Y�K�����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K����Y�I�Y�K�

I"LGHJKR�GJIGQGET]YN�IGPJ#JTG"EIT#ZQGET̂

S̀ abcdefg�h�����Rdijkb\V̀ cl�mln�JoòpdmgkoX�"lp�Jjj�cdefgo�ckokcqkn LHM�EJQG_�R_rSGKsI
Z#WGNr���������\IJ

ESTZJ#N�\�L#"PP"EM
�IP#"EMIX�TtrLHMr�

���������\�IJESTZJ
#N�L#"PP"EM�IP#"EM

I�\�$"EJK�PKJT�LHM�
�PKUTTGL�YNIHJN

EGX�Q"SVJGK�� �� ��
�����_���PQ�KJIT�IJ

WGL� �� ������_���J
Q

Ipmjk Lcmul�vbIPJ QwI�!�[����� Sfkpxkn�vb Lmgk Pc̀ykpg�È � Ifkkg�È �SkjdlmX�Tkzmo�����������È cgf�Uxjmf̀im�Lc�X�I{dgk���� Tkj��È ��]���̂����\����$"#Q�|��������� uuu�xdijkb\f̀cl�p̀iQwI ��������� ��U$��

M#JPV"S�ISJKG�"E�$GGT���� �� ��� ����!�[�����}���t��EU#TV
�!�[������~:.:>:';�A-? EU#TV

QJTSV�K"EG�]IGG�IVGGT��̂

QJTSV�K"EG�]IGG�IV
GGT��̂

%:>0�';?0�%0@0>=YUZELJ#N�K"EGGJIGQGET�K"EGKUT�K"EGJLwU"EG#�K"EGYZ"KL"EM�IGTYJSR#UJLHJN�SGETG#K"EG IZ#WGNU#_Rdijkb\V̀ cl�mln�JoòpdmgkoX�"lp�����E��Uxjmf̀im�Lc�X�I{dgk����SkjdlmX�Tkzmo������Pf̀lk_����\���\����S̀ lgmpg�_�Lmldkj�Jcgf{c�#�P�K�I�UHEG# LGWGKUPG#_Imlpg{mcb�Lcdaadle�IacdleoX�KKS����E��Yc̀mn�Ig�X�I{dgk����Qdnnjkg̀lX�Lkjkumck������Pf̀lk_S̀ lgmpg_�w{ogdl�Rmgfml GEM"EGG# JPPK"SJET_Rdijkb\V̀ cl�mln�JoòpdmgkoX�"lp������Ì{gfukog�PmcxumbX�YKLM��I{dgk����J{ogdlX�Tkzmo������Pf̀lk_����\���\����S̀ lgmpg�_�Emgmjdm�Mmcm{X�P�G�S̀ lgmpg�_�Kkzdk�GlejmlnX�P�G� � � ����

I"TG GTwGTwL#"PP"EM�IP#"EMI�S"TN�K"Q"TI�]TNP"SJK̂

7:>-%�?%-'1->.'9-/;�=/:??:>@�1?/:>@1����������	��	��
�
���	��������
KUTI��\��H"TV"E�TVG#��WJZMVE�IZ#WGNX�JYIT#JST�EU����S"TN�U$�L#"PP"EM�IP#"EMI�VJNI�SUZETNX�TGtJI

�!�[�������0;�A-? EU#TV

IVGGT��

IVGGT�� IVGGT��

IVGGT��



��������	
��� ���
���	

�������������
�������

�������
�������

������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������

������ ������� ������ ������� ������� �������
�������

������

�������
��������������������������

�������
������������

������ ������ ������� �������

�������
������������ ������������� ������ ����������� ������� ������ ������ ������

������������������� ������
�������

������
��������������������

������������������ ������

������� ����������������������������������
������	�� ����
������	��
��		��� ��!��
����
������	��

����
��� ����
��� ����
���  ������
�����"#�
��$��"��%
�
���������
�%
����� ����
���

����
���

����
������ ��
�����

�$�����&
����
!��$�

�$�����&
����
!��$�

'()
*+,-.
/0123-*4-*-
35,
6), '()
+7+,-.
/0123-*48+*
35,
6),
'()
+8+,-.
/0123-*49.:
35,
6), '()
+-+,-.
/0123-*4;8+
35,
6),

'()
+9+,-+
/01239.4+99
35,
6),'()
+;+,-+
/0123-*4*<8
35,
6),
'()
+*:,<<
/0123+7.4<;7
35,
6),=/)21
5>/'?)@AB2)2C)?(CD(CB
/CB
B1/?C/E2
2/32F2C)

'()
<:+,-+
/01239.4.<9
35,
6),
'()
<7+,-.
/0123-*48+7
35,
6),

'()
<8+,-.
/0123-*4;.;
35,
6),
'()
<-+,-<
/01239.47.*
35,
6),

'()
<9+,-.
/0123-*48+7
35,
6),
'()
<;+,-.
/0123-*4-<+
35,
6),

'()
<*+,-.
/0123-*4;:.
35,
6),
'()
:.+,-.
/0123-*49*8
35,
6),

����������� �������
����������� �������

����������� �������
����������� �������

����������� �������

����������� �������

����������� �������

����������� �������
����������� ������������������ ������������������ �������

����������� ������������������ �������
����������� �������

����������� ��������������
������������������ �������

����������� �������

�����������������
����������� �������

���!�$�
���	����
������	�
���
��������������	�	���	
�"!��  ��G
� ���G�
�����
 ����
�$���
�%
 G�
�� �������	�

!���
���&����	�
���
��������������	�	��
�����
���	���
����	
����	�
���
�������� �������	� ��
�����
"�G�����	�
���
��������������	�	��
�����
���	���
����	
����	�
���
�������� �������	�

!���
���&������!
�����
�����	�
���
��������������	�!���
���&������!
�����
�����	�
���
��������������	�

 ��
�����
"�G�������!
�����
�������	�
���
��������������	�
H��I����
��
������$���
����%
 G�
���������	�����
���	��
�������	
��$���
�%
 G�
�� �������	� J��&
#
H�������
���������	�
���
��������������	�����
���	��
�������	
��$���
�%
 G�
�� �������	� ���	
&�$����
�
#
!�"����
�$���
����%
 G�
���������	�����
���	��
�������	
��$���
�%
 G�
�� �������	�

����������� ��������
�������������������

����������� �������������������������������������������
����������� ������� ����������� �������

�����������������

�����������������

���������� �������
�� �� ����������� ������� ������

����������� �������
����������� �������

������������������

����������� ��������� ������ ���

���
���

���

������

������

������

�������
����������� ������������� ���
������������

�������

�������

�����������������'()
<<+,-.
/0123-*4-;<
35,
6), '()
<++,9.
/0123974<<;
35,
6),
'()
<.+,-.
/0123-*488.
35,
6),

���
"���"��� ���
"���"������
"���"���

���
"���"��� ���
"���"���
���
"���"��� ��K!�K����!G�
��
 �$�J��	
L�� M�
N
������

���
 "���	���	�����J��	 ���
 "���	���	�����J��	

���
 "���	���	�����J��	���
 "���	���	�����J��	
���
"���"��� ���
"���"��� ���
"���"��� ���
"���"��� ���
"���"��� ���
"���"���

���
"���"���

���
"���"��� ���
"���"������
"���"������
"���"������
"���"���
���
"���"���

���
"���"���

���
"���"���
���
"���"���

���
"���"������
"���"���

���
"���"���
���
"���"��� ���
"���"���

���
"���"������
"���"���
���
"���"�����
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"��� ��
"���"�����
"���"��� ��
"���"�����
"���"��� ��
"���"�����
"���"���
��
"���"��� ��
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"�����
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"���
��
"���"�����
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"���
��
"���"��� ��
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"���

��
"���"�����
"���"���
��
"���"�����
"���"���

��!����&
����J��	L"�
�� ���	����	�J��	M

��!����&
����J��	L"�
�� ���	����	�J��	M

�OPQRSTUV
W
����&SXYZQK�OR[
\[]
�̂ Ô_S\VẐ%
�[_��YY
RSTUV̂
RẐZR̀Z] !�G
��J�a
&ab���c�
�$��b���������K��

��	���
K
!��  ��G

� ���G�%
	db!�Gb�

��������
K
����	�
��
!��  ��G
� ���G

�
K
�����
 ��	�!�G


 ��		�!
"�����

��%
J������
�������
��
��a��
 J
���	
��

$�!���������
�a��
�
J

�_\YZ !R\e[
fQ� ��JH���
N
���� �UZ_gZ]
fQ !\VZ  ROhZ_V
�O� �UZZV
�O��ZYS[\%
	Zi\̂

��������
�ORVU
�gY\UOX\
!R�%
�jSVZ
��� 	ZY�
�O�
L���M
���K�������J
k
�������� eee�gSXYZQKUOR[�_OXJH� ��������� �
��
�

G�� ���
�����
��
���	���� �� ��� �����
N
����l
��d�����	�
��
N
�����m?0?C?)@
F/D ���	�J�	��
����
L���
����	
�M

J�	��
����
L���
��
��	
�M

'?C2
)@D2
'2E2CB"��!���
��������J��	
������	
�����!H�����
����"��!��G
��	"��&���!���
���	������
��$����a&SXYZQK�OR[
\[]
�̂ Ô_S\VẐ%
�[_����
��
�gY\UOX\
!R�%
�jSVZ
����ZYS[\%
	Zi\̂
����� UO[Za
���K���K�����O[V\_V
a
!\[SZY
�RVUjR
�� �����������!�$��� ��a�\[_Vj\RQ
!RSPPS[T
�PRS[T̂%
������
��
"RO\]
�V�%
�jSVZ
���JS]]YZVO[%
!ZYZe\RZ
����� UO[Za�O[V\_Va
HĵVS[
&\VU\[ ��G�������  �����	a&SXYZQK�OR[
\[]
�̂ Ô_S\VẐ%
�[_�����
�OjVUeẐV
 \Rge\Q%
"�!G
��jSVZ
����ĵVS[%
	Zi\̂
����� UO[Za
���K���K�����O[V\_V
a
�\V\YS\
G\R\j%
 ����O[V\_V
a
�ZiSZ
�[TY\[]%
 ��� ��������

��	� �	H�	H!��  ��G
� ���G�
��	�
��J�	�
L	� ����M

6?C/'
D'/)3/C0)>/1@
B1?DD?CE
3D1?CE3nopqrpst
uvowv
xy
yrprvz{t
|zssy��	�
�K����	���
	����
$�G��
��$��%
�"�	���	
���
����	�
��
!��  ��G
� ���G�
����
���	�%
	�d��

��
N
�����}2@
F/D ���	�

����	
�

����	
� ����	
�

����	
�



��������	
�
��������������
���
�������	���
�������
����	�
�������� � !
"�#$%
�%&�$'()
*+,$-&./���0�)�

"�1*�+-
�
�+�22�"!

)2+�"!)�
13&� !&

./���0
�
)�"�1*�
+-
�+�22�"!
)2+�"!

)
�
4�"�'
2'�1�� !


2'511$�
6-) �-

"$�
#����$'
780�8�
��
0�%0�
2#
'�)1
)�

,$�780�8���
9%::
�
#

)���� ���;�
<�)2�8#=)"8� ����>��
<� ��	� 2��?��	
"�� )���	
"���������
1�@��

7:/�
"��	�
5>������
����
)A�	�
0: 1���
"��
B�./C
:0���4�+#
D
00/�:E ;;;�>��������������#=) ./���0 .
54
7

FGHFIGJK
LIMNGOFJOHPQRSTUUV
WNGIMXIOPY
�
	���	
�Z
����
��	A�	��
��
	��
+�
,�A���
)A�����
�<�	���	
"��
0.�
����
��A�	��
1�@�����
<����
���
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
)�����	�
�����
2��	�����
''���
���������
	�
	�����A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���A���	
"��
��E�/��
+������
�Z
����
��A�	��
1�@���
���<����
����
���	��A�����
������<��
��
Z����;�%XIYOPPOPY
�	
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
:�:\
��
	��
���	
����
�Z����Z����
+���
�
�A<���
����	��Z�;���
Z��
	��
��A	�������	
���	�;��	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z����
��������
	�
 ������
,���
=��
���	��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
�����	�A���	
"��
09�7/9
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
0_��̀:7a
 ��	�
�����
����
����	��Z�;���
�
���	����
�Z
0EE�/
Z��	
	�
�:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������
��
����
����	��Z�;��]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
E0_9̀0.a
$��	�
�������
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
�	
�
���	����
�Z
07�9
Z��	Z��
	��
���	
)�A	�����
)�A	�;��	
������
�Z
�
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
)������
!���
'
���2�����
��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"��
�E70�
B+�����1�C����
���	��A���
;�	�
�
;��	
����
�Z
����
)�����
	���	
Z��
�
	�	��
���	����
�Z
��07�0
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]Ĵ IPNI
"��	�
99_E.̀0/a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
���	����
���	
��A	�
����
�Z
����
)�����
	���	�
����	����
�Z
�EE�E7
Z��	
	�
�
08������
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]Ĵ IPNI
)�A	�
�9_:È00a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	���
���	
���	
����
�Z
����
)�����
	���	�
����	����
�Z
0�9�9�
Z��	
	�
�
.�
����
Z�A��
Z��
������]Ĵ IPNI
)�A	�
0_E�̀0a
$��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
����
�����
�
���	����
�Z
7./�/9
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]Ĵ IPNI
"��	�
99_�9̀�a
$��	�
;�	�
�
��A	����
����
�Z
����
)�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
90�7/Z��	
	�
�
E89�����
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������
��
	��
;��	
����
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�'�����
�����
������
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
,��A��
�:0E�
2���
�9B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
�_È�.a
$��	�
;�	�
����
;��	
�����
�
���	����
�Z
:9/�/.
Z��	
	�
�
08������
�������
Z�A��
Z��
	��
��A	�;��	
������
�Z
����
1���	
06�
����
<����
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
	��		���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
�������
)��A	����
''���
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
�����	�A���	
"��
�009/E
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
�_:.̀�a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
�������
)��A	����
	���	�
�
���	�����Z
�:�.0
Z��	
	�
�
����	
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
�0_E:̀�Ea
$��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
����
;��	
�����
�������
�	
�
���	����
�Z0�00��.�
Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
�:��\
Z��
	��
��A	�;��	������
�Z
����
�������
)��A	����
	���	�
����
<����
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
������������
	�
�������
)	�����
�
=��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	"���070�
B+�����1�C
���
���	��A���
Z��
�
	�	��
�Z
0�00��.�
Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��Z��
	��
��A	�;��	
������
�Z
����
�������
)	�����
	���	�
����
<����
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
 �����
���
$���
'�����
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z������
��
���	�A���	
"��
���.�
B2�+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
E_07̀�a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
'����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
�7E�EZ��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
��
����
;��	
�����
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
������������
	�
4��	
�������
'
���
��<����
+�
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��,��A��
0E:�
2���
:�:
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_��̀�:a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
4��	
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
�97�.�Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[6b�
)A���\
Z��
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z����
4��	
	���	�
����
<����
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
#��>
���=����Z��
)������
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"��
0/9:9:B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_�7̀�9a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
)�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
��7�09Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_�.̀0/a
 ��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
����
���	�
�����
�
���	����
�Z
0�:�9/
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_��̀E�a
 ��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
����
���	�
�����
�
���	����
�Z
0��./
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
����
4��	
	���	�
����
<����
Z��
	�����	����	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
=��cA����
��
�����A��
���������
	�
	�����A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
,��A��
�.97�
2���
9�
B+�����1�C�
����
<����
Z��
	��
��A	����	������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
2�A�
�����
6A�����
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z������
��
���	�A���	
"��
0/E0�.�
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
E0_:.̀E.a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
�����A�
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
E�/�.7Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
���������A�
	���	�
����
<����
Z��
	��
��A	����	
������
�Z
�
������
�//.�����
	���	
�Z
������������
	�
��;�
$��>��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"���9:0
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
0_EÈ07a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
�//.�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z��E�7�
Z��	
	�
�
��		��
�������
Z�A��
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
����
�//.�����
	���	�
����<����
Z��
	��
���	���
���	
��A	����	
������
�Z
�
������
0�:E������
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	���;�
$��>��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"��
�0E0�/
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
0_�/̀E0a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
0�:E������
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z0.9�:
Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_È�/a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
0�:E������
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z0�7�0�
Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
:._�/̀Ea
 ��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
	��
���	�����
����
�Z
����
0�:E������
	���	�
����	����
�Z
:���:/
Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
	��
���	����	������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
����;����
������
#����
!�����
���
=�����
���������	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"��
�0�E9
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
99_�/̀�a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
����;���
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
09��:.

Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
97_�̀E/a
 ��	�
���	��A���
;�	�
����
���	�
�����
�
���	����
�Z
�7�.�
Z��	
	�
�:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
0_�7̀:�a
 ��	�
�
���	����
�Z
0E:�/.
Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
����	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
9/_:�̀09a
 ��	�
�
���	����
�Z
�07��
Z��	
	�
�
:89�����
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
����	�����
[�1)\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
0_:̀9a
$��	�
�
���	����
�Z
00��/.
Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
����	�����
[�1)\
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
!�����
���+������
=�
)�������
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"��
�0/:7B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
90_0È:a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
)������
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
�/��Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[�1)\
Z��
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
����)������
	���	�
����
<����
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
	��	
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
+������+�<����
���
5̀�����
������
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"����97E
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
90_0̀:7a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
+�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
0���70Z��	
	�
�
2�
"���
Z�A��
Z��
������
��
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
+�����
	���	�
Z��
	��
��A	����	
�������Z
'�	
E
�Z
1��
)�����
��
����	���
	�
����
��A�	��
���������
	�
	��
2��	
Z����
�Z
������
�����	�A���	
"��
0.�:./
B2�+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
_�/̀:.a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
)�����
�
���	����
�Z
E7���E
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[����
:7E\
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
'�	
�
�Z
����1��
)�����
����
<����
	��
��A	����	
������
�Z
'�	
0
�Z
	��
)����]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
_:̀�.a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
'�	
0�
�
���	����
�Z
00/�0:
Z��	
	�
�08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[����\
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z
����
1��
)���������
<����
Z��
	��
��A	����	
������
�Z
�
������
0�:�����
	���	
�Z
����
��������
	�
 ������,���
=��
���
����
���
���	��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
������
��
���	�A���	
"���0�00�
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
7_0�̀:.a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
0�:�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
�:��:Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
:�:\
Z��
	��
���	����	
������
�Z����
0�:�����
	���	�
����
<����
	��
��A	����	
������
�Z
�
������
�7:�����
	���	
�Z
������������
	�
 ������
,���
=��
���
����
���
���	��
���������
	�
	��
���A���	
Z����
�Z
��������
���	�A���	
"��
�0��97
B+�����1�C]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
��_�7̀.a
$��	�
;�	�
	��
���	
����
�Z
����
�7:�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
�E9�7.Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
"��	�
:_E7̀0a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
���	�
����
�Z
����
�7:�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z
:��7Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
:�:\
Z��
������]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
::_��̀0.a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
�7:�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z�/7�0
Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
:�:\
Z��
	��
��A	�;��	������
�Z
����
�7:�����
	���	�
����
<����
Z��
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
	��
�<�������	�����0�:�����
	���	]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
:�_�̀�Ea
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
0�:�����
	���	�
�
���	����
�Z�E7�EE
Z��	
	�
�
08������
����
���
Z�A��
;�	�
���
�	�����
[+2')
:�:\
Z��
	��
��A	�;��	������
�Z
����
0�:�����
	���	�
����
<����
Z��
	��
���	�;��	
������
�Z
	��
�<�������	��������	�
	���	
��������
��
09�7/9]1̂ IPNI
)�A	�
�7_È:�a
 ��	�
;�	�
	��
;��	
����
�Z
����
���	�
	���	
��������
��
09�7/9�
����	����
�Z
07:�..
Z��	
	�
	��
FHOPJ
Hd
XIYOPPOPY
���
���	������
��:���70E
�cA���
Z��	��
0��EE�
�����
�Z
�����

PHJIMe0�
���
�������
���
:89�����
����
����
��	
;�	�
�
����	��
���
�	�����
a���a
A�����
�	���;���
��	�����
���
<�������
���;�
���
<����
��
����
���	�
�Z
	��
1�@��
��������	�
)��	��
�Z
0/9E�
)�A	�
���	���
f���
B���C�
"��	�
��������
��	A�
�Z
0/9E�
�������������
���;�
���
����
���	������E�
���
52$"
)2��$
��	�
���
	�
<�
�;���
���
����	�����
<�
	��
�����;���̀�
�������	������
���������
	�
����A��	�
2����
"��
�9�/�0�4�
��	��
)��	��<��
��
�:
�Z
	��
"�	�����
4����
���A�����
2������
#���
4����
���A�����
+�	�
#��
�Z����
��A�	��
1�@���
4������
$��������
#��������	
�������
4������
���A�����
�������	��	����
�
	���
������	�
��
;�	���
f���
3�
�����
��	�������
	�
<��A	����
	��
��g
���A��
������
Z����������

1���
Z����
�	�	����	
����
��	
�����
	��	
	��
������	�
���8��
	��
�	�A�	A���
	������
;���
<�
Z���
Z���
Z�������
��Z����
�������

5�
����
����������
����	��
Z�����
���
���
;���
���A�
���
Z����
�����	�
���
<�
���������
<�
��������
��
��	A���
��A����

1���
Z����
�	�	����	�����
��	
����	�
���<���	�
��
	��
���	
�Z
	��
�A�������:�
"�
���	���
�Z
	���
������	�
����
��
	��
$�;����
�cA�Z��
+�������
f����

1���
������	�
����
��	�����
��
	��
$�;����
�cA�Z��
���	��<A	���
f����.�
1���
�A<��������
��
����	��
��
	��
Z����;���
���	���	�%�
��������
)������
����������	
)�����
���	���	�
$��������
)������
���	���	�
0
b
.�
����
1����	�
!��A��;�	��
��������	���
���	���	7�
"�
����	�A�	���
��
�	���
����������	
;�	���
	���
�A<��������
���
<����
A�	��
���
����
��A�	�
����������	
�A	����h�	���
��cA������	�
����
<���
��	��Z����9�
5���
'�	�
0�:
�����
���
����	��
cA���Z�
Z��
	��
���	����	���
�Z
�	������
����	�
��;���
Z�����	����
'�	�
A����
���
����
���
��	
�����
���A��
Z��
����	�
��;���Z�����	����
'�	�
�������
	��	
0�:
�����
��cA���
��������
5))4�/�
"�
�	�A�	A��
��
	���
�A<��������
�����
<�
���A����
A�	��
������	��
	�
��
�������A��
;�	��
���	��
��
�	�	����������
����A��	�
;�	��
���	���
�A�
	�
���������;�	��
�A�����
�������	���
�;����
���
��A	�����
<�
����
��A�	�
	�
cA��	���
	��
������
����������
���A��;�	��
������<���	��
+���;�	��
������	���
��
����A���������
��
����
������
���
�ZZ��
	��
<��	
����;�<��
;�	��
��A����0�
"�
�	�A�	A��
��
	���
�A<��������
�����
<�
���A����
A�	��
������	��
	�
�
�����		��
��;��
���	��
��
	�
��
�����	�
��;���
Z�����	�
	��	
���
<���
��������
��������		��
<�
����
��A�	��00�
2��	�����	�A�	���
�	���;�	��
���	���
����A���
�����
����
�
����	������
�����
1��
����	������
����
�A�	
<�
Z����
��
	��
����
������	�
�������
�Z
������A�	��
1��
�;���
�����	��
�Z
���
��;
����������	
��
������������	
��	�
�����
�������
���
��������	
�
����	������
����
����������
����	��������cA������	�
Z��
���
�	�A�	A���
���	���
����A���
���	�����
��
��	��
5����	���
���
����	������
���Z�����
�����
<�
���A���	��
���
��	�����
���
����������<��
Z��
�����;
A���
��cA��	�0��
2��	�����������	
�����	����
�A��ZZ
��	�
�����
<�
��
����	��
	���
	��
�������������
�����	���
Z��
��
:�
0�
�:�
���
0
����
�	���
����	��
2��
���
���	����������	
�A��ZZ
����A��	����
�����
<�
����A���
;�	�
	��
����	�A�	���
���;����
Z��
	���
�A<���������0E�
���
����;���
�����
<�
��������
���
����	�A�	��
��
����������
;�	�
�������<��
����
��A�	�
�	��������0��
���
�A����	��
;���
��cA����
�����
������
;�	�
	��
�A����	
����
��A�	�
�	�������0:�
����
��A�	�
��
��	
��������<��
Z��
����;��>
����	�������

�
ZA���
�@��A	��
�������
��������	
�A�	
<�
��������
�����
	�
����	�A�	���
�Z
����;��>�
;�	�������
��A�	�
+5 �0.�
)������
�
���	���
�Z
	���
����	���
<�
��	��
���
<�A���
��
�
�����	���
�Z
��	�
���������
���
�	�	�
��;
���
��
�A<?��	
	�
Z����
���
;�	��������
�Z
A	���	�
���<A������
�����	��07�
'�	
)A�����%:
'51)
i
0�
��+$)�9
'51)
0�
�
��
��+$)�
'51)



��
�
:�
��+$)0
'51)



:�
�
0�
��+$)�������
'�	
)�h�%
0�.:
��+$)'�	
�������	���%�/
)�����
4�����
+������	���
'�	�:
 �	��
jA���	�8��	��	���
2���
���
��������
$������	
'�	�0
2��>����
 �	��
jA���	�8��	��	���
2���
���
��������
$������	
'�	0
5���
)����
'�	09�
*	���	���
��������
<�%IkINJGON
lJOkOJK
FGHmOLIGeB�������C
2$�$+"�'$)
$'$�1+��
�552$+�1�,$B"���
���
1�	��C
((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((B��	�C
((((((((((((((nWMJInWJIG
lJOkOJK
FGHmOLIGeB�������C
5))4nWJIG
lJOkOJK
FGHmOLIGeB�������C
+���;�	��
������	���
���
4���
1��>0/�
#���<�@��
������
;�	���
	��
+5 
�����
<�
�Z
��
��������
1@�51
��
4� �
���������
�����;���
�����
������
;�	�
����	��
7�0
�Z
����
��A�	�
����������	
+��A��	�����
���
<�
�����		��
	���A��
	��
	�������	�	���
�����	���	
�Z
������A�	�
A����
����	��
7:0��0�
+���	
�Z
 ��
�������%
00��E
���������
���
����;���
;���
<�
�A<�����
������	����E�
'�	
:0
;���
<�
����	�����
<�
	��
����
5;���̀�
�������	�������
)	���;�	��
��	��	���
���
;�	��
cA���	�
�����
;���
<�
�����	��
���
����	�����
<�
	��
����
5;���̀�
�������	���� 78/8���

dOPWk
FkWJMWPNJlWGK
LGOFFOPY
MFGOPYMopqrsqtu
vwpxw
yz
zsqsw{|u
}{ttz'51)
0�:. �1��"
1�$+�
,�*!�"
)*+,$-�
�6)1+��1
"5�
0.��1-
54
�+�22�"!
)2+�"!)
��-)
�5*"1-�
1$3�)



�����������	
������� ��������������������������������������������������� ��������
�����
����
�����
���
�����������	
�������� ������������������������������������������������� ��������
�����
����
���
���

�����������	
����������� ���������������������������������������������� �������
�����
����
�����
���

������������	
�������������������������������������������

 �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�� ������
�����
�����
�����
�����
�����
�����
�����
������
�����
������
�����
�����
�����
������
������
������
������
��

���������
�����
������
�����
�����
������
������
������
�����
�����
������
�����
������
������
�����
������
������
������
���

��	� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��	� ���
�����
������
����
����
�����
������
������
����
���
�����
����
������
�����
������
������
�����
�����
���

�!"#$%&'(�)�����*%+,-#.�!$/�0/1��22!3%0(-24��/3
�,,�$%&'(2�$-2-$5-1  �����6�7�*78���9�
����:8���������.��

������:�.� ��;;���
��;�����4��<8 ��8�

���������.��������
�:� ��;;�����;����

��.�=�����;���
 ���
�;�	��� ��:���:

��4�6��������>��>��
�����7���;6��������

�� �>��>������7����
6

�30,-  $0?/�@#�;�>6A��>� �'-3B-1�@#  0(- ;$!C-3(��!
 �'--(��!
�-,%/04��-D02������������!$('�	B,0'!+0� $
4��E%(-���� �-,
��!
�F���G����.����=��6�H�������� ???
B%+,-#.'!$/
3!+6A� �>�>���� ��������� ��	=��

IJKJL�MN�JLOKI PQMRSJT�MN�QMUUVS����PWSMX�KUU�YLS�ZT�J[LIL�\]LILSJI�'0(��4� 0/%-,��$('E$4�0��-&%2(-$-1�;$!̂-22%!/0,��0/1��E$5-#!$�%/�('-��(0(-�!̂��-D02�1!'-$-@#�3-$(%̂#�('0(���"$-"0$-1�('%2�",0(�0/1�('-�̂%-,1�/!(-2�+01-�0�"0$(�('-$-!̂�̂$!+�0/03(E0,�0/1�033E$0(-�2E$5-#�!̂�('-�,0/1�0/1�('0(�('-�3!$/-$�+!/E+-/(2�2'!?/�('-$-!/?-$-�"$!"-$,#�",03-1�E/1-$�+#�2E"-$5%2%!/
�!�('-�@-2(�!̂�+#�B/!?,-1&-4�('-�",0(�033E$0(-,#�$-̂,-3(2�('-�&-/-$0,�,!30(%!/�!̂�('-�!/($%@E(%/&�_!/-�!̂�('-��1?0$12��̀E%̂-$
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 0/%-,��$('E$�-&%2(-$-1�;$!̂-22%!/0,��0/1��E$5-#!$�-D02��-&%2($0(%!/��!
���*%+,-#.�!$/�0/1��22!3%0(-24��/3
�����!$('�	B,0'!+0� $%5-4��E%(-�����-,%/04��<������F���G����.����10/%-,
0$('E$aB%+,-#.'!$/
3!+IJKJL�MN�JLOKI PQMRSJT�MN�QMUUVS P�-̂!$-�+-4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-1�0E('!$%(#4�0��!(0$#�;E@,%3�%/�0/1�̂!$�20%1��!E/(#�0/1��(0(-4!/�('%2�10#�"-$2!/0,,#�0""-0$-1� 0/%-,��$('E$4�B/!?/�(!�+-�(!�@-�('-�"-$2!/�?'!2-/0+-�%2�2E@23$%@-1�(!�('-�̂!$-&!%/&�%/2($E+-/(�0/1�03B/!?,-1&-1�(!�+-�('0(�'--D-3E(-1�('-�20+-�̂!$�('-�"E$"!2-�0/1�3!/2%1-$0(%!/2�('-$-%/�-D"$-22-1
�%5-/�E/1-$�+#�'0/1�0/1�2-0,�!̂�!̂̂%3-4�('%2�999999999999999�10#�!̂999999999999999999999999999999994���9999
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999�!(0$#�;E@,%3�%/�0/1�̂!$�('-��(0(-�!̂��-D02

;����6����:����� 	��6����������	��������	� � �=	���:�;��;	����� �������	�������� �	������ �	������� �;	�������=���������:� 	��6���

IJKJL�MN�JLOKI PQMRSJT�MN�[KTI��� P�4��,0%/-��0$1-/024��!E/(#��,-$B�!̂��0#2��!E/(#4��-D024�1!�'-$-@#�3-$(%̂#�('0(�('%2�",0(�?02%̂,-1�̂!$�$-3!$1�%/�+#�!̂̂%3-�!/�('-�999999�10#�!̂�999999999999999+���9999�0(�99999999!�3,!3B�999+4�0/1�1E,#�$-3!$1-1�!/�('-�999999�10#�!̂�999999999999999994���999�0(99999999�!�3,!3B�999+4�%/�('-�;,0(��-3!$12�!̂��0#2��!E/(#4��-D02�%/��0#2��!E/(#�/2($E+-/(��E+@-$�999999999999999
99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999�,0%/-��0$1-/02�!E/(#��,-$B�0#2��!E/(#4��-D02

WSMX�KUU�YLS�ZT�J[LIL�\]LILSJI�'0(�?-4��0/3(E0$#� $%""%/&��"$%/&2����4�02�!?/-$�!̂����
���03$-2�@-%/&�0,,�!̂�('0(�($03(!̂�,0/1�!E(�!̂�('-��
��0E&'/��E$5-#4��@2($03(��!
���4�%/��0#2��!E/(#4��-D024�3!/5-#-1�(!�-$-/%(#��%,,2�;0$(/-$2����4�%/�0��-/-$0,��0$$0/(#� --1�10(-1�AE/-���4������0/1�$-3!$1-1%/�1!3E+-/(�/!
���������!̂�('-�	̂ %̂3%0,�;E@,%3��-3!$12�!̂��0#2��!E/(#4�(-D024�1!�'-$-@#01!"(�('%2�",0(�1-2%&/0(%/&�('-����
���03$-�($03(�02��0/3(E0$#� $%""%/&��"$%/&24�0/�011%(%!/(!��0#2��!E/(#4�0/1�1!�'-$-@#�1-1%30(-�(!�('-�E2-�!̂�('-�"E@,%3�0,,�2($--(24�0,,-#24�"0$B24?0(-$3!E$2-24�1$0%/24�"E@,%3�-02-+-/(2�0/1�"E@,%3�",03-2�2'!?/�'-$-!/�E/,-22�!('-$?%2-%/1%30(-1�-%('-$�@#�",0(�!$�2-"0$0(-�%/2($E+-/(4�0/1�('0(�('%2�",0(�%2�2E@C-3(�(!�0,,�!̂�('-$-̀E%$-+-/(2�!̂�('-�2E@1%5%2%!/�$-&E,0(%!/2�!̂�('-��%(#�!̂� $%""%/&��"$%/&2�0/1�('-��!E/(#!̂��0#24��-D02�%(/-22�+#�'0/1�('%2�99999999�10#�!̂�999999999999999999994���9999
999999999999999999999999999AE2(%/�*0('0/4�	?/-$�0/3(E0$#� $%""%/&2��"$%/&2����������$--/��-$$03-�!E/1��!3B4��<������IJKJL�MN�JLOKI PQMRSJT�MN�bbbbbb P�-̂!$-�+-4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-1�0E('!$%(#4�0��!(0$#�;E@,%3�%/�0/1�̂!$�20%1��!E/(#�0/1��(0(-4�!/('%2�10#"-$2!/0,,#�0""-0$-1�9999999999999999999994�B/!?/�(!�+-�(!�@-�('-�"-$2!/�?'!2-/0+-�%2�2E@23$%@-1�(!�('-�̂!$-&!%/&�%/2($E+-/(�0/1�03B/!?,-1&-1�(!�+-�('0(�'-�-D-3E(-1('-�20+-�̂!$�('-�"E$"!2-�0/1�3!/2%1-$0(%!/2�('-$-%/�-D"$-22-1
�%5-/�E/1-$�+#�'0/1�0/1�2-0,�!̂�!̂̂%3-4�('%2�999999999999999�10#�!̂999999999999999999999999999999994���9999
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999�!(0$#�;E@,%3�%/�0/1�̂!$�('-��(0(-�!̂��-D02999999999999999999999996#��!++%22%!/�-D"%$-2�!/7�4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-14� %$-3(!$�!̂��0#2��!E/(#� -5-,!"+-/(��-$5%3-2� -"0$(+-/(4�'-$-@#3-$(%̂#�('0(�('%2�2E@1%5%2%!/�",0(�3!/̂!$+2�(!�0,,��0#2��!E/(#�$-̀E%$-+-/(2�02�2(0(-1�%/�('-�/(-$,!30,��!!"-$0(%!/��&$--+-/(�@-(?--/��0#2��!E/(#�0/1�('-��%(#�!̂� $%""%/&��"$%/&2!̂$�2E@1%5%2%!/�$-&E,0(%!/2�?%('%/�('-�-D($0(-$$%(!$%0,�CE$%21%3(%!/
99999999999999999999999999960$3E2�;03'-3!4� %$-3(!$�0#2��!E/(#� -5-,!"+-/(��-$5%3-2�4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-14� %$-3(!$��0#2��!E/(#� -5-,!"+-/(��-$5%3-2� -"0$(+-/(4�'-$-@#�3-$(%̂#('0(�('%2�2E@1%5%2%!/�",0(�3!/̂!$+2�(!�0,,��0#2��!E/(#�$-̀E%$-+-/(2�02�2(0(-1�%/�('-��0#2�!E/(#� -5-,!"+-/(��-&E,0(%!/2�0/1>!$��0#2��!E/(#�$E,-2�̂!$�!/.2%(-�2-?0&-�̂03%,%(%-2
9999999999999999999999999999999960$3E2�;03'-3!4� %$-3(!$�0#2��!E/(#� -5-,!"+-/(��-$5%3-2�4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-14�=,!!1",0%/��1+%/%2($0(!$�!̂��0#2��!E/(#4�'-$-@#�3-$(%̂#�('0(�('%22E@1%5%2%!/�",0(�3!/̂!$+2�(!�0,,��0#2��!E/(#�̂,!!1",0%/�$-̀E%$-+-/(2�02�2(0(-1�%/�('-��0#2�!E/(#�1-5-,!"+-/(�$-&E,0(%!/2
9999999999999999999999999999�$%3��0/��002@--B4��
�
4��=6�0#2��!E/(#�=,!!1",0%/��1+%/%2($0(!$�4�('-�E/1-$2%&/-14� %$-3(!$�!̂� $%""%/&��"$%/&2�;,0//%/&� -"0$(+-/(4�'-$-@#�3-$(%̂#�('0(('%2�2E@1%5%2%!/�",0(�3!/̂!$+2�(!�0,,� $%""%/&��"$%/&2�$-̀E%$-+-/(2�02�2(0(-1�%/�('-��/(-$,!30,�!!"-$0(%!/��&$--+-/(�@-(?--/��0#2��!E/(#�0/1�('-��%(#�!̂� $%""%/&��"$%/&2�̂!$2E@1%5%2%!/�$-&E,0(%!/2�?%('%/�('-�-D($0(-$$%(!$%0,�CE$%21%3(%!/
9999999999999999999999999999�!$#��0$"-/(-$4�;,0//%/&� %$-3(!$ $%""%/&��"$%/&2�;,0//%/&� -"0$(+-/( �����:	�7*%+,-#.�!$/�0/1��22!3%0(-24��/3
�����
�	B,0'!+0� $
4��E%(-�����-,%/04��-D02������;'!/-7����.���.�����!/(03(�7� 0/%-,��$('E$��
;
�
�
	����> ����	;��7�0/3(E0$#� $%""%/&��"$%/&24���������
��$!01��(
4��E%(-����6%11,-(!/4� -,-?0$-������;'!/-7�!/(03(7�AE2(%/�*0('0/ ��������>�;;������7*%+,-#.�!$/�0/1��22!3%0(-24��/3
�����!E('?-2(�;0$B?0#4��� ����E%(-�����E2(%/4��-D02�����;'!/-7����.���.�����!/(03(�7��0(0,%0��0$0E4�;
�
�!/(03(�7��-D%-��/&,0/14�;
�


NVSKU�\UKJIKSQJRK]T�c]V\\VSd�I\]VSdIefghigjk�lmfnm�op�pigimqrk�sqjjp�	����.�������������
�������������:4�����������	
������:�	=� ��;;�����;��������:���	���:4���<��















AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 7.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding, P.E., Transportation Director

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to approve the selection of B2Z Engineering, LLC to provide construction, engineering &
inspection (CE&I) services for the drainage and low water crossing improvements at Bear Creek project in Precinct 4; and
authorize staff and counsel to negotiate a work authorization under their on-call CE&I contract.   
 SMITH /BOR C H ER D IN GSMITH /BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
The drainage and low water crossing improvements at Bear Creek project as part of the 2016 Road Bond Program requires
construction, engineering and inspection services to support the construction phase of this project, anticipated for late 2024.

B2Z Engineering, LLC has been pre-qualified by Hays County for the requested services through RFQ 2022-Q02 on
October 11, 2022 Item #38136. The process to initially select a consultant to negotiate a scope of work and fee proposal,
with subsequent action by the Hays County Commissioners Court to approve the contract integrating the negotiated scope
of work and fee proposal, follows the process set forth in the Hays County Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual,
revised May 30, 2017.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: I. 8.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jerry Borcherding, P.E., Transportation Director

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to approve the selection of Pape-Dawson Consulting Engineers to provide construction,
engineering & inspection (CE&I) services for the RM 2325 Sidewalk project in Precinct 3; and authorize staff and counsel to
negotiate a work authorization under their on-call CE&I contract.     SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G  SH ELL/BOR C H ER D IN G

SummarySummary
The RM 2325 Sidewalk project in Wimberley as part of the 2016 Road Bond Program requires construction, engineering
and inspection services to support the construction phase of this project, letting anticipated for September 2024.

Pape-Dawson Consulting Engineers has been pre-qualified by Hays County for the requested services through RFQ 2022-
Q02 on October 11, 2022 Item #38136. The process to initially select a consultant to negotiate a scope of work and fee
proposal, with subsequent action by the Hays County Commissioners Court to approve the contract integrating the
negotiated scope of work and fee proposal, follows the process set forth in the Hays County Purchasing Policy and
Procedures Manual, revised May 30, 2017.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 1.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2470-PC; Hold a Public Hearing; followed by discussion and possible action regarding Woodcreek, Section 22,
Reserve C, Replat.   SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Woodcreek, Section 22, Reserve C, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision consisting of nine (9) lots across 3.73 acres.  One
(1) new 50ft Private Roadway will be proposed with this replat.  This project is located along Jacobs Well Road in
Wimberley and in Precinct 3. 
Water and Wastewater Utility is being provided by Aqua Texas, Inc.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map
Application Disapproval (Comment) Letter



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Lon Shell, Precinct 3

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2470-PC; Hold a Public Hearing; followed by discussion and possible action regarding 
the Woodcreek, Section 22, Reserve C, Replat.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Woodcreek, Section 22, Reserve C, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision consisting of
nine (9) lots across 3.73 acres.

B. This project is located along Jacobs Well Road in Wimberley and in Precinct 3.
C. One (1) new 50ft Private Roadway will be proposed with this replat.
D. Water and Wastewater Utility is being provided by Aqua Texas, Inc.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has initiated review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 
Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. 

The application has no requested variances.  

The actions remaining are to Hold a Public Hearing, and then discuss final action on the proposed 
replat.

Staff recommends Disapproval based on the comments as presented in the back-up.

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 

Application Disapproval Letter



����������	
��
�����������


�	�������������������������������

�

����������� ������ 	
����!"����!

����
#$%&'(�)*�'�%)#(+),�)*-))./#$$0�1$/(+),�223�#$1$#4$�/5'61�/)7,(63�($8'1



��

����

����	��
	����	����

����	��
	����	�����
 ����	��
	����	�����
 ����	�
	��	����


����	��
	����	�����


����	��
	���	�����
����	��
	����	���


�����
 �����
 �����
 �����

�����
�����
�����


�����
�����
 ����	��
	���	����


���	���	�����
���	����	�����

���	�����	����� ���	����	�����
���	����	�����

���	����	�����
���	�����	�����

���	�����	��������	����	������������	�����	�����

�������
 �������


������
������

�������
������
������


����	��
	���	����

����	��
	����	�����


����	��
	����	������


����	��
	����	�����


����	��
	����	�����
������	��
	����	�����


����

�����


�����

����


�������
�����

����	��
	����	���


����	��
	����	�����

��

����	��
	����	�����
�� ����	��
	���	�����
����	��
	����	�����
�����


�����


������

���������

������������ ����� �!� �	�"	�������									� �#�	�$	����!�#��%						�$$ � ��	!�&� �	�����'�	�$	#���				������"	��%�� ���	��'	$���' ()*)+, ��� 							 ���	��'$�'										$���' ���	��'		�-	�� .���#��!	���
���!# �	������ �� ������


/

!�����							!�&� �	�� � ��	����0��� '�#��%									'��'	�����'�	�$	#���	������"				��%���!�#��%							����	!��!����	�����'�	�$	#���					������"	��%��

123456	78	5	371697:	78;77<=122>	?2=697:	@@A	12?21B2	=C5D?	=7E:6DA	62F5?

!���	��%%�0.��.������0�.0����.��

�GHIJ	�KLMJ�GHIJ	N�����������������
�JOPQR������������������������������������������

�KSTGU���������������������������������������������
'JMQK������
��������
��������
���������
�������
�������
��������
�������
��������
���

�RVHS	&JKHTOP����	�
	��������	��
	�������	�
	��������	�
	��������	��
	��������	�
	��������	��
	�������	��
	������	��
	���
�RVHS	�JOPQR�������������������������������������������





Owner Information:

Cottage Court LLC. (Thomas  Cole)

330 Deer Crossing Lane, Wimberley TX 78676

tj@coleconsultants.com

To whom it may concern,   

Hays County staff has completed a detailed review for the above Application. The Application has been 
disapproved. A list of comments / deficiencies is outlined below. A written response to each comment / 
deficiency is required. In addition to the written response, any updated documents, files, or other information 
must be uploaded to the MGO Connect Customer Portal. Acceptance of any documents, files, or other 
information shall not be construed as approval.

9-1-1 Street Name Review

1. 911 Technical street name review approved 7/18/2024

Floodplain Review

1. Plat note 3 should also include panel #48209C0238 F

On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) Review

1. Technical Review OSSF approved. 
Planning Review

1. Per Hays County Development Regulations Chapter 701 § 9.03 Documentation: No 
documentation received by Hays County confirming notice was accomplished as outlined in 
Chapters 701 § 9.05-9.08 and 705 § 12.03 – Posted Notice: The Applicant shall be required to 
notify the public upon submission of an Application under this Chapter, including Applications 
for new Subdivisions and Applications for revision of an existing Subdivision plat, in accordance 
with the requirements for Posted Notice in §701.9.04.
Please provide proof of Posted Notice for the Subdivision Application, referencing this 
application number PLN-2470-PC.

2. Per Hays County Development Regulations Chapter 705 § 11.03 Replats (D):  Include a 
statement giving the reason for the proposed revision.

3. General:  Approval may not be granted until all Plat review deficiencies have been remedied.
4. General:  Project must be presented to the Hays County Commissioners Court for Approval 

and/or ratification in the court minutes following clearing of all review deficiencies.

5. General: Approval may not be granted until fiscal surety for street and drainage improvements is 
posted in Commissioners Court or the roads are built to completion and inspected meeting the 
Hays County Transportation specifications.   The roadway and drainage improvements must be 
constructed per the approved plans, inspected by Hays County personnel, and conform with all 
applicable Hays County specs and standards. 

Application Disapproved Letter

Date: 7/24/2024

Project ID: PLN-2470-PC

Project Name: Woodcreek Section 22, Reserve C, 
Replat

Application Status: Application Disapproved

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://www.mgoconnect.org/auth/login
https://hayscountytx.com/


6. Per Hays County Development Regulations Chapter 705 § 8.05 (B) Other Plat Notes and 
Certifications: Plats shall contain the notes and certifications required by the Hays County Plat 
Note and Certification Standards, as applicable.
Please revise the Commissioners Court Approval/Signature Block to change the end of the block 
statement to:  
"...DULY ENTERED IN THE MINUTES OF THE SAID COURT INSTRUMENT NUMBER 
___________________."

7. Per Hays County Development Regulations Chapter 705 § 8.05 (B) Other Plat Notes and 
Certifications: Plats shall contain the notes and certifications required by the Hays 
County Plat Note and Certification Standards, as applicable.
Remove the generic signature lines/blocks for Marcus Pacheco and Eric Vangaasbeek, 
and insert the following Signature/Certification Blocks:
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DIRECTOR OF HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SUBDIVISION PLAT CONFORMS TO 
ALL HAYS COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AS STATED IN THE HAYS COUNTY 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND/OR HAYS COUNTY RULES FOR ON-SITE 
SEWAGE FACILITIES. 
________________________________________ 
MARCUS PACHECO 
DIRECTOR 
HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR OF HAYS COUNTY, HEREBY 
CERTIFY THAT THIS SUBDIVISION PLAT CONFORMS TO ALL HAYS COUNTY 
FLOODPLAIN REQUIREMENTS AS STATED IN THE HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS.
_______________________________________
ERIC VAN GAASBEEK, R.S., C.F.M.
FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR
HAYS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Transportation Review

1. Per Hays County Development regulations chapter 705.5.03, add a statement indicating 
whether the applicant shall seek public dedication of the roadways or designation of 
roadways as private roadways. Please clarify if the roadways will be dedicated to Hays 
County.

2. Per Hays County Development regulations chapter 705.5.03, add a list of roadways, with 
classifications, lengths, and ROW widths. 

3. Per Hays County Development regulations chapter 705.5.07, add a note, Hays County is 
not responsible for sidewalk maintenance.  A fully executed license agreement must be 
in-place prior to construction of sidewalks within Hays County ROW. 

4. Per Hays County Development regulations chapter 721.5.05, Add a note- Driveways shall 
comply with Chapter 721 of Hays County Development Regulations, and be permitted 
through the Transportation Department of Hays County under Chapter 751.

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


Colby Machacek

Planning Division

Hays County Development Services

5. Per Hays County Development regulations, chapter 721.2.01, add a note- Mailboxes 
placed within the ROW, shall be of an approved TxDOT or FHWA design. 

If you have any questions, please contact the Hays County Planning Division at 512-393-2150 (ext. 4) or by 
emailing planning@co.hays.tx.us.

Thank you,

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 2.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2436-NP; Discussion and possible action regarding the Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A, & 68-B, Final
Plat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A and 68-B, Final Plat is a proposed two (2) lot subdivision out of the Unrecorded Rainbow Ranch
Subdivision, Tract 68, being 10.01 acres.  The subject property is located off of South Rainbow Ranch Road in Wimberley
and in Precinct 3.
Water utility will be provided by an Individual Private Wells.  Wastewater treatment will be accomplished by an Individual
On-Site Sewage Facilities.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Lon Shell, Precinct 3

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2436-NP; Discussion and possible action regarding the Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A, & 68-B, Final.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A and 68-B, Final Plat is a proposed two (2) lot subdivision 
out of the Unrecorded Rainbow Ranch Subdivision, Tract 68, being 10.01 acres.  The 
subject property is located off of South Rainbow Ranch Road in Wimberley and in 
Precinct 3.

B. Water utility will be provided by an Individual Private Wells.  Wastewater treatment 
will be accomplished by an Individual On-Site Sewage Facilities.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has completed review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The action remaining lies with discussion and action on the final plat.

Staff recommends Approval of the Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A and 68-B, Final Plat.

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 



�����������	�
����������������	���������	������	�������������	����	���������������	�����������	��	�����������������	����� ���������	����!��





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 3.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2298-PC; Ratify the approval of the River Oaks of Wimberley Unit No. 2, Lot 26, Replat.   SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
River Oaks of Wimberley Unit No. 2, Lot 26, Replat is a proposed resubdivision consisting of 2 lots across 4.60 acres
located along Oak Knob Dr., a regulated public roadway in Wimberley and in Precinct 3.
Water utility will be accomplished by individual water wells. Wastewater utility will be accomplished by advanced individual
on-site sewage facilities.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map
Administrative Approval Letter



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Walt Smith, Precinct 4

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2298-PC; Ratify the approval of the River Oaks of Wimberley Unit 
No. 2, Lot 26, Replat.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. River Oaks of Wimberley Unit No. 2, Lot 26, Replat is a proposed resubdivision 
consisting of 2 lots across 4.60 acres located along Oak Knob Dr., a regulated 
public roadway in Wimberley and in Precinct 3.

B. Water utility will be accomplished by individual water wells. Wastewater utility 
will be accomplished by advanced individual on-site sewage facilities.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has completed review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The action remaining is to ratify approval of the proposed subdivision replat in the court minutes. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 

Hays County Administrative Approval Letter 









Owner Information:

THOMAS SCOTT WADE

251 OAK KNOB, WIMBERLEY TX 78676

dirtycarartist@gmail.com

To whom it may concern,   

Hays County staff has completed a detailed review for the above Application. Upon review, the Application 
has been found in compliance with the Hays County Development Regulations. The above Application has 
been approved.

9-1-1 Street Name Review

1. On behalf of the assigned 9-1-1 Street Name Reviewer:  911 Technical Street name review 
approved on 6/24/2024

Digital Data Review

1. The digital data technical review is approved as of 7/1/2024.

Floodplain Review

1. Technical Review Floodplain approved. 
On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) Review

1. Technical Review OSSF approved. 
Planning Review

1. Plat Technical Review Complete
General: Project must be presented to the Hays County Commissioners Court for Approval and 
ratification in the court minutes on July 16th, 2024.
A) Please prepare and deliver the Signature Plat (Record Plat) to Hays County Development Services.
1) Once the necessary Hays County signatures are obtained on the Signature Plat, notification will be provided for 
pick-up and recording.
B) A current Tax Certificate showing taxes paid will be required when recording the plat.
C) Addressing will not take place until a full-size, to-scale, paper copy and PDF version of the Fully Signed and 
Recorded Plat have been provided to Hays County GIS & Addressing.

Transportation Review

1. Technical review is complete.

If you have any questions, please contact the Hays County Planning Division at 512-393-2150 (ext. 4) or by 
emailing planning@co.hays.tx.us.

Thank you,

Application Approved

Date: 7/1/2024

Project ID: PLN-2298-PC

Project Name: River Oaks of Wimberley Unit 
No. 2, Lot 26, Replat

Application Status: Approved

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


Colby Machacek

Planning Division

Hays County Development Services

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 4.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2460-NP; Ratify Approval of the Waterstone Logistics, Final Plat.  IN GALSBEIN GALSBE /MAC H AC EK/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Waterstone Logistics is a proposed final plat consisting of one (1) lot across 46.468 acres.  The subject property is located
between Yarrington Road and FM 110 in Precinct 1.  
Water utility is to be provided by Maxwell WSC.  Wastewater treatment will be provided by the City of Kyle.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map
Administrative Approval Letter



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Debbie Ingalsbe, 
Precinct 1

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2460-NP; Ratify Approval of the Waterstone Logistics, Final Plat.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Waterstone Logistics is a proposed final plat consisting of one (1) lot across 
46.468 acres.  The subject property is located between Yarrington Road and 
FM 110 in Precinct 1.  

B. Water utility is to be provided by Maxwell WSC.  Wastewater treatment will be 
provided by the City of Kyle.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has completed review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The action remaining is to ratify approval of the proposed final plat in the court minutes. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 

Hays County Administrative Approval Letter 



℄
℄

℄
℄℄

℄



















SH
EE

T 
1 

O
F 

2



























































































































































































































































LO
C

A
TIO

N
 M

A
P

C
ITY

 O
F

SA
N

 M
A

RC
O

S

HA
YS

C
O

UN
TY

SI
TE

D
A

TE
 O

F 
PR

EP
A

RA
TIO

N
:  

Ju
ly

 1
6,

 2
02

4

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

T
O

F


















BE
IN

G
A

TO
TA

L
47

.2
10

A
C

RE
TR

A
C

T,
IN

C
LU

SI
V

E
O

F
A

0.
74

2
A

C
RE

RI
G

HT
-O

F-
W

A
Y

D
ED

IC
A

TIO
N

TO
HA

YS
C

O
UN

TY
,E

ST
A

BL
IS

HI
N

G
LO

T
1

BL
O

C
K

A
,

SI
TU

A
TE

D
IN

TH
E

W
IL

LI
A

M
HE

M
PH

IL
L

SU
RV

EY
N

UM
BE

R
4,

A
BS

TR
A

C
T

N
O

.
22

1;
SA

ID
47

.2
10

A
C

RE
TR

A
C

T
BE

IN
G

O
UT

O
F

A
C

A
LL

ED
66

.0
8

A
C

RE
TR

A
C

T
D

ES
C

RI
BE

D
IN

A
D

EE
D

FR
O

M
LA

SA
LL

E
HO

LD
IN

G
S,

LT
D

.
TO

W
A

TE
RS

TO
N

E
LA

N
D

PA
RT

N
ER

S
LT

D
.,

RE
C

O
RD

ED
IN

D
O

C
UM

EN
T

21
07

06
07

,
O

F
TH

E
O

FF
IC

IA
L 

PU
BL

IC
 R

EC
O

RD
S 

O
F 

HA
YS

 C
O

UN
TY

, T
EX

A
S





























































































2
0
0
0

N
W

L
O
O
P

4
1
0

I
S
A
N

A
N
T
O
N
IO

,
T
X

7
8
2
1
3

I
2
1
0
.3
7
5
.9
0
0
0

T
E

X
A

S
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

F
IR

M
#

4
7

0
I

T
E

X
A

S
S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
F

IR
M

#
1

0
0

2
8

8
0

0





























































































A
C

R
E

A
G

E
: 

4
7

.2
1

0
 A

C
R

E
S

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

:
P

A
P

E
-D

A
W

S
O

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
, 

IN
C

.
1

6
7

2
 I

N
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
C

E
 D

R
 S

T
E

. 
1

0
2

N
E

W
 B

R
A

U
N

F
E

L
S

, 
T

X
 7

8
1

3
2

(8
3

0
) 

6
3

2
-5

6
3

3
 P

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
:

P
A

P
E

-D
A

W
S

O
N

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
.

2
0

0
0

 N
W

 L
O

O
P

 4
1

0
S

A
N

 A
N

T
O

N
IO

, 
T

X
 7

8
2

1
3

(2
1

0
) 

3
7

5
-9

0
0

0
 P

S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

 D
A

T
E

: 
Ju

ly
 1

6
, 

2
0

2
4

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 N
O

T
E

:

A
L

L
 S

T
O

R
M

 W
A

T
E

R
 I

N
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
, 

W
IT

H
IN

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

 C
R

E
A

T
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
IS

 P
L

A
T

, 
S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

E
D

 B
Y

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 O
W

N
E

R
.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
:

1
.

A
N

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

 N
O

T
 C

R
E

A
T

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

IS
 P

L
A

T
 W

IL
L

 B
E

P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 B

Y
 S

E
P

A
R

A
T

E
 I

N
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
.

2
.

A
 1

0
 F

O
O

T
 W

ID
E

 P
U

B
L

IC
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

 I
S

 H
E

R
E

B
Y

D
E

D
IC

A
T

E
D

 A
D

JA
C

E
N

T
 T

O
 A

L
L

 R
IG

H
T

S
-O

F
-W

A
Y

, 
A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

H
E

R
E

O
N

.

3
.

A
C

C
O

R
D

IN
G

 T
O

 F
E

M
A

 F
IR

M
 M

A
P

 4
8

2
0

9
C

0
4

1
5

 F
 E

F
F

E
C

T
IV

E
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
, 

2
0

0
5

, 
T

H
IS

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IE

S
 I

N
 U

N
S

H
A

D
E

D
Z

O
N

E
 X

, 
A

R
E

A
S

 O
U

T
S

ID
E

 T
H

E
 1

%
 A

N
D

 .
2

%
 F

L
O

O
D

P
L

A
IN

S
.

4
.

T
H

IS
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 I

S
 N

O
T

 L
O

C
A

T
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 D

E
S

IG
N

A
T

E
D

W
A

T
E

R
S

H
E

D
S

, 
E

D
W

A
R

D
S

 A
Q

U
IF

E
R

 R
E

C
H

A
R

G
E

 O
R

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

S
 A

N
D

 /
O

R
 S

A
N

 M
A

R
C

O
S

 R
IV

E
R

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
.
























SH
EE

T 
2 

O
F 

2




















 

 M
O

N
UM

EN
TS

 W
ER

E 
FO

UN
D

 O
R 

SE
T 

A
T 

EA
C

H
 C

O
RN

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

BO
UN

D
A

RY
 O

F 
TH

E 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
 A

S 
N

O
TE

D
. 

M
O

N
UM

EN
TS

 A
N

D
 L

O
T

M
A

RK
ER

S 
W

IL
L 

BE
 

SE
T 

W
ITH

 
1 2"

 
IR

O
N

 
RO

D
 

W
ITH

 
C

A
P 

M
A

RK
ED

"P
A

PE
-D

A
W

SO
N

" 
O

R 
M

A
G

 N
A

IL 
W

ITH
 D

IS
K 

M
A

RK
ED

 "
PA

PE
-D

A
W

SO
N

"
A

FT
ER

 
TH

E 
C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 
O

F 
UT

IL
ITY

 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

TIO
N

 
A

N
D

 
ST

RE
ET

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TIO
N

 U
N

LE
SS

 N
O

TE
D

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E.









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 











































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

T
O

F


















BE
IN

G
 

A
 

TO
TA

L 
47

.2
10

 
A

C
RE

 
TR

A
C

T,
 

IN
C

LU
SI

V
E 

O
F 

A
 

0.
74

2 
A

C
RE

RI
G

HT
-O

F-
W

A
Y 

D
ED

IC
A

TIO
N

 T
O

 H
A

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
, E

ST
A

BL
IS

HI
N

G
 L

O
T 

1 
BL

O
C

K
A

, 
SI

TU
A

TE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 W

IL
LI

A
M

 H
EM

PH
IL

L 
SU

RV
EY

 N
UM

BE
R 

4,
 A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
.

22
1;

 S
A

ID
 4

7.
21

0 
A

C
RE

 T
RA

C
T 

BE
IN

G
 O

UT
 O

F 
A

 C
A

LL
ED

 6
6.

08
 A

C
RE

 T
RA

C
T

D
ES

C
RI

BE
D

 I
N

 A
 D

EE
D

 F
RO

M
 L

A
SA

LL
E 

HO
LD

IN
G

S,
 L

TD
. 

TO
 W

A
TE

RS
TO

N
E

LA
N

D
 

PA
RT

N
ER

S 
LT

D
., 

RE
C

O
RD

ED
 

IN
 

D
O

C
UM

EN
T 

21
07

06
07

, 
O

F 
TH

E
O

FF
IC

IA
L 

PU
BL

IC
 R

EC
O

RD
S 

O
F 

HA
YS

 C
O

UN
TY

, T
EX

A
S

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
HA

YS
 §

A
 4

7.
21

0 
A

C
RE

 T
RA

C
T 

O
F 

LA
N

D
, E

ST
A

BL
IS

HI
N

G
 L

O
T 

1 
BL

O
C

K 
A

, S
ITU

A
TE

D
 IN

 T
HE

 W
IL

LI
A

M
 H

EM
PH

IL
L 

SU
RV

EY
 N

UM
BE

R 
4,

A
BS

TR
A

C
T 

N
O

. 2
21

; S
A

ID
 4

7.
21

0 
A

C
RE

 T
RA

C
T 

BE
IN

G
 O

UT
 O

F 
A

 C
A

LL
ED

 6
6.

08
 A

C
RE

 T
RA

C
T 

D
ES

C
RI

BE
D

 IN
 A

 D
EE

D
 F

RO
M

LA
SA

LL
E 

HO
LD

IN
G

S,
 L

TD
. T

O
 W

A
TE

RS
TO

N
E 

LA
N

D
 P

A
RT

N
ER

S 
LT

D
., 

A
S 

RE
C

O
RD

ED
 IN

 D
O

C
UM

EN
T 

N
UM

BE
R 

21
07

06
07

, O
F

TH
E 

O
FF

IC
IA

L 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
RD

S 
O

F 
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

W
A

TE
RS

TO
N

E 
SA

N
 M

A
RC

O
S 

JV
, L

LC
81

11
 D

O
UG

LA
S 

A
V

EN
UE

, S
TE

. 6
00

D
A

LL
A

S,
 T

X 
75

22
5

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
HA

YS
 §

BE
FO

RE
 M

E,
 T

HE
 U

N
D

ER
SI

G
N

ED
 A

UT
HO

RI
TY

 O
N

 T
HI

S 
D

A
Y 

PE
RS

O
N

A
LL

Y 
A

PP
EA

RE
D

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_,

 K
N

O
W

N
 T

O
 M

E
TO

 B
E 

TH
E 

PE
RS

O
N

 W
HO

SE
 N

A
M

E 
IS

 S
UB

SC
RI

BE
D

 T
O

 T
HE

 F
O

RE
G

O
IN

G
 IN

ST
RU

M
EN

T,
 A

N
D

 H
E/

SH
E 

A
C

KN
O

W
LE

D
G

ED
 T

O
M

E 
TH

A
T 

HE
/S

HE
 E

XE
C

UT
ED

 T
HE

 S
A

M
E 

FO
R 

TH
E 

PU
RP

O
SE

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S 
TH

ER
EI

N
 E

XP
RE

SS
ED

 A
N

D
 I

N
 T

HE
C

A
PA

C
ITY

 T
HE

RE
IN

 S
TA

TE
D

. G
IV

EN
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
HA

N
D

 A
N

D
 S

EA
L 

O
F 

O
FF

IC
E 

TH
IS

 D
A

Y 
O

F 
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_,
 A

.D
.

20
__

__
.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

N
O

TA
RY

 P
UB

LI
C

, S
TA

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_
PR

IN
TE

D
 N

O
TA

RY
'S

 N
A

M
E

M
Y 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
XP

IR
ES

: _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§

C
O

UN
TY

 O
F 

HA
YS

 §

I, 
EL

A
IN

E 
H.

 C
Á

RD
EN

A
S,

 C
O

UN
TY

 C
LE

RK
 O

F 
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
, 

TE
XA

S,
 D

O

HE
RE

BY
 C

ER
TIF

Y 
TH

A
T 

TH
E 

FO
RE

G
O

IN
G

 IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

O
F 

W
RI

TIN
G

, 
W

ITH
 IT

S

C
ER

TIF
IC

A
TE

 O
F 

A
UT

HE
N

TIC
A

TIO
N

 W
A

S 
FI

LE
D

 F
O

R 
RE

C
O

RD
 IN

 M
Y 

O
FF

IC
E

O
N

 T
HE

 _
__

D
A

Y 
O

F_
__

__
__

__
__

, 2
0_

__
, A

.D
., 

A
T 

__
__

_ 
O

'C
LO

C
K 

__
_M

. A
N

D

D
UL

Y 
RE

C
O

RD
ED

 
O

N
 

TH
E 

__
_D

A
Y 

O
F 

__
__

__
__

__
__

, 
20

__
_,

 
A

.D
., 

A
T

__
__

O
'C

LO
C

K 
__

_M
. 

IN
 T

HE
 P

LA
T 

RE
C

O
RD

S 
O

F 
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
, 

TE
XA

S 
IN

IN
ST

RU
M

EN
T 

N
UM

BE
R:

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

W
ITN

ES
S 

M
Y 

HA
N

D
 A

N
D

 S
EA

L 
O

F 
O

FF
IC

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

O
UN

TY
 C

LE
RK

 O
F 

SA
ID

C
O

UN
TY

 T
HE

 _
__

D
A

Y 
O

F 
__

__
__

__
__

_,
 2

0_
__

, A
.D

.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

EL
A

IN
E 

H.
 C

Á
RD

EN
A

S,
 C

O
UN

TY
 C

LE
RK

HA
YS

 C
O

UN
TY

, T
EX

A
S

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
TR

A
V

IS
 §

I, 
C

HA
N

C
E 

T.
 S

RP
 A

M
 A

UT
HO

RI
ZE

D
 U

N
D

ER
 T

HE
 L

A
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

A
TE

 O
F 

TE
XA

S 
TO

 P
RA

C
TIC

E 
TH

E 
PR

O
FE

SS
IO

N
 O

F
SU

RV
EY

IN
G

, 
A

N
D

 H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TIF
Y 

TH
A

T 
TH

IS
 P

LA
T 

IS
 T

RU
E 

A
N

D
 C

O
RR

EC
T 

A
N

D
 W

A
S 

PR
EP

A
RE

D
 F

RO
M

 A
N

 A
C

TU
A

L
SU

RV
EY

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
M

A
D

E 
UN

D
ER

 M
Y 

SU
PE

RV
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

HA
T 

TH
E 

M
O

N
UM

EN
TS

 W
ER

E 
PR

O
PE

RL
Y 

PL
A

C
ED

 U
N

D
ER

M
Y 

SU
PE

RV
IS

IO
N

.

C
HA

N
C

E 
T.

 S
RP

   
   

   
 D

A
TE

RE
G

IS
TE

RE
D

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

LA
N

D
 S

UR
V

EY
O

R 
N

O
. 6

91
6

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S

PA
PE

-D
A

W
SO

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RS
, I

N
C

.
TB

PE
, F

IR
M

 R
EG

IS
TR

A
TIO

N
 N

O
. 4

70
TB

PL
S,

 F
IR

M
 R

EG
IS

TR
A

TIO
N

 N
O

. 1
00

28
80

0
16

72
 IN

D
EP

EN
D

EN
C

E 
D

R 
ST

E.
 1

02
N

EW
 B

RA
UN

FE
LS

, T
X 

78
13

2

TH
E 

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
TR

A
V

IS
 §

TH
A

T 
I, 

JO
N

 A
D

A
M

E,
 D

O
 H

ER
EB

Y 
C

ER
TIF

Y 
TH

A
T 

PR
O

PE
R 

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 H

A
S 

BE
EN

 G
IV

EN
 T

HI
S 

PL
A

T 
TO

 T
HE

 M
A

TT
ER

S 
O

F
ST

RE
ET

S,
 L

O
TS

 A
N

D
 D

RA
IN

A
G

E 
LA

YO
UT

. T
O

 T
HE

 B
ES

T 
O

F 
M

Y 
KN

O
W

LE
D

G
E 

TH
IS

 P
LA

T 
C

O
N

FO
RM

S 
TO

 A
LL

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

TS
O

F 
TH

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

C
O

D
E.

JO
N

 A
D

A
M

E
   

   
   

  D
A

TE
LI

C
EN

SE
D

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

R 
N

O
. 8

25
67

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S

PA
PE

-D
A

W
SO

N
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RS
, I

N
C

.
TB

PE
, F

IR
M

 R
EG

IS
TR

A
TIO

N
 N

O
. 4

70
TB

PL
S,

 F
IR

M
 R

EG
IS

TR
A

TIO
N

 N
O

. 1
00

28
80

0
20

00
 N

O
RT

HW
ES

T 
LO

O
P 

41
0

SA
N

 A
N

TO
N

IO
, T

X 
78

21
3




























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































LO
T 

SI
ZE

TO
TA

L N
UM

BE
R 

O
F 

LO
TS

LE
SS

 T
HA

N 
1 

AC
RE

1 
AC

RE
 - 

2 
AC

RE
S

2 
AC

RE
S 

- 5
 A

CR
ES

5 
AC

RE
S 

- 1
0 

AC
RE

S

10
+ 

AC
RE

S
1

TO
TA

L:
1

AV
ER

AG
E 

SI
ZE

 O
F 

LO
TS

:
46

.4
68

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
HA

YS
 §

I, 
TH

E 
UN

D
ER

SI
G

N
ED

, D
IR

EC
TO

R 
O

F 
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 D
EP

A
RT

M
EN

T,
 H

ER
EB

Y 
C

ER
TIF

Y 
TH

A
T 

TH
IS

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

T 
C

O
N

FO
RM

S 
TO

 A
LL

 H
A

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 R

EQ
UI

RE
M

EN
TS

 A
S 

ST
A

TE
D

 IN
 T

HE
 H

A
YS

 C
O

UN
TY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
RE

G
UL

A
TIO

N
S 

A
N

D
/O

R 
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 R

UL
ES

 F
O

R 
O

N
-S

ITE
 S

EW
A

G
E 

FA
C

IL
ITI

ES
.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

M
A

RC
US

 P
A

C
HE

C
O

D
IR

EC
TO

R
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
RV

IC
ES

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
TE

XA
S 

§
C

O
UN

TY
 O

F 
HA

YS
 §

I, 
TH

E 
UN

D
ER

SI
G

N
ED

, F
LO

O
D

PL
A

IN
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TO
R 

O
F 

HA
YS

 C
O

UN
TY

, H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TIF
Y 

TH
A

T 
TH

IS
 S

UB
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

T
C

O
N

FO
RM

S 
TO

 A
LL

 H
A

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 F

LO
O

D
PL

A
IN

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

S 
ST

A
TE

D
 IN

 T
HE

 H
A

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

RE
G

UL
A

TIO
N

S.

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

ER
IC

 V
A

N
 G

A
A

SB
EE

K,
 R

.S
., 

C
.F

.M
FL

O
O

D
PL

A
IN

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TO

R
HA

YS
 C

O
UN

TY
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
RV

IC
ES
































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































2
0
0
0
 
N
W
 
L
O
O
P
 
4
1
0
 
I 
S
A
N
 
A
N
T
O
N
IO

, 
T
X
 
7
8
2
1
3
 
I 
2
1
0
.3
7
5
.9
0
0
0

T
E

X
A

S
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 #

4
7

0
  

I 
 T

E
X

A
S

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 #

1
0

0
2

8
8

0
0

D
A

TE
 O

F 
PR

EP
A

RA
TIO

N
:  

Ju
ly

 1
6,

 2
02

4





Owner Information:

Waterstone Land Partners, LTD. ( )

230 Klattenhoff Ln STE 100, Hutto    78634-4642

To whom it may concern,   

Hays County staff has completed a detailed review for the above Application. Upon review, the Application has 
been found in compliance with the Hays County Development Regulations. The above Application has been 
approved.

9-1-1 Street Name Review

1. 911 Street name Technical review approved 4/11/2024

Digital Data Review

1. The digital data technical review is approved as of 6/23/2024.

Floodplain Review

1. Technical Review Floodplain approved. 
On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) Review

1. Technical Review OSSF approved.

Planning Review

1. Plat Technical Review complete.
Hays County Development Services has determined this application as Approved. Formal 
ratification in the minutes of Commissioners Court will be required and will be scheduled for: July 
30th, 2024.
Please prepare and deliver the Signature Plat (Record Plat) to Hays County Development Services.  
Once the necessary Hays County signatures are obtained on the Signature Plat, notification will be provided for pick-
up and recording.
A current Tax Certificate showing taxes paid will be required when recording the plat.
Addressing will not take place until a full-size, to-scale, paper copy and PDF version of the Fully Signed and 
Recorded Plat have been provided to Hays County GIS & Addressing. 

Transportation Review

1. Technical review is complete.

If you have any questions, please contact the Hays County Planning Division at 512-393-2150 (ext. 4) or by 
emailing planning@co.hays.tx.us.

Thank you,

Application Approved

Date: 7/15/2024

Project ID: PLN-2460-NP

Project Name: Waterstone Logistics 
Subdivision

Application Status: Approved

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


Colby Machacek

Planning Division

Hays County Development Services

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 5.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2213-PC; Ratify approval for the Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of Tract 17, Replat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of Tract 17, Replat is a proposed resubdivision consisting of 2 lots across 13.98 acres located
along Norwood Road, a regulated public roadway in Dripping Springs and in Precinct 3. Water utility will be accomplished
by individual water wells. Wastewater utility will be accomplished by individual on-site sewage facilities.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map
Administrative Approval Letter



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Lon Shell, Precinct 3

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2213-PC; Ratify approval for the Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of Tract 17, Replat.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of Tract 17, Replat is a proposed resubdivision consisting of 2 
lots across 13.98 acres located along Norwood Road, a regulated public roadway in 
Dripping Springs and in Precinct 3. 

B. Water utility will be accomplished by individual water wells. Wastewater utility will 
be accomplished by individual on-site sewage facilities.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has completed review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The action remaining is to ratify approval of the proposed subdivision plat in the court minutes. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 

Hays County Administrative Approval Letter 



��������	
���





Owner Information:

Glenn & Gloria  Davis

105 Norwood Loop, Dripping Springs TX 78620

Justglo2001@yahoo.com

To whom it may concern,   

Hays County staff has completed a detailed review for the above Application. Upon review, the Application has 
been found in compliance with the Hays County Development Regulations. The above Application has been 
approved.

9-1-1 Street Name Review

1. Still approved as of 7/11/2024

911 Technical Street name review approved 5/15/2024

Digital Data Review

1. The digital data technical review is approved as of 7/14/2024.

Floodplain Review

1. Tech review complete.

On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) Review

1. Tech review complete. 
Planning Review

1. Plat Technical Review complete.
CAUTIONARY:   Project must be presented to the Hays County Commissioners Court for 
ratification of approval in the court minutes on July 30th, 2024.
Please prepare and deliver the Signature Plat (Record Plat) to Hays County Development Services.  
Once the necessary Hays County signatures are obtained on the Signature Plat, notification will be provided for pick-
up and recording.
A current Tax Certificate showing taxes paid will be required when recording the plat.
Addressing will not take place until a full-size, to-scale, paper copy and PDF version of the Fully Signed and 
Recorded Plat have been provided to Hays County GIS & Addressing. 

Transportation Review

1. Technical review is complete.

If you have any questions, please contact the Hays County Planning Division at 512-393-2150 (ext. 4) or by 
emailing planning@co.hays.tx.us.

Thank you,

Application Approved

Date: 7/17/2024

Project ID: PLN-2213-PC

Project Name: Hurlbut Ranch West, PT of 
Tract 17, Replat

Application Status: Approved

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


Colby Machacek

Planning Division

Hays County Development Services

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 6.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2424-NP; Ratify Approval of the Sanderson Addition, Final Plat   SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Sanderson Addition is a proposed final plat consisting of two (2) lot across 10.09 acres.  The subject property is located at
the corner of Rimrock Road and Valley Ridge Road in Wimberley and falls within Precinct 3.  
Water utility is to be provided by private wells.  Wastewater treatment will be accomplished by individual on-site sewage
facilities.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map
Administrative Approval Letter



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Lon Shell, Precinct 3

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2424-NP; Ratify Approval of the Sanderson Addition, Final Plat 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Sanderson Addition is a proposed final plat consisting of two (2) lot across 10.09 
acres.  The subject property is located at the corner of Rimrock Road and Valley Ridge 
Road in Wimberley and falls within Precinct 3.

B. Water utility is to be provided by private wells.  Wastewater treatment will be 
accomplished by individual on-site sewage facilities.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has completed review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The action remaining is to ratify approval of the proposed subdivision plat in the court minutes. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 

Hays County Administrative Approval Letter 



�����������	
����	��

��	���������	���������





Owner Information:

Joseph Sanderson

1810 Cinnamon Path, Austin TX 78704

scott.sanderson@mbsquoteline.com

To whom it may concern,   

Hays County staff has completed a detailed review for the above Application. Upon review, the Application has 
been found in compliance with the Hays County Development Regulations. The above Application has been 
approved.

9-1-1 Street Name Review

1. 911 Technical Street name review approved 5/22/2024

Digital Data Review

1. The digital data technical review is approved as of 05/24/2024.

Floodplain Review

1. Tech review complete. 
On-Site Sewage Facility (OSSF) Review

1. Tech review complete. 
Planning Review

1. General: Project must be presented to the Hays County Commissioners Court for Ratification of 
Approval in the court minutes.

2. Plat Technical Review complete.
Please prepare and deliver the Signature Plat (Record Plat) to Hays County Development Services.  
Once the necessary Hays County signatures are obtained on the Signature Plat, notification will be provided for pick-
up.
A current Tax Certificate showing taxes paid will be required when recording the plat.
Addressing will not take place until a full-size, to-scale, paper copy and PDF version of the Fully Signed and 
Recorded Plat have been provided to Hays County GIS & Addressing.   

Transportation Review

1. Technical review is complete.

If you have any questions, please contact the Hays County Planning Division at 512-393-2150 (ext. 4) or by 
emailing planning@co.hays.tx.us.

Thank you,

Application Approved

Date: 7/11/2024

Project ID: PLN-2424-NP

Project Name: Sanderson Addition

Application Status: Approved

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


Colby Machacek

Planning Division

Hays County Development Services

Hays County Development Services
2171 Yarrington Rd, Suite 100, Kyle TX 78640

(P) 512-393-2150 (Web) www.hayscountytx.com

https://hayscountytx.com/


AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 7.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2543-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and possible action regarding
the Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat.   SMITH /MAC H AC EKSMITH /MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision consisting of two (2) lots across 4.38 acres.  The project is located
along North Green Hills Loop (Austin) and in Precinct 4. 
Water and Wastewater Utility is being provided by Aqua Texas, Inc.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Walt Smith, Precinct 4

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2543-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and 
possible action regarding the Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision consisting of two (2) lots
across 4.38 acres.  The project is located along North Green Hills Loop (Austin) and in
Precinct 4.

B. Water and Wastewater Utility is being provided by Aqua Texas, Inc.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has begun review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 
Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The actions remaining consist of staff completing Technical Review, Holding the Public Hearing on 
August 13th, and discuss final action of the proposed replat based on staff recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map 



��������	
���





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: J. 8.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior Planner

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
PLN-2367-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and possible action regarding
the Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat.  SH ELL/MAC H AC EKSH ELL/MAC H AC EK

SummarySummary
Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision creating four (4) lots across 6.86 acres.  The subject
property is located along Caliche Road and Curlos Ridge in Wimberley and in Precinct 3. 
Water utility will be accomplished by individual private wells or rainwater collection.  Wastewater treatment will be
accomplished by individual on-site sewage facilities.

AttachmentsAttachments
Cover Letter
Plat
Location Map



Hays County Commissioners Court Agenda 

Request 

Meeting Date: July 30th, 2024
Requested By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Prepared By: Colby Machacek, Senior County Planner 
Department Director: Marcus Pacheco 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Lon Shell, Precinct 3

AGENDA ITEM LANGUAGE: 

PLN-2367-PC; Call for a Public Hearing on August 13th, 2024; followed by discussion and 
possible action regarding the Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A. Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat is a proposed re-subdivision creating four 
(4) lots across 6.86 acres.  The subject property is located along Caliche Road and 
Curlos Ridge in Wimberley and in Precinct 3.

B. Water utility will be accomplished by individual private wells or rainwater collection.  
Wastewater treatment will be accomplished by individual on-site sewage facilities.

STAFF COMMENTS: 

Staff has initiated review pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 232 and the current 

Development Regulations of Hays County as set forth. The application has no requested variances.  

The actions remaining consist of staff completing Technical Review, Holding the Public Hearing on
August 13th, and discuss final action of the proposed replat based on staff recommendation.
 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Subdivision Plat 

Location Map  



���������	�����
����������������������������������������





AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 1.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to order a general election for November 5, 2024.  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

SummarySummary
See attached Order of Election.

AttachmentsAttachments
Order of General Election



Order of General Election 
(Orden de Elección General) 

 
An election is hereby ordered to be held on November 5, 2024 in Hays County, Texas for the 
purpose of electing the following: 
 
Por la presente se ordena que se lleve a cabo una elección el día 5 de noviembre de 2024, 
en el Condado de Hays, Texas, con el propósito de elegir a los siguientes:  
 

President, members of congress, members of the legislature, and state, district, 
county and precinct officers. 

 
Presidente, miembros del congreso, miembros de la legislatura, y oficiales del 

estado, distrito, condado y del precinto. 
 
For early voting, a voter may vote at any of the locations listed below:   
 
Para la votación anticipada, un votante puede votar en cualquiera de los lugares 
enumerados a continuación:   
 
Early Voting: Monday, October 21 – Tuesday, November 1, 2024 
Monday, October 21 – Friday, October 25 9 a.m. – 6 p.m. 
Saturday, October 26 7 a.m. –7 p.m. 
Sunday, October 27 12 p.m. – 6 p.m.   
Monday, October 28 – Wednesday, November 1 7 a.m. –7 p.m.  
 
Election Day: Tuesday, November 5, 2024 7 a.m. – 7 p.m. 
 

Jennifer Doinoff, Elections Administrator: (512) 393-7310 
 
Applications for ballot by mail shall be mailed to: 
 
Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán enviarse a: 
 

Jennifer Doinoff 
120 Stagecoach Trail 
San Marcos, Texas 78666-5268 

  
Applications for ballots by mail must be received no later than the close of business on 
October 25, 2024. 
 
Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán recibirse no más 
tardar de las horas de negocio el día 25 de octubre de 2024. 
 
Federal postcard applications must be received no later than the close of business on 
October 25, 2024. 
 
Las solicitudes de tarjetas postales federales deberán recibirse no más tardar de las horas 
de negocio el día 25 de octubre 2024. 
 
 

Issued this the ____________ day of ____________, 2024. 
 
Emitida este día ____________ de ____________ de 2024. 

 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
County Judge Ruben Becerra 
Signature of County Judge (Firma del Juez del Condado) 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 2.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to adopt the early voting locations and schedule for the November 5, 2024, General
Election. BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

Summary:Summary:
Approve the submitted locations and schedule.  The locations and schedule comply with statutory requirements. Sunfield
Station will require payment of $1,600 for the use of their facility during Early Voting and Election Day.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: 1,600.00
Line Item Number: 002-655-00.5446

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: Election Contract Fee Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: TBD
Comments: PO will be required for the Sunfield Location to comply with Purchasing Policy

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes, Election Expense
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
EV Polling Locations and Schedule



N
ov

.
O

ct
.

November 5, 2024 Uniform Election
Early Voting Locations

Main Early Voting Site: Hays County Elections Office

Jennifer Doinoff, Elections Administrator: (512) 393-7310

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

October 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
Early Voting
9 am – 6 pm

Early Voting
9 am – 6 pm

Early Voting
9 am – 6 pm

Early Voting
9 am – 6 pm

Early Voting
9 am – 6 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

27 28 29 30 31 November 1 2
Early Voting
12 pm – 6 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

Early Voting
7 am – 7 pm

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Election Day
7 am – 7 pm

Early Voting San Marcos

✔ Broadway Polling Location (1) 401 Broadway Street #A

✔ Hays County Elections Office (3)
Main Early Voting Site 120 Stagecoach Trail

✔ LBJ Student Center, (1)
Texas State University 301 Student Center Drive

Early Voting Buda

✔ Buda City Hall – Multipurpose Room (4) 405 East Loop Street, Building 100

✔ Sunfield Station (2) 2610 Main Street

Early Voting Kyle

✔ HCISD Academic Support Center (2) 21003 Interstate 35 Frontage Road
Building A, Room #1220

✔ Kyle City Hall (2) 100 West Center Street

✔ Main Office, HCISD Transportation (1) 2385 High Road, Uhland

✔ Yarrington – Hays County Transportation
Department  (1)

2171 Yarrington Road

Early Voting Wimberley

✔ Texan Academy at Scudder – Gym (3) 400 Green Acres Drive

✔ Wimberley Community Center – Johnson Hall
(3)

14068 Ranch Road 12

Early Voting Dripping Springs and Austin

✔ Dripping Springs Ranch Park (4) 1042 Event Center Drive

✔ Patriots’ Hall of Dripping Springs (4) 231 Patriots’ Hall Boulevard
(formerly listed as 3400 East US 290)

Pct 1 – 4
Pct 2 – 3
Pct 3 – 3
Pct 4 – 3
Total: 13



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 3.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to approve the appointment of Judges, Alternate Judges, and Early Voting Ballot Board
members for the November 5, 2024, General Election.  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

SummarySummary
The Hays County Election Board met on July 24, 2024, to provide their lists for these positions according to TEC 87.002. 
The list is provided in the backup document.

AttachmentsAttachments
List for General Election



 

4-14 
Prescribed by Secretary of State 
Section 32.002(d), Texas Election Code 
9/2023 

 
 
 

LIST OF PRESIDING AND ALTERNATE JUDGES 

I, Jennifer Doinoff , Elections Administrator of 

Hays County do hereby submit the following persons 

for appointment as presiding judge and alternate judge for elections conducted by the county as 

required upon receipt of timely list(s) submitted by the appropriate political party chairs or as 

recommended by me if no list(s) were submitted timely by party chairs. 

Polling Location               Judge                                          Alternate Judge  
Hays County Broadway               Rose Brooks                              Mike Lee 
Dunbar Center               Nicholas Hoover                       Lora DeWolfe 
HCISD Main Trans. - Uhland               Larry Hanson                             John Enterline  
Sinai Pentecostal Church               Sidney Braverman                    Karen Molica 
Texas State LBJ Student Center            Aart Millecam                           Enrique Ospina 
San Marcos Housing Authority             Andrea Maxwell                       Ben Broughton 
Centro Cultural de Hispano                   Mark D’antoni                          Marc DeBerardino 
Simon Middle School                Mary Helen Frazier                  Liliana de Lima 
Calvary Baptist Church                Mary Alice Debow                    Larry Mock  
San Marcos Public Library                      Shirley Ogletree                        Cathryn Reader      
Yarrington Transportation                Karen Enterline                         Vikie Simpson   
Sunfield Station                Delfina Proctor                          Lisa Brown        
Hays County Pct. 2 Office                       Susan Best                                  Randy Hunt 
HCISD Academic Support Center          Richard Gonzales                      Kathy Young 
HCISD Child Nutrition Center                Jana Grimes                                Sam Guzman 
Kimbro Kyle Elementary                June Johnson                             Mike Guerra  
ACC Hays Campus                                    Vanessa Westbrook                 Gilbert Arismendez 
Kyle City Hall                                             Mike Rubsam                            Dustin Bryant 
Kyle Public Library                                    Melissa Ronson                        Stacy Coon 
Philomena Assisted Living Center         George Vanderhule                 Linda Rodriguez 
Texan Academy                                        Gary Pigg                                   Tracy Sites 
Hays County Election Office                   Mary Alice Moreno                 Robert McMillan 
First Baptist Church                                 Stephen Belans                        Scott Morse 
Fire Station # 5                                         Curtis Wayne Taylor                Richard Cusson 
La Cima                                                      Robert Hernandez                   Delysia Moore 
Wimberley Community Center             Judy Dunn                                 Mary Skillman 
Wimberley VFW 6441                             Patricia Nilsson                        Jerry Sugerman 
Brookdale                Katherine Hansen                    Raney Southerland 
Promiseland Church                               Stephen Jones                           Alice Olmstead    
Henly Fire Station                                    Kevin Pata                                 Cathy Carriker        
South Hays Fire Station #12                  Madonna Kimball                    Ronald Carman    
Carpenter Hill Elementary School        Gerald Haschke                        Bill Hubbard 
Buda Oaks Assisted Living Center        Katheryn Roberts                     Linda Burns 
Driftwood Community Center              Dale Nave                                  Beverly Lawrence          
Southern Hills                                          Stephanie Jamail                       Blinda E. Irby       
DS Ranch Park # 1                Mary Clarkson                          Rosaura Gomez 
DS Ranch Park #2                                     Andrienne Satterfield              Sharon Hudson    
Belterra Centre                                         Cindy Dally                                Barbara Story 
Hays County Pct. 4 Office                       Rick Brennes                             David Palmer         
Patriots Hall                                               Lucinda Kapral                         Glenn Bridges    
Hays Hills Baptist Church                        Mike McKie                               Mindy Webber          
Buda Upper Campus                                Myron Mattison                      Janine Smalley   
Buda City Hall                                            Larry Thompson                      Ethel Queen 
 
Alternates 
                 Deanna Blake                         Mahlin Musgrove 



 

 
 
Early Voting Ballot Board Members appointed at the Hays County Election Board Meeting 
on July 25, 2024, by the Party Chairs of the County Republican, Democratic and 
Libertarian Parties: 
 
Democrat  (31) 
 
Carla Baze, Lesley Lester, Susan Ishibashi, Theresa Kilday, Charles Tubbs, Richard 
Cronshey, Wayne Taylor, Jonathan Cox, Jeannie Lewis, Maria Lucio, Jim Pendergast, 
Charles Ellis, Diann McCabe, Vanessa Westbrook, Judy Burns, Bill Burns, Linda Rodriguez, 
Lori Moya, Linda Nichols, Lizbeth Dobbins, Jon Leonard (Judge), Gerald Haschke, Donna 
Haschke, Nicholas Hoover, Maria Lucio, Linda Burns, Shannon Fitzpatrick, Jason Hillman, 
Mike Barker, Shelley Barker, John Hatch 
 
Republican (35) 
 
Alaina (Montes) Carter, Shelley Logan, Steve Thompson, Tony Palmeri, Brian McAuliffe, 
Jim Kuykendall, Allison Cook, Anita Murphy, Bridget Powel, Janie Frere, Chelsea Collie, 
Cheryl Coats, Cheryl Serven, Christine Johnson, Cordelia Garza-Gongora, David Boyd, 
Diana Boyd, Florence Adamson, George Clement, Glenna McIntyre-Speed, Harry Taylor, 
Jan Sugarman, Jeffrey Usakewicz, Jerry Sugarman, John Corbett, Leigh Napier, Linda 
Schaffner, Lucy Trainor, Mike O’Dell, Nikola Mirialakis, Pam, Eakin, Rod Anthony, Scott 
Stevens, Steve Eakin, Debbie Adams, Michelle Lopez (Alt. Judge) 
 
 
 

Central Count Appointees 
 

Tabulation Supervisor – Jeff McGill 
Central Count Station Manager – Jennifer Doinoff 
Central Count Station Democratic Judge – Jon Leonard 
Central Count Republican Alternate Judge – Brian McAulliffe 
 
Alternates for Central Count:  Judge - Lizbeth Dobbins and Alternate Judge - Jim Kuykendall 
 
 
 
 

Approval Party Chair:               _________________________________     Date: ________ 
                                                     John Hatch 
 
                                                     _________________________________     Date: ________ 
                                                     Dr. Michelle Lopez 
 
  



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 4.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to establish the central count station for the November 5, 2024, election and name the
Tabulation Supervisor and the Central Count Station Manager. .  BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

SummarySummary
Under TEC 127.007, the authority that ordered the election shall establish a Central Count Station for the election.(a) The
authority establishing a central count station shall appoint a manager of the station. Except as otherwise provided by this
section, the eligibility requirements prescribed by this code for precinct election judges apply to a person appointed under
this section.  Under TEC 127.002 and 127.003, the authority that ordered the election shall appoint the Central
Count Station Manager and Tabulation Supervisor.   The following persons are recommended to be appointed to these
positions:
Tabulation Supervisor - Jeff McGill
Central Count Station Manager - Jennifer Doinoff



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 5.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Jennifer Doinoff

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to approve Joint Election Agreements for the November 5, 2024  General Election for local
political subdivisions that will run jointly with the Constitutional Amendment Election Pursuant to Texas Election Code Sec.
271.002. BEC ER R A/D OIN OFFBEC ER R A/D OIN OFF

SummarySummary
The following jurisdictions will contract with the Election Administrator for the November 5, 2024 General Election:

City of Austin
City of San Marcos
City of Kyle
City of Buda
City of Woodcreek
City of Mountain City
Wimberley ISD
Austin Community College
Hays Trinity Groundwater Conservation District
Edwards Aquifer Authority
Dripping Springs Library
Wimberley Library
San Marcos CISD
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Sample - Joint Election Agreement



1 

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAYS 

COUNTY AND THE LPS OF SAN MARCOS 

This Joint Election Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on July 30, 2024,
between the LPS Name, (the "LPS") LPS Address and Hays County (the 
"County"), 120 Stagecoach Trail, San Marcos, Texas 78666, collectively referred to as
the Parties. 

This Agreement is authorized by Chapter 31 of the Texas Election Code, Chapter 791 of 
the Texas Government Code and Section 271.002 and 271.003 of the Texas Election Code. 
The Parties to the Agreement agree as follows: 

Section 1. Scope of Agreement.  The LPS enters into this Agreement for the conduct of 
the elections to be held from August 2024 through July 2025.

Section 2. Appointment of Election Officer. The LPS appoints the Hays County 
Elections Administrator to serve as the Election Officer (the “Officer”) in order to perform and 
supervise the duties and responsibilities of the Election Officer for any election from 
August 2024 through July 2025.

Section 3. Early Voting Polling Locations.   To facilitate the administration of 
elections, and as a convenience to the voters, during the early voting period established 
by statute, the LPS agrees to designate the Hays County Election Administrator's Office, 
120 Stagecoach Trail, San Marcos, Texas 78666 as the main early voting polling place for the
LPS. Furthermore, the LPS agrees to designate temporary branch early polling places in 
accordance with Section 85.062, Election Code, V.T.C.A. as called out in the latest Election 
Orders. 

Section 4. Voting by Mail Ballot.  The LPS and County agree that early voting by mail 
ballot shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Texas 
Election Code and that 120 Stagecoach Trail, San Marcos, Texas 78666 is the early voting
clerk's mailing address to which ballot applications and ballots voted by mail shall be sent 
for the LPS. 

Section 5. Election Day Polling Locations.  Election Day voting shall be held in 
approved vote centers where appropriate at the dates, times, and locations recommended by the 
Election Officer and authorized and ordered by the governing body of the LPS.   

Section 6. Election Day.  On Election Day, all forms used in the conduct of the election, 
including but not limited to the poll list, signature roster, ballot registers, expense accounts, 
and all oaths and certificates will be used jointly by the two agencies. All forms will be 
returned to the Hays County Election Administrator who shall keep them in her custody for the 
period prescribed by the Texas Election Code. The County agrees to furnish the LPS with 
copies of any election documents upon the LPS's request at no charge. 

Sam
ple



2 

Section 7. Use of Common Ballot.  It is agreed by the parties to this Agreement that a 
common ballot will be used for joint elections. The USB ("USB") containing the voted ballots 
for an election will be delivered by the Election Judges to the Hays County 
Election Administrator's office at 120 Stagecoach Trail, San Marcos, Texas and the USB’S
will remain in the Hays County Election Administrator's custody, except that the County 
agrees to provide the LPS with the necessary documentation, if requested, for canvass of an 
election or in the event the voted ballots are required for a recount or any court 
proceedings in which the LPS may be a party. The County agrees to maintain custody of 
the USB’S containing the voted ballots for the period of time prescribed by the Texas 
Election Code.  All USB’S that are not placed in active voting equipment will remain 
locked in the Officers’ office.  USBS will not be replaced without being logged out and 
checked out by the Officer at any time during an election.  An audit shall be conducted to 
ensure that all USB's are present and accounted for.  A spreadsheet shall be completed at the
end of Early Voting and Election Day returns that will identify the number of signatures on 
the Combination Log and the Number of Cancelled booths, for a representation of voter 
totals.  All replaced equipment will remain secured until after tabulation to ensure that all 
checks and balances have been satisfied. 

Section 8.  Reporting of Returns.  The Officer shall prepare the unofficial and official 
tabulation of precinct results under Section 66.056(a) of the Texas Election Code.  The 
unofficial tabulation of Early Voting precinct results and Election Day precinct results shall be 
made available to the LPS via email as soon as they are prepared and may be released under 
law, but no earlier than 7:00 p.m. on Election Day.  The Officer or their designee will use their 
best efforts to post all reports for public review on the Hays County Elections website at 
www.co.hays.tx.us/elections as soon as reasonably possible.  

Section 9.  Cost Sharing. The LPS agrees to the cost sharing provisions below. This 
includes Hays County, the school districts of the county, the cities of the county, and the water 
districts and all other entities contracting for election services.  The costs incurred with Early 
Voting locations and Early Voting Clerks will be shared only by entities utilizing the polling 
location for their individual election contest.  

The formula is as follows: 

Example: 

Registered Voters in County -           135,000     135,000/255,000=         52.94% of total cost    

Registered Voters in Joint Entity A - 100,000            100,000/255,000=         39.23% of total cost 

Registered Voters in Joint Entity B -   20,000             20,000/255,000= 7.84% of total cost 

Aggregate Registered Voters -         255,000          

Sam
ple

http://www.co.hays.tx.us/elections


3 

$1,000-dollar minimum cost for elections that don't exceed that total. Since programming and 
supplies would exceed the cost of elections with very small voter registration populations. 
Equipment Rental Fees allocated separately. 

Section 10.  Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except in 
writing and executed by both the LPS and the County.  Neither party may assign this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other party. However, the Officer may assign deputies to 
perform any of the contracted services and may contract with third persons for election services 
and supplies.   

Section 11.  Effective Date.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements between the parties 
regarding such matters.  The term of this Agreement will commence on August 1, 2024 and end
on July 31, 2025.

Section 12. Force Majeure. Either of the parties to this Agreement shall be excused from 
any delays and/or failures in the performance of the terms and conditions of this Contract, to the 
extent that such delays and/or failures result from causes beyond the delaying/failing party’s 
reasonable control, including but not limited to war ( whether declared or not ), armed conflict or 
the serious threat of the same ( including but not limited to hostile attack, blockade, military 
embargo), hostilities, invasion, act of a foreign enemy, extensive military mobilization, civil war, 
riot, rebellion, revolution, military or usurped power, insurrection, civil commotion or disorder, mob 
violence, act of civil disobedience, act of terrorism, sabotage or piracy; plague, epidemic, pandemic, 
outbreaks of infectious disease or any other public health crisis, including quarantine, social 
distancing, isolation or other behavioral restrictions; act of authority whether lawful or unlawful, 
compliance with any law or governmental order, rule, regulation or direction, curfew restriction, 
expropriation, compulsory acquisition, seizure of works, requisition, nationalization; act of God or 
natural disaster such as but not limited to violent storm, cyclone, typhoon, hurricane, tornado, 
earthquake, landslide, flood, damage or destruction by lightning, drought; explosion, fire, 
destruction of machines, equipment and of any kind of installation, prolonged breakdown of 
transport, telecommunication or electric current; shortage or inability to obtain critical material or 
supplies to the extent not subject to the reasonable control of the subject party (“force majeure event 
“) whether foreseeable or unforeseeable by the parties at the time of the execution of this 
Agreement.  Any delaying/failing party shall, with all reasonable diligence, attempt to remedy 
the cause of delay and/or failure and shall recommence all remaining duties under this 
Agreement within a reasonable time of such remedy, or, when applicable, on the next available 
dates under the Texas Election Code. 

Section 13.  Should any provision in this Agreement be found or deemed to be invalid, 
this Agreement will be construed as not containing the provision and all other provisions which 
are otherwise lawful will remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions of this 
Agreement are declared to be severable. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement are for any reason held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision thereof, and this 

Sam
ple

4390
Highlight



4 

Agreement will be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained herein.   

Section 14.  Any notice provided for under this Agreement will be forwarded to the 
following addresses: 

LPS  
LPS Clerk’s Office 
Street Address 

Hays County Elections Administrator 
Government Center  
120 Stagecoach Trail, San Marcos,
Texas 78666  City, Texas Zip 

Section 15.  Nothing contained in this Agreement will authorize or permit a change in the 
office with whom or the place at which any document or record relating to the Election(s) is to 
be filed, or place at which any function of the canvass of the election returns is to be performed, 
or the officer to serve as custodian of voted ballots or other election records. 

Section 16.  This Agreement shall take effect immediately upon execution by both parties 
hereof and shall inure to the benefit and be binding upon the administrators, successors and 
assigns of the Parties hereto. 

WITNESS OUR HANDS this ___ day of August,2024 

Hays County Elections Administrator LPS 

________________________________ _____________________________ 
Jennifer Doinoff Signed 
Elections Administrator LPS Manager 

Attest: Attest: 

_________________________________ ____________________________ Sam
ple



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 6.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Judge Elaine Brown

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize a salary exception to step 5 for the Mental Health Court Caseworker slot 0442-
001 in the County Courts at Law, Mental Health Court Division, effective August 1, 2024. BEC ER R A/BR OWNBEC ER R A/BR OWN

Summary:Summary:
The County Courts at Law has a candidate for the Mental Health Court Caseworker position that has several years of
relative experience and a masters' degree.  The County Court at Law Judge's met with the Compensation Committee on
July 16th and the Committee unanimously agreed with the requested salary level.  Due to the position grade within our
salary chart and per the current salary exception policy, Commissioners Court approval is required.  

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $1,122 (FY24) 
                                 $6,731 (annually)
Line Item Number: 011-763-99-161]

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: Salary savings are available to fund this request due to attrition. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 7.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: T.CRUMLEY

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of an Amended Professional Services Agreement with HDR
Architecture, Inc. related to the Government Center. SH ELL/T.C R U MLEYSH ELL/T.C R U MLEY

Summary:Summary:
On July 19, 2022, Hays County entered into a Professional Services Agreement with HDR, Architecture, Inc. (HDR) to
develop a long-term master plan for the Hays County Government Center. Since that time, additional departments have
been created, there have been changes in leadership, departments have moved out of the building and other modifications
have been identified. HDR is being asked to revise the master plan to include these departments among other changes to
the Government Center. HDR will work with new leadership and the project management team to ensure that efforts are not
duplicated with any other ongoing county projects. 

Attached:  Amendment to PSA
                 Original PSA

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $96,141
Line Item Number: 001-645-00.5741

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: The Court budgeted funds in County-Wide during the annual budget process for misc. project improvements. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Executed PSA 7.19.22 Commissioner Court, Professional Services 262.024 (a)(4)

Auditor's Office:Auditor's Office:
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes, Misc Capital Improvements
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
First Amendment
Professional Services Agreement



 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY AND  
HDR ARCHITECTURE, INC.  

   
This First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (“Amendment”) executed on or about the 19th of 
July, 2022 is made this 30th day of July, 2024, by and between Hays County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas (hereinafter referred to as “County"), and HDR Architecture, Inc (hereinafter referred to as “HDR”).  The 
above-cited parties are collectively referred to as “the parties to this Agreement” or “the parties.” 
 
   The following section(s) are amended and restated: 
 
 
5. COMPENSATION  
Contractor will be compensated for the Work on an hourly-charge basis, the terms of which are 
cited in Contractor’s rate schedule, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Despite any reference 
to Contractor’s rate schedule, which shall be used to calculate monthly invoice amounts under this 
Agreement or a change in the Scope of Services (i.e. Amendment), the parties agree that the 
County shall pay Contractor a total fee not to exceed Two Hundred Thirty-One Thousand dollars 
($231,000 USD) Three Hundred, Twenty-Seven Thousand, One Hundred, Forty-One dollars 
($327,141.00 USD) for the Work under this Agreement. 
 
FORMER EXHIBIT A SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF SERVICES.  
 
FORMER EXHIBIT B SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT B – FEE SCHEDULE. 
 
EXCEPT FOR THE ABOVE MODIFICATIONS, ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
AGREEMENT SHALL REMAIN UNCHANGED, UNLESS PROPERLY MODIFIED BY SUBSEQUENT 
AMENDMENT UNDER THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT. 
 
 
This First Amendment to the Agreement hereby executed this 30th day of July, 2024, as is evidenced by the 
authorized signatures of the Parties, below. 

 
 

HDR ARCHITECTURE, INC.     HAYS COUNTY 

 
 
______________________________________               _____________________________________ 
 NAME:       HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 TITLE:       RUBEN BECERRA 
                                              HAYS COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
 
             ATTEST:  ________________________________  
        ELAINE H. CARDENAS MBA PhD 
        HAYS COUNTY CLERK  
 
  
 



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK 



hdrinc.com  

 8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX  75231-6431 
(972) 960-4000 

 

 
 
 
 

June 26, 2024  

Tammy Crumley 
County Operations Manager 
Hays County  
712 S. Stagecoach Trail 
San Marcos, TX 78666 

 
Dear Tammy, 

 
Based on the direction from Commissioner’s Court, this is a revised proposal to include Options. 
 
We are humbled that Hays County has contacted HDR to revisit the Government Center Master Plan. As 
you have noted, an election can change dynamics and approaches.  
 
Summarizing the conversation you, Halden Tally and John Niesen had on Friday, April 12 about this 
work effort, key items that we heard included: 

 
• Revisit spatial needs of departments that are new or have had changes to leadership and/or 

staffing, namely District Attorney, District Court, Budget Office, Purchasing, Pre-Trial Services 
and Constable. 

• As part of the discussion with these departments, tour their existing spaces and offer some 
suggestions if their existing space could be used more efficiently. 

• Elections and IT have moved out of the building, but the other departments are to remain.  
• The original planning goals of assessing growth needs for short term, 10 years, and 20 years as 

well as parking still apply. 
 

Based on conversations you have had this week with Chris Casey, we are also including Option 2 to account 
for the possible relocation of building entry screening to in front of the elevators and grand stair. 
 
Our recommended work plan is like before, as follows. 
 
PROCESS for BASE SCOPE AND ESTIMATED TIMELINE 
Initiation/Data Collection 

• One week after NTP 
o Conduct a project admin Kick off with Owner’s Project Manager 

 Review the type and format of information to be included in the final 
work product to align expectations. 

 Establish Owner’s stakeholders, HDR participants and lines of communication. 
 Review schedule and set the dates and attendees for the department interviews 

and Design Workshop meetings. 
• Week 2 - 3 

o Meeting to interview selective department heads (6) for projected growth of staff and 
support facilities to develop a program (fee based on one (1) meeting with each 
department over a 1-day agenda). Tour those departments afterwards. Parking 
requirements will be asked of each department during interviews. 

o HDR will update the programming document with new information gleaned 
from these department interviews.  



hdrinc.com  

 8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX  75231-6431 
(972) 960-4000 

 

 
Week 4 -6 – Prepare for Design Workshop 

o Provide draft programming document to Owner prior to Workshop for review. 
o HDR will prepare a couple options for potential department redistribution, 

reconfiguration and/or building expansion to bring to the Design Workshop. 
Preview 

• Week 7 - Conduct a Design Workshop (in person meeting at GC) 
o Owner’s and Design Team representatives meet for a focused work session. 
o HDR to summarize initial interview outcomes. 
o HDR to present possible redistribution and expansion options. 
o Entire team to come to consensus on planning direction and documented for the Master 

Plan deliverable. 
• Week 8 – 10 

o HDR will assimilate Workshop information and program into a draft Master Plan document. 
o HDR provides draft electronic deliverable to Owner. 

Review 
• Week 11-12 

o Owner reviews draft Master Plan with internal stakeholders and provide comments to 
HDR within 2 weeks. 

• Week 13- 14 
o Owner and HDR review and discuss requested revisions during a virtual meeting. 
o HDR incorporates revisions and sends to Cost Estimator. 

Pricing (Week 15 – Week 18) 
• Third party cost estimator will produce budgetary information for the selected solution. 
• HDR will review and provide commentary to estimator, where necessary, for correction. 

Endorse (Week 19 – 20) 
• HDR will add the cost estimate information to the final report and present to Commissioner’s 

Court. 
• Owner approves final report. 

 
DELIVERABLES 
Draft Master Plan for Review and Final Master Plan will be formatted to 11 x 17 paper size, if printed. 
The draft Master Plan will include the following: 

• Final Programming document that lists area needs for all departments and spaces in building. 
• 2D and 3D site block diagrams from REVIT showing the approved solution/diagram discussed in 

Design Workshop. 3D perspectives to show massing and be block diagrammatic only, devoid of 
architectural character development. 

• Budgetary Cost Estimate from a third-party cost estimator, based on per-square-foot estimating. 
• Appendix with additional information from the exercise. 

 
BASE SCOPE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT   $ 96,141 

• The fee and any option(s) assume that the agreement with Owner will be the format and wording 
used for the original Master Plan. This was a cost + expenses invoiced hourly with a Not-To-Exceed 
(NTE) maximum amount. If additional scope is added or needed through the course of the project, 
HDR will discuss increasing the NTE amount with the Owner prior to proceeding with said additional 
scope. 

• We anticipate incurring costs for in-house printing. This is included in the NTE amount.  
• We have assumed that all deliverables will be electronic, and no printing for deliverables is currently 

included in the fees proposed.  
• Travel is included for departmental interviews, the Design Workshop and Commissioner’s Court 

presentation. All other meetings and presentations shall be held virtually. 
• Fee for the third-party Cost Estimator is included in the NTE amount above, is a lump sum, and will 

be paid and invoiced as such. 



hdrinc.com  

 8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX  75231-6431 
(972) 960-4000 

 

 

OPTION 1 ADDED SCOPE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT $ 49,107 
This is for an optional layout solution of the Government Center if non-court-related departments are relocated 
outside of the building.  

• Will include forecast of parking impact due to this shift.  
• Includes a separate cost estimate of this option. If Owner decides on one solution prior to cost estimating, 

then only one cost estimate will be needed and invoiced. 
• Assumes this Option will be exercised and performed at the same time as the Base Scope. 
• No additional meetings or travel are anticipated nor have been included in this amount. 
• The possibility exists that the Owner will determine up front that the future of the Government Center is 

only for court-related departments and not want to explore retaining all departments in the building, as 
the Base Scope includes. If this happens prior to starting the project, this Optional Scope item will not be 
necessary, and the project – with this new direction - could be accomplished for the Base Scope amount. 

 
OPTION 2A ADDED SCOPE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT $ 29,175 
This is for an initial design concept of relocating the building entry security screening to the area in front of the 
elevators and grand stair.  

• Includes one on-site meeting between our Project Manager and Hays County’s Sheriff security staff, 
Facilities Director, and Operations Director to listen to ideas that have been discussed and determine the 
best path forward. 

• One follow-up virtual meeting will be held to review an initial draft concept. 
• Includes a separate budgetary-level cost estimate of this option. 
• Two interior renderings are budgeted for this scope. 
• No additional meetings or travel are anticipated nor have been included in this amount. 
• Disciplines anticipated include architecture, interior design, low voltage/electronic security, and electrical 

engineering. At this level, each discipline would need to prepare a short Basis of Design narrative to inform 
the cost estimator about their anticipated scope of work. 

• Anticipated duration of this Option is six (6) weeks. 
 

OPTION 2B ADDED SCOPE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT $ 66,350 
This is to provide Construction Documents for relocating the building entry security screening to the area in front of 
the elevators and grand stair.  

• Includes one virtual meeting to discuss details as the design is developed. 
• Assumes the construction documents are to be prepared for a bid situation, rather than a Construction 

Manager at Risk. 
• Disciplines anticipated include architecture, interior design, low voltage/electronic security, and electrical 

engineering.  
• No additional cost estimate is included. 
• No additional meetings or travel are anticipated nor have been included in this amount. 
• Anticipated duration of this Option is four (4) weeks. 

OPTION 2C ADDED SCOPE    
This is to provide professional services support during the Authorities-Having-Jurisdiction (AHJ) Review/Bid Phase 
and the Construction Administration Phase. Anticipated activities might include: 

• Meeting with AHJs, responding to review comments, incorporating review changes into the documents. 
• Attending a pre-bid conference. 
• Responding to bidder questions and/or assembling any required addenda. 
• Reviewing submittals, requests for information, attending project meetings, visiting the site during 

construction, confirming construction completion punch list, verifying Contractor closeout documentation, 
issuing Substantial Completion and Final Completion documentation, supplying record documents, etc. 

• The scope of these phases can be defined later and invoiced on a time and materials basis per the 
stipulations in the agreement. 



hdrinc.com  

 8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX  75231-6431 
(972) 960-4000 

 

HDR Architecture, Inc. 

Chad W. Anderson 

 
 
 
CLARIFICATIONS 

• As before, the Owner will coordinate department heads to interview and locations to meet. 
• Exact schedule is dependent upon ability to coordinate with entities outside of the design team and 

working around holidays and vacations. 
• Note that this proposal’s rate will remain in effect for 60 calendar days. If a contract is not executed 

within that timeframe, we retain the right to revisit the proposal. 
 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to revisit the Government Center Master Plan and provide an option for 
additional work in the building. We look forward to continuing to partner with you. 

 
Sincerely, 

Vice President 
 
 

cc: Halden Tally, John Niesen, Kimberly Little, Chris Casey 
 

 
 
 



EXHIBIT B - FEE SCHEDULE 



HDR Architecture, Inc.

2024 Hourly Rates / Hays MP

PERSONNEL TITLE

Managing Principal $318.00

Justice Principal $307.00

Project Principal/Commercial Manager $280.00

Project Manager $238.00

Sr. Administrative/Project Accountant $151.00

Project/Design Coordinator $130.00

Sr. Interior Designer $173.00

* Rates are subject to an annual increase at the start of each calendar year



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS  

  
HAYS COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter the “County”) with 
administrative offices at 111 E. San Antonio, Suite 300, San Marcos, Texas 78666, and HDR 
Architecture, Inc. (hereinafter “Contractor”), whose primary place of business is located at 8750 
N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, Texas 75231-6431, hereby enter into this Professional 
Services Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) effective the 19th day of July, 2022 (hereinafter 
“Effective Date”).  The County and Contractor (collectively “the parties to this Agreement” or 
“the parties”) agree as follows:  
  
1. OVERVIEW  
Develop a long-term master plan for the Hays County Government Center at different planning 
horizons (immediate needs, short term, 10 years and long term, 20 years).  HDR will interview 
departments, gather space projections and parking lot needs and develop conceptual plan solutions 
and then provide a high-level cost estimate for initial building program.  The plan may include a 
storm water management study as an add option.  

  
2. SERVICES  
Contractor agrees to perform services for the County in accordance with the County’s instructions 
and, in particular, the instructions of Tammy Crumley and/or legal counsel for the Hays County 
Commissioners Court; and in conformance with the descriptions, definitions, terms, and conditions 
of this Agreement.  The Scope of Services shall be limited to those services and terms attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, and any subsections of Exhibit “A”, if as and when they are attached hereto 
and signed by the parties (collectively “the Work”).  If the parties to this Agreement amend the 
Work required under this Agreement (by adding or removing specific services and/or terms 
enumerated in Exhibits “A” and/or “C”), the Compensation cited in Section 5 of this Agreement 
may also be amended to conform with the change in Scope of Services, as agreed by the parties.  
  
3. ADDITIONAL TERMS  
Additional Terms and Obligations of the parties to this Agreement, if any, are stated in Exhibit 
“C”, attached hereto.  
  
4. DURATION  
The parties agree that the Work for each as-needed project shall be completed on a timeline that is 
agreed upon in advance of project commencement by the Parties (hereinafter the “Completion 
Date”).  In the event Contractor is unable to complete the Work by the Completion Date, 
Contractor shall request an extension of the Completion Date in writing no later than fifteen (15) 
business days prior to the Completion Date.  The County may grant extensions of the Completion 
Date for all reasonable extension requests and shall do so in writing.  
  
5. COMPENSATION  
Contractor will be compensated for the Work on an hourly-charge basis, the terms of which are 
cited in Contractor’s rate schedule, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”  Despite any reference 
to Contractor’s rate schedule, which shall be used to calculate monthly invoice amounts under this 



Agreement or a change in the Scope of Services (i.e. Amendment), the parties agree that the 
County shall pay Contractor a total fee not to exceed Two Hundred Thirty-One Thousand dollars 
($231,000 USD) for the Work under this Agreement.   
  
6. PAYMENT  
Contractor shall invoice the County for the Work performed under this Agreement on a monthly 
basis, beginning at the end of the first full month following the Effective Date.  The County agrees 
to promptly pay all invoices in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2251 and by 
sending payment to Contractor’s address stated in Section 8, below.    
  
7. NOTICE OF COMPLETION  
Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall send a Notice of Completion to the County in 
writing, and the County shall have the option to inspect the Work (or the product thereof) before 
it is considered complete under this Agreement.  If the County is satisfied that the Work under this 
Agreement is complete, the County shall send Contractor an Acceptance of Completion in 
writing.  If, after inspection, the County does not agree that the Work is complete or believes that 
the Work is of deficient quality, the County shall send Contractor a Deficiency Letter, stating the 
specific aspects of the Work that are incomplete and/or deficient.  If, after ten (10) business days 
from the County’s receipt of Contractor’s Notice of Completion, the County does not send 
Contractor either an Acceptance of Completion or a Deficiency Letter, the Work under this 
Agreement shall be considered complete.  
  
8. NOTICE (GENERAL)  
All notices issued by Contractor under or regarding this Agreement shall be provided in writing 
to the County at: Hays County, Attn: General Counsel, 111 E. San Antonio, Suite 202 San 
Marcos, Texas 78666; <mark.kennedy@co.hays.tx.us>.  
All notices issued by the County under or regarding this Agreement shall be provided in writing 
to Contractor at its primary place of business.   
Notices from one party to another under this Section may be made by U.S. Mail, parcel post, 
Facsimile, or Electronic Mail, sent to the designated contact at any of the designated addresses 
cited above.  
  
9. INSURANCE  
Contractor agrees that, during the performance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement, from 
the Effective Date until the County’s acceptance of Contractor’s Notice of Completion or until this 
Agreement is otherwise considered completed as a matter of law, Contractor shall maintain 
Commercial General Liability insurance that meets or exceeds the industry standard for 
professional services providers in Contractor’s field of employment and for the type of services 
that are being performed by Contractor under this Agreement.  
  
10. MUTUAL INDEMNITY  
Contractor agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the 
County, its officers, directors and employees against all damages, liabilities or costs, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by Contractor’s negligent 
performance of the Work under this Agreement and that of its subcontractors or anyone for whom 
the Consultant is responsible or legally liable.  



The County agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless 
Contractor, its officers, directors, employees and subcontractors against all damages, liabilities or 
costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by the County's 
negligent acts in connection with this Agreement.  
 
Neither the County nor Contractor shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in any manner 
whatsoever for the other party's negligence.  
  
11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS  
Each party agrees to comply with all laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances applicable to this 
Agreement and/or applicable to the parties performing the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
  
12. SURVIVAL  
Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, the following Sections, and the terms and 
conditions contained therein, shall remain in effect: 3, 5, 8, 10, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21 and 
22.  
  
13. FORCE MAJEURE  
Either of the parties to this Agreement shall be excused from any delays and/or failures in the 
performance of the terms and conditions of this agreement, to the extent that such delays and/or 
failures result from causes beyond the delaying/failing party’s reasonable control, including but 
not limited to Acts of God, Forces of Nature, Civil Riot or Unrest, and Governmental Action that 
was unforeseeable by all parties at the time of the execution of this Agreement.  Any 
delaying/failing party shall, with all reasonable diligence, attempt to remedy the cause of delay 
and/or failure and shall recommence all remaining duties under this Agreement within a reasonable 
time of such remedy.  
  
14. SEVERABILITY  
If any Section or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or void, the other Sections and 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the greatest extent as is 
possible, and all remaining Sections or provisions of this Agreement shall be construed so that 
they are as consistent with the parties’ intents as possible.  
  
15. MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS  
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all of which taken together shall 
constitute one single Agreement between the parties.  
  
16. SECTION HEADINGS, EXHIBITS  
The Section and Subsection headings of this Agreement, as well as Section 1, Entitled “Overview,” 
shall not enter in the interpretation of the terms and conditions contained herein, as those portions 
of the Agreement are included merely for organization and ease of review.  The Exhibit(s) that 
may be referred to herein and may be attached hereto, are incorporated herein to the same extent 
as if fully set forth herein.  
  
 
 
 



17. WAIVER BY PARTY  
Unless otherwise provided in writing by the waiving party, a waiver by either of the parties to this 
Agreement of any covenant, term, condition, agreement, right, or duty that arises under this 
Agreement shall be considered a one-time waiver and shall not be construed to be a waiver of any 
succeeding breach thereof or any other covenant, term, condition, agreement, right, or duty that 
arises under this Agreement.  
  
18. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE  
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS.  Any lawsuit, claim, or action, whether in law 
or in equity, arising from this Agreement will be brought in Hays County, Texas.  
  
19. ASSIGNMENT  
Neither party to this Agreement may assign it duties, interests, rights, benefits and/or obligations 
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the other party’s prior written consent thereto.    
  
20. BINDING EFFECT  
Subject to any provisions hereof restricting assignment, this Agreement shall be binding upon and 
shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective successors, permitted assigns, 
heirs, executors, and/or administrators.  
  
21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENT  
This Agreement (including any and all Exhibits attached hereto) constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Any amendments to this 
Agreement must be made in writing and signed by the parties to this Agreement prior to the 
performance of any terms or conditions contained in said amendments.  
  
22.  WORK PRODUCT  
Any and all product, whether in the form of calculations, letters, findings, opinions, or the like, 
shall be the property of Hays County during and after performance of the Work.  Contractor shall 
have a right to retain a copy of all Work product for record-keeping purposes.  
  
23. TERMINATION BY COUNTY  
This Agreement may be terminated by Hays County, for any reason whatsoever, by providing 
thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor. Any approved services provided under this 
Agreement up to the date of termination may be invoiced by Contractor after the termination date, 
and payment of said invoice shall not be unreasonably withheld by the County.  
  
  
Signatures by the parties to this Professional Services Agreement follow on the next page.  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly executed and delivered this Professional 
Services Agreement, and hereby declare that THEY HAVE READ AND DO UNDERSTAND 
AND AGREE TO EACH AND EVERY TERM, CONDITION, AND COVENANT 
CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND IN ANY DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY 
REFERENCE.  
  



Hays County, Texas 

By: Ruben Becerra 
Hays Cow1ty Judge 

ATIEST: Mll<tvtllitlVV::: MI Dq~ 
Elaine Cardenas, MBA, PhD 
Hays County Clerk 

~u-,~---
HDR Architecture, Inc. 

By: Chad Anderson 

Authorized Representative 

Title 



 
EXHIBIT A-1  

  
  
  
  
Scope of Work   
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July 15, 2022

Tammy Crumley
Director of Countywide Operations
Hays County Government Center
712 South Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1045
San Marcos, TX 78666

Dear Tammy,

Thank you for meeting with us late last year to discuss how to optimize use of the Hays County (HC) 
Government Center.   We provided a proposal to in December 2021 and have recently been requested to 
send an update.  Please review the information within and let us know if you have any questions.

Key items that we heard during our November 16 meeting were:

 County wants to look at growth needs for every department in the Government Center (GC) at 
different planning horizons, e.g. short term, 10 years and long term, 20 years

 The immediate need is regarding a new District Court (DC) Judge at the beginning of next year.
 Collegial chambers and scheduled courtrooms are not an option.
 The County Court at Law (CCL) will be expecting another judge early next year also.
 DC Clerk has been good about converting files to be digital. CCL Clerk is behind in this regard.
 Elections and IT will be vacating the Govt Center. Elections currently uses the Conference Center 

and Fitness Center on Level 1 for storage. Once vacated, this space will remain open/flexible until 
we have had the opportunity to evaluate each department’s need for space.

 Public Defender is a department that may be added. They may be housed at the Jail and not need 
space at GC.

 Investigation of other potential future departments either being required by the state or county 
should be included, e.g. Domestic Relations Office (DRO).

 No real estate analysis needed for this scope. If recommendation is for a department to relocate 
from the GC, County will handle finding a location.

 No court technology study needed for this scope; system was recently upgraded.
 Existing building systems may be reaching their end of life and each may have expansion 

limitations. A thorough building systems analysis is not presently included in this fee proposal.
 County is open to a mixture of renovations and building expansions on the site.
 Parking will need to be studied. Currently there is not enough, especially on jury call days (Monday 

and Tuesday). City allows limited parking on Stagecoach, but it is not enough to mitigate demand.
 Child Protective Services (CPS), Attorney General (AG) and Drug Court are special dockets that don’t 

require a courtroom full-time but still require space.
 The County is not renewing the City’s lease for Municipal court space.
 No space for CASA needed in the master plan.
 Might be wise to include a storm water management study in this master plan. Currently 

Wonderworld Dr. and the parking lots flood. This is listed as an Add Option fee with attached scope.

hdrinc.com

8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX 75231-6431
(972) 960-4000



We have established a scope of work to interview departments, gather space projections and parking 
needs and develop conceptual plan solutions and then provide a high-level cost estimate for an initial 
building program. Below is our fee proposal with recommended process and timeline.

PROCESS for BASE SCOPE AND ESTIMATED TIMELINE
Initiation/Data Collection

 One week after NTP
o Conduct a project admin Kick off with Hays County Project Manager

 Define the type and format of information to be included in the final work 
product to align expectations

 Establish HC stakeholders, HDR participants and lines of communication
 Review schedule and set the dates and attendees for the department interviews 

and Design Charrette meetings
 Week 2 - 3

o Meeting to interview each department head for projected growth of staff and support 
facilities to develop a program (fee based on one ( 1) meeting with each department over 
a 3-day agenda). Tour departments as needed. Parking requirements would be asked of 
each department during interviews.

o HDR will collect information from department interviews into one programming 
document. This would be the basis for a Design Charrette

Week 4 -6 – Prepare for Design Charrette
o Update architectural backgrounds and site plan as necessary for use during Design 

Charrette
o Provide draft programming document to client prior to Charrette for review
o HDR to develop initial planning concepts (up to three (3))

Preview
 Week 7 - Conduct a Design Charrette (in person meeting at GC)

o Owner’s and design team representatives meet for a focused work session
o HDR to present initial interview outcomes
o HDR to present initial planning concepts
o Entire team to come to consensus on planning direction to be documented for the Master 

Plan deliverable
 Week 8 – 10

o HDR will assimilate charrette information and program into a draft master plan document
o HDR provides electronic deliverable of draft to Owner

Review
 Week 12-13

o Owner review draft master plan with internal stakeholders and provide comments to HDR 
within 2 weeks

 Week 14- 15
o Owner and HDR review and discuss requested revisions during a virtual meeting
o HDR completes revisions and sends to Cost Estimator

Pricing (Week 16 – Week 20)
 Third party cost estimator will produce master plan-level budgetary information for the selected 

direction
 HDR will review and provide commentary to estimator where necessary for correction



Endorse (Week 21 – 22)
 HDR will add the cost estimate information to the final report and present to the Owner in a virtual 

meeting
 Owner approves final report

DELIVERABLES
Draft Master Plan for Review and Final Master Plan are envisioned to be 11 x 17 format size, if printed. 
The draft master plan will include the following:

o Final Programming document that lists area needs for all departments and spaces in building
o 2D and 3D site block diagrams from REVIT showing the approved solution/diagram discussed in 

Design Charrette
o Budgetary Cost Estimate
o Appendix with the solutions discussed during Design Charrette

BASE SCOPE FEE $155,000, including expenses

We anticipate incurring costs for in-house printing. This is included in the fees. However, we have assumed 
that all deliverables will be electronic and no printing for deliverables is currently included in the fees 
proposed. In order to reduce travel costs, we have budgeted for in-person meetings for departmental 
interviews and the Design Charrette only. All other meetings and presentations shall be held remotely.

ADD OPTION FEES
Storm water management study – See attached detailed scope; Add $76,000, including expenses

Additional Presentations - If presentations to Commissioner’s Court or other groups outside of the above 
scope are desired, these can be accomplished by request. These will be invoiced at a fee of $2,800 per 
person, per trip/presentation, including expenses.

CLARIFICATIONS
 The team anticipates being provided sufficient drawings as a starting point for architectural options 

for anything modified at the GC since 2011.
 Exact schedule is dependent upon ability to coordinate with entities outside of the design team and 

working around holidays.
 The fees within are based on an assumption that the agreement with Hays County will be an AIA 

B104 Standard Abbreviated Form of Agreement, edited for the scope defined in this proposal.  Note 
that this proposal’s rate will remain in effect for 60 calendar days. If a contract is not executed 
within that timeframe, we retain the right to revisit the proposal.

 The fee proposed within is based on 2022 rates. If the project scope is extended into 2023 we 
retain the right to request additional services for an extended schedule.

 See attached Terms and Conditions

Hays County is seeking to embark on a long-term master plan for their Government Center. Planning for the 
future requires an open mind to look beyond what one is currently doing and to invite an outside party in to 
give an unbiased account of current operations and a potential future direction based on what they hear 
and observe. Congratulations for taking this first step.



Additionally, we believe that master plans are dynamic not static, and that their implementation depends 
upon an ever-changing sea of funding, political leadership and opportunities. Plans should be living 
documents, updatable by your staff long after we have finished our work. Since we involve Owner 
representatives every step of the way, no decision is made in a silo, and there is buy-in along the way.

HDR is extremely excited about the prospect to partner with Hays County on this journey, and we hope you 
give us the opportunity to do so.

Sincerely,

Chad W. Anderson, AIA LEED AP
Authorized Representative, Managing Principal

cc: Halden Tally, John Niesen, Kimberly Little



July 14, 2022

Optional Add Service - Stormwater Management Study for Hays County 

Task 1 – Creek Flood Evaluation

Currently Wonderworld Drive and the parking lot flood. The source of this flooding may be from overflow 
from Willow Springs Creek. Willow Springs Creek runs along the southeast boundary of the government 
center site. During large storm events, additional flooding may occur from Purgatory Creek which runs along 
the northern edge of a hay field adjacent to the site. The floodplain for both creeks are designated by FEMA 
as Zone AE with a regulatory floodway. The objective of this stormwater management study would be to 
determine the source of the reported parking lot flooding, and to estimate the frequency, extents, and 
depth of potential flooding.

Study Scope:

- HDR to obtain as-built information nearby waterway crossings and review the effective regulatory 
hydrologic and hydraulic models for Willow Springs Creek and Purgatory Creek.

- Precipitation and Runoff Analysis - HDR to update the effective hydrologic model to reflect NOAA Atlas 
14 rainfall data. No other updates will be made to the hydrologic model.

- Floodplain Analysis - HDR to develop a 2D hydraulic model using HEC-RAS (version 6.0 or newer) for an 
area containing the 500-year for Purgatory Creek and Willows Springs Creek from just upstream of 
Ranch Road 12 to just upstream of Guadalupe Street.

- HDR will perform up to one site visit to inform the hydrologic and hydraulic model assumptions. Site 
visit will include two staff and are assumed to require one day in the field plus pre- and post-processing 
efforts in the office.

- HDR to document the assumptions, findings, and recommendations of this study in a drainage report. 

Deliverables:

- HEC-HMS and HEC-RAS update model files
- Flood inundation rasters for various storm events analyzed
- Draft drainage report in PDF format
- Final drainage report in PDF format 

Assumptions:

- 2D terrain mesh will be developed from 2017 Central Texas LiDAR digital elevation model (50 cm 
resolution).

- 2D mesh cells will be refined to appropriately capture details of the underlying ground surface 
including high/low ground, ditches, roads, and other structures.

- No local storm drain systems will be modeled.

hdrinc.com

8750 N. Central Expressway, Suite 100, Dallas, TX 75231-6431
(972) 960-4000



- Bridge/culvert crossings will be incorporated into the 2D domain. If information from effective models 
does not reasonably reflect existing conditions. Only readily available as-builts will be obtained. If no 
as-builts are available field measurements will be used. No survey will be completed.

- Aerial images and field observations will be used to define Manning’s roughness coefficients for 2D 
domain.

- Discharges from outside of the study area, as estimated in HEC-HMS, will be applied as inflow 
hydrograph boundary conditions to the 2D domain.

- HEC-RAS 2D model will be run for the 2-, 10-, 25-, 100-, and 500-year frequency storm events to 
develop inundation boundaries and flood depths rasters for the full array of frequency storm events.

Task 2 – Detention and Local Drainage Analysis

Expansion of the government center is proposed. The objective of this task will be to evaluate the impacts of 
the expansion on the existing storm drain system and detention facility and recommend drainage 
improvements to maintain compliance with local City of San Marcos and Hays County drainage criteria.

Study Scope:

- Data Collection - Obtain and review prior drainage analysis and design calculations. Perform up to one 
site visit to inform hydrologic and hydraulic assumptions and calculations.

- Hydrologic Calculations - Update the prior drainage area map and hydrologic calculations to represent 
the proposed development and Atlas 14 rainfall.

- Hydraulic Calculations – Update the prior hydraulic calculations to collect and convey runoff to the site 
detention facility. Determine site drainage improvements required to convey post-project runoff to the 
detention facility. Use StormCad for hydraulic calculations.

- Detention Analysis - Route the post-project runoff hydrograph through the existing detention pond 
storage and outlet works using HEC-HMS to determine impacts to the existing detention facility.
Recommend improvements to the existing detention pond to mitigate any increased runoff from the 
post-project conditions to pre-project conditions, if necessary.

Deliverables:

- Draft and Final Drainage Report, including the following:
o Drainage Area Map - Prepare a drainage area map to depict drainage areas, time of 

concentration flow paths, points of discharge, land use, topography, existing and proposed 
improvements, and flood plain extents. Provide in PDF Format.

o Drainage Report - Prepare a drainage report with a narrative to describe the proposed 
improvements, watershed in which the project is located, methods to be used for handling 
stormwater runoff, justification for any exemptions from code requirements, an assessment of 
the impact of the development to upstream and downstream properties and facilities, source 
of floodplain information, and other relevant information to demonstrate compliance with 
local criteria. Provide in PDF Format.



o Drainage Calculations- Provide supporting calculations to support the adequacy of proposed 
stormwater improvements. Provide HEC-HMS and StormCad model files.

Assumptions:

- Only one post-project scenario will be evaluated.
- Prior drainage improvement plans and associated drainage report are available for review.
- Hydraulic evaluation will be based on as-built information. No survey of existing storm drain system 

proposed.



HDR Architecture, Inc.
Terms and Conditions for Professional Services

1. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE
The standard of care for all professional architectural, consulting and related 
services performed or furnished by ARCHITECT and its employees under this 
Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of 
ARCHITECT’s profession practicing under the same or similar circumstances 
at the same time and in the same locality. ARCHITECT makes no warranties, 
express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with 
ARCHITECT’s services.

2. INSURANCE/INDEMNITY
ARCHITECT agrees to procure and maintain, at its expense, Workers' 
Compensation insurance as required by statute; Employer's Liability of
$250,000; Automobile Liability insurance of $1,000,000 combined single limit 
for bodily injury and property damage covering all vehicles, including hired 
vehicles, owned  and non-owned vehicles; Commercial General Liability 
insurance of $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property 
damage; and Professional Liability insurance of $1,000,000 per claim for 
protection against claims arising out of the performance of services under 
this Agreement caused by negligent acts, errors, or omissions for which 
ARCHITECT is legally liable. Upon request, CLIENT shall be made an additional 
insured on Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance policies 
and certificates of insurance will be furnished to the CLIENT. ARCHITECT agrees 
to indemnify CLIENT for third party personal injury and property damage claims 
to the extent caused by ARCHITECT's negligent acts, errors or omissions. 
However, neither Party to this Agreement shall be liable to the other Party for 
any special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages (including but not 
limited to loss of use or opportunity; loss of good will; cost of substitute 
facilities, goods, or services; cost of capital; and/or fines or penalties), loss of 
profits or revenue arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the 
Project or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited 
to any such damages caused by the negligence, errors or omissions, strict 
liability or breach of contract.

3. OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST (COST ESTIMATES)
Any opinions of probable project cost or probable construction cost provided 
by ARCHITECT are made on the basis of information available to ARCHITECT and 
on the basis of ARCHITECT's experience and qualifications, and represents its 
judgment as an experienced and qualified professional architect. However, 
since ARCHITECT has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or 
services furnished by others, or over the contractor(s') methods of determining 
prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, ARCHITECT does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project or construction cost will not 
vary from opinions of probable cost ARCHITECT prepares.

4. CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES
ARCHITECT's observation or monitoring portions of the work performed under 
construction contracts shall not relieve the contractor from its responsibility for 
performing work in accordance with applicable contract documents. 
ARCHITECT shall not control or have charge of, and shall not be responsible for, 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures of 
construction, health or safety programs or precautions connected with the 
work and shall not manage, supervise, control or have charge of construction. 
ARCHITECT shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the contractor 
or other parties on the project. ARCHITECT shall be entitled to review all 
construction contract documents and to require that no provisions extend the 
duties or liabilities of ARCHITECT beyond those set forth in this Agreement. 
CLIENT agrees to include ARCHITECT as an indemnified party in CLIENT’s 
construction contracts for the work, which shall protect ARCHITECT to the same 
degree as CLIENT. Further, CLIENT agrees that ARCHITECT shall be listed as an 
additional insured under the construction contractor’s liability insurance 
policies.

5. CONTROLLING LAW
This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state where ARCHITECT's 
services are performed.

6. SERVICES AND INFORMATION
CLIENT will provide all criteria and information pertaining to CLIENT's 
requirements for the project, including design objectives and constraints, space, 
capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and expandability,

and any budgetary limitations. CLIENT will also provide copies of any standard 
details, standard specifications, or standard bidding documents which are to be 
incorporated into the project.

CLIENT will furnish the services of soils/geotechnical engineers or other 
consultants that include reports and appropriate professional 
recommendations when such services are deemed necessary by ARCHITECT. 
CLIENT agrees to bear full responsibility for the technical accuracy and content 
of CLIENT-furnished documents and services.

In performing professional architectural and related services hereunder, it is 
understood by CLIENT that ARCHITECT is not engaged in rendering any type of 
legal, insurance or accounting services, opinions or advice. Further, it is the 
CLIENT’s sole responsibility to obtain the advice of an attorney, insurance 
counselor or accountant to protect the CLIENT’s legal and financial interests. To 
that end, the CLIENT agrees that CLIENT or the CLIENT’s representative will 
examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and 
other documents, opinions or advice prepared or provided by ARCHITECT, and 
will obtain the advice of an attorney, insurance counselor or other consultant 
as the CLIENT deems necessary to protect the CLIENT’s interests before CLIENT 
takes action or forebears to take action based upon or relying upon the services 
provided by ARCHITECT.

7. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
CLIENT and ARCHITECT, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the covenants of this 
Agreement. Neither CLIENT nor ARCHITECT will assign, sublet, or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or claims arising therefrom without the written 
consent of the other.

8. RE-USE OF DOCUMENTS
All documents, including all reports, drawings, specifications, computer 
software or other items prepared or furnished by ARCHITECT pursuant to this 
Agreement, are instruments of service with respect to the project. ARCHITECT 
retains ownership of all such documents. CLIENT may retain copies of the 
documents for its information and reference in connection with the project; 
however, none of the documents are intended or represented to be suitable 
for reuse by CLIENT or others on extensions of the project or on any other 
project. Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by ARCHITECT for 
the specific purpose intended will be at CLIENT's sole risk and without liability 
or legal exposure to ARCHITECT, and CLIENT will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless ARCHITECT from all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including 
attorney's fees, arising or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or 
adaptation will entitle ARCHITECT to further compensation at rates to be 
agreed upon by CLIENT and ARCHITECT.

9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
CLIENT or ARCHITECT may terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, by 
giving seven (7) days written notice, if the other party substantially fails to fulfill 
its obligations under the Agreement through no fault of the terminating party. 
Where the method of payment is "lump sum," or cost reimbursement, the final 
invoice will include all services and expenses associated with the project up to 
the effective date of termination. An equitable adjustment shall also be made 
to provide for termination settlement costs ARCHITECT incurs as a result of 
commitments that had become firm before termination, and for a reasonable 
profit for services performed.

10. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the parties. One or more 
waivers by either party of any provision, term or condition shall not be 
construed by the other party as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same provision, term or condition.

11. INVOICES
ARCHITECT will submit monthly invoices for services rendered and CLIENT will 
make prompt payments in response to ARCHITECT's invoices.

ARCHITECT will retain receipts for reimbursable expenses in general 
accordance with Internal Revenue Service rules pertaining to the support of

Terms & Conditions for Professional Services i (11/2019)



expenditures for income tax purposes. Receipts will be available for inspection 
by CLIENT's auditors upon request.

CLIENT shall not withhold amounts from ARCHITECT’S compensation to impose 
a penalty or liquidated damages on ARCHITECT, or to offset sums requested 
by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in the Work, unless ARCHITECT 
agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute 
resolution proceeding.

CLIENT recognizes that late payment of invoices results in extra expenses for 
ARCHITECT. ARCHITECT retains the right to assess CLIENT interest at the rate 
of one percent (1%) per month, but not to exceed the maximum rate allowed 
by law, on invoices which are not paid within forty-five (45) days from the date 
of the invoice. In the event undisputed portions of ARCHITECT's invoices are 
not paid when due, ARCHITECT also reserves the right, after seven (7) days 
prior written notice, to suspend the performance of its services under this 
Agreement until all past due amounts have been paid in full.

12. CHANGES
The parties agree that no change or modification to this Agreement, or any 
attachments hereto, shall have any force or effect unless the change is 
reduced to writing, dated, and made part of this Agreement. The execution of 
the change shall be authorized and signed in the same manner as this 
Agreement. Adjustments in the period of services and in compensation shall 
be in accordance with applicable paragraphs and sections of this Agreement. 
Any proposed fees by ARCHITECT are estimates to perform the services 
required to complete the project as ARCHITECT understands it to be defined. 
For those projects involving conceptual or process development services, 
activities often are not fully definable in the initial planning. In any event, as 
the project progresses, the facts developed may dictate a change in the 
services to be performed, which may alter the scope. ARCHITECT will inform 
CLIENT of such situations so that changes in scope and adjustments to the time 
of performance and compensation can be made as required. If such change, 
additional services, or suspension of services results in an increase or decrease 
in the cost of or time required for performance of the services, an equitable 
adjustment shall be made, and the Agreement modified accordingly.

13. CONTROLLING AGREEMENT
These Terms and Conditions shall take precedence over any inconsistent or 
contradictory provisions contained in any proposal, contract, purchase order, 
requisition, notice-to-proceed, or like document.

14. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT AND NONDISCRIMINATION
In connection with the services under this Agreement, ARCHITECT agrees to 
comply with the applicable provisions of federal and state Equal Employment 
Opportunity, and other employment, statutes and regulations.

15. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
CLIENT represents to ARCHITECT that, to the best of its knowledge, no 
hazardous materials are present at the project site. However, in the event 
hazardous materials are known to be present, CLIENT represents that to the 
best of its knowledge it has disclosed to ARCHITECT the existence of all such 
hazardous materials, including but not limited to asbestos, PCB’s, 
petroleum, hazardous waste, or radioactive material located at or near the 
project site, including type, quantity and location of such hazardous 
materials. It is acknowledged

by both parties that ARCHITECT’s scope of services do not include services 
related in any way to hazardous materials. In the event ARCHITECT or any 
other party encounters undisclosed hazardous materials, ARCHITECT shall 
have the obligation to notify CLIENT and, to the extent required by law or 
regulation, the appropriate governmental officials, and ARCHITECT may, at 
its option and without liability for delay, consequential or any other 
damages to CLIENT, suspend performance of services on that portion of the 
project affected by hazardous materials until CLIENT: (i) retains appropriate 
specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, 
abate, remediate, or remove the hazardous materials; and (ii) warrants that 
the project site is in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
CLIENT acknowledges that ARCHITECT is performing professional services 
for CLIENT and that ARCHITECT is not and shall not be required to become 
an “arranger,” “operator,” “generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous

materials, as defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1990 (CERCLA), which are or may be 
encountered at or near the project site in connection with ARCHITECT’s 
services under this Agreement. If ARCHITECT’s services hereunder cannot 
be performed because of the existence of hazardous materials, ARCHITECT 
shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause on 30 days written 
notice. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT shall indemnify and 
hold harmless ARCHITECT, its officers, directors, partners, employees, and 
subconsultants from and against all costs, losses, and damages (including 
but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, 
and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute 
resolution costs) caused by, arising out of or resulting from hazardous 
materials, provided that (i) any such cost, loss, or damage is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or destruction of 
tangible property (other than completed Work), including the loss of use 
resulting therefrom, and (ii) nothing in this paragraph shall obligate CLIENT 
to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of 
that individual’s or entity’s sole negligence or willful misconduct.

16. EXECUTION
This Agreement, including the exhibits and schedules made part hereof, 
constitute the entire Agreement between ARCHITECT and CLIENT, supersedes 
and controls over all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement may 
be amended, supplemented or modified only by a written instrument duly 
executed by the parties.

17. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
CLIENT and ARCHITECT have evaluated the risks and rewards associated with 
this project, including ARCHITECT’s fee relative to the risks assumed, and agree 
to allocate certain of the risks, so, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
total aggregate liability of ARCHITECT (and its related corporations, 
subconsultants and employees) to CLIENT is limited to the greater of
$50,000.00 or ARCHITECT’s fee, for any and all injuries, damages, claims, 
losses, or expenses (including attorney and expert fees) arising out of 
ARCHITECT’s services or this Agreement regardless of cause(s) or the theory of 
liability, including negligence, indemnity, or other recovery. Neither party to 
this Agreement shall be liable to the other party for any special, incidental, 
indirect, or consequential damages.

18. LITIGATION SUPPORT
In the event ARCHITECT is required to respond to a subpoena, government 
inquiry or other legal process related to the services in connection with a legal 
or dispute resolution proceeding to which ARCHITECT is not a party, CLIENT 
shall reimburse ARCHITECT for reasonable costs in responding and 
compensate ARCHITECT at its then standard rates for reasonable time 
incurred in gathering information and documents and attending depositions, 
hearings, and trial.

19. OPERATIONAL TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS
CLIENT agrees that the effectiveness of operational technology systems (“OT 
Systems”) and features designed, recommended or assessed by ARCHITECT 
are dependent upon CLIENT’s continued operation and maintenance of the 
OT Systems in accordance with all standards, best practices, laws, and 
regulations that govern the operation and maintenance of the OT Systems. 
CLIENT shall be solely responsible for operating and maintaining the OT 
System in accordance with applicable industry standards (i.e. ISA, NIST, etc.) 
and best practices, which generally include but are not limited to, cyber 
security policies and procedures, documentation and training requirements, 
continuous monitoring of assets for tampering and intrusion, periodic 
evaluation for asset vulnerabilities, implementation and update of appropriate 
technical, physical, and operational standards, and offline testing of all 
software/firmware patches/updates prior to placing updates into production. 
Additionally, CLIENT recognizes and agrees that OT Systems are subject to 
internal and external breach, compromise, and similar incidents. Security 
features designed, recommended or assessed by ARCHITECT are intended to 
reduce the likelihood that OT Systems will be compromised by such incidents. 
However, ARCHITECT does not guarantee that CLIENT’s OT Systems are or will 
be impenetrable and CLIENT agrees to waive any claims against ARCHITECT 
resulting from any such incidents that relate to or affect CLIENT’s OT Systems.

Terms & Conditions for Professional Services ii (11/2019)



20. FORCE MAJEURE
ARCHITECT shall not be responsible for delays caused by factors beyond 
ARCHITECT’s reasonable control, including but not limited to delays because 
of strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns or stoppages, government ordered 
industry shutdowns, power or server outages, acts of nature, widespread 
infectious disease outbreaks (including, but not limited to epidemics and 
pandemics), failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act 
in a timely manner, failure of the CLIENT to furnish timely information or 
approve or disapprove of ARCHITECT’s services or work product, or delays 
caused by faulty performance by the CLIENT’s or by contractors of any level 
or any other events or circumstances not within the reasonable control of the 
party affected, whether similar or dissimilar to any of the foregoing. When 
such delays beyond ARCHITECT’s reasonable control occur, the CLIENT agrees 
that ARCHITECT shall not be responsible for damages, nor shall ARCHITECT be 
deemed in default of this Agreement, and the parties will negotiate an 
equitable adjustment to ARCHITECT’s schedule and/or compensation if 
impacted by the force majeure event or condition.

Terms & Conditions for Professional Services iii (11/2019)



EXHIBIT B  
  
  
Fee Schedule  

  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HDR Architecture, Inc.

2022 Hourly Rates

PERSONNEL TITLE

Subject Matter Expert $354.00

Managing Principal $294.00

Principal $284.00

Project Manager $220.00

Sr. Project Manager $287.00

Sr. Design Principal $336.00

Sr. Project Designer $267.00

Project Designer $225.00

Jr. Project Designer $140.00

Sr. Project Architect $225.00

Project Architect $162.00

Office BIM Manager $198.00

Sr. Project Coordinator $187.00

Project Coordinator $100.00

Sr. Architecture Planner $294.00

Sr. Interiors Designer $160.00

Interiors Designer $100.00

Sustainable Designer $200.00

Sr. Structural Project Engineer $266.00

Structural Project Engineer $177.00

Structural Drafter $122.00

Sr. Plumbing Designer $266.00

Sr. Mechanical Project Engineer $266.00

Mechanical Project Engineer $187.00

Mechanical EIT $122.00

Mechanical Project Coordinator $188.00

Mechanical Drafter $160.00

Sr. Electrical Engineer $283.00

Electrical EIT $144.00

Sr. Electrical Drafter $172.00

Security Designer $262.00

Electronic Security Specialist $149.00

Physical Security Specialist $219.00

Sr. Landscape Project Architect $283.00

Landscape Project Coordinator $108.00

Sr. Construction Contract Administrator $235.00

Construction Contract Administrator $193.00

Sr. Graphic Designer $144.00

Sr. Fire Protection Engineer $186.00

Equipment Planner $182.00

Steno Clerical $118.00

Sr. Administrative $139.00

* Rates are subject to an annual increase at the start of each calendar year



-- EXHIBIT “C” --  
  
Additional Terms to the Services provided by Contractor, if any, are as follows:  
 
A. The Hays County Commissioners Court, by authorizing execution of this Professional Services 
Agreement, grants an exemption from the requirements of §262.023 of the Texas Local 
Government Code (TLGC), as provided by TLGC §262.024(a)(4).  
  
B.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
C.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
D.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
E.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
F.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
G.___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________  
  
H.___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________  
  
I.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
J.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
  
K.___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________  
  
L.____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________  
 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 8.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a Funding Agreement between Hays County, Wimberley
Independent School District and Wimberley Youth Sports Association regarding the costs associated with the design and
construction needed for the youth sporting fields and common areas.  SH ELLSH ELL

Summary:Summary:
Please see the attached document.

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $3,750,000.00 (2 year commitment)
Line Item Number:  001-645-00.5741

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: General Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: The Court set aside $4.5M in General Fund reserves for Park Projects during the FY24 budget process.  $2M
was anticipated to by allocated to WYSA with the remaining $1.75M to be budgeted as a use of reserves in FY25.

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Diligence Funding Agreement, executed by Commissioners Court 7.11.2023

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Funding Agreement - WISD & WYSA



1 
 

FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HAYS COUNTY, WIMBERLEY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND 

WIMBERLEY YOUTH SPORTS ASSOCIATION 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 §  
COUNTY OF HAYS §   
 
 
SECTION I. PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Hays County, a political subdivision of the State 
of Texas, hereinafter referred to as “County”, Wimberley Independent School District (“WISD”), and 
Wimberley Youth Sports Association (“WYSA”). The parties named above (“The Parties”) have severally 
and collectively agreed and by execution hereof are bound to the mutual obligations and to the performances 
and accomplishment of the tasks hereinafter described. 
 
SECTION II. OVERVIEW 
 
The Lease Agreement, Joint Use Agreement, and Project 
 
WYSA submitted an application for receipt of Hays County Parks Funds, providing a Project Information 
Form (“PIF”) and proposing to establish and build youth sporting fields and common areas in Wimberley, 
Texas (“Project”). Additionally, WISD and WYSA submitted a Lease Agreement and a Joint Use 
Agreement (“Agreements”) (See Exhibit B) identifying the parameters and scope of the youth sporting 
fields and common areas. A depiction of the proposed site is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein for all purposes (hereinafter “the Property”). 
 
The Parks and Open Space Advisory Commission (“POSAC”) reviewed the aforementioned PIF along with 
other parks and open space submittals and recommended that WYSA receive up to Four Million Dollars 
($4,000,000.00 USD) for the fulfillment of its vision. 
 
The Diligence Funding Agreement 
 
The Parties have agreed that the best candidate property consists of approximately 24.71 acres owned by 
WISD, located at 15900 Winters Mill Parkway, Wimberley, TX 78676. Construction of the proposed site 
is proposed to be granted to WYSA by WISD pursuant to the terms of the Agreements. However, the Parties 
arranged pursuant to a Diligence Funding Agreement (See Exhibit C) that a series of due diligence 
activities be conducted to ensure the viability of the proposed site for these purposes. The Diligence Funding 
Agreement utilized County park bond funds.  The County has chosen to fund the remainder of this project 
with general funds for the purpose of constructing, improving, renovating, equipping and acquiring land 
and interests in land, buildings and facilities for park and recreational purposes, including but not limited 
to constructing and improving parks.  The Parties all maintain a public interest in the establishment of youth 
sporting fields and common areas on the Property. 
 
Funding 
 
The estimated remaining costs for design and construction needed for the youth sporting fields and common 
areas on the Property is approximately Three Million Seven Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($3,750,000.00 USD). Design and Construction activities are anticipated to include (but not be limited to) 
civil engineering, geotechnical, geological, architectural design, Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing and 
structural engineering, bidding and construction.  



2 
 

 
Operations and Maintenance 
 
WYSA is generally obligated to operate and maintain the Project for the benefit of the public as detailed in 
the Lease Agreement and in the Joint Use Agreement. WYSA provides the best playing facilities and 
equipment possible so that the youth may have the opportunity to enjoy an injury free sport; and WYSA 
provides parents the opportunity for their children to participate in activities, learn fundamental skills, and 
support community youth activities so as to bring the community closer together.  
 
Term 
 
2.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for twenty-five (25) years (or as extended by written 
agreement of the parties) and shall commence on the Effective Date, and the Term shall expire on the 
Expiration Date (as may be extended by the Renewal Option, the “Term”). The Expiration Date means the 
last calendar day of the twenty fifth 25th) year after the Effective Date, unless this Agreement is either: (i) 
sooner terminated pursuant to any applicable provision hereof in which event such date of termination shall 
be the “Expiration Date”; or (ii) extended by successive 5 year terms, in which event the last calendar day 
of the final Renewal Term shall be the “Expiration Date.” 
 
2.2 Renewal Term.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and provided that (i) this 
Agreement is in full force and effect and (ii) no default exists on either the date of exercise or on the date 
of commencement of the Renewal Term, the Parties may agree to two (2) renewal options (each, a “Renewal 
Option”) to extend the Term of this Agreement for an additional term of five (5) years each (each, a 
“Renewal Term”) that commences at 12:00 a.m. on the day immediately following the expiration of the 
Term then in effect, and upon the same terms, conditions and covenants as are contained herein by approval 
of all the Parties governing boards (the “Renewal”) of such election no more than twenty-four (24) months 
and no less than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Term then in effect.   
 
SECTION III. COUNTY OBLIGATIONS 
 
Design and Construction 
 
The total amount paid by the County under the Diligence Funding Agreement and this Agreement shall be 
the sum of Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00 USD), which includes the $250,000 due diligence funding 
previously agreed to by the parties. If WYSA has not spent monies provided under the terms of this 
agreement within two (2) years of the Effective Date, the remaining funds not issued to WYSA by the 
County will remain in the County’s General Fund and will no longer be used for the funding of this 
Agreement. The County reserves the right to increase funding for the design and construction of the youth 
sporting fields and common areas in its sole discretion. 
 
Draw Requests 
 
The County’s Program Manager, Halff Associates (or successor), will collaborate with WISD and WYSA 
to identify the design and construction activities eligible for funds under this Agreement. The County shall 
pay WYSA in one or more disbursements, the funds needed to perform design and construction, after 
application for such funds is made by WYSA, with monitor subcontractors’ performance of design and 
construction services. Distribution of funds shall be made utilizing a draw request form provided by the 
County’s Program Manager.  
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Additional Project Funding 
 
Subject to all aforementioned funding terms, additional funds for WISD and WYSA may be made 
available for expenditure after WYSA and its design team have estimated the total cost of the Project. 
 
SECTION IV. OTHER OBILIGATIONS 
 
Compliance with Laws 
 
The parties acknowledge that the funds expended under this Agreement are public funds that must be 
carefully monitored to ensure proper distribution under the County’s parks program. WISD and WYSA are 
obligated to comply with all local, State, and Federal laws in relation to the expenditure of funds paid under 
this Agreement.  
 
Recognition 
 
In consideration of the County’s obligations under this Agreement WISD and WYSA shall acknowledge 
County contributions to the Project by including reference to Hays County on public signage and public 
literature that promotes or serves the Project. 
 
SECTION V. CONTRACTS 
 
WYSA may contract for the performances of the design and construction activities specified herein. Any 
such contracts shall be subject to competitive quotes or selected based on the basis of the best qualifications 
among at least three candidates for the performance of work. WYSA may self-perform with its staff and 
volunteers any portion of the design and construction.  WISD may contribute staff and equipment to the 
design and construction. 
 
SECTION VI. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No agent or employee of WISD and WYSA and no employee of the County, and no person who exercises 
any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of this 
Agreement shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal 
pecuniary interest. 
 
 
SECTION VII. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 
 
WISD and WYSA assure that no person shall, on the ground of race, creed, color, handicap, national origin, 
sex, political affiliation or beliefs, be excluded from, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part under this Agreement or otherwise 
under WISD and WYSA’s control. 
 
 
SECTION VIII. RIGHT TO AUDIT 
 
At its sole discretion, the County may arrange for an independent audit of all funds received under and 
payments made pursuant to this Agreement by County Auditor staff, or a certified public accountant. 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

SECTION IX.   SEVERABILITY 
 
If any Section or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or void, the other Sections and provisions 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the greatest extent as is possible, and all remaining 
Sections or provisions of this Agreement shall be construed so that they are as consistent with the parties’ 
intents as possible. 
 
SECTION X.   INDEMNITY 
 
WYSA and WISD agree, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the County, 
its officers, directors and employees against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by WYSA or WISD’s negligent performance of the Work under 
this Agreement and that of its subcontractors or anyone for whom WYSA or WISD is responsible or legally 
liable. 

Neither the County nor WYSA or WISD shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in any manner 
whatsoever for the other party's negligence. 
 
SECTION XI.   INSURANCE 
 
WYSA and WISD agree that, during the performance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement, from 
the Effective Date until the County’s acceptance of WYSA and WISD’s Notice of Completion or until this 
Agreement is otherwise considered completed as a matter of law, WYSA and WISD shall, at its sole 
expense, provide and maintain Commercial General Liability insurance that meets or exceeds the industry 
standard for professional services providers in WYSA and WISD’s fields of employment and for the type 
of services and construction activities that are being performed under this Agreement. Such insurance 
coverage shall specifically name the County as co-insured.  This insurance coverage shall cover all perils 
arising from the activities of WYSA and WISD, its officers, directors, employees, agents or sub-contractors, 
relative to this Agreement. WYSA and WISD shall be responsible for any deductibles stated in the policy. 
A true copy of each Certificate of Liability Insurance shall be provided to the County within seven (7) days 
of the new policy date at the following address:   
 
Hays County Criminal District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division 
111 E. San Antonio St., Suite 202 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
tucker.furlow@co.hays.tx.us 
 
With Copy to: 
 
Hays Countywide Operations  
101 Thermon Drive 
San Marcs, TX 78666 
tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us 
 
Hays County Purchasing Office 
712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us 
 
 
So long as this Agreement is in effect, WYSA and WISD shall not cause such insurance to be canceled nor 
permit such insurance to lapse. All insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect that the policy 

mailto:tucker.furlow@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us


5 
 

shall not be canceled, reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until thirty (30) days after the County has 
received written notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or certified mail. 
 
SECTION XII.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
12.1 Modification of Agreement.  The terms and conditions of the Agreement may be modified at any time 
by the mutual consent of both parties. However, no amendment or modification to this Agreement is 
effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both 
parties. 
 
12.2 Written Notice.  Unless otherwise specified, written notice will be deemed to have been duly delivered 
if delivered in person to the individuals listed below or if it is delivered or sent certified mail or email to 
the address below. Each party will have the right to change its address by at least thirty (30) calendar days 
written notice to the other party. 
  
COUNTY: 
 
Hays County Criminal District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division 
111 E. San Antonio St., Suite 202 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
tucker.furlow@co.hays.tx.us  
 
With Copy to: 
 
Hays Countywide Operations  
101 Thermon Drive 
San Marcs, TX 78666 
tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us 
 
Hays County Purchasing Office 
712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us 
 
WISD: 
District Superintendent 
951 FM 2325 
Wimberley, Texas 78676 
Greg.bonewald@wimberleyisd.net 
 
With Copy to:  
The Fowler Law Firm 
Attn: Will Cabler JD, CPA 
3301 Northland, Suite 101 
Austin, Texas 78731 
wcabler@thefowlerlawfirm.com 
 
WYSA: 
President 
P.O. Box 2381 
Wimberley, Texas 78676 
president@wysasports.com 

mailto:tucker.furlow@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:tammy.crumley@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:stephanie.hunt@co.hays.tx.us
mailto:Greg.bonewald@wimberleyisd.net
mailto:wcabler@thefowlerlawfirm.com


6 
 

 
12.3 Waiver.  Failure of any party, at any time, to enforce a provision of this Agreement in no way 
constitutes a waiver of that provision, nor in anyway affects the validity of this Agreement, any part of this 
Agreement, or the right of the party thereafter to enforce each and every provision of this Agreement. No 
term of this Agreement will be deemed waived or breach excused unless such waiver is in writing and 
signed by the party claiming to have waived. Furthermore, any consent to or waiver of a breach will not 
constitute consent to or waiver of or excuse of any other different or subsequent breach. 
 
12.4 Entire Agreement.  It is understood this Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements, or understandings between the parties relating 
to the subject matter. No oral understandings, statements, promises, or inducements contrary to the terms 
of this Agreement exist.  
 
12.5 Choice of Law, Place of Performance and Jurisdiction.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of 
the State of Texas.  Performance of this Agreement is in Hays County, Texas.  All suits, actions, claims and 
causes of action relating to the construction, validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement shall 
the in the courts of Hays County, Texas. 
 
12.6 Force Majeure.   
 
a. Neither party shall be liable in damages or have the right to terminate this Agreement for any delay or 
default in performing hereunder if such delay or default is caused by conditions beyond its control 
including, Acts of God, Government restrictions including wars, insurrections, natural disasters or other 
emergencies as declared by Federal, State or County agencies or departments, and/or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control of the party whose performance is affected. 
 
b. If performance of any obligation of either party hereunder is prevented or rendered impracticable or 
infeasible as discussed in the preceding paragraph, it is understood and agreed that there shall he no claim 
for damages against the obligated party for failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
12.7 Authority.  Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform under this Agreement, 
and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered 
to enter into this Agreement. The persons executing this Agreement represent that they have authorization 
to sign on behalf of their respective entities. 
 
12.8 Governmental Immunity and Release.  County and WISD both enjoy sovereign and governmental 
immunity, respectively. By entering into this Agreement, neither County nor WISD consents to suit, the 
waiver of their respective immunity, the right to claim such exemptions or privileges as may be provided 
by law, or the waiver of limitation as to damages under the Texas Tort Claims Act.  
 
12.9 Agreement Read.  Each party acknowledges that it has read, understands, and intends to be bound by 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
12.10 Interpretation and Reliance.  No presumption will apply in favor of any Party in the interpretation of 
this Lease or in the resolution of any ambiguity of any provision hereof. 
 
12.11 Public Information Act.  County and WISD both acknowledge that the other is obligated to comply 
with the Public Information Act, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, in responding to any request for 
public information pertaining to this Agreement. 

 
12.12 Electronic Signatures; Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any 
number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together 



7 
 

shall constitute one and the same instrument.  This Agreement may be transmitted via facsimile or 
other similar electronic means, and execution by the undersigned by such means shall be deemed 
an original signature for all purposes and have the same force and effect as a manually signed 
original. 
 
 
WITNESS OUR HANDS EFFECTIVE THIS  OF   , 2024 (the 
“Effective Date”). 
 
 
 
 
Approved and accepted on behalf of the County of Hays. 
 
__________________________________ 
Judge Ruben Becerra Hays 
County Judge 
 
 
 
Approved and accepted on behalf of WISD 
 
__________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
 
 
Approved and accepted on behalf of WYSA 
 
__________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 



8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Depiction of Proposed Site 





9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Lease Agreement 
Joint Use Agreement 

  









































10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Diligence Funding Agreement 
 



DILIGENCE FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HAYS COUNTY, WIMBERLEY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND WIMBERLEY 

YOUTH SPORTS ASSOCIATION 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HAYS § 

SECTION I. PARTIES TO THE CONTRACT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Hays County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas, hereinafter referred to as "County", Wimberley Independent School District ("WISD"), and Wimberley 
Youth Sports Association ("WYSA"). The parties named above ("The Patiies") have severally and collectively 
agreed and by execution hereof are bound to the mutual obligations and to the performances and 
accomplishment of the tasks hereinafter described. 

SECTION II. OVERVIEW 

The Lease Agreement, Joint Use Agreement, and Project 

WYSA submitted an application for receipt of Hays County 2020 Parks Bond Funds, providing a Project 
Information Form ("PIF") and proposing to establish and build youth spotting fields and common areas in 
Wimberley, Texas. Additionally, WISD and WYSA submitted a Lease Agreement and Joint Use Agreement 

("Agreements") identifying the parameters and scope of the youth sporting fields and corrunon areas. 

The Parks and Open Space Advisory Commission ("POSAC") reviewed the aforementioned PIF along with 
other parks and open space submittals and recommended that WISD and WYSA receive up to Four Million 
Dollars ($4,000,000.00 USD) for the fulfillment of its vision. 

The Parties have agreed that the best candidate properly consists of approximately 20 acres owned by WISD, 
located at 15900 Winters .Mill Parkway, Wimberley, TX 78676. Construction of the proposed site is proposed 
to be granted to WYSA by WISD pursuant to the terms of the Agreements. However, the Patties agree that a 
series of due diligence activities must first be conducted to ensure the viability of the proposed site for these 
purposes. A depiction of the proposed site is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein for all 

purposes (hereinafter "the Property"). 

This Agreement proposes the lawful use of Hays County general obligation bond funds authorized under 
Chapter 1251 of the Texas Government Code and the vote of the citizens of Hays County, Texas, which 
affirmed and authorized the County's issuance ofup to Seventy-Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000.00 VSD) 
in bonds "for the purpose of constrncting, improving, renovating, equipping and acquiring land and interests 
in land, buildings and facilities for park and recreational purposes, including but not limited to constructing 
and improving parks and the acquisit ion of land and interests in land in connection therewith; acquiring open 
space and conservation land and acquiring conservation easements on land for any authorized purposes, 
including to ensure its availability for recreational, or open-space use, or to protect wildlife habitat and the 
water quality of creeks, rivers and springs; protecting natural resources by minimizing flood risks and 
improving flood safety; improving connectivity through the acquisition ofland, construction and improvement 



of trails, sidewalks and related infrastrncture." The Parties both maintain a public interest in the establishment 

of youth sp011ing fields and common areas on the prope1ty. 

Funding 

The estimated costs of due diligence needed to review the viability of the Property are up to Two Hundred and 

Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00 USD). Due diligence activities are anticipated to include (but not be 
limited to) surveying, topographical and hydrological analysis, environmental and antiquities surveys, and 
conceptual designs. 

SECTION III. COUNTY OBLIGATION 

Diligence 

The total amount paid by the County under this Agreement shall not exceed the sum of Two Hundred and 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00 USO) . If WYSA has not spent monies provided under this 
agreement within three (3) years of the Effective Date, and such funds are no longer needed for the purposes 
described herein, then the remaining funds shall be returned to the County. 

Draw Requests 

The County's Program Manager, Halff Associates (or successor), will collaborate with WISD and WYSA to 
identify the due diligence activities eligible for funds under th is Agreement. The County shall pay WYSA in 
one or more disbursements, the funds needed to perform due diligence, after application for such funds is made 
by WYSA, with monitor subcontractors' performance of due diligence se1vices. Distribution of funds shall be 
made utilizing the Draw Request form attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

Project Funding 

The remainder of POSAC-recommended funds for WISD and WYSA may be made available for expenditure 
after the Pa11ies executed a subsequent Parks and Open Space Improvements Agreement, conditioned upon the 
following: 

1. The Prope1ty is deemed a viable site for the establishment of youth sporting fields and common areas 
by the Parties: 

2. WISD provides a legal instrnment that grants site control of the Prope1ty for a duration of time that 
exceeds Hays County's repayment of2020 Parks and Open Space bond; 

3. The Hays County Commissioners Com1 affirms and approves a subsequent Parks and Open Space 
Improvements Agreement between the Parties. 

SECTION IV. OTHER OBILIGATIONS 

Compliance with Laws 

The parties acknowledge that the funds expended under this contract are public funds that must be carefully 
monitored to ensure proper distribution under the County's parks bond program. WISD and WYSA are 
obligated to comply with all local, State, and Federal laws in relation to the expenditure of funds paid under 
this Agreement. 



Recognition 

In consideration of the County's obligations under this Agreement WISD and/or WYSA shall acknowledge 
County contributions to the Project by including reference to Hays County on public signage and public 
literature that promotes and/or serves the Project. 

SECTIONV. CONTRACTS 

WISD and WYSA may contract for the performances of the due diligence activities specified herein. Any such 
contracts shall be subjected to competitive quotes or selected based on the basis of the best qualifications 
among at least three candidates for the perfonnance of work. 

SECTION VI. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

No agent or employee ofWISD and WYSA and no employee of the County, and no person who exercises any 
functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of this Agreement 
shall participate in any decision relating to this contract which affects his or her personal pecuniary interest. 

SECTION VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties that the County is contracting with WISD and WYSA as 
an Independent Contractor and that WISD and WYSA as such, agrees to the extent provided by law, to hold 
the County harmless against any and all claims, demands and causes of action of every kind and character 
which may be asserted by any third party occurring or in any way incident to, arising out of, or in connection 
with the Diligence described above. 

SECTION VIII. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

WISD and WYSA assure that no person shall, on the ground of race, creed, color, handicap, national origin, 
sex, political affiliation or beliefs, be excluded from, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination 
under any program or activity funded in whole or in part under this agreement or otherwise under WISD and 
WYSA's control. 

SECTION IX. ORAL AND WRITTEN AGREEMENTS 

All oral or written agreements, relating to the subject matter of this contract and which were made prior to the 
Effective Date of this Agreement between the County and WISD and WYSA have been reduced to writing 
and are contained herein. 

SECTION X. AMENDMENTS 

Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this contract shall be by amendment hereto in writing 
and executed by both parties hereto except as may be expressly provided for in some other manner by the tem1s 
of this contract. 

SECTION XI. SEVERABILITY 

If any clause, sentence, paragraph or article of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such dete1mination shall not be deemed to 
impair, invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement if the Agreement can be given effect without the 
invalid portion. To this extent, the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 



SECTION XII. RIGHT TO AUDIT 

At its sole discretion, the County may arrange for an independent audit of all funds received under and 
payments made pursuant to this contract by County Auditor staff, or a certified public accountant. 

(Signatures Follow on the Next Page) 



WITNESS OUR HANDS EFFECTIVE THIS {p.J;!J OF tlU,tt.(..,: 

Approved and accepted on behalf of the County of Hays. 

~ ---
Judge Ruben Becerra 
Hays County Judge 

Approved and accepted on behalf of WISD 

, 2023. 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 9.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Mike Jones, Director Office of Emergency Services

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action to approve the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Hays County
Office of Emergency Services, Central Texas Food Bank and Hays County Food Bank regarding the process of safely
distributing food following a declared disaster.  BEC ER R A/MIKE JON ESBEC ER R A/MIKE JON ES

SummarySummary
See attached MOU.

AttachmentsAttachments
MOU Food Bank



P a g e1 | 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND
BETWEEN

Central Texas Food Bank/Hays County Food Bank
and

Hays County Office of Emergency Services

This Memorandum of Understanding is hereby made between the Hays County Office of
Emergency Services (HCOES) and Central Texas Food Bank/Hays County Food Bank (“Food
Bank”) as of the 30th day of July 2024.

WHEREAS the HCOES is authorized to enter into agreements with other government entities, the
private sector, and private, non-profit entities to ensure an expedient, effective, and coordinated
response to any natural or man-made disaster.

WHEREAS in the event of an emergency event in the State of Texas, local and regional
infrastructure and associated resources will be quickly committed to providing the necessary
treatment and supporting strategies to effectively respond to a potential evolving event or to
support the response to an actual event.

WHEREAS the existing local and regional infrastructure will also be compromised due to lack
of adequate staff, equipment, and support available due to the impacts and demands of the event.
WHEREAS resources from the state, federal, and private sector will be quickly mobilized to
augment local and regional resources and support the effective response to the immediate
emergency event.
WHEREAS Food Bank is a non-profit organization that distributes food free of charge to needy
individuals.

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises
contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1.PURPOSE

The purpose of this MOU is to guide and direct the parties regarding the process of safely
distributing food to affected survivors and residents of Hays County following a declared
disaster as described in this MOU.



P a g e2 | 

2.RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

A. Scope of Understanding

1. HCOES agrees to communicate to survivors and residents who were affected by a declared
disaster in Hays County, where and when they can obtain sustenance assistance.

2. When necessary, HCOES will open a Multi-Agency Resource Center (MARC) and provide
space for Food Bank to offer distribution to affected residents and survivors.

B.  Responsibilities of Food Bank

1. Food Bank represents and warrants that: (a) it is a non-profit organization that is authorized to
conduct business in the State of Texas.

2. Food Bank acknowledges and agrees that, notwithstanding any provision herein to the
contrary, HCOES is under no obligation to participate in the Food Sharing Program or to donate
food to the Food Bank. In the event that Food Bank receives donations of food from HCOES
Food Bank covenants and agrees to distribute any and all such food donations to needy
individuals in accordance with the Good Samaritan Act.

3. TERM AND TERMINATION

A. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date first set forth above and will remain
in effect for five (5) years. After which, this Agreement shall automatically renew annually
unless terminated by either party.

B. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon delivery of ten (30) days’ prior
written notice to the other party.

4. NON-EXCLUSIVITY

Each party shall have the right to enter similar Memoranda of Understanding with other parties.

5. NO ASSIGNMENT; NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Neither this MOU, nor any of the rights or obligations of any party, may be assigned, in whole or
in part, without the prior written consent of the other parties. Except as otherwise expressly
provided herein, this MOU and all rights hereunder are intended for the sole benefit of the parties
hereto, and do not imply or create any rights on the part of, or obligations to, any other person or
entity.



P a g e3 | 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of Understanding
to be executed by their duly authorized representatives effective as of the date first set forth
above.

HAYS COUNTY

By:

Name: RUBEN BECERRA

Title: HAYS COUNTY JUDGE

HAYS COUNTY OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES

By:

Name:  MIKE JONES

Title:  EMERGENCY SERVICES DIRECTOR

CENTRAL TEXAS FOOD BANK

By:

Name:

Title:

HAYS COUNTY FOOD BANK

By:

Name:

Title:



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 10.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Stephanie Hunt

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a contingent fee contract, and associated resolution, between
Hays County and McCreary Veselka Bragg & Allen (MVBA) for Delinquent Justice Court Fines and Fees Collection
Services, pursuant to RFP 2024-P01.  BEC ER R A/H U N TBEC ER R A/H U N T

Summary:Summary:
On April 26, 2024, the Commissioners Court awarded RFP 2024-P01 Delinquent Justice Court Fines and Fees Collection
Services to McCreary Veselka Bragg & Allen (MVBA) to provide the Justice Courts' delinquent fine and fee collection
services.  

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: Fees set in solicitation
Line Item Number: N/A

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: N/A
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Request for Proposal (RFP) 2024-P01 Delinquent Justice Court Fines and Fees Collection Services

Auditor's Office:Auditor's Office:
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: N/A
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments: Delinquent court costs collected are allocated to the GL revenue accounts based on case information.

AttachmentsAttachments
RFP 2024-P01 Public Notice
RFP 2024-P01 Resolution to Approve
(PE) RFP 2024-P01 Contract



PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

In Accordance with Texas Government Code, section 2254.1036(a)(1), the County of Hays, Texas, 
provides the following written notice to the public in connection with the above agenda item: 

1. The County of Hays, Texas, is pursuing the legal services of McCreary, Veselka, Bragg, and 
Allen, P.C., a delinquent fines and fees collection law firm, to collect delinquent fines and 
fees owed to the justice courts of Hays County, Texas.  The desired outcome of the legal 
services would be for the County of Hays, Texas, to collect the delinquent fines and fees 
that its justice court is owed in as short a time period as possible. 

2. McCreary, Veselka, Bragg, and Allen, P.C. has been competently collecting delinquent 
fines and fees for over twenty years and currently represents hundreds of Texas cities and 
counties in the collection of delinquent fines and fees. It is a competent, qualified, and 
experienced delinquent fines and fees collection law firm. 

3. The legal services desired by the County of Hays, Texas, which are the subject of the 
contract, cannot be adequately performed by the attorneys and supporting personnel of 
the County of Hays, Texas.  

4. The legal services desired by the County of Hays, Texas, that are the subject of the contract 
cannot be reasonably obtained from attorneys in private practice under a contract 
providing for the payment of hourly fees without contingency because the County of Hays, 
Texas does not have funds in its budget to pay the estimated hourly fees and other costs 
incurred to implement an effective delinquent fines and fees collection program under a 
contract providing only for the payment of hourly fees and costs.  Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, Art. 103.0031 allows a county to recover a penalty to defray the costs of 
collecting delinquent fines and fees only if the county has entered into a contract with a 
private attorney or public or private vendor pursuant to the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 
103.0031. 

5. To defray the cost of collecting delinquent fines and fees as provided by Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031, to save money and ensure that the collection of 
delinquent fines and fees is diligently pursued for the County of Hays, Texas, a contingent 
fee contract with McCreary, Veselka, Bragg, and Allen, P.C. is in the best interests of the 
residents of the County of Hays, Texas. 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 
CONTRACT FOR THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT JUSTICE COURT FINES AND 

FEES BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS, AND MCCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG, 
AND ALLEN, P.C.  

WHEREAS, the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 provides that a justice court may 
contract with a law firm for the collection of delinquent justice court fines and fees and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is a substantial need for the County of Hays, Texas, to obtain the legal services of a 

delinquent fines and fees collection law firm and, 
 
WHEREAS, the legal services of a delinquent fines and fees collection law firm cannot be adequately 

performed by the attorneys and supporting personnel of the County of Hays, Texas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the legal services of a delinquent fines and fees collection firm cannot reasonably be obtained 

from attorneys in private practice under a contract providing only for the payment of hourly 
fees, without regard to the outcome of the matter because the County of Hays, Texas does 
not have funds in its budget to pay the estimated hourly fees and other costs incurred to 
implement an effective delinquent fines and fees collection program under a contract 
providing only for the payment of hourly fees and costs; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner’s Court of the County of Hays, Texas, has determined that it is in the public 

interest to enter into the proposed Contract for the Collection of Delinquent Justice Court 
Fines and Fees Between the County of Hays, Texas, and McCreary, Veselka, Bragg and 
Allen, P.C. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF THE 
COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS, THAT: 
  
The proposed Contract for the Collection of Delinquent Justice Court Fines and Fees Between the County 
of Hays, Texas, and McCreary, Veselka, Bragg, and Allen, P.C. is hereby approved; the Executive Officer 
is authorized to execute the same on behalf of the County of Hays, Texas. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED BY THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF THE COUNTY OF 
HAYS, TEXAS ON THE ________ DAY OF _____________________ 2024. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Hays County Judge, Ruben Becerra 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Elaine H. Cardenas, Hays County Clerk  



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
MCCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG & ALLEN, P.C. 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
 

CONTRACT FOR JUSTICE COURTS FINES AND FEES COLLECTION SERVICES 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HAYS § 
 
THIS CONTRACT FOR JUSTICE COURTS FINE AND FEES COLLECTION SERVICES (hereinafter 
“Contract”) is made and entered into by and between THE COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS (The 
County), acting herein by and through its Commissioners Court, and McCREARY, VESELKA, 
BRAGG & ALLEN, P.C. (The Firm), 700 Jeffrey Way, Suite 100, P.O. Box 1269, Round Rock, Texas 
78680. 

I. 

DELINQUENT JUSTICE COURT FINES AND 
FEES COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
  The County agrees to employ and does hereby employ The Firm to enforce by suit  or otherwise 
the enforcement of the collection of delinquent Justice Court debt and accounts receivable, including 
fines, fees, court costs, forfeited bonds, restitution, and other amounts in accordance with Article 
103.0031 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure (hereinafter referred to in this agreement as “Fines 
and Fees”) due to The County pursuant to RFP 2024-P01 and the awarded proposal submitted by 
McCreary, Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C., which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
“A”.   

 
II. 

 For purposes of this Contract, all Fines and Fees shall be referred to The Firm when determined to 
be delinquent, as provided in Article 103.0031 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure.  At least once each 
month on a date or dates agreed upon by the parties, The County will provide The Firm with copies of, or 
access to, the information and documentation necessary to collect the delinquent fines and fees that are 
subject to this Contract.  The County shall furnish the information to The Firm by electronic transmission 
or magnetic medium whenever feasible.  The County shall be responsible for the receipt of the payment of 
all Fines and Fees collected pursuant to this Contract, whether received directly from the defendant or from 
The Firm.   
 

III. 
 The Firm shall forward all cashier checks or money order payments made payable to The County 
and any correspondence from defendants directly to the County.  Cashier checks or money order payments 
made payable to The Firm will be deposited daily into the MVBA Trust Account.  The Firm may also collect 
the amount due from the defendant by credit card or electronic draft, which is deposited directly into the 
MVBA Trust Account.  The Firm shall remit to the individual Justice Courts all payments in full received 
into the MVBA Trust Account, at least twice a month, along with an invoice detailing the docket number, 
name of defendant, the amount paid to The Firm or Court, The Firm fee percentage and fees earned for each 
case.  
 
  



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 

IV. 
 The Firm shall indemnify and hold The County harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, 
and/or costs arising from claims for damages or suits for losses or damages, including reasonable costs and 
attorney’s fees, which may arise as a result of The Firm’s performance of the services described in this 
Contract.  The indemnity provision of this Contract shall have no application to any claim or demand which 
results from the sole negligence or fault of The County, its officers, agents, employees, or Contractors.  And 
furthermore, in the event of joint and/or shared negligence or fault of The County and The Firm, 
responsibility and indemnity, if any, shall be apportioned in accordance with Texas law and without waiving 
any defenses of either party.  The provisions of this paragraph are intended for the sole benefit of the parties 
hereto and are not intended to create or grant any right, contractual or otherwise, to any other persons or 
entities.  
 

V. 
 The Firm agrees to make progress reports to The County on request regarding delinquent Justice 
Court Fines and Fees collection. 

  
VI. 

COMPENSATION 
DELINQUENT JUSTICE COURT FINES 
AND FEES COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
 The County agrees to pay The Firm for delinquent Justice Court fines and fees collection services as 
compensation for the professional services rendered the following fees: 
 

1. For those Fines and Fees imposed against unadjudicated offenses that occurred before June 18, 2003, 
a fee of zero percent (0%) of the amount collected by the court on those cases in which the data files 
are transmitted to MVBA. 

 
2. For those Fines and Fees imposed against unadjudicated offenses that occurred on or after June 18, 

2003, and for adjudicated offenses regardless of the date of occurrence, a fee of thirty percent (30%) 
of the amount of the Fines and Fees collected by The County, as provided by Article 103.0031 of 
the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. The Firm understands all court costs due to the State will be 
paid first. 

 
3. In the event any case is disposed of by acquittal or dismissal, or if the fine, costs, or fees are 

discharged through the performance of community service, credit for jail time served, the 
discretionary removal of a collection fee by the court or pursuant to Section 445.0491 of the Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure, no compensation shall be paid to The Firm by The County. No 
compensation shall be paid in the event: (a) a case is disposed of by acquittal or dismissal; (b) fines, 
costs, or fees are discharged through the performance of community service; (c) a case results in 
credit for time served; or (d) there exists a discretionary removal of a collection fee by the court or 
pursuant to Section 45.0491 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. 

 
All fees provided for in this Contract shall become the property of The Firm at the time payment of fines, 
fees, penalties, and interest is made to The County. The Firm shall be paid monthly. 
 
 
  



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 

VII.  
TERM 

 The term of this Contract shall commence on August 1, 2024, and end on July 31, 2025.  The 
County shall have the option exercisable at any time that this Contract is in force to renew and extend this 
Contract on its identical terms for four additional one-year terms beginning on August 1, 2025, and ending 
on July 31, 2029.  

 
In the event that The County terminates this Contract, The Firm shall be entitled to continue its 

collection activity on all accounts previously referred to The Firm for six (6) months from the date of 
receipt of a Notice to Terminate and to payment of its fee, pursuant to Paragraph V of this Contract for all 
amounts collected on accounts referred to The Firm. The County may, at its discretion, refer additional 
accounts to The Firm after The Firm has received a Notice of Termination. At the end of the six (6) month 
period, all accounts shall be returned to The County by The Firm. 

 
The Firm hereby accepts said employment and undertakes the performance of this Contract as written above.  

 

VIII. 

VERIFICATIONS 
 The Firm acknowledges that the Texas Government Code requires certain written verifications from 
a company entering into a Contract with a Texas governmental entity.  Accordingly, The Firm verifies that: 

A. The Firm does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of this Contract; 

B. The Firm does not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the 
term of this Contract; 

C. The Firm does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a 
firearm entity or a firearm trade association and will not discriminate against a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association during this Contract; 

D. The Firm does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization 
designated as such by the United States Secretary of State and will not engage in business with 
any such entity, Iran, or Sudan during the term of this Contract, and furthermore; 

E. The Firm is not listed by the Texas Comptroller as a company known to have Contracts with or 
provide services to a foreign terrorist organization. 

  



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

 

IX.  

NOTICES 
 For purposes of sending notice under the terms of this Contract, all notices from The County shall 
be sent to The Firm by Certified United States mail, McCreary, Veselka, Bragg & Allen, P.C., 700 Jeffrey 
Way, Suite 100, Round Rock, Texas 78680, or delivered by hand or by courier.  All notices to The County 
shall be sent certified United States mail or delivered by hand or courier to the following: 

County of Hays 
Attention: County Judge 
111 E. San Antonio Street, Ste. 300 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
Phone: (512) 393-2205 
 
WITH COPY TO: 
 
Hays County District Attorney – Civil Division 
111 E. San Antonio Street, Ste. 202 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
Phone: (512) 393-2219 
 
Hays County Purchasing Office 
Attn: Purchasing Agent 
712 S. Stagecoach Trail, Ste. 1012 
San Marcos, TX 78666 
Phone: (512) 393-2267 
 

 
  



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

X. 

 
 The Contract is executed on behalf of The County by The County Judge who is authorized to execute 
this instrument by resolution heretofore passed and duly recorded in its minutes. 

 WITNESS the signatures of all parties hereto this the 30th day of July 2024. 

       

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 

     By:______________________________________ 
      Hon. Ruben Becerra, Hays County Judge 
 
      McCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG & ALLEN, P.C. 

Attorneys at Law 
700 Jeffrey Way, Suite 100 
P.O. Box 1269 
Round Rock, Texas 78680 
 

      By:______________________________________  
      Tacie Zelhart, Project Attorney 

ATTEST 

 
By:______________________________________  
Elaine Cardenas 
Hays County Clerk  



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 11.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Stephanie Hunt

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize the execution of a contingent fee contract, and associated resolution, between
Hays County and Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP for Delinquent District and County Court Fines and Fees
collection Services, pursuant to RFP 2024-P05.  BEC ER R A/H U N TBEC ER R A/H U N T

Summary:Summary:
On June 18, 2024, the Commissioners Court awarded RFP 2024-P05 Delinquent District and County Court Fines and Fees
Collection Services to Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP to provide delinquent district and county court fines and
fees collection services. 

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: Fees set in solicitation
Line Item Number: N/A

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: N/A
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Request for Proposal (RFP) 2024-P05 Delinquent District and County Court Fines and Fees Collection
Services

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?:
New Revenue Y/N?:
Comments: Delinquent court costs collected are allocated to the GL revenue accounts based on case information.

AttachmentsAttachments
(PE) RFP 2024-P05 Contract
RFP 2024-P05 Public Notice
RFP 2024-P05 Resolution to Approve



LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP 

CONTRACT FOR DELINQUENT DISTRICT AND COUNTY COURT FINES AND FEES 
COLLECTION SERVICES 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HAYS § 

THIS CONTRACT 'FOR DELINQUENT DISTRICT AND COUNTY COURT FINE AND FEES 
COLLECTION SERVICES (hereinafter "Contract") is made and entered into by and between THE 
COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS (The County), acting herein by and through its Commissioners Court, 
and LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP (The Firm), Terrace 2, 2700 Via Fortuna 
Drive, Ste. 500, Austin, TX 78746. 

. 
I.

DELINQUENT DISTRICT AND COUNTY 
COURT FINES AND FEES COLLECTION 

SERVICES 

The County agrees to employ and does hereby employ The Firm to enforce by suit  or otherwise 
the enforcement of the collection of delinquent District and County Court debt and accounts receivable, 
including fines, fees, court costs, forfeited bonds, restitution, and other amounts in accordance with 
Article 103 .0031 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure (hereinafter referred to in this agreement as 
"Fines and Fees") due to The County pursuant to RFP 2024-P0S and the awarded proposal submitted 
by Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson LLP, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit

"A". 

II. 
For purposes of this Contract, all Fines and Fees shall be referred to The Firm when determined to 

be delinquent, as provided in Article 103.0031 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. At least once each 
month on a date or dates agreed upon by the parties, The County will provide The Firm with copies of, or 
access to, the .information and documentation necessary to collect the delinquent fines and fees that are 
subject to this Contract. The County shall furnish the information to The Firm by electronic transmission 
or magnetic medium whenever feasible. The County shall be responsible for the receipt of the payment of 
all Fines and Fees collected pursuant to this Contract, whether received directly from the defendant or from 
The Firm. 

III. 
The Firm shall forward all cashier checks or money order payments made payable to The County 

and any correspondence from defendants directly to the County. Cashier checks or money order payments 
made payable to The Firm will be deposited daily into the LINEBARGER Trust Account. The Firm may 
also collect the amount due from the defendant by credit card or electronic draft, which is deposited directly 
into the LINEBARGER Trust Account. The Firm shall remit to the District and County Court all payments 
in full received into the LINEBARGER Trust Account, at least twice a month, along with an invoice 
detailing the docket number, name of defendant, the amount paid to The Firm or Court, The Firm fee 
percentage and fees earned for each case. 

Page 1 of 5 











PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

In Accordance with Texas Government Code, section 2254.1036(a)(1), the County of Hays, Texas, 
provides the following written notice to the public in connection with the above agenda item: 

1. The County of Hays, Texas, is pursuing the legal services of Linebarger Goggan Blair & 
Sampson, LLP, a delinquent fines and fees collection law firm, to collect delinquent fines 
and fees owed to the district and county courts of Hays County, Texas.  The desired 
outcome of the legal services would be for the County of Hays, Texas, to collect the 
delinquent fines and fees that its district and county court is owed in as short a time period 
as possible. 

2. Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP has been competently collecting delinquent fines 
and fees for nearly five decades and currently represents hundreds of Texas cities and 
counties in the collection of delinquent fines and fees. It is a competent, qualified, and 
experienced delinquent fines and fees collection law firm. 

3. The legal services desired by the County of Hays, Texas, which are the subject of the 
contract, cannot be adequately performed by the attorneys and supporting personnel of 
the County of Hays, Texas.  

4. The legal services desired by the County of Hays, Texas, that are the subject of the contract 
cannot be reasonably obtained from attorneys in private practice under a contract 
providing for the payment of hourly fees without contingency because the County of Hays, 
Texas does not have funds in its budget to pay the estimated hourly fees and other costs 
incurred to implement an effective delinquent fines and fees collection program under a 
contract providing only for the payment of hourly fees and costs.  Texas Code of Criminal 
Procedure, Art. 103.0031 allows a county to recover a penalty to defray the costs of 
collecting delinquent fines and fees only if the county has entered into a contract with a 
private attorney or public or private vendor pursuant to the Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 
103.0031. 

5. To defray the cost of collecting delinquent fines and fees as provided by Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031, to save money and ensure that the collection of 
delinquent fines and fees is diligently pursued for the County of Hays, Texas, a contingent 
fee contract with Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP is in the best interests of the 
residents of the County of Hays, Texas. 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 
CONTRACT FOR THE COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT DISTRICT AND COUNTY COURT 

FINES AND FEES BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS, AND LINEBARGER 
GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP 

WHEREAS, the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Art. 103.0031 provides that a district and county court 
may contract with a law firm for the collection of delinquent district and county court fines 
and fees and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is a substantial need for the County of Hays, Texas, to obtain the legal services of a 

delinquent fines and fees collection law firm and, 
 
WHEREAS, the legal services of a delinquent fines and fees collection law firm cannot be adequately 

performed by the attorneys and supporting personnel of the County of Hays, Texas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the legal services of a delinquent fines and fees collection firm cannot reasonably be obtained 

from attorneys in private practice under a contract providing only for the payment of hourly 
fees, without regard to the outcome of the matter because the County of Hays, Texas does 
not have funds in its budget to pay the estimated hourly fees and other costs incurred to 
implement an effective delinquent fines and fees collection program under a contract 
providing only for the payment of hourly fees and costs; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner’s Court of the County of Hays, Texas, has determined that it is in the public 

interest to enter into the proposed Contract for the Collection of Delinquent District and 
County Court Fines and Fees Between the County of Hays, Texas, and Linebarger Goggan 
Blair & Sampson, LLP. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF THE 
COUNTY OF HAYS, TEXAS, THAT: 
  
The proposed Contract for the Collection of Delinquent District and County Court Fines and Fees Between 
the County of Hays, Texas, and Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP is hereby approved; the 
Executive Officer is authorized to execute the same on behalf of the County of Hays, Texas. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED BY THE COMMISSIONER’S COURT OF THE COUNTY OF 
HAYS, TEXAS ON THE ________ DAY OF _____________________ 2024. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Hays County Judge, Ruben Becerra 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Elaine H. Cardenas, Hays County Clerk  



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 12.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Elaine Brown

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Co-Sponsor:Co-Sponsor: Commissioner Ingalsbe

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to execute contract amendments to the County Court at Law Mental Health Specialty Court
Program contracts with C. Nichole Mueller-McMorris, LCSW; Lisa Hinson, LCDC; Moonstone Counseling, PLLC; Horton
House 501c3; Hiatus Wellness; and Evoke Wellness. C OH EN /IN GALSBE/BR OWNC OH EN /IN GALSBE/BR OWN

Summary:Summary:
On April 28, 2023, the Commissioner Court executed contracts with the following vendors for the County Court at Law
Mental Health Specialty Court Program services.   The County Court at Law Mental Health Specialty Court Program is
requesting contract amendments to adjust the not-to-exceed amounts and the contract end dates of the contracts. These
contract adjustments will allow the MHC to more effectively address the court participants' needs. 

CONTRACTOR

 CURRENT
CONTRACT

VALUE 
 INCR /
(DCR) 

 REVISED
CONTRACT

VALUE  
C. Nichole Mueller-McMorris, LCSW  $        15,000  $     (3,440)  $       11,560 New expiration 9/30/24
Lisa Hinson, LCDC  $        15,000  $     (5,000)  $       10,000 New expiration 9/30/24
Moonstone Counseling, PLLC  $        30,000  $   (25,000)  $         5,000 New expiration 9/30/24
Horton House, 501C3  $        44,940  $   (23,483)  $       21,457 New expiration 9/30/24
Hiatus Wellness, LLC  $        30,000  $   (18,440)  $       11,560 New expiration 9/30/24
Evoke Wellness Texas  $        45,000  $               -   $       45,000 New expiration 9/30/24
  $     179,940   $     104,577  

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: None (-75,363 decrease)
Line Item Number: 011-763-99-161.5448

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: N/A

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Government Code Chapter 2254, Professional Services

Auditor's Office:Auditor's Office:
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Amendment 1 - Hiatus Wellness LLC
Amendment 1 - Moonstone Counseling
Amendment 1 - C. Nichole Mueller-McMorris
(PE) Amendment 1 - Lisa Hinson, LCDC
(PE) Horton House 501c3
Amendment 1 - Evoke Wellness



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT 

BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY AND HIATUS WELLNESS, LLC 

1. This 1st Amendment to the Contract executed on or about March 28th, 2023 (“Amendment”) 
is made the 30th day of July 2024, by and between HAYS COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas (herein referred to as “County”), and HIATUS 
WELLNESS, LLC (herein referred to as “Contractor”) and effective March 29, 
2024.  The above cited parties are collectively referred to as “the parties to this 
Contract” or “the parties.”

2. Changes in Contract:
• PAYMENT FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES:

 Remove: 2. Payments will not exceed $30,000 during the contract period.
 Add: 2. Payments will not exceed $11,560 during the contract period.

• TERM OF THE AGREEMENT
 Remove: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 

28th, 2023, until March 28th, 2024, and shall renew automatically for one-
year terms unless either CNMM or MHC gives thirty (30) days or more 
advance written notice of intent to not renew.

 Add: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 28th, 
2023, until September 30th, 2024, and the County shall have the option to 
extend this contract for an additional one-year term beginning October 1, 
2024.

3. Except for the above modifications set forth in this First Amendment, all other terms and 
conditions of the Agreement shall remain unaffected and shall continue in full force and 
effect in accordance with its terms.

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS HIATUS WELLNESS, LLC 

By: ______________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: Ruben Becerra_________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: Hays County Judge_____________ Title: ______________________________ 

Dated: ___________________________ Dated: _____________________________ 

ATTEST:  ___________________________ 
     Elaine H. Cardenas, MBA PhD 
     Hays County Clerk 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT 

BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY AND MOONSTONE COUNSELING, PLLC 

1. This 1st Amendment to the Contract executed on or about March 28th, 2023 (“Amendment”) 
is made the 30th day of July 2024, by and between HAYS COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas (herein referred to as “County”), and MOONSTONE 
COUNSELING, PLLC (herein referred to as “Contractor”) and is effective March 29, 
2024.  The above cited parties are collectively referred to as “the parties to this Contract” 
or “the parties.”

2. Changes in Contract:
• PAYMENT FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES:

 Remove: 2. Payments will not exceed $30,000 during the contract period.
 Add: 2. Payments will not exceed $5,000 during the contract period.

• TERM OF THE AGREEMENT
 Remove: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 

28th, 2023, until March 28th, 2024, and shall renew automatically for one-
year terms unless either CNMM or MHC gives thirty (30) days or more 
advance written notice of intent to not renew.

 Add: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 28th, 
2023, until September 30th, 2024, and the County shall have the option to 
extend this contract for an additional one-year term beginning October 1, 
2024.

3. Except for the above modifications set forth in this First Amendment, all other terms and 
conditions of the Agreement shall remain unaffected and shall continue in full force and 
effect in accordance with its terms.

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS MOONSTONE COUNSELING, PLLC 

By: ______________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: Ruben Becerra_________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: Hays County Judge_____________ Title: ______________________________ 

Dated: ___________________________ Dated: _____________________________ 

ATTEST:  ___________________________ 
     Elaine H. Cardenas, MBA PhD 
     Hays County Clerk 





 



FIRST AMENDMNET TO THE CONTRACT 

BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY AND HORTON HOUSE 501c3 

1. This 1st Amendment to the Contract executed on or about March 28th, 2023 (“Amendment”) is
made the 1st day of January 2024, by and between HAYS COUNTY, a political subdivision of
the State of Texas (herein referred to as “County”), and HORTON HOUSE, 501c3 (herein
referred to as “Contractor”).  The above cited parties are collectively referred to as “the parties
to this Contract” or “the parties.”

2. Changes in Contract:
• PAYMENT FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES:

 Remove: 2. Payments will not exceed $44,940 during the contract period.
 Add: 2. Payments will not exceed $21,457 during the contract period.

• TERM OF THE AGREEMENT
• Remove: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 28th,

2023, until March 28th, 2024, and shall renew automatically for one-year terms
unless either CNMM or MHC gives thirty (30) days or more advance written
notice of intent to not renew.

• Add: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from March 28th,
2023, until September 30th, 2024, and the County shall have the option to extend
this contract for an additional one-year term beginning October 1, 2024.

• MONTHLY STAY RATE:
 Current Rate: $535/monthly
 New Proposed Rate: $545/monthly ($10.00 increase)

3. Except for the above modifications set forth in this Third Amendment, all other terms and
conditions of the Agreement shall remain unaffected and shall continue in full force and
effect in accordance with its terms.

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS HORTON HOUSE, 501c3 

By: ______________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: Ruben Becerra_________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: Hays County Judge_____________ Title: ______________________________ 

Dated: ___________________________ Dated: _____________________________ 

ATTEST:  ___________________________ 
     Elaine H. Cardenas, MBA PhD 
     Hays County Clerk 

Erin Abel

Owner

7/25/2024



FIRST AMENDMNET TO THE CONTRACT 

BETWEEN HAYS COUNTY AND EVOKE WELLNESS 

 

1. This 1st Amendment to the Contract executed on or about January 2nd, 2024 
(“Amendment”) is made this 30th day of July 2024, by and between HAYS COUNTY, a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas (herein referred to as “County”) and EVOKE 
WELLNESS (herein referred to as “Contractor”).  The above cited parties are collectively 
referred to as “the parties to this Contract” or “the parties.” 
 

2. Changes in Contract: 
• TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

 Remove: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from January 
2nd, 2024, until December 31st, 2024.  

 Add: The period of performance of this agreement shall be from January 
2nd, 2024, until September 30th, 2024, and the County shall have the option 
to extend this contract for an additional one-year term beginning October 1, 
2024.  
  

3. Except for the above modifications set forth in this Third Amendment, all other terms and 
conditions of the Agreement shall remain unaffected and shall continue in full force and 
effect in accordance with its terms. 

 

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS    EVOKE WELLNESS  
 
By: ______________________________  By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: Ruben Becerra_________  Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: Hays County Judge_____________  Title: ______________________________ 

Dated: ___________________________  Dated: _____________________________ 

ATTEST:  ___________________________ 
             Elaine H. Cardenas, MBA PhD 
             Hays County Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 13.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Vickie Dorsett, Budget Officer

Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Smith

Agenda Item:Agenda Item:
Discussion and possible action to authorize Amendment No. 1 to the Funding Agreement for Grant Management and
Program Management Services with Ardurra Group, Inc. related to the American Rescue Plan Act Program
Funding. SMITH /D OR SETTSMITH /D OR SETT

Summary:Summary:
On February 15, 2022 the Commissioners Court awarded a contract to Ardurra group pursuant to RFP 2021-P07 for
Program Management Services related to the ARPA funding Hays County received.  Hays County has handled some of the
program management, and drafting contracts and amendments and will not require the full amount of services
initially intended during the contract negotiations.  Therefore, this amendment reduces the total contract award down from
$1,320,000 to $600,000 and extends the period from December 31, 2024 to December 31, 2026 in order to assist with any
final close out requests.    

 

Fiscal Impact:Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: None (-$720k reduction)
Line Item Number: 011-763-99-159.5448

Budget Office:Budget Office:
Source of Funds: American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund
Budget Amendment Required Y/N?: No
Comments: De-obligated funds will be utilized to offset ongoing costs of Hays County programs that have been rolled out
utilizing ARPA funding. 

Purchasing Office:Purchasing Office:
Purchasing Guidelines Followed Y/N?: Yes
Comments: Request for Proposal (RFP) 2021-P07 Program Management - ARPA Funds

Auditor's OfficeAuditor's Office
G/L Account Validated Y/N?: Yes
New Revenue Y/N?: N/A
Comments:

AttachmentsAttachments
Ardurra ARPA Amendment No. 1



 

1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT  
HAYS COUNTY AGREEMENT FOR GRANT MANAGEMENT  

AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE  
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 
WITH ARDURRA GROUP INC. 

 
This First Amendment to the Hays County Funding Agreement for Grant Management and Program 
Management Services (the “Amendment”) is entered into by and between Ardurra Group Inc. (the 
“Agency”) and Hays County, Texas (the “County”), parties to the Hays County Agreement for Grant 
Management and Program Management Services executed on or about March 22, 2022 (“Agreement”). 
By execution of this Amendment, the parties agree that the Agreement shall be amended effective July 
30, 2024. 
 
The Agency and the County now desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as more particularly set 
forth below: 
 

1. Agreement 
a. Section III. The Grant Manager’s Compensation is amended as follows: 

 
“Likewise, the County shall have no obligation to pay compensation, including 
reimbursement, in excess of the Not-to-Exceed amount of one million three hundred and 
twenty-thousand dollars $1,320,000.00 USD six hundred thousand dollars $600,000 
USD)(“the Compensation Cap”) without prior approval” 
 
b. Exhibit A. 4.0 Compensation is amended as follows: 
 
“Payments to GRANT MANAGER shall be based on unit rates provided in Exhibit “D” – 
Rate Sheet up to a not to exceed (NTE) amount of $1,320,000 $600,000” 
 
c. Exhibit A. 5.0 Time of Performance is amended as follows: 

 
“In any event, all of the services required and performed hereunder shall be completed no 
later than December 31, 2024 2026 with the option to extend by both parties.” 

 
 

The stricken language above shall be omitted, while the underlined language above shall be added. 
Except for the above modifications, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain 
unchanged, unless properly modified by subsequent amendment under the terms of the agreement. 
If there is conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the terms of this Amendment will 
prevail. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set 
forth below. 
 
 
ARDURRA GROUP INC.    HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Chris Canonico, Principal    Ruben Becerra, County Judge 
 
DATE: __________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
       ATTEST: 

 
 
       _________________________________  
       Elaine H. Cardenas, County Clerk 
 
 



Agency: Ardurra Group Inc

Contract Period: 3/22/2022 - 12/31/2026

Contract #:

  
BUDGETED REQUESTED REVISED

   BUDGET ITEM AMOUNT CHANGE BUDGET

SALARIES
 

FRINGE BENEFITS
 
TRAVEL ASSISTANCE

HOUSING ASSISTANCE

 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS UPGRADE
 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
 
RENT/UTILITIES
 
DEPARTMENT SPECIFIC COSTS

MISCELLANEOUS
 
SUBCONTRACTS/CONSULTANTS
 
INDIRECT COSTS  

 
RESTRICTED

 
   TOTAL

 

AUDITOR SIGNATURE DATE

$1,300,000 -$700,000 $600,000

$600,000-$700,000$1,300,000

Hays County

SLFRF Subrecipient Agreement

Budget Modification

Please provide a narrative justification for all changes and attach all budget forms to the modification.

AGENCY SIGNATURE                                                                   DATE

BROADBAND IMPROVEMENTS

Hays County American Rescue Plan State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Budget Modification



Agency:

Contract Period:

Please provide a narrative justification of all requested changes.  Attach all budget forms to the modification.

Hays County
Budget Modification Justification

Ardurra Group Inc

Decrease in contract to reflect remaining level of effort on the project. 

AIDS Institute Bud Mod Justification



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: K. 14.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By: Vickie Dorsett, Budget Officer

Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Discussion and possible action regarding the Fiscal Year 2025 budget, including a presentation of the Budget Office FY25
Recommended Budget and selection of dates for budget workshops. BEC ER R A/D OR SETTBEC ER R A/D OR SETT

SummarySummary
FY 2025 Recommended Budget documents will be provided in Court. 



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: L. 1.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Executive Session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with counsel
and deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease and/or value of real property associated with Parks and Open
Space Projects being considered by Hays County. Possible discussion and/or action may follow in open court. 
BEC ER R A BEC ER R A  

SummarySummary
Additional information will be provided during Executive Session.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: L. 2.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Shell

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 and Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with
counsel and deliberation related to the purchase, exchange, or value of real property located within the La Cima
subdivision(s).  Possible action may follow in open court. SH ELLSH ELL

SummarySummary



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: L. 3.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Commissioner Cohen

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Executive Session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.072 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with counsel
and deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease and/or value of Right of Way located at or near Turnersville Road
in Pct. 2. Possible discussion and/or action may follow in open court.  C OH ENC OH EN

SummarySummary
To be provided in Executive Session.



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: L. 4.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Executive Session Pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the Texas Government Code: Consultation with counsel
and deliberation regarding economic development negotiations associated with Project Infinite Loop.  Possible discussion
and/or action may follow in open court. BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

SummarySummary



AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM: L. 5.

Hays County Commissioners CourtHays County Commissioners Court
D ate: 07/30/2024D ate: 07/30/2024
Requested By:Requested By:
Sponsor:Sponsor: Judge Becerra

Agenda ItemAgenda Item
Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code: consultation with counsel regarding
pending and/or contemplated litigation involving Hays County. Possible action may follow in open court.  BEC ER R ABEC ER R A

SummarySummary


	Agenda
	F.01.__Presentation of Hays County Employee Service and Retirement Awards
	       ATT_July 2024 Service and Retirement Awards
	F.02.__PEC - Recognition of Students - Gov't in Action Youth
	G.04.__Approve Minutes
	       ATT_7_16_2024 Minutes
	G.05.__Renewal - Accident Insurance Policy - La Vernia Insurance Agency
	       ATT_2024-2024 Volunteer Accident Policy
	G.06.__Kyle WIC HVAC Replacement
	       ATT_SI Mechanical Quote   
	       ATT_Unit Spec Sheet
	Outline Drawing 
	Product Specifications 
	Minimum Airflow CFM 
	Heater Pressure Drop Table 
	Subcooling Adjustment 

	Performance and Electrical Data 
	Features and Benefits 


	G.07.__Yarrington Antenna
	       ATT_Security One - Work Order
	G.08.__GC CRAC Unit #3
	       ATT_Dunn Wright Quote
	       ATT_SI Mechanical Quote   
	G.09.__Out of State Travel Will Baumann
	       ATT_Tyler Advisory 
	G.10.__ESRI Indoor Mapping
	       ATT_ESRI Quote
	       ATT_Discretionary Exemption Certification
	G.11.__CERT Training Manikin
	       ATT_Manikin 
	G.12.__TWDB Contract Extension
	       ATT_Amendment 2
	AMENDMENT NO. 2

	G.13.__TDEM WD Activation
	       ATT_Reimbursement Guide
	Purpose
	Authority
	Introduction
	For out-of-state deployments through the Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC), documentation and timeline requirements may differ. TDEM will notify responding entities of any additional guidance for these deployments as soon as possible.

	Submission Information
	Submission Points of Contact
	Submission Timeline
	General Timeline
	Time Extension Request
	Timeline of Communication from Deployment to Reimbursement Submission


	Reimbursement Review Timelines
	Labor
	Eligibility Requirements
	Documentation Requirements

	Travel
	Meals
	Lodging
	Personal Vehicles

	Equipment
	Damaged Equipment

	Other Items Eligible for Reimbursement

	Best Practices – Pre-Deployment Activities
	Best Practices – Deployment Activities
	Best Practices – Post Deployment Activities
	Acknowledgement Statement
	Samples
	Samples


	       ATT_Terms and Conditions
	G.14.__Check Acceptance
	       ATT_JB Collision Estimate
	G.15.__First Amendment - PSA - Broaddus & Associates
	       ATT_1st Letter Amendment - Broaddus and Associates
	       ATT_PSA - Broaddus and Associates
	G.16.__Elections Cont Ed
	G.17.__United Way ARPA Amendment
	       ATT_United Way ARPA Exhibit A
	       ATT_United Way ARPA PW
	       ATT_United Way ARPA Amendment No. 2
	G.18.__OES Vehicle Lights
	       ATT_Intense Lighting Quote
	G.19.__S.O., OST Tyler Advisory Group
	G.20.__S.O., LE Vehicle Equipment
	       ATT_Dana Safety Quote _537751-A
	G.21.__Jail, Replacement RTU2
	       ATT_SI Mechanical Quote
	G.22.__S.O., LE Vehicle Equipment
	       ATT_Applied Concepts Quote
	G.23.__S.O., Rural LE Grant Award Amendment
	G.24.__Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #2 Audit Report
	       ATT_ESD _2 FY2023 Audit Report
	G.25.__ Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #3 Audit Report
	       ATT_HCESD_3 FY2023 Audit Report
	G.26.__ Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency District #5 Audit Report
	       ATT_HCESD_5 FY 2023 Audit Report
	G.27.__ Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #6 Audit Report
	       ATT_HCESD_6 FY2023 Audit Report
	G.28.__Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Hays County Emergency Services District #8 Audit Report
	       ATT_HCESD _8 FY 2023 Final Audit Report
	G.29.__Accept the Fiscal Year 2023 HCESD#9 Audit Report.
	       ATT_HCESD_9 FY2023 Audit Report
	G.30.__Quarterly Internal Examination of Monthly Reports
	       ATT_Quarterly Internal Examination Reports
	G.31.__Company Name Change - Engineering Services
	       ATT_Assignment Letter
	G.32.__IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak - Boundary Fence
	       ATT_IFB 2024-B13 Sentinel Peak - Boundary Fence
	G.33.__IFB 2024-B11 Energy Efficient Mobile Generator
	       ATT_IFB 2024-B11 Solicitation
	G.34.__Waukesha-Pearce Industries, Inc. - Termination Letter
	       ATT_Termination Letter - Waukesha-Pearce
	Termination Letter - Waukesha-Pearce Industries Inc. FINAL.pdf
	3547_Termination_Letter_-_Waukesha-Pearce_Industries,_Inc.pdf

	G.35.__District Court - Digital Camera Courtroom
	       ATT_Beckwith - District Court Digital Camera
	       ATT_Discretionary Exemption Certification
	G.36.__Constable 5 - Furniture
	       ATT_Furniture Quote
	G.37.__Utility Permits
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Permit
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Permit
	G.38.__TDEM - lunch - training seminar
	I.01.__Robert S. Light (Buda Truck Bypass) HDR PSA Supplemental #7
	       ATT_RSL(BudaTruckBypass)-HDR-PSASuppl07
	I.02.__Hymeadow Section 3 Phases 1 & 2 TIA Contribution Agreement
	       ATT_Hymeadow Sec.3 Ph. 1 and 2 TIA Contribution Agreement
	I.03.__Accept Roads Into County Road Maintenance System - Sunset Oaks subd., Section 1, Phase 1
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Bond
	I.04.__Call for a Public Hearing on August 6, 2024 for No Dumping zones on Peaceful Valley Road.
	       ATT_Peaceful Valley Backup
	I.05.__Accept Roads Into County Road Maintenance System - Trails at Windy Hill subd., Phase 6 and Phase 7
	       ATT_Trails Phase 6 Plat
	       ATT_Trails Phase 7 Plat
	       ATT_Bond
	I.06.__PLN-2361-NP; Sanctuary Dripping Springs, Lots 1-56, Final Plat - Fiscal Surety
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Performance Bond
	I.07.__Bear Creek LWC - CEI Selection B2Z
	I.08.__RM 2325 Sidewalk - CEI Selection Pape Dawson
	J.01.__PLN-2470-PC; Woodcreek Section 22, Reserve C, Replat - Hold a Public Hearing
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Application Disapproval (Comment) Letter
	J.02.__PLN-2436-NP; Rainbow Ranch, Lots 68-A, & 68-B, Final
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	J.03.__PLN-2298-PC; River Oaks of Wimberley Unit No. 2, Lot 26, Replat - Ratify approval
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Administrative Approval Letter
	J.04.__PLN-2460-NP; Ratify Approval of the Waterstone Logistics, Final Plat
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Administrative Approval Letter
	J.05.__PLN-2213-PC; Hurlbut Ranch West, Pt of Tract 17, Replat - Ratify Approval
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Administrative Approval Letter
	J.06.__PLN-2424-NP; Ratify Approval of the Sanderson Addition, Final Plat
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Administrative Approval Letter
	J.07.__PLN-2543-PC; Green Hills, Lot 25, Replat - Call for Public Hearing
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	J.08.__PLN-2367-PC; Home Camp Subdivision, Lot 1, Replat - Call for Public Hearing
	       ATT_Cover Letter
	       ATT_Plat
	       ATT_Location Map
	K.01.__Order General Election for November 5 , 2024.
	       ATT_Order of General Election
	K.02.__Adopt Early Voting Locations for General Election on November 5, 2024
	       ATT_EV Polling Locations and Schedule
	K.03.__List of Judges, Alternate Judges, and Early Voting Ballot Board - November 5, 2024 General Election
	       ATT_List for General Election
	K.04.__Establish Central Counting Station, Tabulation Supervisor, and Central Count Manager for the November 5, 2024 General Election
	K.05.__Approve Joint Election Agreements with Political Subdivisions for the November 5, 2024 General Election
	       ATT_Sample - Joint Election Agreement
	K.06.__CCL Salary Exception
	K.07.__Amend Professional Services Agreement
	       ATT_First Amendment 
	HDR ARCHITECTURE, INC.     HAYS COUNTY
	HDR Amended Scope 6.26.2024.pdf
	June 26, 2024
	Tammy Crumley
	Based on conversations you have had this week with Chris Casey, we are also including Option 2 to account for the possible relocation of building entry screening to in front of the elevators and grand stair.
	Our recommended work plan is like before, as follows.
	cc: Halden Tally, John Niesen, Kimberly Little, Chris Casey

	HDR-1st Letter Amendment (jmp markup).pdf
	HDR ARCHITECTURE, INC.     HAYS COUNTY

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	       ATT_Professional Services Agreement
	HDR Proposal for Hays County GC Master Plan.pdf
	July 15, 2022
	Tammy Crumley
	 County is open to a mixture of renovations and building expansions on the site.
	We have established a scope of work to interview departments, gather space projections and parking needs and develop conceptual plan solutions and then provide a high-level cost estimate for an initial building program. Below is our fee proposal with recommended process and timeline.
	We anticipate incurring costs for in-house printing. This is included in the fees. However, we have assumed that all deliverables will be electronic and no printing for deliverables is currently included in the fees proposed. In order to reduce travel costs, we have budgeted for in-person meetings for departmental interviews and the Design Charrette only. All other meetings and presentations shall be held remotely.
	cc: Halden Tally, John Niesen, Kimberly Little
	- Bridge/culvert crossings will be incorporated into the 2D domain. If information from effective models does not reasonably reflect existing conditions. Only readily available as-builts will be obtained. If no as-builts are available field measurements will be used. No survey will be completed.
	1. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE
	2. INSURANCE/INDEMNITY
	3. OPINIONS OF PROBABLE COST (COST ESTIMATES)
	4. CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES
	5. CONTROLLING LAW
	6. SERVICES AND INFORMATION
	7. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	8. RE-USE OF DOCUMENTS
	9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
	10. SEVERABILITY
	11. INVOICES
	12. CHANGES
	13. CONTROLLING AGREEMENT
	14. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT AND NONDISCRIMINATION
	15. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
	16. EXECUTION
	17. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
	18. LITIGATION SUPPORT
	19. OPERATIONAL TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS
	20. FORCE MAJEURE



	K.08.__Funding Agreement WISD & WYSA
	       ATT_Funding Agreement - WISD and WYSA
	COUNTY OF HAYS §
	SECTION II. OVERVIEW
	The Lease Agreement, Joint Use Agreement, and Project
	Funding

	SECTION III. COUNTY OBLIGATIONS
	Design and Construction
	Draw Requests
	Additional Project Funding

	SECTION IV. OTHER OBILIGATIONS
	Compliance with Laws
	Recognition

	SECTION V. CONTRACTS
	SECTION VI. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	SECTION VII. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
	SECTION VIII. RIGHT TO AUDIT
	WITNESS OUR HANDS EFFECTIVE THIS  OF   , 2024 (the “Effective Date”).
	Approved and accepted on behalf of the County of Hays.
	Approved and accepted on behalf of WISD
	Approved and accepted on behalf of WYSA


	K.09.__MOU - OES & Food Bank
	       ATT_MOU Food Bank
	K.10.__RFP 2024-P01 Delinquent Justice Court Fines and Fees Collection Services - Contract
	       ATT_RFP 2024-P01 Public Notice
	       ATT_RFP 2024-P01 Resolution to Approve
	       ATT_(PE) RFP 2024-P01 Contract
	K.11.__RFP 2024-P05 Delinquent District and County Court Fines and Fees Collection Services - Contract
	       ATT_(PE) RFP 2024-P05 Contract
	       ATT_RFP 2024-P05 Public Notice
	       ATT_RFP 2024-P05 Resolution to Approve
	K.12.__Contract Amendment - Amendment to Contracts for Mental Health Court
	       ATT_Amendment 1 - Hiatus Wellness LLC
	       ATT_Amendment 1 - Moonstone Counseling
	       ATT_(PE) Amendment 1 - Lisa Hinson, LCDC
	       ATT_(PE) Horton House 501c3
	       ATT_Amendment 1 - Evoke Wellness
	K.13.__Ardurra ARPA Amendment
	       ATT_Ardurra ARPA Amendment No. 1
	K.14.__FY25 Recommended Budget
	L.01.__Executive Session Parks
	L.02.__Exec - La Cima Land Exchange
	L.03.__Exec Roads - ROW - Turnersville Road
	L.04.__Exec - Project Infinite Loop
	L.05.__Pending Litigation



